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Foreword

To begin with, I want to thank everyone that has provided photographs and other information and also the people from the National Archives, the Land Survey Office, and the museums (photo archives).  In addition, I want to acknowledge those of my family including Jens Brönstad who have helped and given an incredible amount of assistance and also Björn Lekedal who worked with his computer and prepared the index.  

Thanks, all of you! 
As you will notice, the history is incomplete for many families, largely because there is not much information to be found about those on small farms.

Furthermore, I have not found many records for the relatives on the Norwegian side and I have not yet had the opportunity to travel to Trondheim to do research.  

I also want to acknowledge Reidar Prestmo for his help concerning the Norwegian branch.  He informed me of the families of Brita and Samuel Ridderberg and of Nils Essing’s daughter, Agnes, who moved to Norway.  He has done excellent work and his information has been very helpful.

I also want to apologize for any mistakes that may have been made.  I hope that they will be corrected in books that may be coming out later, which for my part I hope happens.  Any future books will include many immigrants that I hope can still be traced.  I have been fortunate to make contact with some of them, while others have been harder to trace.  With a little luck, I hope that I will get a few more histories both from Norwegian families and from American families.
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Descendants of Agnis Nilsdotter

{Pages 9 through 24 have been added to original book}.

Agnis Nilsdotter1 () & 1st spouse Måns Randklef1 () 

Kerstin Randklef2 () & Olof Persson Edberg2 ()

Petrus Edberg3 () & Ingeborg Jönsdotter3 () 

Kerstin Persdotter4 () & Henrik Jonsson Södergren4 ()

Catharina Henriksdotter5 () & 1st husband Erik Nilsson5 () 

Catharina Henriksdotter5 () & 2nd husband Olof Kjällander5 () 

Kerstin Olofsdotter6 ()

Henrik Olofsson6 ()

Anna Christina Olofsdotter6 ()

Catharina Olofsdotter6 ()

Pehr Henriksson/Söder5 () & 1st wife Sigrid Nilsdotter5 () 

Henrik Söder6 ()

Kerstin Persdotter6 ()

Pehr Henriksson/Söder5 () & 2nd wife Sven Jönsson Södergren5 () 

Nils Svensson Flyckt6 ()

Pehr Henriksson/Söder5 () & 3rd wife Lösdrivaren Erik5 () 

Hans Ersson Strömstedt6 ()

Ingeborg Henriksdotter5 () & Sven Jönsson Södergren5 () 

Erik Svensson6 ()

Henrik Svensson6 ()

Christina Svensdotter6 ()

Jöns Svensson6 ()

Ingeborg Svensdotter6 ()

Brita Catarina Svensdotter6 ()

Jonas Henriksson5 () & 1st wife Sara Eriksdotter5 () 

Jonas Henriksson5 () & 2nd wife Christina Jonsdotter5 () 

Kerstin Henriksdotter5 () 

Jöns Henriksson5 () & Brita Persdotter5 () 

Pehr Jönsson6 ()

Christina Jönsdotter6 ()

Christina Jönsdotter6 ()

Jonas Petrus Jönsson6 ()

Brita Jönsdotter6 ()

Agnis Edberg3 () & Anders Mårtensson3 () 

Mårten Andersson4 () & Kerstin Jönsdotter4 () 

Anders Mårtensson5 () 

Annika Mårtensdotter5 () & Jöns Svensson5 () 

Sven Jönsson6 ()

Mårten Jönsson6 ()

Ursilla Jönsdotter6 ()

Kerstin Jönsdotter6 ()

Märta Jönsdotter6 ()

Sven Jönsson6 ()

Agnis Jönsdotter6 ()

Anders Mårtensson5 () & Stina Johansdotter Råbuck5 () 

Mårten Andersson6 ()

Jonas Mårtensson5 () & Kerstin Olofsdotter5 () 

Mårten Jonasson6 ()

Olof Jonasson6 ()

Kerstin Jonasdotter6 ()

Christina Jonasdotter6 ()

Anders Jonasson6 ()

Fredrik Jonasson6 ()

Jonas Jonasson6 ()

Anna Jonasdotter6 ()

Agnes Jonasdotter6 ()

Anika Jonasdotter6 ()

Kerstin Andersdotter4 () & Anders Jakobsson4 () 

Agnes Andersdotter5 () & Per Olofsson5 () 

Olof Persson6 ()

Kerstin Persdotter6 ()

Kristina Persdotter6 ()

Anders Persson6 ()

Olof Persson6 ()

Jacob Persson6 ()

Per Persson6 ()

Brita Persdotter6 ()

Jacob Persson6 ()

Stillborn5 () 

Jacob Andersson5 () 

Maria Andersdotter4 () 

Ingeborg Andersdotter4 () 

Anna Andersdotter4 () 

Märet Andersdotter4 ()  & Mårten Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Lang4 () 

Agneta Lang5 () 

Olof Lang5 () 

Brita Lang5 () & Erik Hansson Lindholm5 () 

Katarina Lindholm6 ()

Märet Lindholm6 ()

Anna Brita Lindholm6 ()

Hans Lindholm6 ()

Mårten Eriksson Lindholm6 ()

Anders Lang5 () 

Olof Lang5 () 

Maria Lang5 () 

Anna Lang5 () & Per Nilsson Lind5 () 

Nils Lind6 ()

Märet Lind6 ()

Brita Lind6 ()

Anna Helena Lind6 ()

Johan Magnus Lind6 ()

Sara Andersdotter4 () 

Ingeborg Andersdotter4 () 

Agnis Andersdotter4 () & Jonas Spelman4 () 

Esten Edberg3 () & Brita Andersdotter3 () 

Anna Stina Estensdotter/Ersdotter4 () & Johan Ersson4 () 

Anders Estensson4 () 

Agnis Nilsdotter1 () & 2nd spouse Olof Bengtsson Mörling1 () 

Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Mörling2 () 

Agnis Nilsdotter () 1 & 3rd spouse Måns Essing1 () 

[image: image1.wmf]Brita Halvarsdotter

Anders Essing2 ()  & 1st wife Karin Jonsdotter2 () 

Magnus Essing3 ()

Jonas Essing3 ()

Anders Essing2 () & 2nd wife Brita Gunnarsdotter2 () 

Magnus Essing3 () 

Gunnar Essing3 () & Carin Persdotter Bergström3 () 

Brita Essing4 ()  & Halvar Andersson4 () 

Gunnar Halvarsson5 () & 1st wife Gerken Olofsdotter5 () 

Halvar Gunnarsson6 ()

Olof Gunnarsson6 ()

Brita Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Gunnar Halvarsson5 () & 2nd wife Anna Nilsdotter5 () 

Carin Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Nils Gunnarsson6 ()

Gunnar Gunnarsson6 ()

Gerken Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Anders Gunnarsson6 ()

Anna Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Anna Halvarsdotter5 () & Johan Hjelm5 () 

Erik Hjelm6 ()

Brita Hjelm6 ()

Halvar Hjelm6 ()

Jonas Hjelm6 ()

Märit Johanna Hjelm6 ()

Kerstin Hjelm6 ()

Anna Hjelm6 ()

Catarina Halvarsdotter5 () & Halvar Jönsson5 () 

Märet Halvarsdotter6 ()

Halvar Halvarsson6 ()

Jöns Halvarsson6 ()

Brita Halvarsdotter5 () & Erik Persson Hag5 () 

Brita Hag6 ()

Anna Hag6 ()

Carin Hag6 ()

Agnes Halvarsdotter5 () & Olof Olofsson5 () 

Kerstin Olofsdotter6 ()

Anna Olofsdotter6 ()

Agnes Olofsdotter6 ()

Carin Olofsdotter6 ()

Märit Olofsdotter6 ()

Olof Olofsson6 ()

Brita Olofsdotter6 ()

Anders Halvarsson5 () & Ragnhild Olsdotter5 () 

Berith Andersdotter6 () & Erik Goransson???6 ()

Oline Andersdotter6 ()

Halvor Andersen6 ()

Olaus Andersen6 ()

Ragnhild Andersdotter6 ()

Halvor Andersen6 ()

Anneus Andersen6 ()

Ragnhild Andersdotter6 ()

Göran Halvarsdotter5 () & Carin Andersdotter5 () 

Brita Göransdotter6 ()

Kerstin Halvarsdotter5 () & Olof Andersson5 () 

Anna Olofsdotter6 ()

Halvar Olofsson6 ()

Kerstin Olofsdotter6 ()

Brita Olofsdotter6 ()

Agnes Essing4 () & Morten Mortensen4 () 

Stillborn son5 () 

Catarina Essing4 ()  & Olof Jonasson4 () 

Jonas Olofsson5 () & Kerstin Mårtensdotter5 () 

Olof Jonasson6 ()

Mårten Jonasson6 ()

Katarina Jonasdotter6 ()

Margareta Jonasdotter6 ()

Gudfast Jonasson6 ()

Kristina Jonasdotter6 ()

Karin Jonasdotter6 ()

Gunnar Olofsson5 () & Annika Andersdotter5 () 

Catarina Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Anders Gunnarsson6 ()

Ingeborg Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Olof Gunnarsson6 ()

Olof Gunnarsson6 ()

Ursila Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Johan Gustaf Gunnarsson6 ()

Ursilla Olofsdotter5 () & Henrik Pedersen5 () 

Anders Essing4 () 

Per Essing4 ()  & Brita Persdotter4 () 

Gunnar Persson5 () & Karin Andersdotter5 () 

Per Gunnarsson6 ()

Anders Gunnarsson6 ()

Brita Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Gunnar Gunnarsson6 ()

Ingeborg Gunnarsdotter6 ()

Per Persson5 () & Anna Ivarsdotter5 () 

Brita Persdotter6 ()

Ivar Persson6 ()

Anna Persdotter6 ()

Per Persson6 ()

Magnus Persson5 () & Oline Johannesdotter5 () 

Berit Magnusson6 ()

Johan Petter Magnusson6 ()

Kerstin Persdotter5 () 

Kerstin Persdotter5 () 

Ingeborg Essing4 () & Per I. Bergström4 () 

Karin Bergström5 () & Ole Tronsen5 () 

Tomas Olsen6 ()

Peder Olsen6 ()

Tron Olsen6 ()

Tibertine Olsdotter6 ()

Anders Bergström5 () & Karolina Berg5 () 

Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Berg6 ()

Brita Bergström5 () & Lars Larsson5 () 

Lars Larsson6 ()

Per Larsson6 ()

Anders Larsson6 ()

Gunnar Larsson6 ()

Johan Larsson6 ()

Erik Gustaf Larsson6 ()

Agnes Bergström5 () & Johan Näs5 () 

Maria Johanna Johansdotter Näs6 ()

Maria Bergström5 () & Jonas Abrahamsson5 () 

Brita Jonasdotter6 ()

Per Jonasson6 ()

Anna Brita Jonasdotter6 ()

Gunnar Bergström5 () 

Ingeborg Bergström5 () & Sven Olofsson5 () 

Brita Elisabet Svensdotter6 ()

Ingeborg Svensdotter6 ()

Ingeborg Svensdotter6 ()

Olof Svensson6 ()

Magnus Essing4 () 

Nils Essing3 () & Ingeborg Olofsdotter3 () 

Brita Essing4 () & Anders Hjerpe4 () 

Olof Hjerpe5 () & Anna Åkesdotter5 () 

Anders Johan Olsson Hjerpe6 ()

Andreas 0. Hjerpe6 ()

Åke Hjerpe6 ()

Ingeborg Hjerpe5 () & Johan Ahlgren5 () 

Brita Christina Ahlgren6 ()

Jonas Ahlgren6 ()

Elisabeth Ahlgren6 ()

Anders Ahlgren6 ()

Olof Ahlgren6 ()

Nils Ahlgren6 ()

Nils Hjerpe5 () 

Anders Hjerpe5 () & Agnes Olsdotter5 () 

Anders Hjerpe6 ()

Olof Andersson Hjerpe6 ()

Gertrud Essing4 () 

Anders Essing4 () & Kerstin Persdotter4 () 

Nils Andersson5 () & Anna Karlsdotter5 () 

Anders Nilsson6 ()

Anna Andersdotter5 () & Olof Olofsson5 () 

Olof Olofsson6 ()

Lisa Olofsdotter6 ()

Christina Olofsdotter6 ()

Pelle Andersson5 () 

Ingeborg Andersdotter5 () & Olof Persson5 () 

Per Olofsson6 ()

Anders Olofsson6 ()

Magnus Olofsson6 ()

Anders Essing3 () & Brita Ridderberg3 () 

Anders Essing/Wäll4 ()  & 1st wife Ingrid Nilsdotter4 () 

Anders Essing/Wäll4 ()  & 2nd wife Gölin Estensson4 () 

Anders Wäll5 () 

Erik Wäll5 () 

Brita Wäll5 () & Welam Nilsson5 () 

Juliana Welamsdotter6 ()

Karin Welamsdotter6 ()

Nils Welamsson6 ()

Brita Lisa Welamsdotter6 ()

Andreas Wäll/Strömstedt5 () & 1st wife Elisabeth Mikaelsdotter5 () 

Michael Peter6 ()

Anders Strömstedt6 ()

Märta Brita Strömstedt6 ()

Johan Erik Strömstedt6 ()

Andreas Wäll/Strömstedt5 () & 2nd wife Karin Olofsdotter5 () 

Jonas Wäll5 () & Anna Andersdotter5 () 

Anders Wäll6 ()

Sigrid Wäll6 ()

Jonas Wäll6 ()

Juliana Wäll6 ()

Johan Wäll5 () & Brita Erika Edlund5 () 

Emma Andrietta Edlund? 6 ()

Ingrid Juliana Johansson6 ()

Erik Johansson6 ()

Anna Erika Johansson6 ()

Brita Katarina Johansson6 ()

Ingeborg Gustava Johansson6 ()

Johanna Margareta Johansson6 ()

Anders Johansson6 ()

Hilma Ulrika Johansson6 ()

Alma Elida Johansson6 ()

Hilda Albertina Johansson6 ()

Ingeborg Wäll5 () & Jonas Pålsson5 () 

Maria Jonsdotter6 ()

Ingrid Juliana Jonsdotter6 ()

Ingeborg Jonsdotter6 ()

Anna Brita Jonsdotter6 ()

Johan Essing4 () 

Brita Essing4 ()  & Jon Simonsson4 () 

Johan Jonsson5 () & 1st wife Kerstin Andersdotter5 () 

Jon Johansson ()

Anders Johansson ()

Johan Jonsson5 () & 2nd wife Anna Eriksdotter5 () 

Kerstin Johansdotter6 ()

Erik Johansson6 ()

Simon Johansson6 ()

Brita Johansdotter6 ()

Simon Jonsson5 () & Karin Nilsdotter5 () 

Jon Simonsson6 ()

Nils Simonsson6 ()

Brita Simonsdotter6 ()

Lisa Essing4 ()  & Pål Nätt4 () 

Erik Pålsson5 () 

Anders Pålsson5 () & Karin Mattsdotter5 () 

Stillborn child6 ()

Pål Andersson6 ()

Arvid Emanuel Lindqvist6 ()

Catarina Essing4 ()  & Isak Bergström4 () 

Isak Bergström5 () & Kerstin Nilsdotter5 () 

Nils Magnus Bergström6 ()

Isak Bergström6 ()

Märta Catarina Bergström6 ()

Anders Bergström5 () 

Brita Bergström5 () & Jöns Edlund5 () 

Jonas Edlund6 ()

Catrine Edlund6 ()

Jensine Petrine Edlund6 ()

Per Bergström5 () & Märta Indahl5 () 

Catarina Bergström6 ()

Christina Bergström6 ()

Brita Bergström6 ()

Anna Bergström6 ()

Göran Bergström5 () & Ingeborg Jönsdotter5 () 

Isak Bergström6 ()

Jöns Bergström6 ()

Anders Bergström6 ()

Olof Bergström6 ()

Johan Petter Bergström6 ()

Kristian Bergström6 ()

Inga Bergström6 ()

Olof Bergström5 () 

Johan Essing4 () 

Johan Essing/Lang4 ()  & Anna Jacobsdotter4 () 

Anders Lang5 () 

Jacob Lang5 () & Märta Abrahamsdotter5 () 

Johan Lang6 ()

Anders Lang6 ()

Emma Lang6 ()

Magnus Lang6 ()

Anna Lang6 ()

Magnus Lang6 ()

Brita Lang5 () 

Anna Lang5 () 

Lisa Lang5 () 

Anders Lang5 () & Karin Nilsdotter5 () 

Anna Lang6 ()

Nils Lang6 ()

Karin Essing3 () & 1st husband Lars Nilsson3 () 

Nils Larsson/Wikberg4 ()  & Elin Andersdotter4 () 

Anders Larsson4 ()  & Stina Ersdotter4 () 

Lars Andersson5 () & Brita Ersdotter5 () 

Kristine Larsdotter6 ()

Stina Andersdotter5 () & Petrus Pettersson5 () 

Anders Petrusson6 ()

Petter Petrusson6 ()

Kristina Petrusdotter6 ()

Ingeborg Petrusdotter6 ()

Erik Andersson5 () & Gölin Benjaminsdotter5 () 

Kristina Er XE "Er" iksdotter6 ()

Benjamin Eriksson6 ()

Catharina Andersdotter5 () 

Sven Larsson/Wikberg4 () & Barbro Simonsdotter4 () 

Lars Wikberg5 () & Agnes Andersdotter5 () 

Barbro Wikberg6 ()

Kerstin Wikberg6 ()

Sven Wikberg6 ()

Ingrid Wikberg6 ()

Anders Wikberg6 ()

Karin Wikberg6 ()

Lena Wikberg5 () & Erik Larsson5 () 

Lisa Brita Er XE "Er" iksdotter6 ()

Ursila Er XE "Er" iksdotter6 ()

Sven Eriksson6 ()

Karin Wikberg5 () & Jacob Jacobsson Lalander5 () 

Jacob Jacobsson6 ()

Barbro Jacobsson6 ()

Anders Jacobsson6 ()

Sven Jacobsson6 ()

Per Jacobsson6 ()

Annica Larsdotter4 () 

Magnus Larsson4 () & Kerstin Larsdotter Lind4  

Catharina Magnusdotter5 () & 1st husband Gustaf Magnus Rydell5 () 

Magnus Gustaf Gustafsson6 ()

Catharina Magnusdotter5 () & 2nd husband Olof Olofsson5 () 

Olaus Olofsson6 ()

Anna Christina Olofsdotter6 ()

Katarina Olofsdotter6 ()

Sven August Olofsson6 ()

Karin Essing3 () & 2nd husband Olof Salomonsson3 () 

Agnes Essing3 () & Olof Grönlund3 () 

Ingeborg Grönlund4 () 

Erik Grönlund4 () & Elisabet Jonsdotter4 () 

Olof Grönlund5 () & Katarina Karlsdotter5 () 

Erik Gustaf Grönlund6 ()

Anna Grönlund6 ()

Carl Grönlund6 ()

Carl Grönlund6 ()

Jonas Grönlund6 ()

Elisabeth Grönlund6 ()

Katarina Grönlund6 ()

Olof Grönlund6 ()

Christina Grönlund6 ()

Anders Grönlund6 ()

Jonas Grönlund5 () & Elisabeth Hållstedt5 () 

Lisbeth Grönlund6 ()

Jonas Grönlund6 ()

Erik Grönlund6 ()

Anders Johan Grönlund6 ()

Agnes Grönlund5 () & Per Göransson Lind5 () 

Göran Lind6 ()

Erik Lind6 ()

Per Jonas Lind6 ()

Kerstin Grönlund5 () & Anders Sellstedt5 () 

Olof Sellstedt6 ()

Erik Sellstedt6 ()

Anna Märta Sellstedt6 ()

Erik Grönlund5 () & Ingeborg Löding5 () 

Lars Erik Grönlund6 ()

Olof Grönlund6 ()

Lisbet Grönlund5 () & Jonas Moverare5 () 

Anna Helena Moverare6 ()

Erik Moverare6 ()

Nils Moverare6 ()

Nils Moverare6 ()

Kristina Moverare6 ()

John Edward Moverare6 ()

Caroline Moverare6 ()

Anders Grönlund5 () & Brita Rödin5 () 

Anna Lena Grönlund6 ()

Elisabeth Grönlund6 ()

Johan Edvard Grönlund6 ()

Brita Grönlund4 () & 1st husband Erik Hyttsten4 () 

Erik Johan Hyttsten5 () 

Olof Teodor Hyttsten5 () 

Olof Teodor Hyttsten5 () & 1st wife Eva Olofsdotter5 () 

Johan Olof Hyttsten6 ()

Olof Teodor Hyttsten5 () & 2nd wife Märta Mårtensdotter5 () 

Brita Hyttsten6 ()

Magdalena Hyttsten6 ()

Erik Johan Hyttsten6 ()

Anna Christina Hyttsten5 () & Anders P. Bergström5 () 

Anna Brita Bergström6 ()

Annica Bergström6 ()

Brita Grönlund4 () & 2nd husband Jonas Nilsson Flink4 () 

Nils Magnus Nilsson5 () 

Brita Christina Nilsdotter5 () & Jonas A. Lalander5 () 

Anders Jonasson6 ()

Brita Lena Jonasdotter6 ()

Jonas Jonasson6 ()

Jacob Jonasson6 ()

Nils Magnus Jonasson6 ()

Per Jonas Jonasson6 ()

Anna Märta Jonasdotter6 ()

Jonas Jonasson6 ()

Per Jonas Nilsson5 () 

Gustaf Nilsson5 () & Catarina Rödin5 () 

Eva Kristina Nilsson6 ()

Brita Carolina Nilsson6 ()

Gustava Katrina Nilsson6 ()

Anna Lovisa Nilsson6 ()

Anna Grönlund4 () & Elias Grufberg4 () 

Brita Grufberg5 () & Grels Nilsson5 () 

Nils Grelsson6 ()

Anna Stina Grelsdotter6 ()

Elias Grelsson6 ()

Elias Grelsson6 ()

Agnes Grufberg5 () & Lars Sellstedt5 () 

Anna Märta Sellstedt6 ()

Elias Sellstedt6 ()

Olof Sellstedt6 ()

Kerstin Grufberg5 () & 1st husband Per Mattsson5 () 

Anna Brita Persdotter6 ()

Anna Persdotter6 ()

Kerstin Grufberg5 () & 2nd husband Göran Jönsson5 () 

Jöns Göransson6 ()

Anders Grönlund4 () & Agnes Andersdotter4 () 

Agnes Grönlund5 () & Olof Hyttsten5 () 

Anders Hyttsten6 ()

Stillborn gossebarn6 ()

Olof Hyttsten6 ()

Märta Helena Hyttsten6 ()

Anders Grönlund5 () & Anna Märta Johansdotter5 () 

Per Olof Grönlund6 ()

Jöns Grönlund6 ()

Anna Lena Grönlund6 ()

Agnes Grönlund6 ()

Johan Olof Grönlund6 ()

Maria Grönlund6 ()

Lisbet Grönlund5 () & Erik Lalander5 () 

Johan Olof Lalander6 ()

Anders Lalander6 ()

Jakob Lalander6 ()

Anders Gustaf Lalander6 ()

Anna Kristina Lalander6 ()

Anna Brita Grönlund5 () & Tysk Daniel Ersson5 () 

Anna Danielsson6 ()

Agnes Danielsson6 ()

Anders Edvard Danielsson6 ()

Matilda Karolina Danielsson6 ()

Gustaf Danielsson6 ()

Agnes Grönlund4 () & Bengt Sjöberg4 () 

Anna Brita Sjöberg5 () & Lars Ersson Hellberg5 () 

Kristina Hellberg6 ()

Bengt Hellberg6 ()

Eric Hellberg6 ()

Olof Hellberg6 ()

Brita Héllberg6 ()

Lars Hellberg6 ()

Märta Sjöberg5 () & Erik Nilsson Lilja5 () 

Nils Lilja6 ()

Bengt Lilja6 ()

Nils Magnus Lilja6 ()

Anna Brita Lilja6 ()

Anna Märta Lilja6 ()

Agnes Lilja6 ()

Emma Carolina Lilja6 ()

Olof Sjöberg5 () & Ingeborg Jonsdotter5 () 

Bengt Sjöberg6 ()

Anna Margareta Sjöberg6 ()

Olof Sjöberg6 ()

Johan August Sjöberg6 ()

Nils Magnus Sjöberg6 ()

Ida Sjöberg6 ()

Agnes Sjöberg5 () & Olof Sellstedt5 () 

Anna Märta Sellstedt6 ()

Anna Christina Sellstedt6 ()

Agnes Sellstedt6 ()

Olof Sellstedt6 ()

Bengt Sellstedt6 ()

Anna Märta Sellstedt6 ()

Nils Sjöberg5 () & Kerstin North5 () 

Bengt Sjöberg6 ()

Anders Sjöberg6 ()

Nils Johan Sjöberg6 ()

Anders Sjöberg5 () & Helena Rödin5 () 

Bernhard Nikolaus Sjöberg6 ()

Anna Märta Sjöberg6 ()

Jonas Sjöberg6 ()

Agnes Sjöberg6 ()

Bengt Sjöberg6 ()

Johan Petter Sjöberg6 ()

Johan Gustaf Sjöberg6 ()

Anders Gustaf Sjöberg6 ()

Helena Sjöberg5 () 

Helena Sjöberg5 () & Nils Lindström5 () 

Anna Brita Lindström6 ()

Magnus Gustaf Lindström6 ()

Emma Carolina Lindström6 ()

Bengt Olof Lindström6 ()

Amanda Lindström6 ()

Vilhelmina Anna Kristina Lindström6 ()

Erik Sjöberg5 () & Marie Matilda Sellström5 () 

Augusta Johanna Bertina Sjöberg6 ()

Anna Erika Sjöberg6 ()

Lisbet Sjöberg6 ()

Mathilda Sjöberg6 ()

Emma Kristina Sjöberg6 ()

Ulrika Margareta Sjöberg6 ()

Bengt Otto August Sjöberg6 ()

Hilma Elvira Sjöberg6 ()

Emfrid Grönlund4 () 

Olof Essing3 () 

Märeta Essing3 () & Jonas Henriksson () 

Lisa Jonsdotter4 () & Lars Abraham Noraeus4 () 

Anna Märta Noraeus5 () 

Brita Lena Noraeus5 () & Anders Svensson5 () 

Lars Abraham Andersson ()

Anders Jonsson4 () 

Jonas Jonasson4 () 

Anders Jonasson4 () 

Brita Essing3 () 

Nils Essing2 () & Brita Andersdotter () 

Agnes Essing3 () & Nils Sivertsen Storvukuvald3 () 

Ragnhild Nilsdotter4 () 

Nils Nilsen4 () & Ingeborg Larsdotter Roberg "Skrove"4 () 

Lars Nilsen5 () 

Anne Nilsdotter5 () & Ole Nilsen Eklo5 () 

Martinus Olsen Lyng/Prestmo ()

Jacob Nilsen/Grunden4 () & Ingeborg Olsdotter Grunnan4 () 

Sigrid Jacobsdotter5 () 

Nils Jacobsen5 () 

Berit Nilsdotter4 ()  & 1st husband Ole Eriksen Storvuku4 () 

Agnes Olsdotter5 () & Anders Mikkelsen Ekren5 () 

Marta Dillenget6 ()

Beret Dillenget6 ()

Olaus Dillenget6 ()

Mikal Dillenget6 ()

Olaus Dillenget6 ()

Hanna Birgitte Dillenget6 ()

Anneus Dillenget6 ()

Berit Nilsdotter4 () & 2nd husband Lars Pedersen Storvuku4 () 

Ola Larsen5 () & 1st wife Marta Pedersdotter Ulvild5 () 

Ole Marius Olsen6 ()

Ola Larsen5 () & 2nd wife Kjersti Rasmusdotter Breding5 () 

Marta Olsdotter6 ()

Lars Olsen6 ()

Lars Olsen6 ()

Bergitte Olsdotter6 ()

Johan Olsen6 ()

Anders Essing3 () 

Magnus Essing3 () 

Brita Essing2 () & Samuel Ridderberg2 () 

Brita Ridderberg3 () & Mikel Eriksen3 () 

Erik Mikelsen4 () 

Samuel Mikelsen4 () & Ellen Jensdotter4 () 

Beret Samuelsdotter5 () & Nils Rasmussen Brändmo5 () 

Elen Rebekka Sandness6 ()

Martinus Nilsen6 ()

Zephanias Nilsen6 ()

Karen Sandness6 ()

Martha Sandness6 ()

Nils Martin Sandness6 ()

Bernt Anton Sandness6 ()

Maria Cecilie Sandness6 ()

Sara Mikelsdotter4 () 

Magnus Ridderberg3 () 

Johan Ridderberg3 () & Kirsti Bastiansdotter3 () 

Hans Johansen Ridderberg4 ()  & Berit Hansdotter4 () 

Beret Johansdotter Ridderberg4 () & Ole Eriksen Storvuku4 () 

Ellev Olsen5 () 

Per Ridderberg3 () & 1st wife Guru Simonsdotter3 () 

Samuel P. Ridderberg4 () 

Marit P. Ridderberg4 () 

Dorte P. Ridderberg4 () 

Per Ridderberg3 () & 2nd wife Marit Jörgensdotter3 () 

Ole P. Ridderberg4 () 

Beret P. Ridderberg4 () 

Agnes Ridderberg3 () & Peder Pedersen Karmhus/Östnes3 () 

Martha Pedersdotter4 () & Rasmus Tomassen4 () 

Tomas Rasmussen5 () 

Beret Pedersdotter4 () & 1st husband Malene Olsdotter Bredingsvald4 () 

Beret Pedersdotter4 () & 2nd husband Amund Sivertsen Grunnan4 () 

Ole Amundsen5 () 

Anne Amundsdotter5 () & Olaus Larsen Bjartnesvald5 () 

Lars Stiklestad6 ()

Anneus Olaussen6 ()

Elling Olaussen6 ()

Bernt Olaussen6 ()

Anneus Olaussen6 ()

Anton Olaussen6 ()

Bernt Olaussen6 ()

Ole Olaussen6 ()

Peder Amundsen5 () & Berit Olsdotter5 () 

Kristina Pedersdotter6 ()

Anne Pedersdotter6 ()

Anna Oline Pedersdotter6 ()

Sivert Amundsen5 () & Berit Sivertsdotter5 () 

Live Severine Sivertsdotter6 ()

Jonetta Amundsdotter5 () & Johannes Johannessen Gravås/Ris5 () 

Elen Birgitta Johannesdotter6 ()

Jon Aurelius Johannessen6 ()

Julianne Johannesdotter6 ()

Anneus Johannessen6 ()

Ingeborg Oline Johannesdotter6 ()

Johanna Johannesdotter6 ()

Peter Anton Johannessen6 ()

Johannes Amundsen5 () & Bane Jokumine Rasmusdotter5 () 

Martha Amundsdotter5 () & Olaus Peder Jermstad5 () 

Petter Jermstad6 ()

Anna Jermstad6 ()

Marie Othelie Jermstad6 ()

Anton Jermstad6 ()

Olaus Amundsen5 () 

Samuel Ridderberg3 () & Ingeborg Halfvorsdotter3 () 

Beret S. Ridderberg4 () & Ole Pedersen Öra/Bergsvald4 () 

Karen Olsdotter5 () 

Petter Olsen5 () 

Malena4 S. Ridderberg () 

Randi S. Ridderberg4 () & Bardo Nilsen Björken4 () 

Nikolai Bardosen5 () 

Inger Maria Bardosdotter5 () 

Zephanias Bardosen5 () & 1st wife Marie Kristine Jakobsdotter5 () 

Amalie Olianne Sefaniassen6 ()

Ragnhilde Bardoline Sefaniassen6 ()

Johan Edvard Martin Lanesskog6 ()

Leonarda Josefine Sefaniassen6 ()

Simon Martin Lanesskog6 ()

Wilhelm Teodor Lanesskog6 ()

Regnor Karl Edvin Lanesskog6 ()

Zephanias Bardosen5 () & 2nd wife Marit Pedersdotter Kvelstad5 () 

Mette Pauline Zephaniasdotter Kvelstad6 ()

Martinus Bardosen5 () & Beret Martha Halstensdotter5 () 

Bernt Martin Stene/Balgård6 ()

Hans Severin Balgård6 ()

Ragnhild Birgitta Balgård6 ()

Marius Balgärd6 ()

Beret Marta Balgård6 ()

John Christoffer Balgård6 ()

Anne Marta Balgård6 ()

Eliseus Bardosen5 () & Kaja Forsnes? 5 () 

Simon Forsnes? ()

Ragnhild Birgitta Bardosotter5 () & Andersson? 5 () 

Ole S. Ridderberg4 () & Karen Olsdotter Ören4 () 

Oluf Olsen5 () 

Julianna Maria Olsdotter5 () 

Julianna Maria Olsdotter5 () 

Kerstin Ridderberg3 () & Ole Nilsen Volden3 () 

Nils Olsen4 () & 1st wife Anne Larsdotter Salbergvald/Nordbergvald4 () 

Nils Olsen4 () & 2nd wife Ingeborg Ingebrigtsdotter Indal4 () 

Beret Maria Nilsdotter5 () 

Kjerstin Nilsdotter5 () 

Sigrid Olsdotter4 () 

Ole Olsen4 () 

Magnus Ridderberg3 () 

Ole Ridderberg3 () & Guru Simonsdotter3 () 

Simon Olsen4 () 

Måns & Agnis

Måns Essing

A Hantlangare
 in the time of the Karoliners

A Personal History of our Forefather

The earliest found reference to a man from Västergötland by the name of Måns Essing is on September 1, 1710 in the rosters of the artillery personnel for Bohus Fortress.  He had a position as Assistant of reinforcement personnel with the name Måns Esunga, Wästgötlander, born in 1680, unmarried, and literate1.  By then, he had already undergone his first real military experience under the leadership of Magnus Stenbock in the attack against the Danish invasion army outside Helsingborg.  On February 28, he was wounded there 2.

On September 10, 1713, he is listed on the master roster, and his name is written as Måns Essunge3.  It is not known where he is the following year, but in the fall he is no longer listed (December 10, 1716) on the rosters for the Artillery Establishment at Bohus 4.

The next time he is mentioned is on the master roster of January 24, 1717.  At that time, he had been transferred to the artillery field regiment commanded by Carlshamns Castell.  His name is written incorrectly as Matz Essing.  This also tells us that in 1708 he took the position of Assistant, in 1715 he had been in the Battle of Stralsund, and that he was transferred to the Skånska Fäldtstaten {Field Establishment} in 1716.  His age is listed as 33 years, and so he had to be born in about 1684.  He had served seven and ¾ years, was born in Wästergötland, and is married5.  He was "badly wounded in battle encounters, and because of that, severely paralyzed in the right hand and arm6”.  Måns Essing was with the Swedish Army when they attacked Norway in 1718.  This is clear from the records 7.  
He had married Catharina Reddes.  She died on February 27, 1719 and was buried in the cemetery at Bohus Castle 8.

Assistant No. 71, Måns Essing, is reported to be 37½ years old, to have 12½ years of military service, to have come from Wästergötland, and to be married9 in the 1722 roster for the Artillery Regiment Fourth Company and the Fifth Corporal Unit.  He was10 transferred as Assistant 63 and his name was erroneously listed as Måns Hessing 11.

On June 7, 1722, he was at Waxholm Fort and is still recorded as being paralyzed in his right arm 12.

After the death of King Karl XII in Fredrikshald on November 30, 1718, there were great changes within artillery organizations.  The location of the forts in Jämtland are listed in the general roster of February 1, 1722 for the Fourth Company and other parts of the artillery regiments that are prepared to go into the field.

It states that two junior officers and six Assistants were stationed at each fort (Duved, Järpen, Frösön and Långå 13.)
Måns Essing was among those who were ordered to Duved on July 31, 1722 .  This is recorded on the master roster of April 10, 1724, where it is noted that he is 36 ¾ years old and has been in His Majesty’s service for 19 ¾ years 14.

He becomes acquainted with Agnis Nilsdotter after he arrives in Duved.  She was born on February 23, 1690 in Hambre in Åre.  She was unmarried and had two children (Kierstin born on August 25, 1711 and Olof born on March 2, 1718) who were 11 and 4 years old.  He had a child with her, their son Anders, who was born on February 14, 1724 out of wedlock.  This immediately caused a negative reaction and the matter was taken up in the Courts.  A proper marriage had been ignored and the authorities would rapidly intervene within a few months.

From the records of Undersåker District Court for March 26, 1724: 

The Assistant of Jemtlands Artillery Establishment at Dufve, Måns Essing, was denounced by a local County Citizen for this debauchment of the woman (Agnis Nillsdåtter from Dufve).  After being given the right to stand, she was found to have committed fornication of which a child was evidence.

Måns Essing confessed that he had slept with Agnis Nillsdåtter and had disgraced her with the child whom she gave birth to on March 1724, but he informs them that he had promised to marry her and now he wants to take her to be his wife.

Agnis Nillsdåtter is brought and they both approached each other, although Agnis, for the second time, has committed fornication outside of marriage.  Essing stated that he had been married before when he went to Nårje in 1718, but that his wife had died in Wästergötland or Bohuslän.

Judgment

If there is any reason that should interfere with the intention of these two to marry each other, they must notify the Hernösand District Court and await the Judgment 15.

The church does not permit the marriage.  The status of Måns's earlier marriage must first be explained.  The complete clarification happens a year later as shown from the records of Hernösand District Court Records on February 17, 1725.

A letter is received by the Pastor at Kongelf (Mr. Anders Franchelius) requesting information from the Consistory on certain matters concerning the wife {Catharina Reddes} of Assistant Måns Esingz and their marriage in 1718.  The letter asked if she is dead and buried, because he is now in Jemteland and wants to enter into another marriage.

This confirmation is found in the Härnösand District Court Record Book of March 26, 1725:

"To Pastor Nils Åhman.

By the accompanying copy of the letter from Pastor Anders Franchelii from the 10th of this month, together with the Certificate from Pastor Tolle Tollsonii from the 9th of this month, your Honorable Worthiness will find that the wife {Karin Reddes} of Assistant Måns Esing died in Herranom in 1719 and in February 27th of that year she was buried in Bohus Castle cemetery.  This information was requested from affected people in the Provinces
.  

Förb: r Ep.N.N.I.G.D.B.I.E.I.R."

After this confirmation was received, a wedding can take place on March 20, 1728.

The two children that Agnis Nilsdotter had before her marriage have left the following trails in Church and Court Records:

Åre Parish Birth Book:

On August 25, 1711, Kierstin was baptized.  She was born out of wedlock.  The father was County Citizen Måns Randklef.  The mother was Agnis Nilsdotter from Ingland, born on the 23rd of the same month.

The records from Undersåker District Court on June 6 (Case No. 32, Page No. 260) stated that the woman, Agnis Nilsdotter from England
, was requested to state the identity of the father of the illegitimate girl who was born on August 23 that year.  She admitted to the Vicar that County Citizen Måns Rankläf, who was present in this District Court, was the father.  When she was asked again, she stated that she had no other man to suspect as the father of the child other than County Citizen Ranklöf.  She said that she had committed adultery with him at the Ryland Farm.  She stated that she had done this one evening three weeks before Christmas in the master’s guestroom, opposite of the living room.  However, he absolutely denies being the father of her child.  He argues that she might have been with some other men that she does not want to name.  Agnis is again requested to admit the truth later in the proceedings, and she stated that she had nothing to do with anyone else but the County Citizen alone {Måns Randklef} and that he is definitely the father. 

The records from Undersåker District Court on February 22/27, 1718 Case No. I 39 Page No. 71:

County Citizen Måns Randklef cannot prove to have paid any more than 4 dollars (consisting of a cow) for the support of the child of the woman named Agnis Nillsdotter from Möhrviken
.  She being the one he slept with and prevailed upon with a child, the very child who is now 7 years old.  Because of this, the County Citizen is required to willingly pay the mother {Agnis} the remaining amount for these last 6 years, which legally cannot be reduced to less than 12 dollars.  In the coming years, until their child can provide for herself, he must pay 3 dollars annually.

The following is found in the Birth Record Book of Åre Parish on February 2, 1718 (Page No. 353) concerning the inheritance rights from the evidently legitimate father of the child {Olof Bängtsson}:

By the Power of the Court under a Judgment dated October 15, 1728, it was demanded that Agnis Nilsdotter of Dufve, former wife of Olof Bängtsson of Äggen, go to their house, rearrange, and properly prepare the property left by the deceased corporal from Hålländers and his mother
.  As the mother of his child, she is to take anything that she needs for the support of the child of Olof Bängtsson.  As the most recent wife of Corporal Mörling, she may examine and take possession of the following Tax Registered items:

· A plain box

· A pair of men’s leather trousers

· An old animal skin rug

· An old hatchet

· A pair of scissors

· Three (3) buckets that are worn out and not of much use

As an additional charge, the estate of Olof Bängtsson of Äggen was ordered to immediately pay Agnis Nilsdotter from Dufve the same as with Halländarens and the mother’s and not be bound to pay the 8D1 silver currency to take care of the legal expense created, 8D1 copper currency
.

The last time Måns Essing is found, is again in our Royal Army in the GMR (General Muster Rolls) at Dufve Fort 16 dated April 10, 1724.  He was then listed as 36 ¾ years old, and as having been in the military service for 19 ¾ years.  The garrison at the fort consisted of a Captain, a Warrant Officer, a Constable, and three Assistants.  The Major General of the Jämtland Regiment (Reinhold Henrik Horn) made the roster report.  He wrote a special message to the war office about the conditions at Jämtländ Fort.  All the 18 members of the fort
, except one, had been ordered there in 1722 from other parts of Sweden.  Their equipment was in short measure and their ammunition and rifles were in short supply or gone.  The food, clothing, and firewood at the Swedish fort were in extremely miserable condition.  The colonel asked for assistance in his request for action.

The years go by, and on June 14, 1733 Måns Essing received his military discharge.  Since he was in the military when he was wounded, he had the right to a pension.  When he applied for his pension a few years later from the War Office, he gave the following reasons:

He had been in the Artillery for 28 years and had participated in the military defeat at Helsingborg and the battle of Stralsund.  He had been wounded and was paralyzed in the right arm.  Now he was old and penniless 17.

The living conditions in this period are very difficult.  The married couple {Måns and Agnis} are both in their 50's and now they have to find the best manner to support their family consisting of three underage children that they had jointly and Agnis’s 15 year old son Olof.  Where they continued to live cannot be determined, since Åre Parish Housing Records were first started in 1765.  

In 1738, he was notified that he had received his pension 18.

As a pensioner, he was able to receive his payment in cash 19.

He is among the applicants on the list of those who are the most deserving 20.

As such he was placed on the list of names for Jämtland Dragoon
 Regiment for eligibility to receive a pension and "… with certificates showing him to still be due 6.24 silver currency on December 10 1765”.  21  

Måns and Agnis are living in Sölvsved, Kall Parish, in 1755 according to housing records.  The 75-year-old couple lived with their son-in-law {Samuel Ridderberg in Semlan, Mörsil Parish} in 1760 according to housing records.

May 3, 1767: "The elderly Agnis Nilsdotter from Huså died in Kall.  Death was from natural causes related to old age.  She had lived for 80½ years."

March 19, 1772: "The elderly discharged soldier Måns Essing dies in Kall on March 19 from natural causes related to old age.  He had lived quietly and in great poverty for 97½ years."  Note that the correct age according to the military records was 87 years.

The last military notation of the pensioner {Måns Essing of Jämtland Regiment and Cavalry Company) is the death notice in 1771.

The man from Västergötland who was called Måns Essing and who lived in Jämtland for fifty years had many descendants after him.  However, where in Västergötland did he come from?  Apparently he came from Essunga Parish in the southwest part of the County.  There is clear evidence of this from the early military rosters.  Can we trace some of his ancestors back to the 1600 to 1700 time period?  Not with certainty.  The name Essing was clearly a soldier name that was carried by many people in Essunga and the adjacent periods during shorter or longer periods
.  The relationship between them cannot be traced.  The following names occur in estate inventories, Parish Records (C or F), and military rosters.

Soldier Anders Essing (1707-1783).  Essunga Village Essunga Parish.  Death Records Lekåsa C: 3.  Estate Inventory Barne Häradsrätt 1783:983

Jon Andersson Essing.  Married in Essunga Church on January 4, 1730.  Lekäsa Parish.  C:3.  Died July 24, 1730?

Recruit at Skåning’s Company Anders Andersson Essing, Essunga.  Married on June 29, 1741.  Lekåsa Parish.  C:3

Soldier Hans Essing, Essunga, married on October 4, 1722.  Lekåsa Parish.  C:2

Soldier Magnus Hansson Ässing born in 1673 in Skeplanda Parish.  Married on November 8, 1721.  Died on December 26, 1734.  Ryda Parish.  F:2.

Cavalryman Anders Nilsson Essing Hofmans farm, Naum, Soldier No. 86 with Västgöta Regiment Barne Company (November 21, 1717 in Ryda Parish-1774.  Barne district Estate Inventory 1774:675.

Anders Essing, Hofmansgården, (1716-1783) died on May ?, 1783.  Ryda Parish.  F:2.

Soldier Anders Essing, Luttorp, Eggevena (1697-).  Soldier No. 15 with Västgöta Regiment Barne Company.

Soldier Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Ässing (1655-1697).  Lekäsa Parish death records C:1.  The recorded notation for the year 1697 is of particular interest, "Soldier Anders Olofsson Ässing died early in the morning, after having lived for 42 years, leaving 5 small children.  He was a soldier for 24 years and he was buried in Ässunga on May 5."

In the 1688 records he is found working in Lassagården.  The names of the wife and children are not known.  He had another child, Elin, born on October 25, 1689, but she died on February 15, 1692.

Mäns Essing was probably born about 1684.  Could he possibly, as a 15 year old, been one of the children of soldier Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Ässing.  The name Anders was, it is true, an ordinary name in Essunga, but the name also occurred in the children of Måns and in subsequent generations after them.

I have gotten this history from Tryggve Ridderberg of Borrby in Skåne.  He has done a lot of research on Måns Essing and he has done an excellent job.  Tryggve is also a descendant of Måns.  His father also did a lot of research, and the preceding pages are the results.
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	Mar 2, 1718 
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	S3
	Måns Essing
	B
	1684
	Skaratrakten

	
	
	D
	About Mar 19, 1772
	Sölvsved, Kall
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	Anders Essing
	B
	Feb 14, 1724 
	Huså
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	Huså
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	Nils Essing
	B
	Feb 11, 1729 
	Duved
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	Nov 11, 1781 
	Kall

	A5
	Brita Essing
	B
	Jun 9, 1731 
	Duved Fort

	Table 4
	
	D
	Aug 19, 1753 
	Verdal, Norway


Inger’s note on Olof Bengtsson Mörling:  His burial date was April 24, 1728.

I {Inger Qvarnström} have not found much on Måns Essing, but I have found a summons issued by him as follows: 

The discharged Assistant, Måns Essing, filed a claim against Olof Hansson of Dufved.  It concerns a cow that wife {Agnis Nilsdotter}, had loaned out with her husband's permission and in his absence.

It claimed that in December of last year Olof Hansson and his wife received a three-year-old heifer calf for milking, which they could do after calving.  

Furthermore, because that same heifer does not now exist, the plaintiffs want to receive a similar animal in its place, which is a new heifer.  

Olof Hansson agrees that his wife had, in his absence but with his knowledge, made a contract with Essing’s wife concerning the referenced heifer.  They agreed upon this contract, but last June the heifer had gone into the river and drowned.  

Besides that, the heifer had an internal illness according to written testimony from witnesses on the ninth of the month.  

However, the defendant admits that his wife had received the heifer for the conditions stated above, and that he did not disapprove of her actions and he again agrees to replace the heifer.  

Now the arrangement for giving over the heifer was an agreement between the wives of Mårten Essing and Olof Hansson and it can’t be considered anything but a loan.  

According to Chapter 1 § in 11
, handwritten, this was not a mistake.  

Now there is very little that Olof Hansson can be blamed for, since he never, while the heifer lived, had reserved the right to be without responsibility for dangerous events and without this reserv XE "reserv" ation had to guard the cattle from damage and accidents.  

He also had not disclosed his knowledge of the heifer’s internal illness, according to his own witnesses.  

Therefore, the County Court found that to be fair, Olof Hansson and his wife should return a good animal, equal to what Måns Essing and his wife provided, and they also have to pay the summons cost and legal fees with one Riksdaler in silver currency.

Agnis was the oldest of the siblings.  She was born on February 6, and was baptized on February 23, 1690.  She was born in Hamre.  The godparents at her baptism were:

· Pehr Pehrsson of Wik, Pehr Jonsson of Dufve, wife Gertru Larsdotter of Hambre and wife Anna Pehrsdotter of Stadh
.  

Her sister Anna was born on January 27, and was baptized on February 19, 1693.  The godparents were:

· Henrik Pehrsson of Swedie

· Per Olsson of Dufve,

· H. Anna Nilsdotter of Björnäng and his wife {Lisbet Olsdotter of Loche}

The other sister Gertru was born on December 18, and was baptized on December 22, 1695.  The godparents were: 

· Olof Nilsson of Sunnet

· Olof Ersson of Ramberg and his wife {Ingri Pehrsdotter of Mörviken}
· Karin Jonsdotter of Tegom.

Agnis Nilsdotter’s daughter {Kerstin Randklef} was married on November 18, 1739 to Olof Persson Edberg who was born in 1711 and died in 1788.  They lived in Edsåsen, Undersåker, and had three children named Petrus, Agnis, and Esten.

Måns Randklef later married Göhlin Fastesdotter, and they had the following children: 

· Hans
 born on May 22, 1715

· Faste
 born on January 1, 1718

· Märta
 born on June 27, 1720

· Ingrid 
born on February 19, 1723

· Magdalena
 born on April 14, 1725

They were all born in Undersåker and lived in Mo.

After that, Måns {Randklef} married Ingrid Olofsdotter, who was then a widow.  The wedding took place on November 13, 1748.  

Their daughter {Märta} married a farmhand from Alsen {Jöns Christensson} on September 26, 1737.  

Their daughter {Magdalena} married a soldier {Jöns Hallberg} on November 16, 1746.  Magdalena died on February 20, 1809 in Fanbyn, Rödön at the age of 84 years.

When Måns Randklef died, he was called Magnus.  He died on October 27, 1749 in Mo, Undersåker.  Måns took over the homestead of his parents, as shown in the following records.

It was resolved to establish the legal Inheritance Distribution of 3¼ taxable acres on the homestead of the parents of County Citizen Måns Hansson Randklef.  The Court Sessions were held in Undersåker Parish where he lived after his father’s death, but is it going to be worthwhile?  

A brother and brother-in-law are shown to have already received a full settlement with a payment negotiated on the 29th of the month.  In it, they themselves acknowledge having sold their share of their father’s homestead to Måns Randklef for an assessed value of 98 Riksdaler 4 Specie.  They had collected their share afterwards and had been given a receipt.  

Duved Fort

Photograph (9)

Duved Fort stood on the point that can be seen approximately in the middle of photograph.

Photograph (10)

This sign was placed at the Karoliner-Monument in Duved.  

In 1658, the oldest fort was built in Duved.

Military Archives

Photograph (11)

Duved Fort was established as early as 1658 for protection of the existing passage over the Åre River and as an obstacle against those coming from the west over Skalstugan.  Even if an enemy came over the mountains at some point further south, they must come down the same road to avoid the difficult mountainous terrain on the side of the valley along the river.  

The Fort of Duved thus played an important role as a barrier for attacks against Jämtland.  

Stålhane remarked that it would now be difficult to establish the appearance and size of this fortification, which soon began to deteriorate.  However, at the same time he points out that genuine drawings have been found concerning the contents of the fort on the older site that was established between 1710-1713.  A close investigation reveals, however, that one of the drawings in the Military Archives shows the original construction from 1658.  It does not mention a date, but it appears to have been done at the end of the 1600's.

According to the records of the old fort that have survived to our time, it was located on the same site as the newer fort.  A comparison between the questioned Map and the drawings of the new fort also show an obvious correspondence to the configuration of the riverbank.  The building location is on a promontory, which guarantees the ability to have a water defense on three sides.  However, there are substantial deviations between the older Map and the new.  One may perhaps ask on first examination, if they are not the same design, although measurements in that one case have not been reliable and give a distorted picture of the fort plans.

However, the work itself may have had two entirely different designs.  The oldest was oriented with one corner against the promontory’s external side.  Its shape was very elongated and did not fill out the width of the promontory, but instead was shoved into the land north of the river.  If you scrutinize the details of the new fort in  "Brunnman Detail" of 1710, you will also find contours of the old construction marked within the new and you can clearly see the relationship between both designs in regards to the topography.  Only a good third (1/3) of the first fort in the north-south direction was located in the area of the newer, which had its main extension from the northwest to southeast and took in a claim of the whole river by projecting out from this promontory.

By the construction of the first fort, it appears to have been important to tie together the terrain from the promontory’s external point to the main road, which ran north of the river.  This forced an unusual elongated shape, which caused a rather irregular construction level.  The fort was built to concentrate the defense against the side of the main road and on the other side a suitable bank angle created the best possible opportunity to shell the terrain along the main road and the river.

Photograph (13)

Design of Dufve Fort, probably made by Gabriel Cronstedt.

Military Archives
Duved Fort
Fortification (1710)

The new fort in Duved, built soon after 1710.

Taken from "Forts in Jämtland and Härjedalen" by Bertil Berthelsson in Norrlands Defense Annuals published by The Society for Norrland Strong Defense in 1943.

When a field army was going to Norway, the largest artillery fort was at Duved Fort, which had four 8-pound cannons standing behind a stout parapet.  Further ahead, by a promontory in the river, was an infantry fort with their two supply houses.  Between these two forts, all the foot soldiers were living in tents.  Between the road and the river to the east of the fort stood the cavalry with their 1800 horses
.  The ropes
 were put along the roads.  

Skalstuve, a new artillery fort, was added.  It had been built by artillery carpenters from Dufve Fort and within the fortification was a gunpowder cellar and a palisade that was probably armed with 3 pound cannons from Dufve Fort.  Five artillery gunners commanded the fort.

Taken from "Leaf from Norrland Artillery History”, written by Jonas Hedberg, Captain Kristinehamn

The information starting below is from the book "A Chronicle in Word and Pictures" by Martin Waller.

Duved Fort

The first well-known plan for a strong defense structure in Duved can be traced to the reign of Erik XIV.  Oddly enough, the order to complete this project was entrusted to the earlier named Claude Collart, also called Claudius Gallas.  According to stories, he was the shortest of all the high Swedish military officers.  This wizard succeeded in talking with King Erik because he had first served in the Royal Court as a Chamber Officer.  The results were not much to be proud of.  The fortification was built directly on the riverbank and decayed very soon.  The later information is very vague, and the oldest defense structure appears to have been moved a little higher up the riverbank.  

Despite the peace made in Brömsebro in 1645 and later the peace made in Westfalen in 1648, King Charles X Gustaf commissioned the former county governor and Major General, Claes Stjernskjöld, in 1658-1659 to go ahead and acquire a good fort builder – and it turned out to be Stjernskjöld himself.  A portion of the extension along the riverbank was reinforced, while that same year the main portion of the fort was moved up on the higher land or hill, the crest of which today contains the memorial called Duved Monument, erected in 1892.  

This Karoliner Monument was set up to commemorate the Karoliner death march.

Photograph (15)

The defense structure was a difficult design, which still today gives us a clear picture of how it looked supplied here by a sketch of the plan where one is found those star-shaped extensions in front of where a deep moat was dug.

Within the bastion were two troop barracks and an additional timber building, which is mentioned in the records as a "Sentry Cabin”, but which probably served as a command house as well.  This improved fort structure did become partly decayed later but not in such bad condition that even in 1675 it was regarded as relatively good enough in case the Norwegians were to become interested.  The fort was involved in August of 1677 in the attack by the Norwegian-Danish army troops under the command of General Von Hofvens, by which time the Swedish garrison on the fort was said to have been minimal.  A majority of the fort structure was destroyed and demolished by the Norwegian and Danish troops before they departed.

In the years 1710-1713 the fort was reinforced under the command of Major G. W. von Wolffen, who writes that the work was accomplished under difficult conditions?  He also states that the local people "could not be trusted”.  Soldiers were frequently lodged on the local farms.

In the years 1717-1718 Duved Fort stood in its full splendor.  The reinforced fort was the assembly point for the popular but unsuccessful attack against Norway, which left from Duved on August 5, 1718.  The purpose was to capture Trondheim.  After a siege of a month and a half the Swedish forces had to retreat back to the border by two different roads.  This show of force came to be one of the Swedish Army’s most pitiful events of the war.

After the peace negotiations in 1719, Duved Fort again began to deteriorate.  The national officials decided in 1734 that the fort should be torn down.  This fort had been one of Sweden’s finest for a period of a century, but no one dared to contradict this decision.  The official’s decision meant that the garrison, with the exception of a small guard detachment, was to be transferred to Frösö Fort, or as it was officially called at the time, Frösöholm Fort.  A writer at the time maintained that all of the Duved Fort buildings were in relatively good condition as late as the turn of the century (1800).  One of the oldest fort buildings was still there as late as 1791 although by then it was in poor condition.  The Fort’s termination as a defensive installation did not keep the Norwegians from being interested in our border defenses.  

A certain lieutenant, Aga Lyng, who was on commission from his superior, Norwegian General Krogh in Trondheim, was captured for his actions and later it was written that a Swedish “betrayer” surrounded him.  The captured Lieutenant Lyng was summarily convicted and given a sentence as well.  However, this shows that the Norwegians scarcely needed to use military spies because the predominant portion of the population in the border area considered themselves Norwegian as much as Swedish.

The fort was the object of a last visit - a farewell visit it was hoped.  At that time, the Swedish guard detail consisted of only 30 men.  It was concerning our first Bernadotte King, Charles XIV Johan, and it was a pitiful show of power against Norway.  The matter was resolved by diplomacy.  

To commemorate those Karoliners killed in the mountains, and those who succeeded to get out of that hell hole and back to the homeland with a heroic effort, an impressive monument was erected at Duved Fort in 1892, as earlier noted.  It is visible from a long distance and the inscription is: 

"1719 Karoliners of the Native Land!”

Duved Monument shown here is not the only one, it can also be found in the Villages of Handöl and Björnänge.  There is a large stone boulder with a date on it by the riverbank and below the present fort.  It marks the location of the earlier fort.

Note:  I {Inger Qvarnström} got the maps for Duved Fort from Ove Madsén in Duved, who himself has done little research on this.

The Children

Kerstin Randklef

Table 1 (17)

Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	A1
	Kerstin Randklef 
	B
	Aug 23, 1711
	
	Kerstin lived in 

	
	
	D
	Oct 22, 1749
	
	Edsåsen, Undersåker.

	
	
	D
	Nov 18, 1739
	
	

	S
	Olof Persson Edberg
	B
	1711
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jun 10, 1788
	
	

	B1
	Petrus "Per" Edberg

	B
	1744
	
	

	Table 5
	
	D
	May 6, 1810 
	Hålland
	

	B2
	Agnis Edberg
	B
	Jun 5, 1747 
	
	

	Table 6
	
	D
	Jul 24, 1820 
	Djupsjön, Kall
	

	B3
	Esten Edberg
	B
	Jun 5, 1747 
	
	

	Table 7
	
	D
	May 31, 1791 
	Edsäsen
	


I {Inger Qvarnström} actually thought I would begin the genealogical tables with Måns Essing, but since Agnis had two earlier children, I will take them in order of age.  See page .
Kerstin’s husband {Olof Persson Edberg} was about 74 years old when he retired with the following Reserved Rights
 contract:

October 25

I {Olof Persson Edberg} because of my old age and infirmity and because I am a widower am concerned about needing nursing care to live, which in old age can be required.  

Because I have confidence in my son, Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, and his wife, I feel compelled to make the following request, namely:

If my son and his wife undertake this request then for as long as God is pleased to grant me life, they are to provide me with all of the services I need.  They are also to provide me with care and food as necessary until the day of my death and to provide a decent burial after my death.  

Consequently, I assure my son that he shall receive all of my few belongings that are left after my death without protest from my other children.  

But in case God would rather not let me suffer and ta XE "ta" kes me after a short time then Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson with the trust in which I have appointed him should leave a little to my other children to the extent that he thinks best.

Thus being of free will and of sound mind, it is hereby agreed, arranged, and acknowledged in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Undersåker on October 21, 1785


Witness:
Elof Bewin



Olof Persson Edberg



Henrik Nilsson of Swensta

Both witnesses affirmed this as correct.

Judgment

Within six months after the death of Olof Pehrsson, the testimony on these Recorded Minutes shall again be brought before the Court and then a final decree will be made.

Photograph (18)

This photograph of the smelting-house was taken around 1870.  The view is towards the west.  The smoke is from the smelting-house chimneys.  The old smelting-house is in the middle.  The machine house is to the lower left and the large coalhouse is to the right.  The toaster-house is between the smelting-house and the coalhouse.  The dressing plant and the long ore channel are in the background.

Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Mörling

Olof Olofson Mörling2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

I {Inger Qvarnström} have not found any information on Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Mörling, the son of Agnis Nilsdotter, who was born on March 2, 1718.  Jens Brönstad has not found anything either, despite making many diligent efforts.  

Jens has thought that he may have migrated to Verdalstrakten, Norway but we have found nothing there either.  

Olof’s father {Olof Bengtsson} was buried on April 24, 1728.  He was 56 years old at his death, so he must have been born in about 1672.  He was buried in Mörsil.

Anders Essing

Table 2 (19}

Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	A3
	Anders Essing 
	B
	Feb 14, 1724
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jun 24, 1748
	

	S1
	Karin Jonsdotter
	B
	Oct 10, 1716
	Gråsjön, Kall

	
	
	D
	Nov 20, 1750
	Died of child birth complications from Jonas {B2} birth.

	B1
	Magnus Essing
	B
	Oct 1, 1749
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 6, 1749
	

	B2
	Jonas Essing
	B
	Nov 11, 1750
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 3, 1771
	Mörsil

	
	
	M
	
	

	S2
	Brita Gunnarsdotter
	B
	1723
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 16, 1798
	Huså

	B3
	Magnus Essing
	B
	Feb 27, 1752
	

	
	
	D
	1772
	

	B4
	Gunnar Essing
	B
	Feb 17, 1754 
	Cargo boat
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	D
	Nov 11, 1803
	

	B5
	Nils Essing
	B
	Oct 23, 1756
	

	Table 9
	
	D
	Apr 18, 1822 
	Sunne

	B6
	Anders Essing
	B
	Dec 25, 1758
	

	Table 10
	
	D
	Jul 18, 1802 
	Mörsil

	B7
	Karin Essing
	B
	Mar 25, 1761
	

	Table 11
	
	D
	Mar 3, 1848 
	Åre

	B8
	Agnes Essing
	B
	Mar 12, 1764
	

	Table 12
	
	D
	Jun 3, 1852 
	Kall

	B9
	Olof Essing
	B
	Feb 10, 1767
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 1, 1770
	

	B10
	Märeta Essing
	B
	Nov 16, 1769
	

	Table 13
	
	D
	Jan 25, 1838 
	Åre

	B11
	Brita Essing
	B
	Apr 17, 1773
	

	
	
	D
	May 23, 1773
	


Inger’s note for B1 Magnus Essing born on October 1, 1749 and died 35 days later on November 6, 1749:  He was accidentally suffocated by his mother during the night.

Inger’s note for S2 Brita Gunnarsdotter born in 1723:  She was the daughter of Gunnar Jonsson and Märeta Olsdotter of Konäs.  She died on March 16, 1798 in Huså.

Inger’s note for B3 Magnus Essing born on February 27, 1752:  In Gudding, Verdal in the Norwegian Death Records for Verdal it states that, "Swedish bachelor by the name of Magnus died in Gudding in 1772, 30 years old”.  I {Inger Qvarnström} take that as likely that it was the same Magnus
.  They were not sure of his age.

Anders was a Smithy
 in Huså, and lived on Company Farm No. 182 for a time.

He built a house and lived in Semelä, Mörsil, near the Rikard Smith Works.  He also lived in Huså on Company Farm No. 19.  Perhaps it was then that he took the hand of his spirited father, Måns.

On September 18, 1768, an application for assistance was received from discharged Artilleryman Måns Essing, who in his youth had been a soldier at Fort Duved.  It stated that the assistance he has received up until now has been insufficient.

He received 12 Species in pledges from the local farmers and he received the right not to “have to wander from village to village, and from having to be lodged by Anders Essing of Huså, which Måns refuses to do”.  The six men on his list promised to collect this money twice a year.

The reason Anders built a house in Semelån was that it had a mine company with a copper refinery and a copper forge that was established there in 1752 in Semelån along the main road.  The copper from the Gustav and Carlberg Copper Mining Company was refined and forged there.  

The copper was transported on boats from smelting-houses over Lakes Kallen and Liten, and then over land to Semlan, a distance of 4 mils {24 American miles}.  From there it goes to Offne loading area in Mattmar, about 2 mils {12 American miles}, where it will be loaded on Company boats in 20 skeppspunds {3.76 tons} shipments.  Then it is freighted about 5 mils {30 American miles} over Storsjön {Stor Lake} to the Lund unloading area in Brunflo, and from there it goes on the main road to Sundsvall.

When Karin died, Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Så, Åre was appointed as the guardian of Jonas, but Anders had already left him with someone else.  Pehr Olofsson took Anders to Court as told in the following story.
Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Så came to the District Court and declared that he was appointed as the guardian for Jonas Andersson, the underage son of Company Worker Anders Essing, in the fall of 1754.  However, he states that he has not yet received the child’s possessions, because Anders Essing will not surrender the custody of the child.

Consequently, Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson asked that either he be released from his guardianship or that Essing has to legally separate the boy’s property from the property of his late wife, so that Pehr Olofsson will know what belongs to the boy (Jonas Andersson} and what he is responsible for as the boy’s guardian.

Release

The son cannot legally be released until Anders Essing is summoned and heard.  However, since he has already given up the custody of the child, this will have to happen at the next court session, according to the law.

Company Farm No. 26 D. 31 where Anders Essing lived.  It was recorded as follows
:

1. A cottage with an inner roof of boards, a fireplace with a baking oven, iron spikes to secure the logs, enclosed with walls and it has large chairs and new shelves.  It has one pair of windows on the long wall, 2 panes wide and the same in height as in width, one pair of windows on the eastern wall 4 panes high and 2 in width, all complete and without breakage.  It has a passageway, then a bed, and then the passageway
.  A small porch without an inner roof or windows and the roof on it is made of good sawed boards.

2. An old cottage covered
 the same as the newer, is beside the feeder house with a board roof.

3. A barn with a roof of common bark and birch bark and the one with ____ them, the roof is in poor condition but the walls are found to be acceptable, ____ is and including fertilizing ____

4. A barn with a board roof and ____ is leak-free but the eastern side has a small amount of rot.

5. A stall on the eastern side of the cottage house, with one horse in it with the walls in reasonable condition but the roof is in bad condition on the west side and should be repaired.

6. A log barn stands to the south in the garden without significance, roofed with birch bark, but the roof ridge is gone and so the roof should be repaired so that this building will last a few more years.  

This farm was found to have cropland of 3½ mälings.  In the hay field within the fence there are about five loads
 of hay and green fodder.

311 fathoms
 of hedge fence serve as the property line.  A small part of it is found in decent condition, but the biggest part is in poor condition.  

Both stake braced and wooden log fences, contained in the area between Malmsten and his 44 fathoms that is between Grönlund, are also in poor condition.

From Huså Copper Mining Company

Photograph (21)

Here is shown the smelting-house in Huså in 1896.  At the right can be seen the refinery-house and the smelting-house.  The house with the long channel contained a water wheel that powered an air blower and from this air was guided through sheet metal to the smelting house.  The large white house to the right of the manor was a carpentry workshop, later it was a workhouse, and after 1875, it was a school.  The house to the right and on this side of the carpentry workshop was a coalhouse, the building behind the coalhouse was a granary, and it can now be found in Fäviken.  The house in the center of the photo was a roasting
 house.

Nils Essing

Table 3 (22)

Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	A4
	Nils Essing
	B
	Feb 11, 1729 
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	

	S
	Brita Andersdotter
	B
	June 23, 1721 
	Sölvsved

	
	
	D
	About Sep 30, 1798
	

	B1
	Agnes Essing 
	B
	June 28, 1752 
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	D
	Feb 1833 
	Verdal, Norway

	B2 
	Anders Essing 
	B
	Jan 5, 1756 
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 21, 1759
	

	B3
	Magnus Essing 
	B
	Feb 1, 1759 
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 18, 1778
	


Inger’s note on Brita Andersbotter:  She was buried on September 30, 179.

Nils was a Miner in Huså and later he was a settler in Sandnäset, which was also called Äsingen.  The name “Äsingen” probably comes from the name “Essing”.

When Nils Essing and his wife Brita Andersdotter had to have their son Magnus baptized, they requested their closest neighbor, Johan Hansson Råbuck (1718-1761), because it was an emergency baptism.  The emergency baptism was confirmed in Kall church the following day.

Nils Essing filed a claim against farmer Olof Andersson of Sölvsved.  This claim concerned his wife Brita’s inheritance rights to a farm in Sölvsved.  Olof Andersson did not appear at the first Court Session, and could not or would not give a valid excuse for not being there.  

Nevertheless, he did produce a reconciliation agreement, which maintained that he, Olof Andersson, should give Nils Essing, for the inheritance rights of his wife, a portion of the Sellsved Farm, one-half (½) of what was known.  Then owning one-tenth portion
 that is called Bölet, and the place that Essing had already built on, and one-fourth (¼) annually toe half fallow field.  
Nils Essing acknowledges this as a complete payment and as a release of his wife’s ownership rights to the Sellswed homestead, and promises to complete 2 days of work on the farm each year
.  Essing admits that he had been doing this from the previously stipulated privileges and that he was only requesting this for official confirmation.  

Olof Andersson does not deny this, so Essing may have proper assurance thereof. 

 Therefore, as soon as Olof Andersson gets the District Court Judgment (permanent document for the homestead) then it is now hoped that this Court Session will provide a third Judgment.

By the same conditions, the District Court also found on September 16, 1752, in the dispute between Olof Andersson and his brother-in-law Salomon Jonsson of Gärde, that the acknowledgement of Olof Andersson was legal.

Judgment

Olof Andersson has now acknowledged these public rights before the Court, because he was partially involved in depending on it.  

Therefore, having reached an agreement before the Spring Court Session of 1756 ends, the legal ratification
 of the homestead in Sellsved is entered into the Deed Book.  

For missing the first day of Court, Olof Andersson will be fined one daler in silver.

Nils Essing later sold his farm to A.  W.  Burman, and the Purchase Agreement was as follows:

Farmer Nils Essing and his wife Brita Andersdotter have released to the Copper Mining Company Manager and Chief Sergeant (?)  Mr. Abraham Wilhelm Burman the farm and its croplands and Sölfswed landed gentry property
 for 420 Riksdaler through this Purchase Agreement dated October 13, 1761, which is now warmly confirmed in friendship by County Citizen Olof Bedin and Nils Abrahamsson of Hjerpen and Jon Nilsson of Segerdahlen, 

However, Essing is allowed the right to use it this year, and for this reason, the buyer is accorded the first offer of this farm. 

(23)

Nils and Brita moved westwards.  They first settled in Segerdalen, as recorded below:

(23)

A written contract was submitted to the District Court with the following contents: 

I {___________} hereby accept the Company Worker Nils Essing as a tenant on the homestead in Segerdahlen in accordance with the following conditions:

1. Near the shallow bay west of Sandbäcken, Nils Essing received permission to build a farm and to cultivate the land and clear the meadow, to the extent that he is able to maintain.  He and his wife are given rights to this tract between Sandbäcken and Anjesjön {Anje Lake} for their lifetime, and also the rights to the hay west of Stråtjärn.

2. Nils Essing no longer has to pay me eighteen (18) Riksdaler annually and no longer puts forth 1 day of work in the spring and 1 day of work in the fall on my woodland.

3. Nils Essing no longer gets some pasture space from Per Andersson
 that they had jointly used on the homestead.

4. Nils Essing may fish in Anjan and Kalljön with Per Andersson
.
5. After the death of Nils Essing and his wife, this farm is to go to such of Essing’s children that make payment for the valuation of the house and improvements.  Essing’s successors may then make a new contract with my
 successors for the farm, if they so desire.  


Hamburg on October 13, 1761



Jon Nilsson (Father)



Nils Jonsson (Son)



Nils Essing

(23)
Witness: 
A. W. Burman




Elof Bredin




Nils  (Signature Mark) Abramsson of Järpen
 

Since this has been hereby certified as correct by our signatures in the presence of District Court witnesses Olof Bredin and Nils Abramsson of Järpen, it will be put in the Recorded Minutes for the sake of independent
 proof. 

The Royal Court Judge in Westernorrland made a Ruling on the petition by Israel Edenmark for 30 years of tax freedom and other benefits that are legally allowed to new homesteaders.  

This included the new homesteaders (Jöns Forsström, Anders Norberg, Nils Essing, and Petter Bergqvist) and their proposal for the new building improvements on the homesteads consisting of 1 acre or 1/6th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land for each of the above Anjan up to the Norwegian border.  

Judge Jonas Berg, a Judge in the Royal Court, made his Ruling on this, which was released to officials in Sundsvall on March 2, 1771, as follows: 

Royal Court Judgment

From the nature of the contract language, I have gotten enough information to learn that on March 16, 1765 my predecessor in office had given Company Manager Buhrman some assistance with one of those saw machines.  I have also learned that he was able to plan 4 new homesteads, each consisting of 1 acre, along the Norwegian border on the other side of Anjans Sjön {Anjans Lake}.  

This was under the terms of 25 years of tax freedom from property taxes and was also to provide 10 years of personal expenses and money for the livestock.  

However, the Company Manager was not able to prevail upon anyone to give the same property tax reductions instead of the allowable years of tax freedom on personal property, which had been granted in the Royal Court Judgment of December 9, 1766.  

Up until now the visitors
 (Jöns Forsström from Backsjön {Back Lake}, Anders Norberg from Mählen, Nils Essing from Bollstan, and Petter Bergqvist from Sågen) had all taken this property tax reduction in various degrees 

Because of the location of the new homesteads and because of the suitability of the 1/6th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land that was chosen, they cannot be expected to complete the building improvements with less than the 30 years of allowed tax freedom.  

They will also need additional assistance from the Royal Government for the construction of these proposed new buildings.  

I have come to consider these changes written into the contract.  These new homestead opportunities are always located in the mountains along the Norwegian border.  

Should there be some expectation of profits from cultivating these fields?  Will there be a warm summer and the grain will ripen, or will it be primarily fed to livestock?  

It appears that up until now, no one has wanted to plant anything under the terms and conditions stated in the above Court Judgment of March 16, 1765.  

For that reason, I consider it reasonable that the amount of tax freedom for these farmers should be increased.  

Consequently, Jöns Forsström, Anders Norberg, Nils Essing, and Pehr Bergqvist shall have the benefit of 30 years of tax freedom on their farms from and including this present year.

They are also to have the Homestead Benefits from the Royal Court Judgment of April 4, 1770 that stipulated the Homestead Benefits to the settlers on Royal Government Homesteads.  

The following Homestead Benefits are to be received from the Royal Government starting in the second year:  

· Two (2) barrels
 of good quality rye for the next six years 

· Excused from all military service

· Freedom from personal taxes by any name (?) for every stomach to feed.  
Since some of them have more than 4 children that are less than 15 years of age, and for each and every one over that number, they are to receive one-half (½) barrel of good quality corn until their youngest reaches 6 years of age.  

(25)
Written this Year and Date

The Company accountant, the esteemed Mr. Eric Sparman, requested permission from the Copper Mining Company to build some new homesteads on the Company Land in Djupsjö and the following farmers settled there: 

Joh. Ranklef 

Pehr Bergström 

Jon Danielsson 

Olof Carlsson of Brattäggen 

Carl Carlsson and Olof Andersson of Hook and Kall Parish
  
Their request was as follows:

Judgment

In 1758, these homesteaders in the Villages of Brattäggen and Krok had received legal approval from the legal records of October 14, berd XE "berd" 
 year, after which, 

because of an investigation already made, 

for the area called Djupsjö Näset {Djup Lake Point}, which is by the lake across from Djärfhögen.  
Under 20 years of tax freedom on one-half of an acre of arable land together with some worthless land in the area and the manor house, a tax payment of 6 loads of meadow hay and 2 loads of autumn hay was established, except at several locations at Blåwiksmyran {Blåwiks Swamp} access, where it was established at 27 loads. 

In addition, some sufficient hay land grass, up to one-half (½) mil from the sier XE "sier"  mountain pasture of the farming concerns, and where the farmers later were found to have not made their petition.  

Nevertheless, the results of the investigation were given by Constable Bedin and 2 Jurors in the presence of the affected parties.



Sundsvall on September 8, 1775 

From Västernorrlands Land Office A IIIa: 6  (September 8, 1775) 

(25)

I have been very concerned about the nature of these investigations, especially about certain points concerning the homesteaders that were brought out.

I find that I am properly informed about the new cottage built by Essing, which is located on the western side of Sjön Anjan {Lake Anjan} on a point or promontory.  It occupies the westernmost point of this lake, near Rösjöwatttnet {Rö Lake Water}.   

together with the new cottage’s land, qualified on-board star
.  
The lease payment for this is 1 pound
 of torrfisk
.  

In addition to the new cottage, Forsström received what is called Backsjön {Back Lake}.  This lake is ¼ mil {1½ miles} long, and is located on the north side of the farm.  There are also some net locations on the south side, across from the lake creek, which runs into this farm.  Together with 3 other small streams, they are called Ottsjöarna {Otts Lake}, and the lease payment for this area is 1 pound of torrfisk.  

Subsequently, the Villagers at Mo, Nedergårds, Storfjärden and Skråpfjärden are to pay an annual lease amount of 1 pound of torrfisk, and the Villagers at Hierpens ninta XE "ninta" 
?

The people in the remaining areas that do not have access to Anjansjön {Anjan Lake} or Storfjärd are to pay an annual lease amount of one-half pound of torrfisk.  This is to be the annual lease for next year and the following years. 

The previous lease of 1 specie 24 sm XE "sm"  that was paid for these lakes is hereby eliminated.  

Year and Date as above

(25)

The Royal Court Judgment in Vesternorrland District Court
(?) concerning Smelter Worker Olof Melldahl through the Company Inspector Er XE "Er" . Ax. Sparrman
 made an investigation to find out about the share of the new cottage construction in Kall Parish, which was previously owned by Jöns Forsström, whereof the Royal Bailiff issued an opinion on the place from the residence of the County Governor at Hernösand on April 6, 1791:

Jöns Forsström of Anjan and Kall Parish agreed in a transaction on February 9th of last year and it was put down in the records of the District Court on the same day.  

This showed the circumstances about the residence shares of the new homesteads for Olof Meldahl, who himself had provided residence for the men, Mårten Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Äng and Jon Gunnarsson of Nedergården, sufficient security therefore
.  

Therefore Melldahl, according to the ruling from the Royal Government Official, would have been aware of their diligence and farming ability.  

I have carefully considered regarding him as a resident of this share of the new homesteads in Anjan 

under the terms and conditions thereof 

diligence and work place improvements, 

so that this share was within the conclusion of the tax-free years on completely solid grounds.  

And so least respondent opposite the proposed tax amount
.  

(26)
Year and Date as above  

Per Nilsson a farmer from Wären, Norway received a guaranty from a representative of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company for the newly cultivated land and Segerdahl tax privileges that previously belonged to Company Worker Nils Essing of Sundet.  

This guaranty stated that he:

1. Establishes the annual obligation of 18 Riksdaler and 2 days of work to the landowner in Segerdalen.

2. Annually transports 10 stigars of coal, each of (?) 12 barrels, from Digernäset to the Husä smelting house for the use of the Company.  

He {Per Nilsson} may occupy these buildings and the land under the rights received from the Company for as long as Per Nilsson fulfills these inviolable conditions and maintains and preserves the improvements on the other buildings as required by law. 

He also has the right to the tax freedoms(?) that have been previously enjoyed by the Company Workers.

It is ordered that the entrance shall be close to our house and land as well, so that Per Nilsson will be looked after.  

Should it happen that any landowner denies this farmer’s position, 

according to the contract that Nils Essing had, 

then Per Nilsson’s responsibilities will be as established here and he shall be responsible to the landowner of the establishment in the same proportion, 

according to later agreements that are modified or reduced.


Sellsved on December 2, 1771

(27)

Farmer Per Nilsson later abandoned the contract with the Company for the farm at Sundet.  

Farmer Per Andersson will now be able to take over the farm for the next year under the following conditions and until a final decision is made:

1. Per Andersson must pay the landowner the basic legal obligation of 18 Riksdaler.

2. He must annually bring five stigars of coal from Digernäset to the Huså smelting house without payment.  

3. The cultivation of the cropland must not be discontinued at (?).  Per Andersson has the obligation to tend the cattle on this farm for at least 3 weeks each summer and to continue pasture farming.

4. The Company will later make a second arrangement concerning the farm, if Per Andersson should legally relinquish it.  The Thomas Mass followed the removal without (?) the time for moving will be shortly after the Valborg Mass.


Mo on March 26, 1774



Joh. Gust. Edelfelt

(27)

Brita Essing

Table 4 (28)

Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	A5
	Brita Essing
	B
	1731
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	S
	Samuel Ridderberg
	M
	Aug 19, 1753
	

	
	
	B
	1734
	Skinnskatteberg, Dalarna

	
	
	D
	Oct 7, 1804
	Verdal, Norway

	B1
	Brita Ridderberg 
	B
	Nov 2, 1753
	

	Table 15
	
	D
	
	

	B2
	Magnus Ridderberg 
	B
	Oct 27, 1755
	

	
	
	D
	About Feb 5, 1769?
	

	B3
	Johan Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 20, 1758
	

	Table 16
	
	D
	
	

	B4
	Per Ridderberg 
	B
	June 9, 1760
	

	Table 17
	
	D
	Oct 27, 1816 
	Breding

	B5
	Agnes Ridderberg 
	B
	Oct 29, 1762 
	

	Table 18
	
	D
	Nov 4, 1834
	

	B6
	Samuel Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 31, 1765
	

	Table 19
	
	D
	
	

	B7
	Kerstin Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 11, 1768
	

	Table 20
	
	D
	
	

	B8
	Magnus Ridderberg 
	B
	1772
	Holmlivald

	
	
	D
	1773
	Storlangdal

	B9
	Ole Ridderberg 
	B
	1775
	Langdal

	Table 21
	
	D
	1796
	Telsneset


Inger’s note on A5 Brita Essing: She was baptized on June 9, 1731.  She lived in Huså and Semlan.
Inger’s note on S Samuel Ridderberg: He was a copper refinery Worker by occupation.
Inger’s note on B2 Magnus Ridderberg:  He was buried on February 5, 1769?
Samuel was the first to inhabit company Farm No. 181 in the Village of Huså.  He had it for 10 to 12 years.

It was later occupied by his brother Johan with a similar arrangement with Company Farm No. 179 for 15 years.  
Samuel’s brother Hans was a copper refinery Worker and he later moved on the farm to live.  The widow of Hans lived there until 1858.

This farm was assessed at being able to feed 2 cows, 5 sheep and 5 goats, and ¾ barrel of grain and 1 ½ barrels of potatoes were planted.

Later the family {________?} lived on Company Farm No. 30.  This farm was occupied in order by:  

· It was first cleared of branches and roots by the Miner Erik Johansson Bock in about 1744.  He lived there until about 1765.  

· Then by Jonas Hedman,

· Then by Eric Sullen,

· Then by Samuel and his family,

· Then by Lars Larsson,

· Then by Jon Mahlberg,

· Then by Johan Skjutare until 1771,

· Then by Joseph Bergqvist until 1784,

· Then by Miner Nils Essing,

· Then by Nils Hjerpe until 1849,

· Then by the former Company Manager {Per Löding} who was then the Sheriff of the Gustav Copper Mining Company.

· Then by the Manager of Bjelke Copper Mining Company {Johan Petter Lalander} from 1853 until 1878.

Nils Essing was compensated for the following improvements to the farm in 1812:

This farm can feed 2 cows, 6 sheep and 6 goats and ¾ of a barrel of grain and 3¾ barrels of potatoes were planted each year.  

Agreement
The Company Miners and Metalworkers in Semlan had a meeting in 1765 because of some unknown conflict with the Company management.  Most of the Semlan employees went to work in Norway that year.  Erik Elg left for Norway with his two fully-grown sons {Johan and Samuel Ridderberg} and with smith worker Olof Tjernström.  

Samuel Ridderberg had a larceny upon his conscience and he remained in Norway when the other workers came back to work because he preferred to stay away from the long arms of the Swedish Law.

The Grandchildren

Petrus “Per” Edberg

Table 5 (29)

Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	
	Petrus "Per" Edberg 
	B
	1744
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 10, 1776 
	

	S
	Ingeborg Jönsdotter
	B
	1736
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 1819 
	Stamgärde

	C1
	Kerstin Persdotter 
	B
	Jan 11, 1788 
	Svensta

	
	
	D
	Feb 4, 1869 
	Öjarn


Inger’s note on Petrus "Per" Edberg:  He lived in Edsasen.
Kerstin was very poor and she received assistance for the poor in 1856 while she lived in Skalfjället.  She also received assistance for the poor in 1857 and 1858 and was accepted into the Rotehjon
 in 1860.  Table 22

Edberg sold his farm in the Village of Edsåsen to Pär Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stamgärde in 1788:

For everyone who sees this contract or hears it read, I {Pär Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsäsen} hereby knowingly release and sell my land and present home on Company Farm No. ___ in the Village of Edsåsen consisting of one-half (½) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land to farmhand {Pär Olofsson of Stamgiärde}. 

The agreed upon purchase amount of seventy-two (72) Riksdaler 32 Specie is to be paid to me in full within 4 years.  

For payment of this purchase amount, I now release this farm to Pär Ol XE "Ol" ofsson (and his wife, children, and heirs) and I grant him the right to use and occupy all of the buildings, land, forests, fields, fishing and water mark including sawed portion
 and the flour mill.

He has the right to occupy it as his legally purchased and lawfully acquired property.  He has ownership rights to it now and for all posterity without objection from any of my relatives or me.

Both last names are signed below to provide additional confirmation and official proof of our promise and it is confirmed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Stamgiärde District Court on February 15, 1788 


Seller: 
Pär Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsåsen


Buyer: 
Pär Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stamgiärde

(29)
Witness: 
Anders Jöransson of Nyland 



Olof Pärsson of Hamre



Jurors

The buyer and the seller both acknowledged the correctness in their own presence.

Therefore, this Purchase Agreement is legally entered into the Court Judgment Book.  
From Undersåker District Court AII: 35

P.S.  On August 1, 1784, Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsåsen and Olof Jönsson Wängström of Järpen were elected as Parish officials by a general Parish vote.

Per 0. Edberg purchased a home in Rista from Pehr Nilsson.

The following sales and purchase letter was submitted for legal processing:  

I {Pehr Nilsson of Rista} sell my deed to Company Farm No. 2, consisting of 1 acre of land and a house, to farmer Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsåsen for his possession and occupancy next spring.  

Edberg has hereby paid 130
 Riksdaler of the total purchase amount of two hundred sixteen (216) Riksdaler 32 Species, for my subsistence needs.  

The remaining 36 Riksdaler 32 Specie is to be paid to me in October of this year to help support my father {Nils Råå}, the caretaker at the Duved Border Customs Office.  

My father shall receive this money for
 his Reserved Rights in accordance with his contract of February 10, 1789.  

My wife {Anna Ersdotter} and I shall also receive the following Reserved Rights for the remainder of our lifetimes:

· A small field near Stormästarbacken
 including the raft
 lying around there to the east of the fence

· cultivation rights to a small grove east of the Company road

· the fenced field south of the river including an old barn also on it 

· cultivation rights to the cropland in Gunnilwallen and also the barn there

· the pasture for the cattle that Pehr Nilsson feeds in the wintertime together with Edberg’s cattle, both near, detached from the estate, 

· the right to use the grove as a shelter south of the farm

· the boat house

· the mill 

· the right to fetch water from the well

After the death of Pehr Nilsson and his wife, the house and fields that they leased go back to the original owner without compensation.  

Should Pehr Nilsson die before his wife, she shall receive the same Reserved Rights benefits from Edberg including all of the necessary living accommodations, firewood and heat.

We affirm that we are both satisfied with this transaction.  


Rista on February 14, 1805


Seller: 
Pehr Nilsson of Rista 


Buyer: 
Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsåsen

(30}
Witness: 
Jon Rödlund 



Jon Hindriksson of Hålland

Later, both the buyer and seller acknowledged the content in an attached letter dated October 3, 1791, showing who were their designated heirs.  

Nevertheless, it has a reserv XE "reserv" ation that the joint heirs should be regarded as the closest entitled for the fixed value of sixty (60) Riksdaler payment in case Pehr Nilsson is unable to keep it.  

Nevertheless, this reserv XE "reserv" ation was relinquished
 once more according to the legal records of January 23, 1800.

Now, according to 4 Chapter 1 of the Common Laws, one-half of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Rista consisting of 1 acre, 

for Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg for the first time put up for sale
.

Per 0. Edberg sells his farm in Rista to Jöns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Rista.

I {Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Ingeborg Jönsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell this farm to farmer {Jöns Olofsson of Rista}.

This agreement i XE "i" ncludes all of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Rista, Undersåker Parish consisting of 1 acre of productive land 
value cavalry distance below No. 114 from the First Lieutenant Company
 

The agreed upon purchase amount is two hundred eighty four (284) Riksdaler in national debt money, or one hundred eighty (180) Riksdaler in bank money.  

The first and last part of this total is hereby paid by Jöns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson owns
 to this farm buyer who also is responsible for all of the farms 

åtfölder XE "åtfölder" 
 starting from the year 1808 but men became taxed
. 

I {Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} am also responsible for the years 1808 and 1809.  

It remains the responsibility of the present owner {Jöns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} to provide annual Reserved Rights to the caretaker from Dufed Border Customs Office {Nils Råå}, in accordance with his {Nils Råå} contract of February 10, 1789 from the sale of his ownership rights to this farm.

In addition, Reserved Rights are to be given to caretaker {Per Nilsson} and his wife {Anna Eriksdotter} for both of their remaining lifetimes in accordance with the Purchase Agreement of February 14, 1805.

I {Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} and my dear wife {Ingeborg Jönsdotter} hereby release my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Rista including buildings, croplands, meadows, and the remaining fish and fishing rights by whatever name they may be called.  

I also publicly proclaim that Jöns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his wife and children are the legal and eternal owners.  

Should either the buyer or the seller contest this transaction, the surrendered
 party shall receive ten (10) Riksdaler compensation.  

It is hereby confirmed with our signatures.


Rista on January 13, 1809


Seller: 
Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg



Ingeborg Jönsdotter of Rista


Buyer: 
Jöns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Rista

(31)
Witness:
Mårten Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Romo



Swen Hindriksson of Edsåsen



Jon Hindriksson of Hålland

Agnis Edberg

Table 6 (32)

Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B2
	Agnis Edberg
	B
	June 5, 1747
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 29, 1769 
	

	S
	Anders Mårtensson
	B
	1741
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 16, 1803
	

	C1
	Mårten Andersson 
	B
	Aug 30, 1770 
	

	Table 23
	
	D
	Oct 13, 1855
	

	C2
	Kerstin Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 31, 1774 
	

	Table 24
	
	D
	Aug 9, 1858?
	

	C3
	Maria Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 16, 1776 
	

	
	
	D
	May 23, 1858?
	

	C4
	Ingeborg Andersdotter 
	B
	Sep 24, 1777 
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 16, 1777
	

	C5
	Anna Andersdotter 
	B
	Nov 17, 1778 
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 9, 1778
	

	C6
	Märet Andersdotter 
	B
	Nov 4, 1780 
	

	Table 25
	
	D
	Sep 25, 1872 
	Mörsil

	C7
	Sara Andersdotter
	B
	Apr 26, 1782 
	

	
	
	D
	July 14, 1871
	Helleberg, Alsen

	C8
	Ingeborg Andersdotter 
	B
	May 19, 1785 
	

	
	
	D
	May 19, 1785
	

	C9
	Agnis Andersdotter 
	B
	May 30, 1788 
	

	Table 26
	
	D
	Aug 2, 1859 
	Kall


Inger’s note on B2 Agnis Edberg: She lived in Djupsjön, Kall.
Inger’s note on S Anders Mårtensson: He was a settler in Djupsjön after Per Månsson Bergström who first settled there in 1767.
Inger’s note on C7 Sara Andersdotter: She worked as a maid there and was unmarried.
Inger & Nels:

Was the following a court case that pitted:

Nils Jonsson and Per Andersson of Bratteggen and Olof and Nils Andersson of Krok Village and Kall Parish.

vs.

Anders Mårtensson (1741-1803),

The Royal Court Judgment in Wästernorrland went against Nils Jonsson and Per Andersson of Bratteggen and Olof and Nils Andersson of Krok Village and Kall Parish.  

They had made an application to become exempt from lease charges for fishing rights on the so-called Djupsjö {Djup Lake}, which was located within the new Royal Government Homestead area in Djupsjö.  

For that reason, the settler on this new homestead in the Royal Government Homestead area, Anders Mårtensson (1741-1803), is heard and he stated that the Royal Court Judgment of well trusted Pehr Lidsten 

whose included opinion was depended on, 

given at the County Governor Residence in Hernösand on June 4, 1793.  

Because they had relinquished the right to a Special Stipulation from the Royal Government in this written application, they had to pay for fishing rights in Djupsjö.

The owner of the new Royal Government Homestead (Anders Mårtensson 1741-1803) requested that these same fishing rights must now be granted to him.  

Therefore, I find it reasonable that not only from and including this year to release this search for the same fishing rights without a fixed annual payment 

Anders Mårtensson is granted the fishing rights with a fixed annual payment until their Royal Government Homestead in Djupsjö becomes placed in the Tax Code Books.  

Then it will be determined if these fish come under the half that the farm was comprised of.  

This Judgment written in this jurisdiction should be peacefully submitted for proper obedience and observation in the Common Laws Books and the Royal Government Records.  


Year and Date as above

Later, the new Royal Court Judgment, in accordance with the old Royal Court Judgment of December 7, 1767 concerning Homestead Rights, allowed the Gustav and Karlberg Copper Mining Company to also evict Company Workers Joh. Randklef and Per Bergström from the Villages of Krok and Brattägge.  They were evicted from their new homesteads on the Company Land in Diupsjö, Kall Parish in 1758.

because they did not have the right to work on these new homesteads and buildings 

all which and now by this settler afterwards 

becomes a good farm by Anders Mårtensson  of Gråsjön {Grå Lake}

for if the new work subsequently becomes discontinued 

It is commissioned here on behalf of the Company that the tenants and their heirs may own and occupy these new homesteads for as long as the below written conditions are fulfilled:

1. The Company retains the ownership rights to the farms, forests and hay land in accordance with the laws and statutes.  From this it follows that the farm, which the Company would not dare to lease without these conditions, may divide these farms and may dispose of them in any manner they desire.

2. Anders Mårtensson shall be responsible for the lease payment on this new homestead in Diupsjö and for the farm taxes and other liabilities after the tax-free years are finished

3. In this manner he, together with the other farm residents in the parish, must do day labor hauling according to the lease contract.

4. After the tax-free years are finished, Anders Mårtensson must either take 8 stigars of coal from Rislegden and Bonäset or the same number of barrels of ore from the Gustav Copper Mining Company to Husän.  He is now and for all posterity released from all taxes and burdens to work under the terms and conditions of this contract.

5. Anders Mårtensson is to willingly do the necessary work to transport the ore and coal for a reasonable payment.

6. He must cultivate and improve the farm in a sound manner and in accordance with the law.  

7. In it later by reasonable division of expenses on the applying of taxes and burdens, 
Anders Mårtensson half with work, 
but the Tax Appraisal goes for the Company costs.  
In addition, that the costs of Anders Mårtensson in the smaller lawsuit and ceremony are to be able to become necessary.


Mo on April 10, 1773



Joh. Gust.  Edelfelt

(33)

Anders Mårtensson 1741-1803

On January 23, 1775, it is additionally agreed and recorded that the lease amount shall be 2 pounds of butter, according to the Royal Court Judgment of December 7th of last year, 

for the new cottages built at Tverå castle 

and by rural
 and Royal Government Homesteader taken back  

The cottages shall be furnished in such a manner by Anders Mårtensson 

that the other paragraphs of this contract of Diupsjö lease earnings 

may mo from the above.

Anders Mårtensson (1741-1803 Table 6) had a son named Mårten Andersson (1770-1855 Tables 6 and 23) who had a son named Anders Mårtensson (1804-1804 Table 23) born and died in 1804 and a second son also named Anders Mårtensson 1808-1887 Table 23) who had a son named Mårten Andersson (1829-1905 Table 68).  
On June 19, 1805 the official land surveyors undertook, 

by the authority of the County Governor and Noble Knight Er XE "Er" . G. Lindekronas commission of February 12, 1803 and of March 18th of the same year 

and the 5 {see below}at the present time, 

to survey, inventory and appraise the new homesteads in Djupsjö, 

next to the near by Royal Government Homesteads in Kall Parish, Jemteland and Vesternorrlands  County, 

where at 

after there of before the legal public notice occurred 

he discontinued 

except they appointed Jurors Nils Jonsson of Brattäggen and Nils Nilsson of Vassnäs, who shall grant task.

Royal Government Official and well-trusted representative {Eric Huss} 

after the Royal Court Judgment of May 14th of last year, 

dispatched a command as the Royal Government Official 

to safeguard the Royal Government and the Crown’s Rights.  

Respected Company Inspector {Johan Israel Noreus} and Company Juror {Nils Engelbertsson from Fäviken} appeared as representatives of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company.  

overlook on new homesteader in Djupsjö, {one}the widow {Agneta Olofsdotter} helped by her son {Mårten Andersson}.  

Respected County Citizens {two} (Jonas Andersson) and farmer {three} (Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson from the Village of Håf in Alsen Parish} on behalf of the Royal Government Rights to the summer pastureland in the mountains.

{four}Farmer (Måns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Östbacken) and settler {five} (Jacob Bengtsson from Getan) on behalf of the homesteaders ownership rights to the Piktjern mountain cottage land 

{or?}

From the adjacent Villages of Hålland, Mo and Nedgård, where this forest tax occurs, 

the farmers {one} Erik Pärsson of Mo 

and {two} Lars Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hålland, the Village of Kroks, 

{three} Eric Hemmingsson, {four} Carl Larsson of Hålland 

and {five} Pär Andersson, 

and for Skjällder XE "Skjällder"  small building 

discontinue adjacent Royal Government Homesteads 

Juror Pär Jonsson of Röde, 

and for Rönningsberg summer mountain pasture Juror (Halfvard Nilsson of Rönningsberg).  

Later the Judgment is read in the presence of all the affected people.  

They had requested that the surveyors determine the boundaries of the new homesteads in the forest lands.  

There at the hearing privilege it was verified and acknowledged by all that the jointly owned taxable forest land in the Villages of Hålland, Mo, and Nedgård shall be bounded by the following property line corner markers:

· Starting at marker 1 at the northeast end of the Village of Nästtjern

· Then to marker 2 in the Village of Rökberget

· Then to marker 3 in the Village of Tjernberget

· Then to marker 4 northwest of the Village of Thotthögden

· Then to Rödningsberg the Royal Government Homesteads ta XE "ta" kes to marker 5 at the northwest end of the Village of Spelmansmyran {Spelmans Swamp}

· Then to marker 6 at the eastern end of pole staked or beautiful swamp

· Then to marker 7 at the Royal Government Rua in the Village of Gärde in Offerdal Parish

· Then to marker 8 in the Village of Tvärån

· Then to marker 9 in the same Village Gråsjölien, difference cultivates as far as small school building Royal Government Homesteads under Rödeby 

· Then to marker 10 at Djupsjö Mountain

· Then to marker 11 in the Village of Svartviken

· Then to marker 12 in the Village of Bläviken

· Then to marker 13 by following the southern shore of Djupsjön {Djup Lake} to the Nästtjern river’s mouth in Djupsjön, and then following the bend of the river to the Village of Krok where a stone is fixed on the south side of (????)

· Finally, it returns to marker 1 in the Village of Nästtjern

This surveyed land not only i XE "i" ncludes the new homesteads in Djupsjö, but also the summer mountain pasture belonging to the Royal Government and the Piktjern Municipal Government.

On June 20, 21, 22, 25, and 26, 

in the presence of the adjacent landowners and tenants 

on the ground cut up and marked with a stone mound.

The Villagers in Krok and Brattäggen have received Court approval in 1758 to keep possession of 975 acres of what is called Djupsjö Näs for 20 years of tax freedom.  

But since they do not complete their application 

without withdrawing all their claims afterwards, 

and at the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company request, 

that the lease payment for their land until now constituted 

likewise must be given to the Company.  

Since the Royal Court has given ownership rights to the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company in accordance with the Court Judgment of December 7, 1767 

support for this place 

released to Company Workers Johan Randklef and Pär Bergström, 

that 1½ acres or one-fourth (¼) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land 

with 15 years of tax freedom for farm payments 

and 10 years of tax freedom
 for monetary livestock payments, 
with the additional Royal Court Judgment, 

that these new cottages may be put in the Deed Books, 

with the notation that in 1783 and in the future and 

also that by row after farmers the desire also on this settler 

is taken from and including 1768.

Later, the Royal Court Judgment of December 7, 1774 ruled that the affected tenants of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company could retain all of their cottages.   

after the year 1758 

the foundations for the new cottages Djupsjö Näs were marked, 

becomes as long as and until 

their by coming share there of becomes closer examined.  

Since the Royal Government Homesteads in Djupsjö 

by that returned do not only transverse, 

these had been used by Getarn new homesteaders in Alsen Parish 

without also considerable second by the Royal Government and the National Works summer mountain pasture won back cottages, 

which have from the above written Judgment date 

Djupsjö settlers for this property 

have paid and shall continue to pay a lease amount of 2 lisspunds {40 pounds} of butter,

except from annual interest after one-half (½)  of an acre highly honored.  

The Royal Court Judgment of April 15, 1790 appraising the division of all homesteads had precedence over the Royal Court Judgment concerning ownership rights.

It had the additional stipulation that the Royal Government, Berg Parish, Östbacken Municipal Government and the National Works homesteads may be lived on free, provided they are able to provide proof that they are living on the land.

Since the new homestead buildings in Djupsjö are built on foundations and used some of the money on croplands, they are admonished to repay, 

therefore be entitled and declared also, 

these new homestead buildings by the proper placing of a tax on them 

not be attributed to more extensive land and territory than which according to the law should belong to the same.

On June 27th, Highly Respected Inspector Nils Gust. Ros arrives on the place, and is shown the order of Copper Mining Company Manager Pohlheimer written word for word as shown below:

As I become aware of the summer mountain pastures by the Company Farms in Djupsjö belonging to the Copper Mining Company, and also on the Company Farms in Djupsjö.

The second item {the Company Farms in Djupsjö} are under the control of the homesteaders for hay making across the way in Kälapanruen etc.  

The desired tax levy is located within the Djupsjö area and the adjacent frontier 

that the undersigned protest 

according to the authority for the controlled tax legislation, 

which is known to happen 

the Copper Mining Company 

to damage 

in capability with the Copper Mining Company privileges, 

and is asked by the properly affected property men require to submit evidence that such report happens.



Semlan on June 25, 1805

(36)

A. Pohlhejmer

After the above order was issued, Inspector Ros also demanded that he wanted the land surveyors to stop all further surveying and investigation of the Djupsjö leased property until their years of tax freedom from the Copper Mining Company come to an end, 

and until which some tax and the new homestead buildings in Djupsjö, 

for the property belonging to the Copper Mining Company ought not to be constituted, 

but by the preceding Recorded Minutes from the 19th of the month, 

Inspector Noreus does not only, 

the property of the Copper Mining Company powerful without and the new homestead buildings 

the owner widow {Agneta Olofsdotter}, through Mårten Andersson 1770-1855,

notified and acknowledged that these new homestead buildings in Djupsjö, 

within the Hof and Piktjern summer mountain pasture forest 

and outside grounds diversity confused 

and lease land 

the affected people also demanded continuation of land surveying and investigation 

to know civil employees the following by that well quoted the appointment, 

which in regard to stated reason does not 

other than to continue the remaining surveying, graduation and taxation of the whole Municipality.

For that reason, and   

after the affected people learned of the civil employees statement in that regard, 

after which the Inspector stated that the new homesteads in Djupsjö, in accordance with the Judgment of ownership rights from the County Government Judgment of December 7, 1767 and of December 7, 1774,

should retain all of their ownership rights and privileges to these new homesteads 

that they formerly maintained and used

without the smallest intrusion or illegal 

by the Royal Government or the Piktjern Municipal Government 

summer mountain pastureland, 

who on the other hand desired and demanded 

that after the new homesteads in Djupsjö, 

according to The Royal Court Judgment of April 15, 1790, 

after the received by the District Court own and accommodation in forest and land, 

which the same after 1½  acres or one-fourth (¼) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land can belong to, 

the other land and grounds must be proclaimed,  

for the tax and annual interest, 

which later is to be examined and should be paid.  

Later the affected people 

on being asked do not further state, 

continued in the Royal Government Official and parties presence remaining draft of land, 

and afterward graduation and taxation, 

which benefits and privilege in after the following charta XE "charta" 
 description is found to be cultivated.  

Later, the land distribution is carried out between Djupsjön on the one hand, and the summer mountain pasture of the Royal Government and Piktjern Municipal Government on the other hand, in the manner described in the Division Report.

They are authorized to draw the legal boundary separation lines in this report. 


Year and Date as above


On behalf of the Office Man Sunding through Magn.  Ångman
Esten Edberg

Table 7 (38)

Esten Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B3
	Esten Edberg
	B
	June 5, 1757 
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 1, 1786 
	

	S
	Brita Andersdotter
	B
	Dec 5, 1756 
	Kall

	
	
	D
	Oct 9, 1841 
	Äre 

	C1
	Anna Stina Estensdotter 
	B
	Oct 28, 1786 
	

	Table 27
	
	D
	Dec 1, 1873
	

	C2
	Anders Estensson 
	B
	Dec 12, 1789 
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 4, 1816 
	Edsåsen


Esten Edberg was a tailor and farmer.  

He purchased a farm from his brother as recorded in the following agreement:

This District Court certifies and acknowledges by means of this Purchase Agreement that tailor Esten Edberg has purchased Company Farm No. 1 (called the Böle Farm) in the Village of Edsåsen from his brother Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsåsen for thirty eight (38) Riksdaler 16 Species.

This i XE "i" ncludes all of the farm’s belongings.

The written contract contained a clause that the buyer also promised to provide 4 days of work at his own expense to benefit the owner. 

However, he has 5 years of tax freedom during the first 5 years.

Esten Edberg is to receive the homestead after the reading of the First Proclamation, with the stipulation that the farm owner shall receive the farm for all posterity and shall not be removed from their rästa XE "rästa"  home.  

October 24, 1811

Same Day:  Farmhand Anders Estensson of Lund had seconded to this Court 

his former guardian (farmer Jon Petersson of Edsåsen)

with the statement to him legal proceedings ordered ditty ready for guardianship.  

With appeal by legal proceedings be in advance of the parts personally, 

the plaintiffs in the case, 

assisted by Noble Captain Daniel Fredric Borin, 

Jon Pehrsson reports to him by his predecessor in guardianship Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Hålland 

and requested an accounting 

for the plaintiffs and his sister Anna Christina’s inheritance 

and won from this District Court Judgment on the 28th of March of last year 

on Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg to also present the invoice, 

deliver to Jon Pehrsson all guardianship touching deeds, 

but in regard thereto, 

to Edberg shortly thereon died, 

he had not received any more deeds other than the one 

excerpt of the District Court Record Book of October 1, 1792, 

touching occurred share between 

the underage children and their mother {Brita Andersdotter} and their stepfather {Anders Andersson} 

also for a promissory note of 41 Riksdaler 32 Species from Pehr Jönsson of Edsåsen, 

which amount of money the defendant demanded after being summoned to this Court,

in purpose to for means ditty ready and invoice.  

In accordance with the plaintiff’s demand that Jon Pehrsson, 

whose duty it had been to previously give a legal accounting 

of the estate of the deceased predecessor 

of the inheritance at issue and custody, 

must without consideration thereof he won some such, 

be responsible for that which belonged to the wards and for that which belonged to their father Esten Edberg. 

The farm was improperly sold against the defendant’s wishes, 

so he had not neglected his duty
 to ask for clarity from the predecessor 

but he has not received additional means or deeds than disrupted 

is not known to some larger responsibility’s obligation binding

The division is Proclaimed in Court watch.

The following is the Court Judgment in the case filed by the children of Esten Edberg against their former guardian Jon Pehrsson.  They alleged that he had not handled their inheritance rights properly.

On October 26, it was ordered, according to 23 Chapter 4 of the Jurisdictional Inheritance Laws, that the District Court must enjoin the defendant, Jon Pehrsson, to deliver to the plaintiffs within one month hereafter a proper invoice of their inheritance items accompanied with all of the associated hearing deeds and the inheritance money which belonged to Anders Estensson and to which the plaintiffs are due within night and year.

However, it comments that in order to be made liable 

for also fulfilling this claim 

in consideration of custodial administration, 

which up to now he can find him justified in remaining. 

It was undertaken by the farmer Jon Pehrsson of Edsåsen 

to be made guardian for the children of deceased farmer Esten Edberg, 

for his predecessor in guardianship.  

The tenant living on this place, Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Häland,

concurred legal proceedings concerning report 

for the children’s inheritance documents delivering and disbursing the remaining money.  

The plaintiffs appeared in Court, but the defendant was found without blame, 

although legally brought an action, 

according to what juror
 Sven Henricsson of Edsåsen had certified.

The plaintiffs said they had not found 

other deeds done by Pehr 

which know to investigate the correct inheritance amount, 

than the following unclear as called for in the guardian invoice.  

Since the plaintiffs cannot prove the correct amount of the inheritance in the summer mountain pasture before they had received the deeds on which they established these amounts, he {Sven Henricsson?} stated that the plaintiffs must be enjoined from him {Jon Pehrsson?} and leave everything as it was in the guardianship hearing papers.  

After him was left compensation. 

(39}

The following is a recording of the minutes of this case:
Judgment
The defendant Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, who defaulted from this District Court Session without blame 

comes constantly 12 Chapter 2§ R B
 that therefore 32 Riksdaler, 

and the District Court examines with stood of 23 Chapter 2§ A B
 

in equitable Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson is enjoined, 

that within 2 months or 60 days after receiving this Judgment 

receives evidence portion, 

with 10 Riksdaler from him leave and the plaintiffs, 

for receipt deliver all the deeds 

that concern his guardianship and prove how much the children have inherited.  

Afterward, Jon Persson shall study all of it.  In case he finds any corrections, the District Court demands that he should send in his comments and his final statement written in black and white, and present it at the next District Court Session during the second stage of the legal proceedings.  

On that occasion, Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, 

with the person previously mentioned {_________________?}, 

shall myself or through my representative 

him discontinue: 

If the king is willing afterward legal and composition pursuant to opinion inform, 

no remarks should on the plaintiffs side upon, 

such witnesses should be made known, 

which for Jon Persson, convened, left   

Establish a custodial accounting 

for renewed concerning the guardianship 

he has and now delivered their confidence 

as the guardian {Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg of Edsäsen} for the children of deceased {Esten Edberg}, son {Anders} and daughter {Anna Stina}.  

(40)
Calculated in Edsåsen on February 20, 1808

	Expenses
	
	
	

	February 20, 1783 was handed in and was exposed annual interest on two-thirds of the purchase amount for the Böle farm in Edsäsen come in annual interest to December 20 1802, which is 9 years at 5 percent
	10
	Rd
	

	February 20, 1802 again exposed on annual interest above named guardian, A retained total
	32
	Rd
	

	Annual interest from February 20, 1802 to February 20, 1808 which is 8 years at 5 percent
	41.
	20
	Rd


Cash
Rd
Sp
RP
October 1, 1791 redeemed guardian the report
12
10

a jointly Recorded Minutes
8
10

Map
 
10

10 years of annual interest earned on the money.
11
3
33.9

Payment to Jon Hindricsson of Hållan for 

holding the auction on the farm

16

Annual interest for the year 1802
 
 8

The inconvenience of a day of auction cost to Dufved and 

attendance at auction in farm Edsåsen

4

Total of Cash Retained
32
17
11


Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg


Account

1807:  On the mother’s request in Dufved to listen to 

by 2nd days February 20, 1808 my remaining debt of  41.4.11

Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Edberg

On September 15, 1791, an Estate Inventory was conducted after the past Nunu XE "Nunu"  month with the death of farmer Esten Edberg.  

He left his widow {Brita Andersdotter} behind him with two small children, son {Anders Estensson} and daughter {Anna Stina Estensdotter}. 

The following is a record of the property that was given up by his widow {Brita Andersdotter}:

The widow’s debts


To 
Erik Ersson of Ottsjö
16.32 



“

Bookkeeper Noraeus
5.16 



“

Olof Lars widow of Edsåsen
24 



“

Olof Pärson of Edsåsen
24 



“

Anders Olsson of Wästgård
24 
  


“

Mr. Capit Berger
32  


“

Esten Ersson of Dahlen
21.4



“

Olof Andersson of Björnänge
 6 



“

Erik Trygg of Edsåsen
4 



“

Parish Priest Söderberg
8 



"

Lars Ersson of Stamgärde
8 

25.  7.4

Claims

From Jöns Pärsson of Högen
16 



“

Nils Nilsson of Medstugan
 4 



“

Jonas Jakobsson of Lien
 4 
 


“

Olof Hemmingsson of Ottsjö
5.4 



“

Nils Estensson of Ottsjö
 4   

33.4

The widow’s assets

Cattle


1 

cow for
3.16



2 
ea 
last years calves for 1 1/3 Riksdaler
2.32



1 

yearling
 
32



6 
ea
big sheep for 16 Species
2.



4 
ea
small sheep for 8 Species
 
32



5 
ea
goats on 20 Species
2.4



2  
ea
risbit XE "risbit"  rams for 24 Species
1



4 
ea
young cattle for 4 Species
   
16  
12.36

Books:



1 

Little Bible for
 
24





Pettersson’s Collection of Sermons
1





Another Bible
 
24



1 

Danish Collection of Sermons
 
8



1 

Hymn Book
  
  8 
2.16

Men’s Clothes



1 

brown homespun coat
1



1 

brown homespun waist coat
2



1 

men’s overcoat by press homespun
 
32





old frontispiece with a velvet vest
  
  16 






4

42.44.8


1 

black cloth jacket
1



1 
” 
broken seam vest to is turned
 
16



1 

light blue vest
 
24




“ 
trousers with linen lining
 
24



1 
pr
old black patched trousers
 
8



1 

old brown homespun trousers
 
4



1 

red waistcoat of soft woven fabric with glass buttons
 
20



1 

white rabbit skin sweater worn out
 
12



1 

broken seam vest and jacket
 
32



1 

gray homespun jacket
 
16



1 

old blue men’s overcoat and brown vest
 
24



1
pr 
old yarn stockings and wool stockings
 
20



1
pr 
gray wool stockings
 
16



1 

red felt Chapter
 
8



1  

sheep skin with a red top
 
4





material for 1 pr of fleece stitches
 
8



1 

night coat with short sleeves and ruffles






and 1 night coat of cotton cloth
  
24



1 

old hair purse and black hat for
 
 8  
10.28

Bedding



1 

down feather bed with an old slip case
1



1 

cushion with “ “
 
12



1 

calfskin pillow with a small amount of down
 
8



1 

sheepskin rug without cover
 
32



1 

hair cut skin rug with cover
 
24
2.28

Cooking Containers


1 

large pot
1



1 

small copper kettle by 3 mkr XE "mkr"  a 5 s 5 r
 
16



1 

soapstone kettle broken
 
4



1 

soapstone panhandle 
 
2  
1.22

Wooden Containers and Misc XE "Misc" .



3 
ea 
tea plate of 5 4 Rune Pieces
 
16



1 

tin bowl 1 stone bowl, 2 ea the same bowls and a stone numerous
 
8



3 
ea 
wooden plate for
 
1



1 

large chest with a broken lock
1



1 

small chest without a lock
 
8



1 

new box with smith work

16


1 

little sewing box
 
8


1 

new cupboard with a lock and hinges

24



2 
ea
brown chairs

16



1 

milk barrel, a tub and old bucket for

16



1 

bucket with a drain
 
 2



4 
ea 
old pail with a lid, a stretcher and iron
 
8



4 
ea 
milk trough and 2 bowls
 
6





baking bowls into all
 
8





roasting cloth fins nothing but an 




old spinning wheel  for 
  
8  
4.1

Metal works



1 

iron plow and rope for
 
14



2 
ea 
cutting axes and a sheathed broad axe for
 
18


3 
ea 
old broken lj_r XE "lj_r" 
 
2



3 
ea 
pitchfork, a stone fork and spade for
 
12



1 

pack saddle tree
 
8



1 

grindstone without ridges and a hand mill for
 
40



1
pr 
wool carding combs
 
8 
 2.  4   

Subtotal


63.31.8

Miscellaneous



3 
ea 
hairy calfskins for 2 Species each
 
6



1 

old sifter and coarse sieve
 
4



1 

tin bowl, tailor’s spike and press iron
 
18



1 

Wall clock without lining
 
32



1 

trough or box with scrap iron
 
2





any uncooked scattered yarn for
  
12



2
ea
glass bottles
 
4.



1 

saw and oxplane XE "oxplane" 

4.



5 

mkr XE "mkr"  to
 
26.



2 

small and 1 large bell
 
8.


Receive a summer leaving of butter and cheese
 
40.


This year’s harvest for the farm in Böle:

26.32
Total



93.27.8

After the outstanding debts of 25 Riksdaler 7 Species and 4 Rune Pieces are deducted, 

she keeps the remaining amount of 68 Riksdaler 20 Species 4 Rune Pieces, out of which the poor share is paid.  Subsequently, the poor share is paid with 12 Species, to be relieved of it.



Olof Persson of Edsåsen

it is therefore properly given to everyone 

and nothing is intentionally withheld or left out from anyone 

and acknowledged as certified 






Johan Oldberg



Olof Jonsson of Stamgärde



Written and Estate Inventory Appraiser



Brita Andersdotter of Böle

Gunnar Essing

Table 8 (45}

Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 
	B4
	Gunnar Essing 
	B
	Feb 17, 1754
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 14, 1781
	
	

	S
	Carin Persdotter Bergström
	B
	July 29, 1761
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 18, 1833
	
	

	C1
	Brita Essing
	B
	July 2, 1782
	Huså
	

	Table 28
	
	D
	Sep 22, 1874
	Offerdal
	

	C2
	Agnes Essing
	B
	Jan 13, 1787
	Huså
	

	Table 29
	
	D
	Feb 5, 1757
	Vera
	

	C3
	Catarina Essing
	B
	Sep 3, 1789
	Sandnäset
	

	Table 30
	
	D
	Feb 5, 1863
	
	

	C4
	Anders Essing
	B
	Aug 20, 1791
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 6, 1792
	
	

	C5
	Per Essing
	B
	Apr 28, 1793
	
	

	Table 31
	
	D
	July 20, 1861
	Sandnäset
	

	C6
	Ingeborg Essing
	B
	Dec 15, 1795
	
	

	Table 32
	
	D
	May 31, 1878
	
	

	C7
	Magnus Essing
	B
	Mar 12, 1798
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 16, 1801
	
	


Gunnar worked as a Miner in Huså, and lived with his family on Company Farm No. 17 and Company Farm No. 31. 

Company Farm No. 17 is presently Grönblad’s "Vicarage".  He lived there for several years.
Later, he purchased a new homestead in Sandnäsets from his uncle Nils's wife {Brita Andersdotter} and moved there.  See table 3.

On July 2, 1781, the following Estate Inventory was conducted on Company Farm No. _____ in the Village of Husån that was occupied by Gunnar Essing that year and then taken over by Hindrick Flor:

1. A new cottage with a porch and 2 windows built by the Copper Mining Company in 1777 in good condition with a firm bed, table, dish shelves _________ and a baking oven and iron spikes to secure the logs and with only one broken window pane.  The roof has been replaced on the cottage by the chimney.

2. A broken down granary in the ground that should be straightened up.

3. A barn with rotten roof ridges and lost floor repairs.

4. An old summer barn with half a floor and it lacks a roof.

5. Fenced 24 fathoms rope fenced pasture and 41 fathoms of good fenced pasture of which the tenant receives the benefits 36 dr XE "dr"  over 5: a 9:
6. The remaining fields is fenced farm of farm repairable

7. Newly broken land with serviceable cabbage
 land 2/3rd of a mälling 3

8. Of farm to acquired _________

26 rows with pole is sufficient

Have the benefit of from Company Farm No. 16 __________

Note: There I {Inger Qvarnström} have become stuck, and it is difficult to decipher what was written.

This Estate Inventory was likely made before Gunnar Essing moved to Sandnäset and it probably applies to Company Farm No. 31.

Carin married Göran Carlsson on June 7, 1805.  He was born in 1761 in Mörviken, Åre and died on December 18, 1840.  He was a schoolmaster and farmer.  I also want to add that Carin was the daughter of Per Bergström, who also was a homesteader in Djupsjön.

I {Inger Qvarnström} also want to mention two other farms that Gunnar Essing lived on.

Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Husån

Smith worker Göran Maklös in about the year 1747 first inhabited this farm.  The cropland was utilized for 9 years afterwards.  The buildings were similar to the other farms.

Later it was worked together by Philip Wall and Johan Starkberg for 18 years, after which they moved over the border to Norway.  

After that, Lars Larsson (Younger} used the farm for 9 years, who also moved to Norway later.

After that, Gunnar Essing lived on it for 2 years, Olof Vesterberg for 1 year, then it was used as the Huså official residence for 16 or 17 years.  

The infields and the outlying haymaking were at the same time for this in every case
.  

In 1804 it was taken over by the present tenant, Anders Bergström.  
The Copper Mining Company built a new house there for himself later
.  

Which at the same time undertook clearance enlargement and building.  

In 1779 gave 5 fjerd XE "fjerd" 
 planting seed, 32 shocks of covered grain.  

This farm can feed 1 colt, 2 calves, 4 lambs, and 4 goats during the year. 

Company Farm No. 7 in the Village of Huså

Miner Anton Antonsson first occupied it in 1755.  He received the usual grant of 120 Riksdaler for new homestead buildings.  

The cottage had 2 pairs of windows, 

14 sp fern, snarning XE "snarning" 
, carpenter work and smith work.  

Altogether, it was appraised at 34 Riksdaler 4 species.  

He lived on it for 12 years, then Eric Skutberg lived on it for 5 years, then Smelter Eric Johansson Hyttsten lived on it for 4 years.   

Later it was occupied in order by:  

· Gunnar Essing

· Olof Frank

· Company Foreman Henrik Andreas Floor

· Company Sheriff Anders Oldberg

· Janken Moverare

· Company Inspector Erik Axis Sparrman 

· Jon Prästberg

until the current tenant Pehr Höger 

that same year of 1804 took over the 

Company clearance and enlargement.  

This farm can feed 2 cows, 1 calf, 4 sheep and 4 goats 

and in 1779 2 fjerd XE "fjerd"  seed amount give 12 Rgl XE "Rgl"  of grain, demands.

Photograph (47)

This is a photograph of Sandnäset.  It was also called Äsingen.  It was taken in 1928 by the Dean, Gösta Ullberg.  

At the top left is the old barn.  The red cottage next to it is the old cottage.  

The milk shed where they made cheese is in front of and to the left of the old cow barn.  

In front of and to the left of the milk shed is a summer cottage
.  

Approximately in the middle of the photograph is the barn that belongs to the lower farm.  Behind it you can just barely see a small part of the shed.  The manor house for the lower farm
 is at the far right.

October 1

The Same Day

A written contract was shown in the District Court concerning one of the new Royal Government Homesteads in the Village of Sandnäs.  It was read word for word as follows:

I {Brita Andersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to the new Royal Government Homestead located in the Village of Sandnäset in uppermost Kall Parish near Anjan and consisting of 1 acre to Company Worker Gunnar Essing for ten (10) Riksdaler 3 Species.

Gunnar Essing had already bought the ownership rights of my daughter {Agnis Nilsdotter} before she moved to Norway.  

It is bought with the stipulation that 4 percent annual interest shall be earned on this purchase amount for as long as it is unpaid and I shall hold the mortgage to this farm until the total amount is paid in pure gold
. 

I shall also receive the following Reserved Rights each year:

· One (1) maling
 of cropland

· Feed for 1 cow and 5 sheep or goats.

I {Gunnar Essing} hereby attest complete satisfaction and I promise to fulfill these conditions to Brita Andersdotter and I assure completion of the payment.


Kall on September 25, 1790



Brita Andersdotter 







Gunnar Essing

The credibility of this agreement is witnessed by:



Salomon Jonsson of Konäs 


(48}

Anders Jacobsson of Sellsved (Juror)

The Royal Court Judgment rules that Gunnar Essing must be allowed as the tenant on the new homestead in Sandnäset, Kall Parish and that 

the undersigned goes in complete trust, 

that he shall fulfill his obligation to the Royal Government.

Maths Ersson of Konäs, 

Jacob Bengtsson of Sellsved 

this association was, 

with reading before the District Court 

commanded by the present witness, Juror Salomon Jonsson, 

who certified that Maths Ericsson and Jacob Bengtsson preceding trust 

for entry to the settler is properly approved and signed, 

at which 

the current Assembly of County Citizens also certified Essing’s good character and fitness, 

to the new Royal Government Homesteads impend, 

this proof by the District Court Recorded Minutes should on request be informed, 

together with to agreement should, 

to receive highly favorable approval, 

to the Honorable County Governor of the County and Commander Bunge is respectfully rendered.

April 2.

Same Day.  

After the death of Göran Carlsson of Sandnäset, his estate was taken to District Court for legal probate and the following testimony of his verbal orders to leave his property to Pehr Gunnarsson were entered:

The undersigned had occasion to frequently be in the company of Göran Carlsson of Sandnäset during his lifetime.  Many times we heard him say that his stepson {Pehr Gunnarsson} should inherit all of the property that is left after his death if Providence should call him.  

He was laying on his sickbed and was with those of us who knew him since childhood and he remembered with sufficient clarity what he had said earlier about his inheritance request.

He said again that his last and final wish was that Pehr Gunnarsson and no one else should inherit all of the property that is left after his death by whatever name and condition it might be in.  

Göran Carlsson said this with a sound mind and obvious awareness on all occasions so that  we are able to confirm this under Oath.  


February 9, 1841



Mårten Olsson of Gräsjön 



Pehr Hindriksson of Strådalen 

Mårten Olsson and Pehr Hindriksson signed their (Signature Mark) in their own handwriting.


Affirmed: 
L.  Muréen 



Anders Ersson of Kohlåsen (Jurors)

(49)

On October 2, 1841, Staffan Mårtensson of Äng together with the current tenant Pehr Hindriksson and Company Worker Johan Henrik Wiksten were requested to state under oath and testify about the oral testimony of the deceased Göran Carlsson for the benefit of Pehr Gunnarsson.  

Since a challenge against Pehr Hindriksson and Johan Henrik Wiksten was not found or noted, 

which wanted to of the District Court allow their making also with open rights for the or their that.  

The evidence (District Court) moves that, afterwards, 

when a dispute arises, 

his challenge and reminders for the same, 

the witnesses and their statements are permitted to show up, 

after which Pehr Hindriksson and Johan Henrik Wiksten took the oath of witness.  

They said that they were witnesses 

one and one-half (1½)   weeks before Göran Carlsson’s death 

on an occasion when they were with him 

and at that same time heard him recommend 

that after his death Pehr Gunnarsson should have all his property, 

both loose and fixed without exception.  

Göran Carlsson had also requested 

that the witnesses hear 

and after his death are to give evidence of this oral testimony.  

They added that Göran Carlsson had been of a sound mind on this occasion and that he was definitely not prevailed upon or forced to provide this testimony.  

Pehr Gunnarsson and his wife were present as well to give evidence 

of testimony heard without there of any say 

also took Pehr Henriksson on his oath truth by that written certificate 

he and Mårten Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Gråsjön on February 9th of this year 

gave 

and which is found introduced in the Court Records for April 2nd of the same year, 

with the change there in that witnesses can not remind him half on the same time with Mårten Ol XE "Ol" ofsson heard Göran Carlsson there in oral testimony.  

After the reading and approval of this, 

should print out at this hearing the witness oath of Pehr Gunnarsson upon request be notified.
  

From Undersåker District Court Records for 1841

Nils Essing

Table 9 (50)

Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B5
	Nils Essing
	B
	Oct 23, 1756 
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 10, 1835 
	Sunne

	
	
	M
	Nov 6, 1785
	

	S
	Ingeborg Olofsdotter
	B
	1752
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 10, 1835
	Sunne

	C1
	Brita Essing
	B
	June 9, 1788
	

	Table 33
	
	D
	1851
	Åre

	C2
	Gertrud Essing
	B
	Nov 16, 1789
	

	Table 34
	
	D
	Feb 1790
	

	C3
	Anders Essing
	B
	Jan 4, 1792
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 25, 1853 
	Sunne


Inger’s note on Nils Essing:  He was a Company Worker in Huså and in 1812 he moved to Måläng in Sunne Parish.
On January 9, 1812 an Estate Inventory and Appraisal was conducted on Company Farm No. 27 in the Village of Husån, under the direction of Major Lorich.  

It was at the request of the tenant {Nils Essing}, who currently lived on this farm.  

It was occupied in order by:

· first by the now deceased Jonas Hedman

· then by the now deceased Eric Sullen

· then by Samuel Ridderberg

· then by  Jon Mahlberg of Gärde and Skutberg

· then by Joseph Bergqvist  

· lastly by the Company Miner Nils Essing who took over this farm this farm in 1782 and is currently living on it  

The croplands and buildings maintained by the current tenant {Nils Essing} are found in the following condition:

1. An old cottage which prior or the Copper Mining Company built and by present the tenant with proper designation that a (färdstall
) stable.  It has 4 corners, 19 layers high
 13 alnars {26 feet} long and 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, with a porch, covered with boards, nailed and inner ceiling, with a decent floor, 2 windows, a fireplace, a baking oven, with ordinary accessories within and provided with a door on hinges.  Everything is decayed, and the shed has 2 cribs and space for 6 horses.  The porch in discarded with by fence of planks to kofva XE "kofva" 
  with a floor and a door on hinges.  It was regarded as having value and for that reason Nils Essing should transport it to cargo.  The tenant buildings and croplands are appraised at 10 Riksdaler

2. An old cottage that was purchased by Nils Essing of Kall and Sundet in 1791 and moved here that same year.  It has 4 corners, is 9 layers high, 12¾ alnars {25½  feet} long 10 square ref wide, covered with wood boards, which also make up the inner ceiling, moss-bark
 boards on the outer roof.  The cottage has a fireplace, a baking oven and iron spikes to secure the logs and windlass
 of iron, and weather boarding around the a fireplace.  The floor boards have recently been placed, under which is found a cellar pit with a hatch and an iron ring without hinges.  In the cottage there are 2 windows and wainscoting inside, which was taken from the previous cottage, and the other cottage  provided by Essing of which 1 pane is broken(1):  The cottage also has a table and chairs and benches with 2 seats, shelf for food bowls and a door on hinges, and 2 iron handles.  51  The walls are old and rotted, but the west side is dressed with un-planed boards, the roof needs repair, also the outside bridge, everything is old, however it can sometimes be used.  Appraised at 15 Riksdaler.  

3. An old upright shelter that was moved from Bergom in 1792.  It has 4 corners, 12 layers high, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 5½ alnars {11 feet} wide, covered with tree bark and roof, provided with a floor and a door, and a grain bin, with a 2-part door on hinges with a lock, key and hasp.  The walls and roof are in bad condition and everything is very old, however it can serve his purposes for a few more years, although snow and rain drifts in through all the corners and nooks.  Appraised at  5 Riksdaler. 

4. An old granary up by the old barn that was built by the Copper Mining Company.  It has  4 corners, 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, 9½ alnars {19 feet} wide, 8 layers high, covered with birch bark and common bark on the roof, a floor in the barn, and a room for seed.  Everything is old and rotten and is needs a new barn, because the previous tenant did not take care of it and repair it during his time that this one does. 

5. A barn built by the Copper Mining Company.  It has 4 corners with by skåt XE "skåt"  to the shed, 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, 7½ alnars {15 feet} wide, 8 layers high, covered with tree, common bark and birch bark on the roof, and provided with a floor and a door, none of it maintained, and which also the previous tenant to cargo since it is mismanaged.  It is appraised at 2 Riksdaler.

6. A barn built by the tenant.  It has four corners, 13 alnars {26 feet} long with discarded 11½ alnars {23 feet} wide and 11 layers high.  It is covered with tree, bark, moss and boards, provided with should and necessary furnishings within, and it has room enough for 5 cattle and 30 sheep or goats and a manger beside a crib for a horse.  The door is on hinges.  Although this house is not very old, it has roof ridges and stone mounds with many defects and in regard of this can only be appraised at 12 Riksdaler. 

7. A new barn that Essing built.  It has 4 corners, 6 layers high, 6½ alnars {13 feet} wide, 8½ alnars {17 feet} long with discarded covered with tree, common bark, birch bark and land, provided with 2 dry leaves and a baking oven, and a door on hinges, all working.  It appears to be worth six Riksdaler. 

8. The farm fences about the infield altogether covers 336 fathoms, of which 186 fathoms are in good condition, 140 fathoms of declining fenced pasture, 56 fathoms of broken down pasture about the woodlands.  It was observed by the inspectors that these farm fences Nils Essing has newly built only 60 fathoms and also named 56 about woodlands together 16 fathoms decent fenced pasture and was appraised at 1.39 Riksdaler 

9. A cane field
 A barn in good condition, of from which half in addition there is 1.24


Open land by the forest field

¼ maling


Good cabbage bottom field

½ maling


Large field east of the farm

2¼ malings


Total

3 malings

From which Essing without the cabbage fields broke up one-half (½) maling, appraised at five Riksdalers.  The inspectors found Nils Essing were cultivated for haymaking.  

On moss ground there were two loads.  

On Hvassnäsmarken
 5 loads were Montäkten XE "Montäkten" 
 in a mediocre year and 10 ditto.

This farm can feed three cows and 20 sheep or goats with the assistance of leaf covered hay and fir tree branches during the winter.  

5 cords of grain and 1 barrel of ground pears are planted each year.

In addition to the one-fourth (¼) of an acre of newly cultivated land on more places, at which time it appears able to harvest one load appraised at one Riksdaler.   

Total 47.15.

It was hereby examined, inspected, and Estate Inventory by Jurors Anders A. Bergström and Anders Ågren.  

Pehr Malmsten (who took over from the tenant Anders Essing)
From the Huså Bruks Arkiv.  {Huså Company Archives}

Photograph (52)

The manor house
 in Huså after restoration

Inger J. Qvarnström took this photograph in 1994.  

Anders Essing

Table 10 (53)

Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B6
	Anders Essing
	B
	Dec 25, 1758
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 18, 1789
	
	

	S
	Brita Ridderberg
	B
	Oct 24, 1772
	Mörsil
	Brita was the daughter of Johan Ridderberg

	
	
	D
	Mar 31, 1849
	Mörsil
	

	C1
	Anders Essing
	B
	Aug 29, 1790
	Huså
	

	Table 35
	
	D
	Dec 27, 1871
	Ström
	

	C2
	Johan Essing
	B
	Feb 6, 1791
	Kall
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 1, 1792
	
	

	C3
	Brita Essing
	B
	Jan 18, 1793
	Kall
	

	Table 36
	
	D
	Oct 30, 1856
	Föllinge
	

	C4
	Lisa Essing
	B
	Mar 14, 1795
	Undersåker
	

	Table 37
	
	D
	Oct 11, 1874
	Hallen
	

	C5
	Catarina Essing
	B
	Sep 14, 1796
	Mörsil
	

	Table 38
	
	D
	July 31, 1880
	Åre
	

	C6
	Johan Essing
	B
	May 14, 1798
	Mörsil
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 13, 1798
	
	

	C7
	Johan Essing
	B
	Aug 15, 1799
	Mörsil
	Johan took the name Lang as a specially trained soldier.

	Table 39
	
	D
	July 31, 1880
	Hallen
	


Anders Esssing (the Older B6) first lived in Huså and first worked as a Miner at the Copper Mining Company.  Later he was a Company Worker.  

He moved to Äggen in Mörsil later and became a farmer there.  

His widow lived for a time in Hålåsen in Hallen with Sven Nordlöv from Nordannälden, to whom she was engaged to be married.

They had two daughters.  Anna was born in 1805.  Karin was born in 1810 and died the same year.
Anders (the Younger C1) became a specially trained soldier and took the name Wäll.  He was a homesteader, card-maker, and farmer.  He became senile in his old age.
I found an article in the Mörsil Parish Chronicle on the Semlan Copper Smelting Company.  The article is called “Från Semlans storhetstid” {"From Semlan’s Time of Greatness”}.  It is interesting reading and something that we would all like to know more about.  I found it in Part 1 of 3 in the Parish Chronicle.

The following is an assessment of Company Farm No. 26 31 lived on by Anders Essing:

1. A cottage with an inner roof of boards, a fireplace in the cottage with a baking oven, logs and iron spikes to secure the logs, and well braced, table benches and a shelf, 1 pair of windows on the long side 3 panes in height and in width, 1 pair of windows on the east side, 4 panes high and 3 in width, all complete and without defect, a door for the cottage and a door for the porch.  A barn without an inner roof or windows.  Roof of good sawed boards. 

2. An old cottage west of the new and beside the hay barn.  It has a board roof

3. A barn covered with common bark and birch bark and the on with boards.  The roof is in good condition but the walls are faulty, förning XE "förning" 
 also has a fertilizer room.

4. A barn with a board roof.  The barn is leak-free, but the east corner has taken on a small amount of rot. 

5. A barn east of the cottage that is equipped for one horse.  The walls are in good condition.  The inner roof is damaged on the west side and should be repaired. 

6. A log shelter south of the farm.  It has no value.  The roof was covered with birch bark but the wood is now gone, so that the roof is deficient.  A new wood roof should be put on so that this building can remain for a few more years.  The farm has 3½ malings of cultivated land.

Within this fence there are five loads, partly of hay and partly of green feed.

311 fathoms of enclosed fenced pasture.  A small portion of it is acceptable, but the bigger part of it is in bad condition.  

Both log staked and fence.  

Peculiarly is revised pasture between Malmsten and Lans XE "Lans"  the 44 fathoms which is between Grönlund, is also due.

On October 9, 1811, an Estate Inventory was conducted on Company Farm No. ___ in the Village of Eggern, Mörsill Parish, belonging to the Gustaf and Carlsberg Copper Mining Company.  

After the death of Anders Essing in 1808, this farm was bought and is now owned by Benjamin Teger.  The following is the record of it:

The visitor
 Eric Corling purchased this farm on February 18, 1764 for 400 Riksdalers.  

and for that reason it was too late, 
the Copper Mining Company and almost immediately becomes united with the Semelå Official residence.

The first tenant was Anders Essing, who was first obligated to build a necessary house that was missing and to put the homestead in order.  For fulfilling this obligation, he should be released in 4 years time from the tenant requirement to work
.  

After his death, the homestead reverted back to Semelå Official Residence.  After that, the current tenant {Benjamin Teger} lived on it.

1. An old cottage 14 alnars {28 feet} long by 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 14 layers high with 6 corners.  It has 1 room and a porch, with a fireplace and a baking oven, provided with iron support for the logs, a floor in the cottage house and porch, an inner roof of grooved boards in the cottage and room, an outer roof covered with boards, 1 old window with lead string, a pair of new windows of 15 panes, the Copper Mining Company. 

2. A barn 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, 9 layers high.  It has a fireplace and within and accessories, somewhat old but usable.

3. A forage building, opposite against the barn with swale
 between 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 9½ alnars {19 feet} wide, 9 layers high, old.  It has a roof of bark and boards.

4. A bathing house, very old.  It has a baking oven 8 alnars {16 feet} long with swale, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide, and 6 layers high.  It has dry leaves, a door with hinges and it is covered with bark and sod
.  

5. A stable, built in 1810 by Benjamin Teger with a lean
, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 13 layers high.  It has an intermediate floor of boards, room for 2 horses.  It has a hayloft on the upper floor and is covered with bark.  The tenant built a roof of boards. 

6. A log shelter, built this year with unpainted and unfinished Theger and furnishings within which there is a cellar and a door.  It was 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide, 13 layers high.  Roof of boards.

Repairs have been made on the barn and feed shed and on the cottage and house on the floor and roof.  

The boat house can still be repaired, although it is in bad condition and would be difficult to use in its existing condition.

The open field is a large field of 5 malings.

Röståkern 1¼  mälings
 
Åråkern XE "Åråkern" 
 field of 3½ acres.

The latter was overgrown but the tenant was told to keep it as open land.

2 old hay barns in the infields.

A new hay barn built by Theger


Hay within the infields
12 
loads


In Djupmyran {Djup Swamp}
1 
load


Stormyran {Stor Swamp} and Drolet XE "Drolet" 
1 
load


On the pasture and 1 portion in Drolet XE "Drolet" 
1 
the pasture


Myckelgårdwallen
2 
loads


from Drangeln Stomkjel
1 
load


The fertile sections
1 
load



18 
loads

A barn at Stonkjälwallen

This farm can feed one-half (½) of a horse, 2 cows, 10 sheep or goats.  

The seed amount 6 quarters
 harvest each year, 

and in a good year 4 grain list on the farm fences on this farm
.  

See page 91 of the Assessor’s Book.

Appraised and inventoried as hereby affirmed by:


Lars Olsson of Bye 


Elias Larsson of Eggen

(55)
Benjamin Theger (Current Tenant)

Karin Essing

Table 11 (56)

Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B7
	Karin Essing 
	B
	Mar 1761
	
	Karin lived in Totten and then later in Wik and 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Björnänge.

	
	
	M
	Jan 24, 1787
	
	

	S1
	Lars Nilsson 
	B
	1744
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 11, 1808
	
	

	C1
	Nils Larsson 
	B
	Sep 14, 1788 
	
	

	Table 40
	
	D
	Oct 16,1856 
	Wikberg
	

	C2
	Anders Larsson 
	B
	Feb 28, 1792 
	
	

	Table 41
	
	D
	Feb 13, 1829
	
	

	C3
	Sven Larsson 
	B
	Mar 23, 1795 
	
	

	Table 42
	
	D
	Nov 27, 1846 
	Wikberg
	

	C4
	Annica Larsdotter 
	B
	Nov 9, 1799 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 15, 1848 
	Björnänge
	

	C5
	Magnus Larsson 
	B
	July 31, 1803
	
	

	Table 43
	
	D
	Apr 12, 1888 
	Kall
	

	
	
	M
	1809
	
	There were no 

	S2
	Olof Salomonsson 
	B
	1759
	from  Sulviken, Kall
	children in this

	
	
	D
	June 11, 1835
	
	marriage.


Berg Parish Juror Anders Bergström of Husån legally recorded the following agreement in which he asked for a mortgage on Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge.  This farm consisted of 1 acre.  
This mortgage was to serve as security from farmer Olof Salomonsson of Björnänge and Wik who wants to borrow 125 Riksdaler.  Annual interest of 5 percent was offered.  

Proof of this was given by the public reading of the following promissory note:

From this loan I have received a total amount of one hundred twenty five (125) Riksdaler in currency from Berg Parish Juror Anders Bergström in Husån for five (5) percent annual interest and with Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge, Ähre Parish as security.  

I give a mortgage on this farm to Hindrick Nilssons
 of Skalstugan.  This mortgage was last renewed at the Spring Court Session of 1808 in Undersåker District Court.

I also give Bergström permission to request a mortgage at the next Court Session or at any other time he pleases, in his name, on this farm, for the prescribed total, 

for restorations of Hindrik Nilsson’s other mortgage, which is now left in his hands and which is hereby notarized and certified.  


Husån on October 30, 1809



Olof Salomonsson of Björnänge and Wik

(56)
Witness: 
Lars L.  Berg 



Johan Hyttsten

Then the District Court asked for written proof of the ownership rights of Olof Salomonsson to this promise farm.  

He presented the Title Deed of February 9, 1792, by which it is learned that the now deceased farmer {Lars Nilsson of Björnänge} purchased this farm and made a stipulation
 that was certified by a Juror.

This stipulation was that with his death it was to be divided between his widow {Karin Andersdotter} who received one-third of the ownership rights as her widow’s share and the other children who received the other two-thirds as their inheritance share.

It must then be legally concluded that Olof Salomonsson does not own any part of it.  

However, upon further inquiry, the Juror also discovered that the latter party had married the widow of Lars Nilsson after she had obtained a mortgage on her share of the widow rights.  

Olof Salomonsson did not know this.  He thought that he was going to be the owner and manager of the entire farm.

Because of that, he had married Karin Andersdotter for the simple-minded reason that he thought he would be entitled to the written farm promise there.  (57)

Release

It has now been shown and proven that the debtor’s widow Karin Andersdotter is the owner of 1/3 of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge and that she approved and entered into this mortgage in the Jurors presence.

Therefore, the District Court examines support from Chapter 7 for the equitable mortgage on this farm partition as security for this total amount of 125 Riksdaler and she offered annual interest payments on it.  

From Undersäker District Court AI: 67

Before Karin and Olof married, they wrote the following marriage contract that was entered into the Minutes of the District Court on October 27, 1809:

Farmhand Olof Salomonsson from the Village of Sulviken and Kall Parish hereby affirms that the marriage to the surviving widow {Karin Andersdotter} of farmer Lars Nilsson of Vik and Åre Parish will begin and continue with free choice and consent.

This contract is hereby completed between {Karin Andersdotter} and her future husband {Olof Salomonsson} and with Estate Guardian Hindrik Nilsson of Skalstuga and Pehr Nilsson of Totten that Olof Salomonsson shall take all of the children from the widow’s first marriage as his own children.  

Daughter Anna Larsdotter was reasonable
 and had suffered a stroke, so the present and future farm provisions became necessary for her source of revenue, food, shelter, and clothing.

Olof Salomonsson is to take care of these children with complete fatherly care and bring them up until they are able to feed and care for themselves.  They are to behave him as kind children.  

If God should bless this second marriage with further children, they shall also have the same ownership rights to the farm and property as the other children.  

Otherwise our joint diligence and care as a married couple for the children 

shall be gainful using all discretion and power, 

annual interest and principle payments.

Olof Salomonsson shall receive the following Reserved Rights because of his diligence and hard work and his promissory note to pay the farm’s debts: 

· One (1) maling of cropland and well cultivated land

· Two (2) sheep or goats and their offspring

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· Firewood and heat



Olof Salomonsson of Sulviken, 



Karin Andersdotter of Vik, 



Contrahenter XE "Contrahenter"  Pehr Nilsson of Totten, 



Hindrik Nilsson of Skalstuga (Guardian)

(58)
Witness: 
Lars Eric Petri Festin Communister XE "Communister" 



Jonas Mårtensson of Bräcke Parish

After the reading of this was acknowledged before the District Court by Olof Salomonsson, present in his own person, it was made clear that he {Olof Salomonsson} and Karin Andersdotter were not considered to be married by everyone, since there had not first been the proper church announcements of a planned marriage between them.

The following is a description of the fields on this farm:

2 barrels of grain can be seeded on the farm each year; half in fallow and half in straw.

However, the fields are poor and meager and appear to need fertilizer.

The farm can feed approximately 1 horse, 5 cows, 2 calves, and 20 sheep or goats each year.

3 able-bodied people are required for farm care and harvest.

Five children survive the deceased Lars Nilsson of Björnänge:  son Nils 26 years old, Anders 23 years old, Swen 20 years old, Magnus 12 years old and daughter Anika 16 years old.

As the sons contemplate the drawing of lots for the homestead, 

which was written in such a way that the mentally incapable daughter Anika’s paltry permission, 

who is completely gone from her senses and afflicted to the extent that she needs constant care and supervision so she does not perish.  

Therefore, she shall receive care for the remainder of her lifetime by having ownership and possession rights to this farm.

The farm is sold with all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or that can be legally obtained in the future for twelve hundred fifty (1,250) Riksdaler.  

This purchase amount goes first to pay the farm debts and the remainder shall be paid to the sons when it is received.

The mother {Karin Andersdotter} shall retain the following Reserved Rights as the Seller of the farm:

· Feed and fodder for a cow and 3 sheep or goats each year

· the exception is that the mother is to keep the manor house above the field of grain 

· approximately for 1 load of hay

· and the grain field above the hay strip which is found within the fence around Böles field, 

· this manor house shall house the mother while she is able to work.

· One maling of cropland that is half planted in fallow and half planted in straw

· Lodging on the farm

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· A ride for errands as necessary

is reserved, 

provided 

Olof Salmonsson of Björnänge 6 years later entered into marriage with Karin Andersdotter of Björnänge and later kept and used the farm, 

and in the household establishment submitted what he had in property, 

so taken in custody in the greatest humility 

that which the Highly Honored District Court decreed that Reserved Rights advantages could be granted him by the authorization of the District Court.


Present sons:
Nils Larsson



Anders Larsson



guardian for underage son {Nils Jönsson of Medstugan}

(59)
Assessors and Estate Inventory Appraisers




Johan Israel Noreus





Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hamre




Nils Andersson of Swedje


On October 9, 1815 an Estate Inventory was conducted by the undersigned {______________} on Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Biörnänge consisting of 1 acre of land.  

Farmer {Olof Salomonsson of Björnänge} had lived on it for a few years and used it as the stepfather of the children of the now deceased Lars Nilssons of Björnänge.

The assessment found the following:

· An old cottage with a fireplace and a baking oven, 2 pairs of windows.  It has a bed and bedroom cabinet and a table and chairs.  Everything is old and flimsy and needs repairs before it can be used.

· The porch beside the cottage is also in poor condition.  Olof Salmonsson built a winter barn 9½ alnars {19 feet} long by 11 alnars {22 feet} wide by 13 layers high.  It has a floor.  The inside is in good condition, but the roof is in bad condition.

· Olof Salmonsson has repaired the roof on the barn after the last assessment so that in the same year it is in reasonably good condition.  

· The granary has repairable walls but the roof is completely worn out and has needed a new one for several years.

· The stable together with the barn in 1 room in the shed built for 2 horses.  It has reasonable walls and interior, but the roof is in bad condition.  
Olof Salmonsson built a new floor in the shed during the time he lived on the farm.

· Barn stables and a granary.  The logs are in poor condition and it has rotting walls, roof and floor, so that it can be used for very little until it is repaired.  

· A shelter in usable condition

· A woodshed and barn with decay.  

· A hay barn in Frönäset with a roof in bad condition.

· 2 hay barns in Böle.  Olof Salmonsson repaired one of them by replacing the roof.

· A hay barn in Humulsänget and a barn in Nilsmyran {Nils Swamp}.  They have decent walls but the roofs are in bad condition.  

· One half of the ownership rights to a log barn and milk shed in the summer mountain pasture south of the lake.  It has decent walls but the roof is in poor condition.

· A summer mountain pasture barn in Bowallen in good condition 
except that the roof is in poor condition.  However, Olof Salmonsson has recently built the floor.

· Olof Salmonsson has a mill, of new and old times built on a brook near the farm.

· 552 fathoms good farm fences on several places around the fields

· 223 fathoms of bad condition farm fences or one-half (½) fenced pasture around land and meadow.  

Agnes Essing

Table 12 (60)

Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B8
	Agnes Essing 
	B
	Mar 12, 1764 
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 6, 1791 
	
	

	S
	Olof Grönlund
	B
	Aug 11, 1763 
	Huså
	Olof lived in Huså.  He was a Miner.

	
	
	D
	July 9, 1839
	
	

	C1
	Ingeborg Grönlund 
	B
	Mar 29, 1785 
	
	Since she was born before the marriage, I {Inger Qvarnström} do not know for sure if she was Agnes’ daughter from a previous marriage or if she was their common daughter.

	
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1847 
	Huså
	

	C2
	Erik Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 8, 1792 
	
	

	Table 44
	
	D
	Apr 25, 1871
	
	

	C3
	Brita Grönlund 
	B
	July 7, 1794 
	
	

	Table 45
	
	D
	Aug 3, 1871
	
	

	C4
	Anna Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 6, 1799 
	
	

	Table 46
	
	D
	Jan 18, 1886
	
	

	C5
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Feb 10, 1803 
	
	

	Table 47
	
	D
	Dec 24, 1889
	
	

	C6
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 2, 1806 
	
	

	Table 48
	
	D
	Feb 11, 1877
	
	

	C7
	Emfrid Grönlund 
	B
	July 30, 1809 
	
	I {Inger Qvarnström} have found no information on Emfrid.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Olof and Agnes lived on Company Farm No. 21 in the Village of Huså.  

Olof’s father Erik was the first to clear the land on Company Farm No. 22 of branches and roots.  

Later Erik owned it together with Olof until 1792 and then Olof became the lone tenant.

On September 28, 1810, an assessment was conducted on Company Farm No. 21 in the Village of Husån, which was first built by deceased Miner Eric Grönlund.  

It was cultivated and was lived on (who built a fence in the old cow pasture}.  

In 1792, this farm was taken over by the son {Olof Grönlund} who was now working as a Miner.  There was no assessment or examination of the deceased Eric Grönlund’s buildings and croplands, which now belong to the farm tenant Olof Grönlund.  It is recorded as follows
:

Photograph (61)

The following is a record of Company Farm No. 21 in the Village of Huså where Agnes and her husband Olof Grönlund lived:

1. A cottage built by Eric Grönlund in 1788 with 6 corners, 10 layers high, 14 alnars {28 feet} long and 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, covered with wood boards, bark and moss with wood that this use half of inner(?) roof.  The cottage has a fireplace with a baking oven, cross-braced walls, iron spikes to secure the logs, 
and weather boarding around the fireplace, an iron damper and a stone damper.  
It also has a pair of putty windows and a pair of lead string windows of which 2 panes are broken, a table, benches, a bedstead, a shelf for pots and pans, a wood plank floor, 
a door on hinges with a door latch.  The outer porch is built of wood planks for a clothes room with a floor and a roof and a window, a door on hinges and bridge
 outside, all in good condition, except that the roof needs repair.

2. A log shelter with 4 corners, 16 layers high, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide.  It is covered with boards, birch-bark, and timber, furnished with crudely painted boards and a staircase, and a floor, a door on hinges with a lock and key.  It is all in good condition.  

3. An old granary with 4 corners, 9 layers high, 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, covered with boards, birch bark and other bark, provided with a floor and dressing room
 and a door on hinges and throw hinges. Some parts of the walls and the roof, which is now the floor.

4. A barn with 4 corners, 11 alnars {22 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide, 12 layers high.  It is roofed with boards and has 2 doors and a floor, all in good condition.  

5. A new granary built by Olof Grönlund with 4 corners, 12 layers high, 12 alnars {24 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide.  It is roofed with boards and birch bark and it has a wooden ceiling and it has a floor.  It has one room for a grain and threshing barn, a door on hinges and throw hinges, and a bridge
 built of boards outside, all in rather good condition.  

6. A shed by the old cottage built by Eric Grönlund and moved by Olof.  It was timbered with added new timber and had 4 corners with scrap material to barn shed, 9 layers high, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, covered with birch bark and a baking oven, provided with a loft and room of wood planks, a floor with a manger and room for 2 horses, a door with hinges and throw hinges and a door for the barn shed.  

7. A barn built in 1795 with 4 corners, 14 layers high, 10 alnars {20 feet}, and 11 alnars {22 feet} wide.  It is roofed with wood, birch bark, other bark and moss, and boards.  It is furnished with a loft and 5 mangers and it has room enough for 40 to 50 sheep or goats.  It also has a fireplace, a floor, and a door in usable condition.  

8. A summer barn built by Olof Grönlund this year that is 8½ alnars {17 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide 4 layers high, with 4 corners and covered with boards and furnished with a floor and a door on hinges.

9. A wooden shed against the cottage walls with boards on the walls and roof.  
It serves as a woodshed and was built by Eric Grönlund.  

10. A cellar with walls built of stone and a roof built with young twigs 
and birch bark and cottage of dirt.  

Open land is found consisting of:

one down in western Mälen in 2 places, 

and 1-½ acres in eastern Mälen, 

of which Olof Grönlund has cultivated 1 acre.

Included in this are:



Company field of one-half (½) of an acre


Sentry Post
 1 acre


Cattle field 1-¼ acres

Of which Eric Grönlund receives 4¼ acres for 4 Riksdaler and Olof Grönlund receives new land for 3 Riksdaler that for some time afterwards was open land and by the residents prepared in Linda
, covered with a roof in 3 places 

· 3½ malings for 3 Riksdaler and for that reason it can provide 8 loads of hay.

· 1 cabbage field of 1½ malings that was broken up by Olof Grönlund

· 1 cabbage field of 1/12 malings that was also broken up by Eric Grönlund

· Fence, in good condition 400 fathoms on 2 fathoms put up by Eric Grönlund.

· The same in bad condition, 232 fathoms of the same fence.

· The same in good condition, 15 fathoms put up by Olof Grönlund.  

· The same in bad condition, 84 fathoms of the same

· The same in good condition, 40 fathoms about the pasture, which Olof Grönlund fenced.

· Inside the fence are 16 loads of upper meadow hay and slough grass that can be gathered.

The following is found in the corner of the pasture:

· A Störris
 with the walls and roof in good condition

· A milk shed with the walls and roof in good condition  

· Eric Grönlund built this house, which is in the same pasture salvaged
 2 loads of hay.  

· One-third of the ownership rights to an old barn also used by Jonas Lalander and Jon Prästberg

· One-third of the ownership rights to an old hay barn in which place Olof Grönlund built a new guard post
.  

· The field in the corner of the pasture can provide 4 loads of hay, of which Olof Grönlund is charged 2 loads

· Bis-Myren

· A barn in good condition, built by Eric Grönlund.  

· 8 days of cultivation cost on this swamp land lived on for 2.32 Riksdaler

· On the river at Skutan
 with cargo boat 5 loads were gathered.  

· In Smedfällt Rödningen 5 loads were gathered.  Hay which lived on to 3.16 Riksdaler

· One sixth of the ownership rights to a millhouse in Huså Elfwen XE "Elfwen" 
 with worn out stones.

The following buildings built by Eric Grönlund are found in Flandern, north of the pasture:

· A barn with accessories in usable condition that was moved there by Jonas Grönlund 

· on his farm commands that moved a milk shed to the Tag and enclosure 

· the fence is in acceptable condition and it is still used by Jon Grönlund

· one-half (½) tenth in 1 Störis with Sparrman.  

· A hay barn that is half owned by Olof Grönlund.  Compensation for this for 24 Species.

· This farm can feed 3 cows, 10 sheep and 10 goats

· 3 Kfot of grain

· 18 Kfot barrels of potatoes were planted each year.

In 1893, Anders Thörner leased both this farm and Company Farm No. 20 and paid an annual lease amount of 60 for both of them.

Märeta Essing
Table 13 (64)

Märeta Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B10
	Märeta Essing 
	B
	Nov 16, 1769
	
	Märeta lived by Duveds fortress, Nordhallen and Hårbörsta, where she 

	
	
	D
	
	
	died.

	
	
	M
	Jan 1, 1793 
	
	

	S
	Jonas Henriksson
	B
	Nov 11, 1756 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 23, 1832?
	
	

	C1
	Lisa Jonsdotter 
	B
	1794
	
	

	Table 49
	
	D
	Dec 26, 1884
	
	

	C2
	Anders Jonsson 
	B
	1798
	
	

	
	
	D
	About Apr 1, 1798
	
	Anders burial date was April 1, 1798.

	C3
	Jonas Jonasson 
	B
	Nov 3, 1798 
	
	Jonas died of an unknown childhood 

	
	
	D
	Nov 18, 1798 
	
	illness.

	C4
	Anders Jonasson 
	B
	Dec 24, 1805 
	
	I {Inger Qvarnström} have found no information on 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Anders.


Jonas was the son of Hindrik Jonsson and Lisbet Jönsdotter of Tegom Åre.

The family lived mostly as tenants, and they moved about rather often in Åre Parish.  

They lived mostly in Nordhallen where they were farmers.

In their older days, they were sick and poor 

Their son Anders stayed with his sister for a time, and in the Population Records for 1821-1822 it is shown that he was crippled in the arms and in poor health.  

Photograph (64)

Copper Mining Company Miner Wiksten

Contract Between 

Mining Company 
And 
Company Miners & Workers

As homesteaders on Company property, the Company Workers may use and occupy the farms according to the following contract with the Company:

1. They shall be at the mine by 10 A.M. on every Monday morning that does not fall upon a holiday from October 1st, to April 1st.  They shall be at the mine by 8 A.M from April 1st to October 1st.  They shall proceed immediately to their assigned work after breaks.  They shall carry on the mining work in accordance with the regulations and the piece-work wages that are arranged and passed.  Work is banished
 during the second year’s first quarter, during the week until 2 P.M. on Friday afternoon, and during the 2 last quarters until 5 P.M. on the same day.  If they do not follow the designated work hours, they shall be fined 24 Species to the Company fund for each infraction. The fine shall be increased by 12 Species each time they fail to get to work on time.  

2. Ladders, lånsor XE "lånsor"  bärgade XE "bärgade" 
, hammers, sled handles, and sulfur thread shall not be provided by the Miners without special compensation.  

3. The orderly and industrious workmanship of the Company makes up the intrinsic foundation for those affected Workers to continue on.  In the future all should i XE "i" nspect their own work, use their greatest endeavor and put everything into it.  For if an agreement does not give a fair amount of work for the wages paid by the Company, there will be a general company failure, and in conjunction with the shut down of the Company, the same Miner’s ownership rights to the farms and official residences will disappear, to the Company land occupied.  Since mining is extremely important for the Company, the Company Workers and the tenants who subsequently show neglect in their work, or treat it with indifference, or show neglect or disobedience towards their responsibilities, shall be fired immediately without employment, by legal moving time and official representative steadiness from his ownership rights on the farm and official position at the Company, and immediately have his place taken by another more industrious and considerate person, who starts with the same rights and privileges.

4. The farms on Company property have been prepared for a larger number of Company personnel in width and size and they may be divided.  The Company has total rights to partition these farms for some small compensation and are not required to compensate them for the cropland on land or meadows that they move from, which determines after matismanna XE "matismanna" 
 ordom XE "ordom" 
.

5. The explicit orders of the Miners are to diligently carry out the work down in the Mine.  Since their livelihood rests on the Company making a profit, this is necessary both for themselves and the Company, to enjoin those who have wives and able-bodied children, that on Company notice in Husån from the release Inspector shall discontinue to Varprensning XE "Varprensning" 
 all able-bodied women and children in the Company, things for agreed piece-work wages or daily wages.  

6. One month of leave at haying time is given to everyone who works as a tenant worker on a farm.  The Mine shall still be left open where and who zealously oversees his mining and farming privileges.  The few that work in or on the Mine during this time shall have a 50 percent increase over the usual piecework wages.  Consequently, 1 barrel of crude ore from Varpen
 will then be paid at 1 Riksdaler and 24 Species.

7. If the farm tenant has a horse, it is necessary for him to responsibly attend to the Company needs for things such as transporting the ore, making small trips, road repairs etc. and therefore to receive some small compensation or piecework money.  

8. Then for maintenance of these incontestable rights and as an obligation for all disorders in the future, possession are necessary to decide for the farm.  It is the responsibility of all the current farmers to annually transport 20 barrels of ore at 8 Species per barrel from the Bjelkes Company to the Huså Smelting works. They, together with their able-bodied women and children, must cut, dry and harvest the grain and hay that is raised on the farms and homesteads, the Company uses for its own invoice.  

9. The farm tenants shall be responsible for maintaining the cottages, barns, hedge fences, etc., according to the law and House Examinations Order.  In addition, there is the restriction on all the farms, that it is strictly prohibited to sell or carry away hay, straw, or manure from the farms.  The burning of forest lands for ashes for fertilizing the croplands and taking fallen plant materials from the forest to the farm’s own or adjacent land is allowed without exception and noted by the trustee in Husån.

10. The terms and conditions of this contract are binding upon the able-bodied sons of the Miners for as long as the Company has occasion to employ them.  Because they are accustomed to work as qualified Miners from their earliest years, they are to get a preference for this work.  Therefore, they are not to be drafted to serve the Country without a special inquiry and permission from the Company or its representative.  

11. The miner must yearly, whenever 3 days lapse without wage payments, on notice from the Company trustee, suspend the supervision between Bjelkes Mine, past Huså and to the Kalljö beaches.

12. Should it become necessary for the Company to unexpectedly have to quickly call for the entire work force of the Mining Company or some smaller portion thereof, it is the responsibility of every current Miner to come when called.  If they do not, they will be fired immediately, under the same rules mentioned in paragraph three above, for neglect and disobedience.  

13. Should the Miners fulfill the terms of this contract, they can be assured that all of the above rights shall be honored.  On the other hand, they must blame themselves for the consequences if they break them.  Cancellation can be made by either side prior to legal moving time
 and the commencement of this contract is accepted to be the next Court Session Work Quarter
 on October 1st.


(67)
Husån on August 2, 1830

Photograph (67)

Statue of a Miner’s wife and child.  This statue is located in Huså near the school.

Agnes Essing

Table 14 (68)

Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B1
	Agnes Essing 
	B
	June 28, 1752
	
	Agnes lived in Vera, Verdal, Norway.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 14, 1781 
	
	

	S
	Nils Sivertsen Storvukuvald
	B
	1739-
	Lom, Gudbrandsdalen
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 19, 1828
	Storvukuvald
	

	C1
	Ragnhild Nilsdotter 
	B
	Jan 29, 1783  
	Anjan, Kall
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 15, 1783
	
	

	C2
	Nils Nilsen 
	B
	Mar 20, 1786 
	
	

	Table 50
	
	D
	July 15, 1821
	Skrove
	

	C3
	Jacob Nilsen 
	B
	Mar 20, 1786
	
	

	Table 51
	
	D
	
	
	

	C4
	Berit Nilsdotter 
	B
	Dec 8, 1790 
	Vera
	

	Table 52
	
	D
	Apr 18, 1849
	
	


Brita Ridderberg

Table 15 (68)

Brita Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B1
	Brita Ridderberg 
	B
	Nov 2, 1753
	
	Brita lived in Sul, Vuku Parish.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1790
	
	

	S
	Mikel Eriksen 
	B
	about 1753
	Sul
	

	
	
	D
	1800
	
	

	C1
	Erik Mikelsen 
	B
	May 20, 1790
	
	I {Inger Qvarnström} have found no information on Erik.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	C2
	Samuel Mikelsen 
	B
	May 28, 1792 
	Sul
	

	Table 53
	
	D
	Apr 30, 1822
	
	

	C3
	Sara Mikelsdotter 
	B
	Aug 12, 1795 
	Molla
	Sara was poor, blind, and unmarried.

	
	
	D
	Apr 20, 1880 
	By
	


Johan Ridderberg

Table 16 (68)

Johan Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B3
	Johan Ridderberg
	B
	Mar 20, 1758
	
	Johan lived in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Lund, Verdal, Norway.

	
	
	M
	1786
	
	

	S
	Kirsti Bastiansdotter 
	B
	1755
	Lund
	

	
	
	D
	June 15, 1834
	Lundsv.
	

	C1
	Hans Johansen Ridderberg 
	B
	May 2, 1786 
	
	

	Table 54
	
	D
	Apr 1, 1856? 
	Risenget
	

	C2
	Beret Johansdotter Ridderberg
	B
	July 28, 1788
	Lundsv.
	

	Table 55
	
	D
	Mar 3, 1820
	
	


Per “Petter” Ridderberg

Table 17 (68)

Per "Petter" Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B4
	Per "Petter" Ridderberg 
	B
	June 9, 1760 
	
	Per lived, among other places, in Voldvald and 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Bredingsvald

	
	
	M
	1791
	
	

	S1
	Marit Jörgensdotter 
	B
	ca 1774
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	C1
	Ole P. Ridderberg 
	B
	June 24, 1790 
	Volden
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	C2
	Beret P. Ridderberg 
	B
	1793
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 20, 1797 
	
	

	S2
	Guru Simonsdotter 
	B
	1766
	Lesja
	Guru was a daughter of Miner Simon Knudsen and his wife {Dortea Larsdotter}.  She came from Lesja to Gaulstad, Ogndal with her parents in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	about 1772.

	C3
	Samuel P. Ridderberg 
	B
	Oct 2, 1797 
	Volden
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	C4
	Marit P. Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 28, 1800 
	Vold
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	C5
	Dorte P. Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 6, 1803 
	Voldvald
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Agnes Ridderberg

Table 18 (69)

Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B5
	Agnes Ridderberg
	B
	Oct 29, 1762
	
	Agnes lived in Karmhusvald, Ausnesvald, and Kulstadvald.  In 1801, Beret "Brita" and Samuel lived with daughter Agnes and her husband Peder.  They were poor and got alms from the Parish.  Peder was a 

	
	
	D
	
	
	tenant farmer.

	
	
	M
	1793
	
	

	S
	Peder Pedersen Karmhus/Östnes 
	B
	About 1773 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 17, 1837 
	Lee-Rastuen
	

	C1
	 Martha Pedersdotter 
	B
	July 31, 1793 
	
	

	Table 56
	
	D
	
	
	

	C2
	Beret Pedersdotter 
	B
	1802
	
	

	Table 57
	
	D
	June 6, 1884 
	Movald
	


Samuel Ridderberg

Table 19 (69)

Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B6
	Samuel Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 31, 1765 
	
	Samuel lived in Moen in 1801, in Kvernmoen and Tömmeråsen in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	1800.

	
	
	M
	1799
	
	

	S
	Ingeborg Halfvorsdotter 
	B
	1775
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1850
	
	

	C1
	Beret S.  Ridderberg 
	B
	1800
	
	Beret was baptized 

	Table 58
	
	D
	
	
	on December 12.

	C2
	Malena S.  Ridderberg 
	B
	Jan 11, 1803 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 22, 1818 
	Hallevald
	

	C3
	Randi S.  Ridderberg 
	B
	Feb 14, 1818 
	
	

	Table 59
	
	D
	Jan 3, 1868 
	Qvelstad
	

	C4
	Ole S. Ridderberg 
	B
	July 7, 1810 
	
	

	Table 60
	
	D
	
	
	


Kerstin Ridderberg



Table 20 (69)



Kerstin Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B7
	Kerstin Ridderberg 
	B
	Mar 11, 1768 
	
	Kerstin lived in Volden in 1795, in Balgårdsvald in 1801, in Steinsvald in 1809 and in Indal 

	
	
	D
	
	
	from 1820-1825.

	
	
	M
	1795
	
	

	S
	Ole Nilsen Volden 
	B
	1748
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	C1
	Nils Olsen 
	B
	Apr 2, 1795 
	Voldenvald
	

	Table 61
	
	D
	Mar 15, 1849
	Vistvald
	

	C2
	Sigrid Olsdotter 
	B
	1800
	
	

	
	
	D
	1836
	Jössås
	

	C3
	Ole Olsen 
	B
	July 16, 1809 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 26, 1811 
	N.  Stenevald
	


Ole Ridderberg

Table 21 (69)

Ole Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	B9
	Ole Ridderberg 
	B
	1775
	
	I {Inger Qvarnström} have written Ridderberg as the surname for all of the children, but in Verdal, Norway they 

	
	
	D
	1793
	
	used the first name.

	
	
	M
	
	
	Guru later married 

	S
	Guru Simonsdotter
	B
	1766
	Lesja
	Ole’s brother Per.

	
	
	D
	
	
	Table 17.

	C1
	Simon Olsen
	B
	1793
	
	

	
	
	D
	1796
	
	


The Great Grandchildren

Kerstin Persdotter

Table 22 (70)

Kerstin Persdotter4, Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, 

Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	
	Kerstin Persdotter
	B


	
	She lived in Edsåsen, Undersåker until they moved to Ströms Parish in 1812.

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Aug 11, 1807
	

	S
	Henrik Jonsson Södergren
	B
	Dec 28, 1786
	Undersåker

	
	
	D
	May 18, 1882
	

	D1
	Catharina Henriksdotter
	B
	Jan 30, 1809
	

	Table 62
	
	D
	Oct 22, 1890
	

	D2
	Pehr Henriksson
	B
	Mar 7, 1813
	

	Table 63
	
	D
	July 29, 1894
	Söder

	D3
	Ingeborg Henriksdotter
	B
	Apr 30, 1816
	

	Table 64
	
	D
	
	

	D4
	Jonas Henriksson
	B
	Dec 16, 1819
	

	Table 65
	
	D
	June 23, 1902
	

	D5
	Kerstin Henriksdotter
	B
	1826
	

	 
	
	D
	July 16, 1867
	Hotagen

	D6
	Jöns Henriksson
	B
	Dec 22, 1829
	

	Table 66
	
	D
	Oct 14, 1917
	Laxsjö


Henrik was the son of Jon Hindriksson and Katarina Olsdotter.  Katarina was born in 1764 in Nyland, Undersåker.  Henrik’s father Jon was a churchwarden, farm owner, and the parish secretary.

According to the old stories, Per Årberg and his wife had been the neighbors of Henrik Södergren in Undersåker.  Per and his wife were murdered by the Laplanders in the remote Schougden mountain lake area by Frostviken.  When it came to Henrik’s knowledge, he became furious and swore revenge on the Laplanders.  He left his farm in Undersåker, took his family and necessary household goods and cattle with him, and left the city for the road-less wilderness.  When he reached Kärrnäset, a distance of 20 mils {120 American miles}, his sense of humor and his desire for revenge had left him.

Then came the question of where he should live.  He had no roof over his head for either his family or livestock.

Someone in Kärrnäset had probably advised him of the dangers of going to Öjarsvattnet by this time.  He heeded the advice, went to Vällgården, broke up land, and built a farm.

He lived there in the tax-free years from 1812 to 1822.  He sold his farm and moved to Little Fulvurn at the end of the tax-free years.

He lived there in near starvation with his family from 1822 to 1847.  Then he had to leave Fulvur Municipality because of the difficulty of getting supplies, and he again moved to Öjarn.

The following story can give proof of this:

Winter is far along.  Now Henrik starts to run out of pastureland and feed for the livestock.  Winter depression has taken a hard grip on Henrik, and it is difficult for him to tear himself away from this depression.  Now his wife comes and tells him that they are out of food. One can easily understand that his was not funny for Henrik, since he was 1 mil 7 kilometers {ten miles} from the nearest Village of Öjarn.

Henrik had an old artillery horse.  This horse had been discarded by the military because of starvation.  But an attempt was worthwhile.  Henrik sets out securely on his discarded horse, and his horse went quite easily
 when you think about the amount of snow that is found in these mountain regions.

They slowly went up the steep grade of Jöns mässhöjdans XE "mässhöjdans"  Mountain and the hours go by.  With a real sense of accomplishment he has now reached the highest point, but the horse slows down more and more.  When they came to the ground water, the horse laid down and could not go on anymore.  Henrik put on his snowshoes and continued on alone to Öjarn.  He finally reached the Village at five in the morning.

From Heimlauta 1985

Photograph (71)

Henrik Jonsson Södergren built this cottage near Lillfulvurn around 1820.  Later it was moved to the upper end of the lake and was used as a forest hut
.  Johan Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and Anders Gabriel Hansson are sitting in front of the cottage.  The latter
 {Anders Gabriel Hansson} has written about many events in Öjarn History.

Henrik and his brother took over their father’s farm in exchange for providing Reserved Rights.  On September 26th, farmer Jon Hindriksson of Håland reached an agreement on January 11th of this year
 which was put in the Record of Court Judgments on the 24th of the following February.  It stated that he will allow his Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Håland, consisting of 2, acres to go to his sons {Hindrik Södergren} and {Olof Jonsson} in exchange for the specified Reserved Rights for himself and his wife.  The total purchase amount is three hundred eleven (311) Riksdaler 5 Species 4 Rd bank currency
.  Part of this purchase amount shall be used to pay the farm debts and part of it shall be used to pay the inheritance share of the daughters of Märeta Jonsdotter.  However the District Court found it necessary and decreed that an assessment be made because of the Royal Government County welfare.   Mr. Holmberg, Juror Mårten Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Romo, and Sven Hindriksson of Edsåsen were the guardians of the estate and they carried out the assessment on June 16 that year.  The homestead was appraised at three hundred thirty three (333) Riksdaler 16 Species.  Additional terms and conditions were added in writing as follows:

After the value of the homestead is appraised in Hålland, the following changes to the contract of January 11 of this year were made by the father {Jon Hindricsson} and he {________} was made guardian.  The additional conditions were as follows: 

1. The inheritance amount of the daughter {Märet} of sixteen (16) Riksdaler 32 Species will either be paid directly to her from each brother or the brothers will deposit it in her account with appropriate annual interest from the legal date on or before the amount is due.  

2. In the event of the death of her parents, or if they are not able to feed and provide for their daughter {Märeta} for other reasons, she is to receive decent food and care from the homestead tenants to the best of their ability until she is 15 years old.  

Our arrival at agreement in this contract is hereby acknowledged and confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses in Hälland on June 16, 1806.




Jon Hindriksson of Hållan



Anders Ersson of Rista guardian for son Hindrik Södergren



Pehr Jacobsson of Äggen (guardian for son Olof)



Jöns Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Rista (guardian for daughter Märet)



Witness:
Eric Holmberg and



Sven Hindriksson of Edsäsen, Kusin XE "Kusin" 

The following contract is made and agreed upon between the undersigned: 

I {Jonas Dahlstedt} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Gunil Henriksdotter}, and with a sound mind, hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to tenant (Henrik Jonsson Södergren}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to the new homestead outside the Village of Öijaren in Hammerdahl Parish that were purchased from my brother-in-law {Anders Hindersson}.  It is located in Föllinge Lapland and consists of one-fourth (¼) of an acre.  

This also i XE "i" ncludes the accompanying rights and responsibilities as well as all the property under whatever name and composition it may be that now belongs to this farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

The agreed upon purchase amount of forty one (41) Riksdaler 24 Species or on the other hand, payment of respondent’s death money is acknowledged.  

For the fulfillment of these terms and conditions, our ownership rights to this new farm and buildings are relinquished by us and our descendants.

The buyer {Henrik Jonsson} and his wife, children, and heirs, shall have undisputed and eternal ownership and occupancy rights and they shall take possession immediately.

In addition, after disposal of good ownership rights Judgment of this buyer 
that with the Royal Court Judgment in the Region of Högunstig attachment of wages on this farm partition, entire application respectfully made.  
This is confirmed with our signatures and Signature Marks and completed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


 Öijaren on November 7, 1819



Jonas Dahlstedt 


 
Gunnil Henriksdotter (wife of Jonas)

Both parties hereby acknowledge that we are satisfied with the agreement made in this contract.  


Date as above


Buyer:
Henrik Jonsson Södergren


Wife 
Kerstin Pehrsdotter


Witness:
Pehr Göransson



Olof Ros of Öijaren

On September 17, 1830, it was humbly requested that the Royal Court Judgment of August 16th of last year conduct the following assessment on the homestead of settler Henric Jonsson Södergren of Öijarn:

1. A cottage building with only one room in usable condition

2. A barn with a fireplace and half a hearth in usable condition

3. A barn in usable condition

4. A milk shed in usable condition

4 malings of open land that is reasonably cultivated  

It is hereby examined, appraised, and certified.


Hammerdahl and Finnvattnet on above date



Pär Brännholm of Fyrås 



Sven Jönsson of Ridge

It was here that Anders Wäll later built a farm.  He built a duplex house which was later divided.

____________

It is hereby completed through this signed contract with former settler J.  Dahlstedt of Öijarn {the seller?} that I {Anders Wäll} legally acquire one-fourth (¼) of an acre on one of these new homesteads, dares, with producing located in nearby Borges XE "Borges"  bindings and evidence from the clergy, respectfully understands, the dividing of this homestead, which now ta XE "ta" kes place immediately, received attachment of wages and this new homestead buildings, and to also receive a large property space which can reply for 1½ acres.


Hammerdal and Öijarn on September 2, 1832



Henric Jonsson Södergren of Öijarn

This Royal Court Judgment shall protect and allow the settler {Henric Jonsson Södergren} as the legal tenant with complete ownership rights to the new Royal Government Homestead in Öijarn. as follows the undersigned in wrong and responsible trust for the new homestead buildings qualified maintenance and care, as well as pay the correct tax payments at the designated time to the Royal Government.  Certified and acknowledged in Ström on August 25, 1832


Witness:
Erik Ersson






Eric Svensson 



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Öhn




Mårten Jönsson of Öhn

The men who guarantee this are lease holders and are well-known and completely trustworthy.  Certified by M. Nilsson (Municipal Sergeant)

Settler Hindric Jonsson of Öjaren was born in this Parish in 1786.  He has good Christian knowledge modest and decent morals and he also ta XE "ta" kes advantage of Salvation through the Means of Grace.  Certified in Ström on October 30, 1830.



Harald Gerdahl, Assistant Vicar

Mårten Andersson
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Photograph (75)

This photograph of Djupsjön was taken in the 1950's.

Lars Jacobsson lived on the upper farm during his lifetime.  The other was owned jointly by Jonas and Anders Mårtensson (1741-1803 and not 1808-1887?).  It was paid for with day work.  Jöns Svensson lived on a farm that is beyond the hayfield and cannot be seen in this photograph.  That farm was called Pelles.  Per Andersson probably lived on that farm later.  

Margareta Mårtensson of Tångeråsen loaned me this photograph.

Differences of opinion arose between the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company and the heirs of deceased farmer Anders Mårtensson of Djupsjön, Kall Parish, Jemtland.  

His {Anders Mårtensson’s} nearest children were entitled to be the farm tenants as the heirs of their father {Anders Mårtensson}.  

Since the son {Mårten Andersson} has had problems with the County Governor’s Office, his brother-in-law (Anders Jacobsson} comes and tells him {Mårten Andersson} about the Copper Mining Company’s assumption of his father-in-law’s (Anders Mårtensson} contract of April 10, 1773 between the late Geschvornern XE "Geschvornern" 
 and the Company Trustee Edelfält.

The County Governor’s Office did not like the Judgment of December 23rd, acknowledging that the heirs of Anders Mårtensson had greater rights than their father’s {Anders Mårtensson} contract as a Company farmer would imply.

But there considered also his (Anders Mårtensson} 

to the good points of the Royal Government Homesteaders near the {Norwegian?} border, 

and therefore he {County Governor Office} added in the name of the Royal Government  

that the rights of a Royal Government Homesteader 

are only derived from and founded on an individual’s legal or illegal status, 

without acknowledging that the undeniable owner is the Copper Mining Company, 

and who, according to the County Governor’s Office in this clear Judgment 

referenced in the Permission Letter of December 7, 1767, 

received the right to these new homestead buildings in Djupsjö

to denounce the Company Worker 

as the words themselves contained in the Permission Letter.

Then the affected tenants of the Copper Mining Company own to snug 

by such a County Governor Office for in clear opening, 

which is such as the Royal Government Homesteads 

from this time 

to not regard these homesteads as available to any private individual, 

put in under the County Governor Office by and  adding to, 

without belonging to the Company, 

as protected through the Royal Government Special Stipulations 

for the Copper Mining Company in Norrland of August 9, 1673 

and the Royal Government Letter of July 10, 1749 

for the affected tenants of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company, 

concerning it, the Copper Mining Company may take up the cottages and the homesteads and use the mountain region at their liberty.

The County Governor’s Office in 1767 had not made any other Decision concerning the ability of the Copper Mining Company to grant a Royal Government Homestead.  

The Company is damaged without such privileges and if they are not able to receive the return of the property 

to the first Royal Government’s disposal.  

Of now a tenant farmer or lessee, 

who on this occasion and not through some Royal Court Judgment of ownership rights

opening become, 

such as on this Djupsjö Land, by that nature share and be, 

including Nobility save as that which the tenant familiar to and received by 

the farm’s owner or master some hereditary possession conditions 

for himself and his heirs, 

which does not follow for such a donation within this generation, 

that blood has for the consideration of the contract fulfillment, 

some preference for the one or the other children.  

A homesteader, through neglecting to fulfill his obligation to the Copper Mining Company and legally becoming it’s inheritable owner = rights lost 

frontier certainly not close to a Royal Government Homestead in which condition position.  

The County Governor Office Judgment was entered as approved evidence for Mårten Andersson.  

It stated that his father {Anders Mårtensson} had received in his own name and at his own expense 

a taxable condition on the new homestead buildings in Djupsjö, 

which were denied him in contract, 

but to have expense knowledge for sound hereditary possession order, 

in consideration of the previous time order, 

but afterwards, by the Mercy of the Royal Government, 

the farm and the forest division is further canceled.  

But the contract also contains and counts 

the forest house 

the tendency to break up and cultivate the farm 

and tax purchase right as provided by the Copper Mining Company, 

which gives entirely more than oneself clearly express to homesteader 

does not provide justice 

to one that desires a farm taxable condition in his name 

from former Company Inspector Sparrmans Certificate.  

Since the Copper Mining Company did not approve it, he does not get the rights to the land where charcoal wood lies within 1½ mils {9 American Miles} of that and were 2 from Båtleden to Hyttorne 

testifies to either of lack of understanding or construction
, 

that the housekeeping is neglected 

that he is still accountable and responsible for it.

To the tenant through a lengthy lawsuit brought by that farm, 

there has never been other, 

concerning the violent repossession of 15 loads of hay 

from across the meadow that neighbors want tillvälla XE "tillvälla" 
 him and still used to this day.

Finally he {Mårten Andersson} helped his father {Anders Mårtensson} with the farming, which was the smallest reason to declare.  

The father {Anders Mårtensson}, on the other hand, made an exhausting trip towards the end of his lifetime to the landlord, Copper Mining Company Manager Polheimer.  

He made a prayer and request that only his son {Mårten Andersson} and not any of the other children be given the farm after his lifetime ends.  

This was to be given to his son {Mårten Andersson} in exchange for Reserved Rights for his widow and his other children.  

Under the expectations of Noble Mr. Mine Company President

and the Royal Court the High Justice of trying of this civil suit perseveres.

Out of this civil suit, the widow {Agnis Edberg} of Anders Mårtensson and the son-in-law {Anders Jakobsson} should each admit guilt and restore the Title Deed within 14 days, after which each is to pay a partial fine of 1 Riksdaler 32 Species.  


District Office in Hernösand  


August 26, 1806


Seller:  
Carl von Nieroth Magn.  

After a favorable request in Company Manager Polheimer’s explanation 

over the Copper Mining Company, 

and afterwards with the high blessing alleged difficulty 

with his moved arose, 

who had previously denounced me (Mårten Andersson} from the Royal Government Homestead in Djupsjön, 

I {Mårten Andersson} submit some high necessary reminders, herewith presented with great respect.  

It was conceded to those affected people in a proclamation from the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company in 1760

received sig XE "sig"  Royal Court Judgment of ownership rights to the Company Farms in Djupsjö 

for the settler, 

reduce the Company Workers Johan Randklef and Per Bergström

who received very little or nothing 

from the new homestead from my deceased father {Anders Mårtensson}, 

such as with the contract completed with the Company Manager Edelfeldt  dated  April 10, 1773 

(No 3 show compensation for a small amount of work that was discontinued)

But one’s own  rights to build new homestead buildings 

in Djupsjö leased property and the manor house, 

which also should be granted, 

was during the entire dispute subjected with 

the adjacent National Works in Berg Parish, the Royal Court, and Östbacken Municipal Government summer mountain pasture from Altsens Sn XE "Sn" , 

which after receiving Lease Letter and Judgment, 

made an equitable claim on the same cottages and afterwards 

the Royal Court Judgment of ownership rights dated  December 4, 1774, 

from there broken, completed taking the dispute to the Royal Court, 

where it was first heard on April 15, 1790.

According to the sixth point of the completed contract 

(No. 3 between the Copper Mining Company Manager Edelfeldt and my father Anders Mårtensson), 

he {______} well ought to appear in expensive smaller Court proceedings and ceremonies.

but a dispute with so many adjacent people,

by whose departure affected the very existence of the new homestead buildings, 

it is also known that it is reasonably the responsibility of the current tenants to complete, 

without the interests of the Company, 

in case these proceedings considered him as the legal owner of the Company Farms in Djupsjö nearby, 

which unquestionably did not happen.  

Without which the settler, left to his own destiny, 

is compelled to himself, under sacrifice of inheritance and property 

in 16 years time to not only assert new homestead building rights, 

but also to pay annual interest on them after the expiration of the tax-free years in 1783.

Before the dispute was settled and put into the Royal Government Minutes, 

without and to in the matter of taxation manner cause humble application 

with the Royal Government may, as in working to 

the Judgment of Djupsjö farm 

commission taxation after the Company method, 

about this deeds with County office witness.  

It was also incontestable that it unquestionably belonged to my father {Anders Mårtensson} and not the Copper Mining Company, 

which oneself that establish contract to nothing done.  

In addition, through Company Manager Polheimer, 

who denies in consideration of his conceded tenancy rights, 

called immediately by the Company administrator, 

but wherein my father {Anders Mårtensson} in property by the settler, 

and assumption of certain stipulated obligations 

had not without
 fairness been able to enter into a contract with him.

With this certificate from my father’s (Anders Mårtensson} powerful Chamber Administrator Brufeldt (No. 4} 

I {Mårten Andersson} have received confirmation, as I have stated, 

that the affected tenants of the Copper Mining Company after 1774 

except inquired new homesteads in Djupsjö, 

or to cause the tenant the smallest lever now on this welfare 

that nearly affecting this case, that this certificate places even weight to the certificate, 

I {Mårten Andersson} from the Company Inspector Sparrman already lived on ( No. 1}.

Once in more than 20 years time, the Copper Mining Company 

had and hereunder also received their principal orders on the Company property.  

This certificate consequently shows neither lack of understanding nor falsehood, and the willing withdrawal by my father {Anders Mårtensson} with beggar’s staff in hand is proof that he had no expectation of assistance from the Copper Mining Company.

The Company Manager additionally tries in his explanation 

to give tax freedom from the Copper Mining Company to the new homesteads in Djupsjö

on the homesteads 

under the Copper Mining Company 

in support of the 1673 Royal Government Special Stipulations

and the 1749 Royal Government Letter.

with this is a mistake 

farm is in the following by the 

Royal Court Judgment  of  April 19, 1790 

and according to a legitimate certificate by this writer Granbom (No. 5)  

in property Deed Books inhabited for the Royal Government 

and ignored by all after 1783 

thereof paid annual interest, taxes, and burdens to the  Royal Government, 

but not any to the mountain regions rightful owners (the Company???}.

With preparation thereon is also beginning 

did the other decision that the new Royal Government Homesteads in Djupsjö 

cannot be received before the homesteaders are able to take the same tax redemption.  

The affected tenants of the Copper Mining Company in power by privilege 

had reason to acquire their farms under mountain save, 

which had then not only to homesteader spend with many adversaries 

than smaller attacked with indifference, 

for some interest thereon was constituted the Royal Government after the end of the years of tax-freedom, which happens in 23 years time.  

It is also not only customary, but also completely necessary,

to now the Copper Mining Company practice, 

which reduces jobs to homesteader received under mountain save, 

given to them as necessary advance money before the crops can be harvested.  

But now such advantage occasion my father {Anders Mårtensson} never which by work not paid 

a portion now advanced on his work, 

without receiving himself under support, need and poverty 

pay for new homestead buildings in Djupsjö taking, 

the sullen lease to the Royal Government that was placed 

on certain manor house on Djupsjö leased property a

already through the Royal Court Judgment on ownership rights dated December 7, 1774 

throws here oneself the concept of mountain regions rights over down.

The manor houses never knew peace between the settlers and the estate property owners, 

incursion may be used but as sullen lease 

therefore was paid to the Copper Mining Company, 

they have to work to escape this obligation, 

annually charged to an account on the settlers lease, 

and with that the same 

that further separated them from any relationship between the Company Farms in Djupsjö and the Royal Government Homesteads.  

Finally it pleases the Company Manager 

more than after the death of my father {Anders Mårtensson} 

to tax assess me 

for disobedience against him and opposition against my other siblings 

with that under the alleged reason of there also, 

that the Company gotten in charge of my father {Anders Mårtensson}, 

to add the tenant on the farm with his crescent  years  

to adventurers will the Company Manager 

with that disguised the process with the notice, 

which then took place to ask for morning fast is driven from the farm.

I {Mårten Andersson} shall show this certificate to the entire Kall Parish if it is required. This certificate shows that I, from my youngest years and often without clothes on my body, was my father’s (Anders Mårtensson} single helper with the homesteading and cropland.  

My father {Anders Mårtensson} was destitute and unable to hire any hired help, which is necessary in addition to a son.

I {Mårten Andersson} have never wanted to displace my other siblings, and to not divide the farm and take care of our mother in old age is heathenish.

A legal team of the Copper Mining Company or his representative, 

I {Mårten Andersson} on this occasion cannot acknowledge and do not need, as my father’s (Anders Mårtensson} only son claiming first born rights to the Djupsjö farm, 

without then owned for a day 

that this farm belongs to the Royal Government and does not have any tax freedom from the Copper Mining Company and that the affected tenants of the Copper Mining Company have never discontinued any payments, 

and that the tenants who conducted the dispute of new homestead buildings consisted, 

there under and afterwards by the farm paid all taxes and burdens to the Royal Government.

I {Mårten Andersson} also dare with this certificate of my character (No. 2 previously submitted to Your High Grace)

with deepest respect provided by me the great justice and that patronage, 

that not of that loose reasons the Copper Mining Company Manager Polheimer stated had lost my ownership rights to Djupsjö farm, 

without in support by the more Royal Government Constitution of the Royal Government Homesteads and their possessions becomes retained, 

because to give no one encouragement to start new homesteading, 

of the same after more than 30 years course of events, 

and afterwards they become reprocessed may be able to in the control of after agreement by an unfamiliar property man or his administrator who had not even lifted his little finger.  

While awaiting your Gracious Judgment, I {Mårten Andersson} continue with my deepest respect to Your High Grace.  

From your humblest servant, 
Mårten Andersson of Djupsjön through Jac.  Biberg

Concerning the Order of the Copper Mining Company Manager Polheimer of March 7th of last year, 

I {Mårten Andersson} assert that being removed from the Royal Government Homesteads in Djupsiö, Kall Parish, 

which my deceased father {Anders Mårtensson} mostly cultivated, 

and now with the exclusion of me his only son by the Copper Mining Company Manager 

release this procedure to my brother-in-law {Anders Jacobsson}, 

I {Mårten Andersson} believe this is prohibited and illegal.  

This compels me with deepest respect to go to Your High Grace, the highest protector of the homesteader and farmer, 

and to implore you to interpret these conditions and make a judgment with the wisdom of God.

My future wife {Kerstin Jönsdotter} and I {Mårten Andersson} dare hope to not forfeit the rights that are supposed to go to the tenant of my father’s (Anders Mårtensson} farm, 

in which case his widow {my mother}, with whom my wife and I {Mårten Andersson} are Tax Registered, will not be able to make beneficial use of this farm.

I {Mårten Andersson} have also attached this certificate that was completed before an administrator {Company Inspector Sparrman} of the Company in Jemtland.  

This certificate confirms that in 1773 my father {Anders Mårtensson}, was included in the contract with the current representative of the Copper Mining Company (Manager Edelfeldt} for the new homesteads in Djupsiö.

The work was completely abandoned and the prolonged process, 

which the settlers must endure with a läntsande XE "läntsande"  summer mountain pasture from Altsens Sn XE "Sn"  for one’s rights to receive a new homestead on the Djupsiö leased property 

which process was finally taken to the Royal Court, and after 16 years it was decided, 

under which my father {Anders Mårtensson}, 

who however after tax-free years are completed is compelled to pay taxes and burdens on the staked out new homesteads, 

which by summer mountain pastures denies, and our Municipality through their cattle was consumed and grazed, 

who was finally impoverished and in deep debt, 

to he was well-nigh near, to leave from all his work, then probably finish afterwards with the Royal Court is trained.  

Later, the legal status of the new homestead buildings in Djupsjö was determined through the Royal Court Judgment of April 15, 1790.

The farm was broken up and cultivated by my father {Anders Mårtensson} 

and in preparation of the tax levy thereby 

appointed by Your High Grace 

given over by him to Copper Mining Company Manager Polheimer on behalf of the Company 

this new homestead proclaims 

to my brother-in-law (Anders Jacobsson} as the tenant there, and under my command,  

to go from there, 

although I {Mårten Andersson}, but neither my sister {Kerstin Andersdotter} nor my older
 brother-in-law {Anders Jacobsson} contributed the slightest amount to this farm cultivation.  

I {Mårten Andersson} therefore am so bold as to humbly implore Your High Grace that my wife and frail children should not be thrown off of my father’s {Anders Mårtensson} farm without so much as a single consideration for the son of the former tenant.  

with power from the Royal Government Homesteads was made statute 

in particular the Royal Court Judgment of February 21, 1789, Part 16, 

has ownership and possession rights to it.

Since I {Mårten Andersson} am only skillful at farming, I have enclosed 2 certificates from trustworthy people living on Kall Parish farms as a testament.

therefore I {Mårten Andersson} dare flatter myself with Gracious Judgment, 

and be so bold as to finally and with great humility and apprehension, 

that until your Gracious Judgment in this case occurs, 

to have the benefit of the patronage of Your High Grace 

and conditions that upon this retained farm, 

with the rights by that the same to this time faultless use and utilization.  

I {Mårten Andersson} continue with deepest respect to Your High Grace.

From your humble meekness.  submitted by Mårten Andersson of Djupsjön and Kall Parish

After our father {Mårten Andersson
 of Djupsjön} reached the age of 64 years, and he is no longer able to verb the impending farm lease, 

For the fulfillment of these conditions, he released his ownership rights to the new homestead for the Reserved Rights contained in this contract.  

That customarily District Court is legal proceedings favorably 

gives obtaining on dividing the new homestead in Djupsjö in half, 

which we asked for in humility of Judgment, 

for becomes with Esteemed High Willvise XE "Willvise" 
 Judge, as the District Court older humblest servant.



Anders Mårtensson  



Jonas Mårtensson of Djupsjön

On October 29, 1833, the undersigned in the Royal Government Homestead in Diupsjön, according to the customary District Court Judgment of September 17, 1833 made an examination and inventory of the new homestead buildings 

goodness and expires for the period of breaking up.  

New homestead building and possessions that Mårten Andersson Vederhållit XE "Vederhållit"  

acquired homestead from his father {Anders Mårtensson} 

according to the Royal Court Judgment Letter of October 19, 1820:

1. Open land containing 28 malings, of which 2 parts can be seeded each year and which in an average year can yield 180 shocks of grain.  Good adjacent land of fertile soil by most sanblandad XE "sanblandad"  Römylla to the out with which can possibly be fertilized on the new homestead. 

2. Hemengs hay land that yields a total of 25 loads of hay each year.

3. A summer mountain pasture located close to the new homestead that can provide 18 loads each year. 

4. Forest hay land of which we are not able to itemize the number of loads without an additional accounting of what is born each year.

5. This farm can feed 2 horses, 18 cows and 50 goats or sheep with their offspring each year. 

6. The fence on one side of the property is completed with 616 fathoms and the lake on the other side.

7. The house on this new homestead is in reasonably good condition since a new cottage was built to help the 2 present tenants.

8. Fishing rights on half of Djupsjön owned under the new homestead in Djupsjö.

9. Forest to the extent needed for the sawmill.

Our examination of this document is hereby affirmed with our names signed below. 


Date as above


Parish Constable Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved

After responsibility by Government County Sheriff 



J. P. Nyblén



Salmon Salmonsson of Grötom



Erik Ersson of Mon Juror 

Furthermore, after dissolution of this, 

of the District Court likewise had him also, 

to advantageously own and cottages that 2 special 

the farm tenants there are able to be of the landowner class.  

Therefore, the District Court finds it reasonable that such a division is beneficial.

Kerstin Andersdotter
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Kerstin Andersdotter4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C2
	Kerstin Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 31, 1774 
	Kerstin lived in 

	
	
	D
	
	Djupsjön, Kall.

	
	
	M
	
	

	S
	Anders Jakobsson 
	B
	Mar 18, 1782 
	

	
	
	D
	May 1854
	

	D1
	Agnis Andersdotter 
	B
	Nov 5, 1809 
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	D
	June 29, 1889
	

	D2
	Stillborn 
	B
	July 10, 1808
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	D3
	Jacob Andersson 
	B
	Sep 28, 1812 
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 4, 1812
	


The Royal Court Judgment in Wästernorrland County Judgment 

upon Mårten Andersson of Djupsjön and Kall Parish 

From there, the complaint was conveyed to the administrator of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company, Manager Polheimer.  

During March 7th of last year he {Mårten Andersson} implied, 

from Djupsjö by his {Mårten Andersson} deceased father {Anders Mårtensson}

to the biggest portion reprocessed new Royal Government Homestead moved 

and in their place 

their deceased brother-in-law {Anders Jakobsson} commissioned the livestock thereof, 

which Mårten Andersson was of the opinion 

for soil composure fighting and on such reason therein to change and correct the claim, 

yet of which Copper Mining Company Manager Polheimer stated, 

on the other hand Mårten Andersson with reminders depend on 

also that Anders Jakobsson and the widow {Agnis Olsdotter} of the deceased {Anders Mårtensson} 

became heard in the County Office in Hernösand on December 23, 1806.

Lesser than the security of the new homestead, 

which finally becomes approved through the Royal Court Judgment of April 15, 1790 

and finally to Anders Mårtensson after tax-free years are finished 

obtained and expensive now provisional tax levy of the farm 

which resembled what the Föllinge and Ströms Laplander had that was established 

on occasion of which Mårten Andersson cautions.  

To not lower Anders Märtenssons 

who was his {_________} only son {____________}, 

the ownership rights to the farm are incontestable, 

by which the Copper Mining Company Manager Polheimer 

who did not want to permit Inspector Sparrman’s certificate substantiating some tax and the work, 

opposite free deed be that with quoted the tenant contract agreement 

and declared that the farm should be considered to be owned by the Copper Mining Company except for Natun XE "Natun" ,

The Copper Mining Company finally issued an order on the legal distribution of the inheritance rights to this farm after Anders Jakobsson had given his explanation.

The order was that Mårten Andersson and Anders Jakobsson should each receive permission to live on one-half of the farm this year until the assessment and liquidation is completed and the legal distribution of the inheritance can be established.

Which with had more stated become and deeds contain 

the Royal Court Judgment of legality 

concerning the inheritance of ownership rights, 

and which the Copper Mining Company has not ruled otherwise, 

now under the new homestead buildings rights gotten these cottages opened for him, 

therefore reduces first the demand for tax freedom from the Copper Mining Company, 

but because deceased Anders Mårtensson lived on it 

only a land-farmer of the Copper Mining Company can be granted these rights for himself and his heirs, for larger rights than these can not be added afterwards.  

However, as Royal Government rights there under depend, 

that his property is not neglected, but is duly managed and cared for 

and consequently that also must become the Royal Court Judgment right, 

that with changed by land farmer.  

Royal Government best watch and guard 

is found the Royal Court Judgment 

reasonable in resemblance with had concerning the tenant circumstances, 

by the Royal Government Homesteads steadied is and by which the question being settled the tenant = rights to properties our limits, 

that Mårten Andersson as such not alone oldest, 

without and single son, 

and who helped his father {Anders Mårtensson} in the cultivation of this Royal Government Homestead in Djupsjö, 

may the tenant = the District Court thereof under established which so much the better have taken possession. 

He is well-known for his good character and for being an industrious worker, and his farm should not be divided between Mårten Andersson and Anders Jakobsson.

The Copper Mining Company made the same recommendation as the Royal Court Judgment 

after kjädt XE "kjädt"  investigation which of this District Court report approves, 

the prospective Mårten Andersson and his joint heirs 

not be surrendered by the Copper Mining Company 

legally ask for compensation for expensive Court proceedings and other legal proceedings, as far as the contract can justify them.

Anyone who is dissatisfied with this Judgment may, if he regards himself as having a legitimate claim, 

within 4 months from receiving this portion of the evidence, 

every month counted at 30 days, 

married into their difficulties in the Royal Court, 

incumbents that beside troublesome, 

with the exception of poor country folk and those who take care of the claims of underage children

that either himself or through representatives in the Royal Court 

that early take in and deliver information 

inconvenience written afterwards with the Royal Court Judgment become provided, 

that qualified proof thereof may, within 2 months from such Judgment date, 

feel is given to the Royal Court, with adventure, 

there that one or the other is neglected to inconvenience not become in the Royal Court to examine taking.


Year and Date as above



Carl von Nieroth 

(85)

Magnus Selling 

Judgment on the application from Mårten Andersson of Djupsjön

After that the Company Inspector, {the Esteemed Mr. Christian Aspgren}, 

managing director of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining property

through a written summons 

allowed summoned farmhand Anders Jacobsson of Djupsjön to undertake and utilize in the spring and summer of last year the one-half (½) of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sellsved belonging to the Copper Mining Company.

In addition these again for the Esteemed Mr. Christian Aspgren 

received a summons in asserting that 

wherewith the oldest son {Anders Jacobsson} of deceased homestead user {Jacob Andersson} should be the first to receive legal possession of the questioned farm 

was helped before the defendant now present Inspector Aspgren in person.  

The Municipal Police Superintendent {the esteemed Mr. Jonas Granbom} 

and Anders Jacobsson with their subsidiary representative Municipal Police Superintendent {the Esteemed Mr. Lars Ad.  Grundén} 

wherefore Christen Jacobsson was accepted as the farm tenant!  

At this time, Municipal Police Superintendent Granbom made his appearance and put forth his opinion.

Anders Jacobsson, although entitled to nothing from us in this contract, also undertook to live on and farm the Sellsved farm 

in half with farmer Christen Jacobsson, 

so that the property becomes properly managed by the farmer   

Therefore he must consider after District Court enforcement of Chapter 16 of the Common Laws 

and to show evidence over Christen Jacobsson’s powerful ownership rights there came before to there of under the 25th of April of last year 

thereof established the undersigned contract between the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining own Patron (the Honorable Mr. 0. Lorichs} and Christen Jacobsson as the legal buyer and owner of this Sellsved farm.  

In addition, it was witnessed by Company Jurors (Anders Bergström and Pehr Malmsten} 

for which reason it was shown 

such as supporting the contract disposing Christen Jacobsson, 

before the older brother {Anders Jacobsson?}, 

to and their deceased father {Jacob Anderssons} 

very much wanted the certificate written up with the following wording:

We were summoned as witnesses to listen to the testimony from farmer {Jacob Andersson of Sellsved} while he was still alive.  This testimony concerned his legal ownership and possession rights of the farm in Sellsved.  

We were present in the deceased (Jacob Andersson} house and he laid nicely on his bed in his room and we listened to him.  

He had strongly stated with clarity and complete sensibility that his last and final wish was that after his death impeccable by their other children and heirs should become currently applicable.

The deceased said in his own words that his son (Christen Jacobsson} has been the softest of all the children.  

That is to say, he had provided the most capable service and from his youngest childhood years had always lived at home and had gone with hand in hand with his parents with total childish devotion, fidelity, and tenderness.  

In addition, his (Christen Jacobsson} wife, Magdalena Ersdotter, when she later came to the live in the house, showed her in-law parents similar tenderness and care.  

For this, they shall have complete and undisputed ownership and enjoyment of the ownership rights on this farm as stated in the contract between the tenants of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company, and which contract is found in the refuge and custody of Christen Jacobsson.  

However, the homestead tenant (Christen Jacobsson} must provide Reserved Rights benefits to his (Christen Jacobsson} mother {} and the wife {} of the deceased (Jacob Andersson} and care for them both until the hour of their deaths.  

The question of how much ought to be granted to them for their Reserved Rights was answered by the deceased, since he knew enough to write an agreement beforehand with Christen.

Remaining was the matter of some debts incurred by the deceased that must be paid by Christen, that I {Nils Bolin} alone listened to the day before.

These obligations were that Christen Jacobsson, as his next of kin, must pay out 12 Riksdaler 16 Species by his own means for horse trading at the Gregori Market in Östersund.

In addition, an old debt for tobacco of 6 Riksdaler 32 Species and a payment of 4 Riksdaler his (Christen} uncle (Olof Mårtensson of Böle} who is the husband of the sister of his mother {Kerstin Andersdotter}.  

Altogether, this constitutes 23 Riksdaler, which Christen must pay.

Finally, there was the matter of a payment between deceased Jacob Andersson and Christen for some grain that the latter had requested but had not been furnished
.  

Both his (Jacob Andersson} wife and the other children had told him (Nils Bolin} this and consequently he was certain of his demand.

It was hereby discussed and reviewed on the morning of this date by the deceased with clarity and complete sensibility, which we confirm with our names and signatures.  


Sellsved on August 21, 1812

(87)

Jacob Bengtsson of Sellsved



Nils Bolin (Lieutenant)

Lieutenant Bolin acknowledged this testimony after its recitation.

After putting this in the Minutes, Municipal Police Superintendent Grundén came before this lawfully authorized Company Court of the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company on June 21st of last year and placed some excerpts in the Recorded Minutes.

These excerpts in this lawfully authorized Company Court gave Anders Jacobsson a directive of execution of greater possession rights to the Copper Mining Company farm in Sellsved in this dispute. 

He notified the District Court that the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company representative and the recently deceased farmer Anders Jacobsson of Ytterocke had established a contract of ownership and possession rights between them on February 7, 1757.

This gives the advantage of greater possession rights to Anders Jacobsson and his heirs and countermands the following excerpts placed in the Court Records on February 12th of last year and approved in the District Court on the same day and parfästad XE "parfästad" 
.  
Now it is shown by Municipal Police Superintendent Grundén that the rights of Anders Jacobsson to possess this farm were at least as great as his brother’s.  

With the same location that the Copper Mining Company 

by the father’s {Jacob Andersson} prompt response gave disposal of legal possession, 

which took place after the father’s (Jacob Andersson} death last summer, 

not or become guarded know convey to breakdown by the treaty rights, 

the widow and children jointly at least for this Ström 

than should belong to 

and by reason of which Anders Jacobsson which and that between the Copper Mining Company and brother entered into the tenant contract been uninformed, 

to utilize one-half (½} of the farm in spite of his {} ownership rights.  

That to the extent have which he of lived on seriously with their other siblings in presence of Adjutant Minister Lars Eric Festin and Mr. Eric Eriksson of Nedgärd already established by the written contract of October 5, 1812, that also is in property by appendix came before, and confirmed by Mr.  Eric Eriksson.  

This contract stated that the mother presently lived on the farm settled agreement else between the Copper Mining Company and her son Christen in consideration of therefore received Reserved Rights benefits for her, 

were dissatisfied and discontented, demanded liberation for their responsible authority by responsibility for utilize, and beneficial possession before his brother of the farm.  

The parties agree upon a time given for consideration, but then do not know it is received give by witness Lieutenant Bolin is a paid invoice.  

Judgment

As sanctioned by the District Court, this contract is made in complete compliance with Chapter 5 of the Common Laws and the Royal Court Judgments of June 13, 1800 and March 2, 1802. 

This contract stated that the widow {Brita Andersdotter???} of Jacob Andersson and his other heirs shall have joint rights to the benefits and the right to live on the Sellsved Farm as the next of kin.

Now this one-sided contract 

during moving time 

for the widow as well as the son (Anders Jacobsson} ohörden XE "ohörden" 
 

was entered into without consideration 

and by the time the father {Jacob Andersson} does but until now undetermined decision, 

they want the District Court to give partitions open, 

so at the next moving time it is agreed upon or in defect thereof purchase share of legal possession.  

In case does not through assessment found out late for division there can be allowed, 

and information on the ownership rights to be responsible for preferably thereof afrämjas XE "afrämjas" 
, 

the prospective buyer in 

however Anders Jacobsson 

who under punitive and owning moving time rights 

on the farm harvest undertaken from responsibility 

is therefore acquitted and Rgs XE "Rgs"  Rgterad XE "Rgterad"  portion between this is acknowledged.  
But the payment of the fees to witness Lieutenant Bolin are the responsibility of Inspector Aspgren who had summoned him.  

(89}

Anders life came to an end.  There was an autopsy and a hearing to see how it had happened.  The autopsy was partly to determine the cause of death and partly to determine how the cost of carrying out the autopsy will be paid.

Farmer {Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved} and his wife {Agnes Andersdotter who was the only child of Anders Jacobsson} and witnesses farmer Jonas Andersson and the tenant living on this place (Eric Halfvarsson of Sellsved} were summoned to this hearing.

For that reason Per 0lofsson, 

who said he was called upon by Anders Jacobsson after he left his wife {Kerstin Andersdotter} a widow who filed her claim in this case, 

said that 4 days before Anders Jacobsson relinquished his life and during all the time afterwards, Anders Jacobsson had shown himself to be extremely gloomy and depressed and complained of a headache.  He said he intended to ask for a cure for this headache from the Priest, but he had still not come.  

On Tuesday on the 9th of May of last year, he was missing from the farm and even though they began to search for him immediately, suspecting that any
 made against him, they found his corpse on Thursday the 12th in a little nearby forest.  He held a bloody knife in his higher hand and he had a wound in his neck from the knife.

Agnes Andersdotter did not have any pertinent information to give them.  

joint him both about that Anders Jacobsson had always led a quiet and God-Fearing life and had been respected and beloved by all.  

Jonas Andersson and Eric Halfvarsson were sworn in as witnesses since no challenge was entered and no charges were found against them.  

Jonas had neither seen nor heard Anders complain, and he had not been in the company of Anders for many days.

Eric Halfvarsson had been the first to find the body of Anders Jacobsson lying dead in the forest with a bloody knife in his hand and with his face against the ground, revealing his wound and blood on his neck from the knife.

Afterwards the following written testimony was entered about Anders Jacobsson:  

Farmer Anders Jacobsson was born and died in Sellsved.  He was born in 1782 and had revived
 Christian knowledge, lived a quiet and proper life and lived in accordance with the Means of Salvation.

Certified in Undersåker on June 3, 1854


Js Buström Pastor

Judgment

From the information obtained from Anders Jacobsson’s acquaintances in the days before his life came to an end, it can be reasonably concluded that he became crazy in the head, which was capably pointed out by the first pair of witnesses in District Court.  

Chapter 13.  Missgl XE "Missgl"  of the District Court and the Royal Court Judgment of October 27, 1725
 and complying with the Royal Court Explanation of August 4, 1827, it was reasonably decreed that Anders Jacobsson’s body shall be buried without comment.  

It was the responsibility of Anders Jacobsson’s heirs and the executor of his estate to pay the cost of 25 Riksdaler 9 Species to Municipal Doctor Grenholm for the autopsy on the body of Anders Jacobsson.

Märet Andersdotter

Table 25 (90)

Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C6

Page 55
	Märet Andersdotter 
	B
	Nov 1780 
	
	Märet lived in Österuppland, 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Mörsil.

	
	
	M
	Jan 15, 1809 
	
	Mårten was a farmer and Sexton.  He was the first to be buried in Mörsil cemetery. Mårten was buried on October 12, 1856.

	S
	Mårten Olo XE "Ol" fsson Lang 
	B
	June 2, 1779 
	
	

	
	
	D
	about  Oct 3, 1856
	
	

	D1
	Agneta "Agnes" Lang 
	B
	Nov 24, 1808 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1832
	
	

	D2
	Olof Lang 
	B
	Feb 11, 1811 
	
	Olof died as a child.

	
	
	D
	 
	
	

	D3
	Brita Lang 
	B
	Sep 4, 1814 
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	D
	Mar 27, 1891 
	Sellsjö
	

	D4
	Anders Lang 
	B
	Aug 20, 1816 
	
	Anders died of

	
	
	D
	July 14, 1821 
	
	Measles.

	D5
	Olof Lang 
	B
	Aug 20, 1821 
	
	Olof drowned in Töjsans? Alsen.  Olof worked there as a farmhand.  He never married.

	
	
	D
	June 1, 1878 
	
	

	D6
	Maria Lang 
	B
	July 11, 1824 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 11, 1824
	
	

	D7
	Anna Lang 
	B
	May 18, 1826 
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	D
	June 8, 1892 
	Sellsved, Kall
	


From the Recorded Minutes of the General Parish Records of June 3, 1843 in Mörsil, it was resolved that Sexton Mårten Lang is to annually receive 1 kanna
 of grain from every homestead account
.  Therefore, it is his responsibility to fulfill the duties of Sexton etc.  But he does not receive the right to live in the Parish cottage without understood him Parish man to keep firewood and look after the fire every time he fulfills God’s duties here in the church is held and he shall start in the eastern part of the Parish and later conduct these duties in the western part.

The Population Records describe Mårten Lang as being poor and in frail health.  A Distress Warrant List mentions that cavalryman Mårten Lang missed all his tax payments
, and has other small children, one of which was mentally deficient.  Later Mårten’s wife had only very paltry clothes, is elderly, and she was a laboring person after she became a widow.

Mårten Nilsson in Bye

This is a story about Mårten Lang’s maternal grandfather and mother, and is interesting reading.  It was taken from the first part of Mörsil Chronicle.

One would expect to find some special notes in the old Parish Records about the 1700's most distinguished person in Mörsil, about whom the old people who lived into the 1800's had so much to say.  But it only states: “Mårten Nilsson ifrån Bye dog den 7 Oktober 1791 af ålderdomsbräcklighet, 78 år gammal ” {Mårten Nilsson from Bye died of from natural causes of old age on October 7, 1791 at 78 years of age}.  His farm at the time must have been very remarkable.  The guest room had wallpaper on the walls.  It was made of paper and had green patterns of candle bottoms painted in oil colors.  

He had an unusual thirst for activity and capacity for work.  He was also a prudent businessman and a clever farmer, which was helpful.

His business trips stretched beyond Jämtland border to Hedemora, Falun, Sollefteå, Graninge and in all probability to Stockholm and Norway.  One of his farmhands (Strand Jonas who died in 1840} was ninety years of age when he said that these trips were completed bravely.  On southern visits he often used to kid and joke the Jämtlanders for their black gammalost {literally “old cheese”, a well known and odiferous type of cheese common to Scandinavia}.

Mårten built a sawmill near Sjön Anjan {Lake Anjan}.  Although the old stories do not give any mäler XE "mäler" 
, it is likely that he was not alone in the enterprise.  It was observed to be operated on a very large scale.  The boards were freighted with a cargo boat or a large ferry across the three mil {18 American miles} long lake to the Norwegian border, and from there it was transported to Norway, where it was sold.  This was probably the first export of lumber from Jämtland to a foreign country.

The diary records of Fale Burman mention the sawmill in 1791 before it came to an end.

As an example of how well off Mårten in Bye was, it was said that in the summertime he equipped a crew with no less than 11 pack horses and did commercial mountain fishing in the mountain lakes.

Another reference of a hufvul XE "hufvul"  = “tiden mellan våranden och höanden" {time between the springtime harvest and haying time}" he took with him his domestic servants and 14 horses, pack horses, cows, sheep and goats, and pulled away southwest through the forest wilderness catre XE "catre"  mil to the upper mountain regions of Rulldalen to establish a new summer mountain cottage.  

He cleared the land and the cottages were built in a short time.  All went well for Mårten in Bye.  His daughter Ärsil and a maid stayed there as farm maidens.  The barn had a wooden roof that was built too low, so that in the summer ahead when the pine bark roof became dry, the cows stuck their horns up through it.

The summer was a rich “multsommar – multa=hjortron” {long summer – rich wqith clourdberries which are a wildfruit delicacy}".  Årsil and her comrades gathered and boiled the cloudberries and filled every container they could spare. Finally they received boundary mark
 in the Laplander tradition of "Akja" {????} and filled everything with a great abundance of food.

In the autumn, when the master and his men returned, they brought home summer food of “smör, ost och messmör, som tillverkats under sommaren” {butter, cheese and soft butter, which was produced during the summer}.  They were tired of multkirrisa XE "multkirrisa" 
, which they emptied on the slope.  Upon looking at the wastefulness of this – all their diligent work and the mountain’s abundance of luscious fruit - the girls started to cry loudly.

Mårten tried to get a few neighbors together with him to build a bridge across Mörsilälven (the Mörsil River), but this did not succeed.  They were probably afraid to, since Mårten would have more use for the bridge than they did.  On another occasion he had proposed building a rolling pin
 bridge but they still do not want to participate.  It was completely unnecessary in their opinion!  Their joint mountain cottage road went directly ahead above a sank swampland directly on this side of Gisterän.  It was above this mire that a bridge should be built.

But Mårten does not allow himself to have any resentment, and he builds the bridge himself.  When his neighbors afterwards should "buföra XE "buföra" " (lead livestock to the summer mountain pasture), Mårten, who was a large and strong man with a smart walking stick in his hands with a bronze end, wanted to embarrass them as he led cattle and people and packhorses down to the marshy swampland.  He said that he wanted this demonstration to convince them obstinately and reluctantly that the bridge was necessary.  

For a long time the local church had become outgrown.  Mårten in Bye was the soul and driving force in everything.  He proposed, and succeeded in forcing his proposal through, to increase the church’s length to the west by 8 alnars {16 feet}.  The ground was prepared and the preparatory work was begun, but for some unknown reason the project stopped.  Perhaps they had begun to think of a new church in Mörsil - a thought that was realized about a hundred years later.  Amazingly enough, Mårten, whose legs were deteriorating by then, also contributed his own labor to the new church building.  For the proposed widening of the old church, he had broken limestone that was walled up for ovens that were never fired in Byeskogen near the Frisk farm, so they used it when the present church was built.

Mårten was as helpful as he was industrious.  One summer in Över-Ocke a fire occurred, which destroyed the entire farm of his brother Nils Bleckman. This same farm now constitutes "Fredriks" and "Sjölanders
".  However it was in the midst of a busy summertime that Mårten Nilsson sent his crew and their horses to help his brother itänsk XE "itänsk"  homeless rebuild the farm.  Timber was hewn and hauled to the farm and construction work went on from early in the morning until late at night and in 3 weeks time the entire farm was completely rebuilt.  That "de fäällt bäre vinnroa a raufärja XE "raufärja" " (it lacked only a weather-vane and red paint), said Old Lena in Ol XE "Ol" ’ Ols
 of Eggen, who told this story.

The family life of Mårten Nilsson was less fortunate.  Children brought up by him did not do very well.  It was said that daughter Årsil had earlier “låg XE "låg"  bort sig, dvs. fick ett oäkta barn” {had sexual relations with a man and an illegitimate child}”.  That was something that was regarded as a great dishonor for both her and her family.  However, she later married a poor youth from Bleckåsen by the name of Erik Jönsson.

This man was sometimes afflicted with drinking binges, and when he “var på tura” {was on a dringing binge} with reference to his wife’s status as a fallen woman, jokingly state:  “Ha int XE "int"  flässhe XE "flässhe"  dytte XE "dytte"  ne i lort'n, ha int'n Erek Jänssa fått’e” {If the flesh hadn’t fallen into the dirt, Erek Jänssa [slang term referring to himself] wouldn’t have gotten it}.

“På riksspråket XE "riksspråket" ; Hade inte fläsket XE "fläsket"  fallit ner I smutsen, hade inte hunden fått det eller, hade inte fått det”.  {In the official language, if the meat hadn’t fallen to the ground, the dog wouldn’t have gotten it, and he wouldn’t have gotten his wife if she hadn’t fallen in status with her previous pregnancy}.
Their son Bengt was a disgrace to the entire family, a real rotten egg.  One time he stole money from his father.  After his sentence he was drinking in a tavern with churchwarden Daniel Reddell of Bye.  At this time, King Gustaf III had issued a gracious circular to all the cathedral chapters in the realm, wherein he urges the ecclesiastical authorities to promote the establishment of a Royal Tavern in each church area through the parsons.  A result of this was Rödell’s Tavern in Mörsil.  Jon Pers of Bye was in this tavern on a drinking binge with Bengt Mårtensson.  They were using the stolen money.  Then he received a serious rebuke from his father for this crime and for his reprehensible lifestyle.  Bengt disappeared after he laid his bare hands on his father and struck and mistreated his father.

He received both lashes and a prison sentence.  He was also strongly suspected for the arson murder at the Daniel Rödell house, which burnt down at the time.  He should then have been broken down on the run from prison.  Down bed clothes, precious the time, grain, dried meat, etc. became the fuel for the flames.  As the churchwarden, Rödell had kept the church’s possessions and deeds in his tavern, in addition to his own valuables and papers, which were all destroyed for all eternity.

When the wife of Anders Larsson of Myckelgård saw the flames from the fire flare up, and after she had determined which house, as it burnt is said to have exclaimed to her husband:  “Gudskelov, ätt skinnstyfran (af skinna, klå) häns Daniel I Byom brinn opp” {Thank God, the descendants skin stuff (of skin, clothes) häns XE "häns"  Daniel in Byom have burned up}.

With malicious pleasure she
 explained that her husband was a boozer and destroyed the houses affluence on tavern with Rödell
.  

Daughter Brita also caused her parents some concern.  She had two suitors.  One was called Olof Göransson of Hinterland, and he was a prominent and dignified youngster that her parents would gl XE "gl" adly like to have for a son-in-law.  The other, Per Jönsson of Bye, a shoemaker and fiddler, dared to have been of bad scrap and grain
, but however such as in for a decline frequent affliction happen
, stood higher in the girls fancies.  Sharp feuds arose.  Then one time the father was made aware that Per had visited his daughter in Gistervallen where she was a farm maiden.  He made his way there as soon as he could, put another girl in her place, and took Brita home with him.

Per had gotten word that her father “var bort i buan” {was away on a hoot or drinking binge]}, suspected what errand applied
.  He sneaked unnoticed down towards the river bank in the evening and he hid among some bushes near the landing-pier, then waited for her to come home.  He did not have to wait long.  She followed readily in a boat and came over the river!  He barely raised his hand to make some sign to Brita, and she became aware of his presence.  She had not gone far from the beach when she remembered that she had forgotten the boat, which she must return, and so – the father came home without his daughter that evening.  

However, in this love story the parent’s wishes succeeded in the end.  

Brita eventually married Olof Göransson, and they became the parents of three of the “Finlands-kämparna” {Fighters of Finland} from Mörsil: Köstin, Bång and Lang.  Their fourth son, Nils became a farmer in Äsom.  

Bång and Köstin were killed
 in Finland, but Mårten Lang came back from the war with his remaining comrades and lived with his wife Märit for their remaining days on his farm, which was located near the current farm of Erik Lithström in Österuppland.  His cottage was named after himself, Langstugan (Lang Cottage).

On November 3, 1856, an Estate Assessment was conducted after pensioner Mårten Lang of Hinterland died on the 3rd of October and left a widow and three children behind.  The children were son Olof, of legal age
, daughter Brita married to Company Worker Erik Hansson of Fäviken, and Anna, married to Pehr Nilsson Lind of Sällsved.  

All were present and the property is appraised and sold afterwards by his surviving wife Märit Andersdotter.  The statement and assessment were as follows:

{48 Species per Riksdaler}
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	Rd  Sp

	1
	ea
	Copper Kettle 9 ms
	6.
	
	
	
	Subtotal brought forward from left below
	9.6

	1
	ea
	Coffee Pot
	.36
	
	2
	ea
	Cooking Pots
	1.

	1
	ea
	Cutting ax and 1 Broad Ax
	.12
	
	1
	ea
	Roasting Kettle
	.8

	1
	ea
	Mullgref
	. 8
	  
	1
	ea
	Wooden Lye Container
	.12

	1
	ea
	Hamme and hoftång
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	1
	ea
	Chest
	. 6

	1
	ea
	iron spoon
	. 8
	
	3
	ea
	Rope Handled Pails
	.16

	1
	ea
	Smaller Låggiron
	. 4
	
	1
	ea
	Wax Polish
	. 4

	1
	ea
	Pickaxe
	.12
	
	2
	ea
	
	.16

	1
	ea
	Handsaw
	.16
	
	3
	ea
	Tubs
	.12

	1
	ea
	Hålskafvare
	. 8
	
	3
	ea
	Stone basins
	.10

	1
	ea
	Hay Chucker?
	. 4
	
	1
	ea
	Wooden Cups etc.
	. 2

	1
	ea
	List hifvil å winkil
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	2
	ea
	Backmäjsar
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	1
	ea
	Straight Knife with Box
	. 4
	
	5
	ea
	Waste Fabric?
	. 6

	1
	ea
	Box with Scrapiron
	. 2
	
	1
	ea
	Cupboard
	. 2

	1
	ea
	Whittling knife
	. 4
	
	4
	ea
	Trough
	. 4

	1
	ea
	Auger, etc.
	. 8
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	1
	ea
	Brass Box
	.16
	
	
	
	Estage demand from  
	

	
	
	 
	9.6
	
	
	
	Agnis Andersdotter of Bye
	

	
	
	Mens and Working Clothes
	
	
	
	
	for pension and Burial help
	20.38

	2
	ea
	Hats
	.18
	
	
	
	
	

	1
	ea
	Waist Coats
	1.16 
	
	
	
	
	

	1
	ea
	Blue Trouseers and Sweater
	2.16
	
	
	
	Total Assets
	55.47

	2
	ea
	Corset
	.24
	
	
	
	The Estate’s Debts
	

	1
	ea
	 ” of leather
	. 8
	
	
	
	Nils Mattsson of Högen
	10.16

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1
	ea
	Old Trousers & Sweater
	1. 4
	
	
	
	Daniel Ersson of Bye
	1.28

	1
	ea
	Reindeer Pelt with
	
	
	
	
	Funeral costs
	10.

	
	
	skjerp
	1.
	
	
	
	the Testament?
	.24

	1
	pr
	Dogskin gloves
	.12
	
	
	
	for Bakning and burial
	1.16

	1
	ea
	Shirt of Cotton
	1.
	
	
	
	Paid to assessor
	

	1
	pr
	Stockings of thread
	.32
	
	
	
	Jon Nilsson of Bye
	1.

	1
	pr 
	Snow socks
	.12
	
	
	
	Jonas Ersson of Högen
	1.16

	1
	pr
	Suspenders
	. 8
	
	
	
	
	25.  4

	2
	ea
	Scarves
	.16
	
	
	
	Total Balance
	30.43
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	pr
	High Boots, 2 pair shoes
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	Leather Säkar
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	Then all of the property 
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	and claims, which occur with a 
	

	1
	ea
	Sheepskin hide
	3.
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	1
	ea
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	declared and not the smallest
	

	1
	ea
	Pillow
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	1
	ea
	Strop Bed
	1.
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	ea
	Cotton yarn
	1.12
	
	
	
	Oath is confirmed as given.
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	ea
	Flax to
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	Märit M Andersdotter
	

	
	
	
	35.15
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


The preceding property is rightfully evaluated and this assessment is certified on the above year and date.  

Jon Nilsson of Bye Jonas Ersson of Högen.  The poor share is paid and a receipt given by Olof Larsson of Ocke to get rid of it.

Agnes Andersdotter
Table 26 (97)

Agnes Andersdotter4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C9
	Agnes Andersdotter 
	B
	May 30, 1788
	
	Agnes lived in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Sölvsved, Kall.

	
	
	M
	
	
	There were no

	S
	Jonas Spelman 
	B
	1798
	
	children in this 

	
	
	D
	Apr 29, 1878
	
	marriage.


Afterwards, Company Worker Jonas Spelman and his wife {Agnes Andersdotter} had joint ownership for 9 years of a Company farm in Sällsved.  They managed to live there in both the winter and summer with a small amount of Reserved Rights.  They provided sincere and honest service and were ready and willing to serve on all occasions.  

Jonas purchased the farm in 1830:

Since I {Olof Spelman???} do not have my own direct heirs, I therefore find it good to allow the testament of Jonas Spelman and his wife Agnis Andersdotter, that all the little loose property which is found within their small cottage can, by whatever name it may be called, 

without that my relatives own power there that 

Jonas Spelman
 and his wife are to provide me with care in my old age as necessary, in the event a longer lifetime is my destiny.  

The hereby testament and provide certified with my name signed below in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Sällsved on January 19, 1830



Olof Spelman

This last will and testament is hereby completed with a sound mind and a free will as certified by Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved in his own handwriting and Bertil Jonsson the same as before.

From Undersäker District Court AII: 89 

Jonas sold the farm to his wife’s niece in 1852:

I {Jonas Spelman} hereby receive my release of my ownership rights and responsibilities to Company Farm No. 90 in the Village of Sellsved.  This i XE "i" ncludes all of my rights contained in the executed contract from Company Trustee Mr. O. F. Lorich on April 29, 1822.  This farm is under the jurisdiction of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company Farm in the same Village.

I {Jonas Spelman} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to the niece (maid Anna Mårtensdotter} of my wife {Agnes Andersdotter}, who has provided my wife and I with faithful and honest service for many years.  The agreement is as follows:

Anna Mårtensdotter, or the subsequent farm owner, shall provide the following annual Reserved Rights to both my wife and I for our remaining lifetimes:  

· feed and fodder in winter and summer for 1 cow and 4 sheep or goats (2 sheep and 2 goats) and three of their offspring

· one and one-fourth (1¼) barrels of grain in heaped measure.  Half of that which is grown on the farm each year, the other half in addition to the one-fourth (¼) of the rye that is levied for the Copper Mining Company
.

· fertilized and plowed potatoes öf XE "öf"  for one-half (½) barrel annually chosen in the same part of the field where the farmer plants his potatoes.  

· provide the field called the “little barn field” for my own use and provide me with 10 loads of the usual fertilizer each year  

· the hay field that is found between this hay and land

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced to/by: 

· one-fourth (¼) barrel of grain, 

· 2 sheep or goats and one of their offspring.  

· The entrance hall with a small attic above it in the new cottage for lodging

· access and usage of the granary, cellar, barn and pantry as necessary

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after death  

The farm buyer is also responsible for paying both ordinary and Special taxes and burdens by whatever names or composition they may be.  

His heirs shall have all of the rights and benefits from this farm as written in the contract with the Copper Mining Company

It is hereby agreed, completed, and confirmed with our signatures and Signature Marks in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Sellsved on July 5, 1852


Seller and Reserved



Rights recipient:
Jonas Spelman


Buyer and Reserved


Rights provider:
Anna Mårtensdotter farms
(98)
Witness:
Erik Persson and Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, both of Sellsved

My wife {Anna Mårtensdotter} and I {Pehr Nilsson Lind} now take possession of this farm with the consent of the seller {Jonas Spelman}.  

Therefore, I agree to fulfill all the terms and conditions on this Company Farm as written in the contract, and assure the payment of all the obligations including Reserved Rights benefits.


Huså on May 15, 1852



Pehr  (Signature Mark) Nilsson Lind

(98)
Witness: 
L.  Mureen F. Kjellsson is liked and is agreed to on the Copper Mining Company behalf 



J. E. Lindström 

Pehr Nilsson Lind sold this farm in 1878.

By the authority of this power of attorney, I {Pehr Nilsson Lind} hereby release and sell my ownership rights to this farm that was purchased from Jonas Spelman in Sellsved to the Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company. 

This i XE "i" ncludes all of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 84 consisting of a cottage building, a granary, a shelter, a shop, a cattle barn, a soapstone oven in one of the rooms, a bedroom cabinet, and all other belongings on this homestead. 

The seller hereby, through this power of attorney, renounces for himself and his surviving relatives all kretanter XE "kretanter" 
 or ownership rights to any that preferably may be on this homestead, other than the personal property of Jonas Spelman., 

The agreed upon purchase amount of three hundred (300) Riksdaler is to be paid as follows:

· One hundred (100) Riksdaler is hereby paid in cash.

· Two hundred (200) Riksdaler shall later be paid so that the old man (Jonas Spelman} receives monthly payments from the Copper Mining Company Contract Office from ten
 (10) the Royal Government until this total is reached.  

In the case of death before the completion of these payments, these monthly payments shall go to the persons such as the heirs or guardians that are proven to have legal rights to them.



Huså on February 13, 1878



Seller:
Eric Berglund (according to  power of attorney)



Jemtland Copper & Logging Company (Gottf.  Engberg) 

(99)
Witness: 
E.  Lundberg 



C. T. Johansson

P.S.  This farm was located in Gärde in Sölvsved, Kall

From Huså Company Archives

This farm can feed 3 cows, 10 sheep and 10 goats and 1¼ barrels of grain and 3¼ barrels of potatoes were planted each year.

Testimony of Jonas Spelman and his wife Agnes Andersdotter of Sellsved:

Since, my wife {Agnes Andersdotter} and I {Jonas Spelman} do not have our own direct heirs, we have completed this explicit provision between us in kindness and with mature reflection.  

This provision is that it is both of our definite desires that the one of us that survives the other shall alone have ownership rights and the right to keep and use all the loose property that can be found in our barn by whatever name it may be called.

The survivor may use and dispose of it in any manner they desire.  

This final bequest is hereby completed in kindness and agreement is arrived as attested with our signatures.  

Correctness is certified in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Sellsved on April 12, 1837


Jonas Spelman 


Agnis Andersdotter of Sellsved


Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved 


Jonas Andersson of the same Village

This testimony of the undersigned is completely understood word for word and acknowledged on this date.


Sellsved on May 12, 1845



Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Mårten Säll


(100)
Witness: 
L.  Murén

It is hereby acknowledged that we, the other party, also agree with the written testimony and it is hereby approved with free and voluntary will.


Kall and Sellsved on April 29, 1854



Jonas Spelman 



Agnis Andersdotter of Sellsved


Witness:
Eric Pehrsson of Sellsved

On December 31, 1854, the undersigned witnesses were summoned to hear that Jonas Spelman and his wife Agnis Andersdotter both agreed to the preceding testimony.  

This was affirmed and certified by Eric Pehrsson and Jonas Andersson, both of Sellsved.  

On April 2, 1859, husband and wife {Jonas Spelman and Agnis Andersdotter} have summoned us, the undersigned witnesses, to hear the preceding testimony, which is hereby affirmed and certified on the above date.



Eric Pehrsson and Anders Jonasson, both of Sellsved

Anna Stina Ersdotter
Table 27 (100)

Anna Stina Ersdotter4, Esten Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C1
	Anna Stina Ersdotter 
	B
	Oct 28, 1786
	
	Anna lived in Nordhallen, Åre.

	
	
	D
	June 19, 1803 
	
	

	
	
	M
	May 8, 1829
	
	

	S
	Johan Ersson
	B
	June 19, 1803
	
	There were no children in this marriage.

	
	
	D
	Feb 18, 1899
	
	


Johan was the son of Erik Johansson and Kerstin Carlsdotter.  In 1805 the family moved from Duved to Nordhallen.  Erik wanted to see his farm in 1809.

On October 16, 1809, an assessment was conducted by the undersigned on the farm of Erik Johansson of Nordhallen, who had purchased it for four years of labor from farmer Olof Olsson of Nordhallen.

The entire farm of house, meadow, and cropland measures 240 alnars {480 feet} by 105 alnars {210 feet}.  

Farmer Erik Johansson has, with the consent of all his neighbors, received permission to use and cultivate land near the undivided forest that is 80 alnars {160 feet} to the east from the old fenced pasture and 48 alnars {96 feet} to the south from the old cultivated field.

The above land is allowed to farmer Erik Johansson of Nordhallen as affirmed by the undersigned.


Farmer:
Anders Andersson of Nordhallen



Anders Olsson of Nordhallen



Olof Jonsson of Nordhallen



Sven Nilsson of Nordhallen



Eric Olsson of Nordhallen



Per Andersson of Nordhallen



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Nordhallen

(101)
Witness:
Johan Israel Noraus






Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hälland





Per Olsson of Nordhallen





His (Johan Ersson} father {Erik Johansson} died at 41 years of age and was buried on June 24, 1811.  

His mother {Kerstin} lived on this farm until her death on July 18, 1858.  

Johan took over the farm, and his mother lived with Johan and his wife.  

Johan's siblings were: 

· Gölu born on September 26, 1804 in Duved  

· Sigrin born on May 3, 1807 in Nordhallen 

· Carl born on July 4, 1809 in Nordhallen  

They all moved away.

Testimony

The undersigned legally married couple, with free wills and sound minds, have hereby made the following contract and sales agreement:  

Since we do not have any direct heirs, and since one of us shall outlive the other, our free and unencumbered ownership rights to the little property that is found after either of our deaths shall be inherited and legally acquired by the survivor.

This applies to all the little property, either loose or fixed, and by whatever name and composition it may be.

However, after both of our deaths, all of the remaining property is left to the daughter {Kerstin Nilsdotter} of the sister of Johan Ersson and their son Johan Olsson.  

They may occupy it the same as if it were left to our own children.  


Ähre and Nordhallen on September 24, 1860



Johan Ersson and Anna Stina Estensdotter

(101)
Witness: 
A. Andersson of Kyrkbyn 



Olof Andersson of Nordhallen

Brita Essing
Table 28 (102)

Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C1
	Brita Essing 
	B
	July 2, 1782 
	
	Brita first lived in Husä then moved to Sandnäset where most of the children were born.  Later they moved to Baksjönäset and the two youngest children were born there.  In 1824 they moved to Lien in Offerdal and purchased a farm there in 1826.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 11, 1807 
	
	

	S
	Halvar Andersson 
	B
	Aug 29, 1774 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 16, 1858
	
	

	Dl
	Gunnar Halvarsson 
	B
	Dec 10, 1807 
	
	

	Table 73
	
	D
	Jan 27, 1890
	
	

	D2
	Anna Halvarsdotter 
	B
	May 17, 1810 
	
	

	Table 74
	
	D
	Mar 2, 1870
	
	

	D3
	Catarina Halvarsdotter 
	B
	May 23, 1812 
	
	

	Table 75
	
	D
	Mar 1, 1870
	
	

	D4
	Brita Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Sep 21, 1814 
	
	Brita was buried on June 11, 1888 in Ösd.

	Table 76
	
	D
	about  June 11, 1888
	
	

	D5
	Agnes Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Oct 20, 1816 
	
	

	Table 77
	
	D
	July 28, 1888
	
	

	D6
	Anders Halvarsson 
	B
	Dec 13, 1818 
	
	

	Table 78
	
	D
	June 25, 1889 
	Vuku
	

	D7
	Göran Halvarsson 
	B
	Apr 12, 1821 
	
	

	Table 79
	
	D
	Aug 29, 1900
	
	

	D8
	Kerstin Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Sep 10, 1823 
	
	

	Table 80
	
	D
	Oct 10, 1898
	
	


On July 8, 1810, an assessment was conducted on new Company Farm
 No. ___ in the Village of Husån that was first lived on by Company Worker Halfvar Andersson.   

A year later it was taken over by Copper Mining Company farmhand Olof Gråberg (the younger) and at that time the farm gegan XE "gegan"  and buildings were recorded as follows:

1. A cottage building built in 1807 at the Copper Mining Company expense with all accessories and with 6 corners, 14 alnars {28 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide, 12 layers high with a board roof and lath strips, Carpenters roof inside on beams stored for usage with filling of dirt, A fireplace in the cottage with a baking oven, iron spikes to secure the logs and well braced.
A wood damper and a stone damper.  The floor is built of sawed boards.  It has a little cellar under it with a hatch without hinges.  2 pairs of putty windows with demand inside and 12 whole panes in each.  Bed and bedroom cabinet provided with a door on hinges.  Roof without a lock(?) Table and chair, 2 benches, a door with pandning XE "pandning" 
 on hinges and an iron latch.
Porch house with a pair of sandstone that are old and broken and without smikning XE "smikning" 
(?).  Roof and floor of planks, but the floor needs repair.  a door on hinges with pandning
 for porch.  The floor of the cottage should be replaced and Odarpan XE "Odarpan" (?)
By this within the seller catch set up cellar as if it were thrown up over a hole with a board hatch over it.
half built, built of boards.

2. Small house also built by the Copper Mining Company in 1807 with a barn with 6 corners and accessories, 13½ alnars {27 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 10 layers high.  It is covered with tree branches, evergreen bark, moss and boards and has room for 4 cows and 20 sheep or goats.  It is provided with hay-loft, a floor and a doors on hinges with a lock, all in good condition.  A feed shed also with a door on hinges.  Floor of which the seller placed some portion that he received transported with.

Croplands within roof.

one-fourth (¼) maling of land that the seller cultivated, however it does not which to the does not without further cleaning can be run and is used with plow and a little fertilizer, therefore only compensate.

The farm fence, 40 fathoms of new farm fence on the south side.  60 fathoms of scrubby pasture east of Feviken Kalljön and 92 fathoms west of the lake, for that reason it was regarded to be used in exchange for 3 days of work.

4 days of work is used to cultivate the manor house within roof.



Anders Bergström The inspector



Olof Gråberg (the younger)

(103)


Buyer:
Christian Aspgren 



Lars Lind


Seller:
Halfvar Andersson (through Power of Attorney)

Halvar Andersson purchased Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien from Olof Persson.  This farm consisted of 5/12 of an acre.  

The First Proclamation was on September 19, 1826, the Second Proclamation was on February 10, 1827, and the Third Proclamation was on September 19, 1827.

Purchase Agreement

I {Olof Pehrsson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife hereby knowingly release and sell one-half of my inheritance rights to one-third of the farm to the tenant living on this place (Halfvard Andersson from Backsjönäset Village and Kall Parish}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my inheritance rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien consisting of 5/12 of an acre in Dragonehållet No. 17 with the First Lieutenants Company and Jemtland Field Soldier regiment.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes all of the buildings, land, summer mountain cabins, fish, sawmill, mills and mill house, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

The agreed upon purchase amount of five hundred sixty six (566) Riksdaler and 32 Species, or 377 Riksdaler 37 Kronors 4 Rune Pieces in Bank Money is to be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session. 

The buyer of this one-half then has for their Reserved Rights weight with this farm can now be overloaded.

Confirmation is hereby attested with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Offerdahl on October 18, 1824


Seller: 
Olof Pehrsson of Lien



Buyer: 
Halfvard Andersson of Backsjönäset  


(103)
Witness: 
Gabriel Borg of Bängäsen



Nils Gabrielsson of Bångåsen

I {Olof Pehrsson} have already sold one-half of my inheritance rights to one-third of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien consisting of 5/12 of an acre in accordance with this contract.  

I {Olof Pehrsson} after mature deliberation hereby knowingly release and sell the other half to Halfvard Andersson for a purchase amount of 288 Riksdaler 42 kronor 8 Rune Pieces Bank Money.  

By the means of this last agreement, he now becomes the owner of 2/3 of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien, consisting of 5/6 of an acre, and he has all of the accompanying rights and responsibilities contained in the last agreement.

This transaction is hereby confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Offerdahl on October 18, 1824


Seller:
Olof Pehrsson of Lien



Buyer:
Halfvard Andersson of Lien


(104)
Witness: 
Gabriel Manor house of Bångåsen 



Nils Gabrielsson of Bångåsen

After reciting 

of this Court Title Deed of October 8, 1808 to Olof Persson by widow Elin Nilsdotter for the annual Reserved Rights according to the contract of September 29, 1807 

is heard

purchased this farm that in the Purchase Agreement the mentioned 5/12 of an acre and was put into the Deed Book.  

However, the tax record notified is written incorrectly, 

for the farm is shown to consist altogether of  5/6 of an acre from which that does both (?) taxes and burdens and also the large inheritance distribution in village received ownership.

Since the purchase was witnessed, the seller also ta XE "ta" kes possession of 5/12 of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien is the guardian
 happens the District Court examines with 4 Chapter 1 of the Common Laws according to, 

to on the share of the same farm that Halfvard Andersson purchased from Olof Persson wish for the buyer now ____ the First Proclamation

However it was, when later put into the Deed Book, divided between Elin Nilsdotter and Olof Persson according to an agreement of September 29, 1807 for of the District Court was shown to revenues of this property’s share rightful homestead.

Their son Gunnar Halfvarsson purchased Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien consisting of 5/6 of an acre from Halvar Andersson.  

According to the Purchase Agreement and Assessment Records of September 16, 1835, the First Proclamation was on September 15, 1834 Bill of Sale, the Second Proclamation was on April 28, 1835, and the Third Proclamation was on September 14, 1835.

Agnes Essing
Table 29 (105)

Agnes Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C2
	Agnes Essing 
	B

D
	Jan 13, 1787 
	
	Agnes lived in Sörvera, Verdal, Norway.

	
	
	M
	1808
	
	

	S
	Morten Mortensen 
	B
	June 27, 1778 
	Trysil, Norway
	

	
	
	D
	1846
	Vera
	

	D1
	stillborn son 
	B
	1808
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


It is said that Agnes suspected a maid was getting together with Morten, and Agnes closed the maid into the barn and lit it on fire.  The maid had definitely out maneuvered her.  Agnes had a hot temper and was very strong willed.  Morten managed two farms, and the road he used between them came to be called Morten Road.  Reidar Prestmo and Johannes Overmo have written a description of the road, after having visited with the local inhabitants, and it is important information to view.

Photograph (105)

Agnes and Morten lived on this farm.  

Back row of the photograph from left to right: 

1. Martin Röstad

2. Ingemar Jönsson (my father)

3. Ole Olsen

4. Einar Haga

5. Ole Haldorsen

6. His wife Berit Marta (born Nonseth)

7. Anna Olsen (born Halseth)

8. Marie Baglo (wife of the photographer)

Boys in front from left to right:

1. Sigvald Sjömaling 

2. Bernhard Olsen

Sitting from left to right: 

1. Inga Röstad (born  Halseth)

2. Alfhild Olsen

3. Sigurd Olsen
 and Signe Indahl

Ole and Anna were the farm tenants and parents of Alfhild, Bernhard and Sigurd.  

Einar Haga was the son of Anna Olsen.  

The photograph was taken in about 1937 or 1938.  The great cottage was built in the latter half of the 1800's.  The littler picture is  much older and is now scratched up.

The owner of this photograph is Bernhard Olsen of Sörvera

Morten Road

The man that this path or road was named after was Morten Mortensen of Vären, born in Trysil in about 1788.  He was the son of the first settler from Trysil to Vera, who came about 1800.  Morten Mortensen Sr. was born about 1752 in Trysil and later settled in Vera.  

Inger Karin Olsen of Nyhus writes of Morten Sr.  in a letter that year, "Morten Mortensen with his family were the first to travel from Våråholla Nyhus".  He had sent information home that there was plenty of good land that was easily obtainable in Verdal, Norway.  "There are a lot of stones here".  

It was probably because it was the most traveled northern route.  Morten Jr. married Agnes Essing in 1808.  She was the daughter of Gunnar Essing, a settler in Sandnäset.  This marriage appears to be childless.  

It is also not correct, which was written in Verdals {Norway} Book
, that he seems to have been gone from the house for a long time after the marriage.  In 1815, they lived in northern Vären and in 1819 in Vären’s southern Moen.

The 3 South Veras farms were located in a group.  There were not enough resources for the people, and as the years went on it took the sense of humor from everything and everybody.

There is still a story told now and then about a "Big War" between the women on the 3 farms.  All of them got water from Sve-Creek, and they worked in a small team sometimes.

On Christmas Eve one of the old women had filled her bucket, and one of the others had come by on some errand.  There was very little water and they quickly started a big quarrel.  That ended when the one who had filled her bucket emptied it over the other one’s head.  Perhaps that was the reason that the 3 farmers moved away from each other after that.  Agnes and Morten moved to Moen.

Morten also had a Stormoen in Sul from 1826.  It was this road between the two farms that later got the name "Morten Road".

Helgådalsnytt {Helga Valley Newspaper} has tried to reconstruct this road.  One must assume that Morten had a summer road and a winter road.  It is the summer road that we will look for.

The road went from the summer barns in Sör-Vera {South Vera} "Moen" down to a creek that runs from Grästjärnen to Veressjön.  Along the lake to Surusvollen by outlet of Årvill Brook
.  From here it went slowly or the roads to the south to Slaggäsen-Stormyren{Big Slaggäsen Swamp}, past Gäshålet, Ärvillbacken.  Along eastern side of Vassdalen "Sörversvassdalen”.

It goes past Finnkojhaugen, which lies west of Skjethölknoppen, ahead to the center of Vassdaltjärn.  There it turns to the southwest and goes past Flåttåtjårnen and Godbröhöla and down to a creek from Little Bellingen where it crossed between the two Billingarna.  A little above Billingsvola it goes to the left and down to the front part of the valley and then it goes from Lillebellingen and to the southwest to where Gustav Olsakojan lied.  This valley is still today called Mortens Road.

From the cabin of Gustav Olsa it went above the pond north of Drivsjö.  There are no additional written or verbal stories to be found.  But the local inhabitants of Sul means that then have wave continuous on the eastern side of southern Drivsjö.  It was taken of there and goes up to Skjurulibäcken there Morten Road met the mountain pasture road from Sul to Juldalen.  The mountain pasture road goes along Lilleån’s eastern side.  In Morten’s time it went from Sul to Stormoen, a little further above Småliene.

This is a brief sketch of what we have found.

The winter road that Morten used most likely went along lakes and swamplands for the most part, where the frozen crust of snow was the strongest, because Morten also traveled with livestock in the wintertime.  

One could ask him many questions about how he knew how to care for livestock up there in the wintertime.  We know that Iver Tronsmo moved his livestock from Sveet to Tronsmoen during Easter time.  But Morten had gone that long route many times.  The livestock was small then.  The carcass weight in autumn was about 80 to 90 kilograms
.  Did he have snow shoes on the oxen like Ann Magritt described in the Falkebergets novels?

Were the livestock so light that the spring frozen snow crust could hold them?  From forest director Leif Lykke we received this news story, written down of forest administrator Moen.  We will reproduce it as written in Moen:

"Morten Mortensen leased South Währen this spring for an annual lease payment of 2 bismerpunds {? pounds} of butter.  In 1820, the lease for this farm was 1 Riksdaler and 40 Species.  Starting in 1826, he also leased Stormoen of Sul for an annual lease of 8 Riksdaler.  He operated both farms for many years.  Starting in 1829, the lease payment on South Währen was 2 Riksdaler and 96 Species and on Stormoen 12 Riksdaler.  In 1837 and 1838, he paid 16 Riksdaler Stormoen.  It is said that when he had finished the hay in one place he moved his livestock to the other place where there was hay left.  The distance was about 4 mil {24 miles}.

Ingvald Tronsmo said that Morten moved his crew to the upper mountain area in the wintertime.  The road to Morten Road is easy.  In one place it can be difficult, from Gustav Olsa’s shack up to Morten Road.  The Helgå Valley News
 is going to advise their readers to make a ski trip to go from the Karl farm in Sul to Vera and back.

The sources for this were Bernhard Olsen, Trygve Sisselvold, Ingvald Tronsmo, and Gudrun Olsen.  These are three residents of Veres.  Remaining is, Leif Lykke, Ola Eng, and Asbjörn Sul.  These have been described in the Helgå Valley News in 1984.

Note:

In this photograph from Sörvera, school was held in the little house in the 1800's.  One of the students in Vera at that time was Ole Rönning, who went to school there.  He was born in 1871.

Did Morten perhaps build the cottage?  The owner of this photograph, Bernhard Olsen, did not know how old it was, but that it was much older than the larger.

There was a great room with a fireplace, and probably some individual furniture as was necessary.
Catarina Essing
Table 30 (108)

Catarina Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C3
	Catarina Essing 
	B
	Sep 3, 1789 
	
	Catarina lived in Baksjönäset  , Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Feb 1, 1811
	
	

	S
	Olof Jonasson 
	B
	June 30, 1781 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 10, 1860 
	Digernäset
	

	D1
	Jonas Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Nov 10, 1811 
	
	

	Table 81
	
	D
	Oct 1, 1874
	
	

	D2
	Gunnar Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Apr 7, 1815
	
	

	Table 82
	
	D
	
	
	

	D3
	Ursilla Olofsdotter 
	B
	July 8, 1818 
	
	

	Table 83
	
	D
	Dec 30, 1896
	
	


In 1861 the approval came to widow {Catharina Essing} of Baksjönäset, through Juror Johan Carlsson of Konäs, 

who had made the request, found the District Court’s ruling reasonable attest this widow underage children and decreed to farmer Johan Larsson of Segerdahlen that, in property by guardianship and under statutory responsibility support Catharina Gunnarsdotter through administration of her property and give merit to the rest of her concerns, however the Proclamation ought etc by Catharina Gunnarsdotter assets is repudiated.

On this occasion from Undersåker District Court Judgment of October 13, 1823, and after the previous Proclamation from the Kall Church Pulpit, 

conducted by the undersigned on the written day, assessment of the farms after Olof Jonsson moved to this place for three years time conducted, and are as follows:

The new farm provide down 1009 alnars {2,018 feet} east of the old western, on uplands place, the soil consists of red humus and shale and stones mixed into the soil.

An attempt was made to dig a well.  At certain times of the year it gives water, but it must also be taken from the lake.

On the new homestead are built:

1. A cottage with 10 corners, 24 alnars {48 feet} long, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide and 16 layers high of fir wood, furnished for 2 cottages and 2 small rooms, all in good condition.

2. A new cellar with a wooden strong room
, and a cool room
, 8 alnars {16 feet} long and 6 alnars {12 feet} wide in good condition.

3. A barn 13 alnars {26 feet} long, 13 alnars {26 feet} wide and 12 layers high with a fireplace and the frame inside in good condition.

4. A barn with a haystack 18 alnars {36 feet} long, and a threshing barn is set up in the barn, and a hay shed for 2 horses.  All in good condition.

5. A shed with 6 corners 11 alnars {22 feet} long 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 10 layers high and in good condition.

6. A travel-shed
 for 16 horses, all in good condition.

7. A barn with stone foundation walls and dry benches
 in good condition.

8. A summer barn 14 alnars {28 feet} long and 10 alnars {20 feet} wide in good condition.

9. A boat house in good condition.

Cultivated new land of 8 malings, near a well overgrown fir forest, and some stone fenced land.

Broken up and cultivated meadow of 5 malings in expanse, of similar land which the fields.

The farm is divided and the tenant on the old plot
 was 2/3 of an acre, and Olof Jonsson receives 1 1/3 acres.  The farm is located so that almost everywhere the bare mountains give a poor location.  However, during the current migration second tenant in time  is able to live and receive their livelihood, and the inspector accepted 15 tax-free years as the highest bid, who for complete legality rely on this Court as respectfully requested.  


Baksjönäset on October 13, 1824



J. B. Nyblén 



Olof Johansson of Kolåsen 



Jakob Andersson of Back

On December 6, 1843, a written application for division of the farm in Baksjönäset between Jonas and Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson was submitted, which they had purchased from their parents.

I {Olof Jonasson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Catarina Essing} hereby knowingly release and sell our un-mortgaged Lapland Municipal farm in Backsjönäset Village, Kall Parish, and Undersåker Municipality to our two sons (Jonas and Gunnar Olofssöner}. 

They are to divide the farm of 1 and 1/3rd taxable acres in half between them.

The total purchase amount is 600 Riksdaler and each of them is to pay 66 Riksdaler of this total in cash or in land sound to their sister {Årsill or Ursilla}.  

The remainder of this amount is to be divided in half between these brothers.

I order with a free will and a sound mind that they must divide everything on this Lapland Municipality estate equally without reproach and detriment on either side, and that their wives and children shall have eternal ownership and occupancy rights to this property.  

This is requested of the Honorable County Governor Office Official celebration.  

Both of us are satisfied with this transaction and the above Purchase Agreement as certified below.  


Backsjönäset on October 16, 1843


Seller:
Olof Jonasson of Backsjönäset (Farmer)  


Buyers:
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and Gunnar Olofsson.

(110)
Witness: 
Anders Andersson (the elder) of Sundet 



Anders Persson of Sundet

On the behalf of buyers Jonas Olofssons and Gunnar Olofssons, the undersigned go in complete trust that the farm in Backsjönäset through their action will not be allowed to deteriorate without making more cultivation and improvements which is assured in Segerdallen on October 20, 1843.


Olof Ersson of Segerdalen 
Anders Andersson of Segerdalen

My wife {Catharina Gunnarsdotter} and I {Olof Jonasson} are to receive the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for the remainder of our lifetimes:

· One barrel of clean grain from each son

· One (1) cow and 4 goats or sheep with their offspring from each son

· land and meadow between: the winter road and the southern lake to Bollstagan at one corner, the sheds and stone barn at the second corner and from there west to Bodsjön? (probably Baksjön {Back Lake} for the third corner, all of which is on the west side of Storå 

· the exception is that the land on the isthmus that shall belong to the local farmers

· The forest haymaking on the south side of the mill to Djupmyran {Djup Swamp} {Djup Swamp} and Ericmyran {Eric Swamp} and south to Sjön Anjan {Lake Anjan}

· The outer cottage with small rooms and an attic for lodging 

· the barn house with one room 

· access and usage to the other buildings as necessary

· Firewood and heat 

· A ride to and from church and other errands as necessary

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A ride for the feed at the manor house that I reserve for myself 

It is the desire of my wife {Catharina Essing} and I {Olof Jonasson}, that if I am called first, the Reserved Rights are reduced in half.  If my wife dies first, then they are reduced by/to one-third.  



Olof Jonasson of Backsjönäset {Back Lake Point}

This was supported in part by a transcript from the Royal Court Judgment in Jemtlands County in a document on this Royal Government Homestead in the Village of Backsjönäset consisting of 2 acres.  

After reading of this document, the District Court certified the Royal Government Homestead in the Village of Backsjönäset consisting of 2 acres, 

of which now the question is heard that advantageous possessions and cottages that the two be able to live there, 

in agreement with those in the Royal Court Judgment of farm division and severance of the land on country on December 19, 1827 established reasons is decided, therefore complied with, constantly the same Royal Court Judgment.  

This District Court itself allowed the applicants Jonas and Gunnar Olofssöner, as the tenants under special homestead accounting
, 

to divide this Royal Government Homestead in the Village of Backsjönäset  consisting entirely of 2 acres equally between the two of them and to note in the Common Law Books and the other Royal Government Records that they are properly entered, 

future husband also the Royal Court Judgment in the county that considers Jonas and Gunnar Olofssöner to be the farm tenants on the questioned farm, which is released.

Photograph (111)

The old bridge in Baksjönäset countryside in about 1910.  It was torn down in 1941 after the new concrete bridge was built.  Before the bridge was built, people used to shout: "When will the boat be coming over to this side.”  Arthur Asplund told me this story.

Per Essing
Table 31 (112)

Per Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C5
	Per Essing 
	B
	Apr 28, 1793
	
	Per was a farmer in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Sandnäset Kall.

	
	
	M
	Dec 19, 1820 
	
	

	S
	Brita Persdotter 
	B
	Nov 27, 1790 
	Bye, Mörsil
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 5, 1861
	
	

	D1
	Gunnar Persson 
	B
	June 23, 1822 
	
	

	Table 84
	
	D
	Feb 20, 1914
	
	

	D2
	Per Persson 
	B
	Dec 19, 1824 
	
	

	Table 85
	
	D
	Sep 7, 1899
	
	

	D3
	Magnus Persson 
	B
	Apr 25, 1827 
	
	

	Table 86
	
	D
	Aug 3, 1896
	
	

	D4
	Kerstin Persdotter 
	B
	Aug 5, 1833 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 18, 1827 
	Baksjönäset  
	

	D5
	Kerstin Persdotter 
	B
	Feb 1, 1838 
	
	I have found no information on 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Kerstin.


Per filed an affidavit to partition the farm as shown below:

I {Per Gunnarsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Persdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my two oldest sons (Gunnar and Per Persson}. 

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sannäset in Lappmarks in Kall Parish and Undersåker Municipality consisting of 2 taxable acres and they are to divide the farm equally in half between them with 1 acre to each.

The purchase amount is five hundred thirty three (533) Riksdaler 16 Species and of this total or in property tax one hundred thirty three (133) Riksdaler 16 Species shall be paid immediately to their brother {Magnus} and their sister {Kjerstin}.  

The other this total divide theirs between these buyers of one-half (½) each, 

I release my ownership rights to this Lapland Farm with a free will and a sound mind and order that they must divide everything else equally between them that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

Their wives and children may also have eternal ownership and occupancy rights to this property.

Both of us are satisfied with this contract as certified in Sannäset in Kall Parish and Jemtlands County on July 3, 1854.

My wife {Brita Persdotter} and I {Per Gunnarsson} shall receive the following annual Reserved Rights for the remainder of  our lifetimes: 

· 2 cows and 8 sheep or goats and their subsequent offspring

· 1 maling land in the fallow field 

· 1 barrel of potatoes sold in the usual field 

· 1 barrel of salted fish

· infields west of the farm from fence to cabbage field to the river and lake, to cultivated land that is lying nearby – 

· the forest hay
, Holmtjernslotten
, Andersmyran {Anders Swamp}
, further Qvarnmyren {Qvarn Swamp}
, 

· 10 loads manor house north of Wakerslotten
, Äbomyran {Äbo Swamp}
 - Röbergmyran {Röberg Swamp}
, new fäbowallmyran {Fäbowall Swamp}
 out new fäbowallen
 a piece meadow marked out on manor house

· The southern cottage with small rooms and an attic for lodging 

· new small rooms, 

· little shed downwards, 

· access and usage of the cellar, storehouse, cottages, and other buildings as necessary 

· transportation for the feed that harvest on the manor house I reserve for myself and other transportation as necessary.  On this I give later agreed upon one horse.  
· Firewood and heat

· A ride to and from church 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

When death calls either one of us, one-half of the Reserved Rights shall end.  

It is consequently agreed upon, completed, and attested with our own handwritten signatures in the presence of witnesses.


Date as above


Seller: 
Per Gunnarsson 



Brita Persdotter (wife)


Buyer: 
Gunnar Persson 



Per Persson



Magnus Persson daughter Kjerstin Persdotter 



guardian Fredrik Mårtensson of Gräsjön annual fee.  


 
Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Backsjönäset   



Petter Persson of Strådalen

(113)

I found the following small story in the Book Verdal {Norway} Historielag Årbok 1952-1955 {Verdal History Book for 1952-1955}:

In the accomplishments of the men of Äsing, some were Swedish spies who revealed themselves at the border by Sör-Vera {South Vera}.  Ole Olsen Våclean (who was born in 1893 and died in 1954) has reproduced here what his father Ole Haldorsen Vären had told him.

When a column of the Norwegian train to Järpskansen transported by H. A. Coldevin passed the national border between Sör-Vera and Äsingen in 1809, two men from Äsingen were captured in the forest near the border.

These two men had climbed up a spruce tree and each had hastily hidden in it.  But one of the men from Äsing got something caught in his throat and as he cleared his throat and coughed, he revealed himself to the Norwegian department that came by.  The men from Äsing were employed on the Swedish side as observers to spy over the border.  Later the men were released from captivity and came back to Äsingen.

Ingeborg Essing
Table 32 (114)

Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C6
	Ingeborg Essing 
	
	Dec 15, 1795 
	
	Had no definite residence, but Ingeborg lived in her older days with son Anders in Baksjönäset.  Her husband Per was from Norway, probably Vera.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 19, 1823
	
	

	S
	Per I. Bergström 
	B
	Aug 18, 1796
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D1
	Karin Bergström 
	B
	Aug 1, 1819 
	Sandnäset
	

	Table 87
	
	D
	Aug 8, 1914 
	Norge XE "Norge" 
	

	D2
	Anders Bergström 
	B
	about Oct 21, 1821
	
	Anders was baptized on October 21, 1821.

	Table 88
	
	D
	June 9, 1886
	
	

	D3
	Brita Bergström 
	B
	Dec 11, 1823 
	
	

	Table 89
	
	D
	June 5, 1886
	
	

	D4
	Agnes Bergström 
	B
	Jan 1, 1827 
	Vera
	

	Table 90
	
	D
	 about 1869/70?
	
	

	D5
	Maria Bergström 
	B
	Jan 7, 1829 
	Vera
	

	Table 91
	
	D
	Oct 25, 1899
	
	

	D6
	Gunnar Bergström 
	B
	Jan 15, 1831 
	Kall
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 11, 1894 
	Norge XE "Norge" 
	

	D7
	Ingeborg Bergström 
	B
	Oct 10, 1835 
	
	

	Table 92
	
	D
	May 31, 1878 
	Kall
	


On July 10, 1842, the undersigned carried out, upon the request of the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company present administrator, Inspector Joh. Er XE "Er" . Lindström to farmhand Anders Persson Bergström of Gråviken marked out a new homestead in the place called Gråviken, which new homestead buildings his father in 1838 verb
 while he was a director of the Copper Mining Company, the County Governor
 etc.  Gustaf Montgomery received written approval that lowered
 him
.

The place called Gräviken is located about ½ mil {3 American miles} southwest of the Royal Government Homestead in the Village of Backsjönäset in Anjansjön {Anjan Lake} began on occasion by County Governor Montgomery writing to Anders Persson’s father {Per Bergström}, 

who moved from this location to an unknown place to build on 

where no suitable site was found for land improvements that was without being surrounded by marshy swamplands and frost land and had built the following during these last 4 years: 

· A small cottage building of fir wood in 1838, which was 7 high
, 7 alnars {14 feet} long and 6 alnars {12 feet} wide at the corners with tree and birch bark roof, provided with a fireplace, appraised at 60 Riksdaler, 32 species.

· A barn of fir wood built in 1838, 12 alnars {24 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide at the corners, 12 layers high with tree and birch bark roof with hayloft above, appraised at 16:32.

· A little cellar with a cool room, walls of stone on the sides.  Built by Anders Persson Bergström, appraised at 6 Riksdaler.

· These new homestead buildings counted on a calculation by agriculture equally unsuitable site, 

· then only to the new homestead buildings future building clearing from manor house to an added livestock raising can be calculated one-half (½) The inspectors intended by purchased shown and needs be that this new homestead buildings to award as much hay or sedge
 swamplands, 

· that he may be freed became the reason why him Anders Persson allocates 

· to the west from Ähre Parish difference 

· there the settler Hindric Wiksten finishes to Slottviken
 

· to the west of Kjolands
 new homestead buildings 

· from there to Bogtjernklumpen
 straight north allocates from work manor house the Copper Mining Company to Gräviken, 

· afterwards Johan Henrik Wiksten therefore in western 2 loads gathered each year, appraised at 11½.

· Near Gråvikstjern
 called Wackerena
, appraised at 5.

· Dry sedge plains called in south from new homestead buildings, appraised at 3½ .

· Newly built manor house called, appraised at 11½ .

· Northern Slottviktjern
, appraised at 5.  

· Eastern Gråviken, appraised at 8.

Consequently, the boundaries for this new homestead called Gråviken are 

· west from Åre Parish difference, 

· there the settler Johan Hindric Wiksten meets to Slottviken against the western new homestead buildings in Kjolands  

· from there to Bogtjernklumpen straight north to the east end of Renbottenviken
 to Anjansjön

The Inspectors recommend that the settlers of Gräviken may 

without reproach from anyone else 

receive the rights for fishing water and bird and trapping and hunting 

which is located within these exposed limits, 

provided they are not provided through lease are the Royal Court Judgment.  

This new homesteaders should receive some years of tax freedom, 

such as in the beginning

of which he makes an agreement with the Company Inspector, 

the settler Anders Persson Bergström has such rights, which are now guarded by his relative (farmer Gunnar Olsson of Baksjönäset}

which clothed him responsible for the new homesteads, 

legal care and responsibility providing to work for all posterity 

to ask for approval and hereby promise satisfaction 

against anyone else incursions against constituting 

by the obligations to the Copper Mining Company 

that their stepson can find appropriate that to that give the same.

It is hereby examined, evaluated and certified on the above year and date.



On the Copper Mining Company behalf



Joh. Er XE "Er" . Lindström




gl XE "gl" . Gust. Berg eft XE "eft" .




Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Backsjönäset 



request Olof Grönblad 



Anders Andersson (the older) of Sundet

(115)

I {Anders Persson Bergström} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to this new homestead, located in the Village of Gråviken on land belonging to the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company, to Göran Svensson and his wife {Orsill Ersdotter of Sågen}.

The one time total purchase amount is thirty three (33) Riksdaler and 16 Species, for which I hereby release this new homestead on Company Land free and unencumbered, and the buyer shall hereby receive all ownership rights.  

It is hereby certified that both of us are satisfied with the above transaction.


Husån on October 16, 1846


Seller:
Anders Persson Bergström of Gråviken


Buyer: 
Göran Svensson of Sågen

(115)
Witness: 
Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Backsjönäset  



Jonas Nilsson of Hamborg

Brita Essing
Table 33 (116)

Brita Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C1
	Brita Essing 
	B
	June 9, 1788 
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 13, 1814 
	

	S1
	Anders Hjerpe4 
	B
	Mar 27, 1789 
	Company Worker

	
	
	D
	Mar 4, 1867 
	

	D1
	Olof Hjerpe 
	B
	Oct 13, 1814 
	

	Table 93
	
	D
	Feb 9, 1869
	

	D2
	Ingeborg Hjerpe 
	B
	Apr 4, 1816 
	

	Table 94
	
	D
	Aug 8, 1887
	

	D3
	Nils Hjerpe 
	B
	June 23, 1819 
	He was hanged at 

	
	
	D
	Mar 16, 1858 
	Mörviken.

	D4
	Anders Hjerpe5 
	B
	Feb 17, 1821 
	

	Table 95
	
	D
	June 30, 1878
	


Inger’s note on Brita Essing: She lived in Huså, and then moved later to Berge, Åre .

Inger’s note on Anders Hjerpe: He remarried on December 26, 1859 to Stina Hansdotter born June 22, 1821 died April 6, 1892 .

Anders Hjerpe was not easy to be around, as the following story shows.

Erik Hyttsten (born in 1787) was a Company Sheriff in Bielkes Mine from 1807.  In 1816 he met in part with some of the subordinate workers concerning illegal mining.  

He had ordered Miners Anders Hjerpe and Olof Gråberg, who were excavating ore from Sandelheim’s Mine, to not move the drift mining forward beyond a certain point, because a column needed to be removed.

However Hjerpe, who was the leader of the drill team for this work, had ignored this order and on his own responsibility had moved the mining forward, for the purchase of the part of the mountain with no ore.

When he was criticized for doing this, he had "answered the Company Sheriff sarcastically" and replied that if his actions did not suit the Company Sheriff, then someone else should make the measurements
, an opinion that was also confirmed by mountain inspector Nils Engelberg.

Gråberg, who only listened to the order and drilled upon Hjerpe’s directive, was found not guilty.  However, Hjerpe received
 the additional overhead pay, which occasions through this mining in the ore lacking mountain with 64 Riksdaler 20 Species 1 Rune Pieces, fine for disruption
, pay the court costs, and make a public apology.

"After the verdict was pronounced, Hjerpe came before Company Sheriff Hyttsten and gave him the required apology".

Anders Hjerpe also caused Lalander, the next Company sheriff, concern about his behavior, and it was not easy for Lalander to take.

On Monday, March 14, 1836, Hjerpe went to the Bielkes Copper Mining Company, certainly drunk, but not in so bad a condition that he could not
 satisfactorily perform his work.

He went into the Copper Mining Company office and he cursed and swore and said that he did not want to obey the Company Sheriff’s orders.  These orders were to take hold of himself by means of drawing lots with the employees receiving the work lying across from the squadron leader’s.  

A witness stated that Hjerpe’s refusal was based on the fact that they in this neighborhood had to work very hard and the pay was small.  Hjerpe did go to his assigned work the next day however.

Another time they said that Hjerpe at the roll-call in the Copper Mining Company cottage had "again begun to quarrel about the work that he had been assigned, and left stating that the Company Sheriff was a rascal and cheated people by stealing from them".

The judge sentenced Hjerpe to 24 hours in jail, fined him 25 Riksdaler, and he had to make a public apology.

Taken from the Book "Huså Bruks Historia” (Huså Company History), written by Gösta Ullberg

On March 15, 1838, Anders requested that his Purchase Agreement be legally entered into the Deed Book.  

He had purchased a farm from Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his wife {Kerstin Pålsdotter}, close beside Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge, consisting of 1½ taxable acres in Åre Parish.  

Anders purchased it for 800 Riksdaler, and is to make the first payment of 133 Riksdaler and 32 Species at the next Court Session in March of 1838.  

The remaining amount of 666 Riksdaler 64 Species is to be set aside for three years at 5 percent annual interest which is to be paid each year, 

but with the condition that for even the smallest improvements on the farm to the extent that the annual interest calculated.  

Of this is neglected, the claimant had the right to ask for its as firm he have enough energy, 

and also retain the mortgage on this farm and put it into the Deed Book as shown on the deed.



October 6, 1837


Witness:
N.  Lalander of Huså



A.  Hållström (a Royal Government Official)  

From Undersäker District Court Dombok (Legal Records)

On September 11, 1858 the following Estate Inventory was conducted on the buildings and cropland in Huså that was first inhabited by Miner Nils Essing and then by his son-in-law Anders Hjerpe.  Later it was handed over to his two sons Anders and Nils, who farmed it for one year and then sold it to Pehr Löding, who then gave it up to Copper Mining Company Manager J. P. Lalander.

· A barn, 10½ alnars {21 feet} square, 10 layers high.  The roof is built of simple unpainted and unfinished boards, because between grounds.  It has a floor built of planks, a fireplace in the cottage with boards and wooden spikes.  It has room enough for 5 or 6 cows and 30 to 35 sheep or goats.  It is about 24 years old, and some sparsely filled walls
 are found which should be repaired.

· A feed shed, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, except 4 alnars {8 feet} is a lean against the barn which is a haystack, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide, 11 layers high.  It has 3 alnars {6 feet} wide threshing barn in the north end.  The floor is built of planks and the roof is built of boards with cracks.  It has a floor of miscellaneous wood.  It was built 24 years ago with old timber.  The roof can last for another year, but after that it should be replaced with an entirely new roof.

· A shed with 4 corners, 4½ alnars {9 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide and 9 layers high with 3 alnars {6 feet} a lean to cover with a board gable.  The roof is built of boards with cover, and it has an inner ceiling of unpainted and unfinished boards, a floor built of planks and 2 doors.  It is about 29 years old and it has a bad roof which should have a dozen boards replaced.

· A shelter on 4 logs, 5 alnars {10 feet} long, 4½ alnars {9 feet} wide and 12 layers high, covered with birch bark, other bark, and boards.  Between the ceiling to gällen XE "gällen" 
 of split timber because floor.  It has a door with a lock.  It is very old and in poor condition overall and needs a lot of repairs.

· A hay barn, 6½ alnars {13 feet} long, 5¾ alnars {11½ feet} wide and 8 layers high, north of the feed shed.  It has rotten corners and walls, but it can possibly be of use for a few more years if the defective roof is repaired.

· A hay barn in the field south of the homeowner, 4½ alnars {9 feet} square, 7 layers high.  The roof is built of boards and cover, but it is very defective and should be repaired.

· Half of the ownership rights to a boathouse with the Rödéns farm, in reasonably usable condition, but it is defective.

· Cropland:  The old homeowner broke up new land of 1 maling, open land of 1/3 maling, cultivated land of two-thirds (2/3) of a maling. The eastern Houses, open land of 1 1/3 malings, rough grazing ground cleared up to manor house 1 maling, infield south homeowner, cultivated land of one-half (½) maling and south in Homeowner in from the west barn 2/3 maling.

· The fence, above Kälsängarna
 is in good condition of all, infield south the homeowner 68 2/3 fathoms of half fenced pasture, infield the same 66 2/3 completely decayed but of new the tenant now fenced.  About the homestead owner useless and worn-out but now fenced by the tenant 105 fathoms, and 213 fathoms half fenced pasture.

· A cottage building 12½ alnars {25 feet} long, of which the porch is 4½ alnars {9 feet}, 9 alnars {9 feet} wide, 13 layers high, The roof is built of double boards, tongue and grooved boards under roofing.  An attic which does not have floor of stuffing, bed with a cupboard, a fireplace in the cottage with a baking oven, 2 windows
 in the cottage.  The building is about 33 years old.

· A barn, 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide, and 10 layers high with a simple board roof and also an attic floor of unpainted and unfinished boards, a floor built of planks, a fireplace in the cottage with boards and wooden support spikes.  It has room enough for 5 or 6 cows and 30 to 35 sheep or goats.  It is about 33 years old and free from rot and in completely good condition.  

· A barn 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide, 11 layers high.  

· A shed with 4 corners, 4½ alnars {9 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide, 9 layers high.  It is about 38 years old and in poor condition.  

· A shelter that was built by P. Lalander in 1856.  It is 6¼ alnars {12½ feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide, 15 layers high and it has a simple board roof, an inner ceiling of unpainted and unfinished boards, a door on hinges and is supported on 4 logs.  

· 3 hay barns, each 6½ alnars {13 feet} long, 5 ¾ alnars {11½ feet} wide, 8 layers high.  

· A barn

· Building in summer mountain cabin.  Knogevallen
.  

· A cottage with fireplace on the floor knows which is on expose the ground with a defective roof.  It has some rotting  

· A milk shed with defective roof and walls

· A barn with a rotten roof and walls  

· A hay barn with defective walls

I {Nils Hjerpe} hereby release and sell my current ownership rights to Company Farm No. 33 in the Village of Huså, to Miner Pehr Löding for a purchase amount of three hundred eighty (380) Riksdaler.  

This is done with the knowledge and approval of the Managing Director of the Gustaf and Carlsberg Copper Mining Company.

Pehr Löding shall receive all the rights to this homestead on the 1st of next May of this year including all of the buildings and land, best living place choice and all that now belongs to the farm.  

He shall have the same rights and responsibilities to the Copper Mining Company that I formerly had.  

I {Pehr Löding}, hereby agree with this total without annual revision.

This transaction is hereby executed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Huså on March 28, 1849


Seller:
Nils Hjerpe 


Buyer:
Pehr Löding

(119)
Witness: 
N.  Lalander 



Johan Andersson Hyttsten (the younger)

On July 21, 1849, at the tenant’s request, the undersigned conducted an inventory of the buildings and crops on Company Farm No. 33, also called Esings Farm of Huså, which was then lived on by Company Manager Pehr Löding.

He was to receive the cottages of Miner Nils Hjerpe on the 1st of next May of this year according to Special Stipulations.

· The building is 12½ alnars {25 feet} long, of which the porch with small rooms is 4½ alnars {9 feet}, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 13 layers high.  It has a roof  of double boards, tongue and grooved boards on the inner ceiling for an attic which does not have a floor on stuffing, a floor of wood planks, a fireplace and a baking oven with boards and iron spikes, wood damper, 2 windows in the cottage of 6/4, a window on window of 5/4, 1 the same in House of 6/4 and a fireplace.

· The building was about 24 years old with a rotten roof that needs at least a dozen boards to repair it, and downstairs disabled rotten who also the faulty dirt foundation the occasion.

· an old cottage, built against and west of the above written 9½ alnars {19 feet} long, of which the porch is shaped of a lean and is 3½ alnars {7 feet}, 12 alnars {24 feet} wide and 13 layers high.  It has a roof of double boards, no between grounds, no floor, and a fireplace with a baking oven.  It is defective and useless.  It is very old, although repaired 10 or 11 years later, and it cannot be lived in without requiring considerable repairs with new wood, in reputation it is more rotten and missing corners etc.

· Corner summer mountain cabin pasture

· A cottage or Störris with partly on the floor and provide down on bare ground.  It has a defective roof and some rotten walls.

· A milk shed with 4 corners.  The roof is built of tree branches and bark and it is rotted, but the walls are in good condition.

· A barn with a roof of bark and tree branches that are decayed and the walls on all sides are rotten

· A hay barn, very old and worn-out.  It has a rotten roof and rotten walls

· Forest hay in Rössänget, where an old hay barn is found that is completely worn-out and nearly useless, can provide 1 load

· Sompkihlen
, north of the house, which provide only where other year beside with Grönblad, makes altogether each year 1 load

· Wasnäs ground west of Rörs Villagers, 9 stack hay, 6 loads.  This field can provide 10 loads

· This farm can feed 2 cows and 15 sheep or goats with the help of leaf covered 

These findings are hereby affirmed by:



L. Mureen 



Olof Grönblad



J. E. Lindström

I can’t make the connection with the below to the above yet
.

Contract

 I {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} with my children's agreement and consent hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to the tenant living on this place (Johan Hansson} and his wife {Brita Kristina Jönsdotter living in Lien}. 

This i XE "i" ncludes my current ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge, Ähre Parish, Undersåker Municipality consisting of one-half of a taxable acre in accordance with the contract between us written on this date.  

The purchase amount of one thousand sixty (1,060) Riksdaler is paid at this time and the following terms and conditions are agreed to:

1. The farm buyer {Johan Hansson} now ta XE "ta" kes possession immediately and the buyer also receives a gray mare and 2½ barrels of seed grain as part of the same purchase amount.

2. Provide the following annual Reserved Rights for the remainder of my lifetime: 


· 1½ barrels of well cleaned grain 

· One (1) barrel of small grain grown on the farm each year
Feed and fodder in both winter and summer for a cow and 4 sheep or goats and 2 of their offspring

· is reserved small rooms in the porch above and below, which by me jointly with the prospective the tenant furnished for use for lodging as necessary

· access and usage of all the other buildings as necessary for their needs

· The exception is that I {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} myself will use and the Copper Mining Company will provide the following: 
Single ownership rights to the farm located on the western slope against Grels Jönsson’s new homestead, both north and south of the field mill, 1 maling of this land from the southern end.  

· A piece of sedge hay by Storän.  

· The property lines of this farm contains the land within xxx XE "xxx"  the east and south to the west to a large spruce tree, and north to Kliptjern.  

· There also the hay which after the prospective new contained within on this occasion farm in Färilsmyran {Färils Swamp}.  

· Necessary hauling of loads, 

· Firewood and heat

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

3. The cost of that according to the Inheritance Distribution Laws distributed continuous to make distribution belongs to this farm the seller {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} is responsible for all that which on this date away and should proceed.  However, the buyer {Johan Hansson} out that it as in the future is extended to this farm.

4. That work that in and for that farm cultivation and building is prepared by the seller {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} and is to legally provide the seller with 4 dozen timbers, now lying on Bergmyrbacken, and some birch bark on the supplemental land.  for all for his homestead buildings may be used, but it is not preposterous that the other belongs to the buyer {Johan Hansson}.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson}, my children, and heirs surrender this portion of Company Farm No. 2 consisting of 1½ taxable acres with all of the buildings, land, mill, mill site, down and distant village, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.  

The buyer {Johan Hansson} and his children and heirs acquire it their legally acquired property with complete rights to possess and occupy it

Completed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses


Berge on May 7, 1851


Seller:  
Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson


Buyer:  
Johan Hansson 



Brita Christina Jönsdotter


Witness: 
Erik Pehrsson of Mörviken



Jonas Andersson of Brecke

We state that both parties are satisfied with the transactions made in this contract made on the above date.  

(122)

Nils Andersson 



Johan Ahlgren (married to daughter Ingeborg)


Witness:
Erik Pehrsson of Mörviken



Jonas Andersson of Brecke

Photograph (122)

Water treatment building, built to look the same as the original.  A small amount of material separates the old from the new.  

Inger J. Qvarnström took this photograph in Fröän in 1994. 

Company Farm No. 104, contained within the Blåmyre {Blue Swamp} Farm

The farm called Tjerntorpet {Tjern Farm} was occupied in order by:

· First by Miner Eric Tjernberg  

· Then by Nils Brewitz until 1784

· Then by his widow and his son Magnus Brewitz until 1788

· Then by his
 son-in-law Olof Hjerpe

· Then by his son Anders Hjerpe in/until 1818 then by the son of Miner Olof Hjerpe, who is still the owner
.  
I have not been able to find the contract of the farm tenancy by Olof Hjerpe.  The lease amount for this farm was 12 Riksdaler.

Anders Nilsson Essing
Table 34 (123)

Anders Nilsson Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C3
	Anders Nilsson Essing 
	B
	Jan 4, 1792
	
	Anders lived in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Måläng, Sunne.

	
	
	M
	Jan 7, 1816 
	
	

	S
	Kerstin Persdotter 
	B
	1783
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 30, 1869
	
	

	D1
	Nils Andersson 
	B
	Sep 26, 1816 
	
	

	Table 96
	
	D
	July 28, 1902 
	Sunne
	

	D2
	Anna Andersdotter 
	B
	Dec 20, 1817 
	
	

	Table 97
	
	D
	Sep 15, 1887 
	Sunne
	

	D3
	Pelle Andersson 
	B
	Dec 23, 1819 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 2, 1822 
	Sunne
	

	D4
	Ingeborg Andersdotter 
	B
	June 29, 1823 
	
	

	Table 98
	
	D
	Dec 19, 1875 
	Sunne
	


Farm Contract

I {Carl Zakrisson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Anna Persdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmhand (Anders Nilsson of Måläng} for an agreed upon purchase amount of one hundred sixty six (186) Riksdaler 32 Species.

This farm i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this Company Farm in the Village of Måläng, Sunne Parish.  This farm is east of Eric Jon’s fence east of Leijden, after which this fence is placed a stone marker).

Anders Nilsson also has additional rights to:

· The outlying land which lies opposite and below the farm enclosure

· The cultivated fields that are now in excellent condition

· from the same property line,

· the property rights nearby to Åhn 
· in the east to the property line

This area should not be enclosed in the future since he wants to own the pasture in the farm forest.

For hay making, Anders Nilsson has the rights to Klingermyran {Klinger Swamp} behind the property line markers, which widow Anna Bertilsdotter now owns, sedge hay with Kroktjernsmyran {Kroktjerns Swamp} with a small portion above the meadow.  

The property line is: 

· On the west side to Påhl Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 

· On the north side to Carl Zakrisson

· On the east side against the lake beside a brook which runs south and 

· On the south side to the Hara property line. 

Anders Nilsson may use the saw for 24 hours each year and the farm owner {Anders Nilsson} may also use the saw blade, needle, pad, hammer etc.  as they are needed.   

He does not have to take  part in the repairs either at the dam or the house etc., but he is responsible for one-third of the flour mill

All repairs for the house, dam and smith works, is against the right, and milling is permitted for household needs. 

However, the mill stones shall be powered by the homeowner alone.  

The property line that goes from the farm to Åhn becomes the farm buyers obligation to keep with power the portion that belongs to the farm  

the property line from Hara to the north between Pål Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and homestead field, be responsible farm owner and farmer jointly first fenced but afterwards it is maintained by the farmer alone as far as his property reaches.

The farmer shall retain the fence north of Slättermyran {Slätter Swamp}, who accepts its beginning at Pål Ol XE "Ol" ofsson’s fenced pasture and is closed straight to the meadow land.

The farmer acquires a tract to the forest 

· from the west end of the meadow straight ahead to Näfverås (Birch Bark Ridge}

· from there Klippings Åsen (Klippings Ridge} to Hara property line north of small lake 

· from there to property line to the west beside the forest hill lies westwards from Fabräänget - pasture receive owned jointly with farm owner on outlying land but not within the fence.

The farmer shall annually provide at his expense  together owner

4 man-days of work 2 times, 2 in haying time and 1 maling skjörd XE "skjörd" , 

since work will be constituted, 

In addition, the farmer is prohibited from using another road to his summer cottage other than the farm owner’s or to make any new roads to the cottage.

With this sale and Purchase Agreement, I give undisputed and eternal ownership, occupancy, and cultivation rights of the above homestead to Anders Nilsson, his wife, children and heirs.

I connect with myself to home after District Court.  


Måläng on April 4, 1817


Seller:
Carl Zakrisson and Anna Persdotter 


Buyer: 
Anders Nilsson 

(124)
Witness: 
Olof Pehrsson of Torp 



Päl Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Måläng

From Sunne District Court AI: 69

Recorded Minutes of the voluntary auction of the property of the widow {Kerstin Pehrsdotter of Måläng} on November 25, 1853:

Same Day:  

I {Kerstin Pehrsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to the highest bidder.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Måläng, Sunne Parish, Sunne Municipality, which my husband bought in the Purchase Contract of April 10, 1817. 

Before interjection, I reserve the following Reserved Rights that shall be provided by the prospective buyer or tenant each year for the remainder of my lifetime:

1. Three (3) barrels of well cleaned grain, 4 kappers
 of rye and 2 barrels of potatoes all in heaped measure that are grown on the farm, and 6 Riksdaler 32 Species in cash.

2. Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, 2 goats and 2 sheep and their offspring.

3. One pair of shoes and a second pair every other year and a shirt
.

4. I reserve the entrance hall and the attic room for my lodging, which shall be decently furnished by the prospective buyer in accordance with my instructions.  Free accommodation in the cow barn as well as drying, brewing and baking.

5. Firewood and heat and milling
, a ride to and from church and other necessary errands as necessary.

6. Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

I {Kjerstin Pehrsdotter} with the agreement and consent of my guardian (Anders Johansson of Måläng) release and sell my ownership rights to this undivided homestead to the highest bidder at the auction gavel of the town sheriff.

The highest bidder shall take possession immediately and have eternal ownership and cultivation rights.  The purchase amount shall be paid in cash by the 1st of next May.

After advertising for bids for this sale, the farm was put up for sale to the highest bidder.

Then, after many competing bids, it was sold to the other son of Nils Andersson of Måläng, who closed the bidding with the highest bid of 544 Riksdaler, and which was concluded with the fall of the auction gavel.
I {Nils Andersson} hereby attest my complete agreement with this contract.  

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, I give my mother {Kjerstin Pehrsdotter} the legal right to request and receive a mortgage on this undivided farm without any additional hearings.


Måläng on above date


Seller:
Kjerstin Pehrsdotter
Anders Johansson of Måläng (Guardian)


Buyer:
Nils Andersson of Måläng 

To certify that the auction took place legally, Kjerstin Pehrsdotter signed her  (Signature Mark) and Nils Andersson also signed his name in his own handwriting.  

It is hereby affirmed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Date as above



Jonas Jonsson of Hara



Per Pehrsson of Brunflo and Lillviken
Anders Wäll
Table 35 (126)

Anders Wäll4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C1
	Anders Wäll 
	B
	Aug 29, 1790
	
	Anders lived in Öjaren, Ström.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 12, 1812
	
	

	S1
	Gölin Estensson 
	B
	Sep 7, 1783 
	Undersåker
	

	
	
	D
	About 1835
	Frostviken.
	

	Dl
	Anders Wäll 
	B
	Sep 20, 1812 
	Mörsil
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 21, 1813 
	eng.  sickness
	

	D2
	Erik Wäll 
	B
	Sep 25, 1814 
	Sunne
	Erik was unmarried and was a card-maker by occupation.

	
	
	D
	June 21, 1840 
	Ösd consumption
	

	D3
	Brita Wäll 
	B
	Aug 1, 1817 
	Sunne
	

	Table 99
	
	D
	1856
	
	

	D4
	Andreas Wäll 
	B
	Apr 24, 1819 
	Sunne
	

	Table 100
	
	D
	Feb 2, 1890 
	Strömstedt 
	

	D5
	Jonas Wäll 
	B
	Mar 2, 1822 
	Sunne
	

	Table 101
	
	D
	
	
	

	D6
	Johan Wäll 
	B
	Nov 28, 1823 
	Sunne
	

	Table 102
	
	D
	Jan 27, 1898 
	Ström
	

	D7
	Ingeborg Wäll 
	B
	Apr 18, 1831 
	ridge, Hammerdal
	

	Table 103
	
	D
	Feb 10, 1892 
	Ström
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 18, 1841 
	
	

	S2
	Ingrid Nilsdotter
	B
	1793
	Brunflo
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 7, 1880 
	
	


Anders Wäll was a field soldier in Mörsil for 3 years from 1809 to 1812.  He had the same position in Vällviken, Sunne from 1812 to 1826.  He received his discharge due to a leg injury.  He first moved to Lit and then he moved on to Hammerdal.  He was a settler in Raukasjö from 1837 to 1841.  He stayed there after his wife {Gölin Estensson}died in about 1835 and then he had to care for his two small children.  Later he moved to Öjaren and in 1841 he married Ingrid Nilsdotter who was born in 1793 in Brunflo.

Anders Wäll became a leasehold farmer in Hammerdal and here awoke his desire to be a settler.  He wanted to own his own land and have his own hearth.

He heard from the authorities about a settlement that was available in northernmost Jämtland.  The place was called "Kojplatsen" {Koj XE "Koj"  Place} and it was located by a little lake called Sannaren, squeezed in between steep mountains in the middle of the uninhabited mountain world.

He had to sell most of his property, since only so much could be loaded on his horses and his own back.  Even that was not enough, and the cow’s backs must also be used.

It is strange to watch them as they went away from civilization to a destination that they should reach in 14 days.  One horse, heavily loaded and pulling a sled of household goods behind it, struggling along on the forest path to the north.  Following it came the 3 or 4 cows and some sheep and goats entrusted to the two younger boys, and last comes Gölin, carrying the one
-year old Ingeborg.  In the front is found the eager gray dog and Wäll, who leads his horse.  They must stop frequently to allow the livestock to graze and to give the children a little rest during the strenuous hike.

In a few days they reach Lake Sannaren’s southern beach and stayed there before the sight of the countryside, where they intend to clear the land, build, and live for posterity.  You can still see the dilapidated fishing hut where they lived that summer, livestock pastures that embraced the large region, sedge swamplands and horse försund XE "försund" 
, hunting grounds, berry-picking places and fishing places.  They had everything that was necessary for their self-support, far from civilization.  They immediately fell trees to clear the land and burned the land to plant some seed and potatoes.  Trees must be felled to provide timber for a place to live in the winter and forest hay was collected for the livestock’s winter fodder.

Now and then Anders must go out hunting and fishing.  Since the family consisted of six people, it was not always easy to fill all the mouths.  The wilderness where the family lived, was not the only, that meets our present day tourist, with the quiet summer day when one only hears the fish splashing, the bumblebees buzzing, or the animals rustling in the endless forest, 

without some nation with the great wide open väglöshet XE "väglöshet" 
 and the long bitter winter.

For the settlers in Sannaren must be all things, to bring forth birth
 out in the country has an un-taxable value.  One can only too well, for example, understand the misfortune that would take place if even a sheath knife were lost.  Perhaps the housewife’s biggest concern many time was to get food, which in all modesty for us later time children
, but all appears to have been good in any wise.  The proverbs say that when harmony is good, living is great, and we must attribute their harmony as a great strength between Anders and Gölin, who had learned the blessings of God’s Righteousness.

After they had been in Sannaren a few years, they found that the land was not very good.  Neither the grains nor the potatoes could ripen before the frost came and they could be harvested.

Winters were severe and mountain storms dangerous, even for those used who were used to them, and the Laplanders were unconcerned about the reindeer causing damage to their wagonloads of sedge hay.  They were far from other people and the loneliness especially tormented Gölin.  Out here it seemed that she would never again see their relatives in far off Undersäker, and she looked to the future with anxiety and worries about her children, who were growing up here in this endless and timeless wilderness.

They began making plans to move from their new settlement and they decided that this would take place in the spring, after the winter food supplies for the livestock were used up.

But one autumn evening the livestock became lost, and they did not return the next day.  They looked for them everywhere, both day and night, around the streams and lakes, on the mountain passes and in the mountains.  They asked their closest neighbor, Anders in Storjola, but he had seen nothing of the livestock nor had he gotten any information from the Laplanders that lived near Raukasjön.  They were now and forever gone - as if bewitched and swallowed up by the earth.  Without livestock, no settlers with a bunch of children can survive.  They must now break up and leave in the fall instead of next spring as they had originally planned.  Their few belongings that they had to take with them were gathered together and packed and they were going to depart early the next morning.

But when the day for the move arrives, there stood all the lost livestock outside the cottage, and they resolved to stay one more winter in Sannaren.

Anders Wäll was out in the large countryside that winter making wool carding combs for people on the local farms.  He often stayed away from home for several weeks at a time because the distances were so great.

He was a master of his occupation and one can still find wool carding combs in Frostviken that were made by him and whose owners say they are unsurpassed.

During one of these absences, Gölin becomes ill.  She has only the young children around her, and she does not dare send the children to Storjola with a distress message because she knows what mountain storms can be like.

Instead she has to tell them to take care of the livestock and milk the cows, and prepare the food.  Gölin rapidly becomes worse and in her fever frenzies she shouts for Anders, but he never appears.

Between fever attacks she realizes that her illness is getting worse, but she does not dare let the children know the enormity of her fears that she might go away from them and leave them completely alone.

She makes them promise to not leave home and begs them to wait for their papa.  The next morning found the children’s mother sunken in the deepest sleep.  Gölin was asleep for all eternity, away from her children and husband.

One day the settler Anders Larsson of Storjola happened to think that it had been a long time since he had heard anything from his neighbors in Sannaren.  Sometimes Gölin used to ski to them to get some food.

He tightens up his skis and races to Sannaren.  Upon arriving at the cottage, he finds Gölin dead in her bed, little Ingeborg begging for attention in her dead mother’s bed and the remaining children crying and hungry.  He ta XE "ta" kes Ingeborg, the youngest, on his back with him and urges the boys to stay and see to the livestock, and says he will get a message to their father of their danger and the tragedy.

Then Wäll comes home.  He must now, perhaps for first time in his life, in spite of his physical and spiritual strength, submit himself to his fate in Sannaren.  Anders ta XE "ta" kes Gölin to the Frostviken cemetery, there she was surrounded by some neighbors and buried in the dirt in a simple ceremony.  

Anders leaves Sannaren and their new settlement with the motherless children to face their new future.

When you read this, you have to wonder why they didn’t leave Sannaren when the livestock came back, rather than attempting another winter.  Maybe Gölin would have lived then. Even if she had become ill, could she have gotten help earlier and perhaps managed her illness?  Perhaps not, but in any case they would feel better and more secure if they had lived closer to neighbors.  Many questions can be asked, but answers are difficult.  I have often wondered why they settled in this wilderness?  I have seen many relatives with a desire to live in the wilderness, so is it a family trait?  They have the desire to try to build up their own farms and to be near forests and mountains, so that they can hunt and fish, which is a necessity to survive.  Another reason may be that the better places were already taken and perhaps they had no choice.

This story is found in a book of Adler-Ridderberg relatives.

Photograph (129)

This is the Wäll farm that Henrik Jonsson Södergren first built when he came from Undersåker.  He sold it later to Anders Wäll.  

The owner of this photograph is Bertil Lundqvist of Kärrnäset, Strömsund.

Estate Inventory Report made on August 9, 1843

On September 20, 1842, a survey was conducted for the seller and buyer of a new Royal Government Homestead in Lappmark in Öijarn consisting of 5/6 of a taxable acre, which is now occupied by the former field soldier Anders Wäll.

He {Anders Wäll} legally acquired this farm Henric Södergren in accordance with the contract of February 27, 1840.  

This assessment was undertaken in the presence of the buyer, and the following was found:

Buildings:

· A cottage with only one room and a porch, in usable condition

· A granary with a threshing room that will be in usable condition when the roof is repaired

· A cow-barn with a fireplace, hjäll XE "hjäll"  and feed shed.  It is so old and decrepit that it can no longer be used

· Timber, cut and delivered to the homestead, to build a stable

· An open field of ¾ tunnors
 seeded every year, some of it is used as a pear orchard, and it is well cultivated

· From the hay fields is harvested each year about 30 loads of sedge, 10 loads of horse feed, and 4 loads of hay

· With the assistance of straw fodder from that year and pine needles and leaf cover, wintertime born 1 horse, 7 shackled Nöfor XE "Nöfor"  and 20 sheep or goats

· The necessary fences are in good condition

· A boat house
, although small still usable

· The forest, consisting mostly of Gren and birch, is good enough for firewood but useless for housing lumber.  The pasture is in tolerable condition.

· 1/9th portion of the saw and 1/9th portion of the mill at Klumpän

The tenant has recently begun the improvements at the summer mountain pasture and had already built a milk shed that was standing there.

Hereafter the inspectors undertook to determine what was necessary to repair the buildings, since they had been greatly neglected during the occupancy period of the last tenant and are presently found completely inadequate.  

The buyer is wise to not delay in building a barn, stable, and shelter, and also to continuously maintain and repair the old and new homestead buildings when it is required in the future. 

for that reason his obligations should be combined so that he will also maintain the old fields and meadows, 

During the last 10 years, he has broken up one-half maling of new land each year and he has increased and expanded the haymaking by/to one load of hay.  

This is submitted to the Royal Court for closer examination and inspection.  


Hammerdahl and Öijarn on above date



Jöns Nilsson of Jonsfarm 



Anders Jönsson of Öhn Jurors

The Royal Court Judgment of July 15, 1842, according to which Anders Wäll was accepted as the tenant on 5/6 of an acre on a Royal Government Homestead in Lapland in Öijarn, Hammerdahl Parish, was proclaimed in Hammerdahl Church on July 31st of this year.

Certified in Hammerdahl on July 28, 1843



Jonas Ångman (Pastor)

The Royal Court Judgment of July 15th of this year, concerning the acceptance of Anders Wäll as the tenant on 5/6 of an acre on a Royal Government Homestead in Lapland in Öijarn, Hammerdahl Parish, was publicly proclaimed from the pulpit in Ström Church.

Certified in Ström on August 7, 1842



Er XE "Er" , Huss V. (Assistant Vicar)

The Royal Court Judgment over the Jemtland County Judgment 

concerning the application by Anders Wäll for attachment of wages
 

on a Royal Government Homestead in Lapland, Öijarn, Hammerdahl Parish, consisting of 5/6th of a taxable acre

which until now he made through and was hereby supported in part by a transcript of the Royal Government Contract, 

was given his ownership rights: 


Ownership rights given in the Östersund Land Office on July 15, 1842

The Royal Court Judgment has taken into consideration the context of the agreement, and the seller {Henric Södergren} with the Royal Court Judgments of September 8, 1832 and November 30, 1841.  These Court Judgments have confirmed his ownership rights to 5/6th of an acre in Öijarn.  

In addition, the applicant has shown in the attached document not only the church testimony of his good character but also the church’s trust for the farm’s proper division in half  and the maintenance of Royal Government the expenses proper constituting, 

Accordingly and with fixed consideration on the contract of February 27, 1840, the Royal Court Judgment hereby proves and determines Anders Wäll to be the legal tenant on the questioned Royal Government Homestead in Lapland after the seller Henric Södergren.  

However, conditions or reservations that are received from anyone else that have 

better contingent rights and that submit a report within a year from this date 

then these changes lived on shall become publicly recited from the pulpit in Hammerdahl District Court churches, 

coming in contradiction of the Royal Bailiff in local county administration district, 

for which reason this Judgment should be publicly exhibited and proclaimed for such consideration, 

made there on place 

and the buyer officiates, 

For that reason, a proper Estate Inventory Report shall be made of the established cultivation and building improvements for the now accepted tenant.


Year and Date as above


After Gracious Ordering

(131)

L. M. Lagerheim 



F. W. Jönsson




Vidimeras Nilsson

March 3, 1857

I {Anders Wäll} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 5 in the Village of Öijarn in Ström Parish consisting of 5/36 of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land to each of my sons (Jonas and Johan Anderssöner}.

This farm was purchased in accordance with the Royal Court Judgment of my tax title of November 17, 1856 half of which, or therefore 5/72 of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.

The agreed upon purchase amount of four hundred twenty-two (422) Riksdaler 20 Species is to be paid to me on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session and after that I will vacate this farm.  

As security for receiving the Reserved Rights in accordance with this contract, Anders Wäll, on behalf of himself and his wife {Ingrid Nilsdotter}, shall have the right to receive a mortgage.

The seller shall provide the following annual Reserved Rights to both of us for our remaining lifetimes:

· 2½ barrels of grain

· Two (2) barrels of tinning to Brödämne
· Four (4) kappers of rye all from the crop that is grown on the farm each year

· Clean and surely tend in remaining without on feeble to provide one-half (½) barrel of satisfactory grain 

· Also provide well fertilized and tend land for seed amount for one-half (½) barrel of land pears, 

· Two (2) kappers of cooking salt

· Two (2) pairs of ready made leather shoes 

· 2 M. wool shirts or a each all annually

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cow, 5 goats and 5 sheep, and half of all the offspring next autumn  

· A new building next to the farm that is still unfurnished for lodging, but which shall be jointly furnished by both of us 

· Access and usage of the barn and other buildings as necessary 

· Shed and cellar

· Boat and boat house
, 

· All the other buildings on the farm

· A ride to and from church and the mill and other errands within this jurisdictional area as necessary

· In addition to manskrifne XE "manskrifne" 
 Reserved Rights, provide one-third in the prospective to intended saltpeter for marking and primarily for necessary care

· Firewood and heat until the day of our deaths

· A decent Christian burial after death 

With either of our deaths, these Reserved Rights shall be suitably reduced in half.

provide farm called Henricsholmen for improvements on the land also Lartråka XE "Lartråka"  to cultivated land, 

Måndagsråkan refuge and cultivated land for sale around Starkarn, 

and 4 julfång XE "julfång" 
 stood sedge 

and later a 5 year old red mare shall be turned over to the prospective tenant to own, use and retain.

The buyers, who promise fulfillment of these conditions, have each willingly entered into this contract and made a request for ownership rights as confirmed with our signatures and Signature Marks.


Ström on February 25, 1857 


Seller:
Anders  (Signature Mark) Wäll 



Ingrid  (Signature Mark) Nilsdotter


Witness:  
A.  Rosenberg Jonas (Signature Mark) Andersson of Öhn

We state that we are both satisfied with this contract made on the above date.


Buyer:
Jonas  (Signature Mark) Andersson 



Johan  (Signature Mark) Andersson


Witness: 
A.  Rosenberg Jon  (Signature Mark) Andersson of Öhn

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, we (Jonas and Johan Anderssöner) give the Reserved Rights recipients (Anders Wälland and Ingrid Nilsdotter) the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm without any additional hearings.  


Date as above


Buyer:
Jonas  (Signature Mark) Andersson 



Johan  (Signature Mark) Andersson of Öijarn 

(133)
Witness: 
A.  Rosenberg 



Jöns  (Signature Mark) Andersson of Öhn

Photograph (133)

The cottage furthest to the left was much larger.  Half of it was moved to another farm.  Anders Wäll had built a good cottage.

Brita Essing
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Brita Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C3
	Brita Essing 
	B
	Jan 18, 1793
	
	Brita lived in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Skärvången, Föllinge

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Jon Simonsson 
	B
	Feb 12, 1798 
	Föllinge
	

	
	
	D
	June 14, 1870
	
	

	Dl
	Johan Jonsson 
	B
	May 9, 1822 
	
	

	Table 104
	
	D
	July 30, 1894
	
	

	D2
	Simon Jonsson 
	B
	June 13, 1829 
	
	

	Table 105
	
	D
	Mar 12, 1881
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Jon married Gertrud Persdotter Ek
 who was born January 4, 1801 in Rödön.

She moved back there after Jon’s death.

In their autumn years they applied for a guardian, and Jon put this request into the legal records: 

Since we have now come to an advanced old age and have failing health, we hereby respectfully make this request that farm owner Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Skärwången be made our legal guardian, as far as our legal rights are able to be conveyed to him.


Föllinge and Skärwången on February 19, 1869


Partition owner:
Jon Simonsson 



Gertrud Persdotter

In the event Liths XE "Liths"  of this rights find it reasonable that 

I have decreed to make Jon Simonsson and his wife {Gertrude Persdotter of Skärwången} my guardian in exchange for Reserved Rights, since I have nothing on the other hand to recall.  


Skärwången on February 19, 1869 

(134)

Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

Photograph (134)

Southern Skärvången, where Jon Simonsson and his wife, Brita Essing, built.  
Jon probably built the white house.

I {Jon Simonsson} hereby release and sell my ownership rights to a Royal Government Homestead within the Village of Skärvängens in Föllinge Parish consisting of 1 acre to my oldest son (Johan Johansson} in return for being provided the following annual Reserved Rights:

· One barrel of well cleaned grain each year 

· Four (4) malings of the field called the Goffa field, which lies southwest of the farm

· the Special Stipulation that I, sow with my own seed, but it is to be plowed and fertilized with 30 loads of good fertilizer each year 

· Land that is specially suited and cultivated for seeding 2 barrels of potatoes and 3 kappers of peas.  

· hay-making of one hay belonging to the so called Wedliders barn on southwest end by fence by it suffered which is in Stångvikswägene straight ahead in edge on the fields outside farm one seq XE "seq"  afterwards field by a stone rös XE "rös" .  Southern hedeänget XE "hedeänget" 
 (?) in mire.  

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, 2 sheep or goats and their offspring.  

· Fish in Hemsjön.  

· A pair of well oiled leather shoes each year

· The old cottage beside the outer and the downstairs house for lodging

· The east shelter north of the farm

· A barn

· Old stable building

· Access and usage of the granary, cellar and other farm buildings as necessary

· A ride to and from church and mill and other errands as necessary

· Help with fodder skörslor XE "skörslor"  etc. for which a completely usable horse is placed  on the farm as necessary

· When my wife and I cannot cultivate and use these fields and croplands, they shall go back to the farm buyer

· four and one-half (4½) barrels of grain in full measure

· One-fourth (¼) barrel of rye and 

· One-fourth (¼) barrel of peas, all well cleaned spannmeel XE "spannmeel" 
 each year

· Five (5) barrels of potatoes

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cows and 8 sheep or goats and 4 of their offspring

With either of our deaths, these Reserved Rights are to be suitably reduced in half.

However, if I outlive my wife, then I may retain my ownership rights at my discretion and use the decreased häfden XE "häfden" 
 in land and hay.  

If my dear wife becomes a widow first, then she shall enjoy the following additional Reserved Rights:

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent Christian attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

Except in regard to Reserved Rights, my son (Johan} shall pay five hundred (500) Riksdaler to his younger brother {Simon} for the sale of this farm.

Consequently I leave this farm and buildings to my gentleman son Johan. 

On the 1st of this May he will receive ownership rights without any exceptions to the house, land, cottages and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

and under this purchase also include nitrous kettle with container and the in farm i XE "i" nspect pansin XE "pansin" .  

This transaction is hereby confirmed with our names and signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Skärwången on September 24, 1853


Seller and Reserved



Rights recipient:
Jon Simonsson 



Brita Andersdotter 


Buyer:
Johan Jonsson 



Simon Jonsson the retiring brother 

(136)
Witness: 
L. M.  Stridsberg 



Olof Kjelsson of Lägden

In consideration of payment to my brother {Simon} this contract is through my father {Jon Simonsson} Special Stipulation of March 23, 1855 revision.


Annotated by L. M. Stridsberg

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, the seller is acknowledged to have the right to request and receive a mortgage without any additional hearings.  


Skärwången on February 25, 1863



Johan Jonsson of Skärwången


Witness: 
Per Persson of Skärwången 



Anders Karlsson of Högrun

On December 22, 1856 upon the demand of Reserved Rights husband Jon Simonsson of Skjärvången; this Estate Assessment was conducted after the death of his wife {Brita Andersdotter} on October 30th of last year. The property is declared by the widowed husband and appraised as follows:




Silver 

3 

spoons
 2



1 

Watch and 1 sköskums XE "sköskums" 

  13.16
  15.16




Brass & Copper


1

Candle Stick & 1 Funnel and 1 stryk XE "stryk" 
 iron
 3.16



2

kettles
 7.16



1

Cask, 1 Pot
 5.32



1 

Coffee pot, 1 fot kettle and a ladle
 3.16
  19.32




Pewter and Tin Items 


2

Rights, 1 Stop
 6.



2

Trays, 1 bowl
 1.



1

Ljus XE "Ljus" 
 lykta XE "lykta" , 2 Measured
 1.
 8.




Glass and Porcelain



12
ea
Bottles both large & small and 3 beer glasses
 2.32



3

Rights, 8 Tallrickar both large & small
 2.16



4
ea 
spill kummar XE "kummar" , 2 creamers




5 pr
Coffee cups 
 2.12



3 

Rights and 2 clay bowls
   .24
 7.36




Cooking Vessels & Metal Works

3 

pots both large & small
 4.



1 

iron lye container, 1 waffle iron
 2.24



1 

plow and 1 harrow
 8.



1 

iron stör, 3 shovels and a tväryx XE "tväryx" 

 2.24



1 

Sharp hatchet, 2 hand bhar XE "bhar" , 1 cutting ax, and 




1 broad axe
 2.32



1 

muckrake, 1 house auger, 1 iron ladle
 2.



1 

nafvarvef XE "nafvarvef" , 1 shovel, 2 hand saws, 1 panfot XE "panfot" 
 3.16



1 

smith jetång XE "jetång" , 5 liar, 2 sigdar XE "sigdar" , 




Eldtäng and pincers
 3.16



1 

skrufklafvar XE "skrufklafvar"  & 2 hammer, a worse 




cross saw
 2.



3 

skällor XE "skällor" , 1 tightener XE "tightener" , 1 circle and 




1 Rasp and horse täng XE "täng" 
 2.



1 

Rekknagell XE "Rekknagell" 
, 1 hack iron, 3 bord XE "bord"  knife






1 scissors, 4 tallow knives
 1.28
  33.44




Subtotal

  84.32




Bedding

2 

Sheep ludna XE "ludna"  cases
  22.



5
ea
sheepskin cases in bad condition
  30.



4
ea
goat-kid skin cases
  12.



4
ea
wool cushions in both good & bad condition
  10.



2 

Reindeer skins
 7.



5
ea
pillows
 3.16
  84.16




Women’s working clothes


5
ea
silk towels in both good & bad condition



and 1 för clothes
  15.



17 ea
Cotton towels in different patterns and




in both good & bad condition
  10.24



6 ea
för clothes in both good & bad condition
 2.24


1


coarse home-spun wool Räck, 4 Tröjjor
  14.



6 ea
Tjortlar with corset
  10.



2

tubb XE "tubb"  tjortlar XE "tjortlar"  and 2 other tjortlar






1 för clothes
 2.



3 

wool schaflar XE "schaflar" 
 5.16



1 

black half wool vef XE "vef" , 1 pair of gloves



1
ea
gloves etc.
 2.16



6 ea
Cotton shirts, 1 wool strop
 4.



2 pr
leder XE "leder" 
 shoes, 1 pair of lapp XE "lapp" 
 shoes
 2.32



A 

Tjortell of orlean XE "orlean" , and Misc XE "Misc" . clothes persedlar XE "persedlar" 
 6.
  74.16




Miscellaneous

3

Tablecloths, 2 cushion var XE "var" 
 1 ea.  salvet XE "salvet" 
 4.16



1
ea
Coffee mill, 1 burner and 




7 alnars {14 feet} of curtain frans XE "frans" 
 1.



18 ea
Fishnets
  24.



8 ea
Sheep skin, 18 goat kid skins, 4 calf skins
  10.



1

pig leder XE "leder" , 4 dressed skins, 
4 skins being prepared
 8.



2

Ridsalar XE "Ridsalar" , 1 matseck XE "matseck" , & 1 satchel
  11.



3

strop sekkar XE "sekkar" , 6 ea. leather seckar XE "seckar"  a sheep shears
 5.



2

Iron kettles, and an egg clock
 5.





saltpeter kettle share, and some old copper
20.




3

vef XE "vef"  spoons, 2 vef skafter XE "skafter" 
, 6 ea.  höflar XE "höflar" 
 by






different stroke
 3.



3

Tables, 5 chairs
 8.32



1
ea
Linderoth’s collection of sermons, 




1 Legal handbook,




4
ea
Psalm tax collection book
 5.



1

Clothes bucket, 1 pail, 1 box, 1 trunk
 7.8



1 

potato mill, 1 spinning-wheel, 1 wooden hasp &






nystkrona XE "nystkrona" 

 5.16



2 

Oak casks, 3 slip stones, 1 Boat
 8.16



1 

Fot sack
 4.
 129.41




Subtotal

 373.8





Körred XE "Körred"  manure

1

Cart load, one fodder sled with rack load
 8.32





stötting XE "stötting"  with iron rep & shafts, 2 seltyg XE "seltyg" 
 9.
  17.32




Trekäril XE "Trekäril" 

1
ea
Bark = tub, 1 water tub, 1 milk barrel, 1 Stretcher
 4.16



18
ea
Troughs, 5 Bunkar, 2 Rigel XE "Rigel"  bowls, 




2 mash buckets, 1 cheese box
 3.16



3 

Drag bed
 2.
 8.32




Livestock

1
ea
Brown mare, 13 years old
 106.32



3 

Cows
  65.


5
ea
goats
  15.



7
ea
sheep and a ram
  15.
 201.32




Harvest

10 
barrels of grain
 120.



½ 

barrels of rye
  20.





Peas ½ barrel ½ ¼ barrel
 9.
 149. ok




Receivables



From farmer Olof Simonsson of Holmsjön 




in accordance with the promissory note 




of March 20, 1856
 246.32





Accrued annual interest on this note.
 9.29





From Johan Jönsson of Skjärwången 




in accordance with the promissory note 




of May 10, 1856
  22.





Accrued annual interest on this note.
  .26





From the same person 




(Johan Jönsson of Skjärwången}




without a promissory note
 100.





From workman Jonas Nilsson of Åkersjö






without a promissory note
  60.





From Olof Sallmonsson of Skjärwången 




according to the promissory note 




of May 18, 1852
  21.36





Accrued annual interest on this note
 4.24





From smith Worker Simon Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hotagen 




according to the promissory note 




of August 21, 1856 with interest
  27.





From Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stångviken 




according to the promissory note 




of February 4, 1856
  28.





Accrued annual interest on this note
 1.





From Erik Jonsson of Äkersjö with 




interest on the principle
 534.2




Uncertain Receivables 




From Pål Andersson of Vallrun
40.




From Nils Pehrsson of Holmsjön
 4.32





From Anders Sallmonsson of Bakvattnet
 6.32





From Olof Pehrsson of Bakvattnet
 3.16



 


54.32
  .10


I 

Cash
  20.





Total Assets
1303.26




Debts





Likstol XE "Likstol" 
 to Vicar Ax.  Rothoff, who according to the 




1699 convention was compensated 




with a cow, therefore
21.






Estate Inventory expense
1.16






Estate Inventory lölate XE "lölate" 
5.






Poor Share
3.
  30.16





Estate Balance


1293.16





Total Debts 

1303.2


That this live as also demand, after knowledge and extreme precision, becomes rightfully recorded, so that with the death of my wife, be certified under sworn obligation



Jonas Simonsson

This evaluation statement hereby becomes precisely recorded and certified on the above date.



Heming Jonsson 



Gabriell Ol XE "Ol" ofsson



Assessor & Appraiser

The poor share of 3 Riksdaler is paid and signed for by Gabriell Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

Lisa Essing
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Lisa Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C4
	Lisa Essing 
	B
	Mar 14, 1795
	
	Lisa lived in Trägsta, Hammarnäset, Hall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Pål Nätt 
	B
	Jan 24, 1787 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 26, 1869
	
	

	D1
	Erik Pålsson 
	B
	Apr 21, 1829 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 28, 1870 
	Kyrkås
	

	D2
	Anders Pålsson 
	B
	Mar 1836
	
	

	Table 106
	
	D
	Aug 5, 1928
	Hallen
	


October 13th 
I {Jonas Mårtensson} hereby release and sell my ownership rights to the Copper Mining Company Farm called Hammerdals Slope, located on the east side of the winter road which goes south from my Trägstalägde XE "Trägstalägde" , to field soldier {Paul Nätt from Trägsta} 

This farm is enclosed with a fence of the following dimensions: 

· 7½ malings on the south side 

· 5 malings on the west side 

· 5 malings on the north side

· 7 malings on the east side 

Consequently, the fenced enclosure has a width of 35½ malings
 of which twenty malings is of a recently cleared forest and the remainder within this fenced enclosure has an overgrown forest with both large and small trees.

under which there is a meadow with an old barn that can be expect for hay, 

and also a myr tract on the south end of Hammerdals 

the meadow according to the exposed property line markers all the way to Bäcken on the west side and to a little forest island on the southwestern end.

3 sedge golf plain of ore swampland.  

When this is given to his (__________} widow {Karin who is Nått’s mother} upon his death, 

Nätt ta XE "ta" kes possession and farm Swertladuänget lying with Rödmyran {Röd Swamp or Red Swamp} with the width designated according to the property line markers, house and 

saw timber may be taken by the farmer for his property needs on the farm owners outlying land, 

also firewood, fencing, and pasture may be taken on the same outlying land.

These cottages and benefits commence immediately for Nätt for the cropland.  He also ta XE "ta" kes possession of the cottages and farm for his the remainder of his lifetime, and if he marries for his wife’s lifetime also. 

But after their lifetimes are over, the heirs of this farm owner, after good mäns valuation, shall receive payment for the houses as well as for the croplands.  

The agreement is additionally made that the grain payment by/to Nätten for the year 1829 is canceled because he was called into the military service, but for latter years Nätt receives one-half (½) barrel of grain as a payment for being a soldier. 

When Nätt comes back discharged from his war duties, he shall from that date provide the following days of work to the farm owner:  

· 4 days in the month of June

· 6 men’s days at haying time  

· 5 women’s days at haying time

· 2 at Skjördanden

· 2 days in the month of October

Altogether, twenty
 days of work shall be provided annually, all at the expense of the farm owner.  

for these days of work 

receive more for this Nätt orders 8 days before that.

Both of us are satisfied with this farm contract as acknowledged with our signatures.  


Trägsta on June 28, 1824


Seller:
Jonas Mårtensson of Hammarnås 


Buyer:
Paul  (Signature Mark) Nätt 

(141)
Witness:
Olof Månsson
farm owner



W Kr Municipal Sergeant

Paul Nätt was supposed to vacate the site on December 31, 1827 from No. 99, and convey it to Infantry Soldier No. 40 of Höla, Hallen Company 2 Corporal skapet XE "skapet" 
.

He {Paul Nätt} was then 44 year and 6 months old and he had been in the military service for 25 years and 8 months.  He was 5 foot 7 inches tall, had attended Fälttågen
 in 1808 and 1809, and had served honorably and well.  

On July 4, 1831, he received his Honorable Discharge because that year he was in poor health, and he gets a support pension with his discharge.

Summons Memorial

On occasion of the below standing summons memorial,  

farm owner {Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson in Trägsta} was summoned and agreed  at the next Autumn Court Session in Hallen District Court, and accepted its commencement on Trappnäs Guest giver farm Friday 

d.

On the twenty-third (23rd) of next September, 

to defendant’s plea on the plaintiff, widow Lisa Andersdotter’s statement, 

in that the memorial closer of this summons is obeyed by consequence.


After ordering 

Erik Göransson

I, E. Göransson, issued a legal notice of summons for the next Autumn Court Session in Hallen District Court against the farm owner {Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hammarnäset or Trägsta}, with the demand that he must be enjoined to pay me 63 Riksdaler and annual interest from the year 1864, providing compensation for cultivation payment on two and one-half (2½) Ref of cultivated land, 

which he distributed and received with the ownership rights to this farm, 

I, E. Göransson, during the trial shall also reserve for myself free and open rights to show the deeds, 

for that reason plaintiff’s case him establishes, 

and I also request reasonable compensation for legal and court costs.  


Trägsta on August 29, 1870


By request of:


E. Göransson 


Lisa Andersdotter (widower of pensioner Paul Nätt of Trägsta)

From Hallen District Court

Defendant’s plea Lisa Andersdotter has issued a summons against me and I {Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} have received this summons stating that I {Nils Olof Olofsson} on October 13, 1864 

by Rettade cultivation payment shall be obliged to make a payment to Olof Hjelm or have in possession the figures M:407 a 408, for the so called Nett farm.

I {Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} by means of this proof of receipt show that I have annually made this payment and the farmer also received the refuted land from Olof Hjelm which belonged to the farmer according to 8 in the distribution.  

The record is agreed upon that the farm should belong to the farmer he fell on, 

and afterwards shall provide days of work to the farm owner.

I {Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} ask to be released from the plaintiff’s case because I cannot be enjoined to make two payments for the same land and I request reimbursement for the customary expenses and court appearance costs of 12 Riksdaler.


Trappnäs Court on September 26, 1870



Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

Upon the demand of farm owner Nils Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hammarnäset, 

I {Eric Andersson} received this as an explanation with that distributed function in this Village, 

agreed come the landowner 

that day work farmer Påhl Nett should receive qvarsitta XE "qvarsitta"  on his own 

that he received in full and was put into the Recorded Minutes, and Påhl Nett was heard and he stated that he was satisfied with the Judgment as certified in Hallen on September 24, 1870

(142)

Eric Andersson of Öfverhallen

From Recorded Minutes 8

It should be placed into the Recorded Minutes in the Village of Trappnä, 

for their Trägsta the ownership rights to the land and cottages, 

should receive equal to underlay 

in an agreement for another suitable place.

It also states that the mill by the meadow may be used by Parish Clerk Ström 

should be misplaced on the west side of their property by overland road, 

and that farm buyers Lang and Nätt should hold courageously to their ownership rights to the farm, 

against after providing the accomplishments they undertook to give to the farm owner, 

they are each placed on land by the completed distribution.

Catarina Essing
Table 38 (143)

Catarina Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C5
	Catarina Essing 
	B
	Sep 14, 1796 
	
	Catarina lived in Fröån, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Isak Bergström 
	B
	Mar 18, 1799 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1866
	
	

	Dl
	Isak Bergström 
	B
	Feb 2, 1821
	
	Vistas in Norway

	Table 107
	
	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Anders Bergström 
	B
	Jan 21, 1823 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 3, 1893 
	Trondheim TBC
	

	D3
	Brita Bergström 
	B
	1826
	
	

	Table 108
	
	D
	
	
	

	D4
	Per Bergström 
	B
	Aug 24, 1831
	
	

	Table 109
	
	D
	
	
	

	D5
	Göran Bergström 
	B
	Jan 2, 1835
	
	

	Table 110
	
	D
	
	
	

	D6
	Olof Bergström 
	B
	Apr 11, 1839
	
	I have found no information on Olof.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Isac Bergström owned Company Farm No. 152 in the Village of Fröän after 1820 until (______), then his father’s widow had possession of it for 8 years and left it as follows:

· A cottage building, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, of which the porch is 3 alnars {6 feet} square, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide and 16 layers high with a double board roof, inner ceiling and attic of boards, a floor built of planks, a fireplace with a baking oven with boards of wood, but with spikes, and 2 iron dampers, 2 windows in the cottage, one small window in the unfurnished attic and 2 doors with a lock.  The outside walls are built of boards on 2 sides.  It is 24 years old, in complete and perfect condition.

· A cottage building, 9 alnars {18 feet} long.  It has a lean-to porch 8 alnars {16 feet} wide and 15 layers high.  It has a double board roof, tongue and grooved board inner ceiling for the unfurnished attic, a fireplace without a baking oven with well braced and wooden spikes, 2 windows in the cottage of 7/4 and a smaller one in the attic, 2 doors, and a floor built of planks.  It is 8 years old and in perfect condition.

· A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 9½ alnars {19 feet} wide and 15 layers high with addition a haystack of boards, roof and warm roof of unpainted and unfinished boards,  a floor built of planks, but no fireplace.  It has room enough for 5 cows and 20 to 25 sheep or goats.  It is 3 years old and it has 2 small unbroken windows.

· A barn by the small old house, 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 7¼ alnars {14½ feet} wide and 14 layers high with a new board roof.  One row of new timber with new roof ridges, a floor built of planks.  It is 29 years old, repaired this is.

· A barn adjacent to the barn described above, by means of a haystack, 8½ alnars {17 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide and 12 layers high with a new roof of boards.  The floor consists of miscellaneous wood, very old, repaired this year.

· A barn, 6 alnars {12 feet} square, 9 layers high.  The roof is built of birch bark, tree and sod, 2 dry leaves and a baking oven.  It is 7 years old and in perfect condition.

· A cellar building with pit to cellar without stone walls.  5 alnars {10 feet} square, 8 layers high.  Roof of boards and a floor of timber and planks.  It has one door with a lock.  It is about 20 years old.

· A summer barn about 8 alnars {16 feet} square, 7 layers high.  The roof is built of tree and birch bark and sod, to itself old, but furnished with a new roof 6 years ago.

· 4 hay barns, of which one is new, which together can hold 12 loads of hay.  

· A woodshed with 3 walls and sloped roof of boards against the west wall of the cottage.  

· Croplands, 

· 1 ¼ malings of open land and 

· 11 3/4 malings of new land.  

· Fence, 420 fathoms of good fenced pasture.  

· Mountains 24 loads of hay within the fence.  

· This farm can feed 2 cows, 15 sheep or goats during the year with the help of leaves and straw.  1 horse, then the tenant lejer XE "lejer"  cottage and purchased hay of about 13 or 14 loads each year.  

· In 5 year 8 malings were cultivated

Company Farm No. 150 contained within the Såå Farm

This farm is first started by Miner Nils Wikberg, after which came the current owner Isac Isaesson Bergström in 1837.  I have not been able to find a contract of the Farm Tenancy with the current tenant, Isac Bergström,.  The lease amount was 3.16 Riksdaler

Company Farm No. 147 contained within the Såå Farm

This farm is located in Fröå old Hyttställe XE "Hyttställe" 
 or present saw.  That cottage first built in 1752 by Smelter Eric Hyttsten (Then 2 farms, but afterwards combined together slagne XE "slagne" 
 into one).

Fredric Adler occupied it later.  Then it was occupied by Isac Bergström.  He was succeeded by his son, the current tenant, Isac Bergström

No inventory of the farm’s possessions uppgjort XE "uppgjort"  from tenant Isac Bergström.  The lease amount was 6.32 Riksdaler.

Johan Lang
Table 39 (145)

Johan Lang4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C7
	Johan Lang 
	B
	Aug 15, 1799
	
	Johan lived in Trägsta, Hammarnäset in Hallen Parish.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 26, 1822 
	
	

	S
	Anna Jacobsdotter 
	B
	Mar 27, 1798 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 3, 1883?
	
	

	D1
	Anders Lang 
	B
	Apr 6, 1823 
	Höla
	

	
	
	D
	June 15, 1823
	
	

	D2
	Jacob Lang 
	B
	Apr 18, 1824 
	Hammarnäset
	

	Table 111
	
	D
	
	
	

	D3
	Brita Lang 
	B
	July 13, 1826 
	Hammarnäset
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D4
	Anna Lang 
	B
	Aug 22, 1828 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 3, 1858 
	Stugun 
	Anna was an unmarried maid.

	D5
	Lisa Lang 
	B
	June 8, 1831 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 9, 1840
	
	

	D6
	Anders Lang 
	B
	Aug 19, 1836 
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	D
	July 18, 1904 
	
	


Johan was a soldier in 4:e Corporal skapet XE "skapet"  in Hallens Company, and he left on December 31, 1827, then number 71 Månsäsen according to the Royal Court Judgment:  

for the Royal Letter of the 19th of the same month was granted to Hästhållning XE "Hästhållning" 
.  In 1826 Johan Lang was listed as having been in the military service for 5 years and 9 months.  He was also listed as being 5 foot 7 inches tall.

The Lang family was penniless and barely able to survive.  Both Johan and his wife Anna were in poor health.

From 1838-1839 Johan Lang’s children were paid 1.16 Riksdaler, and from 1839-40 they were paid 1.32 Riksdaler.  From 1879-1880, Johan Lang received 15 Riksdaler in welfare, and from 1880-1881 he received 5 Riksdaler from poor money.

The Distress Warrant readily notified the people within Hallen District Court who had obligations for the year 1830 and they are listed with the Royal Court, but the same are not able to pay in regard to margina XE "margina"  noted causes.  

Johan Lang is without any defenses, penniless, without access to any money, and he has 3 children to provide for.

Johan Lang was a day labor farmer for his brother-in-law Pål Nätt.

There you can also read about Lang, and how they sit courageously on their own little farms.  

Day labor farmers were a common occupation and they frequently lived in a cottage on the farm, and they had a small piece of land to cultivate for themselves and live on.  

They planted some potatoes and maybe a few turnips.  They had enough for a cow and goat, maybe even a few more goats and sheep if they wanted.  But Johan Lang had barely that much. 

One really wonders how they could survive on what little they had.

Nils Wikberg
Table 40 (146)

Nils Wikberg4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C1
	Nils Wikberg 
	B
	Sep 14, 1788 
	
	Nils was Miner in Fröån for a time.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Elin Andersdotter 
	B
	July 23, 1776 
	
	There were no children in this marriage.

	
	
	D
	Nov 6, 1865
	
	


Nils Wikberg drew up a contract to receive beat him downwards in Hyttvallen on August 29, 1832.  

There was no house built there then.  

He promises to build a new house and receives the 3 tax-free years from lease payments.  Then after that he is to pay 3 Riksdalers annually.  

Hyttvallen had previously been used as "Winds-hay making" for which it was meant to use the hay for the horses that pulled "An attic-spelec XE "spelec"  in Fröå.

Contract

The tenant rights on one-half (½) portion of the Company Farm No. 118, called Hyttvallen, located in the Gustafs Copper Mining Company in Åre Parish in Jemtland, which had been previously utilized as a Windsslott XE "Windsslott" 
 is taken over from and including March 14th of this year by the tenant living on this place (Nils Wikberg} for the following conditions:

1. Nils Wikberg shall have the benefit of 3 years of tax freedom from tenant payments, in exchange for the commitment to build a cottage on the farm during this time in lived on according to the terms.

2. After this time Nils Wikberg shall annually pay three (3) Riksdaler sixteen (16) Species to the Copper Mining Company for which, after negotiable payment for work and driving, will in such manner be exchanged.

3. It is an obligation of Nils Wikberg in order to keep making payments, to continuously work in a Copper Mining Company job.

4. It is the responsibility of Nils Wikberg to keep the necessary buildings on the farm as well as fence in good condition and the land and meadow well cultivated.  Construction wood for necessary buildings must be marked at the Company Office before the buildings are completed.

5. Nils Wikberg is prohibited from selling hay, straw, leaves, birch bark or firewood timber from the farm or that which preferably and he should also as far as happen can tilse XE "tilse"  that nothing of the sort will be taken illegally on farms own by other one happens.

6. For the completion of this, Nils Wikberg is banished that farm automatic keep and after giving notice, have the benefit of this at the next moving time.  However with the reserv XE "reserv" ation to Company owner’s right to after hearing, divide farm of as good as can found.


Husån on August 29, 1832



Claes

On September 12, 1857 the following assessment and evaluation was conducted on the buildings and croplands on the farm in Fröå that had been lived on by Miner Nils Wikberg since 1833.  After his death in 1856, the farm went to Miner Isac Isacsson Bergström:

These farm buildings are complete and constitute one-half (½) of the value of the farm that was built and cultivated by Nils Wikberg.  

· The cottage building is 12 alnars {24 feet} long, of which the porch makes up 4½ alnars {9 feet}, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 16 layers high.  It has a fireplace with a baking oven, 1 spike of iron, 2 iron dampers, 2 windows with 4 panes, 1 operable window.

· A woodshed with boards on the west end

· A barn 7½ alnars {15 feet} long 7½ alnars {15 feet} wide, 14 layers high

· A cellar in good condition that can be lived in

· A woodshed built of boards with 2 doors on hinges

· An old barn built by Lars Wikberg

Photograph (147)

From Left:  Fyrkanten, Bakstuga/Smedja and Bergstugan in Fröån.  

It is possible to purchase both coffee and food in Bergsstugan.

Inger J. Qvarnström took this photograph in 1994.  

Anders Larsson
Table 41 (148)

Anders Larsson4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C2
	Anders Larsson 
	B
	Feb 28, 1792
	
	Anders was a farmer 

	
	
	D
	
	
	in Forssa, Åre.

	
	
	M
	June 25, 1819
	
	

	S
	Stina Ersdotter 
	B
	May 10, 1796 
	Forssa
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 31, 1846? 
	
	

	D1
	Lars Andersson 
	B
	Mar 3, 1820
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	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Stina Andersdotter 
	B
	July 20, 1822 
	
	

	Table 114
	
	D
	July 3, 1899 
	Åre
	

	D3
	Erik Andersson 
	B
	May 9, 1825 
	
	

	Table 115
	
	D
	July 13, 1914 
	Åre
	

	D4
	Catharina Andersdotter
	B
	Jan 6, 1828
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 1888
	
	


Anders purchased Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge from his brother {Sven} in the following Purchase Agreement:

I {Sven Larsson} after sound consideration and through drawing of lots in Undersåker District Court on October 16, 1815 hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in Åhre Parish consisting of 1 acre to my brother (Anders Larsson}.  

The terms and conditions of this sale are to be in accordance with the District Court Minutes of October 16, 1815.

My ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of 1 acre and everything else that now belongs to this farm or can be legally obtained in the future is hereby given to my brother (Anders Larsson}.

He and his heirs shall have this as their legally acquired property and they shall receive the occupancy and cultivation rights immediately.

To additionally confirm the validity of this with my name and own handwritten (Signature Mark), in witnesses attended, entrusted


Björnänge on October 3, 1816


Seller:

Sven Larsson


Buyer:

Anders Larsson

(148)
Testerar XE "Testerar" 
Buyer:
Johan Israel Noraus




Nils Andersson of Svedje

I {Anders Larsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Biörnenge consisting of 1 acre in Ähre Parish to Morten Jacobsson through a public and voluntary auction.  
Farmer Mårten Jacobsson has submitted the highest bid of five hundred (500) Riksdaler. Of this total, 106 Riksdaler 66 Species shall immediately be paid by him to shopkeeper Hans Liström of Östersund according to the Royal Court Judgment of May 29, 1818.  

The remaining 393 Riksdaler 34 Species shall be paid by January 26, 1819.  The first half of this remaining debt, 196 Riksdaler 17 Species, shall be paid by the next Gregorian Calendar year of 1819.  The other half of this debt, 196 Riksdaler 17 Species, shall be paid by Mikaeli time of the same year.  

The homestead tenant (Mårten Jacobsson} shall provide Reserved Rights to my mother {Karin Andersdotter} and to my mentally unstable sister (Anika}, according to the District Court Minutes of October 16, 1815.  

My stepfather {Olof Salamonsson} shall also have the benefit of Reserved Rights from the farm according to the District Court Recorded Minutes.

However, if some property should be found after the death of my father {_____________} 

shall the me summoned äfter XE "äfter"  his {_____________} death, 

wherefore I {Morten Jacopsson} also acquire this Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Biörnänge consisting of 1 acre with house and property 

and each to make neither afterwards 

that can legally obtained the livestock as his {____________} legally acquired property and is to receive cultivation and occupancy rights.  

It is attested and confirmed by each of us with our names and our own handwritten  (Signature Mark) in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to give additional proof of this.  


Björnenge on October 19, 1818


Seller: 
Anders Larsson



Buyer: 
Morten Jacobsson

(149)
Witness:
Pehr Pehrsson of Mörviken


Nils Andersson of Svedje





Erik Pehrsson of Mörviken


Sven Wikberg
Table 42 (149)

Sven Wikberg4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C3
	Sven Wikberg 
	B
	Mar 23, 1795
	
	Sven was a Miner in Fröån.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Barbro Simonsdotter 
	B
	Dec 30, 1794 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 26, 1877 
	
	from Brattland, Åre

	D1
	Lars Wikberg 
	B
	Mar 7, 1824 
	
	

	Table 116
	
	D
	Jan 25, 1904
	
	

	D2
	Lena Wikberg 
	B
	Oct 8, 1828 
	
	

	Table 117
	
	D
	Feb 8, 1907
	
	

	D3
	Karin Wikberg 
	B
	June 25, 1834
	
	

	Table 118
	
	D
	Mar 7, 1916
	
	


Sven and his family lived on Company Farm No. 154 and were the first tenants there.  Their son Lars came and took over from his father later and he was given notice in 1856.

Before he became the tenant of this farm, he used the summer mountain pasture with Company Farm No. 155.

· This farm can feed a cow, 5 sheep and 5 goats and 1 barrel of potatoes was planted.

· Lars later lived in Grels Berg and after his death his widow lived there.

· The cottage was built in 1844, at the time the father of Lars Wikberg, although bedridden, was in charge of accounting for the Copper Mining Company.  

· A feed shed, boathouse, and new hay barn were built by Lars Wikberg by September 11, 1857.  

An assessment and evaluation was conducted on Company Farm No. 118 in the Village of Såå by the Gustaf Copper Mining Company, 

for the buildings and cropland and fence 

This farm before had been a summer mountain cabin pasture, and the homestead was later broken up, cultivated, and built upon by Company Workers Sven and Nils Wikberg, who fixed it up during the years 1832-1833.  

Later they divided it between them into two equal parts.  Sven Wikberg farmed this undersigned half until 1846 when he died.  After his death, his son Lars occupied it until the spring of 1857.  Then he relinquished it to Miner Grels Ersson Berg.

· The cottage building was 13 alnars {26 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, 17 layers high, of which the porch is 4 and two-thirds (2/3) of this.  The outer roof had double boards, tongue and grooved boards on the inner ceiling to attic which has stairs to attic in the porch.  The entrance hall has a fireplace but is otherwise unfurnished.  A fireplace in the cottage with iron spikes.  2 windows of 6 quarters, a window in the attic.  This building was built in 1844.

· The barn is about 16 years old, 7¼ alnars {14½ feet} long, 7½ alnars {15 feet} wide, 16 layers high, a floor built of unpainted and unfinished planks, warm roof under the outside walls are of simple boards, 2 small windows, room enough for 3 cows and some sheep or goats.

· An old cottage and barn built together with a common wall,  13 alnars {26 feet} long by 8½ alnars {17 feet} wide by 15 layers high.  The barn roof has unpainted and unfinished simple boards.  The shed was built against the long walls with the barn of the same length, without redste XE "redste"  with sloped roof.  8 layers high, 6½ alnars {13 feet} wide

· A boat house 6 alnars {12 feet} long by 4½ alnars {9 feet} wide by 8 layers high.  Roof  of trees, birch bark and sod

· A cellar lived above the ground 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 4½ alnars {9 feet} wide, 6 layers high.  Roof  of boards

· A hay barn 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 9 layers high.  It has a roof  of boards

Magnus Larsson
Table 43 (151)

Magnus Larsson4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C5
	Magnus Larsson 
	B
	July 31, 1803 
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Kerstin Larsdotter Lind

	B
	Dec 25, 1798
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 2, 1878
	
	

	D1
	Catharina Magnusdotter
	B
	July 24, 1836
	Huså
	

	Table 119
	
	D
	
	
	


Magnus was a Miner in Husä, and later he moved to Sulviken.  His family lived on Company Farm No. 24.  They moved there in 1835.  He was called “Mångses” then.  He married Johan Ersson, who was born in 1806, on April 22, 1858.  They lived on a Company Farm in the Village of Sulviken.  The farm belonged under Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Sulviken and was tax purchased from the Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company according to the tax letter dated May 7, 1751.  He moved on June 26, 1858.

Prefect Jon Grönlund 

Later, the last tenant 

the seller (Jon Grönlund} hereby releases and sells his ownership rights to the croplands and new homestead buildings on Company Farm No. 30 in the Village of Husån to Miner Magnus Larsson for a price of 50 Riksdaler which is to be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session 

Then it is to be the responsibility of the current the buyer (Magnus Larsson} to be responsible for and take care of the farm including land, cottages, fenced field and own well.

The annual lease amount for the duration of this contract is 14 Riksdaler.  He must also provide Reserved Rights to the widow of Edström

that myself be that expected by mine 

and second jobs by the Copper Mining Company 

for approved piece-work and day-work wages, 

and pay twenty-five (25) Riksdaler that to the Copper Mining Company gentlemen concerned people.  

Magnus Larsson is hereby assured of automatic ownership rights in the future if he maintains the tenant buildings and croplands for the next 3 years and if he carefully fulfills this contract and has sober and gentle conduct each year.


Husån on November 19, 1835


Gust.  Montgomery (on behalf of the Copper Mining Company)

I attest my complete agreement with this contract to everyone and hereby agree to faithfully fulfill it.


Date as above



Magnus Larsson

(151)
Witness: 
H.  Hallongren 



Johan Hyttsten

As a subsequent addendum to this contract, 

I hereby promise that not only myself 

hold a presumable person in place with a Copper Mining Company job

and later when I become retired, 

without also the horse born on the farm 

with that notice, 

which surely winter and summer purchased, 

Otherwise it is a violation of the wording of this contract.  


Huså on July 21, 1849 



Magnus Larsson on the Company behalf

(152)
Witness: 
J.  Lundström 



N.  Lalander 



Olof Grönblad

The undersigned buyer of Company Farm No. 30 in the Village of Husän hereby promises with this contract to provide the following annual Reserved Rights to the widow {Anna Edström} for the remainder of her lifetime:

· Free lodging, firewood and heat in the room that she currently inhabits  

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· Feed and fodder for 2 sheep and 2 goats

· 1 maling of cropland consisting of one-half of an acre in xxx XE "xxx"  and one-half of an acre in straw

· A small field for potatoes 

These Reserved Rights are hereby assured in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Husån on April 2, 1836



Magnus Larsson, owner of Company Farm No. 30

(152)
Witness: 
Gust.  Montgomery 



0.  Bergman 

Company Farm No. 24 in the Village of Huså was lived in by Miner Johan Ersson and sold to Magnus Larsson in 1858, through a transaction with the Sulvik farm.

· A cottage 13 alnars {26 feet} long, of which the porch is 4 3/4 alnars {9½ feet}, with small rooms, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 16 layers high.  It has double boards in the roof and a fireplace with boards, spikes and an iron damper, a fireplace with iron dampers, tongue and grooved boards on the attic floor in both cottage and barn.  All floors are built of planks.  It has 2 windows.  The cottage is built of boards and external on eastern and one-half (½) the south side, and inside in the cottage and porch.

· A barn on a stone foundation, 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide and 12 layers high and with a fireplace with boards.  It has room enough for 5 or 6 cows and about 23 sheep or goats.  It is about 32 years old and will still be usable for a few more years.

· A cottage, 7½ alnars {15 feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  It has a fireplace with a baking oven.

· Boards, iron spikes, very old cottage.  It was repaired 34 year ago and it was relocated 10 year ago.  It has been damaged by rot.

· A barn, 11 alnars {22 feet} long, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide and 8 layers high.  

· A shed, 5 alnars {10 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 8 layers high

· A granary, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 11 layers high

· A cellar or shelter 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide, 8 layers high.  

· A summer barn, 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide and 5 layers high.  

The following transaction is made between the undersigned on this date:

I {Johan Ersson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Ingeborg Göransdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to the Company Worker Magnus Larsson of Huså.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 located in Village of Sulviken, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtland Southern Judicial District, consisting of one-half (½) of a taxable acre after aftittringen XE "aftittringen"  became increased with 1/8 of an acre.

The Gustaf and Carlberg Copper Mining Company had purchased this farm for tax income
 from the Royal Court Judgment according to King Combs Colleagues Purchase Agreement of May 7, 1751.

for his ownership rights to Company Farm No. 30
 in the Village of Huså according to his contract of November 19, 1835,  

with a down payment of nine hundred (900) Riksdaler which Magnus Larsson paid to me in cash, 

which is to happen on the 1st of next May of this year, 

then both of us agree that half have his last place completely vacated.

I {Johan Ersson} hereby release and sell my legal ownership rights on this farm to Magnus Larsson and his wife and children and heirs.  These ownership rights and obligations are as stated in my Purchase Agreement of April 27, 1835.

I {Johan Ersson} also guarantee and agree that in the event this farm with its ownership rights is put into the Deed Book 

time Magnus Larsson should legally frånvinnas XE "frånvinnas" 
 to him dividends does 

not only the down payment, 

without also holding him (Magnus Larsson) tax free in remaining, 

then he wärjer XE "wärjer" 
 my approval of this above Farm, 

It is also the responsibility of Magnus Larsson to provide Reserved Rights to the widowed husband Per Salmonsson of Sulviken, and to be responsible for all of the accompanying farm Special and ordinary taxes and burdens.

He shall then receive enjoyment of all the property, cottages, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future

It is hereby agreed, completed and certified with our signatures and Signature Marks in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

Kall and Sulviken on April 22, 1858


Seller:
Johan Ersson


Buyer:
Magnus Larsson

(153)
Witness:
Salmon Hinricsson of Sulviken



Eric Ericsson of the same Village

Erik Grönlund
Table 44 (154)

Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C2
	Erik Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 8, 1792 
	
	Company Worker in Huså

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 21, 1819 
	
	

	S
	Elisabet Jonsdotter 
	B
	July 14, 1797 
	from Hamborg
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 18, 1876
	
	

	D1
	Olof Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 30, 1820 
	
	

	Table 120
	
	D
	Aug 21, 1900
	
	

	D2
	Jonas Grönlund 
	B
	Oct 6, 1822 
	
	

	Table 121
	
	D
	Mar 23, 1872
	
	

	D3
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B
	Dec 7, 1824 
	
	

	Table 122
	
	D
	Sep 28, 1900
	
	

	D4
	Kerstin Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 21, 1827 
	
	

	Table 123
	
	D
	July 1, 1889
	
	

	D5
	Erik Grönlund 
	B
	Nov 25, 1829 
	
	

	Table 124
	
	D
	Apr 22, 1863
	
	

	D6
	Lisbet Grönlund 
	B
	May 8, 1833 
	
	

	Table 125
	
	D
	1908
	
	

	D7
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 3, 1838 
	
	

	Table 126
	
	D
	Dec 23, 1909
	
	


Erik’s grandfather cleared this farm of branches and roots, at first alone and then with son Olof until 1792.  Olof then became the lone tenant and was succeeded by his son Erik who
 died in 1810.

In 1829, the farm was partitioned into two pieces and it was divided between Erik (born on April 8, 1792) and his brother Anders (born on February 10, 1803).  Erik received Farm No. 21 and Anders received Farm No. 22.

On September 14, 1839, the following assessment was conducted on the farm, buildings, and cultivated land:

· A cottage building, 12¾ alnars {25½ feet} long (of which the porch with small rooms makes up 4 alnars {8 feet}) 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 17 layers high.  It has a roof of double boards, tongue and grooved boards inner ceiling to an attic of boards, a fireplace with a baking oven in the cottage and in house with boards, post of iron, damper of stone in the cottage, 2 windows in the cottage and  1 in the house of 7/4, a window in the attic of the same size, 3 doors on hinges with In read, a floor built entirely of  planks.  It is 41 years old.  It was repaired later and this last summer it was repaired with a lot of  new wood.  It is still not completely furnished.  

· A barn 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  It has a simple board roof with unpainted and unfinished warmtak XE "warmtak" , a baking oven and board with filling, a floor built of planks, no fireplace, room enough for 4 cows and 15 to 20 sheep or goats.  It is roughly 34 years old and damaged by rot.  However, 5 years ago it was repaired and furnished with a new roof.

· A barn 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide and 11 layers high with a board roof, a floor of round logs, landside against a barn with 4 alnars {8 feet} wide cover.  It is very old, but it was repaired and provided with a new roof a few years ago.

· A shelter 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 5 alnars {10 feet} wide and 16 layers high with a roof is built of unpainted and unfinished boards, and a floor built of planks, a door with a lock.  It was repaired 14 years ago and is in perfect condition.

· Half of the ownership rights to a granary with Anders Grönlund, listed on his assessment records.

· A summer livestock house 8 alnars {16 feet} square with a roof is built of boards.  It is very old and has very old wood.

· One-fourth of the ownership rights to a worn-out barn that does no have any value.

· Knogvallen, 1 bigger barn, new floor, 4 years old, 

· A hay barn, milk shed, according to the tenants value 27 Riksdaler.  

· Half of the ownership rights to a hay barn in the cane field with Anders Grönlund.  

· 4¼ malings of open cropland 

· 8½ malings of new cropland

· The enclosed area i XE "i" ncludes 298 1/3 fathoms of fence and 17½ fathoms of stone walls

· Mountains 20 loads of hay from within the farm 

· Three (3) loads of hay from the cane field

· Two (2) loads of hay from Knogvallen

· One-fourth (¼) of a load from the swampland above the cane field

· One-half (½) of a load from Smedfall drolet XE "drolet" .

· This farm can feed 3 cows and 18 sheep or goats during the year with the assistance of leaves and straw.

During five years of occupancy, about l½ malings of new cropland were broken up.

There is still a lot of good land within this farm that can be broken up and cultivated.  

Brita Grönlund
Table 45 (156)

Brita Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C3
	Brita Grönlund 
	B
	July 7, 1794
	
	Brita lived in Fröån, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 27, 1816
	
	

	S1
	 Erik Hyttsten 
	B
	Apr 18, 1787 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 28, 1825 
	
	Copper Mining Company Sheriff

	D1
	Erik Johan Hyttsten 
	B
	July 22, 1817 
	
	Erik Johan was a trader, possibly a house-to-house peddler, since he moved around a lot.

	
	
	D
	Apr 30, 1856 
	Lännäs
	

	D2
	Olof Teodor Hyttsten 
	B
	Dec 17, 1819 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 26, 1822
	
	

	D3
	Olof Teodor Hyttsten 
	B
	Mar 4, 1824 
	
	

	Table 127
	
	D
	Sep 17, 1897 
	Alsen
	

	D4
	Anna Christina Hyttsten 
	B
	Dec 27, 1825 
	
	

	Table 128
	
	D
	July 4, 1902
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 10, 1828
	
	

	S2
	Jonas Nilsson Flink 
	B
	Sep 13, 1796 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 5, 1881 
	
	Company Sheriff

	D5
	Nils Magnus Nilsson 
	B
	Aug 4, 1828 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 25, 1854 
	Lännäs 
	

	D6
	Brita Christina Nilsdotter 
	B
	Aug 18, 1831 
	
	

	Table 129
	
	D
	Apr 23, 1913
	
	

	D7
	Per Jonas Nilsson 
	B
	Aug 2, 1834 
	
	Per Jonas lived in Östersund for only a 

	
	
	D
	July 30, 1852 
	Ösd
	short time.

	D8
	Gustaf Nilsson 
	B
	Mar 24, 1838 
	
	Gustaf was also in Lännäs for a couple of years from 1855-56

	Table 130
	
	D
	Feb 3, 1908
	
	


Nils Magnus Nilsson worked as a commercial butler in Sundsvall with Swan He moved from Sundsvall to Svante Kindlund from Undersåker, Härnösand in 1852 

and worked there with alderman and businessman Edin, until he moved to Överlännäs on January 20, 1853,  He was a businessman and accountant there until his death.
Inheritance Distribution Report

After deceased Company Sheriff Eric Hyttsten wise occurred examination of the property and no inheritance balance can be found for the upbringing of the small children, because after all the estate debts become paid, they had a deficiency of 16 Riksdaler 12 Species since the estate has additional receivables as assets that become protested.  

It consequently becomes obvious that Copper Mining Company Sheriff Hyttsten’s left behind intended children (sons Eric and Olof Theodor and daughter Anna Stina} will not receive the enjoyment of any inheritance from their father.  They are all underage minors and are not able to earn their livelihood without needing care and assistance.  

Consequently, the agreement is made that if the widow {Brita Grönlund} of Company Sheriff Hyttsten marries bookkeeper (Jonas Nilsson}, he will adopt the children of deceased Company Sheriff Hyttsten as his own and assume complete joint responsibility. 

Then she, as the rightful mother, and he, in exchange for property provided by the father of the children, are to provide upbringing and clothing in accordance with the responsibilities of Christian parents.

In addition, if Providence should grant bookkeeper Nilsson and his forthcoming wife their own children, then all of these children, the same as the other children, shall have equal inheritance from the parents in the case they should suffer some mishap and should some property be left to divide after their deaths.  

This contract was made in good faith after his (Company Sheriff Eric Hyttsten} death as confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Fröän on February 9, 1828



Jonas Nilsson Brita Hyttsten



Mårten Olsson of Nedgård



Gunnar Olsson of Hook custodian (Signature Mark)

(157)
Witness: 
M. G. Ros 



Pehr Jönsson of Såå



Jacob Palm of Fröån  (Signature Mark)

Jonas Nilsson Flink was the son of Kolaren XE "Kolaren" 
 Nils Jonsson Flink of Fäviken and his wife Kirsten Matsdotter.  

Jonas was obviously a cautious person.  

In 1830, he was asked to swear "Kolgillar-eden" which he did.  

This was the first step to more responsible employment on use and that resulted in his being asked to be the Company Sheriff in Fröä after the death of former Company Sheriff Erik Hyttsten.  

After Brita’s death, Jonas married Olof Hjerpe’s widow {Anna Åkesdotter} who was born on September 24, 1815.  

After Jonas died, Anna married Erik Persson from Edsäsen, Undersåker.

Purchase Agreement

I {Olof Nilsson of Björnänge} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Christina Jönsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to bookkeeper {J. Nilsson} and his wife {B. Nilsson of Fröån}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 3 located in the Village of Björnenge, Ähre Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtland County consisting of 1 taxable acre.

The agreed upon and partially paid purchase amount of one thousand one hundred (1,100) Riksdaler and Farm for 1st of next May the buyer.

2. 
   It is an obligation that the buyer (J. Nilsson} shall be responsible to my (Olof Nilsson} parents for their Reserved Rights according to their entry into the deed book Reserved Rights Contract of October 14th 1823.

Then it is the responsibility of the buyer (J. Nilsson} to repair the roof on the little cottage west of the farm to the extent that my (Olof Nilsson} parents are satisfied during their lifetimes.  

In any event, the entrance hall up to farm shall be their lodging until their death.  

I {Olof Nilsson} release and sell my ownership rights to this farm in exchange for the fulfillment of these terms and conditions afhändigar XE "afhändigar" 
.
Bookkeeper J. Nilsson and his dear wife, children, and heirs have hereby legally purchased this homestead including all of the buildings, land, 1/6 portion of the ownership rights to a sawmill, mill place, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.  

Dith XE "Dith"  each hereby on that sturdiest for security which ta XE "ta" kes place in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Björnänge on March 24, 1840


Seller: 
Olof  (Signature Mark) Nilsson 



Christina  (Signature Mark) Jönsdotter 


Buyer: 
J.  Nilsson 



Brita Olsdotter 

(158)
Witness: 
Pehr Jönsson of Bräcke Parish 



Anders Larsson of Lund

1. I {Anders Sundin} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Cårin Ersdotter} hereby release 

our ownership rights to Farm No. 1 in the Village of Svedje consisting of 1½ taxable acres 

with all farm to this date empower other rights likewise by separate cottage 

and the accompanying taxes and burdens that farm deeds closer examination thereof should proceed against that I and my wife 

to the Copper Mining Company Bookkeeper J.  Nilsson of Fröån who shall receive his ownership rights to Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of 1 taxable acre 

for a down payment of  400 Riksdaler, which is hereby paid through a addition on my debt.  

2. I {J. Nilsson the buyer}, with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Olsdotter} should release our ownership paid Farm in the Village of Björnänge according to the first paragraph in this contract  

that approval of the down payment 

Sundin (the seller} and his wife belongs to with obligation for 

the latter shall be responsible for all of the legal taxes and burdens accompanying this farm as well as the rights and privileges.

3. Both sides shall release to farm next our the buyer (J. Nilsson} and in merchant that bördstalan XE "bördstalan" 
 on some of cottages should on give but shall release therefore does not dislodge without undisputed and eternal ownership rights received by each side.

4. A. Sundin’s share in that with Hårbörsta dristnet XE "dristnet" 
 depository infatta XE "infatta" 
 grain portion for farm Svedje shall be by the buyer (J.  Nilsson} inserted afresh.

5. It is arrested with Wällast Municipality that they legally put into the Deed Book contract which on the Björnänge farm already was made dared for now the prospective owner through this transaction on District Court is enjoyed with these conditions.  We attest that we of both parties have complete agreement as acknowledged below with our signatures.  

 
Svedje on September 12, 1840


Seller in Svedje and Buyer in Björnänge



A. Sundin 



Cårin Ersdotter in Svedje 


Seller in Björnänge and Buyer in Svedje



J.  Nilsson 



Brita Olsdotter 

(158)
Witness: 
Per Persson of Mörviken



Nils Nilsson of Björnänge

On October 21, 1858, J. Nilsson of Svedje discontinued his request for an assessment of the farm he had taken over from Jöns Svedin.  

· The cottage was built in 1857 and is 12 alnars {24 feet} long, of which the porch is 4 alnars {8 feet}, 8¼ alnars {16½ feet} wide and 16 layers high.  Tongue and grooved board attic floor to attic, a floor in the house and cottage of planks.  Roof of double boards, 3 doors on hinges.  It had 2 windows in the cottage, 1 in the house and 1 in the attic.  A fireplace in the cottage with boards and wooden spikes and an iron damper.  The cottage was in complete condition.  

· A barn, 14½ alnars {29 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 15 layers high, of which a haystack with there in furnished shed makes up 5½ alnars {11 feet}.  The roof is built of simple unpainted and unfinished boards  with körbro XE "körbro" .

· Cellar with walft XE "walft" 
 stone roof, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, the entire cellar is built of stone and it has a double door on hinges with a lock. 

· Summer barn, 6½ alnars {13 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide and 7 layers high.  The roof is built of boards and a baking oven.

· Granary 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 8½ alnars {17 feet} wide and 13 layers high.  It has a partition with a straw floor.

· Hay barn 3 alnars {6 feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide and 10 layers high.  new The roof is birch bark old walls.

· The fence 156 fathoms new enclosure, fence in complete condition.  

On this date I release this Copper Mining Company farm to sons-in-law Jonas Andersson and Anders Bergström horse sled, 

I have for my wife and I provide and accepted the following Reserved Rights benefits:

A. Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cows and 8 sheep or goats with 4 of their offspring.  3 barrels of grain, afkaftade XE "afkaftade"  and well cleaned that is grown on the farm each year and twenty (20) fathoms of wood chopped into small pieces brought to the farm.  All of the above items are to be received annually. 

where before that the current owner of the farm increased annually to me on the property assigned should provide 24 loads of fertilizer and field land for outside planting of 1 barrel of potatoes each year.

B. I shall take for my own use for farming and hay making that portion of the property that lies entirely width lies between the old landswegen
 and the lake and that farm possessions single portion near Busktorpet beside with farm share in so called Buksäterslåttern.

Special Stipulations 

· Access and usage of the storehouse with addition barn west of the farm for lodging

· attic room over the cottage in ourselves infield building and a shelter and a sjul XE "sjul"  along granary, 

for which reason the current owner upon farm owner that purchased from me 

now necessary driving, 

that in and for Reserved Rights ______ can, 

and appropriate morbidity with tender and decent attention and care and a decent burial after death.  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights in Paragraph A are reduced in half.

The Reserved Rights come to an end and completely disappear with the other’s death, by which time that originates annually with definite quantiteter XE "quantiteter" .

It is hereby agreed and confirmed.  


Swedje on May 1, 1863


Reserved Rights 
 


Recipient:
Jonas Nilsson




Brita Olofsdotter of Swedje

This Reserved Rights benefits we bound ourselves in the above written order give, and their right to receive a mortgage on the farm is acknowledged.  


Swedje on above date



Jonas Andersson 



Anders Bergström of Swedje

(160)
Witness: 
Erik Larsson of Swedje 



Carl Fredrik Wikström of Årbörsta

Photograph (160)

barn on Anders Bergström’s farm in Swedje, Åre

Anna Grönlund
Table 46 (160)

Anna Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C4
	Anna Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 6, 1799
	
	Anna lived in Fröån, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Elias Grufberg 
	B
	Dec 9, 1793 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 6, 1880
	
	

	D1
	Brita Grufberg 
	B
	Feb 28, 1820 
	
	

	Table 131
	
	D
	Mar 21, 1902
	
	

	D2
	Agnes Grufberg 
	B
	May 19, 1822 
	
	

	Table 132
	
	D
	Dec 3, 05
	
	

	D3
	Kerstin Grufberg 
	B
	Dec 6, 1827 
	
	

	Table 133
	
	D
	Jan 2, 1899
	
	


Elias Grufberg was one of the Copper Mining Company’s best workers.  He was killed in the Fröå Mine by poisonous smoke.  He came from new Kopparberg.  His widow and three underage children received welfare of a small annual pension, assistance from the Copper Mining Company poor money, and support of their one-half (½) armbössemedlen XE "armbössemedlen" 
, as administrators of Bergs Colleagues.  Sometimes Elias had been the mine priest in Fröå Mine.

On September 11, 1857, an assessment was conducted on the crops and buildings on Gustafs Copper Mining Company Farm No. 105.  Elias Grufberg had lived on this farm since 1820.  He was succeeded by Eric Höglund, and then by artist Johan Moverare.

· A cottage built in 1806, 12½ alnars {25 feet} long, of which the porch is 4½ alnars {9 feet} long, 8½ alnars {17 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  A fireplace is in both rooms, and a baking oven, 2 windows, damper, chimney, irons spikes and boards.  The cottage is in poor condition and has lots of damage.  

· A barn 9 alnars {18 feet} long, except it had 4 alnars {8 feet}, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 13 layers high.  It has room enough for 4 cows and 20 sheep or goats.  2 smaller windows.  A floor and inner ceiling of unpainted and unfinished planks.  A fireplace with spikes and wooden boards.  It is in poor condition because of rot.

· A barn and shed with separate walls, 18 alnars {36 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 11 layers high.  It is old and damaged like the house.

· A shelter, 13 years old, built by Elias Grufberg, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 6¼ alnars {12½ feet} wide and 16 layers high.  The roof is built of double boards, a floor and between grounds of plank.  a door with a lock in complete condition, in perfect condition.

· A Cottage built by Elias Grufberg, 11½ alnars {23 feet} long, 6½ alnars {13 feet} wide and 11 layers high with of which 4½ alnars {9 feet} are the porch.  It has a double board roof, tongue and grooved boards inner ceiling to attic, 2 windows of 5/4, a floor built of planks, a fireplace with soapstone shållare XE "shållare" , wood post and damper of iron, bed with a cupboard and corner cup, and a door with a lock.  

· The Cottage was built of old timber and is 12 years old.

In the book "In Jemteland is nothing to make" written by Oscar Löding, you can read more about Elias Grufberg and others that lived in Fröån and in Huså.

Anders Grönlund
Table 47 (162)

Anders Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C5
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Feb 10, 1803
	
	Anders was a milkman in Huså.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 4, 1827 
	
	

	S
	Agnes Andersdotter 
	B
	Feb 25, 1801 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 21, 1890
	
	

	D1
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 12, 1828
	
	

	Table 134
	
	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 29, 1830
	
	

	Table 135
	
	D
	
	
	

	D3
	Lisbet Grönlund 
	B
	July 14, 1833
	
	

	Table 136
	
	D
	
	
	

	D4
	Anna Brita Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 13, 1841 
	
	

	Table 137
	
	D
	Nov 30, 1903
	
	Cancer


Company Farm No. 22 can feed 3 cows, 8 sheep and 10 goats on and 1 barrel of grain and 3¼ barrels of potatoes were planted each year.  

In 1893 the farm is used by Måns Bengtsson who still uses Company Farm No. 24 for altogether 65: in fees.

Photograph (162)

This is the remains of some buildings on Copper Mining Company land.  Cargo boats in any case nerför XE "nerför" 
 mountain side.

On September 11, 1839 an assessment was conducted on Company Farm No. 22 in the Village of Huså.  This farm had been lived on by Miner and Builder Anders Olsson Grönlund since 1827.  Then Olof Grönlund left it to their two sons Anders and Eric.  The assessment of the farm listed:

· A cottage, 13 alnars {26 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 18 layers high with the porch and small rooms which makes up by length 4 alnars {8 feet}.  Double board roof between the roofs everywhere is with tongue and groove boards, an attic room built the same way, all floors in the attic room as well as downstairs are built of planks, the entire building is built of boards both inside and out.  4 windows in downstairs room of 7/4, 5 windows in outer room of 5/4.  A fireplace with a baking oven and well braced, spikes and iron damper and a special baking oven by flaggsegel XE "flaggsegel" 
 by fireplace.

· It is tallied and upon being built was provided with a new roof 12 years ago.  It is gone and it is appraised accurately at 320 Riksdaler.  

· A barn, 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 11 layers high.  It is built with a board roof, unpainted with board, a baking oven, a floor built of planks, a fireplace with boards, wooden spikes.  It is 1 year old and now in perfect condition and has room enough for 4 or 5 cows and 15 sheep or goats.  It also has 2 5/4 windows.

· A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} square, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide and 11 layers high a haystack against the barns.  The roof is built of boards.  It has a floor built of split wood.  A new roof was put on last year, but the walls are about 64 years old.

· A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 9 layers high.  The outer roof is built of boards, and it has an unpainted and unfinished split wood floor of planks, a fireplace with boards and wooden spikes, and a door on hinges.  It is 26 years old but it was provided with a new roof in later years.

· A cellar building which above building to Shelter, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 5 alnars {10 feet} wide and 15 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, it has an unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, a door on hinges with a lock.  There are 5 rows timbered 5 year ago and new roof was installed 4 years ago.  The cellar is 5 alnars {10 feet} square, with 3 rows in the high walls and 2 alder covers, Everything is built of stone including the roof.  It has 2 doors with 2 locks and a roof built of a haystack of dirt and boards and some birch bark.

· A granary with in-law Eric Grönlund, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide with 3 alnars {6 feet} wide barn in the middle and 12 layers high.  The roof is built of boards and vote with cracks, floors in barn of planks and other floors of miscellaneous wood.  It was last repaired 26 years ago and is very old.

· A summer barn, 6 alnars {12 feet} square by 6 layers high.  It has a roof of old boards and has been damaged by rot.

· A smith house, 5½ alnars {11 feet} square by 7 layers high.  It has a hearth of stone and a door on hinges.  It is 10 years old and is a comfortable house for a farmer.

· A hay barn built by the homeowner, 6 alnars {12 feet} square by 8 layers high.  It has a board roof and a floor of miscellaneous wood.  It is 6 years old.

· One-fourth of the ownership rights to an old worn-out barn, and the rights to a sqvalt XE "sqvalt" 
 mill.

· A cottage, barn and hay barn in Knogvallen, that the Assessors have not now appraised, but it was valued according to the statement from the tenants living in it at 30 Riksdaler.  

· Half of the ownership rights to a hay barn 6 alnars {12 feet} square by 8 layers high with in-law Eric Grönlund in Rörsenget

· Croplands consisting of 2¼ malings of open land and 7 malings of new land.  

· Fence built of 312 fathoms of fence and 114 fathoms of stone walls

· 20 loads of hay within the fence can be gathered, 3 loads of forest hay in Rörsenget, and 2 loads from Knogvallen, one-fourth (¼) in and above Rörsenget and 1, in Smedfalldrolet.

· This farm can feed 3 cows and 18 sheep or goats during the year with help from loads of leaves and straw.

· During the first 5 years, the tenant has cultivated about 2½ malings of new land.  

· There is still a lot of land to be cultivated within the farm boundaries.

As undentör XE "undentör"  in their old age for his lengthy and faithful service, Anders Olsson Grönlund and his wife are guaranteed the following rights for the remainder of their lifetimes: 

· Lodging and firewood as necessary

· Feed and fodder for a cow, 4 sheep, and 2 of their offspring

· Planting ground for 5/4 barrels of potatoes

· 1 kubfot of salt

· 9 kubfot of grain

· 3 kubfot of rye

With the death of either my wife or myself, these benefits are reduced by 3 kubfot of grain and feed for 2 sheep and 1 of their offspring.



Huså on March 1, 1869



Wollrath Tham

For receiving the above benefits, I renounce all claims for compensation from this farm, including croplands and the existing buildings, fenced fields etc., and he now owns this Jemtland Copper & Logging Company Farm as his legally purchased property.



Huså on above date



Anders Olsson Grönlund

(164)
Witness: 
L. J.  Hallgren 



A. E. Eklund

Agnes Grönlund
Table 48 (165)

Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C6
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 2, 1806
	
	Agnes lived in Fröån, 

	
	
	D
	
	
	on  Company Farm No. 158.

	
	
	M
	Dec 13, 1829 
	
	

	S
	Bengt Sjöberg 
	B
	May 2, 1807 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 28, 1882 
	
	Artist

	D1
	Anna Brita Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 27, 1828 
	
	

	Table 138
	
	D
	Oct 7, 1905
	Offerdal
	

	D2
	Märta Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 6, 1830
	
	

	Table 139
	
	D
	
	
	

	D3
	Olof Sjöberg 
	B
	1832
	
	

	Table 140
	
	D
	
	
	

	D4
	Agnes Sjöberg 
	B
	Oct 7, 1834 
	
	

	Table 141
	
	D
	1901
	
	

	D5
	Nils Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 4, 1837 
	
	

	Table 142
	
	D
	Sep 27, 1922 
	Undersåker
	

	D6
	Anders Sjöberg 
	B
	Feb 12, 1841
	
	

	Table 143
	
	D
	
	
	

	D7
	Helena Sjöberg 
	B
	May 16, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	about 1844
	
	

	D8
	Helena Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 16, 1845
	
	

	Table 144
	
	D
	
	
	

	D9
	Erik Sjöberg 
	B
	June 12, 1848 
	
	

	Table 145
	
	D
	May 15, 1935 
	Alsen
	


Photograph (165)

Bengt Sjöberg lived here after artist Lars Engelberg, and later Bengt’s son-in-law Nils Grelsson Lindström came and lived there.  During the American-Period was western end affair and an addition on the north side of the school was built as a small house for a female teacher.  The addition was torn down and was later moved to Valltorpet.

Miner Bengt Sjöberg lived on company Farm No. 158 in the Village of Fröå.  

The Copper Mining Company had it for 12 years after 1839, and  left these cottages:

· A cottage, 16 alnars {32 feet} long, of which the porch with barn makes up 5 alnars {10 feet}, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 16 layers high.  Double board roof, floors of planks.  A fireplace with well braced with tree and iron spikes, 3 windows in the cottage of  3/4, 1 in house one-fourth (¼), on an attic of one-fourth (¼), 2 simple  double doors built of boards 2 walls, inside house built of boards whole in inside an attic furnished.  It is 4 years old.

· A cottage, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 8¼ alnars {16½ feet} wide and 16 layers high.  Double board roof tongue and grooved boards on the inner ceiling, floor built of planks, 2½ windows one-fourth (¼), a fireplace and a baking oven, boards, iron spikes, 2 dampers of iron, a door.  It is 54 years old, but timbered and repaired with a new roof and floor and 4 new rows and built of boards on 2 sides external and whole inside for 4 year afterwards and is in perfect condition.

· A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet}, 11 layers high, double board roof, and warmtak XE "warmtak" , floor built of planks.  A fireplace with boards of wood, iron spikes, 1 smaller window.  It has room enough for 5 cows and 20 sheep or goats.  It is 19 years old. 3 alnars {6 feet} wide a haystack against the feed shed.

· A barn 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  Double board roof, floor of miscellaneous wood, repaired 19 year later.

· A shelter 5 alnars {10 feet} square, built of planks, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, The roof is built of boards, a door with read, it is very old and damaged by rot.

· A shed, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide and 12 alnars {24 feet} high.  Simple wood roof of boards and a baking oven.  Floor built of planks, a door.  It is 6 years old and in perfect condition.

· A granary, 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 10 layers high.  Roof of board.

· Threshing barn in the center with a floor built of planks, other floors of miscellaneous materials.  It is 10 years old.

· One third of the ownership rights to a barn with Copper Mining Company Sheriff Eric Höglund, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide and 8 layers high.  roof and warm roof of board.  2 dry leaves and a baking oven.  It is about 12 years old and in usable condition.  

· A weekend cottage(?) with spikes on walls and the roof is built of new boards.  

· A hay barn which can hold 10 loads and is built of old wood

· Cropland, 2 ¾ malings of open land and 10 ¾ malings of new land

· Fence, 327 fathoms fenced pasture, and Mountains 20 loads of hay within homestead and 1 load from Rishagen.  

· This farm can feed 2 cows and 15 sheep or goats during the year with assistance from leaves and straw, and 1 horse.

· that the tenant lejer XE "lejer"  cottage and purchased hay to about 9 a 9 loads each year.  

· During the last 5 years of habitation about 6 malings of new land have been cultivated.  There is still a lot of land within the fence that can be cultivated.

Fröån

Photograph (167)

From Fröå, taken during the "American-Period" sometime between 1912 and 1918.  Furthest to the left at the top of vaskeriet XE "vaskeriet"  can be seen where finkrossen XE "finkrossen" 
 was placed.  Between the xxx XE "xxx"  and the attic house in the middle appears the hooded trail that goes to Grovkrossen.  The tall house is now a hotel.  Before that it was a cottage for Company Farm No. 158 "Nils Grels" or "Emil Ols".  Closer to the camera is the Copper Mining Company Sheriff house called the "Official Residence".  At the top is the great stall and storage building.  In the middle shown in the light also any of "åttkanten XE "åttkanten" 
" and an old depository.  One shown in the light there in roof of several family houses, which was torn down and became “Solbergs" in Björnänge.  The hotel became "Edsåsens house" in Undersåker and Official Residence.  Emil Tjärnström purchased it and built his farm in Järpen.  The transport of this wood took place in the wintertime straight east through the forest.

This photograph is in the Museum in Östersund JLM 85x61/5

Lisa Jonsdotter
Table 49 (168)

Lisa Jonsdotter4, Märeta Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C1
	Lisa Jonsdotter 
	B
	1794
	
	Lisa lived in 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Hårbörsta, Åre.

	
	
	M
	1815
	
	

	S
	Lars Abraham Noraeus 
	B
	July 29, 1790 
	
	Lars was an 

	
	
	D
	Apr 28, 1847 
	
	accountant in Fröän.

	D1
	Anna Märta Noraeus 
	B
	Mar 13, 1815 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 30, 1862
	
	

	D2
	Brita Lena Noraeus 
	B
	Dec 27, 1817 
	
	

	Table 146
	
	D
	Nov 17, 1891 
	
	


They lived on Company Farm No. 157.  L. A. Noraeus was also a Royal Government Official.  In 1826, he became the administrator of the Copper Mining Company’s poor fund.

Olsson-Karlsson of Såå has a silver spoon, which was given by Company patron Lorichs to Inspector Johan Israel Noraeus, grandfather of Brita Lena.  His initials are engraved on the spoon.

There is a picture of the spoon in the book called Huså Company History written by Gösta Ullberg.  The picture is on page 553.

In 1815, the Population Records in Undersåker, a Royal Government Official showed the following:  

Uses Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Årbörsta consisting of 2 acres.

The family consisted of:

· Wife Anna Olofsdotter 56 years old,  

· Son Lars Abraham, Lappmans Municipal Sergeant 24 years old

· Daughter Anna Helena

22
years old

· Daughter Brita Christina

19
years old 

· Farmhand Esten Andersson
21
years old 

· Maid Lisa Jonasdotter


20
years old 

· Maid Märet Persdotter

24 
years old

Make sure that the undersigned and which use silver from, a schnaps XE "schnaps"  pan of 14 can room, and a dog.  


Stamgärde on December 22, 1814



Johan Israel Noaus

The tenant farm in Åhrbörsta that Government Municipal Sergeant Johan Israel Noraeus inhabited up until now was taken over by his son (Lars Abraham Noraeus}, with the seller’s consent, for 10 years time.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, he holds fresh and completely grown miners by Bjelkes Mine for three quarters (3/4) of every year, 

for the emphasis, 

which second Company Workers have the benefit of.

However, they may not work their present jobs unless the country folk people are also employed.  

The tenant must also provide the following every year as payment of annual interest on this farm:

· Transport fifteen (15) barrels of ore at 8 Riksdaler per barrel from Bjelkes Mine to Husä

· Cultivate and improve the farm

· reply their building according to District Court and House examinations order

· Pay all special and ordinary taxes and burdens on the farm by whatever name they may be called.  

As long as the above conditions are faithfully observed, Lars Abraham Noreus shall have automatic tenancy rights in 10 years time on behalf of the Company.

We state that both parties are satisfied with the transaction in the preceding contract with our names and Sigills signed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

Certified in Arbörsta on February ??, 1818.  



(Witness Names?)

The tenant lease on one-half of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Hårbörsta in Åhre Parish consisting of 2 taxable acres is taken over by Mr. Lars Abraham Noreus (the younger) at the next Court Session in 1822.

This buyer agreed upon the following terms and conditions:

1. It is the responsibility of the current tenant to annually provide Reserved Rights to the widow of deceased County Sheriff Nord according to the legal agreement between them.

2. He is to be responsible for all of the taxes and burdens on the farm in accordance with the Royal Court Judgment, as well as which to Prester skapet XE "skapet"  with all secondary expenses and obligations, which are demanded by this farm.

3. For the usual military payment on the lease amount, transport ore from Grefve Bjelke Copper Mining Company to Huså Smelting-house at 8 Riksdaler per barrel.

4. It is the tenant’s obligations to keep a miner working for three-quarters (3/4) of each year in the Grefve Bjelkes Mine, from the time the farm buyer, for payment after earnings.

5. The tenant is accountable for farm cultivation, croplands, necessary buildings as well as to home in farm which in summer mountain cabin and requisite fence and that no crop and hay, straw or fertilizer may be transported from this farm, shall such be replaced damage and obligations after Common Laws.

6. The Copper Mining Company provide in the future as unite benefits by forest, and for their under Winds run
 and my secondary needs to prepare cottages, also and for their on the same Farm own placed Farm.

For the fulfillment of the above obligations, young Noreus with his wife will have automatic tenancy rights on this one-half (½) Farm in 2 years.

We affirm that both parties are satisfied with this transaction in the preceding contract and understand in Berg Parish Court one further established.


Husån on May 21, 1821


On behalf of the Company: 




0.  Lorichs


Buyer:
Lars Abraham Noreus

(170)
Witness:
L. E.  Sellin



Adj. Chr XE "Chr" . Aspgren Field Sergeant


Estate Inventory Report

Upon the request of Lars A. Noreus in Årbörsta, the undersigned inspector has made this report on the date shown below and 

staked out best living place choice site located on the south side of Fröän, south of Påhl Löding’s farm, leger XE "leger" 
 between 2 small Beckar according to the following designated property markers:  

· On the north side, the property line goes to the little stream which runs to Fröån

· From there to this Pitch runs in Fröån  

· The property line then goes southeast to the other stream, which is located on the south side of this cottages, with a mark in a spruce tree 

· in Fröån this markers staked out cottages west to a hay mal Rödning where a hay barn fines be built belonging to Lars Ltd: Norei home place.  

· The property line then goes suddenly over between these previously mentioned Beckar, and what cottages concern finer portion to be capable cropland, partly a still preserved forest and partly an old chopped down forest.  

Äfter the inspector appearance he orders that the cultivation cost must go up older to least 5 Riksdaler per maling on that tract 

is in  common with the portion remaining in the Parish, 

and consider do not nearest spruces to any acquire as wide portion fins 

just as good as the cottages on the other sites nearby 

– to hereby each by that for good found – 

Confirmed with our signatures in Årbörsta on October 11, 1828



Anders Sunding of Svedje



Parish Constable

(170)

Anders Larsson of Lund

Contract

Lars Abraham Noraeus, as the tenant on the Company Farm in the Village of Hårbörsta, by means of the rights in this contract is left 

to until further and in association with 

the contract that Noraus has pon XE "pon"  homestead use and may be used to cover, 

located on the Gustaf Copper Mining Company, for the Copper Mining Company to make reasonable annual interest consisting of twenty-five (25) barrels of ore transported from Bjelkes Mine to Huså smelting-house without additional compensation. 

It is the responsibility of Noraus here besides to always and settled hold as well as fence to hay barn and meadow fertile in that legal condition which is now found by this contracts uppgörande XE "uppgörande" .



Husån on July 28, 1830



Claes Lewenhaupt

This contract and agreement is acknowledged by the undersigned with all gratitude.



Huså on above date



Lars Abraham Noraus

(171)
Witness:  
V.  Hallongren 



Joh.  ? Rose
Crime mål XE "mål" 
The widow {Lisa Noreus of Hårbörsta} is hereby summoned and agreed in the Undersäker District Court änstundande XE "änstundande" 
 at the next Autumn Court Session that begins on Monday the 11th of December and is held at the Myckelgård Court Session Place, 

so that object the undersigned, 

on behalf of his duties demands that the defendant felling be made responsible for illegal boiling of schnapps on June 10th of last year.


Undersåker on November 30, 1854


 
V.  Forsbergsson

The above summons and demand for court appearance for this crime by Government Citizen Forsbergsson is acknowledged.  


Björnänge on December 9, 1854



Lisa Noreus of Hårbörsta

(171)
Witness: 
Petter Pehrsson and Jacob Pettersson of Björnänge

The widow {Lisa Noreus} had in the presence of witnesses acknowledged that she had burnt
 a small pan of schnapps on June 10 of ultimo year. 

The District Court diemde XE "diemde"  her a fine of 33 Riksdaler, or the same amount in the forfeiture of assets, and sentenced her to 21 days in jail.

Nils Nilsen
Table 50 (172)

Nils Nilsen4, Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	C2
	Nils Nilsen 
	B
	Mar 20, 1786
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1807
	
	

	S
	Ingeborg Larsdotter Roberg "Skrove" 
	B
	June 20, 1775 
	Undersäker
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 29, 1842
	
	

	D1
	Lars Nilsen 
	B
	Sep 24, 1807 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 20, 1831 
	Musem XE "Musem" 
	

	D2
	Anne Nilsdotter 
	B
	Nov 14, 1808 
	Eklovald
	

	Table 147
	
	D
	
	
	


Jacob Nilsen Grunden
Table 51 (172)

Jacob Nilsen Grunden4, Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C3
	Jacob Nilsen Grunden 
	B
	Mar 20, 1786
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1809
	
	

	S
	Ingeborg Olsdotter Grunnan 
	B
	1788
	
	Ingeborg was the daughter of Berit Amundsdotter and Ole Nilsson from England, Äre 

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D1
	Sigrid Jacobsdotter 
	B
	July 3, 1809 
	Mitt-Grunnan
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Nils Jacobsen 
	B
	Mar 11, 1812 
	
	Jacob was in the interim reserv
 XE "reserv" .  He was 65 inches tall, which corresponds 1.69 M (5'-6"), which was not tall enough.

	
	
	D
	Mar 28, 18?? 
	Mitt-Grunnan
	


Berit Nilsdotter
Table 52 (172)

Berit Nilsdotter4, Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C4
	Berit Nilsdotter
	B
	Dec 8, 1790
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S1
	Ole Eriksen Storvuku
	B
	1798
	
	

	
	
	D
	1871
	
	

	D1
	Agnes Olsdotter 
	B
	Aug 6, 1815
	Storvukuv
	

	Table 148


	
	D
	May 30, 1857
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S2
	Lars Pedersen Storvuku
	B
	1792
	Grundvald
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 15, 1882
	
	

	D2
	Ola Larsen
	B
	Mar 13, 1818
	Storvukuvald
	

	Table 149
	
	D
	Jan 9, 1909
	
	


Samuel Mikelsen
Table 53 (172)

Samuel Mikelsen4, Brita Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C2
	Samuel Mikelsen 
	B
	May 28, 1792
	
	Samuel lived in Sul, Vuku Parish.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1818
	
	

	S
	Ellen Jensdotter 
	B
	1796
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 17, 1868 
	Leinsvald
	

	D1
	Beret Samuelsdotter 
	B
	Feb 26, 1819 (21) 
	
	

	Table 150
	
	D
	Oct 19, 1876 
	Brenna
	


Hans Johansen Ridderberg
Table 54 (172)

Hans Johansen Ridderberg4, Johan Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C1
	Hans Johansen Ridderberg 
	B
	May 2, 1786
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1814
	
	

	S
	Berit Hansdotter 
	B
	
	Sulstuen
	I do not know if there 

	
	
	D
	
	
	were any children.


Berit Johansdotter Ridderberg
Table 55 (172)

Berit Johansdotter Ridderberg4, Johan Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C2
	Berit Johansdotter Ridderberg 
	B
	1788
	
	Berit lived in Lundsvald.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1817
	
	

	S
	Ole Eriksen Storvuku 
	B
	1798
	
	

	Table 152
	
	D
	1871
	
	

	D1
	Ellev Olsen 
	B
	Sep 11, 1817 
	Lundsvald
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 11, 1819
	
	


Martha Pedersdotter
Table 56 (173)

Martha Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C1
	Martha Pedersdotter 
	B
	July 31, 1793
	
	Martha lived in Musum XE "Musum"  Lille.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1818
	
	

	S
	Rasmus Tomassen 
	B
	Dec 17, 1783 
	Lyngåsen
 XE "Lyngåsen" 
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D1
	Tomas Rasmussen 
	B
	Sep 18, 1821
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Rasmus was a soldier in North Eklo Municipality, and registered on August 27, 1804.  His records show that he was in the military service for 3 years, unmarried, and had a black stallion that was 7 years old.

Beret Pedersdotter
Table 57 (173)

Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C2
	Beret Pedersdotter 
	B
	1802
	
	Beret lived in Holmlivald.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1830
	
	

	S1
	Amund Sivertsen Grunnan 
	B
	1799
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D1
	Ole Amundsen 
	B
	Feb 6, 1830 
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	I think he may have died young.

	S2
	Malene Olsdotter Bredingsvald 
	B
	July 13, 1808 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 27, 1891
	Fleskhusvald
	

	D2
	Anne Amundsdotter 
	B
	Mar 4, 1828 
	
	

	Table 151
	
	D
	Nov 16, 1877
	
	

	D3
	Peder Amundsen 
	B
	Oct 2, 1830 
	
	

	Table 152
	
	D
	Jan 16, 1917
	
	

	D4
	Sivert Amundsen 
	B
	Nov 19, 1833 
	
	

	Table 153
	
	D
	Apr 21, 1906
	Kulstadvald
	

	D5
	Jonetta Amundsdotter 
	B
	Sep 29, 1836 
	
	Jonetta was called Gulstad.

	Table 154
	
	D
	
	
	

	D6
	Johannes Amundsen 
	B
	Nov 20, 1840
	
	

	Table 155
	
	D
	
	
	

	D7
	Martha Amundsdotter 
	B
	Mar 21, 1845 
	
	

	Table 156
	
	D
	Dec 20, 1896
	
	

	D8
	Olaus Amundsen 
	B
	Dec 12, 1849 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 31, 1850
	
	


Beret S. Ridderberg
Table 58 (173)

Beret S.  Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C1
	Beret S.  Ridderberg 
	B
	1800
	
	Beret was baptized on December 7, 1800.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 27, 1835 
	
	

	S
	Ole Pedersen Öra/Bergsvald 
	B
	1801
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D1
	Karen Olsdotter 
	B
	July 3, 1836 
	Öra
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Petter Olsen
	B
	Oct 18, 1840 
	Öra
	To Trondenes 1878

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Randi S. Ridderberg
Table 59 (173)

Randi S. Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C3
	Randi S. Ridderberg 
	B
	Feb 14, 1808 
	
	Randi lived in Björkenvald and Kvelstadmelen.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 15, 1833 
	
	

	S
	Bardo Nilsen Björken 
	B
	Nov 7, 1806 
	Höilovald
	Bardo married her the year after he moved to Skogn.  In 1874 Bardo married Beret Jensdotter Bambergvald.  born in 1833.

	
	
	D
	1891
	Skogn
	

	D1
	Nikolai Bardosen 
	B
	Aug 13, 1835 
	
	Nikolai drowned in Verdalsälven {Verdal River}, Norway.  He had for a time been in Sweden.  He was unmarried.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Inger Maria Bardosdotter 
	B
	Dec 18, 1833 
	Lund
	

	
	
	D
	July 5, 1834
	
	

	D3
	Zephanias Bardosen 
	B
	June 9, 1839 
	
	

	Table 157
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1923
	
	

	D4
	Martinus Bardosen 
	B
	Mar 18, 1842 
	
	

	Table 158
	
	D
	
	
	

	D5
	Eliseus Bardosen 
	B
	Nov 13, 1845
	
	

	Table 159
	
	D
	
	
	

	D6
	Ragnhild Birgitta Bardosdotter
	B
	Sep 13, 1849
	
	Qvelstadv.

	Table 160
	
	
	
	
	


Ole Ridderberg
Table 60 (174)

Ole Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C4
	Ole Ridderberg 
	B
	1810
	Strandsittare
	Ole lived in Öra.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	May 14, 1841
	
	

	S
	Karen Olsdotter Ören 
	B
	1812
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 3, 1851
	
	

	D1
	Oluf Olsen 
	B
	Jan 6, 1841 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 27, 1841
	
	

	D2
	Julianna Maria Olsdotter 
	B
	Sep 13, 1842 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 1, 1844
	
	

	D3
	Julianna Maria Olsdotter 
	B
	Dec 27, 1844
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Nils Olsen
Table 61 (174)

Nils Olsen4, Kerstin Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	C1
	Nils Olsen 
	B
	1795
	
	Nils lived in Indalsvald.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1820
	
	

	S1
	Ingeborg Ingebrigtsdotter 
	B
	
	Indal
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D1
	Beret Maria Nilsdotter 
	B
	Sep 30, 1821 
	Indalsvald
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	D2
	Kjerstin Nilsdotter
	B
	Aug 20, 1825 
	Indalsvald
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1842
	
	

	S2
	Anne Larsdotter Salbergvald/Nordbergvald
	B
	Aug 19, 1805
	
	There were no children in this marriage.

	
	
	
	
	
	


The 2nd Great Grandchildren

Catharina Hindriksdotter
Table 62 (174)

Catharina Hindriksdotter5, Kerstin Persdotter4, Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Catharina Hindriksdotter 
	B
	Jan 30, 1809 
	
	Catharina lived in Öjarn, Ström.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 3, 1839 
	
	

	S1
	Erik Nilsson 
	B
	Oct 27, 1804 
	
	There were no children in this marriage.

	
	
	D
	Dec 5, 1839 
	Nerve disease
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 21, 1843 
	
	

	S2
	Olof Kjällander 
	B
	Dec 11, 1812 
	
	Olof was a foster child from 

	
	
	D
	Mar 26, 1876 
	Field soldier
	Stockholm.

	E1
	Kerstin Olofsdotter 
	B
	Sep 27, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 16, 1845
	
	

	E2
	Henrik Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Jan 26, 1845 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 24, 1930 
	Frösö infirmary
	

	E3
	Anna Christina Olofsdotter 
	B
	Mar 29, 1847 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 10, 1924
	Hammerdal
	

	E4
	Catharina Olofsdotter 
	B
	Jan 21, 1852 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 22, 1873
	
	


Catharina worked as a maid in Föllinge, and during that time became pregnant with the son of the master of the house.  Catharina and the son wanted to terminate this pregnancy, and acted once his parents were not at home.  

The son sprinkled arsenic on a sandwich that she ate, which was not healthy
.  It is said that Catharina would have been very beautiful
.

Mildrid Engenström’s mother Gunilla Henriksdotter told this story about Mildrid.  Gunilla was a niece of Catharina.

Olof Källander was a foster child from Stockholm, and in 1820 he came as a foster child to Jöns Larsson and his wife Anna Jonsdotter Holmen 26 in Alanäs.  

In the Statement Book for Alanäs Parish Chapel he is listed for the years 1809 to 1829.  He moved in 1820, and is listed as being literate in 1822 (N. Statement).  Holy Communion daily times for June 6, 1825 – October 22, adm XE "adm" .
 1826.

Olof then moved from his foster parents when he was 14 years old to Ström where he likely got work as a farm hand on some small farm in the region.  Afterwards I know nothing of him until he marries Catarina Henriksdotter from Skalfjället on March 21, 1843.  The sponsor of the bride was the bride's father, Henrik Jonsson Södergren from Öjarn.

The first few years they lived with Catarina’s parents in Lilll-Fulvern.  Their daughter Kerstin was born on September 27, 1843 and their son Henrik (my maternal grandfather) was born in 1845.  They were both born in Fulvern, but daughter Anna Christina might have been born in Öjarn because the family was forced to move there to keep from starving to death.  This occurred in 1847.  Anna Christina was born that same year on March 21st.

According to an article in Jämten in 1954, of uninhabited bölen XE "bölen" 
 in Ström, Catarina and Olof Källander in 1850, should have started a place that was called Storsve by the western shore of Öhnsjöns with for Öhns Village infields.

The current owner (Karin Rosenberg} has her summer mountain pasture and cabin there.  Their youngest daughter Catarina was born there on January 21, 1852 and the Källander family lived on this place for 18 years.  In about 1868 moved they to Öjarn, where Henrik Jonsson had already moved in 1847.

Photograph (175)

Henrik Olsson was born on January 26, 1845 and his wife Cajsa Greta Andersdotter Wall was born on August 31, 1844 and their daughter Emma born on May 7, 1880

Mildrid Engenström of Strömsund has contributed this photograph.  

I cannot tell this story without sharing a few of my questions about (my maternal grandfather) Henrik’s birth and baptism.  He was born during the bitterly cold winter on January 26, 1845 in väglöst XE "väglöst" 
 land gone by Skalfjället, many miles from Strömsund.  However, on February 23rd of the same year he had already been baptized in Ström when he was only 1 month old.  How could a little child survive such a trip?  He was a strong little fellow, since he did survive.  

His mother, Catarina Henriksdotter, was very "unchaste" and should be "church-tas XE "tas" 
" after having conceived her child.  It is only the Church and Parson that know how to make her chaste again, and this predicament should be remedied as quickly as possible.  Perhaps that was why she was in such a hurry to make the trip to Ström.  The following persons were baptismal witnesses when Henrik Olsson was baptized:

· Juror Anders Jönsson of Öhn

· Farmer Päl Jonsson of Öjarn 

· Sven Jönsson of Kärrnäset

· Parish Clerk M. Nilsson

· Farmhand (farmer’s son
) Jöns Jonsson

· Holmen Alanäs Söderlund of Öhn

· Britta Persdotter of Jonsgård

· Gölin Olsdotter of Renålandet

· Brita Jönsdotter of Kärrnäset

· Maid Agnes Pålsdotter of Öjarn 

· Kerstin Andersdotter of Öhn

That caused satisfaction for which all had received rights to
, and afterwards only the long trip back home again to Fulvern remains.  Later, on June 15th of the same year, their first-born Kerstin died.  She was barely 2 years old.

Mildrid Engenström of Strömsund told me this story.

Olof Källander was accepted as No. 92 Hallen in Jämtland Field Soldier Regiment on April 15, 1834.  This position had become vacant on December 31, 1833.  The person that was in this position
 had gone to Regiment Musician
.

Olof was then 24 years old had been in the military service for 1 year and 3 months.  He was 5 foot 7 inches tall.  

Per Söder

Table 63 (177)

Per Söder5, Kerstin Persdotter4, Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Per Söder 
	B
	Mar 7, 1813
	
	Per lived in Öjaren, 

	
	
	D
	
	
	Ström.

	
	
	M
	1846
	
	

	S1
	Sigrid Nilsdotter 
	B
	Apr 18, 1811 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 3, 1898
	
	

	E1
	Henrik Söder 
	B
	Apr 5, 1847 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 25, 1935
	
	

	E2
	Kerstin Persdotter 
	B
	June 17, 1851 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 21, 1939
	
	

	S2
	Sven Jönsson Södergren
	M
	
	
	

	
	
	B
	June 2, 1801
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 16, 1875
	
	

	E3
	Nils Svensson Flyckt 
	B
	Dec 31, 1835 
	Skräddare
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 26, 1907 
	
	

	S3
	Lösdrivaren Erik
	M
	
	
	

	
	
	B
	
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Hans Ersson Strömstedt 
	B
	May 9, 1844 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 12, 1931
	
	


Per Söder went into the military on March 15, 1834 as Number 91 Hall.  This position had been vacant before that, because the person formerly in this position had gone on to become a Regiment Musician on December 31, 1833.  Per was then 22 years and 4 months old, had been in the military service for 1 year and 3 months, and he was 5 foot 7¾ inches tall.  In 1845 Per Söder requested his discharge because he had injured his foot.  He then received an excellent pension
.

From General Muster Rolls G1 cb.  Field soldier 

While he was in the military, he was unmarried.  He never owned a farm or land, and did not lease any either.  Without his own house, he lived mostly as a dependant with his wife’s relatives.  He was poor and in bad health.  

His wife {Sigrid} had her own "kauklåt", which Louise Kritchewsky has written down after Karin Strömstedt of Öjarn-Renån hummed it from memory.  After that, Margit Lundqvist of Kärrnäset told me about this "Kauklåt".  I contacted Louise and she sent me the musical notes so that I could put them in this book.

Photograph (177)

Sigrid Nilsdotter was born on April 18, 1811 and died on July 3, 1939

Margit Lundqvist of Strömsund loaned me this photograph.

Photograph (178)

Their son Henrik Söder was a bachelor, and there are many stories about him that I have taken from the Ström local historical newspaper called Heimlauta that I will now tell.  

From the Heimlauta Newspaper in 1988, it said that Henrik of Fulverbygget used to live in a summer mountain cabin that was located on the other side of the sundet
 in Näsbuan, there he had hay land, barns and summer pastures, and he had his snare route nearby.  

Once he happened to snare a rabbit while he lived there.  He had gotten a large "harafrees XE "harafrees" " in his snare.  The rabbit still intended to live before it could be shot, then bare that him not better, than that he care of snartråden XE "snartråden" 
, have a clean jump, delighted for his freedom.  Söder had then gone to Jonas and Juliana and said "nö XE "nö"  fär je XE "je"  heim XE "heim" , de va XE "va"  klein XE "klein"  e' jaktlöck XE "jaktlöck"  danen XE "danen" , kunn XE "kunn"  ju XE "ju"  int XE "int"  ta XE "ta"  haran XE "haran"  u snöre då han va lavanes XE "lavanes" , åsse XE "åsse"  bare sa int bätter XE "bätter"  an je sköut XE "sköut"  a snöretrån XE "snöretrån" ".

He also used to go out and hunt in the forests, often alone.  One day when he was out on his usual elk hunt, he came upon a sleeping elk.  Söder got ready to shoot, but then he began to wonder if he had the right to shoot while the elk was sleeping.  The weather was beautiful, and he laid down to sleep a bit until the elk awakened.  Söder fell asleep and when he awakened the elk was gone.

Henrik Söder was no danger for the elk because he started shaking violently whenever he saw an elk.  When he started to aim, his rifle began to make a circular movement that was a large pass around all the elk that came within this circle, with the result that the bullet went out into the distance and all the elk completely escaped him.

Once he was out on a trip to his childhood Lake Fulvern to go fishing.  In packing, he took his obligatory elk rifle with him.  When they got to Fulvern one year, they suddenly came across a herd of elk.  Now the elk came frolicking by them again. Söder tears open his pack and pulls out his rifle, but where are his bullets?  Oh yes, they are well packed away in his backpack.  There he finally found enough ammunition for many elk.  Now his nerves were at the breaking point.  After many frustrating difficulties he finally took the bullet and got it into his rifle.  But now where are the elk?  By then they had moved.  

His fishing companions had difficulty in keeping from laughing, but they felt it was wise to hold their laughter back, since the old man was now green with anger.

Once in his long hunting life, he had the luck to shoot an elk.  It was during the haymaking season.  He occasionally helped with the haying in Vällen in the summer mountain pastures.  Söder’s neighbor wanted to have his hay piled on the hay-drying fence as soon as possible, but Söder had now gotten it in his head that he should go and hunt elk, and there was nothing that could change his mind.  His rifle and dog were his constant companions, and they were with him now.  

He was near the back country now and he goes about aimlessly without any particular destination in mind for his hike.  The summer heat is intensive and the dog has no sense of urgency.  But near Storstenstjärn the dog begins to move up to take up the lead but weak
, the dog goes uphill to the holmen XE "holmen" 
.

The top part of holmen XE "holmen"  has the shape of a pot, and just inside the pot the elk had taken his mid-day siesta.  The strong heat had also made the elk drowsy, because he was a little too late to escape.

It was said that the dog was smarter than his master at the time.  He stood very quietly until his master raised his rifle and shot.  Then an amazing thing happened, and the elk fell down stone dead.

Now the speed of both hunter and dog came into play.  The hot summer heat requires a hasty trip home with the meat. He comes running down from the summer mountain pasture.  What’s going on now that he’s in such a hurry, wonders the neighbor.

Photograph (180)

Henrik Söder was born April 5, 1847 and was from Fulvern.  

The photographer is Erik Strömberg of Renån.

Photograph (180)

Oh yes, now we must hurry, for now we shall have food, and good food.  “What good have you done then?” asked the neighbor and received no answer.  “Now you are in danger at home and see to it that you have strong straps in your bärmes XE "bärmes" , for now it shall be used to carry elk meat.  Do you understand?”
Now his neighbor begins to understand his earnestness.  Making hay was nothing to think about now.  These time manner to take be on queuett XE "queuett" 
 know happen in a manner that quickly possible receive that in salt lake.  Now got hay the people’s hurry with the cutting-up and dressing of the elk and with the transportation of the meat.  They made use of the light during the long summer evening to carry it home.  Night was well with thought on that then know one avoid unnecessary observation from undue also.

Söder had a half-brother by the name of Hans Ersa.  They were completely different, even though they were brothers.  Söder was a hunter, fisherman and nature man.  He was by his very nature a geologist and natural world researcher.  He was particularly interested in the study of inland ice rampaging in marker.  There it scrubbed
 him ahead above the highest peaks and made its marks on the ground.  The deepest märkena XE "märkena" 
 in markerna XE "markerna"  had caused when the ice lied loose but packed of hurricanes or hard storm.  It had then taken all the stones and topsoil with it.  What was left was solid coat mountains.  He continues to say that these barren mountain may have had a tropical vegetation at one time.  He was that kind of guy.  

The last time they visited their dear fishing lake, they were old.  They used to get there in one day before, but now it took them two days to make the trip.  It was the same when they came back down.  Through his many fishing experiences Söder had ascertained his home there.  He got a ståndkrok XE "ståndkrok" 
 an 8 to 10 kilo salmon.  It was a real experience for him.  Now he got it in his head, that they should start to build a new cabin.  The prompt response was that they should start the trip back home at once.  They did not get any more fish.  But Söder carried the large salmon unwrapped in a strap on his back.  They wanted to have a party with salmon when they get home.  They had likely forgotten that it took them two days to get home, so when they finally got back, the salmon had spoiled a lot and was not edible, which some öring XE "öring"  party it did not become.

We have mentioned before that the brothers had used two days to get up there, and the trip home and must lie above on the way.  It was difficult to stay clear of the mosquitoes.  Now they thought about how to protect themselves as much as possible during their sleep.  In the måttan XE "måttan" 
 they had planned to spend the night on a mire by the ground-water.  That mire was wet, they says to themselves, but as a cure for this, they strip a large amount of fir free twigs to make it as dry as possible under their backs.

Now they slept a tired dream-free sleep.  On the question of how it was that evening on the mire, came Söders short cutting answer was that “whether I have been on firm land or mire, the mosquitoes have always been just as troublesome”.  He thereby admitted that the mosquitoes that night had still been huggfrisk XE "huggfrisk" 
.

Söder was very multi-talented, as told in the following story.  A fishing shack was built on Stor-Fulvern’s western shore.  Söder was involved with it from the first moment.  He didn’t do too much work, but he had the characteristic of liking to give orders to everyone he was with.  

It was Saturday evening and the fishing shack is finished.  With their bunks built, they prepare to lay their nets.  But now Söder becomes alive with fire and flame and he says “no net shall be placed on this night”.  It is Sunday morning.  We will not desecrate our Day of Rest.  He said this deeply and seriously.  His fishing companions had total respect for his beliefs.  He got his wish.  No net was put on the lake that night.  

When Sunday morning came, his fishing companions were awakened with Söder singing "Morning between clear mountain brook and rivers, murmuring from the rocks, sings God is good, God is good”.  But they are to receive more.  When it gets to be 11 o’clock, Söder is silent.  He ta XE "ta" kes his collection of sermons and his Psalm Book from his pack. Soon the sounds of Psalms being sung above Fulvern, dense sequel by a recited above today’s High Mass text from the collection of sermons that he had with him.  After 6 o’clock on Sunday night they set the nets, for now it is a weekday again.

The Fulvern buildings were added in about 1820.  This time is calculated by the structural design of the cottage, barn, cellar, mill and the potato fields.  The mill building was an unnecessary building when you realize that the grain cannot grow to maturity up there before the frost comes at night and destroys it.  They carried the grain on their backs up to the mill to grind it, which was also rather unnecessary since it was much more sensible to carry flour up there instead of grain from the Village of Öjarens.  After avflyttningenk XE "avflyttningenk" 
 relocated the cottage was moved to the upper end of the lake under The Lapplanders supervision.  A Lappland style shelter was also built about 75 meters
 from the cottage.  It was built in the usual Lappland manner, on logs about 1 meter above the ground.  The cottage was burned down for firewood.  Pieces of the mill were found far into the 1900's.

Hereby finishes the new homestead buildings from the mountain world of northern Jämtland.  If one goes to the beautiful Fulvern beaches and listen to waves splashing against the stones, or you lift your ears to the whisperings from the mountain granens XE "granens" 
 top, or direct your look up against the high mountain tops when heavy storms rage above this expanse, listen precisely, and you shall be aware of the undertone of lament which came over them and misfired.

I have tried to recall from old memories the history as it occurred on these new homestead buildings during the settler’s time, and to tell it honestly and truthfully.  What Henrik Söder and Hans Erss have said, I regard as completely truthful.

Öjarn on October 9, 1974 

Gerhard Hansson 

This was taken from the Heimlauta Annual Chronicle for 1985.

Ingeborg Henriksdotter
Table 64 (183)

Ingeborg Henriksdotter5, Kerstin Persdotter4, Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Ingeborg Henriksdotter 
	B
	Apr 30, 1816 
	
	Ingeborg lived in Öjarn, Ström.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 12, 1840 
	
	

	S
	Sven Jönsson Södergren 
	B
	June 2, 1801 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 16, 1875
	
	

	E1
	Erik Svensson 
	B
	Nov 20, 1840 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 29, 1866
	
	

	E2
	Henrik Svensson 
	B
	June 17, 1843
	
	Henrik emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Christina Svensdotter 
	B
	Sep 4, 1845
	
	Christina emigrated to America on May 23, 1893.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Jöns Svensson 
	B
	Aug 6, 1848 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 28, 1911 
	Hammerdal
	

	E5
	Ingeborg Svensdotter 
	B
	Jan 17, 1854
	
	Ingeborg emigrated to America on May 15, 1906

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Brita Catarina Svensdotter 
	B
	July 23, 1859 
	
	Brita emigrated to America in 1886

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Sven Jönsson Södergren and his family lived in Getingrisholmen, which used to belong to the Village of Öjarens, but now it is in the Kärrnäsets Municipality.  He lived there his entire life.  In his old age, Sven lived with his son Henrik.

Sven was born in Östgården, Kärrnäset.  Verbal stories state that Getingrisholmen was Östgården, Kärrnäsets summer mountain cabin.

To additionally prove their legal ownership rights, one of his sons moved from Östgården to Getingrisholmen and settled there with his family.

Photograph (183)

Henrik Svensson and his wife {Gunilla Danielsdotter} is in the picture on the left and Henrik with his other wife when he lived in America.  Written on the back of the photograph is “In memory of Marta from Papa on his 70th birthday in June of 1913”.

Märta Åkerström of Strömsund loaned me this photograph.

Jonas Henriksson
Table 65 (184)

Jonas Henriksson5, Kerstin Persdotter4, Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Jonas Henriksson
	B
	Dec 16, 1819
	
	Jonas lived in Öhn, Ström

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1861
	
	There were no children in 

	S1
	Sara Eriksdotter 
	B
	1810
	
	this marriage.

	
	
	D
	July 21, 1872 
	 
	Sara was from Alanäs.

	
	
	M
	Apr 13, 1878 
	
	

	S1
	Christina Jonsdotter 
	B
	July 8, 1838 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 19, 1915
	
	


Jonas Henriksson purchased a farm in the following agreement:

Purchase Agreement

I {Jöns Ersson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to one-half (7/32 of an acre) of Company Farm No. 1 consisting of 7/16 of an acre to Jonas Henriksson. 

This i XE "i" ncludes all that belongs to this homestead including all of the buildings, land and cottages by whatever name they may be called, and all the property that may be built on it in the future, with genuine deed of October 1, 1851, 

The agreed upon purchase amount is one thousand six hundred (1,600) Riksdaler and 100 Riksdaler is hereby paid to eliminate that portion of the debt.  

A payment of seven hundred fifty (750) Riksdaler shall be made on the 1st of next October and the remaining seven hundred fifty (750) Riksdaler is to be paid at the end of June in the year 1858.

The buyer shall pay 4½ percent annual interest on the unpaid purchase amount from this date.  

The buyer shall then have the rights to that portion of the farm to cultivate from this date forward 

and may be used on his share by me did appoint that. 

The buyer shall also be responsible for all of the farm taxes and burdens after this date.

after his calculated share by had property that preferably and responsibility for Reserved Rights to my parents after a conducted to establish contract.

The cultivation payment that through just
 now completed to allow this sale and release, shall be equally divided between by us in expenses as well as revenues.  

Then the buyer owns the property to Mårten Olof’s fence and there he cultivated his croplands.

It is hereby agreed and confirmed with our names and our own handwritten  (Signature Mark) signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Ström and Öhn on June 25, 1857


Seller: 
Jöns  (Signature Mark) Ersson of Öhn


Buyer: 
Jonas Henriksson

(184)
Witness: 
A.  Rosenberg of Öhn




Ingeborg  (Signature Mark) Jonsdotter

Estate Assessment

On August 25, 1902, an Estate Assessment was conducted after the death of farmer Jonas Hindriksson on June 25th of this year in Öhn.  

also such as the executor of the estate left to widow Kristina Jönsdotter.

The property is declared under sworn obligation by widow and the evaluated items are noted in the following order:


Assets


1 

coat 5 Riksdaler and 50 Species
5.50


1 pr leggings for 50 Species, 1 pair for 1.50
2.00


1 

hat for 50 Species, 1 scarf for 50 Species
1.00


3 pr gloves for 1.50, 1 linen cloth for 50 Species
2.00


1 

sheepskin fell

2.00


4 ea  towels
1.00


2 ea  pots 2.50, 1 copper kettle 1 Riksdaler
3.50


2 ea
frying pans
 .50


2 ea tables for 3 Riksdaler, 1 bed for 2 Riksdaler
5.00


6 ea milk trays for 1.50, 1 sieve
 for 50 Species
2.00


1 

kläka XE "kläka" 
 for 1 Riksdaler, 1 ladle for 1 Riksdaler
2.00


3 ea  chairs for 2.50, 5 buckets for 1.25
3.75


3 ea  pails for 75 Species, 4 bowls for 1 Riksdaler
1.75


6 ea  plates for 60 Species, 1 saw for 75 Species
1.35


1 

hatchet for 50 Species, Böker
 valued




 at 1 Riksdaler
1.50


1 

Cottage appraised at
60.00




Total Riksdaler
94.85

It has been hereby completed in accordance with this statement and it is notified and evaluated as certified above.



M: Sjöberg Kärrnäset 



Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Öhn

That all become rights declared and nothing with wit and want become hidden all left in certified under sworn obligation son above.  



Kristina Jönsdotter of Öhn in Ström


Present at the Estate Assessment:



M.  Karlsson



P.  Pälsson Kärrnäset  (185)

Jöns Henriksson
Table 66 (186)

Jöns Henriksson5, Kerstin Persdotter4, Petrus "Per" Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Jöns Henriksson 
	B
	Dec 22, 1829 
	
	Jöns lived mostly in Laxviken, except for a few years in Ström.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 11, 1855 
	
	

	S
	Brita Persdotter 
	B
	May 6, 1820 
	Föllinge
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 9, 1901
	
	

	E1
	Pehr Jönsson 
	B
	Mar 31, 1856
	
	I have found no information on Pehr.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Christina Jönsdotter 
	B
	Aug 3, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1858
	
	

	E3
	Christina Jönsdotter 
	B
	Sep 3, 1859 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 29, 1919
	
	

	E4
	Jonas Petrus Jönsson 
	B
	Mar 30, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 13, 1921
	
	

	E5
	Brita Jönsdotter 
	B
	June 15, 1865
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (186)

Brita Jönsdotter, born on June 15, 1865, with her children.  On the left is Anna Kristina born in 1885 and on the right is Brita Amalia born in 1888.  On her lap is Klara Nikolina born in 1898 and sitting on the stool on the right is Axis Leander born in 1893.  

The owner of this photograph is Anna Edith Selin in Ånge.

Photograph (187)

Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson was born on August 15, 1853, his wife Christina Jönsdotter was born on October 3, 1859 and their son Martin was born on July 13, 1901.

The owner of photograph is Anna Edith Selin from Ånge.

Jöns Henricsson purchased the following farm in 1859:   

I {Paul Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Laxviken} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to the tenant living on this place (Jöns Henricsson of Ström, Öjaren}.

This farm consists of (50) fifty square refvars
 width of Company Farm No. 3 consisting of seventeen five‑hundred seventy-sixth (17/576th) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land, 

It i XE "i" ncludes the buildings located southeast of the farm by a single actual calculation in forest land.

The purchase amount is one hundred fifty (150) Riksdaler and the annual property payment is twenty-five (25) Species.  

The buyer shall also take possession of this farm to cultivate on the 1st of next May of this year of 1859, after the purchase amount is paid.

The buyer shall take possession on the now alleged conditions in the neighborhood which properly ask to acknowledge

to this homestead and have eternal ownership rights to this property and area to the extent after one.

It is hereby agreed and confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

Fölinge and Laxviken on May 1, 1859


Seller:
Pål Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 


Buyer:
Jöns Henriksson

(188)
Witness: 
J.P.  Lindhjelm 



Miss.  Catubit 



Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson both of Laxsjön

Jöns Henriksson sold the farm in 1875:

I {Jöns Henriksson of Laxviken} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Persdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our ownership rights to farmer (Eric Jönsson of Storbränna} and his wife {Anna Mårtensdotter}.

These ownership rights are for the homestead in the Village of Laxvikens in Föllinge Parish consisting of fifty (50} revar of land, all of the buildings, 3 cows and 17/576th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.

The agreed upon purchase amount of seven hundred (700) Riksdaler is hereby paid in cash to eliminate the debt.  

The annual property payment for this farm is 25 Species.

Therefore, I surrender my homestead as it is fenced and located on the other side of the Per Persson farm, north of Laxsjön, and I deliver the deed to Erik Jönsson and his wife and heirs, who may take possession on May 1, 1875.  

The buyer shall have eternal ownership rights to this homestead, including the buildings and property such as that now is him that in sequel by this contract on neighborhood as proper, request of this acknowledge.

We have arrived at agreement and this sale is hereby confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Föllinge and Storåbränna on February 8, 1875


Seller:
Jöns Henriksson 



Brita Persdotter


Buyer:
Eric Jönsson 



Anna Mårtensdotter of Storåbränna


(188)
Witness:  
Erik Jonsson and L. Hallqvist, both of Storåbränna

On May 28, 1878, Jöns moved with his family to Kärrnäset in Ström.  They lived there as dependants of Olof Larsson.  

They moved to Bredkälen a few years later and lived there as dependants until October 2, 1887, when they moved to Laxviken.

Jöns never owned any land or farm.  He never even owned his own cottage.

He lived as a dependant on many farms in Laxsjö Parish.  

Annika Mårtensdotter
Table 67 (189)

Annika Mårtensdotter5, Mårten Andersson4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Annika Mårtensdotter 
	B
	Sep 10, 1805
	
	Annika lived in Djupsjön.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 12, 1825
	
	

	S
	Jöns Svensson 
	B
	Aug 25, 1798 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 30, 1869
	
	

	E1
	Sven Jönsson 
	B
	July 7, 1826 
	
	Sven died of whooping-cough.

	
	
	D
	Mar 21, 1827 
	
	

	E2
	Mårten Jönsson 
	B
	Dec 23, 1827 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 11, 1897 
	Alsen
	

	E3
	Ursilla Jönsdotter 
	B
	Jan 16, 1833 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 25, 1869
	
	

	E4
	Kerstin Jönsdotter 
	B
	Apr 13, 1835 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 9, 1892
	
	

	E5
	Märta Jönsdotter 
	B
	July 17, 1837 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 15, 1898
	
	

	E6
	Sven Jönsson 
	B
	Mar 19, 1839 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 22, 1917
	
	

	E7
	Agnis Jönsdotter 
	B
	July 20, 1841 
	
	Agnis was in very poor health.

	
	
	D
	1863
	
	


Jöns Svensson purchased a farm in 1851:
Farm Contract

We (Anders Mårtensson and Jonas Mårtensson} hereby knowingly release and sell our ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 here in the Village of Kall and Djupsjön  consisting of 1 ¾  taxable acres to our brother-in-law (Jöns Svensson} and his wife and our sister (Anika Mårtensdotter}

a homestead payment for, from wårt XE "wårt" 

with the following legal description:

The farm is located north of our farm within the following boundaries and it is called “Högen”.

Starting in the southwest at a fixed stone, then east 233-¾ alnars {467½ feet} to another stone, from there 209½ alnars {419 feet} to another stone, then north 156 alnars {312 feet}, then southwest 174 alnars {348 feet}, then south 175 alnars {350 feet} where it meets the starting point stone.  - This enclosure contains bärgig XE "bärgig" 
 soil.  – 

The cottage on the farm that is found west of Djupsjön, sedge, on swampland with drolet XE "drolet" 
 there upon, north of the farm.

The cottage that is found southwest of Aborrtjern.  A piece Cleared fields west without for slope, summer mountain pasture, summer mountain cabin, hay drolet XE "drolet" , Djuphögdrolerna, Swartvikdrolet and Björnmyran {Björn Swamp}.  Cultivated land is also left to the farmer on the north side of the property within the following points: 

Starting in the southwest where a stone is set and from there east 327 alnars {654 feet} to a stone, from there north 168 alnars {336 feet}, from there west 212 alnars {424 feet}, from there south 188 alnars {376 feet} to the first  stone.

The farmer is also given:

· One-half (½) ownership interest in the saw and 1/3 ownership interest in the mill, which all by him trembled is landside.  

· Enjoyment of forest timber, heating and firewood, which engaged in sawing logs, however he does not have the right to sell it.  

· The right to the pasture with the farm owner

For being given these rights to this farm, provide the following days of work at the farm owner’s expense annually:  

· 2 days in May

· 4 days at haying time in the beginning of August

· 4 days at malings harvest

· 4 days in November

· 4 days in February

· 4 days in April 

which altogether is twenty two days of work.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, we give up this farm with their property and cottages to the mentioned our brother-in-law (Jöns Svensson} and his wife and our sister (Anika Märtensdotter} 

and for their children and heirs for their eternal ownership and cultivation rights without some kind of change in future times by whatever name they may be.

This farm is occupied by Jöns Svensson for 19 years afterwards the buyer and had which can now be found in house and croplands is conducted by him at his expense.  

It is certified to have been accurately prepared and completed in Djupsjön on October 27, 1851.




Anders Mårtensson (1808-1887)


Farm Owner:

Jonas Mårtensson of Djupsjön 


The same Farmer:
Jöns Svensson


(190)
Witness: 

A.  Hållström





Gunnar Jönsson of Krok 




Nils Larsson of Back

The undersigned Government Municipal Sergeant then I helped by Juror Gunnar Jönsson of Hook and Nils Larsson of Back, an assessment was conducted on the Högen farm located or hearings under farm Djupsjön in Kall Parish No. 1 consisting of 1¾ taxable acre.  The assessment was carefully made in the presence of the plaintiff farmer Jöns Svensson and farm owner Anders and Jonas Mårten’s sons, afterward the assessment was conducted and aflopp XE "aflopp" 
 as follows:

· Farm infields consisting of difficult and stone fenced land which was taken up of branches and roots by the current farmer and which at present can annually utfås XE "utfås" 
 in 1 barrel of grain

· nearby one-half fallow field.  

· open land of 11 malings of which the fenced area contains 6 productive acres of good land where no Odahl land or Eng are to be found

· Here winter is born, under farm belonging manor house that annually were gathered hay, sedge and drol XE "drol" 
 fodder 25 loads of 25 lisspunds {500 pounds} in each load, 

· straw feed and some hay lejes XE "lejes" 
 

· 3 cows and 12 sheep or goats and 1 horse sometimes during the year.

Then the inspector that year determined that 3 able-bodied persons have his complete utilization and the Landowner Class is also convinced that this set aside land does not exceed a tenth of the entire family lineage homestead.

The annual afhälden XE "afhälden" 
 for this farm is final and approved by the farm owner.  

The farmer is to pay 5 Riksdaler 10 Species, which consists of days of work, after they approve the price, which is hereby paid and accepted and commences from this date.

It is certified that it is precisely examined.  


 Kall and Djupsjön on September 10 1852



A.  Hållström



Gunnar Jönsson of Hook  



Nils Nilsson of Back

Contract

I {Jöns Svensson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Annika Mårtensdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our ownership rights to this undivided Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Djupsjön, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtland Southern Judicial District to my son (Mårten Jönsson}. 

The buyer shall pay the specified purchase amount for this farm and pay annual interest from this transaction date to the 1st of next May lidne XE "lidne" 
 

The buyer shall also provide the following annual Reserved Rights for my wife {Annica Mårtensdotter} and I for both of our remaining lifetimes:

· Two (2) malings of seeded and well cultivated land, one in fallow field and the other in straw

· One (1) barrel of seed potatoes

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow and 6 sheep or goats and their offspring

For my own use, I reserve:

· 1 maling in what is called the Flat Field 

· A piece of new land outside of Lillhögen for forest haymaking in what is called Djupdalsmyran {Djupdals Swamp} of 1½ loads eng
 with about the same existing cleared fields.  

· One and one-half (l½) loads of hay from the meadow outside of Djurhögdrolen.  

· A piece of cultivated land of 3 malings northeast of the fence up towards the mountains, and which firm farmer thereof broken up and in såningsbart XE "såningsbart" 
 condition, releases 1 maling thereof, the maling disappears that I reserved in the Flat field.

· The entrance hall and small attic above for lodging, or in his place complete in which good lodging

· Access and usage of the granary, should, barn, and all storehouses as necessary 

· A home on farm and in summer mountain cabin for our cattle and other effects

· Firewood and heat

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands 

· Necessary household needs driving and klöfning XE "klöfning" 
 during all seasons.  

· Then I on the other hand with the approval of the buyer leave a capable red mare, and a work harness, a rock sled with sled pull, plow and plow shafts without receiving other payment than from this driving.  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced to/by: 

· 1 maling cropland for 3 sheep or goats with their offspring

· The other conditions are retained by the surviving spouse without revision

For the fulfillment of these conditions, and in regard to my age of nearly 60 years and both my wife and my crescent
 frail health that we are faced with and with the difficult debt predicament that I am now in which should already require taking over my assets; my wife and I and other children surrender our ownership rights to this undivided farm that we purchased according to the contract of October 27, 1851 and the Court Title Deed there of November 15, 1853 to our son Mårten Jönsson, his future wife, children and heirs.

This sale i XE "i" ncludes all the obligation and rights to the house, land, our share of the ownership rights to a saw and mill as a built in iron pot in the barn and cottages and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

This transaction is an amiable agreement as certified with our signatures and Signature Marks in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Kall and Sellsved on June 25, 1855


Seller and Reserved 



Rights recipient:
Jöns Svensson 



Annika Mårtensdotter of Djupsjön


Buyer and Reserved 


Rights provider:
Mårten Jönsson of Djupsjön 

(192)
Witness:
Eric Pehrsson of Sällsved



Nils Andersson of Sällsved

Mårten Jönsson moved with his family to Bräcke Parish in Alsen on November 15, 1863, and lived there until 1868, then they moved to Wången, and Mårten lived there until his death.  His wife Lena moved a boundary mark after Mårten’s death to miller Eriksson of Änge, Offerdal.

They sold their farm to Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hook the year before they moved to Alsen for the same conditions previously mentioned - 1,950 Riksdalers.

Anders Mårtensson
Table 68 (193)

Anders Mårtensson5, Mårten Andersson4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Anders Mårtensson 
	B
	Feb 8, 1808
	
	Anders lived in Djupsjön.

	
	
	D
	1887
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 13, 1828 
	
	

	S
	Stina Johansdotter Råbuck 
	B
	Apr 2, 1801 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 28, 1867
	
	

	E1
	Mårten Andersson 
	B
	Feb 9, 1829 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 31, 1905
	
	


I {Anders Mårtensson} in consultation with my wife {Stina Johansdotter}, have decided to release my ownership rights to our only son (Mårten Andersson} and his wife {Ingeborg Andersdotter}.  

These ownership rights are to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Djupsjön in the undersigned Parish consisting of seven forty-eighths (7/48) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.

This is given with a warm hand for him to receive on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session the homestead as it is found with land and cottages by whatever name and makeup they may be called, or whatever they may contain in the future.  

Our share in the saw and mill shall go to our son with the ownership rights of the farm.

He shall not have these rights without also giving the following annual Reserved Rights to my wife and I for as long as either of us live: 

· Four (4) barrels of grain in heaped measure and well cleaned, that is grown on the farm each year, in fertilized and plowed fields of trees, 

· Plant one-half (½)  barrel of päran XE "päran" 
 with own seed 

· and which maling of peas crops shall be utilized by us after this agreement.  

· A little fish and a pair of shoes.  

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cows and 8 sheep or goats and 4 of their offspring.  

· Later in Kål and Sätland a little land north of Manngårds
 building is reserved also 

· the unbroken land on the other side of Jonas Mårtenssons contained within the property line to fence and after him east to the boat house and after side down to Manngården
 to the cultivated land 8 malings north of the farm 

· there suitable can consider to sedge hay be taken sönnast XE "sönnast" 
 swampland and cleared fields with Röjningsbergsän.  15 loads of fertilizer.

· western cottage in Manngårds building with an attic above for lodging 

· access and usage of all other the other buildings as necessary 

If one of us dies, the Reserved Rights are reduced in half, except: 

· Houses are kept for the remainder of the survivor’s life without revision until death, 

· A ride for all necessary errands for getting our hay having first priority, for which reason the farm buyer shall receive a red mare in the 7th year without payment.  

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after death

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I turn over this farm to my son (Mårten Andersson} that afhärd XE "afhärd" 
 ownership and occupancy rights.

This is confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Kall and Djupsjön on February 23, 1857

Addition:  The Reserved Rights recipient is to provide us free milling on the farm mill as long as we are able to use it, but afterwards deny drying and milling on the farm ownership rights and also provide and saw half a dozen timbers from this farm each year.


Seller:
Anders Mårtensson 1808-1887 of Djupsjön


Buyer:
Mårten Andersson (1829-1905)

(194)
Witness: 
Anders Bengtsson of Rödningsberg.  



Alsen Eric Pehrsson of Sällswed

Photograph (194)

This is the old cottage in Djupsjön.  I {Inger} think it is about 200 years old.  This cottage is still there today, and is lived in during daylight-savings time
 and hunting time during the autumn.  The owner of this photograph is Arne Jakobsson from Brunflo

Jonas Mårtensson
Table 69 (195)

Jonas Mårtensson5, Mårten Andersson4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Jonas Mårtensson 
	B
	Feb 24, 1811
	
	Jonas lived in Djupsjön.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	May 9, 1831
	
	

	S
	Kerstin Olofsdotter 
	B
	July 18, 1811 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 15, 1874
	Huså?
	

	E1
	Mårten Jonasson 
	B
	July 17, 1832
	
	Mårten emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Olof Jonasson 
	B
	Jan 16, 1835 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 30, 1848
	
	

	E3
	Kerstin Jonasdotter 
	B
	Dec 7, 1836
	
	Kerstin emigrated to America on April 3, 1870.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Christina Jonasdotter 
	B
	Mar 26, 1839 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 21, 1928
	
	

	E5
	Anders Jonasson 
	B
	Sep 19, 1841
	
	Anders emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Fredrik Jonasson 
	B
	June 14, 1843 
	Offerdal
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 23, 1928
	
	

	E7
	Jonas Jonasson 
	B
	July 10, 1846
	
	Jonas emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E8
	Anna Jonasdotter 
	B
	Aug 23, 1848 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 22, 1856
	
	

	E9
	Agnes Jonasdotter 
	B
	Mar 11, 1851
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E10
	Anika Jonasdotter 
	B
	Apr 12, 1856
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (195)

Agnes Jonasdotter was born on March 11, 1851 and married Hans Ersson who was born on December 12, 1849.  They lived in Vassnäs (Malnäset), Kall.  They are pictured here with son Alfred, who was born on December 9, 1885.  

Margareta Mårtensson of Tångeråsen loaned me this photograph.

I {Jonas Mårtensson} with the joint agreement and consent of my wife {Kerstin Olofsdotter} and because I am in a difficult debt predicament and my wife’s crescent morbidity is caused hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my oldest son (Mårten Jonasson}.

This transaction i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Djupsjön, Kall Parish, Undersäker Municipality, and Jemtland Southern Judicial District consisting of 7/8 of a taxable acre.

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand four hundred (1,400) Riksdaler is to be paid by the farm buyer that for HR on the 1st of next May of this year.

The buyer shall also give Reserved Rights to my elderly mother {Kjerstin Jonsdotter} according to her legally acquired contract thereof and shall give the following Reserved Rights to my present wife and I for the remainder of our lifetimes: 

· 3 barrels of well cleaned grain that is grown on the farm each year each year

· potatoes for 1½ barrels of seed amount 

· and likewise for 2 kappers of peas in farm well stapled land and a Litt of well merkad XE "merkad" 
 salted fish.  

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cows and 6 sheep or goats.  

· 10 Litt of hay from summer mountain cabin spouses.  

I retain the following Reserved Rights for my own use:

· a cultivated land to land to the west of the farm, from the spring to the west of the fence for way and north to the fence with including by a there now existing smaller land 

· and a cultivated land for hay that is to the west of the fence and west of Bäcken which runs in through isthmus, 

· the forest haymaking the so called Klingermyren {Klinger Swamp} and 2 other lassängen XE "lassängen" 
 from Flåmyran {Flå Swamp} 

· and right to with Röjningsbergsän cleared and may be used farm share in a therefore to put out suitable cleared fields.  

· Free grinding on the farm mill for as long as I am able to myself, but afterwards undersörjes XE "undersörjes" 
 drying and milling by the farm owner.  

· A cottage complete be of assistance for our Reserved Rights recipient needs shall by the buyer and me jointly afterwards after built and furnishings 

· and by their he is ready-built provide necessary access and usage together with ownership rights to the farm and in both falls 

· access and usage to the barn, cellar, granary and all storehouses as necessary that surely to home in farm which in summer mountain pasture, 

· Should my wife and I want to build other houses or barns in the future for our individual agriculture and Reserved Rights, the farm owner shall not deny them the necessary boards.  After our death the houses are then to become the property of this farm.

With both or one of our deaths the Reserved Rights recipient live shall, starting in  __________ and including 1869.  However, with one of our deaths the Reserved Rights are reduced in half except that the surviving spouse:

· Instead of 1½  barrels, the surviving spouse shall annually receive 2 barrels of grain 

· and keeps the houses for the remainder of their life 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· A Christian burial after death

· Firewood and heat

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands

· necessary household needs driving

then I now by admission give to the buyer without other payment:

· a black mare

· a decent work harness

· a field plow

· a fodder load

· a med
 saw blade.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, my wife {Kerstin Olofsdotter} and I {Jonas Mårtensson} and my other heirs surrender our farm and deliver the deed to our son (Mårten Jonasson} and his wife and children and heirs as their legally purchased property.

This deed is for our entire homestead with everything that it now contains including both water and land, houses and fences and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

They have undisputed ownership and cultivation rights to the crops and profits and he has the right hereafter for proper entry into the Deed Book.
This transaction and agreement is certified and acknowledged by both parties with our names and signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Sellsved on March 27, 1857


Seller and Reserved


Rights recipient:
Jonas Mårtensson of Djupsjön Farm


Buyer and Reserved


Rights provider:
Mårten Jonasson

(197)
Witness: 
Eric Persson 



Hans Persson of Sellsved

Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Krok bought at executive auction and subsequently became the owner of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Djupsjön consisting of seven-eighths (7/8) of an acre on which farm I {Jonas Mårtensson} have a Reserved Rights mortgage.  

The agreement has been made between Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and myself (Jonas Mårtensson}, that as long as my health is good, I shall have the right to use the land and meadow without payment to the new farm buyer.

In exchange for this right, I shall annually give up one-half of the reserved livestock food for both large and small cattle, and 1 barrel of grain each year. 

However, I shall afterwards receive the Reserved Rights in the future without revision according to the contract of March 27, 1887.  


Kall on January 16, 1871


Buyer:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 


Seller:
Jonas Mårtensson

(197)
Witness:
G.  Jönsson 



Erik Larsson

Photograph (198)

Annika Jonsdotter born in 1856 and her spouse Lars Andersson born in 1842.  They lived in Frankrike, Offerdal.  Owner of this photograph is John Nyh from Långsele.

Photograph (198)

Family Andersson in Frankrike: Parents Lars Andersson and Annika Jonsdotter born in 1856 and their children Anders, Kerstin, Anna Stina, Jon, Agnes, and Magdalena.

Agnes Andersdotter
Table 70 (199)

Agnes Andersdotter5, Kerstin Andersdotter4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Agnes Andersdotter 
	B
	Nov 5, 1809
	
	Agnes lived in Sölvsved, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 21, 1829
	
	

	S
	Per Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Aug 2, 1804 
	Åflo, Offerdal
	

	
	
	D
	May 12, 1881
	
	

	E1
	Olof Persson 
	B
	Sep 15, 1830 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 8, 1831
	
	

	E2
	Kerstin Persdotter 
	B
	Oct 2, 1832 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 19, 1886
	
	

	E3
	Kristina Persdotter 
	B
	Aug 22, 1835 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 25, 1872
	
	

	E4
	Anders Persson 
	B
	Sep 12, 1838 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 22, 1915
	
	

	E5
	Olof Persson 
	B
	Mar 29, 1841 
	Holm
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Jacob Persson 
	B
	Dec 3, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 5, 1844
	
	

	E7
	Per Persson 
	B
	Jan 27, 1845
	
	Per emigrated to America on January 4, 1889.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E8
	Brita Persdotter 
	B
	Apr 30, 1848
	
	Brita emigrated to America on 2-4-1872.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E9
	Jacob Persson 
	B
	Mar 28, 1851
	
	Jacob emigrated to America on 9-11-1882.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (199)

Agnes Östberg, born June 9, 1845
Olof Persson Holm, born March 29, 1841

The owner of this photograph is Elin Brita Nääs from Uppsala XE "Uppsala" .

From Huså Company Records 975:

The Berg Parish District Court Session inspires Copper Mining Company Sheriff Nils Lalander, on behalf of the Company, under a request to make action, a contract with the accompanying appendix, as follows:

Afterwards Anders Jakobsson of Sellsved released his ownership rights to one-fourth (¼) of the Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sellsved to his son-in-law (Pehr Olsson} who was living there, and who by means of this agreement later becomes the tenant on this Company Farm for the following terms and conditions:

1. Pehr Olsson shall cultivate and manage the farm in accordance with the District Court, will maintain his buildings, land and own, and precisely take care of his forest and publish all of the taxes and burdens accompanying this farm by whatever name and composition they may be.

2. It is the responsibility of Pehr Olsson to annually from Bonäset to Semelå garmakeri XE "garmakeri" 
 undforsla XE "undforsla" 
 one seventh (1/7) of all the raw copper, as manufactured with Huså smelting-house for now made payment of sixteen (16) Rgs XE "Rgs"  Bank-notes per skålpund
 {4 pounds} provisional weight.

3. Per Olsson shall pay two (2) Riksdaler 4 Species every year as a tenant payment, and shall also make the usual farm military payment through ore transportation from Bjelkes Mine to the Huså smelting-house at 8 Species per barrel 

shall not be responsible, wherewith follows the obligation to transport material to the Copper Mining Company for the usual payment.  

4. That, in binding revising with raw copper transportation to Semelå should arise or if it should completely cease, Pehr Olsson’s obligation shall then be revised.

5. Pehr Olsson shall, as widt XE "widt" 
 nursing of farm or copper transportation that to permit support the Copper Mining Company with driving for within work approve payment.  

6. That future Pehr Olsson faithful in entirety fulfills this contracts content, he has the right have the benefit of automatic possession of farm during his lifetime also that his children after him, however for settlement of new contract.

The Copper Mining Company and Per Olsson have each taken their exact copy of this agreement.


Huså on July 23, 1835


On behalf of the Company:




Gust.  Montgomery

I attest my complete agreement with this contract to everyone and promise to fulfill it precisely.



Pehr Olsson of Sellsved

(200)
Witness: 
Mr..  Norrman Fredrik (Signature 



Mark) 
Fredriksson of Sellsved

On June 15, 1844 he placed upon notice of Company Farmer Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sällsväd the undersigned so that overlook and precisely examine the farm cultivation on Company Farm No. 1 

consisting of 1½ taxable acre in this Village are in similar relationship as it is printed out in the dividing records of the 27th and 28th of May in 1844.  

Then in the developing investigation all the markers as described therein are found courageously, 

without being in the same condition as the sunken marker and by this farm owner all the time owned where his, 

that and henceforth after come that after is retained, 

here about were and present last the farm tenant for the western portion of Company Farm No. 1.  

Christian Jacobsson acknowledged that the present boundaries are the same as where it was divided, 

before this year and date likewise now being the farm tenant 

for öfstra XE "öfstra" 
 farm portion Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson acknowledged the same boundaries.

The Farm Division and Partitioning Recorded Minutes of the 27th and 28th of May in 1814 are as follows:

(201

1½ taxable acres were added to the western portion through Lättning XE "Lättning"  Christian Jacobsson

1. Western fields against öfster XE "öfster" 
 where goes in a straight property line between 3 stone markers, that first by a bigger stone Cairn to a Stone Cuts with below the fields and the from to a Bergfast cuts udan XE "udan"  for fields on eastern side of a stone Cairn.

2. Svedje the fields whole and keep.

3. By Svädje the fields west after 1½ malings to Exposed stone marker.

4. One-half (½) of Kåhlsängen 

The meadow hay within the fence goes to this portion of Farm No. 1. hayfield

1. The old farms land on the north side began by a mountain and from there to a fixed stone property line marker northeast of the old cottage, from there south between the shelter and to a sunken marker downward by the fields.

2. The manor house strip west of the fields against the fence down to land below for large fields.

3. From there the land marker in Svädje fields on the outer and lower portion down to the forest and goes by west to the fence below to lake.

4. The outer Boat house Field west of the fence.  Then this portion of a farm this occasion in summer mountain cabin pasture and north by that as a portion in the east and west of hay pasture, by houses cook house and barn use together.  Then Sandkärrvallen
 in the northern portion of the pasture and cook house and small barn used together.  

(202)

2¾ taxable acres were added to the eastern portion of the farm by Lättning XE "Lättning"  Anders Jacobsson.

1. Eastern the fields up and down through against the western fields and their 3 Stone markers that on resisting is written.

2. Skvaji? fields whole and keep.

3. By Svädje fields öfstan XE "öfstan" 
 after 2½ acre entirely exposed märkes XE "märkes" 
 stones.

4. ½ by Kåhlsängen.

Meadow hay within the fence goes to Farm No. 2 this portion.

1. Nyfarms plot exposed from mountain on the northwest side in the east against his neighbor Hansson’s property and against the stone property line marker on the western side down to the fields.

2. The manor house below the fields against his Hanssons own and property line markers under large field downwards to property line markers above and below in Svädje field and from there down to the forest.

3. Mire or so called below barn field to the west of the fence and main road up to Bärget and höste XE "höste" 
? Rohnen? by barn Field.

On this portion of a farm to falls in summer mountain cabin pasture.  Then hay pasture to come the western portion by that as a portion in north and south and that southern by that as a portion in the east and west of the houses milking barn husbands barn and a hay barn use together.

Sandkändvallen
 portion in the east and west and to this was added this southern portion.

Building on these partitioned farm as to where their farm buildings were built, which old houses can not be enumerated.


Sällsved on May 28, 1814 


Government Official:
J. J.  Noreus


Farm Owner:

Anders Jacobsson




Christian Jacobsson


Jurors:

Jacob Andersson of Back





Erik Ersson of Nedgård

(202)

That it is after the division and partition of the farm which for 30 years afterwards is carried out and also the same relationship with built property line markers that also vite XE "vite"  order which now being farm owner, that certified by us on immediately summoned officiating persons.




N.  Vänström





Erik Pehrsson of Back 




Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved 

(Owner of 







  Company Farm No. 2)



Christian Jacobsson 
(Present and last tenant






 of Company Farm No. 1)

On October 1st.

The Same Day:  Inspires, under a request a his putting in of this Court the Book as future security the following Estate Inventory Report.

Upon the request of farmer Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sällsved in Kall Parish, and after the proper time is Proclaimed from the Pulpit in Kall on Church Sundays from the 24th of June to the 3rd of July

we the undersigned placed so that staked out some croplands cottages for our ownership rights to this farm in this Village and Parish, as follows.

1. The first _______ field west of the farm, which is by difficult and stone fenced land will be cost, when it is well broken stone bärtföra XE "bärtföra" 
, and fertilizer loads of not less than 60 loads of fertilizer at 24 Riksdaler per maling.  

2. the swampland north of this farm __________ is new undivided land, a little stone fenced, been overgrown with forest is fictitious, that necessary require can. Fertilizer to about 5 malings where on the inspectors find that each maling cost 12 Riksdaler.

3. The new Badstugu field 110 by from the north this Cropland and South to Bärget, and from Kähan by Small lake east over creek 140 by and of some cultivated fields south old Smädjan to Nysundet, 

entire is by hard and stone fenced land, there comes maling that cost when it is broken and fertilized 20 Riksdaler, of any is cultivated närvid XE "närvid" 
 Tjern
 which is swampland or Sidlängig XE "Sidlängig" 
 mark, this calculate and fertilized 12 Riksdaler the same currency sort malings.

4. the old Badstugu
 field also by stone fenced land built of harrt XE "harrt"  iron, when all is fertilized, malings appraised at 16 Riksdaler 32 Species.

In swampland there below for malings appraised at 12 Riksdaler fertilized that egangnas XE "egangnas" 
 to Lends
.

This is accurately examined and appraised as certified.  


 Kall and Sällsved on July 3, 1850



N.  Wallström



Gunnar Jönsson of Krok




Nils Larsson of Back?

As recited, and after that likewise now the recited become that Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson questioned were Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sällsveds.

Resolved

it should the same Estate Inventory Report to lagliknestig XE "lagliknestig" 
 security in of this Court the Book literally is taken, and evidence there of report described and likewise through excerpt of Record of Court Judgments Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson be notified. (203)

Tenant Contract

The leasehold of Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sellsved, Kall Parish is taken over from or by farmer Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved for the following conditions:

1. For the leasehold, the farm tenant shall annually pay to the Copper Mining Company 50 Riksdaler instead of the in older contract with the tenant fixed lease run, which now ceases at the same time their older indentures upphear XE "upphear"  to be approved.  

2. Ignore payment of taxes and burdens for the farm also the personal taxes that have been calculated on him and his people.

3. An obligation of the tenant that farm take good care of and cultivate, land as well as house and fence, where at their village gas that new homestead buildings does not receive by the tenant fulfill 

without also by Company administration receive condition, and that the farm fences receive enclosed only for outlying land and the property, which does not belong to the Copper Mining Company.

4. Nöyou XE "Nöyou" 
 firewood the tenant has the rights that on the Copper Mining Company forest without compensation collecting, but shall necessarily dry forest, stumps and defeat also in first room is used. all burning is prohibited, also Löftägt
 and timber cutting by no one.  Otherwise steadiness, that growing trees does not livestock by the tenant or his people either täxlas XE "täxlas"  or cut down without preceding marked.  

5. Pasture for the cattle, that on the farm were born, give on the Company land except farm fence on the tract, which by Company administration determines.

6. Sale from farm of feed, fertilizer or forest product by any name is prohibited.

7. The tenant is prohibited, unless an exception is obtained in the future, that in his home or on the property’s hold other persons than them, which with Company administrations approval with him Registered for the Population Records.

8. With Church and Municipality expression and also by clergy election and otherwise on all occasions, then claim for the Copper Mining Company possessions land shall transport, the Copper Mining Company reserves for itself suffrage for the same.

9. As future the tenant with fidelity and diligence executes this contract, and in remaining erects him sober and proper may he be banished that until his death, the farm as it is now found with all of the buildings and land 

without compensation to the farm tenants the legal owner relapses to the Copper Mining Company, then the same use and use, 

but in contrary event or in the case of the tenant is found guilty of a crime against the contract, 

put under an obligation he him that on orders moved, without receiving some compensation for possible farm enhancements.  

This contract was approved to commence on the 1st of January of this year.

The Copper Mining Company and the tenant made two exact copies and each of them took their copy.


Husä on October 20 1868 



Vollrath Tham 

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



Per Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved 

(205)
Witness: 
Gustaf Nilsson  



D. Blomcreutz 

Because the undersigned on behalf of the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company on the one hand, and the undersigned buyer of one-fourth (¼) of a Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sällsved, Kall Parish 

on the other hand, is to covering by the dispute which outcome by last Fall Records with Undersåker District Court touching rightful concept by that contract of the 23rd.

In July of 1835 the following association was established, made and agreed:  

That contract to all divides except subject-matter by sixth point, will be approved, and shall subject-matter by this sixth point in contract receive the following wording: As future Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson faithful in all fulfill this contracts content 

he has the right for himself and his heirs to have the benefit of automatic tenancy rights on the farm however against new contracts established by every the tenant changed.


Myckelgård on March 3, 1837 

01.  Bergman, inspector for the buyer of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sällsved, the undersigned Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson.  

(205)
Witness: 
Anders Ersson of Touches 



Staffan Mårtensson of meadow 

I {Halfvar Jonsson Flink} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to one-fourth (¼) of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sellsved to the Company farmer (Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson) of the same place.
This sale is through the Special Stipulation agreement on this date and is in accordance with the same terms and conditions mentioned in this contract.  


Certified in Huså on April 27, 1843



Halfvar Jonsson Quick

I hereby attest my complete satisfaction to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill this contract as certified on above date.  



Pehr Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sellsved 
(205)
Witness:
O. N. Strandell



Gustaf Berg




J. E. Lindström (on behalf of the Copper Mining Company)

Brita Lang
Table 71 (206)

Brita Lang5, Märet Andersdotter4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Brita Lang 
	B
	Sep 4, 1814
	
	Brita lived in Bye, Mörsil.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 11, 1843 
	
	

	S
	Erik Hansson Lindholm 
	B
	May 19, 1819 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 18, 1886
	
	

	E1
	Katarina Lindholm 
	B
	Aug 16, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 21, 1926
	
	

	E2
	Märet Lindholm 
	B
	Aug 16, 1846
	
	Märet emigrated to America on 26-6-1882.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Anna Brita Lindholm 
	B
	Dec 26, 1849 
	Kall 
	Anna emigrated on September 5, 1881.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Hans Lindholm 
	B
	June 4, 1852 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 25, 1877
	
	

	E5
	Mårten Eriksson Lindholm 
	B
	Sep 7, 1855
	
	Mårten emigrated on March 30, 1881.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (206)

Anders Andersen Breding was born February 9, 1846 in Vuku, Norway.  He took the name “Öring”.  He married Katarina Lindholm, who was born on August 16, 1843.  

Britt-Sofie Lindholm in Järpen loaned me this photograph.

On September 30, 1842 an assessment and evaluation was conducted on the Company farm in Fäviken that was inhabited by deceased Miner His Lindholm, and which was taken over by his son and the current tenant, Miner Eric Hansson Lindholm.  

The farm is recorded as follows:

1. A cottage with 4 corners 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} 
wide 12 layers high.  On väggbandet XE "väggbandet" 
 with nailed board roof, 
and floor and intermediate bottom put together with board and 
Board beslagna XE "beslagna" 
 walls internally provided with post and streamer 
of iron, and a window with one pair of putty windows, table and chairs, 
a door on hinges with latch, decent condition, appraised at

13.16

2. An old cottage with 4 corners with a lean against the

8 alnars {16 feet} long 8 alnars {16 feet} wide 11 layers high on 
väggbandet XE "väggbandet" , moss, bark, birch bark and roof, provided with oven 
and also a Ringås of iron in fireplace, floor and 
2 pair of windows of 2 operable, table and chairs 
and a door on hinges, floor is a cellar pit without 
side walls, the cottage floor and roof are worn-out, appraised at

4.  


3. A barn built 20 later by homesteader with 4 corners 
7 alnars {14 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide 12 layers high on 
väggbandet XE "väggbandet" , covered with board If and between grounds and 
additional dirt also on top and inside, in usable condition, appraised at
8.  

4. A fodder barn against the barn with 4 corners 6 alnars {12 feet} long 
6 alnars {12 feet} wide on väggbandet XE "väggbandet" .  The roof is faulty and should 
be repaired for it to remain in usable condition, appraised at

6.  

5. A log shelter with 4 corners 3½ alnars {7 feet} square 12 rows 
väggbandet XE "väggbandet" , provided with roof and floor, a door on hinges 
with latch and key in good condition appraised at

8.  

6. A granary with  4 corners 8 alnars {16 feet} long 8 alnars {16 feet} wide 
and 11 layers high provided with roof and barn, and a floor for 
seed-grain that is in bad condition and needs improvement.  It has a door 
on iron hinges that is  in usable condition and it is appraised at

8.

7. An old cottage with 4 corners, worn-out and appraised at

24

8. A Summer barn with 4 corners is to roof 


and floor and walls usable and it is appraised at 

2.  

9. A hay barn in homestead with 4 corners, 4 alnars {8 feet} square, 
bark and birch bark roof in good condition.  

3.16

10. A hay barn in the field, 3 alnars {6 feet} square and provided 
with a floor and in good condition and it is appraised at

2.

11. Farm fences about homestead
246 fathoms fenced pasture 
10.12

216 fathoms fenced pasture
4.24
 14.36

12. Open land measured and found containing:
3 1/6
malings in good condition 
12.32
2
malings cultivated and cared for linda XE "linda" 

4.
 16.32

13. A hay barn in Pussdrolet in usable condition and appraised at

  2.

14. A barn in Solöyslättan recently built by Hans

Lindholm is in good condition and appraised at

  3.
In Solöyslättan and Tallmyran {Tall Swamp}, pasture salvaged 4 loads slough grass.

15. In old Fäviksvallen
 is found the following house.
One Störis
 built by Hans Lindholm in usable


condition
2.
A milk shed in decent condition
1.32
1/3rd of a barn nearly decayed 
.32


A hay barn in decent condition
2
  6.16

16. 1/36th in Saw and Bobäcken in usable condition
1.
Within homestead pasture salvaged 8 loads of hay 
8.
In old Fävikvallen ½ load of hay
.24
  8.24


Ut XE "Ut"  Hay



In Solöyslättan and Tallmyran {Tall Swamp} 



pasture salvaged

4 
loads




In Pussdrolet
“
1
“



On Sandkläppdrolen
“
1
“
On this farm with the assistance of Straw and Leaf covered can be born 2 cows and 5 or 6 sheep or goats over winter.




½ barrel of grain then 1/3 portion fallow field planted each year.







Total

107.20

It is hereby examined, appraised, and certified in Fäviken on the date above.


On behalf of the Company:



J. E. Lindström (through J. Nilsson)



Olof Grönblad and Lars Engelberg Inspector


Buyer:
Erik Hansson Lindholm

(208)

Purchase Agreement

I {Grels Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby knowingly release and sell Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bye consisting of 1 13/32 acres in Mörsill Parish to Company Worker Eric Hansson Lindholm of Fäwiken for eternal possession by him and his heirs.  

This farm contains the ownership rights shown on a revised map figurer Little A, 

shall this farm cottages in such a manner receive its lägive XE "lägive" 
, that Lars Olssons silently change in Storåsarna
 shall constitute 

west property line with a length of 794 alnars {1,588 feet} and Nils Jedssons current homestead the 

southern property line with a width of 125 alnars {250 feet} and the 

northern 225 alnars {445 feet} both making up from the west side, 

nor in area making up the roughly 60½ malings all in annoy sketch in between forenamed points therewith the 

eastern side likewise receive the same length as mentioned, 

with the same cottages accompanies here except from 6 malings by summer mountain cabin pasture by Semelån in actual figure on the 

southwest corner thereof and for forest haymaking a rödning XE "rödning"  so called Lillänget by named Fäbodvall, 

log staked alas to Uppland swampland and Hermyrs
 Brook and Uppland drol XE "drol"  rödningen XE "rödningen" , 

otherwise for all household needs necessary forest enjoyment and pasture on the farm forest and pastures,

The purchase amount is eight hundred (800) Riksdalers.  Half of this amount is to be paid to me by the end of the next Court Session in April of next year and the other half is to be received as the final payment against a mortgage on this portion of the homestead at 6% annual interest.

The farmer shall or farm here except from during the first 6 years 

such that thorough give 3 men’s and 3 women’s days of work during haying time in the first haying week 

and afterwards ten (10) Riksdalers annually to the homestead tenant, 

The farmer is bound to allow the homestead tenant to have his cattle in the same summer mountain pasture during the summertime 

and also to maintain the fence on the homestead. 


Mörsil and Bye on August 24, 1861


Seller:
Grels Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bye


Buyer:
Erik Hansson Lindholm of Fäwiken 

(209)
Witness:
Chr XE "Chr" .  Lithström of Uppland 



A.  Hall of Fäwiken

The First Proclamation of this contract document was in November of 1861 at the Autumn Court Session in Undersåker District Court.

the partitioned farm from Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bye that Erik Hansson Lindholm bought from Grels Ol XE "Ol" ofsson in Bye for 800 Riksdaler, as certified on behalf of this Court.


0.  Em XE "Em" . Ocklind  

The Second Proclamation was on March 5, 1862 at the Wär Court Session in Undersåker District Court.


C. Gust. Liljesköld

The Third Proclamation was on October 9, 1862 at the Autumn Court Session in Undersåker District Court the here.  

The contract was then certified at the end of the Court Session on the 4th of the following December.


C. Gust. Liljesköld

Addition
In accordance with the agreement made between us, the previous farm contract shall henceforth contain the following revised wording:

The agreement of the previously mentioned summer mountain cabin pasture to expanse 6 malings 

shall go back to farm and such as compensation by the south farm property line with 49 alnars {98 feet} from each corner point 

afterwards features a property line to that erstwhile northeast corner, 

which changes in such a manner increases farm cottage ownership rights or area with approximately 7 malings, corresponding to 176 productive acre.  

The so called Lillänge Clearing by the summer mountain cabin pasture shall go back to the farm, but the reason why farm instead receives underlay that one-half (½) large Uppland drolet XE "drolet"  located between Fårmyran {Får Swamp} and Harmyran {Har Swamp}.  

These changes similarly follow in execution from this date and apply for all of the future or as long as this farm is partitioned from the farm.  


Mörsil and Bye on December 22, 1873


Owner of the farm 


from which farm is 


partitioned:

Jonas Ersson of Bye


Owner of the referred 


to partitioned farm:
Erik Hansson Lindholm of Bye

(210)
Witness:

Olof Eriksson of Bye.  




0.  West of Eggen

Purchase Agreement

I {Erik Hansson Lindholm} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Mårtensdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to our son (Mårten Eriksson}. 

This sale i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided farm now contained under Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bye in Mörsills Parish consisting of 1 13/32 acre. 

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand four hundred (1,400) Riksdaler is paid by the buyer in the following manner: 

· Take over my farm mortgage obligation to my wife {Kerstin Grelsdotter of Bye
} in  the amount of 400 Riksdaler

· the remaining 1,000 Riksdaler is paid to me on this date and hereby acknowledged.

The buyer or the subsequent legal owner shall also provide the following annual Reserved Rights to my wife and I for both of our remaining lifetimes:  

· Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 3 sheep or goats, and 2 of their offspring.  

· 15 foot of grain 

· 1½ foot of rye 

· 1½ foot of peas.  The grain, rye, and peas are to be well cleaned and as good as any grown on the farm each year.

· and also 24 foot potato harvested 

· Two (2) pairs of shoes, one for me and one for my wife

· 8 feet of foot stamped coarse home-spun wool  
With the death of either of us, the Reserved Rights are to be modified in such a manner that the survivor shall annually receive the following Reserved Rights for the remainder of their lifetime: 

· Feed and fodder for a cow and 1 goat or sheep and their offspring.  

· 9 foot of grain

· 15 foot of potatoes

· 7½ kanna of rye  

· 7½ kanna of peas  

· ontta XE "ontta"  foot stamped coarse home-spun wool 

· One pair of shoes

· For my own use, provide the so called Bergåkern and cultivated land on the same eastern side containing a total of  2 malings and fertilize the same land each year with 15 usual loads of fertilizer turned out.  

· The entrance hall and a small  attic room above in the present cottage for lodging 

· access and usage of the barn, cellar, and other buildings as necessary

· wood and warmth

· a ride for necessary errands 

· necessary driving for use by our with the Special Stipulation that the surviving spouse without revision ta XE "ta" kes advantage of it for good find, 

· tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· a Christian burial after death

Finally, it is attested that:

· in purchase is included and becomes purchased property 

· My current ownership rights to a mare

· my share in a Kullhafva XE "Kullhafva" , 

· A field plow

· A cow, which later however cannot now be given before the 1st of October of this year 

that other beside the farm buyer shall take possession on the 1st of next May coming, from which day Reserved Rights are also calculated 

Finally the Reserved Rights benefits in their entirety are secured with a farm mortgage.

For the fulfillment of these terms, my wife and I and other heirs surrender this undivided homestead 

which according to the contract of August 25, 1861 and of December 22, 1873 becomes me guarantees and legally purchased the same buyer, 

my son (Mårten Eriksson} that rights such as to acquire and disposes of ownership rights to the property, 

then he or farms owner annually to farm house from where farm is partitioned, 

constitutes the farm fixed property payment and all ordinary and additional taxes and burdens and encumbrances farm legally be able to debit.

Agreement is arrived at and this transaction is hereby confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Bye on March 29, 1879


Seller and Reserved


Rights recipient:
Erik Hansson Lindholm 



Buyer and Reserved  


Rights provider:
Mårten Eriksson of Bye 



(212)
Witness: 
Erik Persson of Ris



A. A. Fogner of Bye

Anna Lang
Table 72 (212)

Anna Lang5, Märet Andersdotter4, Agnis Edberg3, Kerstin Randklef 2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D7
	Anna Lang 
	B
	May 18, 1826
	
	Anna lived first in Stamgärde, Undersåker and moved later to Sölvsved, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 6, 1852 
	
	

	S
	Per Nilsson Lind 
	B
	Jan 23, 1825 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 18, 1892
	
	

	E1
	Nils Lind 
	B
	Sep 1, 1852
	Rask XE "Rask" 
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Märet Lind 
	B
	Nov 4, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1924
	
	

	E3
	Brita Lind 
	B
	Oct 3, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 17, 1944 
	Åre
	

	E4
	Anna Helena Lind 
	B
	Sep 29, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 30, 1921
	
	

	E5
	Johan Magnus Lind 
	B
	May 14, 1863 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 30, 1937 
	Rödön
	


Contract

The Gustaf and Karlberg Copper Mining Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stamgärde consisting of 1½ taxable acres, formerly owned by Field Soldier Olof Field, is hereby taken over by farmhand Johan Nilsson Lind for the following conditions:

1. Be responsible for all of the farm taxes and burdens by whatever name and composition they may be.  Build, manage, and maintain the farm according to the legally approved statutes.

2. Such as the tenant requirement for the farm 

tenant shall every year on winter snow conditions small cargo boat from the Gustaf Copper Mining Company to Huså or Slagså smelting-house (the Copper Mining Company decides for every year who there) 

50 barrels of ore of 40 lisspunds {800 pounds} weight per barrel without some payment therefore, 

or vehicle to work constitute other here opposite be responsible for driving.  

3. Homesteader shall every is on the farm forest coal 50 Lester
 of coal a 12 barrels per path, and deliver them clean and fireproof by Slagså Smelting-house for that price that for other coal on exact distance from smelting-house approve is (nevertheless with deduction for a forest well kept).

4. With appear bathing by the Company Trustee the tenant shall without contradiction support with days of work and driving for the payment that in locality is approved, that wide not farm nursing care and the tenant by the Copper Mining Company enjoins business activity should demonstrably to the tenants damage is neglected.

This contract applies as long as both of us are hereby satisfied and has the rights in remaining yet cancel and make moving time room.

We have taken each sit
 exact copies of this contract.


Huså on November 30, 1857.  


Managing director of the Gustafs and 


Karlbergs Copper Mining Company:
Axis Bernt Beskow






Johan Nilsson Lind 

(213)
Witness: 


L.  Murén 





Carl Ekman 

was shown in 1858 Registered for the Population Records, certified by C.  Cavellin 

Only made on this date agreed upon by each the change made on the other hand drew contract, that the farm is to be divided equally in half, of which Johan Nilsson Lind ta XE "ta" kes one portion and the other portion is granted to his brother Pehr Nilsson Lind, 

is for the same Pehr Nilsson Lind becomes to one-half (½) accountable for providing of all the obligations that until now be the responsibility of Johan Nilsson Lind alone, each ends where and a the tenant for himself, 

as well as surrender self entitled to the give notice by contract that in the event by dissatisfied on the Copper Mining Company or the tenants side can ownership rights room.  


Mo on December 11, 1861 


Axis Bernt Beskow

We attest our complete satisfaction with the above agreement to everyone and we promise to faithfully fulfill it 

according to the same as well as the responsibility of the current owner upon 

according to the contract of November 30, 1857.  


Mo on above date



Johan Nilsson Lind 



Pehr N. Lind 

(213)
Witness: 
N.  Strandell 



Vidimeras H. Edfäldt

Company Farm No. 84 in the Village of Sellsved lived on by Miner Pehr Nilsson Lind after 1851
  Jonas Spelman left the following buildings:  

· A cottage, 14 alnars {28 feet} long, of which the porch enkom XE "enkom" 
 5½ alnars {11 feet}, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 22 layers high.  It has a double board roof, tongue and grooved boards inner ceiling in all the rooms, floor built of planks, a fireplace in house, a fireplace in the cottage with a baking oven with well braced and iron spikes, 2 windows in the cottage of and a in house of 7/4, 2 pon XE "pon"  an attic of 6/4, 3 doors in downstairs and 3 here a door for the furnished house on attic with a lock.  This building is built of boards on the west wall and it has a stone foundation.  It is 12 years old.

· A barn, 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide and 18 layers high.  The roof is built of boards and it has an unpainted and unfinished floor of planks, a fireplace with well braced and wooden spikes.  It has room enough for 5 or 6 cows and 25 to 30 sheep or goats, körbro XE "körbro" 
 of unpainted and unfinished boards for the doors.  It is 30 years old and it has some rot damage.  

· A granary, 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 15 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, Torloge in western end with 3½ alnars {7 feet} wide with a plank floor, floors of round logs.  It is 30 years old and in perfect condition.

· A shelter, 6 alnars {12 feet} square with 1 alnars {2 feet} a lean, 15 layers high.  It has a roof of board, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, and a door with a lock.  It is 18 or 19 years old and in perfect condition.

· A shelter, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 5 alnars {10 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  It is double width and gone and stairs of 2x4 planks, floor built of planks and it was repaired with a new roof for 3 years ago.

· A shed with 6 corners with forbod XE "forbod" 
, of which shed originates 4 alnars {8 feet} square.  Building 4½ alnars {9 feet}, 5½ alnars {11 feet} wide and 9 layers high.  The roof is built of tree branches, birch bark and sod, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks.  a doors on hinges which is very old.

· One third of the ownership rights to a barn with in-law Johan Äkerblom and Mårten Östberg and in assessment records inhabited.

· A summer barn, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide and 7 layers high.  The roof is built of tree branches and birch bark.  It is built of old wood.

· A cellar with walls of stone and 3 layers of timber.  4 alnars {8 feet} square except a smaller cover.

· 4 hay barns with roofs of birch bark, tree branches and land, can hold together 12 to 13 loads of hay.

· Houses in Sundkjernwallen, consisting of Bigger and barn.

· A hay barn in Brännmyran {Brän Swamp}, recently repaired with a birch bark roof.

Croplands: 

· 5 malings of open land.  

· 1½ malings of open land, broken up and cultivated by Spelman in later years.

· Fence: 415 fathoms of it a fenced pasture in good condition and 83½ in bad condition.  

· within homeowner,

· 10 loads of hay from Mountains 

· ½ load from Tenndalen

· 1 load from Sundkärndrolen.  

· 2 loads from east of Östbäcken

· 1 load from Latmyrdrolets Latmyran {Lat Swamp}

· 3 loads from Starrismon and Brännmyran {Brän Swamp}

· 5 loads from Bostamyran {Bosta Swamp} and Fleen XE "Fleen"  

· ½ load from Agnismyran {Agnis Swamp} 

· 1 load from Sundtjernwallen and 

· ½ load from Höwallen

· This farm can feed 3 cows and 18 sheep or goats during the year with Reserved Rights certain with the assistance of leaves and straw

· During the latter 5 years within the farm area, uppbordat XE "uppbordat"  3-5 malings, his land portion new land bid of 25 malings that Spelman broke up.  

· Only about 4 malings remains within the fence, and 1 maling in the infield

· also consists the ground everywhere by led helleseng XE "helleseng" 
.  

Photograph (215)

From the left in the top row: Ingrid, Karin, Nils, and Astrid Rask XE "Rask"  

From the left in the middle row: Grandfather Nils Rask XE "Rask"  born September 1, 1852, Laura (born Palm) and Laurentius Rask

Front Row: Kerstin is sitting.

Gunnar Halvarsson
Table 73 (215)

Gunnar Halvarsson5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Gunnar Halvarsson 
	B
	Dec 10, 1807
	
	Gunnar was a farmer in Lien, Offerdal.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 25, 1839 
	
	

	S1
	Gerken Olofsdotter 
	B
	Nov 18, 1817 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 17, 1848
	
	

	E1
	Halvar Gunnarsson 
	B
	Sep 11, 1840 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 3, 1924
	Linderström
	

	E2
	Olof Gunnarsson 
	B
	Sep 3, 1842 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 4, 1902
	Alsen
	

	E3
	Brita Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	Jan 20, 1848 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 25, 1916 
	Säby
	

	
	
	M
	1849
	
	

	S2
	Anna Nilsdotter 
	B
	Nov 5, 1820 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 21, 1868
	
	

	E4
	Carin Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	Jan 24, 1852 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 11, 1901
	Lien
	

	E5
	Nils Gunnarsson 
	B
	Mar 17, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 15, 1932 
	Lidén
	

	E6
	Gunnar Gunnarsson 
	B
	Nov 14, 1856 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 24, 1879 
	
	

	E7
	Gerken Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	Feb 9, 1859 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 12, 1862
	
	

	E8
	Anders Gunnarsson 
	B
	Aug 21, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 13, 1862
	
	

	E9
	Anna Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	Apr 1, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 12, 1879
	
	


Photograph (216)

Brita Gunnarsdotter born January 20, 1848 in Lien

Purchase Agreement

I {Gunnar Halfvarsson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Anna Nilsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to Nils Persson of Rännö. 

This transaction i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien in Offerdahls Parish consisting of 1½ acre.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes one-half in all their divides, house, land, saw and mill and summer mountain cabin in Berg Parish and cottages and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, 

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand one hundred (2,100) Riksdaler is to be paid to me in full on the 1st of next May of this year and then the farm buyer may take possession.

The buyer (Nils Persson} shall give half in a field plow and harrowed and half in the wooden container 
and the seller (Gunnar Halfvarsson} has the rights to the summer mountain cabin and pasture.

The buyer of this farm portion shall then receive ownership rights and take possession from and including the 1st of next May of this year and promises to provide the following Reserved Rights benefits:  

· Two (2) barrels of clean grain that is grown on the farm, 

· plant ½ barrel of potatoes, 

· 30 bindings wattnad XE "wattnad" 
 hemp, 

· feed and fodder both in winter and summer for a cow, 5 sheep or goats and 3 of their offspring and 

· firewood, drying and a baking to the current Reserved Rights recipient

after her death increase Reserved Rights by:

· 1/8 barrel of rye and 

· land for appointing of 4 partial barrels of potatoes, 

· 4 Golf hay land sedge growing.

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights benefits from this farm are to be reduced in half.  

The seller (Gunnar Halfvarsson} reserves for himself: 

· Cultivated land of land 1 maling 

· 2 malings upper meadow hay 

· 6 malings that cultivate on holmen XE "holmen"  Farmsmyra.  

· 1 maling outside small cottage that falls by old farm 

· Gather 200 bundles of leaves, 

· myrtag XE "myrtag" 
 to needs.  

When the seller is not able to use this land, falls the farm reduces.

· the seller reserves for himself the now was built small cottage for lodging

· old shed southern portion by property building, and 

· Access and usage of the other buildings as necessary  

· The seller reserves for himself ½ tithe in firewood first year and ½ tithe in church fire and for gathered by hay one-half (½) tithe, 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after death  

The buyer is enjoined to pay all the prospective taxes and burdens on the partitioned farm from the 1st of next May of this year at the next coming.

We affirm that both parties are satisfied with the agreement made in this contract.  


Rännö on March 9, 1863

We hereby make two exact of the contract on this date and we each take one.  


Seller:
Gunnar Halfvarsson



Anna Nilsdotter


Buyer:
Nils Pehrsson of Rännön

(217)
Witness: 
C.O.  Groth 



Nils Hammarberg

Contract

I {Gunnar Halfvarsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to my son (Olof Gunnarsson}.

This transaction i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to taxable partitioned Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien in Offerdahl Parish consisting of 13/24 acre.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes the house, cottages, and property and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler is to be paid in full on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session when the farm buyer may take possession.  

The buyer is also to provide for my remaining lifetime and for as long as Reserved Rights recipient by the name of spouse Brita Gunnarsdotter
 lives, the following Reserved Rights: 

· 12 foot 6 kanna grain, 

· 4 kannar rye as good as that which is grown on the farm each year, 

· and cut ½ malings in the fallow field 

· and cropland containing 42 alnars {84 feet} square, where Reserved Rights man indicated

· plant ½ barrel of potatoes on the cultivated land

· 2½ lisspunds {50 pounds}of clinging hemp

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, 4 sheep or goats and 2 of their offspring

But with the death of Brita Gunnarsdotter, the Reserved Rights benefits are reduced in half and provide:

· One and one-half (1½) räf in burnt area called and old allotments out with holmen XE "holmen"  for haying

· The present small cottage for lodging

· ½ maling land along her, 

· Access and usage of the cellar, granary, barn behind cottage, and the little stable as necessary

· The south room in the property building 

· The small mill with their behör XE "behör" 
.

With this mare shall accompany without fee farm, 

· A cart load of seltyg XE "seltyg"  

· An iron plow and field harkvan XE "harkvan" 

· My share in the flour mill 

· Household needs 

· Saw and saw blade

· A ride to and from church and other necessary driving 

· Firewood and heat

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A decent burial after death

Agreement is hereby arrived at and this transaction is confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Offerdal and Lien on March 1, 1869


Seller:
Gunnar Halfvarsson of Lien 


Buyer:
Olof Gunnarsson of Lien 

(218)
Witness: 
Olof Andersson of Trången 



Anders Andersson of Trången

Contract

As security for their Reserved Rights f. farmer Gunnar Halfvarsson of Lien according to indentures of March 9, 1863 and on March 1, 1869 the following items each year for the remainder of his lifetime:  

· Two (2) barrels of grain and Six (6) kanna of rye that is grown on our partitioned farm each year

· Cut 4 malings in fallow field and cropland

· Plant 1 1/8 barrels of potatoes in the tenants cultivated land

· 1¼ lisspunds {25 pounds} of clinging hemp
 and 15 bindings of wattnad XE "wattnad"  hemp

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow and 4½ sheep or goats and 2½ of their offspring

· Drying and baking oven 

· To manor house 1½ räf in Brånnan called

· old cottage

· 1½ upper meadow hay and 

· 2 golf hay, sedge and 

· Cut 100 bundles of leaves

· The small cottage for lodging

· Access and usage of the cellar, granary, barn, back cottage, and shed, as necessary

· southern room in property building 

· small mill with help

· A ride to and from church and other necessary driving

· Firewood and heat

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A decent burial after death  

Allow us beneficiaries without any additional hearings to receive a mortgage on our partitioned farm of 13/24 acre each under Lien No. 1 in Offerdal Parish in Jemtlands County.  

Acknowledged and certified.


Offerdal on November 22, 1875



Nils Persson 



Olof Gunnarsson of Lien 

(219)
Witness: 
Per Jönsson Rismon 



Mattias Norrman of Landön

Purchase Agreement

I {Gunnar Halfvarsson} hereby knowingly release and sell one-half (½) of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Lien Lapland Farm in the Village of Rännö in the undersigned Parish consisting of 1/16 taxable acre to farmer (Nils Pehrsson of Rännön}.

The purchase amount i XE "i" ncludes compliance with the contract of March 18, 1863, according to occurred contract ½ of.  

It is hereby agreed and this transaction is confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Offerdahl and Lien on March 26, 1863


Seller: 
Gunnar Halfvarsson of Lien 


Buyer: 
Nils Pehrsson of Rännön 

(219)
Witness: 
Olof Andersson of Trången 



Anders Pehrsson of Lien

Gunnar received the Title Deed for this farm on December 23, 1862

On March 19, 1874, Gunnar Halfvarsson sold 1/7 portion or 1/16 acre of Lapland Farm No. 3 in the Village of Rännö, 

The agreed upon purchase amount of 100 Riksdaler was paid in cash and acknowledged by Lars Andersson of Fiskviken.  

This farm was purchased on May 1, and the witnesses were Karl Larsson of Rösta and Nils Jonasson of Bångåsen.

See Title Deed dated December 23, 1862

Anna Halvarsdotter
Table 74 (220)

Anna Halvarsdotter5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Anna Halvarsdotter 
	B
	May 17, 1810
	
	Anna lived in Berg Parish, Offerdal.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1838
	
	

	S
	Johan Hjelm 
	B
	July 2, 1808 
	
	Johan was field soldier and farmer.  Johan's second marriage was on April 9, 1873 to Märta Göransdotter born July 3, 1829

	
	
	D
	May 4, 1890 
	Vestbyn, Offerdal
	

	E1
	Erik Hjelm 
	B
	Oct 17, 1838 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 16, 1860
	
	

	E2
	Brita Hjelm 
	B
	Sep 29, 1840 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 25, 1859
	
	

	E3
	Halvar Hjelm 
	B
	Jan 31, 1843 
	
	Halvar emigrated on September 10, 1893 to the USA.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Jonas Hjelm 
	B
	Aug 4, 1845 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 19, 1846
	
	

	E5
	Märit Johanna Hjelm 
	B
	July 28, 1847 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 9, 1940
	
	

	E6
	Kerstin Hjelm 
	B
	Jan 29, 1852 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 9, 1940
	
	

	E7
	Anna Hjelm 
	B
	Jan 23, 1855
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Purchase Agreement

I {Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to Field Soldier (Johan Hjelm}.

This transaction i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in Berg Parish containing the so called Wulftorpet with house and fence, hay making and forest enjoyment.  However, the latter is for his own needs and his haying concerns, each the so called Slottbrandslotten
 divorced

The purchase amount of two hundred (200) Riksdaler shall be paid in full on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session, and the buyer is to separately provide the following each year:  

6 days of work in the spring time

6 days at haying time 

6 days of work each by both man and women in the fifth week after midsummer 

and beside they've west 4 malings, which harvest after 15 year reduces to one-half (½).

This farm the farmer has the rights that for himself (_________} and his wife {__________} and heirs 

can be used for 50 years and after which time the farm relapses, 

and the heirs of the farm buyer shall receive enjoyment of one-half of the evaluation of the then existing house and farm fences.

They had the remaining concern that if Hjelm or his current wife should reach the age 

that the above said time not sufficient for them in their lifsbergning XE "lifsbergning" 
 in old age

as owners they shall have the benefit from this farm of food and care until the day of their deaths.

We have each attested our agreement with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses as additional proof of this.


Offerdahl on November 12, 1839


Seller:
Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Berg Parish 


Buyer:
Johan Hjelm 

(220)
Witness: 
Nils Andersson of Rise 



Abraham Larsson of Ede

Reserved Rights and Inheritance Contract

On this date I {_____________} sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Vestbyn consisting of 13/96 of an acre to my son-in-law (Per Eriksson from Axelåsen} for which I shall receive the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for my current wife and I for both of our remaining lifetimes:  

· Four (4) barrels of grain 

· Four (4) barrels of peas 

· 1/8 barrel of rye all well cleaned and as good as that which can be grown on the farm each year

· plant 1 barrel of potatoes in farm fertilized and plowed land

· Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 goats or sheep and 2 of their offspring

· The cottage on the farm for lodging and necessary needs

· A ride to and from Church and other necessary driving

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after our lives are finished

By one of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced by: 

· One-half of the grain, peas, and potatoes 

· Feed and fodder for goats or sheep and their offspring

· The other rights remain unchanged until both of our deaths

For the fulfillment of these Reserved Rights benefits we, with the approval of our children, hereby state that all that is found to inherit after our deaths goes to Per Eriksson and his wife or their heirs without infringement by anyone.  

We also promise to help the Reserved Rights provider with work to the fullest of our power and capability 

without that 

we need earnings for our own portion so that we can acquire coffee, tobacco etc.

Both parties are satisfied in the manner in which we have arrived at agreement, and we have made two copies of this contract and signed it in our own handwriting in Offerdal and Woestbyn on December 6, 1886.  


Reserved Rights


Provider:
Pehr Ersson of Fölinge and Axelås 




Reserved Rights 


Recipient:
Johan Hjelm and Märit Göransdotter of Vestbyn


Witness:
Jonas Simonsson of Bredbyn 



Lars Andersson of Vestbyn 

We the undersigned hereby attest our satisfaction with this and we hereby renounce all inheritance language after Johan Hjelm and his wife.  


Year and Date as above



Halfvar Johansson of Vestbyn 



P. A. Jonsson of Vestbyn 



Påll Larsson of Axelåsen Fölinge 

(221)
Witness:
J.  Simonsson of Bredbyn 



Lars Andersson of Vestbyn

Photograph (222)

Pål Larsson born on February 26, 1855 married to Anna Hjelm born on January 23, 1855.  They lived in Andviken after 1916.  Sixten Persson in Gravbränna loaned me this photograph.

Purchase Agreement

I {Olof Gabrielsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Margareta Andersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmer (Johan Hjelm} and his wife {Märit Göransdotter of Berg Parish}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Vestbyn, Berg Parish, and Offerdal Municipality consisting of 13/96 of an acre

The agreed upon purchase amount of 1,500 Riksdaler is paid on this date and hereby acknowledged by each, and the admission year to the Land Deed Book occurs on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  The Buyer shall be responsible for the taxes and burdens accompanying the farm after this date.

The buyer has the rights that to court farm or building place the fence, which is west of Anders Andersson and north of Halvar Johansson as far as the jointly outlying land.  

The buyer shall also responsible for his share of the forest contract, which are sold from 1 1/12 acre in Vestbyn.

For the fulfillment of these terms and conditions, we surrender our farm consisting of 13/96 acre with all that it now contains including saw and mill, 1/10 portion in Bredby Lake Water
 rights, and we give the deed to Johan Hjelm and his wife for eternal ownership and cultivation rights.  

I will enter it into the Deed Book at my own expense, whereupon the necessary Purchase Agreement is to be held by the buyer.

We have made this Purchase Agreement in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to additionally confirm the validity of this. 


Offerdal and Berg Parish on March 24, 1886


Seller:
Olof Gabrielsson of Vestbyn 



Margareta Andersdotter of Vestbyn



Johan Hjelm of Berg Parish 



Mertha Göransdotter

(223)
Witness:
Jon Jonsson of Vesterberg 



Jon Simonsson of Vesterberg

Photograph (223)

From Left:  Kerstin Hjelm born January 29, 1852, grandchild Anders Öhneby born June 15, 1909, grandchildren Kristina Jonsson born February 10, 1913, Jonas August Jonsson born January 21, 1915, son Johan Teodor Jonsson born May 18, 2886
, the son’s wife Karin Jonasdotter born March 18, 1895 and grandchild Johan Axis Jonsson born June 16, 1917.

This photograph was taken in Jämtland Bredbyn in 1918 or 1919.

I borrowed this photograph from Märtha Sunding of Östersund.  

Catarina Halvarsdotter
Table 75 (224)

Catarina Halvarsdotter5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Catarina Halvarsdotter 
	B
	May 23, 1812 
	
	Catarina lived in Västbacken, Alsen.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 12, 1850
	
	

	S
	Halvar Jönsson 
	B
	June 18, 1823 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 12, 1905
	
	

	E1
	Märet Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Nov 22, 1850 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 15, 1868
	
	

	E2
	Halvar Halvarsson 
	B
	Oct 20, 1852 
	
	Halvar took the name of Lundberg.

	
	
	D
	Jan 1, 1936
	Alsen
	

	E3
	Jöns Halvarsson 
	B
	Jan 14, 1857 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1934
	
	


Photograph (224)

From left stands Anna Carolina (born Lundberg) daughter Brita Linnea and spouse Helge Persson, Anna Carolina’s mother Brita (born Persdotter) and father Halvar Lundberg born on October 20, 1852.  

This photograph was taken in Östbacken, Alsen.

The owner of the photograph is Arvid Skoog from Nordbyn, Nälden

Allow Nils Jönsson of Wästbacken with the District Court understanding to put into the Deed Book on Company Farm No. 1 in Wästbacken 1¼ acre and by reason of the following written purchase:

I {Jöns Halfvarsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife and with a sound mind and a free will hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my oldest son (Nils Jönsson}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to productive land and one-fourth (¼) of Company Farm No. 1 in Wästbacken, Alsens Parish consisting of one and one-fourth (1¼) taxable acres, and 1/8 of an acre ökeskatt XE "ökeskatt" 
.  
It i XE "i" ncludes the share by Trubacken is given that was first read under this Company Farm No. ¼ the Village of Rothåll No. 88 by the Offerdahl Company and the Royal Army Field Soldier Regiment in Jämtland.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes all the buildings, land, possessions and cottages by whatever name and nature they may be and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.  A plow and 2 barrels of grain are also included. 

The agreed upon purchase amount of eight hundred sixty six (866) Riksdaler 32 Species is to be paid by the buyer on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.

In addition, provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits to my wife and I for as long as we live: 

· 4 barrels of good grain, as good as that which can be grown on the farm

· Sow grain with own seed in fallow field and plowed land there I prefer and also; 

· One-half (½) maling of peas

· One-half (½) barrel of land pears settling in plowed fallow field

· One-half (½) lisspund {10 pounds} of redd XE "redd" 
 flax

· Food and nursing care during the entire year for 2 cows and 6 sheep or goats and 3 of their offspring

· Summer mountain pasture for the cattle that I feed
 in the wintertime

· To Kål and rotland XE "rotland" 
 in old cabbage beds 64 square alnars {128 feet}

· I may gather hay in the so called Hångmyrstrupen
 

· south from a malt fenced pasture to land adjacent to Anders Persson’s well, 

· and on the north side of Hångmyrberget
 the cleared fields that are found there that I cleared and used and by the new fence 

· west farm west after from the pasture 

· east of southern end 74 alnars {148 feet} and on the 

· north 144 alnars {288 feet} wide in the east and west of this cottages Reserved Rights recipient shall clear away forests and stumps for that reason the homestead tenant annually upprister XE "upprister" 
 ½ maling of which Reserved Rights recipient should provide stone, fertilizer, seeds and afterwards have benefits as long as he pleases.

· The entrance hall is reserved with an attic over the same for lodging

· Cattle barn south of the farm

· Access and usage of the cellar, granary, house and other buildings as necessary 

· Firewood and heat

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands and hauling of loads 

· I the farm seller (_______________?} give the brown mare to the buyer and in the event that previously should now in any case, he receives in addition to the purchase amount of 60 Riksdaler.   

· I also reserve my share in Municipal Warehouse for as long as my wife and I live but after both of our deaths, the homestead tenant shall keep the same and therefore compensate my other heirs after agreement of the appraised amount or after mätismanna XE "mätismanna" 
 ordom XE "ordom" 
.

· Materials for Church building are provided by the seller, but days of work next summer and afterwards are by the buyer.  

· The timber that is provided for granary repair goes with the farm

· Also I from the seller (_______________?} me that furnished an attic over cottage with a floor, inner ceiling, 3 pairs of windows and a door.

· Murgrytan in the barn receive until further can be used by the buyer but it belongs to the seller.  

· 2 barrels of grain the buyer shall take possession borrow by the seller without annual interest for a year.  

The death of the husband before the wife reduces these Reserved Rights in half except:

· Lodging, firewood, and heat

The death of the wife before the husband reduces them in half except: 

· Seeding grain one måling as remains in its entirety

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

We attest that we are both satisfied with this contract.  


Alsen and Westbacken on January 14, 1844


Seller:
Jöns Halfvarsson of Wästbacken 


Buyer:
Nils Jönsson 

(226)
Witness: 
Eric Nilsson of Östbacken 



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Östbacken

By roll-call to continuous processing 
from the last Court Session postponed and in the Record Book under § 31 noted the legal proceedings between the Royal Army Soldier M. Frånberg on the one hand, and farmer Nils Jönsson of Vestbacken on the other hand, concerning responsibility for damage.  Frånberg attended the hearing personally.

However, Nils Jönsson notified his last representative, Erik Nilsson of Berge, who on behalf of his responsible authority denied the accusation.

So that the question of when the Trufbacken Farms came to be of a taxable nature inspired a Royal Court Judgment concerning the ownership rights in the County Judgment, 

who with exclusively by the inhabited problem, was as lydande XE "lydande" 
,

The Royal Government Judgment in Jemtlands County Judgment concerning day work farmer Halfvar Jönsson of Trufbacken, who had already begun cultivating and building on the so called Utgodset XE "Utgodset" 
 in 1855, 

now for self governed Royal Government Homestead attested, 

the Village of Trufbacken in Alsens Parish makes a demand that is taken to the tenant 

and win värd XE "värd" 
 skapet XE "skapet" 
 on the same Royal Government Homestead or portion thereof, 

where some of the previous tenants had not been in order taken, 

who demands he establishes thereon, 

partly because his now deceased father, Jöns Halfvarsson, had previously been the executor in Trufbacken and partly because his brother, Nils Jönsson, still used a portion of this farm each year for his farm in Vestbacken 

afför XE "afför" 
 and there sound uppstilla XE "uppstilla" 
 all forage and likewise remove forest output of both timber and firewood, 

thereupon, the ownership rights of this Farm 

(Bengt Nordén, Måns Persson, Erik Mårtensson, Jon Persson, Olof Månsson, Måns Ersson and Nils Jonsson) 

he attested, for that reason Halfvar Jönsson with reminders depend on.

Östersund Land Office on November 27, 1878

The rights of ownership to divide the Trufbacken Farms 

established by land, 

which future portions constituted taxable goods under the same name under Company Farm No. 2 in Landverk and Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Vestbacken, 

tax assessment on November 6, 1826 on 4 units of Tax Registered Land, 

½ explained anderne XE "anderne" 
 want based on and confirmed.  

1. Bengt Nordén registered 1/16th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land in Offerdal District Court on December 11, 1857, which he had bought on April 2, 1856 for 1,250 Riksdaler and for Reserved Rights provided to Jon Jonsson, but of which he later sold 1/32nd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land to his brother-in-law, Jon Persson, on November 19, 1872 for 850 Riksdaler, which purchase document was registered in Offerdal District Court on December 31, 1873.

2. Måns Persson registered 1/16th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land in Offerdal District Court on December 11, 1857, which he had bought for 1,250 Riksdaler and for Reserved Rights provided to Jon Persson, according to sales letter of March 31, 1856.  But he later sold 1/64th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land to Erik Mårtensson on April 28, for 400 Riksdaler, which purchase document was registered in Offerdals District Court on December 31, 1872. 

3. Olof Månsson registered 1/32nd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land in Offerdal District Court on December 30, 1871, which he had purchased from Jon Lantz on May 8, 1870 for 900 Riksdaler

4. Måns Ersson registered 1/48th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land in Offerdal District Court on May 27, 1874, which Hans Persson had bought for 900 Riksdalers from Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson on October 27, 1864, but which was released to Måns Ersson through the Purchase Agreement of March 13, 1873.

5. Nils Jönsson registered 5/24ths of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Vestbacken, which he had bought from his father  {Jöns Halfvarsson} through the Purchase Agreement of January 11, 1844 for 1,300 Riksdalers.  Through the hearings concerning the partitioning of the farms in Trufbacken, after the statement that 1/48th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land was contained within this property, that constituted this portion of the farm, engaged the land within the declared property line markers, which Nils Jönsson document contract of October 26, 1854, on the applicants 

6. Halfvar Jönsson, employed by his brother Halfvar Jönssons and his former wife, in lifetime for work obligations to family lineage homestead granted, and ½ explained anderne XE "anderne" 
 and Per Nilsson, owner of the other portion of the farm, 
registered 1/32nd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land, on April 10th of this year.


An excerpt is taken from the 1825 Special Deed Book for Alsen Parish with Recorded Minutes from the year 1824 land hearings which show that Trufbacken by Vestbacken is taxable property in Vestbacken and Landverk and imply farm taxes without annual interest, and it is justified to put them into the Deed Book legal records.

Now, because the land of which the farms are made up has been transferred through subdivision or the farms have been occupied for some time by the Royal Government Homesteaders, it follows thereof that the ownership rights to the new farms goes completely with the tax rights to occupy the land.

Therefore, the Royal Court Judgment approves the ownership rights in accordance with the reasonable demands of Halfvar Jönsson dislike.

Frånberg again stated that at the time in question, the Trufbacken farms had also been of a Royal Government nature, 

since that first afterward explained to officially be taxable, 

which is why Frånberg considered Nils Jönsson as having stolen wood and feed from a farm to which he had not been entitled.

This inspired Frånberg to write the following:

Through the Royal Court Judgment of November 20, 1865 and the Royal Court Judgment of November 6, 1826, a tax placement on the Trufbacken farms consisting of 4 units of Tax Registered Land in Alsen Parish becomes declared for self governed Royal Government Homestead, 

but as analyzed becomes that Trufbacken and Vestbacken, 

of which this farm was formed, 

was a tax land lying outside the district in Vestbacken and Landverk, 

the Royal Court Judgment through the Judgment of November 27, 1878 has attested Trufbacken for farm.

Östersund Land Office on January 15, 1879 

Adolf Ström

Erik Nilsson permitted well, 

that Nils Jönsson’s share in Trufbacken i XE "i" ncludes in the 4 units of Tax Registered Land, 

which at the time considered to be of the Royal Government, 

but exhorting that then now were analyzed, 

that Trufbacken had never officially been the property of the Royal Government and Nils Jönsson cannot be considered to have exceeded his rights concerning the farm use 

and being denied of Erik Nilsson 

the remaining correctness by that in legal proceedings this Estate Inventory Report.  

On this occasion, Frånberg understood as uppskof XE "uppskof"  with legal proceedings 

so that to the inspectors continually listened to, 

but Erik Nilsson being denied uppskofvet XE "uppskofvet" , 

because according to his understanding hearing witnesses did not know impact on the lawsuits exit 

and tillkännagafs XE "tillkännagafs" 
 here up, that should be notified by the finish of the Court Session.

Judgment

Because according to what is now known, the question of when they came to the farms in Trufbacken during the time in the referenced summons had officially been of a taxable nature, and consequently the support for an indictment for the quoted reasons does not exist and every indictment is disapproved by the District Court.

From Offerdal District Court AI: 168

Brita Halvarsdotter
Table 76 (229)

Brita Halvarsdotter5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Brita Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Sep 21, 1814 
	
	Brita lived in Östersund as a widow.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1835
	
	

	S
	Erik Persson Hag 
	B
	July 22, 1811 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 12, 1883 
	Önet, Offerdal
	

	E1
	Brita Hag 
	B
	Sep 7, 1836 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 29, 1856 
	
	

	E2
	Anna Margareta Hag 
	B
	Jan 26, 1840 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 4, 1925
	Baker, North Dakota
	

	E3
	Carin Hag 
	B
	May 3, 1842 
	
	Carin emigrated on July 6, 1903.

	
	
	D
	About 1920 
	
	


Anna Margareta Hag was born on January 26, 1840.  Before Anna emigrated, she supported herself by baking and selling bread.  She lived in Kallkällan, Aspås Parish before she emigrated.

Her grandson, Nels Nelson, loaned me this photograph.

Photograph (229)

Contract

I {Jon Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Öhne} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to a homestead west of the Village of Öhne in the undersigned Parish and Municipality to farmer (Erik Persson of Öhne} and his wife {Brita Halvarsdotter} for their lifetime. 

This homestead is located east of the Hof farm and contains the land within the mentioned existing fences.

which farmer receive self process, 

The farmer receives the forest hay from the top cow pasture in Kläppdrolet, for that 2 Fogelmyren {Fogel Swamp}and Fogelmyrsicknan on the north side of the Church Road, for that 3 Fjädersecknan XE "Fjädersecknan" 
.

The farmer (Erik Persson} may use the forest and firewood for his essential needs but does not take the hitan XE "hitan"  before.  Bred hay that the farmer (Erik Persson} also receives may be used as pasture for their cattle on the farm pastureland 

but does not cause some damage then he holds pasture after luck.

Farmer Erik Persson and his wife agree to provide the following:  

· Day work of one week after midsummer, 4th haying week 1 and women 

· Cut 2 productive malings each year, 

· The farm owner called upon and 3 women’s days of work each year, 

· to this work holds farm owner cost policy under that days of work is provided.

The farmer promises to plow and fertilize 1/6 portion of a productive maling each year, and the farmer also promises that in the event any division should come about in the future, and the farm should end up on another farm owner’s property, he shall remove their house and field at the farmer’s own expense 

However, the farm owner shall allow the farmer to receive a farm cottage of just as good a composition as can be presently found after agreed upon.

The winning of defense letter or entering into the Deed Book is all at the farm buyers expense. 

The buyer shall take possession of this farm immediately at the next moving time or on the 1st of next May and this farm may be used during the lifetime of his wife and himself.

But after both of their deaths, the farm relapses to meld, now 

the ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Öhne without cost.  

We hereby attest that we are both satisfied with the preceding contract as certified with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Offerdahl and Öhne on April 20, 1841


Seller:
Jon Ol XE "Ol" ofsson (farm owner from Öhne)


Buyer:
Erik Persson (farmer from Öhne)

(230)
Witness: 
Nils Jonsson (farmer from Öhne)



Dr Anders Persson of Wästsjön

Purchase Agreement

I {Eric Persson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Halfvarsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my son-in-law (Olof Jonassson} and his wife {Karin Ersdotter}.

This transaction i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to taxable partitioned Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Öhne in the undersigned Parish and Municipality (located 1/10} consisting of 1/30 of a taxable acre 

The agreed upon purchase amount is 400 Riksdaler and the buyer shall provide Reserved Rights to my wife and I according to the contract instituted on this date.  The buyer shall also assume all responsibilities for this undivided farm.  

This purchase amount is paid with a promissory note in gold for which my heirs and I surrender all rights to this homestead that I now have, and deliver the deed to this buyer who shall immediately take possession and is hereby assured of eternal ownership and cultivation rights.  


Offerdal and Öhne on May 1, 1871 


Seller:
Eric Persson 



Brita Halfvarsdotter of Öhne

We attest our complete satisfaction with this Purchase Agreement to everyone, as acknowledged in Öhne on above date.  


Buyer:
Olof Jonasson 



Karin Ersdotter

(231)
Witness: 
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Åflo

Reserved Rights Contract

For this undivided farm, (1/10 portion) consisting of 1/30 of a taxable acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Öhne in the undersigned Parish and Municipality, that my wife and I bought on this date from Erik Persson and his wife {Brita Halfvarsdotter}, we agree to provide them with the following annual Reserved Rights from this undivided farm as calculated from and including this date:

1. A barrel of grain and 1/8 barrel of rye in heaped measure as good as that which is grown on running year, and the right to plant a barrel of potatoes in the farms fertilized and cultivated land.

2. The land that is called Landström XE "Landström"  field, and the hay from the land outside a fixed stone marker by a property line adjacent to Olof and Nils Jonssöner, and from there to the northwest to a fixed stone marker by the property line adjacent to Per Larssons contained within which Per Persson now has ownership rights to his farm fence, also every whole Klarmyran {Klar Swamp}(?), and 1 square ref östanför XE "östanför"  cellar.

3. The entrance hall in mansgärds XE "mansgärds"  building and the southern portion of the property building west of the farm for lodging, and access and usage of the other buildings as necessary, free firewood and heat, and tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses and a decent burial after death.

4. When the Reserved Rights recipient cannot use this land and hay making, the ownership rights go to the same to farm owner and this Reserved Rights contract is then increased with 1½ barrels of grain in heaped measure.  Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 sheep or goats and 2 of their offspring.  In addition, 10 lisspunds {200 pounds} of läng XE "läng" 
 hay each year.

5. From this day on, the Reserved Rights recipient shall have the right to pasture his cattle on the farm’s pasture together with the tenant.

6. With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights contract shall be reduced by/to half barrel of grain
, and feed and fodder for 2 sheep or goats.  As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, the Reserved Rights recipients (Erik Persson} and his wife {Brita Halfvarsdotter} have the right to request and receive a mortgage on this undivided farm without any additional hearings.  


Offerdahl and Öhne on May 1, 1871


Reserved Rights


Provider:
Olof Jonasson 



Karin Ersdotter

We attest our complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone.  

Acknowledged on the above date.


Reserved Rights


Recipient:
Erik Persson 



Brita Halfvarsdotter 

(231)
Witness: 
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Åflo 


Agnes Halvarsdotter
Table 77 (232)

Agnes Halvarsdotter5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Agnes Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Oct 20, 1816 
	
	Agnes lived in Bredbyn, Offerdal.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 12, 1843 
	
	

	S
	Olof Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Feb 29, 1816 
	
	Odaltorpare XE "Odaltorpare" 

	
	
	D
	Feb 22, 1888
	
	

	E1
	Kerstin Olofsdotter 
	B
	Feb 23, 1844 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 3, 1919
	
	

	E2
	Anna Olofsdotter 
	B
	Dec 29, 1847 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 5, 1937
	
	

	E3
	Agnes Olofsdotter 
	B
	Sep 21, 1851 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 8, 1932
	Sth XE "Sth" 
	

	E4
	Carin Olofsdotter 
	B
	Oct 10, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 17, 1938
	
	

	E5
	Märit Olofsdotter 
	B
	May 7, 1856 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 12, 1907
	Alsen
	

	E6
	Olof Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Feb 12, 1859
	
	Olof emigrated to America on April 21, 1884.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E7
	Brita Olofsdotter 
	B
	Nov 15, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 10, 1864
	
	


Contract

I {Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} sell a tenth of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bredbyn in Offerdal Parish to field soldier Olof Kläpp for an agreed upon purchase amount of five hundred (500) Riksdaler which shall be paid on May 1, 1845.  

The farm buyer is to take possession at that time.

As an annual property payment, the buyer must pay 1 lisspund {20 pounds} of butter to building place old farm’s tomten XE "tomten" , which stretches him to the lake road.

The forest haymaking in the area called Wåtmyra {Wåt Swamp} and golf hay and Lillwaln.  

The cleared fields after creek between Wätmyran {Wät Swamp} and Golf hay and the which the top tenth portion by these meadows shall broken up and cultivated on the other hand on ödra XE "ödra" 
 side of Wästby road for 

Olof Ersson’s homestead is divided after occurred before dividing the charter and the farmer may use and own all the buildings that are found at the present time on the old farm framework
Attested by us in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Bredbyn and Offerdahl on June 25, 1844


Seller:
Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bredbyn, Offerdahl 


Buyer:
Olof Kläpp of Bredbyn 

(233)
Witness: 
Nils Nilsson of Rehn 



Olof Johansson of Österulfsås


Vidimeras officio E.G. Weinberg

This purchase amount is paid in full to eliminate the debt.  


Offerdahl and Bredbyn on March 3, 1846  



Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bredbyn

(233)
Witness: 
J.  Bergman




Anders Eklund

I have received 125 Riksdaler from Olof Kläpp for breaking up the fields and he has paid this to me to eliminate the debt. 


Bredbyn on May 18, 1846



Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

(233)
Witness: 
Nils Forst of Bredbyn 



Mattias Persson of Landön

Photograph (233)

Anna Krantz born Olofsdotter




Nils Krantz 

born on December 29, 1847



 


born on August 22, 1844

The owner of this photograph is Annie Anderheim of Krokom/

It was hereby legally recited and found reasonable partly by 

Royal Court Judgment in this County on August 29, 1844 

from Bredbyn 

A Conditional Judgment was made for Olof Kläpp that on the farm now contained under Company Farm No. 2 in this Village, 

he, 

according to the taken over contract that he bought, 

he reduce and defends have the benefit of, 

for agreement that proportion paid cultivating, 

partly also excerpt of this Court Record Book for September 15, 1846, which stated that Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson at the same Court Session had admitted agreement
 with Olof Kläpp with the statement that it must be ordered that Olof Olofsson should relinquish the ownership of the farm in Bredbyns that Kläpp had purchased from Gabriel Olofsson, 

which beside farm up to now belonged to the farm, inherited after his father husband Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson.

But that portion afterwards during the trial encountered the conciliation that Kläpp, 

of that it he, among others, 

receive börde XE "börde"  shilling 500 Riksdaler öfwer XE "öfwer" 
 läfor XE "läfor"  farm to Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, 

which also bound him that, 

for that by Kläpp on the farm nedlagda XE "nedlagda"  in work to him the owner after that followed may give 18 Riksdaler S. M. as well as börde XE "börde"  summan XE "summan" 
 interest free.

With which association of the District Court also let depend, 

and all that can be obtained in the future stadsfästa XE "stadsfästa" 
.

In the, which now continuous Court Session in this place 

concurred the trial between the undersigned 

concerning ancestry rights to this Farm, farm property, etc. we have made the following cordial agreement:

I {Olof Kläpp} hereby approve Olof Olofssons summons assertion and in continuation thereof to him 

for börde XE "börde"  shilling of five hundred (500) Riksdaler 

which I now immediately receive from Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson to vacate this farm, 

is for I {Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} undertake me that for 

the Copper Mining Company 

Kläpp based on the farm, 

to pay him {Kläpp}on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session 

Eighteen (18) Rgr XE "Rgr"  Rg XE "Rg"  and bördes XE "bördes"  the sum interest free, 

and Kläpp has the ownership rights to the farm the required cottage, barn and the forage which can now be found on it.  

However, it is not to exceed 125 lisspunds {2,500 pounds}.  

Which the seller (Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} promises through special evidence to repay Kläpp the 125 Riksdaler that he paid to Gabriel Olofsson instead of breaking up fields.

Court costs make no difference between the parties, 

and reduces the trial hereby in its entirety, 

which is acknowledged with our names.


Alsens Court Session Place on September 15, 1846


Buyer:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Utgård


Departing 


Owner:
Olof Kläpp of Bredbyn 

(234)
Witness: 
Nils Gabrielsson of Bångåsen 



Simon Jonsson of Bärg

Photograph (235)

"Bäck-Erik-Kari"
Carin Olofsdotter
Born: 
October 22, 1853
Married: Eric Englund
Born: 
April 9, 1849
Edvin Simonsson of Krokom loaned me this photograph.

Photograph (235)

Kerstin Olofsdotter "kind hearted-Pe XE "Pe" -Kirsti” born on February 23, 1844.  
Anna Jonsson of Malmköping loaned me this photograph.

Purchase Agreement

I {Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to this undivided Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bredbyn consisting of 1 1/12 of an acre of this partitioned homestead corresponding to 1/10 portion to my son-in-law (Company Worker Nils Forss from Vaplan}.

The agreed upon purchase amount of 1,500 Riksdaler shall be paid in full on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  At that time final approval of this sale shall occur, and from that time the buyer shall be responsible for all the taxes and burdens accompanying this farm.  

The buyer shall also provide annual Reserved Rights to my wife and I according to the Special Stipulation agreement instituted on this date. 

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} surrender this homestead with all of the buildings, land, forests and cottages and deliver the deed to my son-in-law Nils Forss and his wife for their eternal ownership and cultivation rights

and at own
 expense enter into the Deed Book.  

We have signed this Purchase Agreement in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to additionally confirm the validity.


Offerdal and Bredbyn on November 16, 1881


Seller:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bredbyn


Buyer:
Nils Forss of Waplan 

(236)
Witness: 
Jon Simonsson of Westerberg 



Jon Jonsson of Westerberg

Reserved Rights Contract

I {________________} hereby release and sell my ownership rights to this partitioned farm contained under undivided Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bredbyn and consisting of 1 1/12 acres and corresponding to 1/10 portion, to my son-in-law (Nils Forss from Vaplan} for the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for the remaining lifetimes of both my wife and I: 

· Three (3) barrels of well cleaned grain 

· Five (5) barrels of potatoes all as good as that which can be grown on the farm each year.  

· Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 2 sheep or goats with their offspring.  

· The entrance hall in both downstairs and upper floor in Mangärds XE "Mangärds"  building for lodging

· Access and usage to all of the existing farm buildings as necessary 

· Firewood and heat for drying, milling and baking

· The tenant shall provide us with a ride to and from church and sick visits, when a horse is on the farm

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after our lives are over

These Reserved Rights are to be provided without change until both of our deaths.  

This transaction is hereby completed in Offerdal and Bredbyn on November 16, 1881


Reserved Rights 


 


Provider:
Nils Forss of Waplan


Reserved Rights 


Recipient:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bredbyn

(236)
Witness: 
Jon Simonsson of Vesterberg 



Jon Jonsson of Vesterberg

Anders Halvarsson
Table 78 (237)

Anders Halvarsson5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Anders Halvarsson 
	B
	Dec 13, 1818 
	
	Anders lived in Indalsmenningen, Vuku.  Anders was called there for "Beside-Anders", and the site that he lived on is called Jamtplassen to this day.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 3, 1840 
	
	

	S
	Ragnhild Olsdotter 
	B
	1815
	Trondheim
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 15, 1893
	
	

	E1
	Oline Andersdotter 
	B
	Nov 15, 1839 
	Stormoen
	

	
	
	D
	June 30, 1932
	
	

	E2
	Halvor Andersen 
	B
	Jan 15, 1841 
	Melbyvald
	I think there were some children in this marriage.

	
	
	D
	 
	
	

	E3
	Berith Andersdotter 
	B
	July 18, 1843 
	Östgårdsvald
	

	
	
	D
	?
	
	

	E4
	Olaus Andersen 
	B
	June 9, 1845 
	Melbyvald
	

	
	
	D
	?
	
	

	E5
	Ragnhild Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 2, 1849 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 24, 1852
	
	

	E6
	Halvor Andersen 
	B
	Mar 31, 1852 
	Melbyvald
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 1, 1919
	Ösd
	

	E7
	Anneus Andersen 
	B
	Nov 19, 1854 
	Melbyvald
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 16, 1918
	
	

	E8
	Ragnhild Andersdotter 
	B
	July 10, 1857 
	Indalsmenningen
	

	
	
	D
	?
	
	


One spring evening when Jamt-Anders was sick in bed, and some neighbors came and offered to help them with spring work.  His wife said no thanks, for they were poor with food to offer them, which was a must for her.  But they said that they would take them food.  The next day they again offered them food.

She had sat up the whole night and dried grain on mine stones, and peeled them.  To matdags XE "matdags" 
 she had boiled grain and goat milk, and she also put in potatoes, which were precious to them.  They had very few of them, and each potato was an article of great value.

Taken from Verdals (Norway) Historielags Skrifter XE "Skrifter"  5 Årsbok 1980 {Verdal’s History Writings 5 Year Book}

Photograph (237)

Kåre Kvelstad points to the hole that Jamt-Anders lived in for the first year.  Then he built a house in Fagerlien.

Photograph (238)

Anders Halvarsson lived on this farm his entire life.  The farm is called Fagerlien.
The owner of the photograph is Jenny Nilsen of Åsen, Norway.

Photograph (238)

Kåre Kvelstad was a crofter on this estate, seen here today with new houses.

Anders Halvarsson lived in Fagerlien, Allmenningsåsen in Verdal, Norway and was from Äsingen, Kall.  He was the son of Halvar Andersson and his wife Brita Essing.  He moved with his parents and siblings to Lien in Offerdal in 1823, but after some time in Offerdal he moved to Verdal, Norway and settled there.  Anders was born on December 13, 1818 in Äsingen, also called Sandnäset, and he married Ragnhild Olsdotter who was born in 1815 in Trondheim.  

In 1865, Anders had 2 cows and 8 sheep, and one-fourth (¼) barrel of seed, and 2 barrels of potatoes.  In 1875, he had 2 oxen, 2 cows, 6 sheep and 4 goats, ½ barrel of seed and 4 barrels of potatoes.

That it was balneal times shows Jamt-Anders that saw him able to break up land in Nordsluttningen XE "Nordsluttningen"  in Fagerlien.  He came as a migrant down from the mountains with a goat in harness, and used it to break up the topsoil, which some later called Pagerlien.  He had not completely finished the house, so when winter came he dug down into the dirt and lived in a dirt cellar.  He clad it with pine needles, both inside and out.  There he lived with his goat until he had broken a clearing and built a house.  Then he lejde XE "lejde" 
 his goat away to his neighbor and took his wandering staff and went east again.

When summer came he eats, and he had a woman with him and a little girl that he had gotten in Sweden, while he built up a home for them.  It probably came as a hard stroke, that he came to realize, that he had become an thrown out from there.  His cottage later was moved to Grönningen, where it became the first mountain cottage by the lake.

It was bank chef Ausen of Levanger who fixed it up after it was moved there.  After more generations with "höggubbar XE "höggubbar" 
" in the cottage, it still stands there, with a memory of a time with additional big differences on high and lied.  

What became of Jamt-Anders and his family is a little uncertain, but he supported himself later with a few different jobs in Inndalen.

The girl that moved from Sweden later was married to Mortinus Granheim, but they separated, something that was very unusual for those times.  The girl Oline was good at helping people with ailments.  She ended up mysterious word in a cup of schnapps, some of which damaged her.  Then she became well again.

Göran Halvarsson
Table 79 (240)

Göran Halvarsson5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D7
	Göran Halvarsson 
	B
	Apr 12, 1821 
	
	Göran was a farmer in Rismon, Offerdal

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 15, 1851 
	
	

	S
	Carin Andersdotter 
	B
	Oct 11, 1832 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 19, 1925
	
	

	E1
	Brita Göransdotter 
	B
	Oct 31, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 30, 1885
	
	


Photograph (240)

Carin Andersdotter was born in 1832 and lived in this cottage.  She was usually called “Jörn-Kari” and in her older days she was a widow and Reserved Rights recipient in Rismon.

I have borrowed this photograph from Olof Andersson in Längan, who now uses this cottage during his leisure time, mostly in the summer.  Olof remembers Jörn-Kari well.

Märita and Carin Andersdöttrar received a deed from her parents Anders Andersson and Lisbet Jonasdotter on their ½ of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of  Rismon consisting of 2 acres.

They received the title deed for providing Reserved Rights benefits to their parents.  

The parents received a mortgage as security for receiving their Reserved Rights in the Royal Court Judgment of November 9, 1844.

The undersigned Reserved Rights recipient is to receive the following annual Reserved Rights benefits which contents are as written above by the undersigned in the Purchase Agreement of April 1853: 

· Two (2) barrels of grain from the harvest each year, expose 

· 1½ barrel of potatoes in the tenants cultivated land 

· for haymaking may use hay land except dust and mill myran { Swamp} down to lake a detached piece in Bergs best living place choice with 2 loads fertilizer each year and a little land in eastern Lungret and 

· One (1) maling south of field that my father maintained with a little cropland below, 

· 16 lisspunds {320 pounds} of hay from new best living place choice 

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, and 4 sheep or goats and 2 of their offspring.

· The entrance hall in the new cottage for lodging 

· west small barn shelter

· Access and usage of the cellar, granary and other buildings as necessary  

· finally provide forest for necessary timber, 

· Necessary employment in the Copper Mining Company & Sawmill

· Firewood and heat

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands  

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A decent Christian burial after death

With the death of either of us, these Reserved Rights are reduced in half. 

attested vördsamt XE "vördsamt"  District Court mortgage here as the undersigned farm owner admits.


Offerdal on November 23, 1867 



Märitha Andersdotter and her 



Husband Nils Ersson of Rismon 



Carin Andersdotter and her 



Husband Göran Halfvarsson of Rismon 


Reserved Rights


Recipient:
Anders Andersson and his



Wife {Lisbeth Jonasdotter of Rismon}  

(241)
Witness: 
Olof Nilsson 



Jon Nilsson of Enarsvedjan
Purchase Agreement

I {Göran Halfvarsson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Karin Andersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to our son-in-law (Jon Nilsson} and his wife {Brita Göransdotter}.

This Purchase Agreement i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to taxable partitioned Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rismon in the undersigned Parish and Municipality consisting of one-sixth (1/6th) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land or 1 acre 

The agreed upon purchase price of two thousand six hundred (2,600) Riksdaler is to be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session, when the buyer shall receive the farm.  

The buyer shall make the Special Stipulation benefit that we, 

according to the contract established on this date 

shall provide us one-half (½), 

also the Reserved Rights each year 

father {_______________}

during his lifetime from this portion of a farm his conditions according to the contract, 

and that put him under the jurisdiction of the forest contract of August 2, 1855 

and from the 1st of next May in 1871.

We hereby surrender our share of this farm including buildings, land and cottages, and our share of the ownership rights to household goods, saw, mill, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and deliver the deed to the buyer for his eternal ownership and cultivation rights.

I shall also pay the cost of entry into the Deed Book.

We have signed this Purchase Agreement in our own handwriting in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to additionally confirm the validity of this.


Offerdal on April 19, 1880


Seller:
Göran Halfvarsson 



Karin Andersdotter of Rismon 


Buyer:
Jon Nilsson 



Brita Göransdotter Rismon

(242)
Witness: 
Olof Nilsson of Enarsvedjan 



Olof Persson of Rismon

Kerstin Halvarsdotter
Table 80 (242)

Kerstin Halvarsdotter5, Brita Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2,, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D8
	Kerstin Halvarsdotter 
	B
	Sep 10, 1823 
	
	Kerstin lived in Trången, Offerdal.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 28, 1853
	
	

	S 
	Olof Andersson 
	B
	Jan 10, 1823 
	
	Olof was a farmer.

	
	
	D
	June 3, 1898 
	
	

	E1
	Anna Olofsdotter 
	B
	July 24, 1853
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 4, 1905
	
	

	E2
	Halvar Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Feb 19, 1855
	
	His nickname was "Lill-Halvar" (Little Halvar).

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Kerstin Olofsdotter 
	B
	May 27, 1866 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 20, 1922
	
	

	E4
	Brita Olofsdotter 
	B
	May 27, 1866 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 22, 1926
	
	


Olof Andersson bought his father’s farm in the following agreement.

Purchase Agreement

I, {Anders Andersson}, am now 72 years old and in poor health and my oldest son (Anders} is also sickly and unable to operate this Company Farm. 

Therefore, I hereby transfer my ownership rights to this Royal Government Homestead farm on Forss and Fiskvikens leased property in Offerdahl Parish consisting of 1½ acres to my second son (Olof Andersson} of legal age, and to my underage oldest daughter {Karin Andersson through custodian farmer Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bångåsen} for a left behind keep assessment priced purchase amount of six hundred sixty six (666) Riksdaler 32 Species and for the following benefits:  

ökeskatt XE "ökeskatt" 
 therein engaged, that shall be received by him on the 18th of next May with all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to this farm, 

1. My wife {Anna Olofsdotter} and I {Anders Andersson} shall annually have the benefit of Reserved Rights from this farm for our remaining lifetimes in accordance with the terms and conditions in the contract of this date that we accepted for ourselves.  

2. With the death of either of us, my sickly son (Anders} shall take over and annually have the benefit of one-fourth of the Reserved Rights benefits from the farm.  After the death of the surviving spouse, another one-fourth is retired.  Consequently, one-half of these same Reserved Rights shall remain for the remainder of his (Anders} lifetime.  For the fulfillment of these conditions, we now releases ourselves from all claims on the purchase amount.

3. The purchase amount that is due from the homestead buyers will be distributed equally between all my children (except son Anders): Olof, Lars, Sven, Halfvar, and daughters Karin and Anna.  These children shall be responsible for their taxes and burdens, by which I present installment.

Both of us are satisfied with this contract.  The prospective buyer the same and not approve before the Royal Court Judgment condition to this lived on changed gained.


Offerdahl and Trången on September 27, 1848 


Seller:
Anders Andersson 


Buyer:
Olof Andersson (of legal age) and 



Karin Andersdotter (through guardian Eric Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of




Bångåsen) 

(243)
Witness: 
Nils Gabrielsson of Bångåsen, 



Olof Abrahamsson of Kaxås


We attest that we are both satisfied with this contract.  

Certified in Trången on September 27, 1848.  



Anders Andersson (of legal age)  



Gunnar Halfvarsson of Lien 



(Guardian for Lars, Sven and Halfvar Anderssöner)  


Witnessed as above

Photograph (243)

Kerstin Halfvarsdotter {D8} with husband Olof and twin girls Kerstin and Brita born on May 27, 1866.
Aina Åhlström has contributed this photograph.

Reserved Rights Contract

Since I {Anders Andersson} am elderly and infirm now ornär XE "ornär"  release and sell my ownership rights to this Royal Government Homestead containing cropland and Fiskviken tenant property consisting of 1 1/3 acres in Trången to some of my children in exchange for the following annual Reserved Rights to my wife {Anna Olofsdotter} and I (Anders Andersson} for the remainder of both of our lifetimes:  

· Two (2) tunnör
 of clean and well cleaned grain, as good as that which is grown on the farm, 

· Two (2) malings of grain land, each maling 42 alnars {84 feet} square, 

· 2 kappers of rye from own seed 

· reduce ½ barrel of land pears.

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cows and 6 sheep or goats and 2 of their offspring.

· To cultivated land west of the 2 malings the east of twärhagen XE "twärhagen" 
 with Kallbacken 

· and to manor house cultivated land of 10 malings outside of this field.  

· A summer barn covered the same as the fence, to the pasture with there of around lying Cleared fields, 

· 30 lisspunds {600 pounds} of pasture hay.  

When they are not able to manage this land nyttningen XE "nyttningen" , it is to be given over to the same Farm buyer, and afterwards their Reserved Rights shall be increased by:

· 2 sheep or goats, and 2 of their offspring 

· grain seeding is reduced not before either  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced to one-half of the original amount.

· The entrance hall and the small attic above in the new cottage for lodging

· Access and usage of the small cottage, cellar, granary, barn and all other buildings as necessary  

· Chop wood and bring it to the home 

· For all needs and all the errands, is against giving this mare which can now be found 

· A boat

· A field harrow 

· An iron plow

· Pails in the barn

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· A decent Christian burial after death

Trången and Offerdahl on September 27, 1848

I {Anders Andersson the older} since my oldest son (Anders Andersson the younger} is in poor health and does not jan XE "jan"  take over the farm that each hereby for him provide that after the death of either my wife {Anna Olofsdotter} or myself, he shall have the benefit of one-fourth of the annual Reserved Rights benefits contained in this agreement.  With the death of the other spouse, he shall receive an additional one-fourth portion so that ultimately a total of one-half of the annual Reserved Rights shall remain for his entire lifetime.  


Trången on above date

(244)
Seller:
Anders Andersson 

The undersigned buyers are bound to fulfill this Reserved Rights contract exactly as written.


Buyer:
Olof Andersson 



Carin Andersdotter (through guardian Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of





           Bångåsen)


Witness: 
Nils Gabrielsson of Bångåsen 



Olof Abrahamsson of Kaxås 

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, I {Anders Andersson the older} shall have the right to request and receive a mortgage on this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fiskviken without any additional hearings.  


Offerdal and Trången on December 21, 1860 



Olof Andersson 



Lars Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Trången 




married to Carin Andersdotter.  

(245)
Witness: 
Jacob Danielsson of Trången  



G. Nyfeldt

Reserved Rights Contract

I {Olof Andersson} hereby knowingly sell this farm to my brother (Anders Andersson of Trången} for a mutually agreeable purchase amount of seven hundred (700) Riksdaler, which is now paid in cash, and I shall also receive the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for the remainder of my lifetime: 

· nenligen XE "nenligen" , 

· cultivated land of land 3 square refwar by nearby stream southeast of cellar 

· cultivated land for hay of about 8 square reftar in Sickna XE "Sickna" (?) southeast of wicket
· however he receives for his needs the fenced enclosure that land that is located between field and hay cultivation land and that after may be used for needs, and to out hay my share in 

· western fenced enclosure called, and in the ground with the river above the mountain called beside that load meadow east from there 

· and the homestead tenant shall for our needs fertilize a by the Reserved Rights man himself broken up square ref land which and all necessary driving, 

· necessary lodging 

· that first 10 years of this land it shall on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session the buyer, 

· but after ten (10)  years, the Reserved Rights are to be increased by (12) foot of well cleaned grain as good as any that is grown on the farm each year. 

· A (11) foot rye.

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, 4 sheep or goats and 2 of their offspring.  

· A barn with an attic above for lodging

· Access and usage of all the other buildings as necessary

· Firewood and heat 

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A decent Christian burial after death

For this Reserved Rights contract is included that on the same portion of a farm:  

2/3 of a taxable acre for him (Anders Andersson} shall provide Reserved Rights benefits according to the contract of September 27, 1848 

that each hereby to all power and the work killed and komme XE "komme" 
 this new contract to apply to jurisdiction 

As security I {Anders Andersson the younger} also give him (Olof Andersson} the right to request and receive a mortgage on this portion of a farm in Trången without any additional hearings.

It is hereby agreed upon and confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Offerdal and Trången on October 8, 1865


Seller and



Farm owner:
Olof Andersson of Trången


Buyer and Reserved
 


Rights provider:
Anders Andersson (the younger) of Trången

(246)
Witness: 
Göran Nilsson of Trången 



Johan Fredrik Jonsson of Trången

Contract

I {Olof Andersson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Kjerstin Halfvarsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my brother {Sven Andersson of the same Village}.

This contract is for the undivided farm consisting of a tenth of land that is now worked, with ownership rights to the taxable partitioned Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fiskviken in Offerdal Parish. 

The mutually agreeable purchase amount of eight hundred (800) Riksdaler is to be completely paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  

The farmer receives permission to build not closer than about one hundred (100) alnars {200 feet} east of the Copper Mining Company property.

The farm buyer shall receive eternal possession and enjoyment of the ownership rights and he shall now have the benefit of the Eng down on the old farm that I had been the owner of, and also my share of the existing stable there.

However, he does not need to provide any additional work.

The farmer shall pay ten (10) Riksdaler to the homestead tenant in the month of February every year as a burden for this farm.

It is hereby agreed upon and this transaction is confirmed with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses and attended.


Offerdahl and Fiskviken on December 29, 1869


Seller: 
Olof Andersson of Fiskviken 


Buyer: 
Sven Andersson of Trången

(246)
Witness: 
Jonas Andersson of Offerdal and Simontorp



Nils Sannberg of Finnvattnet

Purchase Contract

I {Olof Andersson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Kjerstin Halfvarsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to our son-in-law (Olof Andersson of this Village} and to (Matts Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Trången) for an agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler.

This Purchase Contract is for my ownership rights to the taxable partitioned Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fiskviken (also called Trången) in this Parish and Municipality, consisting of 1/9th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.

however with the Special Stipulation from thereof the previously partitioned tenth, ½ of this each 

The buyer shall provide Reserved Rights to my wife and I for our remaining lifetimes in accordance with the terms of the contract established on this date and shall also be responsible for providing Reserved Rights to elementary school teacher Anders Andersson under this same contract.  

The buyer now has all of the rights and responsibilities contained in the contract of April 28th of last year on the sold forest.  The purchase amount is calculated from this date.  

The ownership rights also include the buyer’s share in the saw, mill house, land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, for his and his heirs eternal ownership and cultivation rights and with that enter into the Deed Book.  

Agreement is hereby arrive at, and this transaction is confirmed and acknowledged with our signatures.  


Offerdal and Trången the May 2, 1887


Seller:
Olof Andersson 



Kjerstin Halfvarsdotter


Buyer:
Mattias Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Trången 



Olof Andersson


Testified 
Jonas Lycke XE "Lycke"  of Rännön 

(247)

Måns Nilsson of Dahl

On December 21, 1861 Olof Andersson was given a Title Deed from the District Court on two-thirds of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fiskviken that he had bought from his parents, Anders Andersson and Anna Olofsdotter, on September 28, 1848.

This document was now put into the Deed Book for 1/9th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fiskviken or Trången, Offerdals Parish.

According to the contract of May 2, 1887, half of it was purchased by Mattias Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and the other half was purchased by Olof Andersson.

The purchase amount was 2,000 Riksdaler and also for providing food in the Reserved Rights benefits purchased by the latter’s (Olof Andersson} in-law parents (Olof Andersson and Kjerstin Halfvarsdotter} 

of which a note should be made on this acquired contract and particular evidence be made. 

Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson
Table 81 (248)

Jonas Olofsson5, Catarina Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Jonas Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Nov 10, 1811
	
	Jonas lived in Baksjönäset  , Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 14, 1845 
	
	

	S
	Kerstin Mårtensdotter 
	B
	Sep 3, 1815 
	Gråsjön
	

	
	
	D
	July 2, 1881
	
	

	E1
	Olof Jonasson 
	B
	Feb 13, 1846 
	Kallberg
	Olof emigrated to America on May 4, 1880.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Mårten Jonasson 
	B
	Dec 2, 1847
	
	Mårten emigrated to America on April 3, 1871.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Katarina Jonasdotter 
	B
	Dec 6, 1849 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 1, 1931
	
	

	E4
	Margareta Jonasdotter 
	B
	Feb 26, 1852 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 20, 1874 
	consumption
	

	E5
	Gudfast Jonasson 
	B
	Sep 5, 1854
	
	Gudfast emigrated to America on April 13, 1873.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Kristina Jonasdotter 
	B
	Feb 13, 1857 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1893
	Vera, Norway
	

	E7
	Karin Jonasdotter 
	B
	Mar 11, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 8, 1875
	
	


Purchase Agreement

I {Hans Andersen Falstad} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Martha Christina Olufsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmer (Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of this Village},

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Baksjönäset, Kall Parish, Jemtland Southern Judicial District consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of a taxable acre.

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand two hundred (1,200) Riksdaler is to be paid in full on the 1st of next April at the next Court Session.

The buyer then receives the farm with all of the buildings, land, forests, fields, crops, Eng, our share of the ownership rights to the saw and mill, and everything that now belongs to the farm or that can be legally obtained in the future.

Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson his wife, children, and heirs legally purchased this farm and consequently shall have eternal possession, ownership and occupancy rights with all of the taxes and burdens and rights that accompany this.  

It is arrived at agreement and signed in the presence of the two undersigned witnesses.  


Melen on February 22, 1872


Seller: 
Hans Andersen Falstad 



Martha Christina Olufsdotter


Buyer: 
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson



Christina Mårtensdotter of Baksjönäs

(248)
Witness:
O. W.  Widegren



M.  Lindgren

Purchase Agreement

I {Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Kerstin Månsdotters
} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to our son-in-law (Hans Nikolaus Olsson} and his wife {Katarina Jonsdotter in Backsjönäset}.

This Purchase Agreement i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Backsjönäset, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jämtland County consisting of 2/3 of an acre.

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand three hundred (1,300) Riksdaler is to be paid as follows:

The buyer pays to Mikael of Sandviken in Norway eight hundred (800) Riksdaler on May 1st of this year and the remaining five hundred (500) Riksdaler is paid to the seller (_______________?} through this specific promissory note, and hereby eliminated.  

I reserve the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for my wife and I for both of our remaining lifetimes:

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, 3 goats or sheep and their offspring.

· 1 maling crop of well fertilized plowed land annually and to future plain Grunsundmyran came furnished.  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced in half.  

I wish to reserve for myself that on outlying land enclosure and cultivate a fence that does not go beyond 4 malings.  

I hereby surrender this homestead with all of the rights and responsibilities to all of the buildings, land, houses, forests, cottages and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.  

The farm buyer shall take possession on the 1st of next May.  As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, the seller (_______________} shall receive the right to receive a mortgage on this farm.  

This transaction is hereby agreed upon with our own handwritten signatures.  


Backsjönäset on April 4, 1873


Seller:
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Kerstin Mårtensdotter 


Buyer:
Hans Nikolaus Olsen 



Katharina Jonasdotter

(249)
Witness: 
Eric Alexandersson of Westgärd 



J. L. Sunding of Melen

The owner of this photograph is Karl Otto Andersson of Baksjönäset.

Photograph (250)

Olof Pålsson purchased this farm from Kerstin Märtensdotter.  She received Reserved Rights benefits from this sale and lived there the rest of her life.

I {Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Cherstin Mårtensdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my son (Olof Johansson}. 

This Purchase Agreement i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Baksjönäset, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, and Jemtland County consisting of 2/3 of a taxable acre.

The purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler shall be paid through a promissory note or specific contract and thereby eliminated.  

In addition, provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for both of our remaining lifetimes: 

· One cow and 3 goats or sheep with their offspring and feed and fodder in winter as well as summer, 

· 1 maling of well cultivated land and crop by the tenant, 

· 1 potato land by boat house moves from future and meadow from Ström between the lakes to the large fields and forest haymaking Tustangmyran {Tustang Swamp} and Lokmyran {Lok Swamp}, Forbrämyran {Forbrä Swamp}.  öfstra XE "öfstra"  Grundsandmyran {Grundsand Swamp} and plain by Esinrbäcken who by the tenant ta XE "ta" kes to the farm.  

· The west cottage and the barn with attic above is reserved and for lodging

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands

· Room for future cattle in the barn, 

· Access and usage of the other buildings as necessary 

· A Christian burial after death

The farm buyer shall take possession on the 1st of next May of this year including all rights and responsibilities, house, land, forest, buildings and cottages and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, the seller shall receive the right to a mortgage on this farm.  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced in half.

This transaction is completed and agreed upon with our own handwritten signature.  

Backsjönäset on April 4, 1873


Seller:
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Cherstin Mårtensdotter


Buyer:
Olof Jonasson 

(251)
Witness: 
Erik Alexandersson of Vestgård 



J. L. A. Lundin of Mälen

According to Karl Otto Andersson, who now lives on this farm, it is called Bustangmyran {Bustang Swamp} and not Tustangmyran {Tustang Swamp}.

From Undersåker District Court A:II 45

I {__________} hereby knowingly release and sell my entire ownership rights to the Royal Court Judgment on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Backsjönäset, Kall Parish, Undersäker Municipality, Jemtland County consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of an acre to (_________________}.

The agreed upon purchase amount of 4,000 Riksdaler and the remainder for the following conditions:

The Purchase Agreement is binding upon the seller (_______________?} from and including this date, is submitted Royal Court Judgment shall examine, 

which for the buyer is solely responsible

under assumption by the Royal Court Judgment 

within 3 months hereafter therein document established.  

The seller shall give the farm free from any other mortgages other than the oversees forest work rights according to the contract of April 4, 1873.  

That farm annual of Royal Court Judgment 

the buyer on March 14, 1889.  

That purchase amount paid by approval and afterwards I {?__________}, the seller, properly confirm that the farm is free from other than the mentioned mortgage, 

partly also that I debt all farm, legal taxes and burdens for that gångna XE "gångna" 
 years and to the buyer left required Purchase Agreement.  

Two copies of this deed are instituted and acknowledged by us the undersigned.


Backsjönäset on September 2, 1888



Olof Paulsson 

(252)
Witness:
Adolf Suwe 



Per Gunnarsson of Sandnäset

On January 22, 1901 representative Citizen Abraham Staaff on behalf of the Royal Court Judgment, 

by reason of which it now came before written commission take into custody, 

that the mortgage from this District Court of April 4 ,1877, § 5, document 

Olof Pålsson and his wife {Christina Jonsdotter} then possessing

taxable Company Farm No. 1 in Backsjönäset, Kall Parish consisting of 2/3 of an acre shall

the widow {Kerstin Mårtensdotter} 

as security for receiving from her through the contract of December 28, 1876, 

guaranteed Reserved Rights benefits, 

know was dead, 

for which purpose now came before properly confirmed excerpt of District Court mortgage the Recorded Minutes for affected on April 4, 1877 

the introduced contract of December 28, 1876.  

Also came before partly one of this District Court of October 2, 1889 for Royal Court Judgment was put into the Deed Book 

evidence on 2/3 acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Backsjönäset that was purchased on September 2, 1888 from Olof Pålsson.  

A partial excerpt of the mortgage from District Court Recorded Minutes of the Autumn Court Session on September 28, 1898, 

§ 50, from which is taken a certificate that now states that Kerstin Mårtensdotter of Backsjönäset died on July 2, 1881 each hereby certified on request.


Kall on March 10, 1890 



Gunnar Lilliesköld Municipal

Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson
Table 82 (253)

Gunnar Olofsson5, Catarina Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Gunnar Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Apr 7, 1815 
	
	Gunnar lived in Baksjönäset and emigrated to America with his family on 

March 22, 1869.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 24, 1839 
	
	

	S
	Annika Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 24, 1815 
	Kolåsen 
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Catarina Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	Oct 25, 1840
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anders Gunnarsson 
	B
	Feb 13, 1843
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Ingeborg Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	July 9, 1845
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Olof Gunnarsson 
	B
	Sep 29, 1847 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 26, 1855
	
	

	E5
	Ursila Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	May 17, 1851
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Johan Gustaf Gunnarsson 
	B
	Mar 8, 1854
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson had received the trust to be custodian to three parties, which he regarded as forcing him to resign a, and he filed an application for this.

Respectful Application

I {Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} on the one hand attest gratitude for the trust to have become honored with three special guardianships.

On the other hand, I thoroughly and humbly understand that the seller thereof, the owner of the Company Farm (Olof Bergströms of Huså} as the executor of the estate for his children, and for which I suggest to my buyer the Hämmans buyer Gunnar Persson of Sandnäset.


Myckelgård on October 17, 1849

(253)

Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Baksjönäset  

After the Court Judgment, Gunnar Persson was appointed custodian for Olof Bergström’s children, and with that is to be responsible for their rights and responsibilities.

Called by taxable farm owner Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of the Village of Backsjönäset in Kall Parish 

and assist by ledamöterna XE "ledamöterna"  in Kall Parish land 

Partition Man Christian Ersson of Konäs and Lars Kristensson of Berge 

intelde XE "intelde" 
 him undersigned to Estate Inventory Farm place 

that this Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson sold to tailor Pehr Eriksson of Kolåsen for an agreed upon purchase amount of seven hundred fifty (750) Riksdaler.  

The buyer shall pay the purchase amount on May 1, 1864.

The farm is located on the north side of Baksjön and the property lines are as follows:
· on the west side from a hay barn down by the lake behave 

· a little land contained within against Jonas Salomonsson 100 foot 

· from there behave a useless mountain 50 feet

· from there a kned XE "kned"  to residues in right angle against Jonas Salomonsson’s summer mountain pasture barn, 

· from there a property line marker is fixed 80 foot

· from there behave to the same Bowals outer edge 425 feet

· from there the property line goes east 520 feet, making up the northern property line

· from there the property line goes south 425 feet making up the eastern property line 

· from there the property line goes west to the western corner up with mountain 520 feet.  

· Pon downstairs side of Berg Parish goes difference from fields eastern edge down to lake.

The farm shall have the rights does not smaller free forest usage for the farm’s needs and they can demand pasture for their cattle on the farm, and also the following forest haymaking:  

· Småriksmyrorna {Smårik XE "Smårik"  swamp}

· Kalftjerns Ställerna {Kalftjerns Place} 
· a portion in larger Rikmyren {Rik Swamp}

· Liorna

· Hökbergslåtten

If this does not exceed 15 loads of fallow field forest hay each year, the farmer shall have complementary rights to the farm owner’s forest haymaking.

The farmer also has the rights to free grinding on the farm owner’s mill, sawing on the farm saw, the right to leaf covered hay above the forest haymaking, and the right to expand the small forest haymaking through the clearing.

There also regards the inspectors that in proportion against Farm tax farm buyer should as a property payment for farm house 

annually start to pay five (5) Riksdaler at tax time after two years of tax freedom from the buyer.  

It is hereby transacted, agreed upon, and certified.  


Sundet on March 11, 1864 


Seller:
Erik Persson of Sundet 



Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Baksjönäset 


Buyer:
Per Ersson

(254)
Witness: 
Christen Mårtensson of Sellsved 



Erik Persson of Sundet 

Recorded Minutes were entered on October 10, 1868 concerning an auction that was held in Baksjönäset on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Baksjönäset consisting of 2/3 of a taxable acre and belonging to Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, who was present at the auction.  

Afterwards, through Proclamation this farm becomes legally proclaimed, was open auction through uppslag XE "uppslag" , where after many other bids, finally Hans Falstad of Saw, Kall Parish closed the bidding by giving the highest bid of one thousand two hundred three Riksdaler and 50 Species (1,203.50), which was concluded with the auction gavel.  

Consequently, this property and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future shall be given over to Hans Falstad.  The buyer shall pay the entire purchase amount in cash on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.


Kall and Baksjönäset on above date


Auctioneer:
Jakob Persson of Back


Seller:
Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Baksjönäset  


Buyer:
Hans Falstad 

(254)
Witness: 
N.M.H.  Sunding 



C. M. Sunding

Photograph (255)

Häbre XE "Häbre"  and Granary, which stood on the farm there Anders Larsson, Table 89, Häbre't was moved in 1962 as an addition to Eivind Frölich’s private cottage in Anjan.  Photograph taken by Arthur Asplund of Baksjönäset.

Photograph (255)

Ursilla Olofsdotter and Henrik Persson lived on this farm, and later it came to be called Ward‑Farm.  

On the wall in one of the rooms is Henrik Persson's name, and it also has a picture painted with a mountain motiv XE "motiv" 
 and three ships.
Ursilla Olofsdotter
Table 83 (256)

Ursilla Olofsdotter5, Catarina Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Ursilla Olofsdotter 
	B
	July 8, 1818
	
	Ursilla lived in Baksjönäset.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 10, 1848
	
	

	S
	Henrik Pedersen 
	B
	Apr 2, 1813 
	Meråker
	There were no children in this marriage.

	
	
	D
	Nov 22, 1901
	
	


There are a entire portion mentioned of this couple in my previous Book "Gränssläkten from Skalstugan", there Henrik enters the family as a relative, and Ursilla is married.  Written on pages 49-52 and Table 231 from that book.

I found a written mutual testament that I will reproduce here below:

January 29, 1902

Inspires Municipal stämmoord XE "stämmoord"  föranden XE "föranden" 
 Erik Larsson of Västgård, with mentioned that does not at least Henrik Persson of Backsjönäset and also his wife {Ursila Olofsdotter} died in bevakningsändamål XE "bevakningsändamål" 
 a testament written in his head and witnessed by copy, which now contains the following:

Mutual testament:  The undersigned married couple attest harmed wet greatly desire that the one of us that outlives the second shall oinega XE "oinega"  and tell that in our live is found, loose as well as fixed, by either of our deaths, 

After both of our deaths, the property that is left after our deaths shall go to the current farmer in Kall and Ytterkonäs Hans (Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Rönning} and his wife {Katarina Jonasdotter}.  

We provide this mutual testament with free will and sound minds as certified in the presence of the undersigned witnesses. 


Kall and Backsjönäset on May 24 1894



Henrik Persson



Ursila Olofsdotter

(256)
Witness:
0.  Lindgren of Lillnäset



Victor Widegren of Backsjönäset  

On February 5, 1895 at the Court Session in Undersåker District Court, became farmer Olof Erik Lindgren of Lillnäset and Gränsridaren

Oskar Viktor Widegren of Backsjönäset continually listened to this testimony, therewith they told, in manner Record of Court Judgments under the above 1/5 indicated, certified on behalf of this District Court:



Carl Rosenberg

On September 25, 1900 at the next Court Session in Undersäker District Court, 

by reason of this contract, was requested  to put into the Deed Book 

for Henrik Persson 

a homestead partitioned from 2/9th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land  from Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Backsjönäset, 

but by the finish of the Court Session on November 7, 1900 was attested application by reason, the record indicated dormant, certified on behalf of this District Court: 



Carl Rosenberg

After Municipal resandet XE "resandet" 
 of this after Ursila Olofsdotter of Backsjönäset.  

The balance of 245.87 Riksdaler, on October 9, 1897 after the wife {Ursila Olofsdotter} of Henrik Persson of Backsjönäset, 

who survived by such as the executor of the estate 

her husband and a balance in property therein calculated property 

received a taxable value in the exact amount of 245 Riksdaler and 87 Species.

Photograph (257)

Gunnar Persson
Table 84 (258)

Gunnar Persson5, Per Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Gunnar Persson 
	B
	June 23, 1822
	
	Gunnar was a farmer in Sandnäset, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 27, 1848 
	
	

	S
	Karin Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 8, 1826 
	Kolåsen
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 20, 1913
	
	

	E1
	Per Gunnarsson 
	B
	Mar 5, 1849 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 9, 1940
	
	

	E2
	Anders Gunnarsson 
	B
	Aug 6, 1851 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 9, 1944
	
	

	E3
	Brita Gunnarsdotter 
	B
	Apr 23, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 14, 1895
	
	

	E4
	Gunnar Gunnarsson 
	B
	Feb 7, 1857 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 24, 1936
	
	

	E5
	Ingeborg Gunnarsdotter
	B
	June 27, 1862
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 5, 1863
	
	


Photograph (258)

From left is Gunnar Gunnarsson born in 1895 and his father Gunnar Gunnarsson born in 1857 and his wife Berit Marta Andreasdotter Hojem born in 1872, Anders Gunnarsson born in 1851 and his wife Ingeborg Kristina born in 1860, Halvar Jönsson born in 1878 and his wife Karin Nilsson born in 1891, niece to Anders and Gunnar, and Halvar’s and Karin’s son Bernhard in Halvar’s arms.  All living in Äsingen, also called Sandnäset.

We (Per Persson & Gunnar Persson} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to shopkeeper (P. Johansson of Offerdal} or his Court owner.

This i XE "i" ncludes our ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sannesets in Kall Parish consisting of 2 taxable acres. 

It also i XE "i" ncludes our Farm belonging pine and fir forest all in fifty years time, calculated from this date, free usage and disposal after our own discretion all trees two feet from the ground, containing 10 inches in rights cross section and better 

The mutually agreeable purchase amount of eight thousand (8,000) Riksdaler is to be paid as follows:

· Five hundred (500) Riksdaler is paid in cash and hereby eliminates that portion of the debt amount.  

· One thousand five hundred (1,500) Riksdaler is to be paid in September of this year,

· Three thousand (3,000) Riksdaler in March 1875 

· onterstoden XE "onterstoden" 
 of three thousand (3,000) Riksdaler in March of 1876, 

· then the entire total shall on this occasion be paid, and everything payment demand shall be paid in Östersund and the debt is eliminated.  

The sellers gives the buyer free rights to roads, bridges, store house buildings there as the buyer finds appropriate.  The rights to cut fence wood, building wood, roof shingles etc. without consideration on Dimitionen XE "Dimitionen"  should some tree through falling downwards is broken or on other manner is damaged, forest owner is not bound to make some compensation for the same.  

The buyer reserves for himself the right to establish log cabin and by forest necessary timber without consideration on Dimetionen XE "Dimetionen" .  The seller reserves for himself nåyou XE "nåyou"  household needs from the forest for the farm.  

For the mortgage received as security for future security by this purchase contract the seller promises that upon the demand of the buyer to also give the necessary Purchase Agreement.  Ålundan agreed upon with two exact copies established and transacted.  


Sunnet on March 2, 1874


Seller:
Per Persson 



Gunnar Persson of Sannesett


Buyer:
P.  Johansson

(259)
Witness:
Chr XE "Chr" .  Forström of Konäs 



H.  Paulsen of Sundet

With this Purchase Agreement is conveyed one-third (1/3) to farm owner Christian Forsström of Konäs and 1/3 to N. Jonsson of Aspås and Narett with the rights and responsibilities as coming contract mentioned.  


Melen on March 3, 1874 



P.  Johansson 

(259)
Witness: 
M.  Lindgren 




H.  Paulsen

I {Christer Forsström} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to businessman (Joh. G. Bye} of Levanger or his Court owner, including my forest ownership rights in Sågen & Sandnäset in Kall Parish consisting of: 

1. One-third ownership of the rights to the forest of Company Farm No. 1 the Village of Sandnäset according to contract of March 2, 1874.  

2. One-third ownership of the rights to the forest of farm Saw according to contract of March 3, 1874.

The purchase amount of 8,650 Riksdalers is to be paid as follows:

· One hundred fifty (150} Riksdaler is to be paid in cash to hereby eliminate the debt.  

· Two thousand five hundred (2,500) Riksdalers goes addition with the buyer through Shopkeeper 0. Berglund of Rör, 

· about two thousand
 (2,000) Riksdalers or that which remains on a by me to the Villagers of Sandnäset 

makes a promise that it shall be paid by the buyer to the Villagers of Sandnäs.

Afterwards, business with Berglund and Sandnäs gubbarna XE "gubbarna"  is ornadt XE "ornadt"  and clear, 

that the seller promises that contract is said to properly convey to the buyer, 

which must occur before the 1st of October of this year, 

then the remaining total shall also be paid.

The buyer also promises in the same purchase agreement that on or before October 1st 

accept the above 8,650 Riksdaler 

to supply the following wares of Melen:

· 1 bag
 of coffee

· 7 lisspunds {140 pounds} of sugar

· 1 bag of livete XE "livete"  meal 

· 1 bag of sieved rye

· 1 bag of grain meal

It is hereby agreed upon in the presence of the undersigned witnesses 


Kall in Rör on August 4, 1881


Seller:
Christer Forsström of Kall and Konäs  


Buyer:
Joh. G. Bye



Shopkeeper P.  Johansson (according to commission)



Olof Berglund of Rör (this purchase is agreed to)


Testified: 
Olof Johansson 



Erik Alexandersson of Westgård

(260)

The buyer in all dele has done fuld XE "fuld" 
 nest for the in present contract conveyed purchase amount, over: 

goes accordingly they in contract named 2 clear authority along with to the buyer lavlige XE "lavlige"  Hjemmelsmand.  


Levanger on February 3, 1883 



Christian Forsström of Konäs

Present contract to transport along with day uden XE "uden"  responsibility for byes Live or its Manager Mr. P. Johansson, as fuld XE "fuld"  property, in that he took over paahvilende XE "paahvilende" .


Udredsell XE "Udredsell"  pr Levanger on March 20, 1883

Byes bankruptcy Manager with 


Sagförer XE "Sagförer" :
Georg Jenssen

Purchase Agreement

I {Gunnar Persson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Karin Andersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my son (Per Gunnarsson}.

This transaction is for my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sandnäsets, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtlands County consisting of 1 taxable acre 

The purchase amount of one thousand five hundred (1,500) Riksdaler amount is paid through a promissory note or the terms of this agreement to hereby get rid of the debt.

In addition, provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits and Special Stipulations for both of our remaining lifetimes: 

· One cow and 4 sheep or goats and their offspring

· Plant ½ barrel of potatoes

· future meadow moves from, from Brebacken on the south side of road that goes to spring and fence west, Forest haymaking Andersmyran {Anders Swamp}, Homyran {Ho Swamp}, as Qvarnmyran {Qvarn Swamp} which by the tenant ta XE "ta" kes to the farm

· The eastern part of the cottage with an attic for lodging 

· Access and usage of all other buildings as necessary 

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands

· Room for future livestock in the barn, 

· 1/8 barrel of Fjell XE "Fjell" 
 fish, 

· One-half (½) barrel of grain, 

· A Christian burial after death

The farm buyer shall take possession on the 1st of next May of this year with all the rights and responsibilities to all of the buildings, land, forests, cottages and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

As security for receiving Reserved Rights benefits, provide the seller a mortgage on this farm.  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced in half.

This agreement has been made and we have arrived at agreement as certified with our signature.  


Sandnäset on April 27, 1883


Seller: 
Gunnar Persson 



Karin Andersdotter


Buyer: 
Per Gunnarsson

(261)
Witness: 
Victor Videgren 



Ivar Persson Sandnäset

P. S. An identical contract was written for Gunnar Gunnarsson the same day.  

Per Persson
Table 85 (262)

Per Persson5, Per Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Per Persson 
	B
	Dec 19, 1824
	
	Per was a farmer in Sandnäset.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 10, 1853 
	
	

	S
	Anna Ivarsdotter 
	B
	Sep 28, 1825 
	Meråker
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 7, 1899
	
	

	E1
	Brita Persdotter 
	B
	Apr 24, 1854
	
	Brita emigrated to America on May 4, 1880.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Ivar Persson 
	B
	Dec 28, 1857 
	
	Both Ivar and Per took the name Sandness when they went to America.

	
	
	D
	Nov 28, 1926 
	Minnesota
	

	E3
	Anna Persdotter 
	B
	Feb 20, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 20, 1916
	
	

	E4
	Per Persson 
	B
	Apr 1, 1865 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 20, 1941 
	San Fernando, California
	


Here is a description above property lines 

between the Royal Court Judgment of ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the 

Village of Sandnäset consisting of 1/3rd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land in the 

Village of Kjolands, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtlands County, 

such these property lines of age been and become for make difference acknowledged by the surveyors

together transaction on Melens guest giver farm within Kjolands area, written in the year 1893.  

1. Norwegian
 National Cairn
 169, in each heart stone Sandnäsets and Kjolands property coincide, located on a birch hillside 230 meters north of Waltjern.  

The Cairn consists of a stone kummel 2 meters high with a heart stone in the center and 2 lower pours on the sides.  

The initials “A. F.” of Adolf Fredrik, the year 1752, and the Swedish Government Insignia is cut on one side on the heart stone, 

and the Norwegian National Cairn 169, 

on the other side F. 5 under Royal Government, the year 1752 and the Norwegian Government Insignia National Cairn 169.  

1 the property lines between these two villages 10 meters from the National Cairn is now set up and round school an indicator which shows direction the property line 10,372 meters {x miles} long, southwards to National Cairn No. II in Lillvålen, 

This second Cairn consists of 2 round school stone foundation walls, who ditty direction the one back to the other ahead to National Cairn III in both distance these directions are kring XE "kring"  school indicator now exposed on 10 meter distance from Cairn, which become improved.  From here the property line goes between Sandnäset and the Village of Kjolands in property line 1,964 meters in southeastern direction to National Cairn III on a mountain knalle XE "knalle" 
 east of Abotjern
.  

This Cairn, which consisted of a few stones with a heart stone in the center, has now become improved and furnished with a stone, 

which shows the direction back over an indicator of 8 meters to Cairn II and with a stone, which risar XE "risar" 
 direction by and an indicator of 5 meters to Cairn IV.  

From Cairn III the property line goes 29,612.5 meters northeast to Cairn IV on a bergudde XE "bergudde" 
 called Mickelhamnäset near Anjansjön.  

This Cairn consists of a heart stone, round school before with some stones and is now as far as improved.  On 20 meters northeast of this Cairn finishes property line between Sandnäset and the Village of Kjolands in that Anjesjön afterwards constitutes the border against Kjoland.  

Melen guest provider farm on July 13, 1893.  

Leo Ruth

On August 20, 1889 the undersigned T. F.  Lappfogde XE "Lappfogde" 
 of Sandnäset discontinued so that according to Royal Court Judgment on the 4th of this month official assessment of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sandnåset in Kall Parish consisting of 1 acre, which was purchased by Royal Court Judgment, and for widening of Skjäckerfjellets ren XE "ren"  pastureland.  

On notice was by function the current Juror Johan Jönsson of Brattäggen.

This farm contained the following:

· A cottage building 33 foot long, 21 foot wide, and 14 foot high under roof by shaving divide to cottage, Small house and was undertaken new in satisfactory condition.  

· A cottage building 30 foot long, 20 foot wide, and 14 foot high under a roof of boards, old and worn-out.

· A barn 50 foot long, 36 foot wide and 13 foot high under a roof of shaving, new and in good condition.  

· A shed 66 foot long, 20 foot wide, 12 foot high under a roof of sod and boards, old in usable condition.

· A hay barn in usable condition

· A barn in usable condition

· A milk shed in usable condition

· A cellar building in usable condition

· A fence in good condition 

· A meadow in satisfactory condition

· This farm can feed 2 horses, 9 black cows and 20 sheep or goats.

All buildings do not brand security.  The inspectors regard them as not being usable until they are repaired.



Date as above

On behalf of the inspectors



Adolf Suwe

This portion of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sandnäset consisting of 1 acre, which is the same as Per Persson sold to Royal Court Judgment according to the contract of September 1, 1888, is certified by Adolf Suwe

Photograph (264)

Ivar Persson, born on December 28, 1857
Per Persson, born on April 1, 1865

Margareta Karlsson of Mörsil loaned me this photograph.

Photograph (264)

Tailor Mikael Alnäs married 
Ivar Persson Sandness was born on

Anna Persdotter who was 
December 28, 857 and his wife 

born in 1860.
Anna Kristina.

Harvey Westrom loaned me this photograph.

Magnus Persson
Tables 86 (265)

Magnus Persson5, Per Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Magnus Persson 
	B
	Apr 25, 1827
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 12, 1862 
	

	S
	Oline Johannesdotter
	B
	Apr 5, 1836 
	Vuku

	
	
	D
	Apr 3, 1922
	

	E1
	Berit "Brita" Magnusson 
	B
	Apr 26, 1864 
	Sisselvold, Vera

	
	
	D
	Feb 23, 1952
	Mörsil

	E2
	Johan Petter Magnusson 
	B
	Feb 21, 1866 
	Vera

	
	
	D
	Apr 4, 1962
	


They lived a boundary mark in Vera, and their children were born there.  Afterwards they lived in Edet/Burn among other places for a few years as dependants before they moved to Gråviken.
Magnus entered into a written contract on July 14, 1876.  It had an annual lease payment of 75 Riksdaler in 1893.  Gråviken went under Kjoland  2 and it was Huså Works which owned it.  Magnus built and repaired a new house there at the Company expense.  The house is now completely worn-out.

· In July of 1873 an assessment was conducted on the farm’s buildings as follows:

· A cottage building, 13 1/3 alnars {26 2/3 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 14 layers high, The roof is built of boards.  The building is partly in the cottage, barn and porch, a fireplace in the house, 3 windows.

· A barn 12 alnars {24 feet} long 11 alnars {22 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  The roof is built of dirt and birch bark.

· A shed built together with the barn has 3 walls and is 9 alnars {18 feet} long and 2½ alnars {5 feet} wide and it has a roof of boards.

· A cellar shop and cellar, 4½ alnars {9 feet} square with 4 corners.

· A summer barn, balneal A hay barn within the fence.

· An old barn, 11 alnars {22 feet} long, 11 alnars {22 feet} wide and 12 layers high, The roof is built of dirt and birch bark.

· Husene in summer mountain cabin pasture consisting of a barn, milk shed and störris XE "störris" .

The assessment was done during the time Lars Larsson lived there.

It is said that Magnus disappeared when he went to Levanger on a business trip.  Whether it is right I cannot say.  His death date is in late summer, which was the date he was found.  This date might be calculated as the date of his death, or one can only speculate if he had died earlier and was found much later.

On page 87 of the book "Gränssläkten from Skalstugan" the names of Oline’s parents and siblings can be found, and you can read a large section about her relatives in Vera.

Johan Aasan of Verdal, Norway has also written a book where Oline’s relatives can be found and it is called "Slekta etter Maria Johansdotter Kulstad”.  {Relatives of Maria Johansdotter Kulstad}
Photograph (266)

From left is Petter Magnusson born in 1866, his wife Nikoline, Erling Brandhaug (son-in-law of Petter}, Erling’s daughter Kari and his wife Anna born Magnusson (Petter’s daughter}, and Anna Jönsson married to Johansen who was born in 1918 in Äsingen.  Ingemar Jönsson took this photograph in Trondheim.

Photograph (266)

Berit "Brita" Magnusson was born in 1864 and she married Erik Andersson of Västgård.

Margareta Karlsson loaned me this photograph.

Karin Bergström
Table 87 (267)

Karin Bergström5, Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Karin Bergström
	B
	Aug 1, 1819
	
	Kerstin of Kjelsmo place in Namsskogan

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 29, 1845
	
	

	S
	Ole Tronsen
	B
	1812
	Transmoen, Vera, Sweden
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 11, 1874
	Kjelsmo Place, Sweden
	

	E1
	Tomas Olsen
	B
	Nov 19, 1846
	Vera, Sweden
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 11, 1874
	
	

	E2
	Peder Olsen
	B
	Aug 17, 1848
	Vera, Sweden
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Tron Olsen
	B
	
	
	Tron emigrated to Minnesota in 1867.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Tibertine Olsdotter
	B
	May 2, 1860
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 1946
	
	


Photograph (267)

From left is Johannes, Tine, Helge, Tibertine and Eli of Lestem 

Photograph (267)

From left: Karen Ottesen, Ellen Engan, Thine XE "Thine"  Lestum, and Olea Grande 

Inger Lestum of Öysletta, Norway owns this photograph. 

Ole and Karin Tronsen lived for a time in Tronsmoen in Vera, Norway, before they moved to Namsskogan.  Ole was the son of Tron Tronsen and Berte Andersdotter.  They came from Moldberget in Trysil about 1800-1801, and they settled in Tronsmoen in Vera.  Ole had 6 sibling and they were: 

Andreas born 1798 or 1799, Anne born 1800, Tron born 1802, Marta born 1806, Johannes born 1808 and Ingeborg born 1810.

Tron moved to Järpen and lived in Hall, Järpen, and the farm where he lived is called the Tron Farm.  Tron was called Tron Tronsen, and his daughter and son-in-law likely took over the farm after him.

Grandchild Tron Andersson came afterwards to own farm.  Tron’s parents were Märit Tronsdotter and Anders Olsson.  Tron Andersson and his wife were childless.  Tron Tronsen’s descendants are still found in Järpen.

Ingeborg also moved to Sweden and she settled in Nilshallen in Alsen.  She was married to Erik Larsson and they had five children.

Siblings Anne and Johannes were both unmarried.  Marta married widower Ole Bårdsen of Helgåsen.  The oldest brother Andreas lived for a time in Tronsmoen, but moved to Åfjord.  They returned, because Andreas had died on October 5, 1859, near Holmli, Helgådalen.

Ole and Karin’s son Tomas, lived in Harran, Norway with his family.  Their son Tron emigrated to Minnesota in 1867.  Their son Peder was unmarried, and their daughter Tibertine also lived in Harran with her family.

Ole and Karin settled on the Kjelsmo place in Namsskogan in 1857 and later they moved from Vera.  The place site for Stormoen.

The Population Records for the year 1865 state that Ole and Karin had 2 large heifers, 4 sheep and 3 goats.

Their son Peder Olsen was a forest worker in Lindsetmoen and Flaatedalen in 1875.

Anders Persson Bergström
Table 88 (269)

Anders Persson Bergström5, Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Anders Persson Bergström 
	B
	about  Oct 21, 1821
	
	Anders was baptized on October 21, 1821.  He lived in Gråviken, but moved to Baksjönäset in 1860, and lived there until his death.

	
	
	D
	June 09, 1886
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 25, 1871 
	
	

	S
	Karolina Berg 
	B
	Jan 3, 1827 
	Åre
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 21, 1896
	
	

	E1
	Erik Olo XE "Ol" fsson Berg
	B
	Mar 6, 1854 
	Åre
	Erik was Karolina’s son from her first marriage.  They had no children in common.  Erik moved to Aasen, Frosta, Norway in 1898 with his family.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


The following tenant contract was established between the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company and Anders Persson Bergström:

That through made keep and conducted the Estate Assessment of July 10, 1842 

with the settler Anders Persson Bergström in Gråwiken, 

on a tract by the Company Farms in Tjoland located on the south side of lake Anjan 

that through dividing becomes mentioned 

the Copper Mining Company award 

and that this assessment shall determine and decide the limits of this new homestead buildings 

him belong distance 

and ratio against adjacent, 

accordingly and in observation by that smaller favorable situation 

this cottages has the rights 

and that therefore no land can come to be expected, 

by this means Anders Persson Bergström shall hereby be given the enjoyment of 10 tax-free years from any lease payments to the Copper Mining Company, calculated from and including the year 1838 when the construction rights are first granted and including the year 1847 when they are completed. 

for that reason the following conditions are now final:

1. The payment of a 4 Riksdaler lease payment to the Copper Mining Company

2. All first 15 barrels of ore from Bjelkes Mine to Huså Smelting-house at 8 Species per barrel

3. Additionally with budning XE "budning"  from the Company contract with readiness purchased in every occurrence appear driving and business activity, after the reward that with work approve therein also with duties as a mortician.  The Royal Government placed, Pastoralier XE "Pastoralier"  and Wäghållnings XE "Wäghållnings"  mean which by work dislocate are engaged and which unconditionally annually shall be earned then on the other hand and with faithful fulfillment of this, 

also that the new homestead buildings and all the additional improvements own advantage 

belong to Anders Persson Bergström, and come to be regarded as the Copper Mining Company’s secondary ownership rights, and so he is assured of ownership rights during his lifetime.  

For that reason, the new contract should compensate him afterwards
.

Everyone’s copies of this contract are moved as security.


Huså on July 17, 1843 


On behalf of the Company:



J. E. Lindström Company n. w. Administrator



Anders P. Bergström

(270)
Witness: 
Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Backsjönäset  



Jonas Nilsson of Hamburg

This contract is hereby transferred to Göran Svensson with the same rights and responsibilities that I formerly held.



Anders Persson Bergström

(270)
Witness Strandell: 
Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Backsjönäset  

Provide the following annual Reserved Rights to my mother {Ingeborg Gunnarsdotter} and I for both of our remaining lifetimes:

1. A cow and 4 sheep or goats born and cared for in both winter and summer with their later offspring.

2. ½ barrel of good clean grain.

3. To manor house Nybustamyran {Nybusta Swamp}, Small lake hay, Johnslotten, Korsmyran {Kors Swamp}, Bråttmyran {Brått Swamp} and to cultivated land, that which is now marked out for houses.

4. The land I dug up for potatoes

5. The entrance hall with an attic for lodging.  Tjellaren
, access and usage of the barn and other buildings as necessary

6. A ride to and from church once each year.  Necessary driving after contract.  Wood and heat.  Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses.  Down death calls my mother, afterwards shall feed and nursing care for livestock and the ½ barrels of grain disappear.  All that other I may use exact in my lifetime.  

Anders purchased this undivided farm from Per Eriksson and his wife {Ursilla Salomonsdotter} for 800 Riksdaler and immediately took possession of it through a Special promissory note that was paid in gold
 on that date.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Per Eriksson} hereby surrender this homestead with all of the rights and privileges that now belong to this farm or can be legally obtained in the future to Anders Persson and his heirs for their eternal ownership and occupancy rights.

It is hereby completed and agreed upon by both of us.  


Kall and Backsjönäset on May 18, 1860


Seller: 
Per Eriksson 



Ursila Salomonsdotter


Buyer: 
Anders Persson 

(270)
Witness: 
J.  Ohlsson Sundet 



Erik Carlsson Sundet

The farm is partitioned from Company Farm No. 1 consisting of 1/9th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land 

Anders Persson sold the farm to his stepson (Erik} for the following Reserved Rights benefits:

I {Anders Persson of Kall and Baksjönäset} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Carolina Berg} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to this undivided farm located in Kall and Backsjönäset to my stepson (Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Backsjönäset}.

The agreed upon purchase amount of three hundred (300) Riksdaler is paid in gold through a Special promissory note and therefore, Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson shall immediately take possession and ownership of the farm.  

In addition, provide the following annual Reserved Rights to my wife {Carolina Berg} and I {Anders Persson} for both of our remaining lifetimes:

· Feed and fodder for a cow and 4 sheep or goats and by the offspring in spring of 2 sheep or goats and their offspring.

· 1 maling well cultivated and fertilized land 

· fertilized land for potatoes for derogatory by ¾ barrels of potatoes.

· For manor house to harvest for future cattle provide the so called Djupmyran {Djup Swamp} and three stack hay west Kalltjern, and for breaching by land or meadow, that piece of land which is on öfstra XE "öfstra"  side of the pitch which runs in front of farms fence.  

· mountain and a piece of land above field, and ½ in Kryddgård XE "Kryddgård" .

· Small house and an attic room and eastern side by barn with fodder rum, 

· portion of granary and east side of cellar

· access and usage of the other buildings as required  

· the right to use the buyer’s boat as needed.  

· Necessary firewood 

· tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· With either of our deaths, give again the land which is Special Stipulation for cropland and forest hay.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I surrender this homestead with all of the benefits and rights that I now own and that can be legally obtained in the future to Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his heirs for their eternal possession.

This transaction is hereby agreed upon and certified by both of us.


Kall and Backsjönäset on September 13, 1878


Seller:
Anders Persson 



Carolina Berg


Buyer:
Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 

(271)
Witness: 
J.  S.  Sunding 



Per Ersson

Photograph (272)

The farm belonging to Anders Bergström that he sold to his stepson (Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Berg}  

Erik sold the in his luck to Mikal Ahlnäs, 

which afterwards sold it to the Royal Government on August 14, 1907.  

This photograph was taken by Arthur Asplund from Baksjönäset.

Photograph (272)

This is the homestead that Anders Larsson (Table 89) lived on.  He was born in 1855.  His son (Lars Erik Andersson} was born on this homestead.  

The old cottage is to the right and the new cottage is to the left.

This photograph was taken by Arthur Asplund.  

Brita Bergström
Table 89 (273)

Brita Bergström5, Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Brita Bergström 
	B
	Dec 11, 1823 
	
	Brita lived for a time in Gråviken, but moved later to Baksjönäset.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 28, 1850 
	
	

	S
	Lars Larsson 
	B
	Mar 1, 1826 
	Kopparberg, Dalarna
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1903
	Kopparberg, Dalarna
	

	E1
	Lars Larsson 
	B
	Nov 24, 1850
	
	Lars emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Per Larsson 
	B
	Nov 9, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 22, 1881 
	
	

	E3
	Anders Larsson 
	B
	June 8, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 29, 1925
	
	

	E4
	Gunnar Larsson 
	B
	June 18, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 12, 1865
	
	

	E5
	Johan Larsson 
	B
	June 22, 1864 
	
	To Flatanger, Norway 1896

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Erik Gustaf Larsson 
	B
	Nov 3, 1867 
	
	Erik emigrated to America on June 8, 1892.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Artur Asplund found a notation among his papers concerning Erik Gustaf.  It stated there that Erik Gustaf Larsson was born in Baksjönäset on November 3, 1867 and died in Norway, Michigan, USA, on June 29, 1917.  He is mourned by two brothers.  They are Lars Larsson of the USA and Anders Larsson of Baksjönäset.

Lars was married on October 9, 1887 to Maria Olsdotter who was born on May 5, 1846 in Verdal, Norway.  She had a daughter from her first marriage that was named (E7) Anna Märta Persdotter, born on October 1, 1878.

Lars took hand of hay from Gråviken when he lived in Baksjönäset, 

but it was not liked not, which is why he ended it.  

They moved between Gräviken and Baksjönäset some times, 

which it was enough the reason that he did that.

Farm Contract

The leasehold of Company Farm No. ? under Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Kjolandet in Kall Parish is taken over by Lars Larsson from Gråviken for which he is to annually pay 30 Riksdaler to the Company and also is to provide Reserved Rights to the widow {Ingeborg Gunnarsdotter} for her remaining lifetime.  

After the widow’s death the lease shall be increased by/to 100 Riksdaler per year and this increase shall be earned through 

timber cutting and driving constituting.  


Husä on October 20, 1868



Wollradt Tham

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone, and I promise to faithfully fulfill the same.



Lars Larsson of Gräviken

(273)
Witness: 
Gustaf Nilsson 



Isac Bergström

An addendum to this contract has been legally entered on this date with the obligation that Lars Larsson 

that ½ left farm the 1st of next June, 

and Lars is prohibited to take any feed or fertilizer 

without shall that which is found remaining by fulfill from mill that is on place.


Huså on April 17, 1875

(275)
Witness: 
J. Andersson 



Erik Nyberg

A contract was written for the same Company Farm in Gråviken on ½ maling of land for the first time on October 24 1865 with the obligation to provide Reserved Rights to his mother-in-law and the price
 was 40 Riksdaler

Photograph (274)

Anders Larsson was born on June 8, 1855.  His wife {Gölin Egglund} was born on December 3, 1859.

Göta Lindstein of Järpen loaned me this photograph.

Afterwards the farm through Proclamation becomes in make order proclaimed, 

an open auction was Sönom XE "Sönom"  uppslag XE "uppslag" , 

where after many bids and raising of bids 

(Lars Larsson of the Village of Gräcove in Kall Parish), 

made the highest bid of one thousand one hundred (1,100) Riksdaler, 

and became the new buyer upon conclusion with the auction gavel.  

Consequently, this property and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future shall be given over to Lars Larsson, his wife and children for their eternal ownership.  On the 1st of next May at the next Court Session, they shall take possession when the total purchase amount is paid in cash.  


Kall and Baksjönäset on above date


Auctioneer:
Jacob Pehrsson of Back 


Seller:
Jonas Salmonsson 


Buyer:
Lars Larsson

(275)
Witness: 
J. L. A.  Sunding 



Jonas Halfvarsson of Beljom
Purchase Agreement

I {Lars Larsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to farmer (Christian Forsström of Konäs, Kall Parish}

This i XE "i" ncludes all of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Baksjönäset, Kall Parish consisting two-thirds (2/3) of a taxable acre and all of the farm cottages. 

It also i XE "i" ncludes my ownership of the logging rights for 50 fifty years from this date to existing spruce and pine forest with the Special Stipulation of self dried trees, 

to a dimension of nine (9) verktum in through cutting and there upon two (2) foot from the ground. 

The agreed upon purchase amount of seven hundred fifty (750) Riksdaler in accordance with the terms of the above agreement is hereby paid to get rid of the debt.

The seller (Lars Larsson} also reserves for himself during logging time free household needs forest for his farm and their current farmer, 

and free rights over the forest land that is found within farmer Lars Jonsson’s fence, but he is not able to sell this wood.

The buyer (Christian Forsström} reserves for himself free disposition right over forest and that he for gone find by cutting timber and vrakträn XE "vrakträn" 
, 

the buyer also reserves for himself the rights that upphugga XE "upphugga"  and cleared roads and storage location for logging provided from 

and plow in forest as well as on beaches, free flottleder XE "flottleder" 
, 

also as right to uppränsa XE "uppränsa"  they on region existing stream, 

and of that for gone is found build dams and rennor XE "rennor" 
 for the forest propelled, 

and to take wood also that for Bommar, Dams, Bridges, Spakar XE "Spakar" , etc. 

without considering the dimensions after the terms of this compensation for this contract, 

The buyer (Christian Forsström} gives the seller (Lars Larsson} the right to request and receive a mortgage on this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Baksjönäset in Kall Parish consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of a taxable acre without any additional hearings.

I now promise to give a qualified Purchase Agreement.

This transaction is hereby instituted and wexlat XE "wexlat" 
, acknowledged and certified.


Kall and Baksjönäset on April 24, 1874


Seller:
Lars Larsson of Baksjönäset  


Buyer:
Christian Forsström of Konäs

(276)
Witness: 
Olof Gustafsson of Konäs 



Pehr Eriksson of Konäs

Inheritance Document

On June 4, 1887, the undersigned (______} appeared after request on place, 

so that afterwards farmwife {Brita Persdotter of Backsjönäset, Kall Parish}, through her death on June 5, 1886, 

an Estate Assessment was conducted on the property on the 2nd of the following July to officially document the proper inheritance division and distribution between her surviving husband {farmer Lars Larsson} and their common children that they had together during their marriage including sons Lars, Anders, and Johan who are now of legal age, and Erik Gustaf who is 19 years old.  The rights of the underage child (Erik Gustaf} are to be guarded by farm owner V. E. Widegren of Backsjönäset.

First, record their deeds and the like that know serve 

to enlighten the property position and came before in consideration:

1. Purchase and Title Deed for Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Backsjönäset consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of an acre 

2. Estate Inventory dated July 2, 1886.

Afterwards the divider by these deeds did him precisely informed 

and also any verbal information concerning this inheritance which took place as follows:

Fixed property assets of the Company Farm in the Village of Backsjönäset 

consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of an acre, appraised at 

1700.  

Personal Property appraised at 


893.20

Receivable from Anders Larsson of Backsjönäset 


88.95
Total tillgänar XE "tillgänar"  Riksdaler


2682.15

This total is to be distributed as follows:

The surviving husband is to receive 

½ of the appraised value of the fixed property, 

or the value of two-sixths (2/6) of an acre
 850.00


½ of the Personal Property
 446.60


½ of the Receivable
  47.47½
1341.07½
The following is the calculation 

for the 1/8th portion for son Lars:

1/8th of the appraised value of the fixed property, 

or the value of 1/12th of an acre
212.50


1/8th of the Personal Property
 111.65


1/8th of the Receivable
  11.11⅞
 
Total for Lars 
335.26⅞

Calculated the same way for the other sons:

Anders
 335.26⅞

Johan
335.26⅞

Erik Gustaf 
335.26⅞
1341.07½ 
2682.15
The surviving husband alone shall have the use of this farm according to the contract and therefore is responsible for the estate debts and should pay annual interest from the estate assessment date to the present date according to the appraisal in this Estate Inventory: 





1607.63


Inheritance Expense


  16.-


Total Debts


1623.63
The Estate debts are to be paid as follows:

½ portion by the surviving husband 

811.81½
1/8th portion by son Lars 
 202.95⅜


1/8th portion by son Anders 
 202.95⅜


1/8th portion by son Johan 
 202.95⅜


1/8th portion by son Gustaf 
 202.95⅜
811.81½
1623.63

It is hereby recorded and attested that the appraised value of the existing personal property in this Estate Inventory is to be revised between them, because the surviving husband was in possession of a mare that belonged to the estate, and the other heirs agreed that he should receive ½ of the value of this animal, which according to the appraised value in the Estate Inventory is calculated at 150 Riksdaler and he must pay 18 Riksdaler 77 Species (1/8 of the value) to each of the other sons in accordance with this contract.  

It is hereby completed and affirmed on the above date.  



Erik Larsson 



Olof Hansson.

We affirm that all parties are satisfied with the terms of the preceding Inheritance Document.   


Backsjönäset on above date



Lars Larsson (the Younger)



Anders Larsson



Johan Larsson



Lars Larsson (the Older)



E.G. Larsson (by W. E. Widegren,  





guardian of the inheritance rights) 

(277)



We, by means of this power of attorney for our brother (Anders Larsson} and on his behalf sell his inheritance leaseholder rights to this property in the Village of Backsjönäset in Kall Parish that was received in a Royal Court Judgment, and the conditional purchase amount is hereby received from the prospective buyer and signed for.

We have valid powers of attorney to make this decision as acknowledged.


Ytterån on September 5, 1888



Lars Larsson 




Erik Gustaf Larsson

(278)
Witness: 
Ol XE "Ol" .  Nilsson of Hof 



Olaus Ingvaldsson Ytterån

I {Johan Larsson} knowingly give my father {Lars Larsson the Older} the full rights to sell my 1/8th (one-eighth) of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village Baksjönäset.




Johan Larsson

(278)
Witness:
Paul Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Olof Paulsson

We (______________} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to Royal Court Judgment.

This i XE "i" ncludes our joint ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Backsjönäset, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtland County consisting of 1/3 portion of an acre.  It also includes everything now on the farm 

for an agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand five hundred (1,500) Riksdaler, 

and the remainder for the following conditions.

This Purchase Agreement that is binding for the seller (_______________?} from and including this day, shall be submitted for Royal Court Judgment  examination, 

why that for the buyer is solely responsible

under prerequisite by Royal Court Judgment 

within three months hereafter there document fast ställelse XE "ställelse" .

The seller shall give this farm free from any other mortgages other than the overseen forest work rights according to the contract of April 24, 1874.

The farm is to be received by the buyer in the Royal Court Judgment of March 14, 1889.

When the purchase amount is paid by the buyer, we the sellers shall afterwards (_______________?} properly confirm that the farm is free from other than the above mentioned mortgage and that we paid all farm legal taxes and burdens for a period of years and turned over the required purchase agreement to the buyer.

Two copies of this deed are completed and acknowledged by us the undersigned.  


Backsjönäset on September 2, 1888


Anders Larsson


Lars Larsson (the Younger?)


Erik Gustaf Larsson (by Anders Larsson through Power of Attorney)


Johan Larsson (by Lars Larsson the Younger? through Power of Attorney)

(278)
Witness: 
Adolf Suwe 



Per Gunnarsson of Sandnäset

With support of the necessary authorization from each of us, this Purchase Agreement was registered in the Östersund Land Office on December 4, 1888.



John Eriksson 



Carl H. Ekberg

Agnes Bergström
Table 90 (279)

Agnes Bergström5, Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Agnes Bergström 
	B
	Jan 1, 1827 
	
	Agnes lived in Konäs, but emigrated to America on April 3, 1870.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 4, 1847 
	
	

	S
	Johan Näs 
	B
	Oct 27, 1829 
	Konäs
	Field soldier

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Maria Johanna Johansdotter Näs 
	B
	Nov 28, 1864 
	Konäs
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Johan Näs purchased a farm in the following agreement:

I {Anders Johansson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to my son (Johan Andersson Näs} for an agreed upon purchase amount of six hundred (600) Riksdaler which is to be paid by the farm buyer on May 1, 1857.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-fourth (¼) portion or one-half (½) of an acre

partly inherited and partly börd XE "börd"  purchased,  

of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Ytterkonäs
, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtland Southern Judicial District.  

The entire farm consists of two acres of unarranged tax land.

My wife and I {Anders Johansson} and other children surrender our ownership rights to one-fourth (¼) portion or one-half (½) of an acre of land as well as my ownership rights to one-fourth (¼) portion of all the buildings, land, fishing water, saw, mill and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be obtained in the future to the same Johan Andersson Näs, his wife, children and heirs as their descendants legally purchased property and they shall have undisputed ownership and cultivation rights. 

He also has the right of proper entry into the Deed Book, and I undertake myself to hemnt XE "hemnt" 
 after District Court.

This contract is hereby completed and we have arrived at agreement as attested and certified with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

Kall and Sellswed on November 29, 1856


Seller:
Anders Johansson Näs 


Buyer:
Johan Andersson Näs of Konäs 

(279)
Witness:
Eric Pehrsson of Sellsved



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Notvallen

Anders Johansson had purchased the farm on November 11, 1817.
Later, Johan Näs sold the farm in the following agreement:

Purchase Agreement

I {Johan Andersson Näs} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Agnes Bergström} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to the Company Worker Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Huså.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided Company Farm called Andersnäset now contained under Company Farm No. 2 the Village of Ytterkonäs, Kall Parish, Jemtland County.

The purchase amount is one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler and the farm buyer (Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} shall take possession on the 1st of next May in 1866 at the next Court Session 

of the entire farm expanse and everything else including all their rights and taxes and burdens is after farms old deeds 

when that was sold to Olof Gunnarsson and purchase amount paid when the farm buyer.

I consequently surrender this undivided farm to Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his wife and children 

that they legally purchased 

but after one undisputed and eternal ownership and cultivation rights.

Agreement and completion is hereby acknowledged in Kall on October 11, 1865


Seller: 
Johan Andersson of Konäs 


Buyer: 
Gunnar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Husä 

(280)
Witness: 
Christian Ersson 



Christian Forsström of Konäs

Johan then purchased a farm in Kälen and he later sold it to Erik Alexandersson and Olof Stefansson in the following agreement:

Purchase Agreement

 I {Johan Andersson of Käln} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Agnis Pehrsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmers (Olof Stefansson of Äng} and (Eric Alexandersson of Westgård}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Käln, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality consisting of 1/16 portion of a taxable acre. 

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand three hundred (1,300) Riksdaler is hereby paid in full on this day to eliminate the debt, and the farm buyer receives all of the rights and responsibilities that now belong to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

This transaction is hereby completed as acknowledged by both sides in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Kall on October 11, 1869


Seller:  
Johan Andersson 



Angnis Persdotter 


Buyer:
Erik Alexandersson of Westgärd 



Olof Stefansson of Äng

(280)
Witness:  
Erik Larsson of Back 



Anders Nilsson of Böhle

Maria Bergström
Table 91 (281)

Maria Bergström5, Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Maria Bergström 
	B
	Jan 7, 1829
	
	Maria lived in Kjoland, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 25, 1859 
	
	

	S
	Jonas Abrahamsson 
	B
	July 24, 1823 
	
	Jonas was a farmer.

	
	
	D
	Nov 9, 1896 
	
	

	E1
	Brita Jonasdotter 
	B
	July 20, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 22, 1861
	
	

	E2
	Per Jonasson 
	B
	Oct 23, 1862
	
	Deaf and dumb

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Anna Brita Jonasdotter 
	B
	July 14, 1870 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1919
	
	


Photograph (281)

This is a photograph of East-Kjoland in about 1930.  The building in the photograph is the barn.  The house at the top of the photograph is where Anna Brita Jonasdotter, born on March 14, 1870, lived with her husband {Ole Hyttmo}.  

Stina Olsson of Kallrör loaned me this photograph.

Jonas Abrahamsson now
 lives on Company Farm No. 64 in the Village of Kjoland.  In 1857, his father {Abraham Jonsson} sold the following farm for Reserved Rights:

· A cottage 7½ alnars {15 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 20 layers high with the same roofing as the cottage of Noak Jonssons.  It has a roof of double boards, tongue and grooved boards on the inner ceiling, a floor built of planks, a fireplace without a baking oven with boards, posts of iron, 2 operable windows of 4½ Op with lead bound, and a door on hinges. This building, which was built by the Copper Mining Company, is very old but it was been timbered and provided with a new roof and floor 6 year ago.

· A barn, 12 alnars {24 feet} long, 12 alnars {24 feet} wide and 14 layers high with roof built of birch bark, tree branches and sod.  This building is also furnished on the west end, and it is completely worn-out, in especially that security vidkommer XE "vidkommer" 
, which the tenant now begun built into new that also is not more than some rows timbered.  

· A Granary, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 14 layers high.  It has 3 alnars {6 feet} wide threshing barn, which has a floor built of planks and split logs.  The roof is built of tree branches, birch bark and sod and it has double doors with a lock.  It is about 26 years old and in perfect condition.

· A barn with corners against the granary, 5 alnars {10 feet} long, 12 alnars {24 feet} wide and 11 layers high.  The roof is built of split birch bark and tree branches, the floor is built of miscellaneous wood.  It is old but in good condition.  

· A Shelter on logs, 5 alnars {10 feet} square, 12 layers high.  The roof is built of birch bark and tree branches, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, and it has a door with read.  It is about 80 years old, but it is still in usable condition.

· A cellar building, 7 alnars {14 feet} square, 14 layers high, The roof is built of birch bark, tree branches and dirt, the floor is built of timber and plank.  It has a roof over the cellar and the cellar has walls built stone.  It is 24 years old.

· A hay barn with roof built of birch bark, tree branches and dirt.  It can hold 6 loads of hay and it has a new roof.  A hay barn on the western side can hold 7 loads.  A hay barn in Zetterdahlsvallen can hold 5 loads.

· Houses in Thornvallen with Noak Jonsson, consisting of Störris milk shed and barn, not very old.  All of the houses are covered with birch bark, tree branches and dirt.  

· ½ of the Ownership Rights to 2 summer barns that are listed on the Estate Inventory of in-law Jonas Andersson

· 1/3 of the Ownership Rights to a boat house that is listed on the Estate Inventory of Jonas Anderssons

· Cropland consisting of 11 malings of open land and 9 malings of new land.  

· Fence consisting of 104 fathoms to enclose the pasture.

· Mountains 12 loads of hay within the farmstead, 3 in Wahlen, 3½ in Sundsvalmyran {Sundsval Swamp}, 2½ in Westerkjolmyran {Western Kjol Swamp}, 1 in Nyänget, l½ in Hundsjöslotten, 1 in Öfverånget and 2 in Lillvallen. 

· This farm can feed 3 cows, 1 calf, 8 sheep or goats and 1 horse during the year. 

Contract

For that, Jonas Abrahamsson of Kjoland receives the harvest for this current year 

that by the previous Company farmer utilized cottages, 

and he promised to also give three hundred fifty (350) loads outbergat XE "outbergat"  lång XE "lång" 
 hay to the Husä Copper Mining Company as compensation

Should against by this feed cottages does not reach harvest estimate

which is conceded to him that receive difference give small hay, 

all well harvested and cared for, 

and put him under an obligation during the referenced time to harvest 

and hereby order sound conditions put him for valtningens XE "valtningens"  Order jurisdiction.  


Husä on April 16, 1878 



Jämtland Copper & Logging Company by



Gottfrid Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to fulfill the same.  


Huså on above date



Jonas Abrahamsson

(283)
Witness:
Erik Lundberg 



C. F. Johansson

The contract was renewed in 1879 as follows:

This contract is renewed for this year, with the revision that instead of 350 lisspunds {3½ tons} of hay, he shall pay 300 lisspunds {6 tons} during the remaining years.  All other established conditions remain the same.  


Huså on April 24, 1879



Gottfrid Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with the preceding contract to everyone and promise to fulfill the same.  



Jonas Abrahamsson 


Witness:
(the same witnesses)

The contract was renewed in 1880 as follows:

This contract is renewed for this year with the obligation that Jonas Abrahamsson is to pay a lease amount of 300 lisspunds {6 tons} of hay and he is to repair roofs on all 

children against that he in invoice godgöres XE "godgöres"  for all his work and necessary nails.  


Huså on April 13, 1880 



Gottfrid Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with the preceding contract to everyone and promise to fulfill the same.  


Huså on above date



Jonas Abrahamsson

(283)
Witness: 
Arthur Nordbeck

Jonas relinquished this farm in 1891 as follows:

I, Jonas Abrahamsson, who has been the cultivator and owner of Company Farm No. 64 in the Village of Kjoland for a long time, hereby renounce all my rights to this farm that were held by me through this agreement.  

I permit the Huså Company as the farm owner to have free and unencumbered lease to this homestead without any claims from me for any additional payments by whatever name they might be called


Huså on June 16, 1891 



Jonas Abrahamsson 

(283)
Witness: 
Axis Hedberg 



Salmon Jonsson

Ole 0. Hyttmo took over this above farm from his father-in-law (Jonas Abrahamsson} on April 12, 1893.  The lease contract was written on Huså Company cable
.  

Ingeborg Bergström
Table 92 (284)

Ingeborg Bergström5, Ingeborg Essing4, Gunnar Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	D7
	Ingeborg Bergström 
	B
	Oct 10, 1835 
	
	Inger lived in West-Flandern, Åre

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 18, 1863 
	
	

	
	Sven Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Dec 25, 1836
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Brita Elisabet Svensdotter 
	B
	Feb 17, 1863
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Ingeborg Svensdotter 
	B
	Mar 15, 1867 
	Äggsjön
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 10, 1869
	
	

	E3
	Ingeborg Svensdotter 
	B
	May 15, 1872 
	V.  Flandern 
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Olof Svensson 
	B
	Dec 3, 1877 
	V.  Flandern
	Olof emigrated to America, and there he drank himself to death.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (284)

Sven Ol XE "Ol" ofsson built this small cottage.  It is located in Rensjönäset, which is in Vester-Flandern.  They lived there until their old age, then they moved in with their children in Vassnäs.  Mr. and Mrs. Nitzelius are standing on the porch.

Edit Svensson of Häggsjön loaned me this photograph.

Photograph (285)

Ingeborg (born Bergström) born on October 10, 1835, and her husband Sven Ol XE "Ol" ofsson born in 1836.  

Edit Svensson of Häggsjön, Åre loaned me this photograph.

Contract

I {Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Anna Märsta Olausdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my brother (Sven Olofsson} and his wife {Ingeborg Pehrsdotter}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Flandren, Åhre Parish, Undersåker Municipality, Jemtland Southern Judicial District consisting of an ontton XE "ontton"  portion or five sixty-fourths (5/64) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land

according to the tax Purchase Agreement of October 20 1873, 

for that homesteads buyer undertakes to pay 

partly seventy-five (75) Riksdaler to my sister (Brita} as compensation for her share of the farm, 

partly and to annually be responsible 

neither give one eighth of the Reserved Rights 

which is by referred to farm 

but my mother {the widow Brita Nilsdotter} guarantees, 

according to the contract established on this date.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I surrender all my ownership rights to this portion of the farm with all of the accompanying rights and responsibilities and the buyer shall receive legal ownership rights to this farm and may now immediately take possession of it as his legally purchased property with eternal ownership, occupancy, and possession rights and the buyer has the right to 

here ask for make acquired.  

It is hereby completed and arrived at agreement in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Åre and Flandern on September l, 1877.


Seller:
Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and



Märsta Olausdotter 


Buyer:
Sven Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and



Ingeborg Pehrsdotter

(286)
Witness: 
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Olof Pehrsson of Åre and Nordhallen

Auction

The Royal Court Judgment in Jemtlands County hereby declares 

that afterwards from Citizen  t.f XE "t.f" . assessor J. Löfgren (the auctioneer or appraiser???)

Sven Ol XE "Ol" ofsson in mät XE "mät"  hereby receives ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Vestra Flandern (West Flandern}, Åhre Parish, Undersåker Municipality consisting of five sixty-fourths (5/64) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.

It was put into the Deed Book that Sven Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his wife Ingeborg Persdotter on September 17, 1878 received a divided farm by a Royal Court Judgment on March 17th of last year at an auction conducted by Royal Bailiff Per Englund that is bought for five hundred (500) Riksdalers, 

and on condition in remaining that by Auction Recorded Minutes indicated, 

and that, according to Royal Court Judgment the buyer comes, by the person this official 

made a sales certificate won make power

and Per Englund stated in the County Office Recorded Minutes of this date that the purchase amount was paid on this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of  Vestra Flandern consisting of the mentioned portion of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land and Per Englund hereby transferred the ownership rights to Sven Olofssons and his wife.

This Purchase Agreement is given from this executive sale according to the District Court Minutes.


Östersund on County Office on May 31, 1882



On behalf of the County Governor’s Office:



Carl Ekberg 

(286)

P. G. Rissler

Lease contract

I {Carl G. Skytte}hereby release and lease out my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Vesterflandern in Åre Parish consisting of five sixty-fourths (5/64) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land to Olof Svensson of Vesterflandern (West Flandern} for a period of twenty years calculated from this date.

use Court proof according to me put into the Deed Book on July 7, 1896 

for the following terms and conditions: 

1. Olof Svensson undertakes and promises that well cultivate and use farm and by the seller (_______________?} give the same in equally good condition that by approval, 

as well as in consideration of all the buildings and land, that without the terms of this compensation hold supervision and care over the owner’s hunting grounds

within the Village of Vesterflanderns 

and immediately called upon possibly developing incursion on the same 

and that likewise without Special Stipulation 

by appear needs purchased owner or his öfnskan XE "öfnskan"  by hunting or fishing in byns XE "byns"  areas.

2. Olof Svensson has the rights not that otherwise than after commission by owner or with his condition practice some that preferably hunt on its hunting grounds.

3. The lessee has the rights to take necessary fuel and wooden fence posts from the forest, but only building timber that is marked or in all cases by a special directive from the owner. 

4. All money for outgoing taxes and burdens is to be paid by the owner, hvaemot XE "hvaemot" 
 such in kind is constituted by lessee.

In case I {Olof Svensson} should break my promise to complete these commitments, I promise to immediately give notice to the owner and vacate the premises within 3 months of the occurrence.

The lessee must be responsible to allow his (Olof Svensson} parents (Sven Olsson and Ingeborg Persson} mill on the premises for their remaining lifetimes.

It is hereby agreed upon and two copies of this contract are vexlade XE "vexlade" .


Östersund on January 9, 1901


Owner:
Carl G. Skytte


Lessee:
Olof Svensson

It is hereby certified with the handwritten signatures of the undersigned witnesses.


Witness:
Albert Olsén
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Lydia Johansson

Olof Hjerpe
Table 93 (288)

Olof Hjerpe5, Brita Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Olof Hjerpe 
	B
	Oct 13, 1814
	
	Olof lived in Stamgärde, Undersåker.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 7, 1841 
	
	

	S
	Anna Åkesdotter 
	B
	Sep 24, 1815 
	Kall
	

	
	
	D
	June 5, 1891
	
	

	E1
	Anders Johan Olsson Hjerpe 
	B
	June 7, 1838 
	
	Anders emigrated to the USA on April 16, 1870.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Andreas 0.  Hjerpe 
	B
	June 23, 1842 
	Åre
	Andreas emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Åke Hjerpe 
	B
	May 18, 1852 
	Åre
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 28, 1864 
	Undersåker
	


Olof Hjerpe lived on company Farm No. 102 in the Village of Tjerntorpet after 1838, when he received it from his father {Anders Hjerpe}.  It was recorded as follows:

· The cottage is 14 alnars {28 feet} long, of which the porch and house 6 alnars {12 feet} 9¼ alnars {18½ feet} wide and 18 layers high.  It has a roof of double boards, tongue and groove inner ceiling, a floor built of planks.  It has 3 windows in the cottage and 1 in house, all 7/4.  It also has a fireplace in the house, a fireplace in the cottage with well braced of wood, iron spikes, and 3 doors with a lock.  It is 8 years old.

· A cottage 11½ alnars {23 feet} long, of which the porch with barn makes up 4 alnars {8 feet}, 7½ alnars {15 feet} wide and 17 layers high.  It has a roof of double boards, an inner ceiling built of tongue and grooved boards, a floor built of planks, a fireplace with a baking oven, boards, iron spikes, and 2 windows of 5½ squares
.  It is 44 years old and any damaged by rot.

· A barn 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 11 layers high.  It has a roof built of boards, a baking oven, a fireplace with boards and wooden spikes, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks.  It is 23 is old and has room enough for 5 cows and 25 sheep or goats.  A new floor was installed 3 years ago.  

· A barn joined with a small house with a 4 alnars {8 feet} wide cover 6¼ alnars {12½ feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 13 layers high with a roof built of boards.  It was repaired 23 years ago.

· A granary, 9¼ alnars {18½ feet}, (of which the threshing barn is 3¼ alnars {6½ feet}), 9¼ alnars {18½ feet} wide, 11 layers high.  It has a roof is built of tree branches, bark and dirt, 2 dry leaves, and a new baking oven.  It is 15 years old.  

· A summer barn, 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide and 7 layers high.  The roof is oven and board.  It is 1 year old and in good condition.  

· A hay barn, 7 alnars {14 feet} square and 9 layers high.  It has a roof is built of birch bark, tree branches and sod and a floor built of kli XE "kli" 

· 2 hay barns accept homeowner.  

· Cropland consisting of 8½ malings of new land and 3½ malings of open land 

· Fence consisting of 313 Hagabottn and 314 fathoms Hagabottn bad 

· Mountains 16 loads of hay within the fence, 1 load förmanigs XE "förmanigs"  swampland, 2 loads from Eric Anders Drolet XE "Drolet" , and outer and external flinkdrolen XE "flinkdrolen" 
, 19 loads from Dolpmyran {Dolp Swamp}.

· This farm can feed 2 cows, 1 calf and 10 sheep or goats during the year and sometimes a horse.  The Manor House shed and hay purchased 7 loads annually.

· During the last 5 years, the tenant has broken up about 5 malings, partly of land and partly of new land.  

· Within the fence there is still good access to land that can be plowed and cultivated

Purchase Agreement

I {Erik Ersson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Anna Brita Persdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to former buyer (Olof Andersson} for an agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand six hundred (1,600) Riksdaler.

This i XE "i" ncludes my remaining ownership rights to a farm listed in the tax records as Company Farm No. 4 in the Village of Stamgärde consisting of 5/16 of an acre.

It also i XE "i" ncludes all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

As security for receiving these rights, I {Olof Andersson} give the seller (Erik Ersson} the right to request and receive a mortgage here at the next Court Session.

He shall then be responsible for all of the farm taxes and burdens by whatever name they are called, and shall also be responsible for the Reserved Rights to the seller’s (Erik Ersson} uncle (father’s brother} 

It is hereby confirmed and completed in the presence of witnesses on May 1, 1862 and Olof Anders now has the right to immediately take possession of the farm and be responsible for the mortgage.


Seller:
Lars Jonssons estate of Brattland, 



Erik Ersson and his wife {Anna Brita Persdotter}


Buyer:
Olof Andersson

(289)
Witness: 
Rikard Antonsson of Stamgärde 



Simon Jonsson of Stamgärde

Purchase Agreement

We (________________} the undersigned executors of the estate of deceased farmer Olof Andersson of Hjerpe hereby knowingly release and sell to worker (Per Danielsson of Dahlen} and his wife {Kerstin Larsdotter}.

This transaction is for the mentioned Olof Hjerpe portion of Company Farm No. 4 in the Village of Stamgärde, Undersäker Parish and Municipality consisting of ninety-five one-hundred-twenty-eighths (95/128) of an acre

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand five hundred (2,500) Riksdaler is partially paid on this date through fulfillment of the buyer mortgage demand and partially through giving a promissory note.  

The buyer shall also be responsible for the Reserved Rights to Jacob Ersson in accordance with the established contract, which is hereby secured with a farm mortgage.

Therefore, we surrender this portion of the farm with all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and deliver the deed to Per Danielsson and his wife to have in their complete possession.

They will enter it into the Deed Book at their own expense, and may take possession of it at the next Court Session on the 1st of next May.

With purchase follows a Kokugn XE "Kokugn" 
, which is engaged in the purchase amount.

From this farm follows warehouse hay, acknowledged and föräkras XE "föräkras" 
.


Stamgärde on March 13, 1869


Seller:
Anna Åkesdotter, widow of deceased Olof Hjerpe 


Buyer:
Andreas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, son of Hjerpe Per Danielsson

(290)
Witness:
H. Edfeldt 



Olof Carlsson Stamgärde

Ingeborg Hjerpe
Table 94 (290)

Ingeborg Hjerpe5, Brita Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Ingeborg Hjerpe 
	B
	Apr 4, 1816
	
	Ingeborg lived in Berge, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 14, 1839 
	
	

	S
	Johan Ahlgren 
	B
	1807
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 28, 1876
	
	

	E1
	Brita Christina Ahlgren 
	B
	Apr 23, 1839 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 29, 1870 
	Åre
	

	E2
	Jonas Ahlgren 
	B
	Jan 17, 1842
	
	I think Jonas may have emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Elisabeth Ahlgren 
	B
	Mar 5, 1845 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 6, 1930
	Luleå
	

	E4
	Anders Ahlgren 
	B
	Oct 29, 1848 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 13, 1914 
	Hallen
	

	E5
	Olof Ahlgren 
	B
	Oct 7, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 27, 1909 
	Åre
	

	E6
	Nils Ahlgren 
	B
	Mar 31, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 30, 1937 
	Jukkasjärvi XE "Jukkasjärvi" 
	


Farmhand Johan Ahlgren from Berge, Åre was charged with taking schnapps to Lappmarken and selling it there on March 16, 1842.

He denied being guilty and he denied the truth of mountain man Lars Torkilssons and Lars Larssons from Kall Mountain before District Court on April 4th of last year, but Ahlgren could not present any challenges against these witnesses.

Ahlgren admitted, however, that he allowed him make of unknown persons from Herånger in Norway, that gave tiddriva XE "tiddriva"  purifies to Forssa and taking schnapps there that belonged to these persons to the mountain men
, but denied having ägt XE "ägt" 
 this schnapps or selling it.

With that resolved, Lars Torkilsson and Lars Larsson certified under oath that Johan Ahlgren on March 16, of this past year of 1842 took schnapps to the mountains and additionally sold it to the native Laplanders for cash payment. 

and Ahlgren because on August 20th of this year agreed, 

and did not have any challenge for these witnesses that enter, 

therefore try without regard on Ahlgren’s denial to find it reasonable trap Ahlgren that for this schnapps for sale and trade to Native Laplanders 

with a fine of 33 Riksdaler 16 Species or l missing thereto, 

sentence that in prison for a month, 

Ahlgren must also repay witnesses Lars Torkilsson and Lars Larsson for their trip to the Court Session a total amount of 9 Riksdaler.

Johan Ahlgren sued farmer (Johan Hansson of Berge} and his wife {Brita Stina Jönsdotter} in Undersåker District Court spring court session that he had received a verbal promise from Johan Hansson that in exchange for himself and his children providing  certain days of labor that Hansson’s farm (which was in the region located near the ½ Gefsjön) may be used as Johan Ahlgren had promised him 

on and after his ability was discontinued ontskilliga XE "ontskilliga"  costs for the occupation of this land.  

But now Johan Ahlgren’s acquire has sold this farm to other residents there. 

With this sale, he has robbed Ahlgren of all the days of work that were provided by him and his children.

Hansson must now promise to provide fair compensation in accordance with the Estate Inventory Report, and to pay 240 Riksdalers as a payment for their work and for their court costs.  


Brattland on March 16, 1863 

(291)

Forsbergsson

On September 29, 1862 for Rettades XE "Rettades" 
 

upon the demand of Company Worker Johan Ahlgren of Berge, 

an assessment with soldier by Juror Johan Er XE "Er" ssons of Brattland, 

on his worker Ahlgren under the running for the last five elapsed years 

discontinued on the land Böhle designated invind XE "invind" 
 Gefsjön, 

that he used after receiving permission from farmer Johan Hansson of Berge 

there he has the rights to this farm in Berge that the land  belonged to

This piece of land, which is located along Ahlgrens farm building accommodations, was found as follows:

· about 1 maling, of which half is chopped of roots and therefore the work expense accounts for 5 Riksdaler 

· and the other half romvend XE "romvend"  and fertilized and is valued at 10 Riksdaler 

· afterwards iberekning XE "iberekning" 
 received the usefulness Ahlgren had thereof, in whole reversed about 1 maling which is fertilized and seeded again with tiondefrö XE "tiondefrö" 
.  It looks beautiful and is evaluated at 30 Riksdaler.

· on bölesvaln XE "bölesvaln"  is built, 4½ malings fertilized by which treer XE "treer"  seeded again with timothy hay {4½ time 10 = 45 Riksdaler?}

· 1½ malings in which Ahlgren harvested rye this summer as good as on the other croplands.  It appears to be well worked and is currently valued at to 30 Riksdaler {1½ time 30 = 45 Riksdaler?}

making a total of 135 Riksdaler
 for the above items.

· This about this year salvaged on these croplands 

· Of which Ahlgren gone in mistning XE "mistning"  without the enjoyment lagafar XE "lagafar"  day is assessed at 120 loads at 50 Species per lisspund {20 pounds}.  

It is hereby completed and certified sommåren XE "sommåren" 
 P. Ersson of Bergson 


Johan Ersson With original exact certified 

(292)
Anders Edlund of Brattland

I {Jonas Andersson of Bräcke Parish} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to the tenant living on this place (Johan Ahlgren} and his wife {Ingeborg Andersdotter of Åre and Berge}.

This transaction i XE "i" ncludes all of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bräcke in Ähre Parish consisting of 1 acre by last Record to make land contained within the allocated supplemental land called Getvikstrakten located on the east side of Gefsjön’s Outlet in this Parish 

The agreed upon purchase amount is four hundred forty (440) Riksdaler for which the buyer has given me a promissory note on this date.

It is the responsibility of the buyer, on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session, to take possession of the cottages from that transaction date and to annually make a payment of 4 Riksdaler per year during the first 10 years and to pay 5 Riksdaler per year for each year afterwards to the owner of that farm from which this farm has been partitioned.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I surrender my ownership rights to this supplemental land with everything that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and the buyer lawfully acquires complete ownership rights for 440 Riksdaler.  


Åre on February 1, 1872 


Seller:
Jonas Andersson of Bräcke Parish


Buyer:
Johan Ahlgren of Berge

(292)
Witness: 
Per Nilsson of Totten 



Jonas Lindholm of Åre Parish

I {Johan Ahlgren} hereby knowingly release and sell all of my fir-forest rights in Åhre Parish or Getviksnäset to Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Offerdal and Olden.  

The buyer (Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} shall immediately take possession in its entirety for thirty (30) years time of free disposal and usage of all trees that uppgår XE "uppgår"  to 8 inch stump at the base or more, all in English measure.  

The area is limited to the land contained within the area to Barklunds forest to the south and north, to the east against Tönneberg, and to the west against Jerfsjön and Strömmen.

The agreed upon purchase amount of six hundred (600) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of April of this year.  

The buyer reserves the right for himself all streams going over the farm so as to be able to have free and unrestricted rights for timber floating on the watercourses.  

The buyer reserves for himself necessary wood belongs to and piers by that dimontioner XE "dimontioner"  that preferably by the purchased forest.

The buyer reserves for himself the right the necessary cleared roads for livestock and store house for their purchased forest products.  

The buyer gives the seller the right to reserve for himself the required uppkomst XE "uppkomst"  agreement to request and receive a mortgage on the purchased forest.

This transaction is hereby agreed upon and acknowledged by both parties in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

To additionally confirm our agreement of this contract, 2 exact copies were made and this contract is signed with our own handwriting.  


Undersåker and Hjerpen on March 7, 1872


Seller:
Johan Ahlgren of Åhre and Gerviksnäset


Buyer:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Offerdal and Olden

(293)
Witness: 
Oscar Strandell of Edet 



Christian Ersson in Svensta

Olof transferred this contract to P. Johansson on April 29, 1872.

Photograph (293)

Nils Ahlgren, born on March 31, 1862

I have borrowed this photograph from Maj XE "Maj" -Britt Enberg of Krokom

Photograph (294)

Standing from left are:  Nils Olausson born on June 16, 1870, his wife Ida (born Lundström}, Erik Lagerbäck born on October 7, 1879, Elisabet (born Larsson}, and her spouse Johan Chernström born on June 16, 1870 (twin brother of Nils}, and sitting in the middle is their youngest daughter Emma born on June 5, 1886.  

Sitting on the left is their mother Elisabeth Johansson (born Ahlgren} born on March 5, 1845 and sitting on the right is her husband Olaus Johansson born on August 5, 1844.

I {Johan Ahlgren} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Ingeborg Andersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to this undivided farm partitioned from Company Farm No. 1 Bräcke, Åre Parish to our son (Olof Johansson}.

The purchase amount of five hundred 500 Riksdaler shall be paid by the buyer on the 1st of next May and the buyer shall also provide the following annual Reserved Rights to my wife and I for both of our remaining lifetimes:

· Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 goats or sheep and 2 offspring of the goats or sheep.  

· 6 foot grain unharmed and well cleaned from strange emnen XE "emnen"  and containing at least 240 lisspunds {2.4 tons} weight and to smooth provide mill pasture and kåsen XE "kåsen" 
 lodging, 

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses  

· A Christian burial after death

With either of our deaths, the following Reserved Rights are discontinued: 

· Feed and fodder for 2 sheep or goats 

· The mill pasture and kåsen XE "kåsen" 
 then go back to the farm owner

· The other benefits are to continue without revision until the death of the last spouse.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, my wife {Ingeborg Andersdotter} and I {Johan Ahlgren} surrender our ownership rights to this farm to my son (Olof Johansson} as his legally purchased livestock and property ownership rights in accordance with my Purchase Agreement.



Åre and Getviksnäset on October 8, 1875 



Seller:
Johan Ahlgren

I attest my satisfaction with this transaction acknowledged on above date.


Buyer:
Olof Johansson

The seller as well as the buyer acknowledged and undersigned this transaction.  

(295)
Witness:
Lars Olsson Tångböle 



Esten Nilsson Tångböle
Photograph (295)

From left is Elisabeth (born Ahlgren) born in 1845, great grandson Bengt Chernström, grandson Olof, and son Johan Chernström born in 1870.  

This photograph was possibly taken on Elisabeth’s 80th birthday.  

Margit Johansson of Bromma loaned me this photograph.

Anders Hjerpe
Table 95 (296)

Anders Hjerpe5, Brita Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Anders Hjerpe 
	B
	Feb 17, 1821
	
	Anders lived in Berge, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 24, 1849 
	
	

	S
	Agnes Olsdotter 
	B
	1816
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 2, 1881
	
	

	E1
	Anders Hjerpe 
	B
	Nov 26, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 27, 1920
	
	

	E2
	Olof Andersson Hjerpe 
	B
	Jan 7, 1857
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 25, 1915 
	Åre
	


Photograph (296)

Maria (born Olausson) born on October 1, 1857 and her husband Olof Andersson “Hjerpe" born on January 7, 1857.

The owner of this photograph is Torsten Ånnegård 

Farm Contract

I {Johan Hansson of Berge} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell a farm which was recently purchased Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge in Åhre Parish to the tenant living on this place (Anders Andersson} and his wife {Agnes Olsdotter} for the agreed upon purchase amount of one hundred thirty-three Riksdaler 16 Species.  

This amount shall be paid within 2 years of the above date and 5 percent annual interest shall be charged from the transaction date until payment occurs.

the farm cottage through completion to allow release

the buyer shall take possession, 

This farm cottage present and future unaltered scope is our undersigned limits and situation final.  

This farm is the site called Gräft-Lägden west of Kläppen and its property lines go to the east and north of the farm usage presently contained within the area

south to and below a föreåldrig XE "föreåldrig" 
 field, 

west to a hay barn, on the 

south end and continues northward 

to the starting point by and with 24 alnars {48 feet} distance from western revised property line.

There also the roughly 2 loads of new undivided land, 

located on the farm western parcel, 

of outlying land, 

north of angörne XE "angörne"  and frontier 

in south to Grells Jönssons presently distributed, 

in west to the smaller creek, 

and to flaarne XE "flaarne" 
 northward.  

necessary pasture and armfuls of wood 

and water saw employment for his own needs as long as the now being may be used.

For an annual property payment, 

the farmer pays to the homestead tenant 

6 valid man days of work after one year from the transaction date.  

3 days in the beginning of August and 3 days in the month of May during seeding time 

at the tenant’s cost.  

These ownership rights have been legally purchased by the farmer, his children and heirs 

without revising or increasing the days of work, 

but in the hending XE "hending" 
 that cottages want 

the seller should be offered to this homestead tenant.

It is hereby completed and acknowledged by both parties with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Berge on May 7, 1851


Seller:
Johan Hansson of Berge 


Buyer:
Anders Andersson and his wife Agnis Olsdotter

(297)
Witness: 
Eric Persson of Mörwiken 



Jonas Andersson of Bräcke Parish

Contract

We (Anders Andersson & Agnis Olofsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our ownership rights to this undivided farm now contained under Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge, Ähre Parish, Undersåker Municipality to our oldest son (Anders Andersson}. 

The agreed upon purchase amount is one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler.  Three hundred (300) Riksdaler shall be paid at the next Court Session new year to our youngest son (Olof Andersson}.  The other part of the purchase amount is hereby paid by the buyer to eliminate the debt.  The farm buyer shall also provide Reserved Rights to both my wife and myself.

The buyer shall now immediately take possession of this farm with all of its belongings.  

It is hereby completed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

June 29, 1878



Anders Andersson and Agnis Olofsdotter 

(297)
Witness:
Petter Pehrsson of Björnänge 



Jonas Andersson of Berge

The above Purchase Agreement is agreed upon as truthfully acknowledged by the undersigned.


Buyer: 
Anders Andersson.  


Witness: 
Petter Persson 

(297)

Gertrud Jacobsdotter

Nils Andersson
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Nils Andersson5, Anders Nilsson Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Nils Andersson 
	B
	Sep 26, 1816 
	
	Nils lived in Måläng and moved later to Orrviken.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 22, 1854 
	
	

	S
	Anna Karlsdotter 
	B
	1833
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 24, 1910
	
	

	E1
	Anders Nilsson 
	B
	Sep 11, 1855 
	Sunne
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Purchase Agreement

I {Göran Bengtsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Orrviken, in Sunne Parish and Municipality consisting of 1 acre to farmer (Nils Andersson of Måläng and his wife {Anna Carlsdotter}.

This farm consists entirely of 2 acres with ½ of this taxes and burdens and privilege which I bought me then reason of the Purchase Agreement of April 27, 1861

The mutually agreeable purchase amount of two thousand seven hundred twenty five (2,725) Riksdaler shall be paid then the farm buyer shall take possession the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.

For a mortgage owner Petter Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Sund and Refsund XE "Refsund"  1,500 Riksdaler 

as well as the remaining 1,225 Riksdaler this currency to me said day in cash paid

We have signed this Purchase Agreement with our own handwritten signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to Yttermera the certainty of this


Orrviken on April 24, 1865


Seller:
Göran Bengtsson of Orrviken 


Buyer:
Nils Andersson of Måläng 

(298)
Witness:
Per Andersson of Gärde



Eric Jonsson of Gärde


Rights copy 


certified:
Per Andersson

Contract

I {Nils Andersson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Anna Carlsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to Nils Jonas Pers and his wife {Lisbeth Olofsdotter}. 

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided farm now contained under Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Måläng in Sunne Parish and Municipality.

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand five hundred (2,500) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May and the farm buyer shall take possession at that time.

In addition, the buyer shall provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits to my mother {Kerstin Persdotter} for her remaining lifetime:

· 3 barrels of grain 

· 4 kapper of rye well cleaned that is grown on the farm, 

· 2 barrels of potatoes

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow and 2 goats 2 sheep with their offspring 

· and ten (10) Riksdaler in cash money, 

· a pair of shoes and 2 pairs of each tannat XE "tannat"  year and a shirt.  

· The entrance hall with an attic room above for lodging

· which by purchase shall after my orders good furnishings, 

· free space in the barn as well as drying, brewing and baking, 

· Firewood and heat

· maling, 

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

Upon completion of the above purchase and sales letter that I surrender this homestead with house, land, possessions and cottages, such which can now be found and legally purchased by Nils Jonas Persson and Lisbeth Olofsdotter that eternal ownership and cultivation rights and understands of District Court established here.  


Måläng and Sunne on October 18, 1864


Seller:
Nils Andersson


Anna Carlsdotter 


Buyer:
Nils Jonas Persson


Lisbeth Olofsdotter

(299)
Witness:
Bengt Bengtsson



Olof Bengtsson

Purchase Agreement

I {Nils Andersson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Anna Carlsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to our only son (Anders Nilsson} and his wife {Christina Johansdotter}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Orrviken in Sunne Parish consisting of 1 taxable acre

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session and the farm buyer shall then take possession.  

In addition, the farm buyer shall also provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits to both my wife and I for our remaining lifetimes:  

· Feed and nursing care in winter as well as summer for 2 cows and 4 sheep or goats and their offspring, to the following autumn

· Twenty-seven (27) bushels of grain

· two (2) bushels of well cleaned rye and free from small grain such as that which is annually grown on the farm moder XE "moder" 
 field
· twenty-seven (27) bushels of potatoes

· twenty skålpunds {80 pounds} of pork 

· 1 maling in tredd XE "tredd"  field there I myself for good find for seeding grain

· 1 maling for peas sowing seed

· 11 square enclosed in west end in kryddgård XE "kryddgård"  
· 4 square refvar for hay between farm and buildings and the thereon existing hay barn and in Gräsmyrsvedet 

· 5 square refvar of cultivated land.  

· The small cottage for lodging 

· access and usage to the log shelter, barn, cellar, brew, and Back cottage and granary as necessary 

· The free seden XE "seden"  is dried and ground by the farm owner

· 20 loads of unmixed barn fertilizer annually is charged the free cultivation land 
· chop and dry necessary firewood of Farm 

· further provide sjuts XE "sjuts"  from summer mountain cabin for that which mine cattle there 

· tillvärkes XE "tillvärkes" 
 and to and from mill and church and all other necessary errands

· tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses as necessary and required.

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced by:

· one-third of the grain, rye and potatoes

· one-half of the peas, seed, and a Cow

It is hereby certified in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Orrviken on April 24, 1882


Seller:
Nils Andersson and Anna Carlsdotter


Buyer:
Anders Nilsson and Christina Johansdotter

(300)
Witness: 
Per Andersson of Gärde 



J.  Bellman Sunne Farm

Anna Andersdotter
Table 97 (300)

Anna Andersdotter5, Anders Nilsson Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Anna Andersdotter 
	B
	Dec 20, 1817 
	
	Anna lived in Hara No. 2 in Sunne

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Olof Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Nov 23, 1811 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 9, 1863
	
	

	E1
	Olof Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Jan 28, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 5, 1862
	
	

	E2
	Lisa Olofsdotter 
	B
	July 12, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1940
	
	

	E3
	Christina Olofsdotter
	B
	July 12, 1858
	
	

	
	
	D
	1945
	
	


I {Lars Jönsson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife hereby knowingly release and sell our ownership rights to this farm to farmhand (Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stackris}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Hara in Sunne Parish, which I before possessed before I purchased the Company Farm called the Bengsvend Farm consisting of 3 taxable acres, according to the contract of April 21, 1845.  

also is a agreement Treffat XE "Treffat"  that the farmer shall receive an additional 6 productive Melningar which shall seized from the main road on western side of farm to the fence 

The purchase amount of seven hundred twenty five (725) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.

The farm buyer shall then take possession and shall pay reasonable annual interest to the farm owner of 5 kappers of grain in heaped measure and 2 Riksdaler.  

Then he shall be freed from any further responsibilities.

For the fulfillment and completion of these conditions, I surrender this farm with house and ownership rights , forest and land 

that the farm contains 

and give over to that this before mentioned Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and their wife children and heirs eternal use, use and cultivation without the smallest incursion and reprehension, 

We attest our complete satisfaction with this contract with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Sunne and Orrviken on December 4, 1834 



Seller:
Lars Jönsson


Buyer:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

(301)
Witness:
A. Andersson of Önsvede 



Anders Nilsson of Stackris

Photograph (301)

From left is Erik Nikolaus, Oskar Germanius, parents Olof and Lisa (born Olofsdotter} Wiklund born on July 12, 1858, Johannes Sigfrid, and probably Anna Kristina.  

This photograph was taken in Nysvede in Orrviken.  

I have borrowed this photograph from Dagny and Per Wiklund of Fannbyn in Sunne.

Contract

I {Anna Andersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to my son-in-law (Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} and his wife {Lisa Olofsdotter}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half this undivided Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Hara in Sunne Parish consisting entirely of ¼ of ½

There shall be no other purchase amount except to provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits to me for as long as they own this farm:

· daily care

· clothes

· tender and decent attention and care which after was necessary called upon, 

However, in the event this farm is sold to some other owner,

the Reserved Rights benefits shall proceed in the manner described in the terms of the contract established on this day.

I {Faste Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hara} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights on this property to one-fourth (¼) of this undivided farm to my ward’s (Christina Olofsdotters} to Olof Olofsson and his wife {Lisa Olofsdotter}.

The purchase amount of nine hundred fifty Riksdaler (950) is paid on this date in accordance with the terms of this agreement and is hereby acknowledged by each of us.

Therefore, we surrender this property and give the right to take possession on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session to Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his wife {Lisa Olofsdotter}.  

The buyer alone shall be responsible for the expense of entering this purchase into the Deed Book.

We affirm that both of us are satisfied, and we have signed it with our own handwriting in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Sunne and Hara on February 28, 1882 


Seller:
Anna Andersdotter and Faste Ol XE "Ol" ofsson


Buyer:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and Lisa Olofsdotter

(302)
Witness: 
Jöns Mattsson and Lars Andersson

According to the Estate Assessment the fixed property was:

The undivided Company Farm No. ¼ of ½ Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Hara

1500.00

Personal Property 

together under different rubrics

 492.00

Total Riksdaler

1,992.00

From here retired
Estate debts according to the Estate Assessment:

miscellaneous posts
587.00

Dividend paid at ½ %
9.00

Widow’s privileges to loose property
24.00

in morgongåva XE "morgongåva" 
, not undertaken before 

the wedding, ½ portion goes to the widow 

by mannenslott XE "mannenslott"  in property
34.00

Remaining for distribution

1338.00
Total Riksdaler 

1992.00

According to resisting invoice remains for distribution:

1338.00 

From this balance, which is calculated deposit in premises,

for this undivided farm consisting of one-fourth (¼) portion of ½ Company Farm No. 2 

in the Village of Hara goes to: 

Widow Anna Andersdotter receives one-half (½) 

of this property for her ownership rights to:

669.00

Daughter Lisa and her husband Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 

receives one-fourth (¼) of this property 

for their ownership rights:

334.50

Daughter Christina Olofsdotter receives 

one-fourth (¼) of this property for her

ownership rights:

  334.50

Total Riksdaler 

1338.00

Sunne and Hara on the above year and date.


Examiner and Distributor:



Jöns Mattsson 



Lars Andersson Hara 

We affirm that both parties are satisfied with this inheritance contract.



Anna Andersdotter 



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Faste Ol XE "Ol" ofsson (guardian for Christina Olofsdotter)

Ingeborg Andersdotter
Table 98 (303)

Ingeborg Andersdotter5, Anders Nilsson Essing4, Nils Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Ingeborg Andersdotter 
	B
	June 29, 1823
	
	Ingeborg lived in Räcksjön No. 1 in Sunne.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 1, 1857 
	
	

	S
	Olof Persson 
	B
	Mar 23, 1830 
	Sunne
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 22, 1871
	
	

	E1
	Per Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Nov 11, 1859 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 3, 1860
	
	

	E2
	Anders Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Dec 24, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 14, 1878
	
	

	E3
	Magnus Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Mar 6, 1863 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 12, 1929
	Frösön
	


Olof Persson bought his farm in 1857.

I {Lars Månsson} with the good agreement and consent of dear wife hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights of this undivided Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Räcksjön to farmhand (Olof Pehrsson of Stackris}.

The purchase amount of eight hundred (800) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  They shall receive possession and ownership rights of this farm at the next moving time.

For the fulfillment of these terms and conditions, I hereby surrender this homestead with house and cottages, forest and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and give the deed to Olof Pehrsson so that he and his heirs shall have eternal occupancy, cultivation and farming rights.  

We attest our complete satisfaction with this contract.  


Orrviken on October 9, 1857


Seller:
Lars Månsson


Buyer:
Olof Pehrsson

(303)
Witness:
A. Andersson of Önsvede



Pehr Mårtensson of Önsvede

On December 29, 1879

The Same Day:  

Representatives for Reserved Rights Recipient Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stackris at the request of Erik Anderssons of Räcksjön agreed to put it into the Deed Book because of the following contract.  

"Recorded Minutes by way of auction in Räcksjön on June 26, 1876.

Same Day

Be made custodian for the property of the deceased Olof Pehrsson survived by his wife {Ingeborg Andersdotter of Räcksjön} and children and allow the undersigned by reason of District Court document Judgment, to sell at public auction to the highest bidder for these children’s benefit this undivided farm now contained under Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Räcksjön in Sunne Parish that their parents acquired during their lifetime.

The farm buyer shall now immediately receive all that can now be found on this farm including buildings and the crops being grown, and the farm buyer shall be responsible for all of the farm’s taxes and burdens from the 1st of next May at the next lidna XE "lidna" .

Sålunda was mustered farm and Eric Andersson of Orrviken accepted the highest bid of one thousand five hundred eighty (1,580) Riksdaler, which was concluded with the auction gavel, and Eric Andersson purchases the right to request and enter it into the Deed Book of Räcksjön.  


Date as above


Seller:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stackris 


Buyer:
Eric Andersson of Orrviken

The same day it is read and configured and the seller and the buyer sign it in their own handwriting and certify the deed: 



Jöns Persson 

(304)

Anders Eriksson (both of Räcksjön)

In addition came before partly report over deb XE "deb"  of January 17, 1876 

an Estate Assessment was conducted after the death of widow Ingeborg Andersdotter of Räcksjön, which Estate Assessment was given by hand, 

which Ingeborg Andersdotter, who died on December 18, 1875, left through the executors of the estate to her sons Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and Magnus Olofsson, and that among the property assets were a homestead now contained under Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Räcksjön consisting of 1 3/8 acres, 

partly one of this District Court on January 10, 1859 for Olof Persson was made Title Deed on a homestead now contained under Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Räcksjön

that was bought on October 9 1857 by Lars Månsson, 

partial excerpt of this Court guardian Chapter Recorded Minutes 

for the next Winter Court Session on April 11, 1876, 

which was legally purchased, 

that of the District Court 

then that the custodian for the underage sons of Ingeborg Andersdotter {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and Magnus Olofsson}, guardian Olof Olofsson of Stackris, 

partial excerpt of Court The Book for this on April 11, 1876, which gave by hand, 

Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson then requested permission from this Court to sell his ward’s ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 the Village of Räcksjön consisting of 1 3/80 acre,

and that of the District Court the 23 thereupon 

the following in question may be allowed for sale at public auction.


Year and Date as above


On behalf of this Court:
Sten Geetz

(304)

On January 17, 1876 an Estate Assessment was conducted after widow Ingeborg Andersdotter of Recksjön died on December 18th of last year.  She is survived by two children, Anders and Magnus Olofssöner, both underage minors, each of whose rights were guarded by their custodian Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stackris.  Property brought about by close relationships such along with time of death be for that reason the Estate Assessment was carried out in the following order:  





Riksdalers . Species

survived by


Property




This undivided farm now contained under 




Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Recksjön 




consisting of 1 3/8 acre, appraised at:
800.00




Cash
29.75




Gold

1

Ring
2.50




Copper

1 

Kettle & Coffee Pot
3.00




Tin items
1.50




Cooking containers
5.50




Farm tools
3.00


1

Baking Oven
20.00




Furniture

1 

Clothes bucket
8.00


1 

Sofa
4.00


1 

Schenk
2.00




Subtotal

877.25




Wefstolar
2.00




grain 8 kubfot
16.00


1 

party Forås XE "Forås" 
38.00


1

Cow
45.00


1 

Sheep  
5.00


 1 

Goat
5.00

Clothes

3

Caps
1.00


5 

Silk scarves
17.00


4 

Wool shawls
10.00


3
ea
clothes ningar XE "ningar" 
15.00


6
ea
petticoats
8.00


2
ea
Tröjjor
3.00


4
ea
disguises
2.00

Lintyger XE "Lintyger" 




Cotton fabric
4.00


3
ea 
Mattresses
10.00


3
ea Cases
12.00


2
ea 
Pillows
2.00

Miscellaneous



Carpets
2.00


1

party skin
6.00

1

Spinning wheel
1.00

3

Containers
4.00




Subtotal

 102.00




Property Debts



Burial expense
15.00




Debt according to submitted promissory note
750.00




The terms of this declared debt
37.00




Retained possessions total is consequently
 290.25



Total Riksdaler
1092.25

That all become right declared and does not with want and knowledge is hidden and left in, under sworn commitment.


Sunne and Recksjön on above date



Nils Andersson of Orrviken 



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stackris

(305)
Witness: 
Mårten Magnusson of Orrviken 



Jöns Persson of Räcksjön

Brita Wäll
Table 99 (306)

Brita Wäll5, Anders Wäll4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Brita Wäll 
	B
	Aug 1, 1817 
	
	Brita lived in Hammerdal and Ström

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 1, 1844 
	
	

	S
	Welam Nilsson 
	B
	Oct 16, 1798 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 18, 1883
	
	

	E1
	Juliana Welamsdotter 
	B
	Dec 28, 1844 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 1, 1919
	Ström
	

	E2
	Karin Welamsdotter 
	B
	Aug 19, 1848 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 24, 1904 
	
	


Welam had been married previously to Karin Nilsdotter, born in 1786, and they had two children:
	E3
	Nils Welamsson 
	B
	June 17, 1826
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Brita Lisa Welamsdotter 
	B
	Dec 1, 1830
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


November 18, 1839

Parish Clerk (Wilhelm Nilsson} has bought one-third ownership of our above mentioned jointly inherited farm consisting entirely of one and one-third acres from my brother (Carl Jönsson}.

I {Olof Jonsson} in consultation with my dear wife {Lisbet Ersdotter} have also now decided to sell this buyer one-fourth (¼) of our ownership rights to two-thirds of this farm, or one-sixth (1/6) portion of the entire farm.

The agreed upon purchase amount is one hundred sixty six (166) Riksdaler 23 Species.

Upon payment of this purchase amount, the ownership rights will be released by me on that date and the buyer shall take possession 

use and qvalt XE "qvalt" 
 is owned and is used,

both in into and lands which belong to the estate 

also not any ownership rights by me of the buildings  or this year’s seed amount crops, 

and the payment of Reserved Rights to my mother {__________} for this portion of the farm.

Agreement and approval is hereby confirmed on the above date.


Seller:
Olof  (Signature Mark) Jonsson 



Lisbet  (Signature Mark) Ersdotter


Buyer:
Wilhelm Nilsson

(306)
Witness: 
A.  Å.  Rosenberg



Sven Svensson of Kärrgård or Näset

Then on this occasion of Farm owner Olaus Lithanders in next lidit XE "lidit"  Court Session going after per 3 in these Recorded Minutes for November 21st of this past year 

Parish Clerk Welam Nilssons asked for a mortgage on Ström portion of a Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bredkälen consisting of 2/3 of an acre as security for payment of the debt to him totaling one hundred ninety eight (198) Riksdaler 8 Species and for written annual interest according to the promissory note of January 4, 

and that other of July 6 of this past year of the District Court above written to {Olaus} Lithander 

should give Welam Nilsson a share of this application before the beginning of the next Court Session 

who had now Welam Nilsson on the Recorded Minutes Protracted signed
 the following opinion.  

This mortgage is temporarily suspended on this date by me and is attested and acknowledged by me.  


Bredgård in Ström on January 4, 1840



Welam Nilsson of Ström

(307)
Witness: 
Olof Salin smith worker  from Eskilstuna



Lars Johansson of Häste

Afterwards, after the legal reading of this, the Juror certified Welam Nilsson to be the owner of poor _________ on which a mortgage was requested 

Later, at the Court Session on January 4, 1840, a debt note was written with a payment of 104 Riksdaler 24 Species by which this requested mortgage should consequently be reduced.

It is hereby complied with in capability by Royal Court Judgment concerning mortgage on fast property on July 13, 1818 of 

the District Court found it reasonable that to Olof Lithanders 

as security of payment for his according to this promissory note 

the remaining debt of 128 Riksdaler 27 Species with above written annual interest vested.  

The mortgage on Welam Nilsson’s portion of homestead No. 1 in Bredkälen consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of an acre 

to apply to beneficial from next lidit XE "lidit"  Court Session 

the mortgage requested was drawn up in the records by postscript on a promissory note should be notified.

From the Parish Records I have found a little of what Welam Nilsson had for rights, responsibilities and benefits as the Parish Clerk:

As the donation for lodging, the Parish Clerk is granted at the cost of the Parish a building of 45 timber logs or 15 alnars {30 feet} long and 30 timber logs or 10 alnars {20 feet} wide.

Provided at times happens that Parish Clerk inconvenience 

for Bell-ringer for together ringing should now there of lack judgment 

on that God’s Duties may not be hindered for bursting reduce.  

The Parish Clerk was offered the freedom to live in the Parish cottage, to have a fire in the Parish cottage on Sundays 

and consist together ringing every Holiday 

for obtaining the Parish cottage 

assessed at 1 load on every chimney and ½ load on every farmer within the Parish that Parish Clerk Velam Nilsson was supposed to receive each year.  

Parish Clerk Welam Nilsson had, through this written request, sought additional compensation with 1 load of hay assessed on every chimney 

in regard to added inconvenience by Parish Clerk tiensten XE "tiensten" 
.

and there also understood that Parish this day must give a statement, 

why legal proceedings now properly order was preferred and answered in a different manner and with differing opinions.  

A portion of the current deferred him preferably want give after rad XE "rad"  and cottages 

it is occasion Parish Clerk uppbär XE "uppbär"  his compensation 

other again demand that a decided qvartum XE "qvartum" 
 ought is exposed.  

Finally proposed all current that were considerable in number into thereupon that Parish Clerk as a wage payment, 

probably may receive some hay after rad XE "rad"  and cottages but final grant.  This applies for one year.  

From the Recorded Minutes for December 26, 1850:

Parish Clerk Velam Nilsson brought forth new questions of additional payment of 1 load of hay assessed on every chimney is answered

by most with “no” and they wanted to have the Parish individuals help him with lodging, 

and then in posterity they could decide additional wage payments 

Ström Parish cottage 

dated as above is read and approved.  

General Parish Records on February 16, 1851.



Eric Andersson of Gärde



Mårten Zakrisson of Isthmus



M.  Selberg (Assistant Vicar)

From the Recorded Minutes of February 2, 1851:

Parish Clerk Welam Nilsson brought forth new questions of his ringing for God’s Duties should be denied during the coming year.  

The Parish permitted that assist exact payment 

therefore that under last year 

or 10 Riksdaler Sorgring XE "Sorgring"  and provided for by the deceased’s relatives.  

Recorded Minutes of October 2, 1859

Andreas Strömstedt
Table 100 (309)

Andreas Strömstedt5, Anders Wäll4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Andreas Strömstedt 
	B
	Apr 24, 1819 
	
	Andreas lived in Thorsfjärden, Ström

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 20, 1845
	
	

	S1
	Karin Olofsdotter 
	B
	Apr 15, 1806 
	
	There were no children in this marriage.

	
	
	D
	May 28, 1883
	
	

	
	
	M
	Aug 17, 1884
	
	

	S2
	Elisabeth Mikaelsdotter 
	B
	Sep 6, 1846 
	Ramsele
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 19, 1889
	
	

	E1
	Michael Peter
	B
	Dec 10, 1871 
	Ramsele
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anders Strömstedt 
	B
	July 27, 1884 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 20, 1956 
	Eijde
	

	E3
	Märta Brita Strömstedt 
	B
	Feb 9, 1886 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 9, 1964
	
	

	E4
	Johan Erik Strömstedt 
	B
	June 4, 1889 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 17, 1890
	
	


Elisabeth’s son Michael Peter received a terrible certified letter from a Svea lifeguard on October 11, 1890.  According to the note, it said that Andreas pushed his first wife Karin from the laundry dock and she drowned.

After both of the parents died, Anders and Märta went to a children's home.  Anders was left there for 6 years.  He was confirmed there as was the custom, and he subsequently went to Alavattnet as a farmhand.  

The Olsson’s of Alavattnet were kind-hearted people and he was left there for many years.  

He did not remember his parents and sister had he bottled contact with.  

When he checked the list, he was not on the roll call list, and he went ahead and notified them that Anders Strömstedt, got he know, that he was not on the list.  

Only Anders Andersson.  

Bortgjord thus! That stinks! 

It was after this happened, that he took the name Eijde, for now he should have rights to his own name.  

That name I have honored, and I am proud of that and happy that Märit has retaken it.  

But had father begun to research relatives first who had that perhaps become another man’s name such as Väll or why not Essing?

Anders Eijde’s daughter Hedvig wrote this story in a letter.

Andreas saw enough tillvaron XE "tillvaron"  through heavy and hard work.

With the thought that he was no longer a youth, and did not know what he would do without his armaräd XE "armaräd" 
 or what he should do with his youngest.  

You must believe that he was heartbroken, for he ended his son’s lives by suffocating them and then he was sent to prison.  He did not get any better in there and ended his life by strangling himself.  

Märta later moved to Ällvdalen and literate family there.

October 24, 1866 

Purchase Agreement

I {Carl Olof Löfgren} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Thorsfjerden in Ström Parish consisting of one-fourth (¼) acre according to the Title Deed of March 3, 1863 to (Anders Andersson Strömstedt of Thorsfjerden) for the following conditions:

1. The purchase amount is five hundred (500) Riksdaler.  This total has been paid to me, and the debt is hereby acknowledged.  

2. According to the allocation of the old farm property and on buildings belongs to now yielding farm above new manfarms XE "manfarms"  building, shed, woodshed, barn with fodder building, barn, cellar and eastern summer mountain cabin house with there in the house

3. Table, beds and a cupboard go with the house.  

Således I surrender this Thorsfjerden farm and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, 

that own and farm, which other legally purchased property, owned this property 

the buyer shall take possession on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  


Thorsfjerden on April 28, 1864 


Seller:
Carl Olof Löfgren


Buyer:
Anders Andreasson Strömstedt

(310)
Witness: 
Nils Ersson of Sjulsåsen 



Erik Ersson of Sjulsåsen

The son 

the seller 

proprietorship 

to sell farm division 

was confirmed with one of these Rights on March 3, 1863 

for himself there was made now came before Title Deed, 

as found of the District Court hindrance not meet 

that now informed the Proclamation of Anders Andreasson Strömstedt.  

Photograph (310)

Anders Eijde in his younger years.  

Borrowed from Hedvig Eriksson of Strömsund.  

October 18, 1869

Same Day:  D

Allow Andreas Strömstedt and his wife Karin Olsdotter to receive a mortgage on one-fourth (¼) of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Thorsfjerden as security for receiving their Reserved Rights benefits as stated in the following agreement:

I {Andreas Strömstedt} in consultation with my wife {Karin Olsdotter} hereby release and sell my total ownership according to the ownership rights contract to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Thorsfjerden Ströms Parish consisting of 4 portion of a taxable acre to Aaron Hansson from Jougdaberg for the following conditions:

Instead of a purchase amount, it is the responsibility of the current buyer to be responsible to my wife {Karin Olsdotter} and I for the following Reserved Rights for the remainder of our lifetimes: 

· 4 barrels of grain 

· 1/8 barrel of rye 

· 5 barrels of potatoes all well cleaned and from the farm’s annual crop, 

· 4 lisspunds {80 pounds} of well salted fish, 

· 4 kaappar cooking salt, 

· 10 alnars {20 feet} strop and 

· 10 alnars {20 feet} hemp fabric 

· 2 pairs of ready-made leather shoes, everything annually.  

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cows and 6 sheep or goats, sheep and goats with 2 of their offspring. 

· beaten to next the following autumn, 

· The entrance hall with passage vinn XE "vinn" 
 is reserved for lodging

· Access and usage of the shed, barn, cellar, balneal and back cottage as necessary

· A ride to and from church, mill and other essential needs within the Parish

· Firewood and heat

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· and uppassning XE "uppassning"  until the day of our death.  

When the death of my wife or myself, the Reserved Rights are to be suitably divided in half.

For providing these Reserved Rights, 

except the tenant nursing, 

as from buyer is responsible, 

the tenant may be released, 

by me 

joint or equal share with his 

cultivated on the farms infields 10 malings well broken and stone cleaned land, 

The tenant during this time must fertilize, plow and which, 

but by grain or churn and rot frukter XE "frukter" 
 crops there 

I annually reserve for myself one-half (½) instead of Reserved Rights seed.  

Afterwards, the land that in this manner becomes broken and released in fertile condition goes to the tenant, which shall then complete the entire Reserved Rights Agreement.

The farm buyer receives the existing land and cultivation tools, such as plows, harrows spade, iron spits, shovels and flåhack XE "flåhack" 
 etc., 

also a cow latter for the condition that to me to cow uppborna XE "uppborna"  a calf.  

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, the seller shall have the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm.

Approval of this sale with subordinate possessions and cottages is to occur at the next Court Session barmark XE "barmark" 
.  – 

The buyer shall receive the necessary seed amount next spring time without payment.


Ström and Thorsfjerden on March 26, 1866


Seller:
Andreas  (Signature Mark) Strömstedt



Karin  (Signature Mark) Olsdotter of Thorsfjerden

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract


Buyer:
Aron Hansson



Gunilla Amonsdotter

(312)
Witness:
Anders Andersson of Hillsand



Erik Jönsson of Sjulsåsen

Contract

I {Per Nilsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Thorsfjerden consisting of one-fourth (¼) of a taxable acre in accordance with my Purchase Contract of October 3, 1867 to (Anders Strömstedt) for the following conditions:

1. If the purchase amount for this farm is not paid to me, this without purchase amount shall be restored.

2. The buyer has the right to immediate occupancy of this farm.

3. The seller (_______________?} promises to faithfully obey the District Court and exactly surrender all farm belongings to writings and deeds.

4. As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, the buyer (Andreas Strömstedt} has the right to request entering a mortgage into the Deed Book without any additional hearings.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I surrender my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Thorsfjerden in Ströms Parish and Jemtlands County consisting of one-fourth (¼) of an acre and it is hereby legally acquired by Anders Strömtedt and his wife {Karin Olofsdotter} for their ownership and cultivation rights as their lawfully acquired property.

It is hereby agreed upon in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

Thorsfjerden on May 15 1871


Seller:
Pehr  (Signature Mark) Nilsson


Buyer:
Andreas  (Signature Mark) Strömstedt

(312)
Witness:
Erik Ersson of Sjulsåsen



Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Ström

This release is conveyed from me to Corporal Er XE "Er" . Hägg, who consequently has the right to immediate occupancy of this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Thorsfjerden consisting of one-fourth (¼) of an acre and thereupon the right to ask for entry into the Deed Book.

For this release, Hägg is responsible for providing Reserved Rights to both my wife and I, according to the mortgage contract of March 26, 1866 and association this day, and to immediately pay me the purchase amount of 400 Riksdaler for which Hägg shall also acquire from this farm a brown mare, a plow, and a boat.



Ström and Thorsfjerden on October 13 1871



Anders  (Signature Mark) Strömstedt

I attest my complete satisfaction with this release.

Dated as above



Er XE "Er" .  Hägg


Witness:
P.  Holm 

(313)

G. Svensson

Jonas Wäll
Table 101 (313)

Jonas Wäll5, Anders Wäll4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Jonas Wäll 
	B
	Mar 2, 1822 
	
	Jonas lived first in Öijaren and moved later to Kärrnäset.  After his wife died, he emigrated to America with his children on August 21, 1889.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 30, 1862
	
	

	S
	Anna Andersdotter 
	B
	Mar 30, 1827 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 28, 1871
	
	

	E1
	Anders Wäll 
	B
	June 12, 1863
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Sigrid Wäll 
	B
	Jan 31, 1865
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Jonas Wäll 
	B
	Jan 24, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Juliana Wäll 
	B
	Jan 24, 1869
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Contract

I {Jonas Andersson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to farmer’s son (Jonas Pålsson of Öijaren}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 5 in the Village of Öijaren, Ströms Parish consisting of 5/19 of an acre, in accordance with the Title Deed of March 6, 1858.

The conditional and agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand five hundred (1,500) Riksdaler shall be paid to me on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session and then final approval of this sale shall commence.

Until such time, I shall be responsible for the proper care and cultivation of the farm.

Therefore, my children, heirs, and I surrender my share of this homestead including buildings and croplands and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and give the deed to Jonas Pålsson so that his children and heirs may have eternal ownership and occupancy rights. 

After final approval, they shall be responsible for all the farm’s accompanying taxes and burdens and out tax and shall provide Reserved Rights to my parents (Anders Well and Ingrid Nilsdotter} for their remaining lifetimes according to the contract instituted on March 1, 1857.

and give purchased hereby redeems and open that ask for himself make possession 

and attested as hereby acknowledged and certified in Ström and Öijarn on October 1, 1859.


Seller:
Jonas Andersson 

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract and promise to everyone noja XE "noja" .  


Year and Date as above


Buyer:
Jonas Pålsson

The approval of this contract is certified with our own handwritten signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.

(314)
Witness:
A. Rosenberg 



Olof Eriksson of Bredgård

On February 25, 1862, he {Hans Strömberg} releases and sells ¾ of 5/6 of an acre, or 15/24 of an acre of his tax Purchase Agreement of November 5, 1861 owning under Company Farm No. 1, consisting entirely in Öjaren, to Jonas Svensson for a total of 2,050 Riksdaler, which payment was received and acknowledged.  


Seller:
Hans Strömberg


Witness:
Erik Jönsson of Storå-Brännan



Nils Jönsson of Öjarn

Jonas Svensson of Öhn purchased Company Farm No. 5 consisting of 11/64 of an acre for a total of 1,250 Riksdaler.  

This purchase amount shall be paid to them in farm mortgage receivables and other with benefit rights possibly outgoing posts, 

and the remainder of the farm approval 

and he shall be responsible for providing Reserved Rights to the widow {Margret Andersdotter} for her remaining lifetime according to the contract instituted above.

Of A. Strömstedt of Öhn purchased 11/128 of an acre from Jonas for a total of 600 Riksdaler, of which the total should be paid by giving a mortgage and the remainder with benefit rights outgoing fasts.  

With this purchase agreement, the buyer is also responsible for providing Reserved Rights to widow {Margret Andersdotter} for the remainder of her lifetime.  

Both of these farms had a stand of forest that was already sold and does not enter into the contract price.

Jonas purchased these farms on April 19, 1870.

Witnesses in first case: 
A.  Rosenberg and A.  Strömstedt 

and in the second case: 
A.  Rosenberg and Jonas Svensson

On May 2, 1870 Jonas sold his ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in Öjarn consisting of 10/24 of an acre to farmhand H. E. Strömstedt for a total of 1,200 Riksdaler. 

The buyer shall also be responsible for all of the accompanying farm taxes and burdens and fulfill the remainder of the continuous myrutdikningen XE "myrutdikningen" 
.  

The stand of forest that was sold before does not enter into this contract price.  

(315)
Witness:
Nils Ersson of Bredgård 



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Tullingsås

Jonas Andersson sells one-third ownership or 5/24 of an acre of Company Farm No. 1, which consists in its entirety of 15/24 of an acre, to Nils Svensson for a total of 500 Riksdaler, which is hereby paid and acknowledged.  

This purchase i XE "i" ncludes enters not they to home of 

farm of the existing buildings and land, 

without consisting only of land which belong to the estate 

and the buyer has the rights to the building site and infields on the site that he had already begun.

Purchase took place on December 11, 1870.

(315)
Witness:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Öijaren 



Erik Jonsson of Finnvattnet 

Purchase Agreement

I {Jonas Andersson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to the wife {Ingrid Juliana Jonsson} of Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bredgård and her children Olof Jonsson, Jonas Emanuel Jonsson and Erik Magnus Jonsson or their legal owner.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 located in the Village of Kärrnäsets, Ströms Parish, Jämtlands County consisting of eleven forty eighths (11/48) portion of a taxable acre.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes everything that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future such as forest, water and land with all of the existing build by whatever name and composition they may be, all property, both loose and fixed and,  

The agreed upon purchase amount of three thousand one hundred (3,100) Riksdaler is to be paid as follows:

· The buyer shall take over and pay the farm mortgage of one thousand four hundred sixty nine Riksdaler and two Species, (1,469.02).

· The remainder of one thousand six hundred thirty Riksdaler and 98 Species, (1,630.98), shall be paid in cash to the seller immediately after the signing of this Purchase Agreement.

The buyer has the right to occupy and use this farm from and including the 1st of next May of this year.

The seller promises to purchase necessary Purchase Agreement to put it into the Deed Book, but the cost for entering into the Deed Book shall be paid by the buyer alone.  

This transaction is hereby agreed upon as acknowledged below.


Ström and Kärrnäset on May 1, 1889


Seller:
Jonas Andersson of Kärrnäset


Buyer:
Ingrid Juliana Jonsson for their child old Jonas Olsson

(315)
Witness: 
A.  Norberg Ström Rishogna


A.  Israelsson Hennings XE "Hennings"  flokälen XE "flokälen" 
My father, farm owner Jonas Andersson of Kärrnäset, hereby releases and sells his farm on this day to Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Bredgärd and his wife {Ingrid Juliana Jonsson} and their children for three thousand one hundred (3,100) Riksdaler for which I hereby renounce all claims to any inheritance rights.

Hereby acknowledged on date as above



Jonas Jonsson of Kärrnäset


Witness:
A.  Norberg 



A.  Israelsson

As a complete payment of the above farm purchase, I have this day received one thousand six hundred thirty Riksdaler and 98 Species (1,630.98) as acknowledged.


Ström Kärrnäset on May 1, 1889



Jonas Andersson Kärrnäset

(316)
Witness: 
A.  Norberg 



A.  Israelsson Hennings XE "Hennings"  flokälen XE "flokälen" 
Here also came before one of this 

on 11/48th of an acre on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Kärrnäset that Håkan Persson and Jonas Ersson
 

according to the contract dated April 9, 1873 

was bought afterwards by Anders Zakrisson on October 19th of this year 

and on April 19, 1874 he {Anders Zakrisson} sold it to Jonas Andersson.

By entrance into the Deed Book for named legally purchased, that District Court on February 18, 1882 § 49, 

enter document into the Deed Book 

on 1/96th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land by taxable Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Kärrnäset, 

that Olof Larsson and his wife Maria Johansdotter, 

according to the contract of February 6, 1882 

was purchased by Jonas Andersson.  

On this occasion by that hereby occurred found District Court reasonable now inform put into the Deed Book 

on 1/6 acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Kärrnäset in Ströms Parish, 

replace which Ingrid Juliana Jonsson and Olof Jonsson, Jonas Emanuel Jonsson and Erik Magnus Jonsson according to the contract of May 1, 1889.

The purchase amount is calculated at three thousand one hundred (3,100) Riksdaler for 11/48th of an acre.

purchased by Jonas Andersson.  

But the application to put the remaining 1/16th of an acre into the Deed Book, 

which up to now did not have the possession proven, was rejected, 

of which a note should happen on the captured document and particular evidence was made.

Johan Wäll
Table 102 (317)

Johan Wäll5, Anders Wäll4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Johan Wäll 
	B
	Nov 28, 1823
	
	Johan was a farmer in Fagerdal, Hammerdal.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Brita Erika Edlund 
	B
	June 4, 1844 
	Granberget, Tåsjö
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 6, 1937
	
	

	E1
	Emma Andrietta Edlund? 
	B
	Apr 1, 1886 
	Hammerdal
	Emma was born before this marriage.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Ingrid Juliana Johansson 
	B
	Aug 19, 1872 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 1953
	
	

	E3
	Erik Johansson 
	B
	 Sep 16, 1873 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 4, 1874
	
	

	E4
	Anna Erika Johansson 
	B
	Sep 8, 1874 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 24, 1952
	
	

	E5
	Brita Katarina Johansson 
	B
	Mar 8, 1876 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 15, 1910
	
	

	E6
	Ingeborg Gustava Johansson 
	B
	Jan 4, 1878 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 12, 1965
	
	

	E7
	Johanna Margareta Johansson 
	B
	July 18, 1879 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 12, 1959
	
	

	E8
	Anders Johansson 
	B
	Oct 28, 1881 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 4, 1940
	
	

	E9
	Hilma Ulrika Johansson 
	B
	Dec 16, 1883 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 18, 1971
	
	

	E10
	Alma Elida Johansson 
	B
	Sep 11, 1886 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 12, 1965
	
	

	E11
	Hilda Albertina Johansson 
	B
	Mar 27, 1889 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 6, 1975
	
	


Emma
Andrietta (E1 above) married Andreas Wilhelm Rose on March 25, 1887 and they had the following children: 

Calise Ulrika, Andreas, Johan Albert, Nils Edvard, Brita Andrietta and Anna Erika.  

The family lived in Gisselås.

Photograph (317)

Johan Andersson Wäll (D6) and his wife Brita Erika (born Edlund)

The owner of this photograph and the photograph on the next page is Erik Gustav Eriksson in Strömsund.  

Photograph (318)

Sitting from left:  
Ingrid Juliana (E2), Hanna Maria (E7), Anna Erika (E4).
Standing from left:  
Ingeborg Gustava (E6), Hilma Ulrika (E9), Alma Elida (E10), and Hilda Albertina (E11).

Their parents were Johan Andersson Wäll (D6) and Brita Erika (born Edlund). 

This photograph was taken in 1949.

Hanna Maria is the same person as Johanna Margareta (E7 above).

Bytes Agreement

The undersigned have this day arrived at agreement of the following farm byte, 

that I {Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Kakuåsen consisting of 5/16 of a taxable acre with everything that now belongs to this farm including house, land and cottages. 

The buyer shall take possession on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session and afterwards have eternal ownership and cultivation rights and also the obligation to be responsible for and pay the accompanying farm taxes, burdens, and Reserved Rights benefits.

I, {Olof Danielsson} on the other hand, shall on this date take possession of my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fagerdahl consisting of one-fourth (¼) of an acre including the obligatory duties and responsibilities and also the enjoyment of the privileges and benefits. 

The buyer shall pay an agreed upon down payment of one thousand three hundred fifty (1,350) Riksdaler, 

for which I shall be released from all up until now uppgångne XE "uppgångne" 
 costs 

for recently completed to allow distribution, 

except such as possibly be able to uppkomma XE "uppkomma" 
 after approval, 

which also compensation after cultivation payment shall be compensated by me.

In conclusion, we shall pay for each of their entries into the Deed Book.

That hereby is bytat XE "bytat"  and arrived at agreement as certified and acknowledged.  


Hammerdahl on March 9, 1865


Seller:
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Kakuåsen


Buyer:
Olof Danielsson of Fagerdahl

(319)
Witness: 
P. U.  Nilsson 



Hemming Andersson of Grenås

My here above tillbytta XE "tillbytta"  portion of a farm in Fagerdahl is conveyed with also belonging rights and responsibilities on tailor


Certified by Johan Andersson


Öijaren on above date


Seller:
Jonas Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 


Buyer:
Johan Andersson

(319)
Witness: 
P. U.  Nilsson Hemming 



Andersson of Grenås


On September 7, 1889

Same Day:

Allow former farm owner Johan Andersson of Fagerdal and his wife Brita Erika Edlund, through Juror Erik Svensson of Hall,  

understands by Reserved Rights benefits reserve exact as a jurisdiction deed.  

Reserved Rights Contract

I {Johan Andersson} hereby sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fagerdal in Hammerdals Parish consisting of one-fourth (¼) of an acre to local farmer (Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Grenås).  

From this sale, the following annual Reserved Rights are to be received by my wife {Brita Erika Edlund} and I for the remainder of our lifetimes:

· Six (6) hectoliters
, fifty-nine (59) liters
 and six (6) deciliters
 of grain

· One (1) hectoliter and nine (9) deciliters of rye from the harvest each year well cleaned and ground

· Eight (8) hectoliters, twenty-four (24) liters and five (5) deciliters of potatoes

· Twenty-six (26) liters of salt 

· Four hundred thirty (430) kilograms of good mountain hay, mixed with timothy hay

· Eight (8) meters of unbleached cotton lining 7 diameters wide

· Two (2) pairs of ready-made leather shoes (1 men’s and 1 women’s)

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow, 2 goats and 3 sheep and their offspring to the following autumn

· Eight and one-half  (8½) kilograms of newly churned butter

· An equal weight of cow cheese and mis XE "mis"  butter in autumn

· One and one-half (1½) liters of sweet milk daily during the time cone stands in his.

· In the event we should wish to exchange cows to take milk, for keep in any case daily from Mikaeli to the 1st of March two (2) liters six (6) deciliters and from then to Mikaeli four (4) liters of sweet milk.

· provide during both of our remaining lifetimes a northward on the farm existing building with 2 rooms, a hissed for lodging

· access and usage to the shed, cellar, asked and baksterstuga XE "baksterstuga" 
 as necessary

· Dry firewood as necessary

· drive to the home and 

· chop or of we that rather desire 

· Twelve (12) fathoms after old must bring to the home dry firewood.  

With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced to:

· Four (4) hectoliters and twelve (12) liters of grain

· Eighty-three (83) liters of rye

· Four (4) hectoliters twelve (12) liters, two (2) deciliters of potatoes

· Thirteen (13) liters of salt

· Two hundred fifteen (215) kilograms of hay

· Four (4) meters of cotton lining

· One (1) pair of shoes

· Two and one-half (2½) liters of sweet milk daily

· Feed and fodder both in winter and summer for 1 goat 2 sheep and their offspring to the following autumn, 

The remaining items shall stay the same including tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses and a decent funeral after our deaths.  

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, a mortgage is given to them on this farm. 

It is hereby arrived at agreement certified in Hammerdal on April 6, 1889 


Reserved Rights



Recipient:
Johan (Signature Mark) Andersson


Reserved Rights


Provider:
Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 

(321)
Witness: 
Olof Svensson of Mo 



N.  Blix

By entry into the Deed Book records for the Court Session under 98 legally purchased, 

that District Court before in day document put into the Deed Book for Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 

on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fagerdal in Hammerdal Parish, 

partitioned farm after UP ft consisting of one-fourth (¼) of a taxable acre, 

and Johan Andersson and = ns wife {Brita Erika Edlund} were

as security for receiving the above Reserved Rights benefit

from them through this contract, 

they are guaranteed a mortgage document on this homestead, 

of which evidence agreement described.

Same Day:

Allow former farm owner Johan Andersson of Fagerdal, through Juror Erik Svensson of Keep,

understands of a mortgage as security for subject-matter that now contains promissory note.

To born farmer Johan Andersson of Hammerdal and Fagerdal or Order pays undersigned 

the exact total amount of three thousand (3,000) Riksdaler 

and earning five (5) percent annual interest on this from May 1 until complete payment happens

currency received hereby  acknowledges.  

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, I {Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby give Johan Andersson the right to request and receive a mortgage on this Company Farm No. 1 consisting of one-fourth (¼) acre farm in the Village of Fagerdal in Hammerdals Parish without any additional hearings.

Certified.  


Hammerdal on April 6, 1889


Buyer:
Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson


(321)
Witness:
Mr. Jo.  Ström 



Sven Svensson of Näset Ström

On May 26, 1889 six hundred sixty (660) Riksdaler was paid.

On June 10, 1889 four hundred forty (440) Riksdaler was paid.

By entry into the Deed Book records for Court Session under 98 legally purchased, 

that of the District Court before in day document put into the Deed Book for Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 

on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Fagerdal in Hammerdals Parish, partitioned homestead after statement consisting of  4 taxable acres: 

As security for the above received promissory note oguldna XE "oguldna" 
 capital total one thousand nine hundred (1,900) Riksdaler with 5 percent annual interest from May 1, 1889, 

a mortgage document was received on this homestead, for which evidence a promissory note was described.

Ingeborg Wäll
Table 103 (322)

Ingeborg Wäll5, Anders Wäll4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D7
	Ingeborg Wäll 
	B
	Apr 18, 1831
	
	Ingeborg lived in Öjaren, Ström.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Jonas Pålsson 
	B
	Jan 22, 1829 
	Öjaren
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 10, 1919
	
	

	E1
	Maria Jonsdotter 
	B
	Feb 24, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 23, 1893 
	
	Maria died of climate fever in USA.

	E2
	Ingrid Juliana Jonsdotter 
	B
	June 14, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 27, 1929
	
	

	E3
	Ingeborg Jonsdotter 
	B
	Jan 26, 1867 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 4, 1957
	
	

	E4
	Anna Brita Jonsdotter 
	B
	Apr 15, 1870 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1962
	
	


Purchase Agreement

We (Jonas Olsson & Ingrid Juliana Jonsson
} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to (_______________}.

our ownership farm 

that we bought by tax ______ from former farm owner Jonas Pålsson and his wife {Ingeborg Wäll D7}. 

to Fagerviks timber products Company or their rightful owner, 

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 5 in the Village of Öjarens, Ström Parish, Jemtland County consisting of about ½ taxable acres or 5/72nd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes everything that now belong to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future such as forest, water, and land, with all of the existing buildings by whatever name and make-up they may be.

The agreed upon purchase amount of four thousand five hundred (4,500) Riksdaler shall be paid as follows:  

The buyer shall take over and pay the farm mortgage on highest bid of one thousand five hundred (1,500) on September 15, 1891.

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, Jonas Pålsson shall receive a mortgage contract for his farm ownership rights  

the farm is permitted by purchase 

the buyer on the 1st of next May at the next coming, 

but the seller shall give Reserved Rights recipients cattle to the time livestock themselves are able to feed themselves on pasture.

The seller promises purchase necessary Purchase Agreement to obtain entry into the Deed Book, 

but the cost for entry into the Deed Book shall be paid by the buyer alone.

This transaction is hereby acknowledged in two copies built and vexlade XE "vexlade" .


Östersund on January 14, 1889


Seller:
Jonas Olsson of Öjaren



Ingrid Juliana Jonsson

(322)
Buyer:
A.  Blomberg for Fagerviks & Logging Company


Witness: 
A.  Israelsson Hennings XE "Hennings"  flokälen XE "flokälen"  



Sven Carlsson Wallen Myssjö Tosåsen.

One the seller Ingrid Juliana Jonsdotter own handwritten signature

(322)
Witness: 
A.  Norberg 



A.  Israelsson

As payment for this contract I have this day received 100 Riksdaler.  

Acknowledged in Östersund on January 14, 1889 



Jonas Olsson.

As a payment of this contract 

I have this day received from old A. Israelsson 

two thousand one hundred thirty eight Riksdaler and fifty-nine Species (2,138.59)

Acknowledged in Kärrnäset and Ström on August 14, 1889

Here also came before one of this District Court on February 15, 1887 

for Jonas Olsson and his wife Juliana Jonsdotter executed 
to enter into the Deed Book 

proof on now question when they came portion of a farm, 

and document now entered into the Deed Book 

of 5/72nd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land of Company Farm No. 5 in the Village of Öjaren, Ström Parish, 

which Fagerviks Logging Company 

according to the contract of January 14, 1889 

for four thousand five hundred (4,500) Riksdaler and 

for the current Reserved Rights benefits purchased by Jonas Olsson and his wife {Juliana Jonsdotter} 

of which note should happen on acquired contract and special evidence was made.  

Photograph (323)

Jonas Olsson, born on July 27, 1860 and his wife Ingrid Juliana Jonsdotter, born on June 14, 1864.  They lived in Kärrnäset

P.S.  Sigvard Jonsson of Strömsund sat that Ingrid Juliana had to work long and hard and was very poor, she had to spend lots of time alone with small children, 

and remaining farm’s sysslor XE "sysslor"  to manage, simultaneous as it was väglöst XE "väglöst"  land at the time.

Johan Jonsson
Table 104 (324)

Johan Jonsson5, Brita Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Johan Jonsson 
	B
	May 9, 1822 
	
	Johan lived in Skärvången, Föllinge.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1847
	
	

	S1
	Kerstin Andersdotter 
	B
	Jan 3, 1823 
	Offerdal
	

	
	
	D
	1855
	
	

	E1
	Jon Johansson 
	B
	Apr 15, 1848 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 10, 29
	Offerdal
	

	E2
	Anders Johansson 
	B
	May 27, 1852 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 19, 1924
	
	

	
	
	M
	1856
	
	

	S2
	Anna Eriksdotter 
	B
	Aug 4, 1832 
	Offerdal
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 29, 1921
	
	

	E3
	Kerstin Johansdotter 
	B
	Jan 20, 1857
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Erik Johansson 
	B
	July 19, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1945
	
	

	E5
	Simon Johansson 
	B
	Oct 19, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1935
	
	

	E6
	Brita Johansdotter 
	B
	Oct 12, 1865 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1899
	
	


Photograph (324)

Simon Johansson born on October 15, 1860, 

Brita Johansson born on November 12, 1865, 

Erik Johansson born on July 19, 1858 

their mother Anna Ersdotter born on August 4, 1832

Purchase Agreement

The undersigned (________________} hereby knowingly release and sell my inheritance rights to our widow mother {Anna Ersdotter of Föllinge and Skärvången}.

This inheritance share was received from my deceased father {Johan Jonsson} and i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Skärvängen.  

My inheritance share consists of 943/34816 of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land and this farm consisted altogether of 943/17408 of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land.

The agreed upon and conditional purchase amount of 1,400 Riksdaler is hereby paid on this date and acknowledged by each of us.

The premises with all that belongs to it 

is received by the buyer on the date stated below, 

and the buyer is responsible for all of the calculated taxes and burdens.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, we give up our ownership rights to this property, and our mother {Anna Ersdotter} lawfully acquires complete ownership and cultivation rights, and she also has the right to 

properly neighborhood request and receive affirmation.


Acknowledged in Föllinge and Skärvången on June 25, 1895


Seller:
Jon Johansson



Anders Johansson



Simon Johansson



Jonas Hemmingsson and his wife Kerstin Johansson



Brita Johansson


Buyer:
Anna Ersdotter 

Own handwritten signature 

(325)
Witness: 
Lars Hedin (Schoolteacher)



S.  Nyberg (Trader)

Photograph (325)

Johan Jonsson, born May 9, 1822


Anna Eriksdotter, born August 4, 1832

Simon Jonsson
Table 105 (326)

Simon Jonsson5, Brita Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Simon Jonsson 
	B
	June 13, 1829 
	
	Simon lived first in Landön, Offerdal, moved later to Ålåsen, Föllinge.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 4, 1854 
	
	

	S
	Karin Nilsdotter 
	B
	Feb 16, 1827 
	Föllinge
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 25, 1868
	
	

	E1
	Jon Simonsson 
	B
	Mar 28, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 6, 1880
	
	

	E2
	Nils Simonsson 
	B
	Nov 14, 1856
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Brita Simonsdotter 
	B
	Apr 17, 1859 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 27, 1889
	
	


Contract

I {Matts Mattsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to taxable portion of Farm No. 1 consisting of ½ of a taxable acre to farmer’s son (Simon Jonsson of Skerwången in the Village of Landö, Offerdahl Parish). 

It i XE "i" ncludes everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future such as houses and land, possessions and cottages my share in saw, mill and summer mountain cabin.

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand one hundred fifty (1,150) Riksdaler shall be paid in full on the 1st of next November at the next Court Session.

The farm buyer may then take possession and from that time be responsible for not reducing the Reserved Rights benefits to my parents and my brother (Per} according to the contract of September 8, 1846.

him in lifetime conditional without also all of farm proceeds, only taxes and burdens.  

Likewise receive the notification that all the pine that grows in the forest for 50 years time 

to Wifsta Warfs XE "Warfs"  Company, 

before is sold and my share in the farm called Snårtorpet 

as soldier payment-farm on 2 mansåldrar XE "mansåldrar"  for more is back is partitioned from farm.  

This transaction is hereby confirmed with our names and Signature Marks.  


Offerdahl and Landön on September 9, 1854 


Seller:
Matts  (Signature Mark) Matsson of Landön


Buyer:
Simon Jonsson of Föllinge and Skärvången

(326)
Witness: 
Simon Abrahamsson of Stafre 



Simon Jonsson of Berg Parish

I {Simon Jonsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Karin Nilsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to workman (Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Österulfsås in Landön Offerdals Parish).

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to taxable partitioned farm of ½ acre with the Special Stipulation of the pine in the forest that Wifsta Warfs XE "Warfs"  Company before him bought.

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand three hundred fifty (2,350) Riksdaler is paid on this date and hereby acknowledged.

On occasion of which this buyer shall have total ownership rights 

as well as responsibilities for the accompanying taxes and burdens on this farm portion 

and the obligation to provide Reserved Rights benefits to Mattias Persson and his wife {Märetha Jonsdotter} and their small son (Per}

in the manner contained in this entry into the Deed Book, the 1st this is the buyer 

and I {Simon Jonsson} consequently surrender my ownership rights to my portion of this farm and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, 

under which i XE "i" ncludes sawmill, summer mountain cabin and Church stable, 

and it is hereby legally purchased by Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson sauce of their make acquired under successful tenancy rights. 

Acknowledged by both person in Landön on April 2, 1861 


Seller:
Simon Jonsson


Buyer:
Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

(327)
Witness: 
Gabriel Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Skärvången 



Mårten Nilsson of Landön

Afterwards Simon purchased a farm in Ålviken, Föllinge.

Contract

I {Isak Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to one-half (½ taxable acre) of Company Farm No. 1 in Lapland ählviken XE "ählviken"  in Föllinge Parish consisting entirely of 1 acre to farmer (Simon Jonsson from Offerdal and Landön} for the following terms and conditions:

1. The buyer shall take possession of all the now released buildings and the Ström field and also all the hay 

which is located öfverom XE "öfverom"  and about farm and in southeast down across the meadow to 2 passport 2 malings from each other skiljdas XE "skiljdas"  dirt fasta XE "fasta" 
 stones, 

there land consists of by these stones, and further away in southwest by a downcast pole, all in property line towards the forest.

2. 1 forest haymaking the buyer shall take possession likewise all the current horse fodder hay, but by sedge hay alone one-half (½), and Bovällen which is called Alviksbodarna.

3. With all the other benefits and rights and cottages that now belong to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, the buyer shall take possession of one-half (½) or corresponding tax of one-half (½) acre and also receive one-half (½) of my share in.

4. For the above, Simon Jonsson shall pay to me by approval 

an agreed upon total of two thousand two hundred (2,200) Riksdaler 

and be responsible for one-half (½) of the Reserved Rights benefits to my dear mother {Sara Isaksdotter} according to the contract dated October 23, 1855 

him has the Reserved Rights his that after her death occurs, 

they receive all of the buildings and land that my mother now ta XE "ta" kes advantage of on this farm.

5. For this purchase amount included the buyer shall take possession 1 murpanna XE "murpanna" 
 and half of my ownership of the Church boat.

6. the ½ taxable acre that I retain remains 

with the accompanying benefits in forest and land 

with the Special Stipulation of horse fodder hay, 

Special Stipulation the land and land which is located 

below the  first mentioned property line marker by lake and Laxvik forest 

and mountain pasture 

and the work I discontinued in Nybodarne 

also on Simon Jonssons property there the frontier of my brother (Olof} property used outlet for cattle with 6 alnars {12 feet} wide street.

7. In their expenses and taxes and burdens that accompany farm, we are responsible for one-half (½) each, or here also his ½ acre, with the Special Stipulation of Reserved Rights as mentioned in Paragraph 4.

8. As security for providing these Reserved Rights to my mother, provide a mortgage on this farm.  To the following of this has the rights mentioned Simon Jonsson that with properly ask for legal entry into the Deed Book and affirmation on ½ acre with the accompanying cottage and these benefits 

and that for himself and his wife, their children, and heirs for eternity ego, and shall immediately ta XE "ta" kes possession of this farm.

Both of us attest our complete satisfaction with this contract and its conditions as acknowledged with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Åhlviken on April 30, 1861


Seller:
Isak Ol XE "Ol" ofsson



Buyer:
Simon Jonsson


(328)
Witness: 
Farmhand Johan Swendsson of Tufwattnet



Mattias Nilsson of Laxviken

Reserved Rights Contract

The undersigned farm owners (__________________} hereby promise to provide the exact portions of the following annual Reserved Rights benefits to widow {Sara Isaksdotter of Åhlviken} for as long as she lives:  

· 2 barrels of well cleaned grain annually that is grown on the farm and that in heaped measure 

· One-fourth (¼) barrel of rye

· 2 lisspunds {40 pounds} of salted fish each year 

· A ladle
· A shirt made of cotton cloth each year

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for 2 cow, 4 sheep or goats, (2 goats and 2 sheep) and 4 of their offspring 

· Each year I reserve a little land for myself

· back field called which by the homestead tenant shall fertilize with 40 loads of good fertilizer annually and plowed decent

· but is to be planted with my own seed grain

· Seeding and Harvesting by Reserved Rights recipient

but afterwards levälmnas XE "levälmnas"  to the farm tenant which we shall annually give:

· One (1) barrel of cleaned grain

· The right on suitable land expose ½ barrel of potatoes who land plowed, 

· and ränsas XE "ränsas"  by the farm tenant and one-fourth (¼) barrel of peas each year  

· the old farm in the west rooms l häbärs XE "häbärs"  building west of the farm for lodging

· Access and usage of the barn, granary and cellar as necessary

· and in new farm is reserved cottage east of the farm and room in barn, 

· 40 lisspunds {0.4 tons} of hay 

· 1 horse fodder skrinna XE "skrinna" 

· 2 loads of sedge fodder each year

· and when Reserved Rights recipient give from him this land, which give in his place 20 lisspunds {0.2 tons} of straw annually

Photograph (329)

This photograph was taken on the bridge to Simon Jonssons farm.  They are having some sort of gathering, but I cannot say what.  It was possibly taken around 1900.  This photograph was borrowed from Mary Han of Alåsen.

P.S.  Can anyone tell me when it was taken or who is in the photograph?

· A hay barn built in a suitable place by the farm tenant for this Reserved Rights

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· Mill usage for our needs

· A ride to and from church and other necessary errands with a decent horse provided by the farm tenant

If Reserved Rights recipient is for good to be in sambröd XE "sambröd" 
 with the homestead tenant, then all Reserved Rights are eliminated except:

· 1 barrel of grain

· 1 sheep

· 1 goat, ready for slaughter

· ½ lisspund {10 pounds} of butter

· 2 lisspunds {40 pounds} of goat cheese

· ½ lisspund {10 pounds} of goat milk cheese

·  “ lisspund {pounds} cow soft butter

· 2 lisspunds {40 pounds} of Ve XE "Ve" 
· 2 lisspunds {40 pounds} of Vest
·  ” pair of shoes, 

·  “ lintyg XE "lintyg" 

· 1/8 barrel of peas

· A ride  

· Necessary room in the cottage 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses.

As security for receiving these lifetime Reserved Rights, Sara Isaksdotter has the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm in the Village of Älvikens in Föllinge Parish 

Acknowledged in Föllinge on April 11, 1868



Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson 



Simon Jonsson of Föllinge and Åhlviken 

(330)
Witness: 
J.  Vidmark 



Jonas Jönsson of Ottsjön

Anders Pälsson
Table 106 (330)

Anders Pälsson5, Lisa Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Anders Pälsson 
	B
	Mar 19, 1836
	
	Anders lived among other places in the Villages of Märdsund and Bynom in Hallen Parish.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 1866
	
	

	S
	Karin Mattsdotter 
	B
	July 2, 1842 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 21, 1932
	
	

	E1
	stillborn child 
	B
	July 15, 1872
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Pål Andersson 
	B
	Sep 6, 1880 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 7, 1880
	
	

	E3
	Arvid Emanuel Lindqvist 
	B
	Oct 23, 1896 
	Hallen 
	Arvid Emanuel was a foster son.  He was a sailor by occupation, and I have found no record of him after 1916.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


I {Anders Nilsson of Öfverhallen} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Mårdsund located in Hallen Parish and Municipality, consisting of 1 and ¼ taxable acres to Anders Påhlsson of Hammarnäset.

This i XE "i" ncludes everything now found on the farm and all of the obligations according to the contract of this date. 

for an agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand eight hundred (2,800) Riksdaler.  

Provide him also the seller that for a deduction by three hundred (300) Riksdaler by the above total,

The remainder of this purchase amount or two thousand five hundred (2,500) Riksdaler is by means 

of a by the buyer this day to the seller was made promissory note compensate.

on a time by 10 is free dispose that existing of sale, forest, south of the so called Ålsmyran {Åls Swamp}, 

however with right for the farm buyer that therefore take 

necessary household needs forest, 

ownership rights to farm the seller that cleared necessary roads for logging, 

and storage place and beach rights during logging time.  

This transaction is hereby made and agreement is arrived at as certified with our signatures.  


Ytterhallen on March 10, 1873


Seller:
Anders Nilsson


Buyer:
Anders Påhlsson

(330}
Witness: 
L.  Ersson 



H.  Ockling

I {Anders Påhlsson of Mårdsund} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 3 located in the Village of Mårdsund in Hallens Parish consisting of 1 and ¼ taxable acres to Per Pehrsson and Johan Alexandersson of Hammarnåset.

This i XE "i" ncludes everything that is currently found on the farm and all of the privileges and obligations according to the contract of March 19, 1873 

The agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand five hundred (2,500) Riksdaler is paid by Anders Nilsson of Öfverhallen by providing a farm mortgage.

The buyer shall receive complete ownership rights upon completion of the last payment on this total uppgöra XE "uppgöra" .  

The farm buyer shall take possession the 1st of next May next Court Session.  

This transaction is hereby made and agreement is arrived at as certified with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Arvesund on April 27, 1875


Seller:
Anders Påhlsson of Mårdsund


Buyer:
Pehr Pehrsson of Hammarnäset

(331)
Witness: 
E.  Sundin 



N.  Sundling of Arvesund

I {Nils Larsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to one and one-half (1½) square refvar land Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Ytterhallen, Hallen Parish and Municipality consisting of xxx XE "xxx"  acre to Anders Pålsson of Bynom for an agreed upon and paid purchase amount forty (40) Riksdaler.

This sale is for his eternal possession and the buyer shall immediately receive the cottages.

The cottages involved in this transaction are located in Bynoms property line on the egofigur XE "egofigur"  

which is marked on existing revised map as  Company Farm No. 145 with a length of 150 alnars {300 feet} in length aforesaid property line.  

The buyer shall annually pay a property payment of 50 Species that is to be paid in January for each preceding year.  

This transaction is hereby made and agreed upon as acknowledged.  


Ytterhallen on March 16, 1885.


Seller:
Nils Larsson of Ytterhallen 


Buyer:
Anders Pålsson 

(331)
Witness: 
August Samuelsson of Ytterhallen 



P.  Ersson of Helnäs

Anders later purchased more land from Olof Nilsson, Johan Andersson, E. Pistol and Halfvar Bendixson on Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Ytterhallen, 

consisting of 2 taxable acres, now contained smaller homestead of 7 square refvar, 13 square slängder XE "slängder" , 

for an agreed upon and conditional purchase amount of forty (40) Riksdaler which was paid in cash and hereby acknowledged.  

The cottages involved in this transaction are located on the south side of Dammån on the revised map, inhabited under Company Farm No. 166 on, is limited on the 

west of byns XE "byns"  jointly supplemental land, on the 

south of Jonas Andersson meadow, on the east of the ½ Svartafvan, and on the 

north of the property line that uppkommer XE "uppkommer" 
 then revised property line between the seller on one side and Jacob and Jonas Anderssöner on the other side, framdrages XE "framdrages"  in a straight stretch.  

The buyer shall immediately receive the cottages, and the buyer shall annually pay fifty (50) Species as a property payment.

This transaction is hereby made and agreed upon as acknowledged.  


Ytterhallen on June 26, 1888 


Seller:
E.  Eriksson Pistol 



Olof Nilsson,



Johan Andersson



Halfvar Bendixson


Buyer:
Anders Pålsson

(332)
Witness:
J. E.  Karlsson of Ytterhallen 



N.  Nolander of Norderön




Erik Eriksson  (the younger)  Berge of Alsen  



A. J.  Johansson of Östersund

Isak Bergström
Table 107 (332)

Isak Bergström5, Catarina Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Isak Bergström 
	B
	Feb 2, 1821
	
	Isak lived in Fröån

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Kerstin Nilsdotter 
	B
	May 14, 1826
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Nils Magnus Bergström 
	B
	Aug 30, 1846 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1891
	
	

	E2
	Isak Bergström 
	B
	Jan 16, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 13, 1931 
	Undersåker
	

	E3
	Märta Catarina Bergström 
	B
	Aug 6, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 16, 1882 
	Alsen
	


The Bergström family was a large family, and the Company Farm in Kall was not adequate for them to earn their living there.  

More people moved to Fröå to live and to get work as mineworkers, after hearing of these jobs.  

The Torp Book tells a majority of this, but an addition to this history is the following that appears later in the Book for Undersäker District Court in 1840.  

Of this one can simultaneously find that the mining people 

had not any abounded of that temporary need 

without being tempted in a completely dishonest manner.  

This applies to the son of Isak Isaksson Bergström {1799-1866 Table 38} who was also called Isak.  

Isak was born in 1821, so he was 19 years old at this time.  He gets a chance to make a trip to Föllinge.  He decides to go there for a while.  Therefore he goes to the parson in Undersåker to get a Travel Certificate.  

But it is late in the day and the parson offers to let him stay there overnight.  In the morning when he is ready to go, he sees a new pair of boots standing in the porch that he thinks will fit him.  Temptation overcomes him, which is mostly the reason that he puts them in his bag and knatar XE "knatar"  away.  

After he was gone for a short time, upptäcks XE "upptäcks"  the boots cannot be found at his place and Isak becomes suspected of having taken them.  

The boots belonged to a "Madam" Sofia Backman, who was on a visit to the vicarage with her husband, who was from Sunne.

Backman now gets a horse ready for riding and goes after him.  

He catches up to him near Bye, Mörsil and there he is found with his bag with the boots in it.  

Isak was now made to follow him back to Undersåker, 

and there Parish Sheriff Per Persson meets him for the trip further back to Fröä.

After contact with Municipal Sergeant, Isak "is dispatched" to County Prison in Östersund.  

In the Court Session, it comes out that Isak had previously stolen from neighbors in Fröå.

For example, from the wife of Elias Grufberg from their härbre XE "härbre" 
 mist "pig köttkorc XE "köttkorc" 
 and a loaf of bread 

He had also stolen 4 loaves of bread from Anders Löfberg.  

He had not committed a break-in, because it was not common to lock doors anywhere.  

It also comes out that he had stolen 1 lisspund {20 pounds} small hay from a barn that belonged to Olof Andersson of Såå.

The total of what was stolen was valued at 1 Riksdaler 41 Species and 8 Rune Pieces.

The punishment was that he should be fined one-half (½) of the value or 44 Species and 10 Rune Pieces.  If he could not pay the fine, then he must sit in prison for three 24 hours days.  But the worst was that he must also undergo individual script.

The boots were given back to "the Madam" in unharmed condition, Backman that mentions unaccustomed, was parson in Sunne.

To undergo "individual script" was regarded as a tremendous insult.

To tillgick XE "tillgick"  so, the person in question must disassociate himself from the parson where he should make a sort of apology, 

and there the parson then had a possibility to ditty his authority in a manner that was detested by all as rawkade XE "rawkade"  for this penalty.  

One can certainly understand these kids.  They were born in good families, and their hunger constantly reminded them of the difficulty of abstaining from stealing food.  But it also applied to other cases of material character.  As in this case, one can expect that he had balneal on his feet also. 

He started the hike to Föllinge avsåg XE "avsåg" 
 a distance of more than 10 mils {62 American miles}, which is probably why he needed some more shoes for his feet.

Written by Oscar Löding

Purchase Agreement

I {Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Hallens in Undersåker Parish consisting of 5/16 of an acre to worker (Isak Isaksson Bergström of Hall} for an agreed upon purchase amount of five hundred (500) Riksdaler

This i XE "i" ncludes a land acreage of about 17 square ref was, 

boundary in the east and south against T. Halldins this undivided farm Burn, 

making up a property line of 600 feet and 

to the west of the C. E.  Söderholm Farm, from there property line consists of 676 feet and 

in northward to family lineage homestead, where property line is 250 feet in width 

One hundred (100) Riksdaler shall be paid by the buyer on the 1st of next May of this year and the remainder by the end of the year in 1899.

The buyer shall have the right to pass through after property line between this farm and T. Halldins this undivided farm burnt land ahead to Hallens building area.

The buyer shall also pay a property payment of five (5) Riksdaler on May 1st of each year.  

Two exact copies of this contract have been completed, and we have each taken one of them.

We hereby attest that we are in agreement with this contract.


Hallen on April 18, 1899


Seller:
Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Hallen

travel


Buyer:
Isak Isaksson Bergström of Hallen

(334)
Witness: 
A. J.  Lalander of Hjerpen 



C. E. Söderholm of Hallen

This applies to Isak Bergström who was born on January 16, 1855.  He was unmarried.

Assessment of Company Farm No. 155, contained under the Såå farm in 1873 when Isac Bergström lived there:

· A cottage building 13 alnars {26 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide and 6 alnars {12 feet} high with The roof is built of boards.  Building that tilldels XE "tilldels"  is board fodrat XE "fodrat" 
 turned inside out constitutes cottage and the porch.  This cottage is built with boards and it has a fireplace with iron spikes and a baking oven, a fireplace is also found on the porch.  The building has 3 windows and 2 doors.

· A barn 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 5 alnars {10 feet} high.  The roof is built of boards.

· A barn of post värk XE "värk" 
 and board, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 5 alnars {10 feet} high.  

· A cellar building 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 4½ alnars {9 feet} wide, 2½ alnars {5 feet} high.  The roof is built of boards.

· Half of the ownership rights (with Company Farm No. 154 having the other half) of a barn that is 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 6½ alnars {13 feet} wide, 3 alnars {6 feet} high, new.

· Half of the ownership rights (with Company Farm No. 154 having the other half) Brygghus in shed and a hay barn.

Brita Bergström
Table 108 (335)

Brita Bergström5, Catarina Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Brita Bergström 
	B
	1825
	
	Brita Lived in Fäviken and moved to Norway about 1865.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Jöns Edlund 
	B
	1813
	
	He was from Härjedalen Parish

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Jonas Edlund 
	B
	Feb 8, 1863 
	Åre Hall
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Catrine Edlund 
	B
	1866
	Vefsen, Norway
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Jensine Petrine Edlund 
	B
	1869
	Vefsen, Norway
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Jöns worked for a little while as a mineworker, but then he moved to Norway.  He was obviously from northern Norway, since his daughters were born there.

Later they moved to Verdal, Norway and he worked in the Malså Copper Mining Company for a few years.  Then they moved again and left no trail.  They might have emigrated.

Their son Jonas resided in several villages in western Jämtland, but in about 1910 he moved to Trondheim with his family.

Per Bergström
Table 109 (335)

Per Bergström5, Catarina Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Per Bergström 
	B
	Aug 24, 1831 
	
	Per lived in Digernäset, ran away to Norway, and did not come back.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1862
	
	

	S
	Märta Indahl 
	B
	Mar 26, 1836 
	
	Märta was known as "Lagårds-Märta".

	
	
	D
	1922
	Canada
	

	E1
	Catarina Bergström 
	B
	July 6, 1859 
	Åre
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 23, 1931
	
	

	E2
	Christina Bergström 
	B
	Aug 5, 1862 
	Åre
	

	
	
	D
	1946
	
	

	E3
	Brita Bergström 
	B
	May 13, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 2, 1882
	
	

	E4
	Anna Bergström 
	B
	May 18, 1866
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


When the oldest daughter Catarina was born, an accord was made between Per and Märta, which went as follows:

Between the undersigned Pehr Isaksson and the maid Märtha Olofsdotter, both of Fröån, to uppfostringsbidrag XE "uppfostringsbidrag"  for our common baby girl that we had together, Catarina, who was born on July 6, 1859.

I {Pehr Isaksson} promise to pay to the forenamed Märtha 10 Riksdaler annually on December 28th of every year for 15 years time and accept its commencement on the above written year.

He is also responsible to have medical care provided to me and Sjötsel and for childhood diseases.  

Likewise one-half (½) for child Christian Leran
 of Parish school after the valid conditions.  

Likewise, if the child should become a cripple and can not take care of himself, or if his mother should depart with death, then I accept myself as the child’s legal father and shall provide paternal custody for his future for as long as I live and after my death the child shall be among my heirs, beside the mother’s alone.  

But should there be a more direct blood heir on my or my mother’s side for his share with the other oavkortadt XE "oavkortadt" 
.

We of both parties attest our satisfaction with this written agreement.  


Fröån on November 25, 1859



Pehr Isaksson of Fröån 



Märtha Olofsdotter 

(340)
Witness: 
P.  Löding (Copper Mining Company Sheriff) 



Gustaf Nilsson Svedje 



Erik Höglund stigaren XE "stigaren" 

I, Märtha Olofsdotter, promise to allow this information to be entered into the Court without any additional hearings.  

The agreement is hereby arrived at as written and certified in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Date as above



The same witnesses


Pehr Isaksson of Fröån was well-known, that stack from Märta and their four children.  He went to Norway and he died there (see Torp {Farm} Book page 246), also Company Farm No. 88, on page 143 of this Book.  Märta went by the name of "Lafarms-Märta" since she managed the Copper Mining Company farm in Huså for a few years in the 1880's.  She emigrated to Canada in 1904 with her daughter Christina and her family.

Lease Contract

Widow Märta Bergström ta XE "ta" kes over as lessee of Huså Company farm property, Company Farm No. 25 in the Village of Huså in Kall Parish for a time of 5 year calculated from the below mentioned date from the buyer for the following conditions: 

The lessee shall pay 25 Riksdaler cash each year as a lease for this farm or it may be earned through designated work on this Huså farm.

The lease must be paid before December 15th each year.  Work shall be paid with 80 Species per day.  Märta Bergström shall provide at haying time by farm at least one (1) weeks work after 1 Royal Government per day.  Forest haymaking and all the farm belongings are reserved by the Copper Mining Company

Photograph (337)

Märta Olofsdotter Indahl was born on March 26, 1836, and died in 1922 in Canada.  She married Per Isacsson Bergström who was born on August 24, 1831.  He died in Norway.

Photograph (337)

From Left:  Christina Bergström Matilda’s daughter Hannah born (?) and died in 1972, Anna Matilda Lund born on February 1, 1882, and died in 1957 and Hannah’s son Robert.

Anna Matilda married Alec Orr in Canada.

Both photographs were taken from "Farm-Book" by Oscar Löding.  

Göran Bergström
Table 110 (338)

Göran Bergström5, Catarina Essing4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Göran Bergström 
	B
	Jan 2, 1835
	
	Göran was a Company Worker He lived in Fäviken, Kall and moved to Ytteröya in the 1870’s.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 24, 1860 
	
	

	S
	Ingeborg Jönsdotter 
	B
	Dec 20, 1838 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1920
	
	

	E1
	Isak Bergström 
	B
	Mar 22, 1861 
	Kall
	

	
	
	D
	1929
	
	was deaf and dumb

	E2
	Jöns Bergström 
	B
	May 11, 1863 
	Kall
	

	
	
	D
	1932
	
	

	E3
	Anders Bergström 
	B
	Mar 29, 1866 
	Kall
	

	
	
	D
	1930
	
	

	E4
	Olof Bergström 
	B
	1869
	Sandinge, Ytteröya
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Johan Petter Bergström 
	B
	1872
	in Ytteröya
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Kristian Bergström 
	B
	1875
	
	

	
	
	D
	1875
	
	

	E7
	Inga Bergström 
	B
	1882
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Jacob Lang
Table 111 (338)

Jacob Lang5, Johan Lang4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Jacob Lang 
	B
	Apr 8, 1824 
	
	Jacob lived in Stackris, and moved later to Rise, before they emigrated to America on May 2, 1872.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Jan 23, 1852 
	
	

	S
	Märta Abrahamsdotter 
	B
	Oct 1825 
	Stackris
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Johan Lang 
	B
	Feb 23, 1855
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anders Lang 
	B
	June 24, 1858
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Emma Lang 
	B
	Oct 25, 1861
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Magnus Lang 
	B
	May 12, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 4, 1864
	
	

	E5
	Anna Lang 
	B
	July 17, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Magnus Lang 
	B
	June 27, 1870
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Göran and his family lived as dependants in Fäviken, and Göran was a driller in the mines by trade.  I have not been able to ascertain what kind of work he did in Ytteröya.  Perhaps he worked as a mineworker there, or perhaps he became a farmer or farm worker.  Perhaps he worked at fishing also.

Jacob bough this farm from his father-in-law, Abraham Wik, in 1859.

Contract

I {Abraham Wik} with the good agreement and consent of my dear wife {Ingeborg Nilsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our ownership rights to this undivided farm Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stackris in Sunne Parish to our dear daughter {Märta Abrahamsdotter} and her husband {Jacob Johansson}. 

The mutually agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand two hundred (1,200) Riksdaler shall be applied to our debt covered and we shall receive the following Reserved Rights for our future harvest or for the remainder of our lifetimes:

1. Provide us annually with 4 kappers of rye, 3 barrels of grain well cleaned and all in heaped measure and we also provide us that after arbitrariness and there us good appears select 1 maling in Farm ownership rights grain acre, 

then Reserved Rights recipient ourselves receive harvest and harvest expense denies.

2. Provide us space in forest for ½ barrel of potatoes and 2 kappers of peas, that shall be plowed down for ownership rights to this farm.

3. For hemp and redtland XE "redtland"  Special Stipulation nineteen (19) alnars {38 feet} square in that usual hemp land summoned, which annually for the ownership rights to this farm, shall fertilize and plow 6 productive malings east of the swampland east of the farm.  The farm tenant shall annually receive 30 loads of decent fertilizer for this land.

4. Feed in winter and summer for a cow, 2 goats and 2 sheep and their offspring.

5. As a contribution to our clothing needs, provide each of us annually with one pair of shoes, and nineteen (19) alnars {38 feet} of cloth.

6. We provide 

· our entrance hall for lodging, that the farm tenant must assist us in this repair, and access and usage of the barn, cellar, and pantry as necessary

· Me) dry and chop firewood to our penurious needs shall Torp the tenant that us brings to the home also 

· drying, milling, baking 

· tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· a free ride for all necessary errands.  

With either of our deaths, these Reserved Rights benefits shall be retained without any reduction to our dear son (Nils Abrahamsson}, who is in poor health and not fit for work.

· He shall have the benefit of decent food and care from the Reserved Rights from this farm until his death and also;

· clothes and tobacco that necessary vara XE "vara"  can

· Tender and decent attention and care 

For the fulfillment of these terms and conditions, we surrender this undivided Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stackris with house and property, land and cottages, forest and fields, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

Our dear daughter Märta and her beloved husband Jacob Johansson have hereby legally purchased this for themselves and their children and heirs for their eternal usage, cultivation rights and farming needs as another legally purchased property and now immediately have the right to take possession of this farm.

We attest that both parties are satisfied with this purchase and sales contract with our signatures in the presence of witnesses.  


Stackris on May 9, 1859


Seller:
Abraham Wik 



Ingeborg Nilsdotter 

Lars Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Swedje (Double Check Here).  


Buyer:
Jacob Johansson 



Märta Abrahamsdotter

(339)
Witness: 
A. Andersson of Önsvede 



Johan Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stackris

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, we (Jacob Johansson and Märta Abrahamsdotter} give our parents (Abraham Wik and Ingeborg Nilsdotter} and their son (Nils} the right to request and receive a mortgage on wårt XE "wårt" 
 now purchased farm partitioned from Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stackris without any additional hearings.  


Sunne Parish.  


Date as above

(340)

Jacob Johansson 



Märta Abrahamsdotter.

Jacob sold the farm in 1862 and the new buyer had to take over the Reserved Rights.

Allow the release of farmer Jacob Johansson from Rise, 

and record that he sold his ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stackris of 3 1/13 acres dande XE "dande"  Homestead, 

from where his father-in-law (Abraham Wik} and his wife and son (Nils} shall be guaranteed certain annual Reserved Rights 

and other be able to down, 

without that contract this their in-law parents and brother-in-law some Reserved Rights, 

understands that Reserved Rights benefits instead must a mortgage 

on the applicants Jacob Johanssons now more ownership rights to 

2 3/8 portion of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise 

and that consequently the in farm under Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stackris, 

as security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits from, 

establish a mortgage right is killed and made useless is attested, 

in which consideration inspires in original the following written contract:

Contract

I {Jacob Johansson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Märtha Abrahamsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to this undivided farm now contained under and consisting of a tenth of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Stackris in Sunne Parish to Company Worker Anders Larsson from Oviken and Joxåsen.

The mutually agreeable purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session at which time the farm is to be taken over by the buyer and he shall be responsible for all of the farm taxes and burdens from that day forward.  

For the above purchase amount and providing annual encumbrances we surrender this undivided farm under Company Farm No. 1 the Village of Stackris with house, land and cottages, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and it is hereby legally purchased by Anders Larsson and his wife, children and heirs for their eternal ownership, occupancy, and cultivation rights.

We attest that both of us are satisfied with this purchase and sales letter.  


Wällviken on October 20, 1862


Seller:
Jacob Johansson 



Märtha Abrahamsdotter


Buyer:
Anders Larsson from Oviken and JoxÅsen
(340)
Witness: 
Olof Persson



Göran Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Rise

Jacob bought another farm in 1862.

Contract

I {Göran Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to farmer (Jacob Johansson of Stackris}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise in Sunne Parish, consisting of 2 3/8 portion of an acre, and all the personal property belonging to me that can now be found. 

The agreed upon purchase amount of four thousand two hundred (4,200) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session at which time the buyer shall then be responsible for all of the farm taxes and burdens by whatever name and make-up they may be.

The Special Stipulation I reserve for myself on this farm for my remaining lifetime the following privileges: 

1. I reserve annually for myself ½ barrel of rye, ½ barrel of peas and 3 barrels of well cleaned grain, all calculated in heaped measure, and 2 barrels of potatoes.

2. Also 1 maling in tredets XE "tredets"  which may be used by me for peas and potatoes chosen which farm owner shall plow down good, 

to cottages cottage Special Stipulation I the fence south farm as she now is, 

fence with free dispositions right by the prospective gathered and twenty loads of fertilizer each year.

3. Feed  winter as well as in summer and care for 2 cows and 4 sheep with 2 of their offspring.

4. From these privilege shall go to widow Karin Persdotter while she lives a cow and 2 barrels of grain, but after her death, if I outlive her, it goes back to me.

5. Free lodging, to with peat needs as firewood and heat, but afterwards last Reserved Rights hjonet XE "hjonet" 
 is death that goes to me entrance hall and house above and little log shelter and an old shed.

6. I reserve a shirt and a pair of shoes each year for my own needs.

7. provide milling, baking, drying, of and respect your care and a ride and driving for all my necessary needs.  

8. While I live, Special Stipulation I by paid for property, to opposite daily use and needs a large copper kettle, a pot, a frying-pan, 2 chairs, a sofa, a längskåp XE "längskåp" , 6 pails with lids, 2 tubs, a be said to, 2 Sängbäddar, a dozen milk trays.  But after my death, all my existing property is left to the farm owner for good.

For the fulfillment of these terms and conditions, I surrender this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise consisting of 2 3/8 portion of an acre with all of the buildings, land, forests, fields and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

This farm is legally purchased by Jacob Johansson for his and his children and heirs eternal ownership, occupancy and cultivation rights the same as any other legally purchased property 

We attest that both sides are satisfied with this agreement as noted with our signatures.  


Wällviken on March 22, 1862


Seller:
Göran Ol XE "Ol" ofsson


Buyer:
Jacob Johansson and Märtha Abrahamsdotter

(342)
Witness: 
Jon Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Mänsåsen 



Olof Persson of Wällviken

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, I {Jacob Johansson} give the Reserved Rights recipient (Göran Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} the right to request and receive a mortgage on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise consisting of 2 3/8 acre without any additional hearings.  


Date as above



Jacob Johansson of Stackris.

Jacob sold the first half of this farm in 1864.

Purchase Agreement

I {Jakob Johansson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Märtha Abrahamsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to glazier Nils Nilsson of Wällviken.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half (½) of this undivided homestead consisting of one tenth (1/10) portion of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise in Sunne Parish and Municipality consisting of 2 3/8 taxable acres.

with the accompanying exact share of 2 ______ and places in Wällvik-Bäcken 

The mutually agreeable purchase amount of one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.

cottages shall be partitioned in a single actual figure east of the farm after hålmen XE "hålmen" 
 against the Village of Wällvikens.

The buyer reserves for himself open and necessary roads to and from the farm.

Therefore, we reserve for ourselves and our heirs the  

1/10 portion of this farm and mills, 

against this farm after 2 years course of events from approval 

annually in the month of February pay the agreed upon property payment of 14 Riksdaler 

It is hereby legally purchased by this buyer (Nils Nilsson} and his heirs to take possession on the 1st of next May in 1864 and to have eternal ownership, occupancy and cultivation rights.

This agreement is hereby made in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Rise on April 4, 1864


Seller:
Jakob Johansson


Buyer:
Nils Nilsson

(342)
Witness: 
Olof Persson of Rise 



Anders Ersson of Wällviken

Jacob sold the second half of this farm in 1865.

Purchase Agreement

I {Jakob Johansson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Märtha Abrahamsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmhand (Per Nilsson of Sunne and Wällviken}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided homestead, 

consisting of one tenth (1/10) portion after degree.  

It also i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half (½) of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise in Sunne Parish and Municipality consisting of 2 3/8 taxable acres 

for a mutually agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler, 

and ten (10) Riksdaler annual property payment

This cottage shall be partitioned in a single actual figure, 

that consists of by the Wäll farm fence and the there located region, 

in the east against Nils Nilssons homestead, 

and in the south against Wällvikens property line, 

and to the west according to skäende XE "skäende"  calculated after degree.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, we and our heirs surrender this 1/10 portion of this farm 

and deliver the deed to Per Nilsson and his heirs who this day take possession, 

then purchase amount annually and for eternal possession use and farm.  

This agreement is hereby made in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Wällviken on May 1, 1865 


Seller:
Jacob Johansson


Buyer:
Per Nilsson

(343)
Witness: 
Eric Andersson 



Eriksson of Wällviken

Question

With request to enter into the Deed Book give Kr.  Citizen J. J. Pira that Jurisdiction Recorded Minutes, 

way with executive auction of April 30, 1868 of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise in Sunne Parish consisting of 2 ½ acre

Later, this farm belonged to Jakob Johansson and it was 

for his debt to Halfwar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Ytterhallen 

in mät XE "mät"  taken and appraised at two thousand seven hundred (2,700) Riksdaler 

and with 2 before Auction Records presumable offer had not been able to obtain, 

had on this day through Royal Court Judgment General Proclamation new auction 

become proclaimed and undersigned order, that this auction officiate.

That to errand belonging necessary deeds become came before and read whereupon 
and afterwards la a mortgage ownership the applicants Hauwar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson offered him that in the event he, with this auction, bought this farm let by Mr.  Municipal Governor C.  Liljesköld in ownership rights to the farm  

a mortgage as security for delivery of 5 fathoms with qwarstå XE "qwarstå" 
.  
If the prospective purchase amount at auction is not declared to be that great of an amount, 

that also had approval power for a mortgage, 

farm was pronounced firstly in uppslag XE "uppslag"  

therewith Halfwar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson closed the bidding with the highest bid of one thousand five hundred (1,500) Riksdaler.

Afterwards, in a shout of refusal, the debtor Jakob Johansson was heard to shout the word "with" after the auctioneer’s exclamation of two thousand two hundred twenty (2,220) Riksdaler.

However since Jakob Johansson does not proper häftig XE "häftig" 
 and is not known or trusted, 

that his bid is rejected afterwards 
with the auctioneer’s exclamation of two thousand two hundred fifteen (2,215) Riksdaler, Halfwar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson had shouted "with" and his bid was accepted.  

Consequently Halfwar Ol XE "Ol" ofsson was certified as the owner of this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Rise in Sunne Parish consisting of 2 3/8 acres for which he has the right with fore teende XE "teende"  by these Jurisdiction Recorded Minutes to request entry into the Deed Book.


Year and Date as above



J. J.  Pira Municipal Sergeant

(344)
Witness: 
C. N.  Dahl Sergeant 



Jonas Jonsson of Genvalla

Anders Lang
Table 112 (344)

Anders Lang5, Johan Lang4, Anders Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Anders Lang 
	B
	Aug 19, 1836 
	
	Anders lived mostly in Heljesund, Hallen

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Karin Nilsdotter 
	B
	Aug 12, 1825 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 29, 1885
	
	

	E1
	Anna Lang 
	B
	Sep 4, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 21, 1863
	
	

	E2
	Nils Lang 
	B
	Aug 17, 1862 
	Öhman
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


On January 19, 1886 an Estate Assessment was conducted after his wife Karin Nilsdotter of Heljesund died on December 29 of last year and left after her death as her nearest family member’s her husband Anders Johansson and son Nils who was of legal age and was present at the Estate Assessment.  

Her husband who had in his every the estate property of the deceased was notified that the property with demand and debts declared such that by the deceased death tillfelle XE "tillfelle" 
 be which was conducted and appraised afterwards and found as follows:

(344)




Women’s clothes



Mantle
5.00




Tröjor

5.00




Clothes ningar XE "ningar" 
4.00




           “
18.00




Western
4.00




cholar XE "cholar" 
16.00




För clothes
2.00




Tjortlar
3.00




Cotton towels
1.35



Silk towels
8.00




Cotton towels

0.75





Stockings
1.00



Glass & Porcelain

6
ea
Rights
2.00
70.00


3
pair Shoes
6.00
76.00



Linen & towels

5
ea 
Lintyg

2.50


2
pr
Kallonger
1.00


3
ea
Tablecloths
1.50


1

Sheet
1.00
6.00 ok



Bedding

2
ea
Mattresses
1.00


3
ea
Sheep skin rug
18.00


2

Covers
6.00


2
ea
Pillows
3.00
28.00 ok




Subtotal

110.00 ok

4
ea
Combs
1.00


2
pr
Teacups 1 drinking cup
.37



6
plate 1 gredsneka XE "gredsneka" 
.65




Misc XE "Misc" . glass-ware
1.00
5.02




Iron & Bleksaker
3


hemtar XE "hemtar" 
 2 kegs
2.75




Misc XE "Misc" . for
1.25
4.00
 ok




Cooking Vessels
6

ea
pots
2.50

2

ea
Frying-pans
1.00
3.50 ok



Copper Vessels
3


coffee pot
3.00

3


buckets
.75

4


kettles
16.00 
19.50 ok



Furniture
1


Bed
6.00

1


Sofa
4.00

4

ea
Cupboard
6.25

4

ea
chairs
4.00 
20.25 ok



Cooking Vessels
20

Buckets
5.00


6

Mash buckets
3.00


4

Tub
5.00


3

Tjernholkar
1.50


3

Stefvar
1.00
15.50 ok



Cattle

2
ea
Cow
110.00


1
ea
Calf
15.00


6
ea
Sheep
30.00


5
ea
Goats
20.00


2

Hens
1.50
176.50 ok



Subtotal

354.52

Harvest
2

barrels of grain 1885
16.00

½

barrel of Peas
7.00

5

barrels of potatoes
20.00
43.00
Forage
4

load of sedge
12.00
12.00
Miscellaneous

1

Lamp, 1 Mirror
2.00


1

Plow
1.00


2
ea
Rowboats
45.00


2
ea
Gref XE "Gref" 
.50


1

Flo XE "Flo"  axe
1.00


3
ea
Grip
2.50


2
ea
Skafflar XE "Skafflar" 
.25


4

Hatchets
3.00


1

Saw blade
2.50


1

Grindstone M jernås XE "jernås" 

1.00




Misc XE "Misc" . Wefordningar
2.00




Misc XE "Misc" . Brooks
1.50


2
ea
Tables
3.00


4
ea
Hand-saws
2.00


6
ea
Häflor XE "Häflor" 

2.00


4

unprepared hides
4.00




Misc XE "Misc"  cobbler tools
20.00


1

Lye container
.50


1

Baking Oven
8.00


1

From
1.00


1

Spinning-wheel
3.00 
105.75




Total assets

515.27 ok

Estate Debts 


To Karin Nilsdotter of Bynom according to account 
2.50

Erik Olsson of Sundsbacken
10.00

Per Andersson of Wåge
7.75
Nils Sandberg of Arfvesund
5.00

Per Ersson of Wåge
5.00

E and A Hall in inheritance 

vesund XE "vesund"  according to account
39.00
69.23

Burial expense occupied to
35.00

for conducting the Estate Assessment 
4.00
108.23

Estate balance

407.04 ok
Total Riksdaler

515.27 ok
That this live with receivables and debts becomes properly and correctly declared as that we the deceased death tillfelle XE "tillfelle" 
 be I hereby receive under sworn obligations affirm.



Anders Johansson

This statement is hereby legally recorded and the assessment is certified by the undersigned legal assessor and officiating person.



J. M. Hallman 
 of
Arfvesund 



Per Andersson of
Wäge XE "Wäge" 
On November 23, 1904 an Estate Assessment was conducted after shoemaker Anders Johansson of Mårdsund who on July 18th of last year lunarad XE "lunarad"  died.  Since the estate that was left after son Nils Andersson öhman XE "öhman"  resides in Minnesota, North America, the executor of whose rights were guarded by shopkeeper Nils Gustaf Andersson of Heljesund, the property is declared under sworn obligations by Johan Fredrick Bergkvist of Arfvesund and described and appraised as follows:




Cash mean



at death event

 22.20






Gold & silver



1

finger ring of gold
1.00


3
ea
Silver teaspoons
l.00
2.50 ?




Copper

1

Kettle
2.00


1

Saucepan
2.50


1

Cask in a pot
6.00


2

Kettles
7.00


1

Coffee pot
1.00
 18.50 ok




Running total of above items

43.20 ok




Iron & black articles

1

Tray
1.50


1

Basin
.75


1

hemtare XE "hemtare" 
 etc.
.25


1

Pan & 1 pot
.25


1

Hatchet
.75


2

hemtare XE "hemtare"  & 2 shoe pore
1.50


1
 
Tray etc.
.25


2

Augers
.50


1

Frying-pan & 1 ladle
.25


1
 
refsax XE "refsax" 
.50


1

pot spis XE "spis" 
7.00


1

knife etc.
.25
13.75 ok




Furniture

1

Bed
4.00


3

Chairs
2.50


1

Table
5.00
11.50 ok




Bedding

1

sheepskin hide
4.00


1

 “
8.00


1

cover
2.00


2

Pillows
1.50


1

hårbålster XE "hårbålster" 
4.00


1

madras & a sheet
1.50


1

madras
.25


2

Sheets
1.50


5
ea
pillow cases
1.50
24.25 ok




Linen

6

towels
1.40


1 pr
pants
.25


21
ea
shirts
7.00 
18.40 ?




Running total of above items

 111.10 ok




Clothes

1

Cap & 1 pair of gloves
1.00


1

hose & 1 vest
.50


5
pr 
trousers
2.50


1

Coat & 1 vest
.50


1

Coat
5.00


1

hose
4.00


1

Chapter
3.00


1

vest
.50


5
pr
stockings
1.00


1

mantle
5.00


1

Jacket
2.50


2

coats
1.50


2

   “
5.00


2

trousers & a vest
2.50


3
ea
Coats
1.50


1

Woman’s coat
.50


4
pr
Shoes
19.00


1
pr
Moose skin shoes
..50
 56.00 ok




Running total of above items

 167.10 ok




Miscellaneous

1
ea 
Sewing-machine
8.00


3
ea
Watches
12.00


1

tamankare XE "tamankare" 
1.50


5
pr
Inner windows
4.00


1

party books
4.75


1

bakslåk XE "bakslåk" 
.50


1

chest
3.00


1

Lamp etc.
2.00


4
ea
buckets
4.00




Shoe sack material for
2.50


1

party wool yarn
2.50


1

basket
.25




leads for
3.50


1

rufbank XE "rufbank" 
.50
49.00 ok


2

coffee burners
.25


1

liorf XE "liorf"  etc.
.75


4
ea
hand-saws
2.00


2
ea
chest
5.00


1

lamp
.75


1

party carpets 
5.00


1

coffee mill & a pan
.50


1

party tree
.50


2
pr
Glasses 
1.00


1

rakläda XE "rakläda"  & a knife
.50


1

hunting rifle
70.00




sugar bowl and 1 gred XE "gred"  kanna
.50


5

plates & 1 breadbasket
.50


2
ea
umbrellas
2.00


6

skis & an oar
.60


4
ea
bastkorgar XE "bastkorgar" 
3.00


1

sugar skrin XE "skrin" 

3.00


2

mesing XE "mesing"  canister etc.
1.00




rakordningar XE "rakordningar" 

1.00


1

kapp XE "kapp" 
 sack 
1.00


1

clothes line
.75


3

bites woolen tissue
7.00


2

bites cotton tissue
4.00


2

spun cloth coat 
3.00


1

money purse
.35


3
ea
tom sacks
.75


1

rod, iron
1.00


1

spiskalla XE "spiskalla" 
.50


1

tillbringare XE "tillbringare" , 4  kanna
1.00


4
pr
coffee cups
.75

2

rights
.50
 119.80 ?






286.95 ? 





Receivables
Promissory note from Halfvar Andersson of Mårdsund 

Principle
300.00

5% interest accrued  from March 25, 1903
19.79

Promissory note from Lars Nordvall of Brasta 

Principle
80.00

6% annual interest accrued from October 1, 1903
4.23

Promissory note from Jonas Berg of Brasta

Principle
 200.00
6% annual interest accrued from May 1, 1903
14.23

Arfvesund promissory note from Alfred Bergqvist

Principle.
 650.00

5% annual interest accrued from July 12, 1903
49.48


Arfvesund promissory note from Mårten Hallberg

Principle
50.00

6% annual interest accrued from January 7,1903
4.59

Promissory note from Måns Nilsson of Heljesund 

Principle 
500.00

5% annual interest accrued from September 29, 1902
 45.07
1917.39 ok
From Paul Sandgren Brasta vexel XE "vexel"  of May 28, 1903 

Principle of 175 Riksdaler counted in bankruptcy 

and assessed at 25% of its original value
43.75 ok

Total Receivables

2248.09 ok

Debts Retired

to Alfred Bergqvist
6.20
according to coat. to Johan Fredrik Bergkvist

according to calculation
311.50

Burial expense
63.15

Estate Assessment paid
7.00
387.87 ?
 

Thus leaving an estate balance of

1860.22 ok
This evaluation is hereby notarized and certified

Date as above



L. Norberg 



J. M. Hallman

Home.  property.  

That all become properly and correctly declared and does not any with want and knowledge hidden or left in certified under sworn obligations.



J. F. Bergqvist of
Arfvesund
Present at the Estate Assessment



N. G. Andersson 
(through to power of attorney)

Lars Andersson
Table 113 (349)

Lars Andersson5, Anders Larsson4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Lars Andersson 
	B
	Mar 3, 1820 
	
	Lars lived in Gråsjö  new homestead buildings for a time and later moved to Snäsa, Norway.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S1
	Brita Ersdotter 
	B
	1820
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Kristine Larsdotter 
	B
	1858
	
	

	
	
	D
	1932
	
	


Smemoen was broken up by smith worker Erik Olsens father Ole Aunsmo, see Nordset-Ålmo in Snåsa Book, married to Kristine, daughter of Jamt-Lars of BelbuÅsen.  

They moved to Ogndal and smith worker Johan Olsen Nagelhusaunet took over in 1915.  He was married to Maria Andreasdotter Aundsmo.

BelbuÅsen eastern br XE "br" . number 4.

The first tenant was Erik Abrahamsen from Söre, who was entered into the Deed Book in 1820.

He was born in 1789 and died in 1851.  He married Kersti Taraldsdotter from Mona, Söre.  As a widow, she had Lars Andersen Fors or Vallan (Jamt-Lars) manage the place for her after about 1860.  He was married to Berit Maria Eriksdotter Gråsjölien (Jamt-Berit).  Both were from Åre.

From the Snåsa Book

Stina Andersdotter
Table 114 (349)

Stina Andersdotter5, Anders Larsson4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	
	Stina Andersdotter 
	B
	July 20, 1822 
	
	Stina lived in Vallan, Åre, before they emigrated to America in 1871.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Petrus Pettersson 
	B
	Dec 9, 1828 
	Åre
	Petrus was the son of Petter Persson and Ingeborg Pehrsdotter.

	
	
	D
	1871-72
	
	

	E1
	Anders Petrusson 
	B
	Nov 25, 1857
	
	Anders emigrated to the USA in 1871.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Petter Petrusson 
	B
	Jan 9, 1860
	
	Petter emigrated to the USA in 1904.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Kristina Petrusdotter 
	B
	May 10, 1863 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 3, 1929
	Brunflo
	

	E4
	Ingeborg Petrusdotter 
	B
	Aug 2, 1868
	
	Ingeborg emigrated to the USA in 1871.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


The following Farm contract is completed between the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company and Petter Pehrsson of Wahan. 

The homestead is staked out in west farm user of Wehan where Nils Persson (the younger) and Kerstin Persdotter and land farmer, then in their and other neighbors in by presence and with their legal measures.  

The homestead is staked out as follows: 

1. A place for the homestead with building location, which in Western Farm Wahan was for the Copper Mining Company addition staked out on June 15, 1801 to Per Andersson of Wahan 

but is not built on by him without after 10 year employment by the emigrants abandoned with the Copper Mining Company approval of Hans Hansson away may be used 

But during the lifetime of Hans Hansson 

was for short that only a negligible beginning was made to the farm’s settlement and cottages was in regard to for a lot of stone bound cultivated land for tangible to päarbeta XE "päarbeta" 
 except that access to water was missing 

so he took another building location to look at and cultivated land on outlying land that was regarded as suitable, and like the last place without acquiring for farm with also retention of this outside hay that was before marked out:

This currently surveyed homestead is staked out directly west the property pasture within the following points:  The measurement was begun from wicket against the outlying land to the north to the winter road and was a straight property line of 200 alnars {400 feet}.  Then it goes west 400 alnars {800 feet} along the winter road.  From this winter road it goes south to Norges Road 360 alnars {720 feet}.  Lastly, it goes from there to the infields enclosed pasture/wicket 360 alnars {720 feet} from where the first måtet XE "måtet"  was taken as the beginning.  

Where the winter road goes west, the fence should become after valley and from old Norriges way stang XE "stang"  ningen XE "ningen"  is made on the north side by this same length to infields grinden XE "grinden" 
.

The farm consists of the following outside hay of Farm, which, according to the Berg Parish District Court Recorded Minutes of June 15, 1801, this staked out farm cottage prepared:

1. Nymyran {New Swamp} by tredd XE "tredd" 
 sedge annually 
4 loads

2. Kjeringmyran {Kjering Swamp} by tredd XE "tredd"  sedge annually 
2 loads

3. West, öder XE "öder"  and north of Ånsjön by tredd XE "tredd"  sedge annually 
10 loads

4. Hagåsmyran {Hagås Swamp} by tredd XE "tredd"  sedge annually 
4 loads

5. Herrangsslåtten {Herrangs Pasture}hay by tredd XE "tredd"  sedge annually 
5 loads

6. Djupdolpdalen with cleared fields 
1 load

7. Långstarr manor house west and south Herröholmen 
4 loads

2. This sheep farmer may use pasture for his livestock, forest acquired for household needs, and firewood from the farm forest and land.  However, provide hay land fredande XE "fredande"  with land and meadow against all damage farm possessions or through own animosity intrusion in home motto
 wrong the homestead tenant by pasture and responsibility statutory against such illegal taken illegally.

3. The farmer is granted the rights to a summer mountain building Långvikvallen for their cattle on also by the residents staked out suitable place also begagnandet XE "begagnandet" 
 for fishing "Udu XE "Udu" " summoned, for farm portion in resemblance with eastern farm farmer.

4. This sheep farmer may use the days of work that Per Andersson of Wallan is responsible for according to the contract of October 1, 1811 stating that he is responsible at his own cost to provide for the completion of the farm buildings.

5. For receiving the above written benefits, it is the responsibility of the current farmer to provide and build this homestead with house and cropland with resolve.  He must also take 12 barrels of ore sold from Bjelkes Copper Mining Company to Huså smelting-house each year as a lease requirement to the Copper Mining Company for this farm.

6. The farmer, upon complying with all his legal obligations, becomes equal to the other Company farmers who are owners of clear water.  The District Court guarantees the farm to him for the lifetime of him and his heirs.  In case some of them become skickeligen XE "skickeligen" 
 farm receives however for the new contract with the Copper Mining Company.

That hereby be contract honored with binding to faithful afterlife and request of Berg Parish District Court promise each with signatures confirm.  


Wahan on August 20, 1828.  



Petter Persson of Wallan on behalf of the Company.



N. G. Rose taken farmer

(351)
Witness: 
Anders Larsson of Lund

Nils Persson (the younger) and Kjerstin Persdotter land farmer å XE "å"  west Wallans portion of a farm Nils Persson  D. on.  Anders Persson lived on eastern farm in Wallan.

As security of ownership rights for myself and after my death for my only son Petrus Pettersson, to a west farm Wahan in Åhre Parish homestead granted to me according to the supported contract

I hereby respectfully request a mortgage on this farm, which has been granted to me 

under  the notification that this farm now become by the Copper Mining Company 

one-half (½) of it is sold to farmer Olof Theodor Hyttsten, and one-fourth (1/4) of it is sold to farmer Lars Ersson of this Village and everyone received the First Proclamation of this farm under ultimo year Fall and shall presumably obtain it at the now scheduled Court Session after the other Proclamations.  

Undersåker and Svensta on Feb 17, 1869



Petter Petrusson of Wallan

The undersigned asked that a legal notice of summons be issued against farmer Petter Pettersson and his son Petrus Pettersson of the same place at the next Court Session in Undersåker District Court with the statement that that they must be enjoined from selling the farm in Vahan that they now live on with ownership, occupancy and cultivation rights.

The reason is that I purchased this land without any restrictions from someone else, and so I also request compensation for court costs.  

Further, both verbal and written claims provided in all that with the lawsuit fellowship has and can receive.  


Respectfully submitted in Ähre and Vahan on August 20, 1869.  



Olof For Hyttsten

On the occasion of the application by Petter Persson of Wahan through County Juror Gunnar Ersson of Mörviken by Undersåker 

of this rights satisfaction make, 

there of that a mortgage might be made on our farm for future security between the mentioned Petter Pehrsson and the Huså Copper Mining Company 

for further back establish a leasehold contract to a homestead in the Village of Wallans in Ähre Parish, 

which petition with of this the Court there drew opinion become us informed, 

livestock we hereby give extension of the defendant’s plea, 

a mortgage on our farm for this contract as future security is conceded not elderly we never held ourselves some obligation for this contracts completion, 

and was purchased by us uppgörande XE "uppgörande"  completely uninformed that any contract by this property vidlådde XE "vidlådde"  property, 

without on the contrary guaranteeing us that farm and buildings which are now in question were for ourselves to take possession of in accordance with this established Purchase Agreement, 

as much more that a evidence came before, 

which was shown that Petter Persson were from farm in make order to move has been given notice.  

Therefore, we deny by reason of these circumstances that Petter Persson has made a valid application for a mortgage on our farm, and it must be determined that the mortgage application should be given no consideration.

Huså on September 13, 1869


Lars Ersson of Wallan


Olof T. Hyttsten of Wallan


Per Persson of Wallan

On the request of Gust. Nilsson of Huså Accountant

Since the farmer {Petter Pettersson} and his son {Petrus Pettersson of Vahan} cannot be made to voluntarily move from the land they occupy on our farm in the Village of Vallans in Åre Parish, whose complete ownership we have legally acquired from Mr. V. Tham, Managing Director for Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company, 

we receive here through respectfully of make a legal notice and summons and take into custody this farmer as well as the mentioned Mr. V. Tham to now at

the next Session of District Court must comply equitable and legal sentence may this that to us immediately submit 

and that this land with ownership rights be given to us and acknowledge our court costs composition – as submitted in additional claims.  


Undersåker on January 20, 1870

(352)

Lars Ericksson and Pehr Pehrsson of Vallan

Judgment

It is incontestable that the right to use the referenced land during his lifetime, which according to the here above received contract to the defendant Petter Persson on certain conditions granted by Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Wallan belongs to the plaintiffs, 

by purchase of which the Plaintiff, that width was shown is, 

does not undertake to make some promise to lessen the defendant Petter Persson or his also responsible son Petrus Pettersson cottage also ownership rights,

and the matter of authority by or skadeer XE "skadeer"  composition for the given notice of said rights, which will take place before current Company managing director Tham approval of his position, 

that which is not specifically spoken of in this case can not become an object for judging, 

thus and near the defendant Petter Persson omitted does not smaller that a mortgage contract while farm, that the farm contains, 

also was in the granted Hand, than also that on above written time and planted completely and afterwards sought a mortgage and hereby against enacting in a pair.  by Royal Court Judgment of November 9, 1844 compared with Royal Court Judgment of June 13, 1845 and 9 pair.  

in Royal Court Judgment on July 13, 1818 

consider half of this farm some additional rights proves of the District Court legal attest that the defendant Petter Persson is responsible that question the homestead on March 14, 1871 at the next Court Session to the plaintiff 

the seller, however can, 

in consideration of its composition, 

the defendant does not receive any compensation for veder XE "veder"  parties court costs is bound.

Note: Petter Persson died in 1871
 and Petrus Pettersson emigrated to America with his family that same year.  However, the Population Records for the year 1872 list Petrus’ wife as a widow.

Erik Andersson
Table 115 (354)

Erik Andersson5, Anders Larsson4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Erik Andersson 
	B
	May 1825
	
	Erik lived in Nordhallen, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1856
	
	

	S
	Gölin Benjaminsdotter 
	B
	Oct 5, 1826 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 7, 1912
	
	

	E1
	Kristina Eriksdotter 
	B
	Dec 10, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 4, 1940
	
	

	E2
	Benjamin Eriksson
	B
	Jan 25, 1863
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


We release this homestead to worker Rudolf Rehn and his wife Anna Brita Johansdotter and to Erik Andersson and his wife Gölin Benjaminsdotter of Nordhallen, consisting of supplemental land northwest of the lake, in accordance with the following contract:

Rudolf Rehn and his wife obtain the building site and cultivated land in Digernäset containing about 6 acres of good and tillable land within the boundaries.  

1. Erik Andersson and his wife obtain the building site directly along what is called Eggs, and there he gets 6 acres of good land of infields and cultivated land within the property lines.  

2. To pasture, building wood and firewood receive by them in common for his own needs may be used north to Nordhallens crude difference in the east to Floslåtten in south to Kjerndaln and Storviken and on the west side of Storviken to Nyvallen in difference against Nordhallen and in the south 2000 foot from the lakeshore account with eastern and western point with a straight property line there intersect, and fishing in lake fulfills beach.

3. The forest haymaking for Farm buyer in common may be used our portion of a farm in Kjerndalen:

· 4 loads from Grufvadalen 

· 3 loads from Djupmyran {Djup Swamp} 

· 5 loads from Gammalmyra {Gammal Swamp} and Jakobdaln

· 12 loads from the place called Skrapadalen.  

4. The buyer now receives these cottages immediately for providing to the farm owner 12 days of work for the next 10 years on May 4 and September 8 of each year.   All of these days of work shall be at the tenant’s cost.

The above is granted to Rudolf Rehn and his wife for both of their lifetimes and may be used by Erik Andersson and his wife during their lifetimes with the condition that if they do not annually provide their days of work to the farm owner or otherwise cause damage to the farm manor house, 

pasture or forest except limits, 

which is granted to each divided cottage consequently approved and agreed upon.  


Björnänge on September 25, 1859.  


Seller:
Katarina Nilsdotter married to Per Jakobsson. 



Gölin Nilsdotter married to Olof Larsson.  



Nils Nilsson y Jakob Nilsson of Björnänge


Buyer:
Rudolf Rehn 



Erik Andersson the farmer

(354)
Witness: 
Jonas Persson 



Petter Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Nordhallen

Lars Wikberg
Table 116 (355)

Lars Wikberg5, Sven Wikberg4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	
	Lars Wikberg 
	B
	Mar 7, 1824
	
	Company Worker in Fröån

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1848
	
	

	S
	Agnes Andersdotter 
	B
	1828
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 22, 1921
	
	

	El
	Barbro Wikberg 
	B
	Jan 21, 1851 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 14, 1919
	
	

	E2
	Kerstin Wikberg 
	B
	1854
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 24, 1880
	Haverö 
	childbed

	E3
	Sven Wikberg 
	B
	July 15, 1857
	
	Sven emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Ingrid Wikberg 
	B
	May 24, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1904
	Fröå
	

	E5
	Anders Wikberg 
	B
	Aug 31, 1864
	
	Anders lived in Iron River.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Karin Wikberg 
	B
	Jan 28, 1868 
	
	Karin emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (355)

Kristian Lund lived here.  He was born on Feb 5, 1844 and married Barbro Larsdotter Wikberg who was born January 12, 1851.  The farm got its name from the tenant Kristian.  Kristian Farm.  The cottage has been restored, but the barn had raged get one's things together, as the year went by.

Lars Wikberg first had the tenant contract on Company Farm No. 160 and he had to pay a lease payment of 50 Riksdaler per year, which he received permission to pay through work because he could not pay cash.  In any case, it had to be paid by October 30th of each year at the latest.  "A reserv XE "reserv" ation was made however in this case that unconditional ownership rights to the farm is obliged to provide 3 complete weeks of work at haying time on time and it had as determined by the Company Administration.  

contract is approve to on May 1, 1880.  

P.S.  Read the remainder of the tenant contract.

The other tenant contract that Lars had was for Company Farm No. 163.  He had to pay 70 Riksdaler annually for it, which total was paid through work on time and site as decided by the Company Administration, or else cash from Wikberg is conceded that for else invoice than the Company constitute work.

At least 2 weeks of harvest work shall however under all ratios is provide according to order.  - Against said lease amount is against the Company release this cottages, obligate him Wikberg that annually as long as this contract is approved to game Anders Löfberg and his wife Ingrid: 

· Provide care and attention

· Provide feed and fodder for a cow and 4 sheep or goats, 

· granted of land, receive settling by ½ barrel of potatoes and 

· 1 kilopund
 of grain within the Farms fence.  

This contract is approved by both of us from and including October 24th of this year to this same date in 1882.  

however with the right for their also sent the Company that wishes 

and Lars Wikberg promises to faithfully fulfill this contract as hereby approved and agreed upon by everyone.

Should this final lease amount not be paid by March 14th of every year, the Copper Mining Company has the right to receive the enjoyment of the prospective crops or to take them over and harvest them without any additional hearings from Wikberg and without any preferable compensation for his ownership rights to the farm.  

This contract is approved to commence on October 24th of this year 

Two exact copies are instituted by us of which the Copper Mining Company and the tenant have each taken one. 

This currently applicable contract is calculated for one year from this date to this same date in 1882.



Huså on September 24, 1881 


Jemtland Copper & Logging Company 
Gottfr, Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



Lars Wikberg 

(356)
Witness: 
0. B. Hedin 



Artur Nordbeck

Lena Wikberg
Table 117 (357)

Lena Wikberg5, Sven Wikberg4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Lena Wikberg 
	B
	Oct 8, 1828
	Lena lived in Svedje and in Bodsjöedet.

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	1853
	

	S
	Erik Larsson 
	B
	Oct 8, 1819 
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 29, 1887
	

	El
	Lisa Brita Eriksdotter 
	B
	Feb 7, 1859 
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 13, 1953
	

	E2
	Ursila Eriksdotter 
	B
	Mar 5, 1861 
	Ursila emigrated to the USA on April 10, 1882.

	
	
	D
	1951
	

	E3
	Sven Eriksson 
	B
	Dec 31, 1865
	Sven emigrated to Hördes and was never heard from again.

	
	
	D
	
	


Photograph (357)

Helena Svensdotter Wikberg born on October 8, 1828

Anna-Lisa Edin loaned me this photograph.

I {Anders Bergström} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership and possession rights to the other half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Swedje consisting of 2-1/12 acres to worker (Eric Larsson} and his wife {Helena Swensdotter} for a conditional and agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand seven hundred (1,700) Riksdaler.

Of this purchase amount, the buyer shall be responsible for 100 Riksdaler that is the mortgage amount on this farm and the remaining seven hundred (700) Riksdaler shall immediately be paid by the buyer in cash.

The buyer shall also be responsible for 

one-half (½) of all the Reserved Rights and Special Stipulations 

be able to down 

that my father {Per Bergström} reserves for his wife and himself and the buyer has the right to immediately take possession of this farm as it can now be found, seeded, and with their full control of the cottages and everything else that now belong to the farm or can legally be obtained in the future.  


Björnänge on June 4, 1857.


Seller:
Anders Bergström of Swedje


Buyer:
Eric Larsson and wife Helena Swensdotter of Björnänge

(358)
Witness:
Per Jacobsson



Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Björnänge

Purchase Agreement

I {Erik Larsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Helena Svensdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmer (Anders Andersson} and his wife {Gustafva Hedman of Swedje}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Swedje in Åhre Parish consisting of 21/32 of a taxable acre.

The agreed upon and conditional purchase amount of one thousand eight hundred (1,800), Riksdaler shall be paid by tillträthat XE "tillträthat"  by the farmer on May 1, 1870 to the mortgage owner of the farm, farmer Jöns Larsson of Rennberg.  

In addition to this farm, this purchase also i XE "i" ncludes 2 attic house logs, 6 attic planks and boards, 1400 shingles, and everything else that now belongs to this farm including houses as well as land but with the obligation that the buyer shall be responsible for providing the annual Reserved Rights that Per Bergström and his wife {Anica Nilsdotter} reserve from this farm.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, we surrender this farm and the buyer lawfully acquires the right to request entry of the ownership, occupancy, and cultivation rights into the deed book.

Acknowledged in Ähre and Swedje on November 14, 1869.

We attest our satisfaction with this Purchase Agreement as acknowledged on the above date.



Seller:
Erik Larsson Helena Svensdotter of Swedje


Buyer:
Anders Andersson 



Gustafva Hedman

(359)
Witness: 
Per Jacobsson of Björnänge 



Hemming Jacobsson

According to the Population Records, Erik Larsson and his family lived and lodged with Anders Andersson of Svedje from about 1869 to 1877 and then they moved to Bodsjöedet.  He was a farmer there until he died in 1887.  His widow, Helena, lived in Bodsjöedet until 1899.  Then she moved to Saxvallen where her daughter Lisa, who was married to Sven Olsson, lived.

The Estate Assessment of widow Helena Svensdotter of Saxvallen was conducted on June 21, 1907, after she died on February 9th of last year and, as the executor of the estate, she left this property to her daughter Lisa Brita who had married Sven Olsson, her daughter Ursila who had married Sandin and moved to America and her son Sven who had moved to America.  They were all of legal age.

This property is legally declared under a sworn disposition by daughter Lisa Brita and her husband and it was noted and appraised in the following order.

(359)




To gångar XE "gångar" 
Kronors 



Gold & silver

1 

Gold ring
0.75




Creamer
0.50
1.25




Copper




Coffee pot

1.50




Metal Ware

1

pot, 1 waffle iron
1.50


1
pr
scissors, 1 pr Glasses
0.50


3 pr knife & forks
0.75




tray
0.10
2.85




Furniture


1 

bed, 1 chair
11.

1 

cupboard, 1 table
4.25


1 

bread rolling pin, 1 knife korg XE "korg" 
0.20
16.70





Bedding


3 

Sheep skin cases
15.


1 

quilt cover, 1 mattress
l.


1

Bed quilt, 3 pillows
3.


1 

mattress, 1 Reindeer skin
4.


2 

floor rugs
l.




Linen

1 

tablecloth, 2 sheets
2.50


2 

pillow-case, 3 towels
1.75

4 

night dresses, 6 handkerchiefs
1.30




51.35




Clothes

51.35


5

Silk towels
5.


2 

head towels, 1 shawls
13.50


1 

winter coat, 1 summer coat
9.


1 

winter coat, 4 aprons
2.50


3 

clothes ningar XE "ningar" 
8.


1 

Tjortel, In this with hissed
2.25


3
pr 
Stockings, gloves
2.-


2 pr Shoes
7.-


1 

Chapter with piece 8.-
 .25


6 

alnars {12 feet} of coarse home-spun wool
8.
47.50




Glass & Porcelain

1 

vinegar decanter, 3 tumblers
0.55


1 

sugar bowl, 6 plates
0.75




Utestående ensure receivables in Jämtlands Loan savings



bank Cash money

1341.29




By death event is found inside

18.-




Total assets

1459.44




Debts



To Sven Olsson Saxvallen for lodging costs 




and care for the last 5 years

370.




Burial Expense

125.-



Property Balance

964.44

This addendum is hereby according to statement notarized and valued, certified


Date as above



J.P.  Bodin 
Stora XE "Stora"  Rensjön



L.  Larsson of Medstugan






That all become rights declared and nothing with wit and want become hidden or omitted certified under sworn obligation.  







Date as above 







Lisa Brita and Sven Olsson present at Estate Assessment Per Larsson Saxvallen according to power of attorney from Ursila Sandin







Photograph (361)

Brita Jacobsson, born Ersdotter, born on June 14, 1869, and died in 1923

Photograph (361)

Jacob Jacobsson was born on July 2, 1864, and died on February 29, 1940

The owner of this photograph is Jan-Erik Lalander of Sth XE "Sth" 
Karin Wikberg
Table 118 (362)

Karin Wikberg5, Sven Wikberg4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Karin Wikberg 
	B
	June 25, 1834 
	
	Karin lived in Björnänge, Wikböle, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 18, 1863 
	
	

	S
	Jacob Jacobsson Lalander 
	B
	June 17, 1827 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 1, 1892
	
	

	E1
	Jacob Jacobsson 
	B
	July 2, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 29, 1940
	
	

	E2
	Barbro Jacobsson 
	B
	Sep 3, 1865 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 9, 1951
	
	

	E3
	Anders Jacobsson 
	B
	Sep 18, 1868 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 27, 1931 
	Lalander
	

	E4
	Sven Jacobsson 
	B
	Jan 8, 1872 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 13, 1953 
	Lalander
	

	E5
	Per Jacobsson 
	B
	Nov 9, 1875 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 17, 1943 
	Lalander
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Agnes Larsdotter 
	B
	Mar 10, 1822 
	
	Jacob's first wife was Agnes.

	
	
	D
	June 18, 1861
	
	

	E6
	Märit Jacobsdotter 
	B
	Feb 28, 1856 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 2, 1940
	Poulsbo, Wash
	

	E7
	Lars Jacobsson 
	B
	June 9, 1857 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 13, 1931 
	Åre
	


Photograph (362)

Per Lalander was born on November 9, 1875, and died on October 17, 1943.

I {Jacob Jacobsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Merith Pehrsdotter} transfer her through custody 

paid Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of one taxable acre 

to our children the sons Pehr, Jacob and Anders and Daughters Gertru and Ursilla, 

that in consideration on her below priced value to just as easy dehle XE "dehle" , 

but in consideration of legal possession belongs to this only the three Elsta by children which now all years of age.

After mutual treffad XE "treffad"  agreement because lättning XE "lättning" , 

son (Jacob} receives  legal possession of this farm, 

which he has that after that value which by öfver XE "öfver"  låtarna XE "låtarna"  become priced, 

making a grand total of one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler 

Thereof that pay the other brothers and sisters possessions easy in this 

with two hundred (200) Riksdaler of the same currency 

and the buyer is also responsible not only for such Reserved Rights contract 

which according to make requirement two deeds by give over have been made up, 

without also being responsible for the farm give over their Reserved Rights contract according to Reserved Rights contract of this date.  

Farm give on March 1, neither May 1849

and shall brothers and sisters approving solutions a in this is paid on the 1st of next November by the farm buyer, 

the buyer receives a horse valued at thirty three (33) Riksdaler 16 Species from the seller at no cost.

Consequently, upon fulfillment of these conditions, our son (Jakob} receives ownership rights and lawfully acquires this farm for himself and his heirs 

request made on all of the buildings, land, down and distant village, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, which is congenially acknowledged and completed.  


Björnänge on September 5, 1848


Seller:
Jacob Jacobsson 



Merith Pehrsdotter 


Buyer:
Jacob Jacobsson the younger 

(363)
Witness: 
Eric Pehrsson 



A.  Sundin of Björnänge

This contract approved to whole sit content dated as above



Pehr Jacobsson Björnänge 



Nils Olausson married to Gertrud Jacobsdotter

Jacob Jacobsson received a permanent deed for his farm in Björnänge on December 19, 1849.  This farm was located in Wik and was listed as Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of 1 acre.  In 1867, he had to sell the farm in order to pay his debts.  His brother Per purchased it.

I {Jacob Jacobsson} hereby release and sell my ownership and possession rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of 1 acre to my brother Per Jacobsson of this Village for a purchase amount of one thousand eight hundred twenty five (1,825) Riksdaler from which my mortgage to Erik Jonsson and my sister Ursilla and my debt to church money in Ahre shall be paid

The remainder is hereby paid to me through payment on this date to get rid of the debt.

The buyer shall provide the annual Reserved Rights to my parents and the farm buyer shall now immediately assume the rights and responsibilities which accompany this farm


Acknowledged in Ähre and Björnänge on March 26, 1867



Jacob Jacobsson of Björnänge

The above written contract is truthful and agreement is acknowledged by the buyer.


Buyer:
Per Jacobsson

(364)
Witness: 
Jonas Hedman of Björnänge 



Nils Jonsson of England

Contract
I {Per Jacobsson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to my brothers sons (Lars Jacobsson and Jacob Jacobsson}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of 18 2/3 kapland or 7/12 of a taxable acre, or 7/24 of a taxable acre to each of them.

The buyers may take immediate possession of the buildings and land as they can now be found for an agreed upon Purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler.  

The buyer also acknowledges and agrees to provide Reserved Rights to my brother (Jacob Jacobsson} and his wife {Karin Svensdotter} for their remaining lifetimes.

the buyer also approves sentence farm partitioned which from this roughly becomes to Jonas Grönlund for always granted.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I surrender my ownership rights to the previously mentioned Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge consisting of 7/12 taxable acres is owned as legally purchased property  and farms acknowledged.


Åre and Björnänge on May 1, 1891


Seller:
Per Jacobsson of Björnänge

We make ourselves clear that we are satisfied with this purchase as acknowledged.


Buyer:
Jacob Jacobsson 



Lars Jacobsson

(364)
Witness: 
Olof Persson 



Erik Hedman of Björnänge

Reserved Rights Contract

We guarantee our father {Jacob Jacobsson} and our mother {Karin Svensdotter} of Björnänge, that for their remaining lifetimes we shall give them the below written Reserved Rights calculated annually from this date:

1. Feed and fodder all year round for 2 cows and 4 goats or sheep with 2 of their offspring of the goats or sheep.  

· 100 kilograms of coarsely milled

· 100 kilograms of sammalt XE "sammalt" 
 corn flour of Farm crop

· 50 kilograms of Fine and sigtad XE "sigtad"  rye flour

· The right to use the farm’s plowed and fertilized land to plant 4 hegtoliters of potatoes each year.

2. Give the following land that is cultivated and harvested by the Reserved Rights recipient, 

to the south against the water well and to the east to the middle of the stable and from there to a larger forest and northward as far as against the outlying land, 

and to the west to a fence built there, downwards to west from our water well, and on the south side of the lake the portion by summer mountain pasture barn that is on the west side 

by the little stream in drolet XE "drolet"  and downwards against the lakeshore, and west from the pasture to the cleared fields 

which are found to the property lines against the farm rönningen XE "rönningen" , and the right to fish in Åresjön, and to berpläckning XE "berpläckning"  on farm area.

3. They shall be given the following for lodging:

· The small cottage building on the northeast part of the farm in its entirety

· Room in chicken coop for their cattle that were born from Special Stipulation

· Room for hay and forage on barn jellen XE "jellen" 
· Room in farms other buildings as needed

· 35 square meter drive to the home and chop and dry pine wood annually, 

· because raucous to necessary driving and errands

· A ride to and from church when it is needed 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after death

4. The death of either Reserved Rights recipient, eliminates:

· Feed and fodder for a cow

· 100 kilograms of sammalt XE "sammalt"  corn flour

· ½ of the potatoes Settningen

· The entire Special Stipulation that livestock used the her this land as well as home by farm that in summer mountain pasture barn on the south side of Åresjön
but the other Reserved Rights benefits originates without revision until the last one’s death.  

5. As security for receiving the above written Reserved Rights, we give the Reserved Rights recipients the right to request and receive a mortgage on the above-mentioned 7/12 taxable acre of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge.

Acknowledged and attested in Åre Parish and the Village of Björnänge on May 1, 1891


Reserved Rights


Provider:
Lars Jacobsson 



Jacob Jacobsson 


Witness 
Olof Persson and Erik Hedman of Björnänge

Purchase Agreement

I {Lars Jacobsson} hereby sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Bearänge in Åre Parish consisting of seven one-hundred-forty-fourths (7/144) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land, to my brother (Jacob Jacobsson} and his wife {Brita Eriksdotter} 

The buyer shall take immediate possession upon payment of the purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler.  

That through was made promissory note with a mortgage right in this property such is paid in full to get rid of the debt.

The buyer shall also fulfill the Reserved Rights to the widow {Karin Svensdotter} after her Reserved Rights contract for that as calculated on this property.

The seller reserves for himself a land acreage of 1000 square meters for a building location west of the farm framework against farmer Olof Perssons contained within 

also 3 meters Company road from Main road to this site 

that in his remaining lifetime may be used 

and afterward relapses to farm without fee, 

the seller also reserves for himself that during five years time on farm forest land ta XE "ta" kes 5 loads of firewood by thereto suitable forest annually.

This transaction is hereby agreed upon and acknowledged.


Åre and Björnänge on May 9, 1902


Seller:
Lars Jacobsson


Buyer:
Jacob Jacobsson

(366)
Witness: 
Nicol.  Nilsson of Björnänge 



Nils Jonsson of Såå, Åre 

Purchase Agreement

I {Sven Jacobsson} hereby sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge in Åre Parish and consisting of seven one-hundred-forty-fourths (7/144) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land to my brother (Jacob Jacobsson} and his wife {Brita Eriksdotter}.

that now immediately the buyer 

for an agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler.  

That through give promissory note is paid and is hereby eliminated.  

The buyer shall also give the Reserved Rights to widow Karin Svensdotter that she from this portion of the farm her provide.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I surrender my ownership rights to my portion of this farm and attest Jacob Jacobsson and his wife to be the rightful owners with all that now belongs to the farm and promise to faithfully obey the District Court, as acknowledged in Åre and Björnänge on May 9, 1902.


Seller:
Sven Jacobsson 


Buyer:
Jacob Jacobsson 

(366)
Witness: 
Nicol.  Nilsson of Björnänge 



Nils Jonsson of Såå, Åre

Catharina Magnusdotter
Table 119 (367)

Catharina Magnusdotter5, Magnus Larsson4, Karin Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Catharina Magnusdotter 
	B
	July 24, 1836 
	
	Catharina lived in Sulviken, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S1
	Gustaf Magnus Rydell
	B
	1823
	
	Gustaf was a widower.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Magnus Gustaf Gustafsson 
	B
	July 11, 1858 
	Wikström
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 30, 1861 
	
	

	S2
	Olof Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Sep 20, 1829 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 23, 1914
	
	

	E2
	Olaus Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	Feb 13, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1890 
	Consumption
	

	E3
	Anna Christina Olofsdotter 
	B
	May 21, 1865 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 24, 1953 
	Alsen
	

	E4
	Katarina Olofsdotter 
	B
	Dec 6, 1869
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Sven Aug Olo XE "Ol" fsson 
	B
	May 1, 1875 
	Backén
	Sven emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Oscar Löding has done some research on Gustaf Magnus Rydell.  I have taken part of it that I think it is worth writing down here.

Rydell received a summons to Court for "serving of alcoholic beverages".  

There he admitted a portion why he judge that fine "for the first time serving of alcoholic beverages" of 20 Riksdaler and for serving of alcoholic beverages a fine of 40 Riksdaler, "but in case Rydell does not pay the fine, he shall undergo 12 days in prison with bread and water”.  

He also must reimburse the three witnesses with a payment of 10 Riksdaler to each of them, a rather substantial fine.

But let us go back to what happened when they had “lekstuga XE "lekstuga" " with Magnus Larsson.  

Nils Axelsson Westerberg (the plaintiff} was interrogated first.  

After dansens XE "dansens"  finish by 4 or 5 o’clock in the morning words were exchanged with Rydell and turned into a commotion and a fight.  

Rydell had given Nils a "shove" and, unsteady as he was, he fell to the floor but he gets up again and ta XE "ta" kes a strangle hold on Rydell and faces him against the wall with the words: 

"Don’t you believe that I can force my will(?)".   

Then Rydell gives him another shove so that Nils falls into the open fireplace 

whereby glow tumbles ahead on the floor.  

Thereby he beats him and received a turned blue in the thighs.

Rydell denies that he had been intoxicated with strong drink.  

Then the witnesses are summoned to the hearing.  

Here it is stated that Nils' brother "Hunter Anders Axelsson Westerberg who is an angifvare XE "angifvare" 
 and that försvarslöse XE "försvarslöse" 
 manspersonen XE "manspersonen"  Gustaf Magnus Rydell is responsible"! 

Gustaf Magnus Rydell was a foster child from Stockholm (Number 1163) and was raised on the Skogsö farm in Saltsjöbaden.  

He came to Jämtland for the Copper Mining Company with a group of 21 children and was placed in Hallen.  

He came as a 21 year old to Hook and Bratteggen in Kall in 1842 and there he was legally married in 1854.

His father was named Nils Rydell.  He was born in 1779, but he drowned on February 6, 1825 when Gustaf Magnus was barely 2 years old.  

In 1815 he {Nils Rydell} married Ulrika (Ull XE "Ull" a) Elisabeth Vogel (or Fogel) from Stockholm who was born in 1795 and died in 1834.  

She became an alcoholic after her husband’s death, which is why she was thrown out by her son Gustaf Magnus.

Later, in the next Autumn Court Session of Undersåker District Court, we issued a summons to businessman G. P. Braathen of Sundsvall with the demand that we, as the heirs of Magnus Larssons and his daughter Kattarina Magnusdotter and her husband Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, must be acknowledged before Braathen and his hired men as the tenants and legal owners in Tax Court to the 5/8 acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sulviken in Kall Parish, 

to which the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company purchase Tax Court 

and Magnus Larsson during his lifetime had  the legal tenant ownership rights, 

and for which we hereby humbly request that our claim be entered into the District Court Deed Book Recorded Minutes.  

Hjerpen on June 30, 1898



Sven August Backén of Back

Katarina Olofsdotter Grönlund and her husband Lars Erik Grönlund of Reed covered neck of.

Anna Kristina Olofsdotter and her husband Lars Erik Eriksson of Alsen

Jonas Forsén of Ytterkonäs, guardian for deceased Olaus Ol XE "Ol" ofsson’s of Ytterkonäs underage children, daughters:  Brita Catarina, Johanna Olivi, and Anna Kristina.

Issue of Summons
On this occasion businessman G. P. Braathen of Sundsvall is summoned and tallied at the next Autumn Court Session in Undersåker District Court, 

samhälles XE "samhälles" 
 in Hjerpen that is to begin on Tuesday the 27th of September at the next Court Session.  He must obey this summons or pay the consequences.  


Östersund on June 14, 1898 


On behalf of the Judge Office 



Sten Geetz

(368)

Through the Royal Government Judgment of December 12, 1750, ownership rights were obtained by the Gustafs and Karlbergs Copper Mining Company, 

that the Copper Mining Company’s security and operation shall loose considerable Royal Government Homesteads in Kall Parish, 

there among the entire Village of Sulvikens, which was then of a Royal Government nature.

By these rights, utilized sej XE "sej"  also the Copper Mining Company, for whom the Royal Court on May 7, 1751 wrote the tax Purchase Agreement.  

In this Royal Court Judgment was found also inhabited the regulation, 

that of the Copper Mining Company with time should come that reduced the tenant on the tax purchase farm 

then exclusive ownership rights should before every other against the same 

and the purchase amount from the Copper Mining Company insösa XE "insösa"  Tax Court, 

which the Copper Mining Company does not get the right to use after that time.

After that time, the Copper Mining Company had changed owners several times and often vexlat XE "vexlat" 
 name.  At the present time it is called “Husä” and it is owned by the Huså Company, which purchased it from the business firm of Jac Elliot Co of Göteborg.  

During the time this business Copper Mining Company use and afterwards use transferred in Huså Stock Company ego, 

has however work oafbrutet XE "oafbrutet" 
 gotten reduced so that afterwards many years back some mine businesses therefore were not pursued, 

and finally the Huså Company has, afterwards be as reduced, 

that the same had no further use for this land to support mining.

To Olof Alexandersson of Westgård sestate XE "sestate"  the executor sold in Tax Court to the entire Village of Sulvikens.  

For that reason, businessman G. P. Braathen of Sundsvall is released of his ownership rights on March 25th of this year in Tax Court.

Also, after 1750, the tenant had the right to use the tax purchased farms in Sulviken that were transferred from one tenant to another.  

Hereby Magnus Larsson of House has on through Bytes Contract 

of April 22, 1858 for his ownership rights to by him 

up until then had been owned the Company Farm No. 30 in the Village of Huså and a down payment in cash 

with the Gustafs and Carlbergs Copper Mining Company interests is agreed to, 

Johan Ersson and his wife {Ingeborg Göransdotter} tillbytt XE "tillbytt"  his and his wife, children and heirs as the tenants and legal owners of 5/8 of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in Sulviken.

Although Magnus Larsson had a daughter {Katarina Magnusdotter} in the marriage with his wife {Kristina Larsdotter} 

which by reason of law 

and Magnus Larsson is agreed to have acquired a contract from the Copper Mining Company before anyone else was entitled to the tenant rights on these 5/8 of an acre, 

be said that he, in about year the year 1860, released his tenant rights to one-half (½) of this or roughly 5/16 of an acre, to worker Anders Persson without the Copper Mining Company’s permission, 

on who afterwards the ownership rights come in 

Häradsdomaren Erik Alexandersson of Westgård supposed ego 

and after his death was released by his executor of the estate to businessman G.  P.  Braathen of Sundsvall.

Through the contract of March 28, 1883, Magnus Larsson released the ownership rights to 5/16 of an acre to his only child, daughter {Kattarina Magnusdotter} and her husband {Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} 

which ate- in fence dared receive consider ownership rights complete justification alone in advising kinship ratio between father and daughter.

Afterwards, this Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson and his wife {Kattarina Magnusdotter}, without the Copper Mining Company’s approval, sold the other one-half (½) or five sixteenths (5/16)  of an acre to M. G.  Wikström of Sulviken, who, on his orders, released the tenant rights to Häradsdomaren Erik Alexandersson of Westgård and after whose death the executor of his estate also released his {Erik Alexandersson} supposed ownership rights upon this latter 5/16 of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in Sulviken to businessman Braathen

Then Magnus Larsson missed befogenhet XE "befogenhet" 
, 

that in struggle with the law and subject-matter 

by his acquired contract 

to the heirs acquire of Anders Persson 

according to the District Court execution given over 

some portion of the ownership rights to five eighths (5/8) of an acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of  Sulviken, 

hån XE "hån"  by Johan Ersson with the Copper Mining Company approval him tillbytt XE "tillbytt" .

Magnus Larsson’s daughter {Kattarina Magnusdotter} and her husband Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

who by reason of purchase and relationship ratio 

the livestock ½ or 5/16 of an acre possessed, 

likewise missed befogenhet XE "befogenhet"  that this tenant rights on 

other than us, their closest heirs, give over.

The quoted Royal Court Judgment of December 12, 1750 guarantees the tenant first ownership rights in the event it is released by the Copper Mining Company before any others are able to claim it in the Tax Court in the Village of Sulvikens.

Therefore we, as the heirs of Magnus Larsson and his daughter Kattarina Magnusdotter and her husband Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, hereby respectfully issue this summons at this next Autumn Court Session in Undersåker District Court against businessman G.  P.  Braathen of Sundsvall with the following demands: 

· We, such as also daily, are entitled before Braathen and his hired men, to be acknowledged as the tenants and legal owners of five eighths (5/8) of an acre on Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Sulviken.

· Magnus Larsson, during his lifetime, also maintained the tenant rights there and then the Huså Company surrendered ownership to these five eighths (5/8) of an acre to him in Tax Court when they consequently were not further able to serve in the Copper Mining Company’s operation and security.

· We, in the referred to Royal Court Judgment of December 12, 1750, claim to have been awarded these same five eighths (5/8) of an acre in Tax Court.  

· Finally, the executor of the estate of Erik Alexandersson and Braathen conducted extensive logging in the Sulviken Village undivided forest during the winter of last year, which constitutes byns XE "byns" 
 intrinsic value, and therefore it must be supposed that Braathen has the intention to continue with the forest logging during this coming winter

· We claim that the District Court must prohibit Braathen from conducting more logging in this forest before this dispute of ownership rights is settled.  

· In conclusion, we also request compensation for our legal expenses.  


Östersund on June 13, 1898


Sven Aug Backén of Back


Kattarina Olofsdotter Grönlund and her 


Husband Lars Erik Grönlundin Reed covered neck of.


Anna Kristina Olofsdotter and her husband Lars Erik Eriksson of Alsen


Johan Forsén of Ytterkonäs, guardian for deceased 


Olaus Olofssons of Ytterkonäs underage children: daughters 


Brita Catarina, Johanna Olivia and Anna Christina.

Everything is hereby submitted through J. Nordvall in accordance with his legal powers of attorney.


Correctness with the original is certified by: 




O. P.  Berg 



J.  Nordvall

Photograph (371)

This is the cottage where Magnus Larsson lived in Sulviken.  In this photo
 are the parents of Gunvor Christensson of Konäs and her uncle (husband of the sister of the mother) Olga and brother Bertil.  This photograph was taken in the summer of 1930.  The owner of this photograph is Gunvor Christensson.

Olof Grönlund
Table 120 (372)

Olof Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Olof Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 30, 1820
	
	Company Worker in Huså

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 27, 1849
	
	

	S
	Katarina Karlsdotter 
	B
	Feb 17, 1829 
	Konäs
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 27, 1902
	
	

	El
	Erik Gustaf Grönlund 
	B
	Feb 17, 1850
	
	Erik emigrated to the USA on June 1, 1873.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anna Grönlund 
	B
	July 18, 1852
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 29, 1919
	
	

	E3
	Carl Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 10, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 28, 1856 
	
	Carl died of respiratory illness.

	E4
	Carl Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 13, 1857 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 20, 1924 
	Frösön
	

	E5
	Jonas Grönlund 
	B
	Dec 12, 1859
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Elisabeth Grönlund 
	B
	Sep 11, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 15, 1913
	
	

	E7
	Katarina Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 6, 1865 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 26, 1939
	
	

	E8
	Olof Grönlund 
	B
	Dec 4, 1867
	
	To Trondheim November 22, 1902

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E9
	Christina Grönlund 
	B
	Dec 8, 1868
	
	I have found no information on Christina.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E10
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 2, 1872 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 6, 1872
	
	


On July 6, undivided farmer Erik Axelsson Borins of Berge, Kall Parish, born on September 28, 1879 notifies for T. F.
 Royal Government Official, that his daughter {Helena} had been raped by Company farm owner Olof Ersson Grönlund of Huså.

This girl had been examined by the parish midwife afterwards, and she attested that the girl was definitely raped and was most likely ruined for the rest of her life.  

Then Olof Ersson Grönlund on Sunday, July 7th, 

its on Mörsils railroad station afresh enterprise hearing 

in the presence of station Inspector Hjertman and Parish Constable Olof Pettersson of Ocke, 

Grönlund has after a brief denial 

Afterwards the girl Helena repeated her story that he had committed child rape.

Olof Ersson Grönlund gave the following statement:

He was born on August 30, 1820.  His parents were now deceased.  They were Company farm owners Erik Olsson Grönlund and his wife {Elisabet Jonasdotter} from Huså, Kall Parish, 

He resided on his parents farm all the time until 1849.  He then took over his parents farm in Huså, and he inherited this farm in 1885.  

Although jan XE "jan"  both still remained there with the enjoyment of Reserved Rights provided by the same.

He had made some incidental voyages to adjacent Parishes.

He had attended a small-school in Huså in his childhood and there he had learned to read and write from a small-school teacher by the name of Hans Jonsson Rödin.

He was confirmed in the summer of 1835 in Kall Church by Company Preacher Horrman.  

He had 6 siblings, of which there were 3 brothers and 3 sisters.

He had married his still living wife in 1840.  She was farmer’s daughter Katarina Karlsdotter from the Village of Konäs in Kall Parish.

He and his wife had produced 8 still living children consisting of 4 boys and 4 girls and an they had two additional children that are now dead.

His parents, like appeal
 his wife and himself, had always lived in poverty.

He had never before been convicted of a crime for which he had received even the slightest punishment.

He had units of Tax Registered Land and he had made tax payments in Husä and Kall Parish in this County.


Date as above 

Abraham Staaff

Judgment of August 9, 1889

Because appeal Olof Ersson Grönlund 

has voluntary admitted in the legal proceedings inlaid circumstances 

is hereby legally convicted to have committed child rape in his home on a during Huså in homestead located in Kall Parish on Thursday the 27th of next lidne XE "lidne"  June with the daughter {Helena} of farmer Erik Axelsson Borin and his wife Märta Ersdotter.  

Helena, according to the legal evidence that was presented by a certified priest, was born on September 28, l879 and consequently had still not yet reached 12 years of age.

Grönlund confessed that this child rape crime ta XE "ta" kes place during these circumstances, and therefore he was also found responsible for violent tägt XE "tägt" 
 of gentle Helena Borin.

Grönlund, who for the entire time after 1849 had been united in marriage with his still living wife {Catarina Carlsdotter} from this evidence is found guilty to hors crime and is sentenced in District Court under Statute 18 Chapter 7, Statute 15 Chapter 12, and Statute 4 Chapter 1, Statute 1 and 17 Chapter 1 in the same District Court.

He {Olof Ersson Grönlund} was justly sentenced to serve seven years for this crime

is against and then T. F.
  Municipal Sergeant A. Staaff confirmed his authority that not appeal 

demanded that Grönlund compensate the father of Helena Borin for expenses which had been incurred in the legal proceedings for the witnesses testimony and for the medical care of gentle Helena with more, 

that in consideration of this makes a demand that the District Court shall, without consideration, 

Grönlund shall, as a result of this Judgment, be taken back into custody as a District Court prisoner.  <Long direct evidence> 


Year and Date as above


On behalf of this District Court 

(373)

Albert Olsén

I hereby come before the court with an excerpt from the tax collection books for the Royal Government as well as for Municipal Taxes showing 

which amount me for this five years ålegat XE "ålegat"  that pay and it hereby confirms that the defendant’s claim that he made a payment in the bank book is false and completely worthless.

It was unintended that I enjoyed tax freedom for part of the year because of poverty, 

that near the defendant not been able to ditty of and that husbands I had been responsible that except referred to Royal Government and Municipal Tax, 

taken part in the farm’s other taxes and burdens for I renew my summons asserting and humbly claiming that the defendant pledged to repay me the 116 Riksdaler 51 Species that he owed me, 

from which I shall pay the Royal Government and Municipal Taxes, according to the records presented by me, consisting altogether of 24 Riksdaler 30 outer.

I likewise demand annual interest and compensation for court costs in the exact amount that Olof Lalanders incurred as the executor of the estate.  

Court Session Place 


Myckelgård on February 16, 1883



Olof Ersson Grönlund of Huså 

(374)

Christen Lithström (the older)

Judgment

Regarding themselves legal proceedings, 

which, elderly there in not proven, 

that exact the contract, 

whereby the tenants had received a homestead on the Huså Farm from the plaintiffs

and which contract undeniably contains the terms of the tenants obligations stating that they should pay all taxes and burdens for this farm and also all the personal taxes that are calculated on them and their people, 

or by reason of other ratio the plaintiff had been responsible to acknowledge the expenses 

for guest provider payment, road policy, soldier payment and school teacher payment, which, 

according to the legal proceedings which came before the court between the Copper Mining Company and the plaintiffs 

conveyed bank book indicated, 

becomes the plaintiff’s expenses for the years from and including 1875 to 1879, 

or there in inhabited Royal Government and Municipal tax to higher amount than up to now these, 

as far as being of personal composition, 

according to the plaintiffs admission and by the provided deeds, 

declared 

and the Company paid the debt of the Royal Government tax for the aforesaid five years for the total amount of 15 Riksdaler 21 Species and Municipal tax for the years from and including 1875, to and including 1878, for the total amount of 9 Riksdaler 9 Species.

Therefore, the defendant did not show any payment of his debt to the plaintiffs {the Copper Mining Company}, which should go as an acknowledgment that the plaintiffs in this suit were improperly forced to make this payment, and the District Court finds it reasonable, with the approval of the plaintiff’s lawsuit, that the defendant shall be obligated to pay the plaintiffs 

according to came before protracted from bank book 

become during questioned time the plaintiffs charged to an account, 

consisting altogether of 116 Riksdaler 21 Species

After deduction of the Royal Government and Municipal Taxes in the amount of 24 Riksdaler 30 Species, the plaintiffs are officially left the remaining 92 Riksdaler 21 Species
 at 5 percent annual interest.

Jonas Grönlund
Table 121 (375)

Jonas Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Jonas Grönlund 
	B
	Oct 6, 1822
	
	Jonas lived in Björnänge.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 29, 1861 
	
	

	S
	Elisabeth Hållstedt 
	B
	1841
	
	

	
	
	D
	1928
	
	

	E1
	Lisbeth Grönlund 
	B
	Nov 21, 1861
	
	Lisbeth emigrated to America in 1895.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Jonas Grönlund 
	B
	July 28, 1863 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1939
	
	

	E3
	Erik Grönlund 
	B
	Feb 25, 1867
	
	Erik emigrated to America and disappeared.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Anders Johan Grönlund 
	B
	Sep 11, 1870 
	
	Anders emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (375)

Stårsta in Edsäsdalen where Jonas and Märit Grönlund lived.  This house is now rivet.  The owner of this photograph is the grandchild (Eva Hedström of Tossön, Järpen} of Jonas.  Jonas Grönlund was born here on July 28, 1863.

Entry into the Deed Book document of seven one-hundred-eighths (7/108) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land Edsåsen  No. 3 (½ by Edsåsen 3) in Undersåker Parish, 

which Jonas Grönlund and his wife {Märit Grönlund} bought in the Purchase Agreement  dated  May 1, 1915 for 5,500 Riksdaler and also for providing Reserved Rights benefits to her (Märit Grönlund} mother {Kerstin Ersdotter}.

Reserved Rights Contract

I {Jonas Grönlund} on this day have purchased and legally acquired from my mother-in-law (the widow Kerstin Ersdotter}, seven one-hundred-eighths (7/108) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land or one-half of her farm of seven fifty-fourths (7/54) of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land on Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Edsåsen in Undersåker Parish 

I hereby promise to provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits from and including this date until the death of my mother-in-law:

1. Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 goats or sheep and 2 of their offspring.

2. A mälling crop grain acre and also the right to plant 1 barrel of potatoes in also suitable plowed and fertilized land.

3. For Special Stipulation land, provide 1 mälling in width and 2 in length when from the fence up after revised property line against the eastern farm division by the property.

4. The eastern cottage by the manfarms XE "manfarms"  building is left to her, and the entrance hall and western an attic room on outer bottom for her lodging.  Site in barn for Special Stipulation livestock and access and usage of the cellar and other buildings as necessary.

5. One yard bring necessary and requisite firewood to the home and chop and dry small wood.  Also provide tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses and a decent burial after death.  


As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, I {Jonas Grönlund} give the Reserved Rights recipient (Kerstin Ersdotter} the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm without any additional hearings.


Edsåsen Undersåker on May 1, 1915


Reserved Rights


Provider:
Jonas Grönlund of Stärsta 

Our own handwritten signatures are certified in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  

(376)
Witness:
Erik Andersson of Edsåsen



J. G.  Sahlin of Ocke

Purchase Agreement

I {Jonas Grönlund} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge, Ähre Parish, Undersåker District to Company Worker Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Westberg of Huså.

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler shall be paid on the 1st of next May and the buyer shall immediately take possession with all of the rights and responsibilities that are contained in my contract of October 6, 1860.  

It is hereby agreed upon, decided, and acknowledged with the buyer’s as well as the seller’s signature.


Ähre and Björnänge on April 18, 1870


Seller:
Jonas Grönlund


Buyer:
Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson Westberg

(377)
Witness:
Petter Pehrsson



Jacob Pettersson of Björnänge

Contract

The following agreement has been made between the Huså Company and the widow Elisabeth Grönlund:

1. Elisabeth Grönlund denies all the upkeep care and nursing by her parents, Jonas Hållstedt and his wife {Stina}, and otherwise all expenditures that are able to be questioned.  

2. 1 compensation for Elisabeth Grönlund from the Huså Company office receives a cash payment of 10 Riksdaler per month.  In addition, her father {Jonas Hållstedt} is released from his tenant obligations
 to the farm.  

3. This contract applies for as long as both Elisabeth Grönlund’s parents live and the agreement made between Husä Company Office and Åre District, does not of poor vårdens XE "vårdens" 
 fixing on other manner.  However, in any event it does not go beyond April 30, 1894.


Fröå, Åre on December 8, 1893



Elisabeth Grönlund Huså Company office



Sverre Breien Company administrator

(377)
Witness:
Aug.  Stenberg



J. E.  Norberg

Agnes Grönlund
Table 122 (378)

Agnes Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B

D
	Dec 7, 1824
	
	Agnes lived in Huså on  Company Farm No. 9.

	
	
	M
	June 24, 1846 
	
	

	S
	Per Göransson Lind 
	B
	Oct 16, 1821 
	
	Per was a farmer.

	
	
	D
	Nov 2, 1886 
	
	

	El
	Göran Lind 
	B
	June 24, 1847 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 25, 1886 
	Consumption
	

	E2
	Erik Lind 
	B

D
	June 1, 1853
	
	Erik emigrated to America on March 23, 1883.

	E3
	Per Jonas Lind 
	B
	Jan 17, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1942
	
	


Photograph (378)

Agnes Grönlund was born on December 7, 1824, and she died on September 28, 1900.  I got this photograph from Gösta Lind of Huså, Kall.

Farm Contract

The leasehold of Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company Farm in the Village of Huså in Kall Parish is taken over by Per Göransson Lind for the following conditions:

1. The tenant shall annually pay 15 Riksdaler with work for the lease of the farm and he is also responsible constantly hold mine drilling by Bjelkes Copper Mining Company and compensate for mine work according to that mine contract, which for every time is approve.  In consideration of work times in the mine apply to the mining company for jurisdiction.  Lind year there also responsible that to their parents, then these become unable to himself provide for necessary upkeep.

2. ignore pays all taxes and burdens for farm and for personal taxes, that on him and his people him calculated.

3. It is the responsibility of the current tenant that farm take good care of and cultivate, land as well as house and fence, where at however the village gas that new homestead buildings do not receive by the tenant fulfill without also that Company administration received condition, and that the farm fences receive uppstänga XE "uppstänga" 
 only with outlying land and property, which does not belong to the Copper Mining Company.  
Plank and board to necessary repairs give the tenant by the Copper Mining Company without payment.  

4. Necessary firewood the tenant has on the Copper Mining Company forest without compensation collecting but shall necessarily dry forest, stumps and place near also in first room is used.  All burning is prohibited also Löftägt and timber cutting by no one.  Otherwise village gas that grows tree does not receive by the tenant or his people either täxlas XE "täxlas"  or cut down without preceding marked.  

5. Pasture for the cattle, which on the farm born, give on the Copper Mining Company land except farms fence on the tract, which by Company administration determines.

6. Sale of feed, fertilizer or forest output from the farm by whatever name it may be is prohibited.

7. The tenant is prohibited, which future not Special Stipulations also received, that in his home or on the property’s hold other persons than them, that with Company administrations approval with him Registered for the Population Records are, which and that consisting of work and driving by whatever name it may be to anyone other than the Copper Mining Company.

8. With Church and Municipality expression, and also by clergy election and otherwise on all occasions, then claim for the Copper Mining Company possessions land shall
transport, provide the Copper Mining Company him suffrage for the same.

9. When the tenant executes this contract with fidelity and diligence, and in remaining sober and proper, may he be banished that until his death, the farm such which is found with all of the buildings and land without compensation to the tenants ownership rights relapses to the Copper Mining Company, on the same use and use, but in contrary event or in the case of the tenant makes him guilty of a crime against the contract, he shall be put under an obligation to move upon being ordered to do so without receiving compensation for on the farm made improvements.

This contract is approved to commence on 1st of January of this year and are by the Copper Mining Company and the tenant taken where his.


Huså on November 21, 1868



Vollrath Tham

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



Per Göransson Lind of Husä

(380) Witness: 
Gustaf Nilsson 



Johan Nilsson of Huså

Per Jonas Lind did well in school.  

I read from Jämten in 1965 that he began school in the fall term of 1870 and in the spring term he had only one
 “A” in conduct and performance.  But in the spring term of 1873, he was the only one who has an A in both conduct and performance.  In the spring term of 1876, he graduated as the school’s best student with A’s in many subjects and an A in both conduct and performance.

In 1859, the following assessment was conducted on Company Farm No. 9, owned by Per Göransson Lind

· A cottage 13 alnars {26 feet} long, of which 5 alnars {10 feet} makes up the porch and barn, 8¾ alnars {17½ feet} wide, 18 layers high.  Double board roof, inner ceiling in both floors of simple boards.

· Floors everywhere of planks, a fireplace with a baking oven with boards, post and dampers of iron.  4 operable louver in outer and 3 in downstairs floors all of 5/4.  Cottage and entrance hall plastered inside.

· A fireplace in house.  It is 15 years old, and has used up material and days work etc.

· 8½ dozen timber a 
6½ Rd
35,12

· 5 2/3 dozen planks a 
3 Riksdaler 
15

· 15 dozen board a 
1½ Riksdaler 
22.24

· Upptimringen XE "Upptimringen" 
, Flottningen XE "Flottningen" 
, a fireplace and 

· all home furnishings according to chord

· with carpenter 
200

· Nails 

· 200 3 inch

· 300 4 inch 

· 300 5 inch

6.12

· Bördåsar and fireplace post

3.36

· 1 Operable louver 3 Riksdaler, Plaster in 2 room 
8 Riksdaler 29 Species

· 3 door latch a 3, 3 pairs of hinges 
4.24 
4.24

· A barn 9 alnars {18 feet} long with extension against the feed shed, 9 ½ alnars {19 feet} wide, 15 layers high.  The roof is built of boards because warmtaket XE "warmtaket" , unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, A fireplace with well braced and spikes of thread.  It has room enough for 6 cows and 28 to 30 sheep or goats.  It is 24 years old, but repaired 7 years ago with a new roof and a lot of new timber.

· A feed shed 12 alnars {24 feet} long, of which 4 alnars {8 feet} makes up a haystack against barn, 9½ alnars {19 feet} wide, 17 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, floor of miscellaneous wood, a door on hinges.  is timbered for 6 year afterwards and is found now in perfect condition.

· Granary 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 14 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, 8 foot wide threshing barn with a floor built of planks, floor in straw room of miscellaneous wood, 2 doors.  This building is tallied for 7 year afterwards and is now found in perfect condition.

· Shelter is on 4 logs, 6 alnars {12 feet} long with a lean, 5 alnars {10 feet} wide, 14 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks and a door with a lock.  It is repaired and furnished with a new roof this year and is now in perfect condition.

· Summer barn 7 alnars {14 feet} with 4 corners, 6 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, a door on hinges, is old and faulty.

· A hay barn 5 alnars {10 feet} on all 4 sides, 13 layers high.  The roof is built of boards and the floor is built of round logs.  It is new and in perfect condition.

· A hay barn west of Homeowner is small and old.

· One half of the ownership rights to a barn with in-law Olof Lalander, 7 alnars {14 feet} long with a lean, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide, 10 layers high with a roof and warm roof of board, 2 Dry leaves and a baking oven, is in good condition.  

· Cropland 3¾ malings of land

· 13¼ new land

· Fence 359 2/3 fathoms of field

· Mountains
18 loads of hay within Homeowner

· 5 loads from cane field and Rismyran {Ris Swamp}

· 3 loads from Håtil XE "Håtil" 
 in Wassnäsmarken
· 26 loads of hay and slough grass

· During the last 5 years, the tenant has cultivated about 3 malings of new land.  

· Within Farms area is now negligible cultivation tillgång XE "tillgång" .  

Please Note! The summer mountain cabin pasture that belonged to this Farm before has Smedjeviks farm now has more the deed delivered to him, but it is still undecided as to which of these farms it officially belonged to.

From Huså Use 801

Farm Lease Contract

The leasehold of Jemtland Copper & Logging Company Farm No. 10 in Kall Parish, is taken over by Per Lind for the following conditions:

The tenant shall annually pay 94 Riksdaler for the leasehold and it is calculated that the seed amount and the work that is done on the cottages shall apply to this contract until April 24, 1876.

The user wants his contract that from farm take the prospective hay harvest and uppstilla XE "uppstilla" 
 this on that farm which before ownership rights, 

jurisdiction under work, 

who is granted this on the condition that the entire hay harvest is appreciated in weight by a factor of 2 without donation by Trustee accepted husbands 

and Per Lind is responsible for this remission to this homestead instead of the hay that hereby completed will be uppstillas XE "uppstillas" 
 on the other site, 

therefore 1 load (horse load) of fertilizer for every 20 loads of hay that is removed.  

Husä on August 2, 1875 

Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company 

Gottfrid Engberg.  

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.  



Huså on above date



Per Lind

This contract is renewed for one year, calculated from April 24th of this year to the same time in 1877, for the same lease amount of 94 Riksdaler.  But instead of the livestock, work, and seed amount that was paid the preceding year and calculated at a value of 14
 Riksdaler, it shall now be paid by placing fertilizer on the land.


Huså on March 28, 1876



Per Lind


Witness: 
Erik Nyberg

This contract is approved from and including April 24, 1881.



Huså on December 9, 1881



Per Lind
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Witness:
J. A.  Lindgren



Artur Norrbeck

The widow {Märta Andersdotter} of Per Göransson Lind is given notice on this day to vacate her homestead because the tenant contract has been awarded to Per Göransson Lind, as hereby certified by each of us.


Husä on February 26, 1887 



O. B.  Hedin 



P.A.  Pettersson

Kerstin Grönlund
Table 123 (383)

Kerstin Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Kerstin Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 21, 1827
	
	Kerstin lived in Husä and was bedridden from about 1865 until her death.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 26, 1853 
	
	

	S
	Anders Sellstedt 
	B
	Mar 1, 1824 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 17, 1887 
	
	Company Worker

	El
	Olof Sellstedt 
	B
	Apr 20, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 18, 1934
	
	

	E2
	Erik Sellstedt 
	B
	Jan 5, 1856
	
	Erik emigrated to America on February 23, 1880.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Anna Märta Sellstedt 
	B
	Sep 13, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 14, 1925 
	Södertälje
	


I have not found anything on this family.  I know that Anders moved to Huså from Fröå after he married and that he lived there afterwards.  Anders worked as a mineworker and they were poor like most other Company Workers.

Erik Grönlund
Table 124 (384)

Erik Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Erik Grönlund 
	B
	Nov 25, 1829 
	
	Erik lived in Drygsundviken, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Sep 2, 1855 
	
	

	S
	Ingeborg Löding 
	B
	May 27, 1829 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 3, 1876
	
	

	El
	Lars Erik Grönlund 
	B
	May 15, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 14, 1921
	
	

	E2
	Olof Grönlund 
	B
	Mar 23, 1863 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 5, 1932
	
	


On August 24, 1863, an Estate Assessment was conducted on the property of deceased Sågaren Eric Ersson Grönlund of Drygsundviken who died on April 22, 1863.  

He was survived by two sons.  Lars Eric was 5 years old and Olof was born in March of that year.  

The following property was declared by his widow, and the Estate Assessment was conducted in the following order:

(384)



Clothes
  Kronors



1
ea
blue coarse home-spun wool rock at 10 Kronors, 



and one gray coarse home-spun wool rock at 8 Kronors
 18.00



2
ea
gray coarse home-spun wool tröjor XE "tröjor"  at 




10 kronors and 2 blue tröjor XE "tröjor" 
 15.75



2
pr
gray coarse home-spun wool trousers
 10.00



1
pr
the same skin skodda XE "skodda" 
  5.00



1
pr
Moll skin trousers
  3.00



1
pr
trousers and one sweater of hide
  8.00



1
pr
Calsonger by woolen
  1.75



1
ea
Cloth vest at 5 kronors, one coarse home-spun wool 



vest at 3 kronors
  8.00



1
ea
Pe XE "Pe" lsrock 3 kronors, 2 ea. vests at 0.25
  3.25



1
ea
cap of rabbit skin, one chapter of cloth
  4.00



1
ea
undershirt
  1.25



1
pr
gloves and 2 pair of gloves
  1.00



1
ea
sheepskin
  2.00



3
ea
shirts at 6 kronors, 2 wool shirts at 4.50
 10.50



1
ea
wool scarf
  0.25



2
pr
high boots
  4.50



3
pr
stockings
  6.50



1
ea
chapter
  1.00



1
ea
hat
  1.00
104.75

1
ea
cover
 15.00



1
ea
 “
  5.00



1
ea
Reindeer skin
  3.00



1
ea
cushion
  1.50
 24.50 ok



Subtotal

129.25


1
ea
sofa
  4.50



1
ea
Matskåp XE "Matskåp" 
  6.00



1
ea
bell
  2.50
13.00 ok


2
ea
sacks
 00.50



3
ea
leather päsar XE "päsar" 
 00.75



1
ea
leather bag
  4.00



1
ea
bakbord XE "bakbord" 
  5.00



3
ea
chests
 11.00



2
ea
small chests
  2.00



2
ea
Mjölkar XE "Mjölkar" 

  1.25



2
ea
sifter
  1.50



1
ea
coarse sieve
 00.50



2
ea
baskets
 00.50



2
ea
milk bottles of wood
 00.75



1
ea
Halfankare XE "Halfankare" 

 00.50



6
ea
milk trays
  2.00



8
ea
plates
  1.75



3
pr
cups
 00.37



1
ea
tea tray
  1.00



1
ea
Mug
 00.50



1
ea
Copper pan
  3.50



1
ea
Copper kettle
  2.50



1
ea
Coffee pot
  3.00



1
ea
Waffle iron
  2.50



1
ea
Baking Oven with Iron rör
 24.00



1
ea
Iron post
 00.60



1
ea
Iron pots
  4.50



1
ea
pan
 00.75



1
ea
candlestick
  1.25



1
ea
trunk
  2.00



2
ea
Milk pails
 00.67



2
ea
Milk pails
 00.50



2
ea
Buckets
 00.75



2
ea
shovels
 00.50



1
ea
Collection of sermons
  3.00





Subtotal
 96.89
129.25


4
ea
Liar with orf XE "orf" 
  6.00



1
ea
hand cart
  1.00



2
ea
Cutting axes
  2.00



2
ea
saws
  2.25



1
ea
Joint plane
  3.00



3
ea
smaller planes
  2.00



2
ea
plow planes
 with ignites
  3.00



1
ea
tums XE "tums" ? planes
 00.25



1
ea
Saw blade
  2.00



6
ea
Slagborrar
  1.25



1
ea
Borrsväng
  0.75



1
ea
Auger
  0.50



1
ea
plane bench
  3.00



1
ea
Härfotot XE "Härfotot" ?
  0.75



1
ea
Winkel XE "Winkel" 
  0.12



1
ea
Whetstone
  0.25



2
ea
Bockskinn
  6.00



2
ea
Calfskin
  3.00



1
ea
Calfskin
  7.50



1
ea
Slipstensås with stone
  2.00



1
ea
Boat
  8.00



1
pr
Skis
  1.00



2
ea
Bottles
  0.32



1

Cow 
 40.00



1
ea
heifer
 18.00



4
ea
goats
 20.00



4
ea
goat kids
  8.00



6
ea
sheep  
 35.00



5
ea
lamb
  7.50



1
ea
ram
  3.00
284.33
Receivables Digernäset Halfvar Jonsson Quick
0.00


Göran Lind
  4.00
4.00
Subtotal

413.58

Digernäset Anders Jonsson
11.00


Huså Johan Larsson Löding
60.00


Lars Löding
1.75


Digernäset Salomon Olsson
 5.70
82.45

Retire debts
Total Dollars

496.03

To the Copper Mining Company
100.00


Huså Anders Ersson Grönlund y
20.44


Burial expense
20.00


Estate Inventory expense
3.00


Poor Share
 0.62
144.06 ok
Total Balance 

351.97

Total Dollars 

496.03

That all is declared such as that of my husbands death fore found, certified under sworn obligation.  


Drygsundviken on August 24, 1863 



Ingeborg Larsdotter


It is hereby evaluated and certified by:

 

0.  Grönblad 



0.  Belin

Lisbet Grönlund
Table 125 (387)

Lisbet Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Lisbet Grönlund 
	B
	May 8, 1833
	
	Lisbet lived in Brattäggen, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 23, 1861 
	
	

	S
	Jonas Moverare 
	B
	Apr 18, 1835 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 9, 19/00
	
	Cancer

	El
	Anna Helena Moverare 
	B
	July 6, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 24, 1881 
	America
	

	E2
	Erik Moverare 
	B
	Aug 12, 1864 
	
	Erik emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	1871
	
	

	E3
	Nils Moverare 
	B
	Oct 23, 1866 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 28, 1866
	
	

	E4
	Nils Moverare 
	B
	Nov 11, 1867 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1946
	
	

	E5
	Kristina Moverare 
	B
	Apr 27, 1870 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1936
	
	

	E6
	John Edward Moverare 
	B
	May 6, 1873 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1946
	
	

	E7
	Caroline Moverare 
	B
	1874
	
	

	
	
	D
	1918
	
	


The family emigrated to America on June 6, 1870, and settled in Worthington, Minnesota.  They took the name Moberg.  In the Book of Kall, written by Gösta Ullberg, I found a letter from J.  Moberg that he had written to his friend Håcan and it can be read below.

I wrote to America, and fortunately made contact with a grandchild of Lisbet and Jonas, and she sent me the entire letter, which you can also read below.  Their children’s families are not in this book, but will be included in the future books.

Photograph (387)

Jonas "Moverare" Moberg and his wife Lisbet born in Grönlund

Contract

I {Simon Andersson} hereby knowingly release and sell Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Brattäggen to Miner Nils Johansson Moverare for the following conditions:

The farm cottage is located next to the property line between Brattäggen and Rislägden and the first property marker is down by the lake.  

The property line then goes east to a stone above Hög Kålbotten then northward to a stone 395 alnars {790 feet} from this stone marker down to overland road where a marker is placed high above the ground and from there from the main road south to the first property line 395 alnars {790 feet} mett XE "mett" 
 from the main road.

The farmer shall have the right to gather the following forest hay annually:

· 9 golf hay from the south land in Storflon 

· One-half (½) in Långflon and ½ in Småängarna Kallmyrorna and Rönningen 

· and with Roningen above Hagkolbotten.

· The farmer may take timber for necessary houses 

· where the homestead tenant gives leaf to 

· but not where as preferably, 

· necessary firewood and fencing material 

· and pasture  for his cattle

· but he must not use either the pasture on my land or along my border during haying time in summer.

For providing the above written farm benefits, I annually reserve the following for myself from the buyer:  

· The farmer shall provide days of work 1st and 3rd haying week with the homestead tenant 

· Cut 6 malings within 7 days of being given notice

· 8 of fathoms wood in grigori XE "grigori"  time 

· hewn on 7 days everything on the farmers short

for the mentioned days of work the buyer shall take possession and the farmer shall have the benefit of 

· 5 years of tax freedom calculated from 1833 to 1838.  

· One-half (½) of everything that may be used with this contract in two mansåldrar XE "mansåldrar" 
 

the new contract is instituted 

or go back farm cottage to farm then house and cropland 

is paid after metes manna ordom XE "ordom"  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I shall surrender this farm to liflig XE "liflig" 
 benefits 

that wide farmer fulfills all the designated obligations.

Our arrival at agreement is hereby certified with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Brattäggen on February 15, 1833


Seller:
Simon Andersson of Brattäggen 


Buyer:
Nils Johansson of Moverare

(388)
Witness: 
Anders Ol XE "Ol" ofsson

The preceding contract is accepted and agreed to by me, the current owner of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Brattäggen from which this farm is released, and I also approve in this contract that the current buyer Jonas Nilsson shall have lifetime ownership rights.

Acknowledged and attested in Kall and Brattäggen on October 13, 1860



Måns Andersson of Brattäggen

(388)
Witness:
Erik Persson of Sellsved 



Lisa Davidsdotter of Rislegden

Contract

I {Nils Johansson} hereby release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Brattäggen as contained in my purchase contract of February 15, 1833 on 2 mansäldrar XE "mansäldrar" 
 contracted farm in the Village called Brattsvedet to my son (Jonas Nilsson} for the following terms and conditions: 

The farm buyer Jonas Nilsson shall to migsåsom XE "migsåsom" 
 afträrser XE "afträrser"  composition and pay two hundred (200) Riksdaler on May 1, 1861 and from that day on he shall also provide the following annual Reserved Rights to my wife and I for both of our remaining lifetimes: 

· Feed and fodder in winter and summer for a cow and 3 sheep or goats, and 2 of their offspring.

· 1 maling crop respectably fertilized and trär XE "trär" 
 land, right to in farms land by own seed plant ½ barrel of potatoes.  

For his own needs receive the land meadow and cultivated land which is found within the following limits:

· from a by external fence fixed stone marker west from the same fence to a mound by the western härdlands XE "härdlands"  rännan XE "rännan" 
, 

· from there in the same röm XE "röm"  to a fixed stone 

· and from there east 46 foot to a on other side of present chicken coop now set stone, 

· from there it goes in a straight line to the starting point.

· That field that old widow Merit Jönsdotter 

· within this tract now has ownership rights 

· also provide after her death if we shall outlive her, 

· also provide site for a barn on the north side of this barn.  

· the entrance halls little an attic ______on in the cottage for lodging

· Access and usage of the cellar, granary, shelters and other buildings as necessary

· Firewood and heat 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after death  

These Reserved Rights and the Special Stipulations are to be fulfilled without revision until the death of the last one of us.  

There in the chicken coop are large pails with the bottom the iron fot on _______ with stands, which I give to the buyer without payment.  

This transaction is completed and agreement is arrived at as confirmed with our signatures and Signature Marks in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Brattäggen on October 13, 1861


Seller and Reserved


Rights recipient:
Nils Johansson


Buyer and Reserved



Rights provider:
Jonas Nilsson

(389)
Witness: 
Eric Persson of Sellsved Eric Larsson of Westgård



Mångs Andersson of Brattäggen

From Moverars In Kall 

To Worthington In America

Latter Half Of The 1800's

The farm in Bonästrakten, located below the Olaus Håkansson farm, was called "Moverars" in those days.  It got its name from the person who first built and cultivated it, Nils Johansson Moverare, who was born in Huså in 1806.  He was the son of artist Johannes Moverare.  With robust energy and under great hardship, he cleared and cultivated a little farm up there.  

This gave with his was fertile land gradually reasonable outcome and hears through his situation to the most beautiful farms in Kall.

The following little story illustrates the family's poverty during their first years.  

They boiled (against the Prohibition Law) schnapps on the farm in Brattäggen.  The leftover malt from which the schnapps was boiled was seldom drank and was usually fed to the pigs.  

Moverare and his wife sometimes used to drink a little of it to quiet their hunger.  Once he had drunk some containing a little alcohol, whereof Moverare became overjoyed and felt himself to be very strong, and he burst out: "Yes, now darling, happen may in on rothägg XE "rothägg" 
, you receive distance in the forest and je XE "je"  hägg of rottran XE "rottran" !"

Moverare and his neighbor, David Edlund of Rislägden, went hunting and fishing together.  

Hunting was mostly the type where they put out traps and snares, 

in which they caught forest birds, great wood grouse, black grouse and hazel hens, which at that time were found to be rather plentiful.  

There was a lot of fishing in Kalljön and it was many times more profitable.  

Once they came home with the biggest lake fish one had ever caught in these parts.  

Edlund measured their courageous 3 alnars {6 feet}, had measured it with the handles of a hand ax that he always brought with him.  

He put the handle of the ax to the gills of the lake fish, and yet the tail of the lake fish still dragged on the ground.  

Moverare’s children emigrated to America in 1870.  They took the name Moberg and became farmers there.  Four years later their parents followed them.  

The following letter to Håkan Olsson of Rislägden testifies about how the poor emigrants from Moverars were in good hands.

Worthington February 19, 1892 with God’s Peace!

My old woe Håkan! 

After a long delay I will take the liberty to send you some lines, so that you can see that we are alive, we have health and mår XE "mår"  well.  

We wish you the same good benefits, you beerde XE "beerde"  in your letter that receive know how we have that, and I will on that nearest make that.  

We have 320 acres of land (1 acre = 1 tunnland XE "tunnland" ), divided in half or 160 acres.  

We have recently purchased 6 horses, 19 cows, 1 pig and about 100 hens.  

We are old and don’t do much, so we leave the work to Nils and Edward.

We have 4 children, Nils and Christina who were born in Sweden, and Edvard and Carolina who were born here.  

Anna Lena and Erik öro XE "öro"  died long ago and you have probably heard about it before.  

Her ero XE "ero"  many resident from Kall and Undersåker and other cities in Sweden.  

Winters are good with little snow and meager sleföre XE "sleföre" . 

I will now venda XE "venda"  myself to another new XE "nu"  area.  

You dare wonder how we have it in the Spiritual Area, down it is that many Swedes on the Plas.  

Then I receive a reply, that we ero XE "ero"  does not mislättade XE "mislättade"  

in regard to this we have a church or meeting house that we gather in.  We have 2 sermons every Sunday and Sunday School and prayer meetings each Wednesday evening.   

which to we have many precious tillfellen XE "tillfellen" 
 that listen and hear God’s Word.  

The Parish has about 100 members.  

We have Jöns Hållström from Undersäker as a Preacher.  He is a good Preacher and he has a good singing voice.  

Excuse the delay of my reply to your letter, for I am not a writer, therefore want that not become by.  

This is the end of my simple lines.  

With a dear greeting to all who may read this, in conclusion I give everyone our regards. 

The proverbs of Johannis Chapter 3 Verse 21.  

Lefvel XE "Lefvel"  for this occasion your tillgifne XE "tillgifne"  woe. 

I have heard that J. Moberg has committed to marry you, of which I want to wish you food fortune.  

Write to us! adage

This J. Moberg is Jonas Nilsson Moverare, born in 1835, son of Nils Johansson Moverare, and later married to Lisbet Ersdotter Grönlund.  He moved to America in 1870.  This year was otherwise that preceding, 1869, America feberns XE "feberns"  Special No. 1 in 1869 16 people emigrated to America and in 1870 44 people emigrated to America.  The first emigrant was Ole Olesen from Gråviken, who emigrated in 1866.

Taken from the book "En bok om XE "om"  Kall Gränsbygd i XE "i"  Jämtland" {"A Book of Kall Gränsbygd in Jämtland"} written by Gösta Ullberg.  

Voyage to America

Jonas and Elisabeth Moberg and Per and Brita Larsson began planning in the 1860's to emigrate together and build a new home in America.  

They were neighbors and had been close friends all their lives.  

Jonas and Elisabeth were 35 and 37 years old and had their 8 year old Anna, 5 year old Erik, 3 year old Nelson "Nils" and Christina, who was only one month old.  

The 42-year-old Per and the 43-year-old Brita Larsson had two sons, Lewis who was 10 years old and Jacob "Jake" who was 3 years old.

The preparations to go were already begun in May of 1870, riding cart and boat.  

Women (and children) rode in a two-wheeled cart, while the men walked.  

From Levanger, Norway, they took ångbätea XE "ångbätea"  to Trondheim, Norway.

From Trondheim, they followed the coast of the North Sea down to Hull, England. 

From Hull to Liverpool rode the train, and that was the first train they had seen.  

After they had been in Liverpool for a week, they traveled over the Atlantic to America.  

On the coast of Newfoundland, they came upon large icebergs and the boat could only travel in the daytime.  

Finally they reached the coast of North America and stayed in Quebec, Canada.  

From there they took the train to Chicago, Illinois.  It was then the end of the trip and their tickets.  Peter "Per" Larsson had $350 in his pocket when he started a new life in America.

In Chicago was that balneal with work and we learned that good work could be found in Minneapolis, Minnesota, then it lasted not long, before we traveled further.  

They came to Minneapolis on July 15th of 1870.  

At that time the village consisted of log cabins and huts and was occupied by Swedes, Norwegians, sawmill workers, forest workers, and soldiers that supervised the Indian Reservation.  

They stayed in an immigrant’s home near Minneapolis until Peter Larson got work with the railroad and Brita got work as a cook for the railroad workers.  

The work lasted until Christmas and finished on säsongen XE "säsongen" 
.  

Mobergarna lived in Anoka, Minnesota for a while but was united with the Larsons in Minneapolis in January of 1891.  

Both Peter and Jonas worked together in the forest.

In the spring of 1891 Erick Moberg died.  

In June they got a letter from his Nyström
.  Earlier this farmer had emigrated from Sweden, and he already was living in Nobles County, 

He said that there was land available to purchase, and if they were coming, they should come soon.  

He and his brother Olaf XE "Olaf"  "Ole" had staked a claim that summer.  

Peter and Jonas traveled to Worthington.  

They traveled by train as far as the railroad went, which was Mankato, and from there they went the last 100 miles {16 mils} "eng
" straight above the prairie.  

There they staked out their claim in Bigelow Township.

The County Office was in Jackson, Minnesota and they must go 30 miles {5 mils} east to purchase the land.  

In 1891 the two families traveled by train to Worthington.  

They had only a few personal belongings and 100 pounds (about 45 kilograms) of flour with them.  

Winter was quickly approaching.  

Photograph (393)

The Moberg and Larsson land was next to each other, and they decided to build a little house, so they could sleep on their own land.  Here is a description of how that turned out.  

The house was one room, 12 by 20 feet on the inside and it had no floor.  The front was to the south.  In the middle of the front wall was a door with a stairs down to the dirt floor.  On the side of the door there was one window.  The roof in front was 3 feet above the ground, which went to the rear where the roof was only 10 inches (12 inches = 30.48 cm) above the ground.  The walls were built of peat and wood.  The roof was made of boards and planks.  The property line between their land went down the middle of the room, so that each family lived on his portion of the farm, but under the same roof and in the same room.  In each corner a wooden bunk was built that could be taken down in the daytime.  The one fireplace stood behind the center door.  The fireplace pipe went straight up through the roof and in chimney.  They to measure time together.  1 foot = 12 inches.

In January of 1892 Jonas and Peter went to Heron Lake, 20 miles {3 mils} away, and purchased a cow together.  They were gone for a week.  They had a lot of snow that first winter, and had to have a shovel indoors to shovel themselves out with.  In the spring of 1892, the men went away to work on railroad building to earn money and purchase food.  The women were left at home to plow up the prairie into fields.  They broke up 70 acres.  Brita Larsson was a large and strong woman and could carry a 50-pound bag of flour on her back when she went home from Worthington, a distance of 10 miles.  (1 mile = 1,609 meters).

By the end of 1892, when the men returned from railroad work and had a little money, they built their houses on their land.  In the spring of 1893 John Edward was born, a son to the Mobergs.  He was the first white boy that was born in Nobles County.  In 1894 Carolina (Lena) was born.  I also want to add that Anna died on Christmas Eve of 1881 at the age of 19.

Christine was the first to leave home and marry.  She married Ole Nyström when she was 22 years old and he was 43.

Nels married Hildegard Peterson in 1897.  John Edward was bachelor.

When Nels married, he built a new house on the Moberg farm.  On September 28, 1898 their first son, Linden, was born (my father).

Edwin was born in 1900.  Then the family moved to Duluth, Minnesota, and Nels worked there for two years as a foreman for a contractor in street drainage work.  Raymond was born while they were in Duluth.  They moved back to the farm later, and Mildred was born there in 1913.

One more time Nels began to plan to build another new house.  But before the new one can be built, the old house must be moved.

My aunt Mildred remembers it very well.  She was 4 years old at the time.  That old house was used as a roost until 5 year ago, when my brother John burnt it down.  The new house that Nels built was a wonderful house for that time period.  It was there that I grew up.  My stepmother still lives there, and my brother John now lives on and manages this farm.  John and his family live directly east of it on their own farm.

When Linden and Edwin got out of high school, they went further on wheat rinär XE "rinär"  school in the state of Kansas.  When Linden had gone halfway through school, grandfather Nels called him home to farm, and grandfather Nels pulled him back.  Edwin completed the trip through school and became a veterinarian, and was deprived for state to sin-dead in a heart attack in 1949.  Edwin's wife Grace still lives in Salina, Kansas.  They had two sons, Robert and Wesley.  They lived in the Chicago area.  Robert died of a heart attack in December 1990.  Wesley was an architect, but is now retired.  He and his wife have an antique shop with their home in the rear of the business.

Raymond (Nels’ third son) became an accountant.  He lived in Minneapolis and was married less than a year when he died of thrombosis of the lungs followed by a bout of pneumonia.  His wife Grace never married again.  When she was bedridden and dying of cancer, she talked with excitement that she would soon be together again with her beloved Raymond in heaven.  They had no children.

Mildred was born seven years after Raymond, and she received much uppmärk XE "uppmärk"  samhet XE "samhet" 
 from her three older brothers.  When she completed high school, she had practiced with the local doctor to become a military nurse and take care of the sick.  

Later she traveled to Minneapolis and had various jobs from factory work to cleaning work, such as cleaning houses for others.  

When she was 31 years old, she married Henry Carlson and they had two sons, Rodney and Daniel.  Rodney is now deceased.  

Daniel lives in Minneapolis and expects his first child in March of 1992.  

Daniel is a freelance photographer and a school bus driver for a Minneapolis school district.  

Aunt Mildred was 72 years old on May 4, 1992 and lives in Minneapolis.

Photograph (396)

The first house that Jonas and Elisabet built.  It is still used on Company Farm No. 2 miles from the Moberg.

Photograph (396)

This is the other house that Nels built, in 1892.  Nels and Hilda stand in front of the carriage.  Son Linden stands nearest to the horses.

Photograph (397)

This is the house as it is found on the Moberg farm now.  It was built in 1917.

Let me go back to the days when grandfather Nels and grandmother Hilda lived in the same house as us children with our parents Linden and Margaret.  Grandfather Nels always traveled to the station each day for a portion of Sunday.  He and his friends would meet at the railroad depot for a cup of coffee and to see the trains arrive.  Before he traveled home from the station, he stopped by the local dairy to get meat, and in part of the dairy they had freezers for frozen food.  On the way out he purchased the ice cream for me and drove home quickly, especially in the summer, so that it would not melt, before I had a chance to eat it.

When I became older and could tell time, I knew the time when he should arrive, and saw him by mountain a mile away afterwards slot to garage to open the door so that he could drive his car directly into the garage.  Afterwards I received a reward.  Grandfather Nels was very active in the Swedish Baptist Church and went on many gatherings.  Each trip that he and grandmother took, they always returned with a present for me.  When I reached age, then I bottled milk tooth, was grandfather the only that I allowed that receive glance in my mouth.  When tooth should away and some on way ahead, he took me behind the barn and plucked nimble out the, before I knew what had happened.  He always gave me a reward for each tooth he pulled out.

Another way that I got a reward from grandfather, was when I came home with a good report card from school.  He gave me 25 Cents for each "A" and I was a good student with many "A's".  Grandfather Nels died in April 1946.  On that day he decided to burn up all the dry grass around a mire by the north field.  Soon the fine fire had become too much for him.  In resurrection he had a heart attack and fell down dead in the smoldering grass.  When he did not come home at noon, that evening my daddy went to search for him and found him.  It was the first funeral that I can remember.

It was 1946 and I was 10 years old.  Grandfather was 78 years old.  Grandmother continued to live with us until she died of a stroke in 1950.  She also died at home.  In November of 1946 John Edward died of a heart attack, seven months after his brother Nels.  Three months later in February of 1947 my mother Margaret died when she gave birth to my brother John.  Three funerals in 9 months utkrävde XE "utkrävde"  its tribute of the Mobergs.  With my mothers death, my father was left Linden with 4 children without a mother.  I was 11, Ruth was 5, Paul was l ½ and John was a newborn.  Hjälp XE "Hjälp" 
 Priest in our church and his wife were close friends from my farce time on college that they took John home with them and took care of him.  Women that were members of church did 4 legal, and there was a law that once a week they washed clothes, cleaned house, prepared food and more.  Next week was that next law.  Grandmother Hilda helped us the rest of the week as much as she could, but she was old and we three cubs were lively and too much for her to handle.  Spring was here again and daddy must plant grain.  

Linden sure that he needed the assistance, and he wrote to another friend from college days of their problems and his friend recommended a woman he had grown up with and who afterwards had become a cook at Bethel College in St.  Paul, Minnesota.  Her name was Alice Anderson.  My father wrote a letter to Alice and asked her if she would consider coming to Worthington and be his housekeeper and take care of his children.  At that time there were two Alice Andersons who worked in Bethel and the letter arrived in error to Alice.  She read the letter and realized that it was not for her, and she gave it to the right Alice and asked to be excused for reading her letter.  The weeks went by and she asked God what He wanted to make of her.  Finally a letter came and told her that she had been accepted for the job and that she should come on June 20, after school is finished.

I remember that daddy sat with us and told us that she would come and that we should obey her.  Afterwards he would think about where she should live.  Grandmother Hilda moved out of her room on the upper floor, and that became Alice's bedroom.  Eighteen months later daddy married her and we took John home to live with us.  The day that John came home was when he realized that it was here that he had a home.  In addition, if the parson moved to other churches we were always near and John was special since he had two sets of parents that loved and nurtured him.  Alice was a wonderful new mother for us and we accepted her as a mother.

Life goes on with schoolwork, piano lessons, 4-H club, binding
 etc.  Afterwards I take an exam in high school to study nursing skeelev XE "skeelev"  in St. Paul, and I got my diploma from Hamline University in 1957.  6 years later Ruth also went to the same college as me, and she also became a registered nursing care.

Paul went to a general college for one year after high school and after that he joined the army and was in Viet Nam and Thailand during the Viet Nam war.  John has loved farming since childhood and daddy brought him back to it as soon as John had taken his high school exams, and John later took it over.

We are proud of our Swedish heritage and proud that the Moberg farm still exists as the Moberg farm.  Hopefully one of John’s sons will take over and continue.  The farm was 121 years old in 1992.

Told by Marilyn Benson from Adrian, Minnesota.

Anders Grönlund
Table 126 (399)

Anders Grönlund5, Erik Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 3, 1838 
	
	Artist.  Anders lived in Huså.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Sep 17, 1860
	
	

	S
	Brita Rödin 
	B
	May 27, 1833 
	Fäviken
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Anna Lena Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 11, 1861 
	
	Anna suffered from asthma.

	
	
	D
	1933
	
	

	E2
	Elisabeth Grönlund 
	B
	Feb 16, 1870 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 13, 1901 
	Dysentary XE "Dysentary"  and Lam
	

	E3
	Johan Edvard Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 28, 1874 
	TBC
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 15, 1921
	
	


On June 5, 1852 the undersigned, on behalf of the Copper Mining Company, conducted an assessment on the manor house and outlying land 

that was located near Husåberget and after subdivision property lines between Grötom and Berge Village of this past  year  possessed the Copper Mining Company 

herewith under these property lines and subdivision comparison, 

Miner Anders Ersson Grönlund of Huså 

the same without a Rödning and 4 to the loads manor house, 

the reason why he now first and foremost ought to receive reimbursement before any other and which is now appraised and inspected as follows:

1. Husåmyrkilen which is appraised at 1 load manor house annually.

2. Husåant north of this Husåmyrkil appraised at 1½ loads annually.

3. A below Husåmyran {House Swamp} and lying above Anders Ersson Grönlunds Täcktilaga XE "Täcktilaga" , and

4. North of Kihlen in an agreement with the above myr hay valued together with the annual manor house at 2 loads, which altogether makes 4 loads annual manor house that Anders Ersson

Grönlund gets his farm for he had hereby through portion do without and herewith he to a beginning not attested him as extremely satisfied, 

because his former Rödningshö was better  than this sedge hay, 

but in observation of the benefit rights they later received, 

with above his infields, he allowed nevertheless with that him precisely 

and regarding the property lines or property line markers between manor house
 as agreed upon 

that they should be maintained alike after the old ways and customs.

The Company Worker Magnus Larsson 

who also mistade XE "mistade"  touched subdivision råns XE "råns"  walk up persuade year opposite Grötom, 

a little piece by his Rödning for which he later gave 

a small expansion and addition north of his last manor house and property line 

against Anders Ersson by means of last råstens XE "råstens"  fulfill.

and in case Magnus Larsson further out the remaining portion 

of his Rödning will make some clearing of land and improvement of meadow 

may that not him is denied, without happen him free.

Then they hereby, that with before quoted subdivision function are not satisfied with something, 

nevertheless found the following manor house cottages over, they become disposed as follows:

· Grötomslier with Sweden which lies south of summer road and frontier adjacent to Grötomsrån, and whereof can provide 2 loads Nö, received by Kolgillaren XE "Kolgillaren" 
 Olof Ersson Grönblad until it may be further leased for 2 Riksdaler annual payment and addition in his conveyed the farm tenant fee to work.  

· Kringelmyran {Kringel Swamp} lying north of summer road and boundary in the east söö XE "söö"  against Magnus Larssons hay myra, where after assessment can annually provide 2 loads of sedge and feed can the undersigned biggest reason out, all also until further give to Company Preacher Official residence and Miner Anders Bengtssons Farm ½ tithe each because these Farm tillföres XE "tillföres" 
 not catch that smallest accommodation, 

· that first on spring and slip their sheep or goats on pasture, also which in missing by leaf covered and hwarjehanda XE "hwarjehanda" 
 that for ownership rights to the farm is highest necessity, I regard this considerable addition for these Farm to the extent as reasonable, that Anders Bengtsson is able in the tenant requirement the right to use in proportion after ownership rights and goodness that highest by some farmer by House.

· Norrdrolet for that reason after assessment provide 3 loads annually, 

cannot be used better than to  grant to Miner Jonas Ersson Grönlunds new Farm, 

which is established there directly below, and which by that winner was both in usefulness and cottages and hereby for this manor house as well as for other farm cottage now should obligate and constitute some suitable tenant requirement.

Regarding pasture, as agreed upon that it should be in common and with reciprocal obligation that does not damage or insult each other.

It is hereby agreed upon and resolved in all part owners presence and it is certified and attested in: 


Huså on above date

(401)

J.  Lindström 

Photograph (401)

Johan Edvard Grönlund born on April 28, 1874 and his wife Kristina Elisabet Olausson born on August 18, 1880  

They first lived in Huså, and then later in Smedjeviken.  They had 8 children.  They both died of tuberculosis.

Olof Teodor Hyttsten
Table 127 (402)

Olof Teodor Hyttsten5, Brita Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Olof Teodor Hyttsten 
	B
	Mar 4, 1824
	
	Olof lived in Svedje, Åre, moved to Hallen, and later moved to Utgård, Alsen.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 2, 1854
	
	

	S1
	Märta Mårtensdotter 
	B
	June 24, 1834 
	Såå 
	

	
	
	D
	June 17, 1870
	
	

	El
	Brita Hyttsten 
	B
	June 1, 1854 
	
	Brita emigrated to America on August 26, 1891 from  Ösd,

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Magdalena Hyttsten 
	B
	Dec 29, 1856 
	Svedje
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 28, 1896 
	TBC
	

	E3
	Erik Johan Hyttsten 
	B
	Sep 27, 1867 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1904
	America
	

	S2
	Eva Olofsdotter
	B
	Aug 23, 1850 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 21, 1899
	
	

	E4
	Johan Olof Hyttsten 
	B
	Feb 12, 1886 
	
	Johan emigrated to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Olof Teodor’s father-in-law Mårten Jonsson had died in 1867, and there was an assessment on the Company Farm that he owned in Såå.  

The farm was well built on according to the Estate Inventory Recorded Minutes.  

The cottage was 25¼ by 9 alnars {18 feet} and had 8 corners, 17 rows 15 by 18 alnars {36 feet} and 16 rows high additionally was found a receive and goat shed connected against barn that was 12 by 13½ alnars {27 feet}.

Mårten Jonsson had on this occasion applied with District Court to receive son-in-law sat under custodian on this occasion of its doubtful farm saffärer XE "saffärer" , but retaken application.

Their daughter Brita almost certainly lived in TBC, for when the Estate Assessment was made after the death of her brother Erik Johan, who was unmarried, his Estate Assessment was sent to Polk County.

Olof bought a farm in 1855.

Purchase Agreement

I {Göran Andersson of Solbringen or Björnänge} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to my farm now contained under Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Björnänge, Åhre Parish, Undersåker District to farmer’s son (Olof Theodor of Hyttsten} and his wife {Märta Mårtensdotter now of Svedje} for a mutually agreeable purchase amount of seven hundred (700) Riksdaler and fulfillment of the Reserved Rights contract that my mother {Märtha Göransdotter} has in accordance with the above written contract.  

This legally purchased farm i XE "i" ncludes all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm in accordance with the contract of the 5th of next lidne XE "lidne"  May

The purchase amount shall be paid in cash at 5 percent annual interest from this date within 3 months from this date in accordance with the security agreement.  

I also shall have the benefit of free lodging and my mother shall have lodging in the west cottage, which was furnished by me for wårt XE "wårt"  joint needs 

then my mother Undantaliga XE "Undantaliga"  entrance hall shall go back to the buyer.

This reserv XE "reserv" ation for lodging remains for myself for as long as I am able to provide fuel both for my mother and myself, which shall be undertaken only while I am living with her.  

The buyer now immediately receives this farm with all of the buildings and land and the crops being grown on the farm by whatever name they may be called.  

Bonings
 room or eastern cottage such as can now be found furnished, 

and of the above written condition enjoyment fulfill, 

the buyer has the right for himself and his heirs to ask for recording this farm as being legally purchased.  

The purchase amount payment should be acknowledged again to the extent 

there in burst that purchase thereof häfves XE "häfves" 
, 

it is the responsibility of the current buyer to give all of the farm’s harvested crops to the seller without compensation and all of the buildings and land shall be turned over unharmed to the seller.  

This transaction is consequently completed for mutual enjoyment and faithful fulfillment until our deaths.  

Acknowledged with our name in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Mörviken on July 2, 1855.


Seller:
Göran Andersson


Buyer:
Olof T. Hyttsten of Svedje

(403)
Witness: 
Petter Pehrsson



Jacob Pettersson of Björnänge

He wrote a promissory note to bind this purchase that he should pay principle as well as annual interest from the 1st of next May.  

Olof sold this farm in 1856.

On March 22, 1856 sells Olof T. Hyttsten Solbringen of Björnänge Company Farm No. 2 to Jöns Ersson Hedman of Nyland, Undersåker for a total of 1,200 Riksdaler, which shall be purchased in the same way that I paid for it by providing Reserved Rights and day labor.  

(403)
Witness:
Olof Hyttsten of Slagsä



Olof Södergren.

Olof bought another farm in 1857.

I {Petter Pettersson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Anna Olofsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to Copper Mining Company Sheriff (Olof Theodor Hyttsten} and his wife {Märta Mårtensdotter of Swedje}. 

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bunnerviken consisting of one-fourth (¼) of a taxable acre and under settled portioning increased by one and one-half (1½) acres Lappskatt XE "Lappskatt" 
 which is located in Åhre Parish, Undersåker District, Jemtlands County, for a conditional and agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand one hundred (1,100) Riksdaler.

I shall also receive 20 usable fishnets and a large boat under this purchase agreement.  

The buyer shall be responsible for providing all the Reserved Rights benefits to my brother (Olof Pettersson} and his wife him as conditions for the sale of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Bunnerviken.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, Olof Theodor Hyttsten and his wife {Märta Mårtenådotter} shall take possession of this share of our ownership and possession rights to this homestead in Bunnerviken at the next moving time including all the buildings, possessions, cottages, and everything else that now belongs to this farm or can be legally obtained in the future.  


Ähre and Bunnerviken on February 25, 1857 


Seller:
Petter Pettersson Anna Olofsdotter


Buyer:
Olof Theodor Hyttsten Märta Mårtensdotter

(404)
Witness: 
Olof Larsson Eric Danielsson of Handöl 

Original and exact copy certified by Nils Nilsson (the older) of Björnänge

On September 28, 1857, Olof T. Hyttsten and his wife sell Bunnerviken No. 1 to Lars Ol XE "Ol" ofsson from Hede and Ljungdalen in Herjeå Valley and his wife Gertrud Jonsdotter for an agreed upon purchase amount of two thousand three hundred (2,300) Riksdaler.

The buyer shall receive 20 usable fishnets and a large boat from me under this purchase agreement.  

The buyer shall be responsible for providing all the Reserved Rights benefits that last farmer Olof Pettersson reserved for his wife and himself.  

(404)
Witness: 
Petter Pehrsson 



Jacob Pettersson  




Nils Nilsson (the younger) of Björnänge

Olof sold this farm in 1869.

I {Olof T.  Hyttsten} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Wahan in Ähre Parish consisting of 5 acres of old and 4/5 ökeskatt XE "ökeskatt" 
 to farmhand (Johan Magnus Jonasson} and his wife {Lena Nilsdotter of Hamre}.

that the buyer has to keep he farm that Petter Pettersson and his son Petrus Pettersson now inhabit without deduction 

for an agreed upon purchase amount of 800 Riksdaler.

Fifty (50) Riksdaler of this purchase amount shall be paid before farm approval on the 1st of next May. 

The buyer shall receive the house under the conditions of this agreement, but nothing more according to the terms established on this date in the written agreement.

The buyer shall take possession of the farm on the 1st of next May, however he has the right to move into the houses whenever he desires.  

It is hereby completed and acknowledged by both the buyer and the seller.  


Åhre on October 12, 1869


Seller:
Olof T.  Hyttsten

(404)
Buyer:
Johan Magnus Jonasson

Olof bought another farm in 1882.

Purchase Agreement

I {Olof Gabrielsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 consisting of 5/24 of an acre to worker (Olof Hyttsten from Åre and Svedje} and maid (Eva Olofsdotter from Aspås}.

This farm is located in Offerdal, Utgård, Sandmyran {Sand Swamp} called and has the following boundaries: 

· East to Rödön’s mountain pasture boundary 

· West to Christoffer Bergström’s homestead

· North and south to Per Magnus Jonsson 

It is 100 alnars {200 feet} in width and 330 alnars {660 feet} in length 

and has 5 Refar of unworked XE "unworked"  center ground for land and building locations 

nor of farm Sandmyran {Sand Swamp} and line him in 

west to Agnis Gabrielsdotters contained within  

and forest for household needs and with pasture 

for an agreed upon purchase amount of five hundred (500) Riksdaler and 10 Riksdaler in annual property payments, which shall be paid in the month of February of each year.

The conditions are that this purchase amount shall be paid on May 1 and the buyer shall take possession of the farm at that time.

I surrender these farm cottages to this buyer for his eternal ownership, occupancy and cultivation rights upon the proper entry into the Deed Book.  

It is hereby agreed upon in


Offerdal Utgård Sandmyran {Sand Swamp} on April 24, 1882.



Seller:
Olof Gabrielsson Bergström


Buyer:
Olof T. Hyttsten  & Eva Olofsdotter

(405)
Witness: 
Lars Kransts of Nälden 



Lars Olof Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Nälden

The farm was sold at auction after Olof’s death.

Contract

The County Governor’s Office in Jemtlands County makes knowingly 

that afterwards for a mortgage debt in mät XE "mät"  received of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Utgård in Offerdal Parish, a partitioned homestead consisting of 5/24 of an acre in Sandmyran {Sand Swamp}, 

Olof T. Hyttsten and his wife {Eva Olofsdotter} obtained entry into the Deed Book on January 27, 1894

that has before County Governor Office on January 28, 1902 conducted an executive auction on these cottages for three hundred (300) Riksdaler and on condition in remaining, 

that as indicated in the Auction Recorded Minutes, it is bought by Mårten Ersson in Böle, 

and that auction won make power also purchase shilling become in established order paid to, 

hereby this cottage is given over to Mårten Ersson with the ownership rights that 

Olof T. Hyttsten and Eva Olofsdotters Purchase Agreement means and the executive sale after District Court entails.


Östersund in County Office on March 25, 1902 


On behalf of County Governor’s Office



Th.  Jacobsson 

(406)

E. J.  Norman.

The undersigned, according to the following excerpt from the Guardian’s Chapter Recorded Minutes indicated that he was appointed as custodian for Johan Olof Hyttsten of Utgård. on February 7, 1900.

But since I will now be moving from Offerdal, I hereby give notice thereof vördsamt XE "vördsamt"  understand that the District Court release me from this guardianship and request that another suitable person should be appointed as the guardian for the underage child, and I suggest farm owner Erik Ersson of Böle.  



Offerdal on May 26, 1904



Anders Ersson of Böle

Anna Christina Hyttsten
Table 128 (406)

Anna Christina Hyttsten5, Brita Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Anna Christina Hyttsten 
	B

D
	Dec 27, 1825 
	
	Anna lived in Svedje, Åre.

	
	
	M
	June 20, 1852
	
	

	S
	Anders P.  Bergström 
	B
	Feb 22, 1879 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 16, 1905
	
	

	El
	Anna Brita Bergström 
	B
	Feb 5, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 18, 1878
	
	

	E2
	Annica Bergström 
	B
	Oct 6, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 19, 1917
	Svedje
	


Photograph (406)

The farm furthest to the left was Anders Bergström’s.  The light cottage was new.  The little cottage at the top was the home of Anders parent’s.  It was torn down in the early 1900's.

Contract

I {Pehr Andersson Bergström} with my wife Anika Nilsdotter’s agreement and consent, hereby knowingly release our ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Swedje in Åhre Parish consisting of 1 5/16 of a taxable acre to our son Anders {Pehrsson
} Bergström for the following conditions:

1. The farm buyer {Anders {Pehrsson} Bergström} shall, as a fee to his brother Nils Persson
 {Bergström}, pay five hundred (500) Riksdaler one year after approval of this sale, 

which is for my son Nils {Pehrsson} Bergström to give up his one-half (½) of the total ownership rights as his donation to the farm buyer Anders {Pehrsson} Bergström after his grandfather Anders {Pehrsson} Bergström, who is to his whole amount of 460 Riksdaler.

2. Provide the following Reserved Rights each year to my wife and I for our remaining lifetimes: 

· Feed and fodder for 2 cows and 8 sheep or goats with ½ of the offspring of the goats or sheep, 

· 2 barrels of grain good and well cleaned that is grown on the farm and 1 barrel of grain for bread, for our own use and employment 

· provide 2 malings of land in the old field on south side of Landswegen, 

· a little portion of a field on the north side of the coal bed, 

· to meadow boundary in north of Bywägen in the east against J.  Nilssons contained within in south against the cellar field and in the west against the creek.  

· Walldrolet northward in the ground wästanföre XE "wästanföre" 
 Swedjewallen, 

The homestead tenant shall also in the summertime, 

when this by us beeras XE "beeras" 
, managed and take care of 

for the usual payment their cattle which will be used by us 

except their cattle that the tenant shall feed.

The tenant shall also provide 20 proper loads of fertilizer each year to fertilize my Reserved Rights land of 1 maling south of Landswägen but when our ability to work disappears both land and meadow goes back to the farm buyer and then the grain increases by 1 barrel of the same sort that the first is.


With either of our deaths, the Reserved Rights are reduced in half from then on:

· northern cottage and house in externals building for lodging, which room I furnished myself 

· Access and usage of other buildings as needed 

· Room in smith building for smith work for others

· Forest benefits to kolning XE "kolning"  for this smith work

· Fish for my own needs from the farm fishing rights

· Free pasture for my cattle

· Foror XE "Foror"  and a ride for necessary errands 

· A Christian burial after death

3. For the fulfillment of these conditions, it is left to our son (Anders Pehrsson of Bergström} wårt XE "wårt"  now ownership and occupancy rights to Company Farm No. 1 located in Swedje Åhre Parish, Undersåker District consisting of 5/16 of an acre, with all that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future for possession at the next moving time.  


Ähre and Swedje on October 11, 1852


Seller:
Per Bergström 



Anica Nilsdotter


Buyer:
Anders Pehrsson

(407)
Witness: 
Christen Andersson 



Anders Andersson of Swedje

Anders must also provide Reserved Rights to his grandmother {Märet Andersdotter}.  The undersigned {Anders Pehrsson Bergström} has sold the following personal property on this date to my brother Nils Pehrsson Bergström of this Village and to farmer’s son Olof Mårtensson of Björnänge:






Riksdaler

Species

2
ea
Cows at 26.32 each
 53
Rd
16
Sp 


2
ea
Last year’s heifers at 16.32 each
 33
Rd
16
Sp


4
ea
Sheep at 2 Rd each
  8
Rd


4
ea
Goats at 2 Rd each
  8
Rd


4
ea
both good & bad cases for 20 Rd total
 20
Rd


1
ea
Baqugn of tack iron with rörar XE "rörar"  for 13.16
 13
Rd
16 
Sp


1
ea
green painted äk XE "äk"  skrinna XE "skrinna"  for 13.16
 13
Rd
16 
Sp


2
ea
Ull XE "Ull"  bed bolster for 8 Rd
  8
Rd


2
ea
down pillow cases for 6 Rd
  6
Rd


2
ea
good and bad reindeer skins for 5 Rd
  5
Rd


1
ea
Röbrunt?
  6
Rd
32
Sp


2
ea
silver spoons for 6.32
  6
Rd
32 
Sp


2
ea
Coffee pot by copper for 3.16
  3
Rd
16 
Sp


1
ea
Sälatyg for 3.16 Rd
  3
Rd
16 
Sp


2
ea
painted
 sofas for 2 Rd
  2
Rd


6
ea
both good & bad chair cases for 3 Rd
  3
Rd


1
ea
Röbrunt fallbord XE "fallbord"  for 2 Rd
  2
Rd


1
ea
Malmsläde with iron drag and iron bäge XE "bäge" 
 1.16 Rd
 1
Rd
16
Sp


Total
196
Rd
32 
Sp

This 196.32 bank is paid by me {Anders Bergström} on this occasion, which they have hereby signed
 by me {Anders Bergström} 

sell paid for property is with me {Anders Bergström} remained on loan, 

and therefore I {Anders Bergström} promise after the exposed prices 

to be responsible for 5 percent annual interest and replace the loss of that which 

on can through slitning XE "slitning" 
 or each by jehanda XE "jehanda"  coincidences has deteriorated in quality, 

and has purchased when as preferably this chattel without any additional hearings

with I {Anders Bergström} collected, 

as that I {Anders Bergström} promise to be responsible the overhead, 

which can uppkomma XE "uppkomma"  through written purchase entered into the Deed Book so that release the cases for seizure.  


Åre and Svedje on December 5, 1857


Seller:
Anders Bergström of Svedje

(408)
Witness: 
Jonas Hedman Göran



 Andersson of Björnänge

That the above written property the notification from 

Pulpit in Ahre church on December 6, 1857. 

Certified by J. Staflin in the year 1857 on December 12 for me exhibited and is supported in part by a transcript from the Royal Government of this to me certified conditions.  

V. Söderberg

Government Bailiff.

I {Jonas Nilsson}, with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Olofsdotter}, hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my son-in-law (Anders Bergström} and his wife {Anna Christina}.

This i XE "i" ncludes one-half (½) of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Swedje consisting of 21/32 portion of a taxable acre in Åhre Parish and Jemtland Southern Judicial District and also for the terms of this Reserved Rights contract of this date, 

which is to compensated for one-half (½) by the farm buyer 

and for the conditional purchase amount of one thousand eight hundred (1,800) Riksdaler.  

This purchase amount, in accordance with the terms of this contract, are paid in full on this date as hereby acknowledged and the farm is now received on this date by the buyer for the farm access share in Hårbörsta District warehouse.   

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Jonas Nilsson} surrender my ownership rights to this farm consisting of 21/32 acre and it is hereby legally purchased by Anders Bergström and his wife and children for their eternal possession with all of the rights and obligation that now accompany it or can be legally obtained in the future.  


Ähre and Swedje on May 1, 1963.


Seller:
Jonas Nilsson and wife Brita Olofsdotter


Buyer:
Anders Bergström of Swedje and wife Anna Christina 

(409)
Witness: 
Erik Larsson of Swedje 



Carl Fredrik Wikström of Hårbörsta

This same farm was later also sold to Jonas Andersson (Table 129), on the same date.  The contract conditions were the same.

I {Anders Bergström} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to a farm on with forest property line on the south side of lake now contained in Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Swedje consisting of 21/32 taxable acre to worker (Carl Wikström} and his wife {Gertrun Johansdotter of Hårbörsta} for the following terms: 

1. The farmer receive build there the by Carl Wikström preferably good find, preferably when by lake between 25 and 30 malings accommodation to the fence, also release that the myr hay which is found within my limits on this tract.  This homestead owner, Carl Wikström and his wife, shall have the benefit of and may use for all of their lifetime as well as all necessary armfuls of wood for their own needs, and pasture for their cattle.

2. The farm buyer shall annually in payment for ownership rights to this farm provide 6 days of work in June, 6 days in July and 6 days in October, and harvest 2 malings when called upon, all at the farmer’s expense.

3. The farm buyer shall take possession next year, then payment is begun that is calculated.

4. Should the farmer later sell the farm, who has ownership rights before some other the same igenlösa XE "igenlösa" 
 against make an assessment and valuation.  

5. For the fulfillment of these conditions, Carl Wikström and his wife {Gertrun Johansdotter} lawfully acquire undisputed ownership and occupancy rights for the remainder of their lifetimes, from the District Court ask for legal description for security and a mortgage without any additional hearings is acknowledged.


Swedje on October 28, 1867.  



Anders Bergström 



Carl Wikström 

(410)
Witness: 
Erik Mårtensson of Björnänge 



Anders Svensson of Såå 

Purchase Agreement

I {Anders Bergström} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Svedje in Åre Parish consisting of 21/32 of an acre to guest giver (Nils Bergström} and his son (Nikolaus Bergström of Forssa} for the specified Reserved Rights contract that is created by this purchase agreement and the purchase amount of 5,000 Riksdaler.  

This total is paid in such a manner that the buyer ta XE "ta" kes over my entire farm mortgage debts and properly pays the same.

Therefore, I surrender my ownership rights to this farm with house, land, forest and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and the ownership and occupancy rights for his eternal possession are hereby legally acquired immediately by the buyer from this purchase agreement.  


Svedje on May 1896 



Anders Bergström 

(410)
Witness: 
Nils Grälsson 



K. P.  Wikström 

We attest our complete satisfaction with this Purchase Agreement to everyone and promise to fulfill it.


Svedje on May 1, 1896 



Nils Bergström 



Nikolaus Bergström of Forssa 

(410)
Witness: 
Nils Grälsson Fröån 



K. P.  Wikström Svedje

Reserved Rights Contract

We, the undersigned buyers of 21/32 taxable acre of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Svedje in Åre Parish that we purchased from Anders Pehrsson Bergström in common.

Therefore, we promise that Anders Bergström and his wife {Anna Christina Nilsson} shall receive from us the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for their remaining lifetimes from this farm starting on May 1st of this current year:

1. Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 sheep or goats and 2 of the offspring of the goats or sheep.

2. One hundred fifty (150) kilograms of coarsely milled corn flour and fifty (50) kilograms of finely sifted rye flour of prima sort.

3. The right to plant one barrel of potatoes on the farm’s plowed and fertilized land.

4. 3 square refvar land the Reserved Rights recipient that during his lifetime has received and use.  From the bridge cottage west to the property line against Johan Magnusson 100 alnars {200 feet} to the north from the bridge cottage account and 75 alnars {150 feet} in width from property line öfsterut XE "öfsterut"  and farm belongings in Vallmyran {Vall XE "Vall"  Swamp}.

5. The small cottage building on the west side of the farm in its entirety for lodging, but tillbynad XE "tillbynad"  by a hay barn and necessary accommodations in the farms other buildings and cellars.

6. Chop firewood and drive to the home Reserved Rights recipient receive for their needs, and a ride to and from church and other necessary needs.  Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses.  With either of our deaths, these Reserved Rights benefits are reduced by/to fodder for 2 goats or sheep, 50 kilograms of corn flour and field land for ½ barrel of potatoes, and whole fourth point before written land and vallmyran {Vall XE "Vall"  Swamp}.

The other Reserved Rights shall continue without revision until the last one’s death.

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits that will be received each year, we give the Reserved Rights recipient the right to request and receive a mortgage on their ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Svedje consisting of 21/32 of a taxable acre.  

Acknowledged in the Village of Svedje on September 7, 1896



Nils Bergström




Nikolaus Bergström 

Our handwritten signatures are certified in the presence of the undersigned witnesses:

(411)
Witness: 
H. I.  Karlsson 



A. L.  Bylund

Brita Kristina Nilsson “Flink”
Table 129 (411)

Brita Kristina Nilsson “Flink” 5, Brita Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Brita Kristina Nilsson “Flink”
	B
	Aug 18, 1831
	
	Brita lived in Svedje.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 11, 1854
	
	

	S
	Jonas A.  Lalander
	B
	Mar 26, 1827
	
	Jonas was a farmer.

	
	
	D
	Oct 10, 1919
	
	

	E1
	Anders Jonasson
	B
	Oct 5, 1854
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Brita Lena Jonasdotter
	B
	July 5, 1857
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Jonas Jonasson
	B
	Mar 13, 1860
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 3, 1869
	
	

	E4
	Jacob Jonasson
	B
	Dec 21, 1863
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 24, 1918
	
	

	E5
	Nils Magnus Jonasson
	B
	Aug 2, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 12, 1934
	
	

	E6
	Per Jonas Jonasson
	B
	Aug 2, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 2, 1919
	Åre
	

	E7
	Anna Märta Jonasdotter
	B
	Dec 18, 1871
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 20, 1918
	Åre
	

	E8
	Jonas Jonasson
	B
	Aug 22, 1874
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


I {Anders Bergström} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to one-half of Company Farm No. 1 consisting of 21/32 of an acre to lessee (Jonas Andersson} of Swedje and his wife {Brita Stina Jonsdotter} for a conditional and agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand (1,000
) Riksdaler.

this purchase amount the buyer shall an reply one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler in the debt which is a mortgage on the farm 

and the remaining five hundred (500) Riksdaler shall immediately be paid be paid by the buyer

and the buyer shall also be responsible 

for ½ of all the Reserved Rights and Special Stipulation benefits 

that my father, Per Bergström, reserves for himself and his wife 

The buyer now immediately ta XE "ta" kes possession of this farm including everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.  


Swedje on April 6, 1857.


Seller:
Anders
Bergström of Swedje 


Buyer:
Jonas Andersson of Swedje 



and his wife Brita Stina Jonsdotter 

(412)
Witness:
Petter Persson of Björnänge 



Jonas Hedman (the same)



Jöns Jönsson of Swedje

Photograph (412)

Brita Lena Jonasdotter, born on July 5, 1857

The owner of this photograph is Christer Christiansson of Åre

On January 30, 1861, Jonas Andersson and his wife Brita Stina Jonsdotter sold their ownership rights to taxable partitioned Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Svedje consisting of 21/32 of an acre for a total of 1,500 Riksdaler, which was to be paid on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session at which time the buyer shall take possession.

The buyer shall also become responsible for providing the following Reserved Rights that are now the responsibility of the current owner of this farm portion:

But under the same transaction, he has of this portion of a farm, excepted a farm with the following cottages and benefits: 

· On the south side of Åresjön, west against Vikskillnaden, 18 square revar of tillable land in a square shape down by the lake

· 3 lassäng XE "lassäng" 
 of tredd XE "tredd"  myr hay by Greningsvallen 

· 3 square revar of hay land in Greningsvallen all annually, 

· the right to employment by houses after needs on Greningsvallen for crop and cattle as well as lodging for people.  

· Necessary pasture and forest acquired, 

· also of this farms building plan build on against the farm territory, 

· the right to go from the main road to the outlying land on the north side of the farm for my cattle when I need the pasture beyond this distance.

The farm tenant shall pay 2 Riksdaler each year for these homestead benefits.  For the fulfillment of these conditions, we surrender our portion of this farm and give it over to the buyer (Nils Fredriksson} and his wife that there increase him make acquired and security.


Seller:
Jonas Andersson of Svedje


Buyer:
Nils Fredriksson of England

(413)
Witness: 
Nils Nilssson (the younger)  of Björnänge 



Jöns Pettersson of Wik

Jonas Andersson purchased a piece of land which was located in inrösnings XE "inrösnings"  land, that went to the east and north against the Village of Svedje, to the west against my neighbor Fredrik Fredriksson, and to the south against Åresjön, for a purchase amount of 600 Riksdaler.

For this purchase amount, Jonas has to annually on my farm the forest on the south side of Äresjön to his of use clear trees of all firewood and in Gravadalen or ½ the supplemental land after ning XE "ning"  for himself utilize in fallow field hay in the southern valley 2 loads of sedge.

This written total shall be paid on May 1, and I shall then receive 100 Riksdaler, 500 Riksdaler shall översmältaren XE "översmältaren"  to Jonas Wiksten of Huså uppbära XE "uppbära" , som XE "som"  here by me in this farm mortgage demand, which on both sides in valid full payment.


Björänge and Åre on February 9, 1861


Seller:
Erik Mårtensson of Björnänge


Buyer:
Jonas Andersson of Svedje

(413)
Witness: 
Jonas Hansson of Mörviken 



Carl Andersson of Totten

Gustaf Nilsson "Flink"
Table 130 (414)

Gustaf Nilsson "Flink” 5, Brita Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D8
	Gustaf Nilsson "Flink" 
	B
	Mar 24, 1838 
	
	Gustaf was an accountant in Huså and Slagsån.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Catarina Rödin 
	B
	Mar 10, 1837 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1930
	
	

	El
	Eva Kristina Nilsson 
	B
	Nov 29, 1865 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 4, 1952
	Undersåker
	

	E2
	Brita Carolina Nilsson 
	B
	May 7, 1867 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1942
	
	

	E3
	Gustava Katrina Nilsson 
	B
	Aug 17, 1868 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 28, 1951 
	Sth XE "Sth" 
	

	E4
	Anna Lovisa Nilsson 
	B
	Jan 27, 1877 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 21, 1929 
	Undersåker
	


Purchase Agreement

I {Per Persson Staf} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to my share of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Nyland in Undersäker Parish and Municipality consisting of 9/25 portion of an acre to bookkeeper (Gustaf Nilsson of Huså} for an agreed upon and conditional purchase amount of one thousand eight hundred (1,800) Riksdaler.

This purchase amount shall be paid upon approval of the farm division, at which time my wife and I, and our heirs, shall surrender that portion of the farm including land, house, forest and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

there in likewise included all my or farm division 

future husband right to the leased property in Hall with the accompanying fishing rights that were legally purchased from the same G. Nilsson or the legal owner, who shall take possession and have eternal ownership and occupancy rights on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.

It is the responsibility of the current buyer to pay all the farm division legal taxes and burdens after the transaction date and ½ of the Reserved Rights to Elisabeth Larsdotter according to her Reserved Rights contract.

However, I reserve for myself 

that self uppbära XE "uppbära"  the total money that goes to farm division for the previously sold forest.

The approval of this contract is certified my ownership in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to further confirm the validity of this.


Undersåker and Nyland on January 25, 1873


Seller:
Per Persson Staf 


Buyer:
Gustaf Nilsson 

(414)
Witness: 
Olof Nilsson 



Per Åström

Purchase Agreement

 I {H. Rödin} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to this undivided farm Called Slope partitioned from Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Nyland, Undersåker Parish to bookkeeper (Gustaf Nilsson} and his wife {Catarina Rödin} for an agreed upon and conditional purchase amount consisting of the specified Reserved Rights contract and fifteen hundred (1,500) Riksdaler, which total is hereby paid on this occasion and eliminated.

Therefore, I surrender my ownership rights to this undivided farm including buildings, land, forest, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and this same accountant {Nilsson} and his wife hereby shall legally acquire ownership rights for their eternal possession on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  


Undersåker on April 2, 1877 


Seller:
H.  Rödin 

(415)
Witness: 
P.  Bengtsson 
Pehr Mickelsson of Nyland 

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone.  


Time and place from above.  



Gustaf Nilsson 

(415)
Witness: 
P.  Bengtsson 


Pehr Mickelsson of Nyland 

Purchase Agreement

 I {Gustaf Nilsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Catarina Rödin} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my son-in-law churchwarden (Olof Hedman of Nyland} and his wife {Kristina Hedman born Nilsson}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided farm Slope, 

partitioned from Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Nyland, as well as my share of my farm named Motorp", which was partitioned from Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Mo, 

that has an adjoining containment width of 356.3 meters stretching from the cottage north of the property line in Undersåker selfven XE "selfven"  to Gälån 
for an agreed upon and conditional purchase amount of twelve thousand (12,000) Riksdaler and several Reserved Rights benefits according to Special Stipulations contract. 

A special promissory note has been established on this purchase amount and is hereby signed for by the each of us.

Such which is implied above, enters 

this purchase does not include my share of the farm called "Motorp" which is located south of Gålån 

without remaining named farm portion also my belongings.

All expenses, taxes and burdens by whatever name and makeup they may be 

half which calculated him on they here through sell the property’s 

and hereafter reduce the payment 

it is the responsibility of the current buyer to properly pay.  

The buyer alone shall be responsible for costs to enter it into the Deed Book on captive, 

but the seller shall Purchase Agreement.  

Approval of this property sale occurs on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session.  

With purchase are the following servit XE "servit" 
 utsaftal XE "utsaftal"  encountered, 

the buyer guarantees the rights, 

that for on they sell the property’s winter born cattle 

may use the pasture on the unsold portion of the Motorp Farm

that on the latter unsold farm portion, 

conveyed sold for the property’s needs

take fuel from the dry forest and trees blown down by the wind, 

tree and by after logging belongs to peaks, cape, vrak XE "vrak" 
 

and other for fuel, suitable forest affall XE "affall" 
, 

however shall of root standing the dry forest 

extremely economical be taken fuel as long as 

son trees blown down by the wind tree, peaks, cape, vrak XE "vrak"  and other to fuel suitable forest 

and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

Should some trees be blown down by the wind and these trees are capable of timber, he has the  purchase right to take this timber and sell it for the farm’s needs.

Now this buyer guarantees rights grants 

to benefit for their sold the property’s and their owner 

and shall under all future such as inconvenience and cargo delay 

on the unsold portion of the Motorp Farm, 

which latter farm portion is requested as security for a mortgage for future rights 

for without sell a rens XE "rens"  any additional hearings and be notified.  

It is hereby transacted and we are taking equal copies of it between the buyer and the seller vexlade XE "vexlade" .  


Nyland on April 30, 1907 


Seller:
Gustaf Nilsson of Nyland

(417)
Witness: 
Jonas Rödgn 


Jöns Nilsson 

We attest our complete satisfaction with this Purchase Agreement to everyone.  


Nyland on April 30, 1907 


Buyer:
Olof Hedman and 



Kristina Hedman (born Nilsson)

(417)
Witness: 
Jonas Rödén

Jöns Nilsson

Reserved Rights Contract

Simultaneous with the above agreement, I {Gustaf Nilsson} hereby sell on this date my ownership rights to this undivided farm called Slope, partitioned from Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Nyland, as well as my ownership share of Company Farm No. 1 on Mo, partitioned from the farm called Motorp, to my son-in-law, the churchwarden (Olof Hedman of Nyland} and his wife {Kristina Hedman born Nilsson}.

I by which named land Company property is excepted and I reserve for my wife and myself {Gustaf Nilsson}, for both of our remaining lifetimes the following Reserved Rights benefits: 

· One thousand eight hundred twenty five (1,825) liters of good sweet unskimmed XE "unskimmed"  milk each year of which 5 liters shall be given to us each day.  

· Feed and fodder in winter as well as summer for 2 sheep and 2 goats with their offspring  

· One hundred (100) kilograms of skrädt XE "skrädt" 
 corn flour

· One hundred (100) kilograms of skrädt XE "skrädt"  rye flour 

· Fifty (50) kilograms of wheat flour

· Twelve (12) kilograms of butter 

· Nine (9) hectoliters of undamaged good potatoes 

· Twenty (20) fathoms of kast XE "kast" 
 wood brought to the home and properly chopped into small pieces.

· The Special Stipulation is reserved that the north manfarms XE "manfarms"  building for lodging for my wife and I and the tenants which we find for good accommodations 

· Access and usage of the bridge, cottage, barn, cellar, and other buildings as necessary

It is also the responsibility of the current buyer of this property to provide my wife and I with the following for our remaining lifetimes:

· A ride to church and other necessary errands

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· A decent burial after death

These Reserved Rights benefits to my wife and I shall some reduction or lessening annually is constituted during my as well as my wife’s remaining lifetime.  

It is hereby agreed upon, completed and confirmed.  


Nyland on April 30, 1907


Reserved Rights



Recipient:
Gustaf Nilsson of Nyland 



Katarina Nilsson


Reserved Rights


Provider:
Olof Hedman 



Kristina Hedman

(417)
Witness: 
Jonas Rödén 



Jöns Nilsson both of Nyland

Brita Grufberg
Table 131 (418)

Brita Grufberg5, Anna Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	Dl
	Brita Grufberg 
	B
	Feb 28, 1820
	
	Brita lived in Hårbörsta, Åre

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	July 1839
	
	

	S
	Grels Nilsson 
	B
	Sep 20, 1816 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 17, 1888
	
	

	El
	Nils Grelsson 
	B
	Dec 19, 1840 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 25, 1904
	
	

	E2
	Anna Stina Grelsdotter 
	B
	Apr 30, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 7, 1914
	
	

	E3
	Elias Grelsson 
	B
	Nov.  1842 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 10, 1846?
	
	

	E4
	Elias Grelsson 
	B
	Nov 8, 1847
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Purchase Agreement

 I {Grels Nilsson} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Brita Eliasdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to my son (Nils Grelsson} and his wife {Brita Pehrsdotter of this Village}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Hårbörsta, Åhre Parish, and Undersåker Municipality consisting of 2/3 of an acre.

The buyer shall take possession of all the buildings, land, forests, pastures, and everything else that belongs to this farm on the 1st of next May at the next Court Session for an agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand three hundred (1,300) Riksdaler.

This purchase amount shall be paid by the homestead buyer in such a manner that the buyer shall be responsible for granting a farm mortgage to me of 2 debt notes, one of 850 Riksdaler and the other of 450 Riksdaler, for which I shall give a receipt, and also for providing Reserved Rights to my wife and I in accordance with the Reserved Rights contract established and agreed upon on this date.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Grels Nilsson} surrender my ownership rights of this farm to my son (Nils} and his wife for their eternal possession and as security, I {Grels Nilsson} shall have the right to request and receive a mortgage on this required Purchase Agreement.  


Åre and Hårbörsta on April 17, 1871 


Seller:
Grels Nilsson 
Brita Eliasdotter 

(418)
Witness: 
Johan Råbuck 
Anders Johansson of Hårbörsta 

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and this contract according to the agreement made is acknowledged.  


Date and Place from above


Buyer:
Nils Grelsson 
Brita Pehrsdotter


Witness: 
Johan Råbuck

(418)

Anders Johansson of Hårbörsta

Reserved Rights Contract

According to the Purchase Agreement established on this date for Company Farm No. 1 in Hårbörsta consisting of 2/3 of a taxable acre that I hereby sell to my son (Nils Grelsson} and his wife, I shall receive the following Reserved Rights for my wife and myself from this farm each year:

1. Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 sheep or goats with 2 of their offspring by goats or sheep.  2 barrels of well-cleaned grain that is grown on the farm.

2. The Special Stipulation of farm own that I myself may harvest Special Stipulation of Farm eastern contained within, from Ähresjön in South, and in northward to 150 alnars {300 feet} in from Main road, constituting whole distributed width from lake to this point, the a second property line features over whole distribution, and on outlying land on the south side Åhresjön, farm share in the so called Afundrolen and Vackerdrolen but when our power which is diminished that the Special Stipulation of us can not work and provide, which give again these cottages to farm, with the Special Stipulation of 4 malings on west side by home property line, which harvest through own provide, and therefore in compensation for ourselves give feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 2 sheep or goats and 1 barrel of grain.

3. Provide eastern and southern rooms in farm building for lodging, with room there upon, that we ourselves interior, the same room in the farm’s other house after needs with the Special Stipulation of shelter that we hold for ourselves, firewood and  ärme XE "ärme"  and other needs, horse for all necessary driving, and a ride to and from church when it is demanded, and free milling on the farm mill.  

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· A Christian burial after death

4. With either of our deaths, the 2nd point of this Reserved Rights agreement shall be eliminated.

Hårbörsta on April 17, 1871


Reserved 
Grels Nilsson and wife {Brita Eliasdotter} 


Rights recipient

I attest my satisfaction with this Reserved Rights contract, and as security for the fulfillment of these Reserved Rights, I give the Reserved Rights recipient the right to ask for and receive a mortgage on this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Hårbörsta consisting of two-thirds (2/3) of an acre of Rights without any additional hearings.  


Acknowledged on date and place above  



Nils Grelsson 



Brita Persdotter 

(419)
Witness:
Johan Råbuck 



Anders Johansson of Hårbörsta

Agnes Grufberg
Table 132 (420)

Agnes Grufberg5, Anna Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Agnes Grufberg 
	B
	May 19, 1822
	
	Agnes lived in Fröån.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 1, 1846 
	
	

	S
	Lars Sellstedt 
	B
	1821
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 10, 1905
	
	

	El
	Anna Märta Sellstedt 
	B
	Sep 18, 1846
	
	I think Anna May have migrated.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Elias Sellstedt 
	B
	Dec 5, 1850 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1942
	Wisconsin
	

	E3
	Olof Sellstedt 
	B
	Nov 9, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 18, 1945
	
	


Photograph (420)

Elias Sellstedt was born on December 5, 1850 and died in 1942 in Wisconsin

I borrowed this photograph from Oscar Löding of Östersund.

Company Farm No. 159 is where Lars Sellstedt lived.  It was under the Härbörsta Farm.  This assessment was conducted in 1873.

· A cottage building 14 alnars {28 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, 5½ alnars {11 feet} high with a shingle roof.  The building is divided into a cottage, combs and porch.  The cottage has plaster walls and a fireplace with well braced on iron spikes and room walls with plaster.  This cottage has 4 windows and 3 doors and is in excellent condition.  

· A barn, 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet}, 5 alnars {10 feet} high with a roof of boards.

· A barn with a fireplace in satisfactory condition.  

· A barn, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 5 alnars {10 feet} high with a roof of boards and built together with the barn.

· A shelter, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 5 alnars {10 feet} high with a roof of boards and 3 small windows.

· A woodshed against the north side of the cottage, built of post wärk XE "wärk"  and board.

· 1/3 ownership interest in a barn (with Company Farm No. 157 and 158)

· A summer barn, 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 6 alnars {12 feet} wide, 3½ alnars {7 feet} high, and a smaller hay barn.

Photograph (421)

Company Farm No. 159 in the Village of Fröån

Kerstin Grufberg
Table 133 (422)

Kerstin Grufberg5, Anna Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Kerstin Grufberg
	B
	Dec 6, 1827
	
	Kerstin lived in Berge, Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 28, 1853 
	
	

	S1
	Per Mattsson 
	B
	July 21, 1823
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 1, 1856 
	dropsy
	

	El
	Anna Brita Persdotter 
	B
	Jan 3, 1851 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 29, 1919
	
	

	E2
	Anna Persdotter 
	B
	Aug 18, 1855
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Dec 5, 1858
	
	

	S2
	Göran Jönsson 
	B
	May 22, 1821 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 25, 1875
	
	

	E3
	Jöns Göransson 
	B
	Sep 14, 1861
	
	Jöns emigrated to America on October 3, 1888

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Photograph (422)

Anna Persdotter born on August 18, 1855 and her husband Hans Olof Nilsson born on October 27, 1852.  They lived in Berge, Åre.

I have gotten this photograph from Anna-Lisa

Kålen in Åre

Contract

The following agreement is made between the undersigned.

I {Per Mattsson of Berge}, hereby knowingly release by means of 

to assessor Matts Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Kläppen, 

my ownership and occupancy rights to taxable company Farm No. 2 in Ähre  Parish  consisting of 1½ taxable acre a cleared fields of 6 malings in expanse every maling to 48 alnars {96 feet} in square form of my share hissed of Ärstjernbäcken and that which the western, then everything now contained with this farm become taken pon XE "pon"  eastern farm of and by the same brook.  

That these cleared fields for occasion is forest grassy and incompetent lessee shall not pay some payment but obligate that by give then he rightfully used and utilized that in his and his wife’s lifetime, ½ land well chopped roots and for hay planned then that to farm relapses.

That hereby is arrived at agreement also that Matts Ol XE "Ol" ofsson has the right for now without any additional hearings ask for with legality.

of the District Court established here to his security as acknowledged.  


Lund in Ähre on October 8, 1853


Seller:
Pehr Mattsson of Berge


Buyer:
Matts M Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Kläppe

(423)
Witness: 
Nils Nicusson of Lund 



Anders Larsson of Lund

November 24, 1856 undertook Estate Assessment of deceased Per Matsson of Kläppen who died on the 1st of this month and left his wife {Kerstin Eliasdotter} as a widow, and with her during marriage the common two children that we had together, daughters Anna Brita and Anna.

The widow was notified that the declared property at the time of death was, also framlemna XE "framlemna"  the deeds and account records, which was to be received and was as follows:



Silver




Bordsilfver
12.10.10

{12.10.10 means 12 Riksdalers, 10 Species, 10 Rune Pieces.  There were 48 Species in each Riksdaler and 12 Rune Pieces in each Species.}



Large kettle
3.16



A smaller kettle
1



fotpannor XE "fotpannor" 
1.16



coffee pot
1.32



ladle
1.16



spray
2. 




Subtotal of 6 Previous Items
10.32 ok



Pewter


stop and 1 bowl
.32



Brass 



candlesticks
.24



Postlin XE "Postlin" , tin articles


Spillkummar XE "Spillkummar" 
.16



plate
.28


3
pairs of cups
.18



Tin cans
.16



plate and rif XE "rif"  iron
.08



Sil and kogs XE "kogs" 

.08



funnel & bowl weight
1.



Running Total

27.00.10



Bedding and Men’s clothes


Rödludna cases, 1 with cover
6.32



the rocky cases
2.32



Goat-kid skin cases
4.



2 Reindeer skins
3.16


1 
dun bed 1 cushion
10


1 
hair bed
3.16


4 
pillows, half hair & half down
4.32


1 
cover of hair
.32


2 
blåprässe XE "blåprässe" 
 räckar XE "räckar" 

10.


1 
blue with pelsfodder XE "pelsfodder" 

2.


4 
pair trousers at 1.32 per pair
6.32


3 
old trousers
1.


2
tröjor XE "tröjor" , 3 inner vests
5.16


 2
kal XE "kal"  sånger XE "sånger" 
, 1 röluva XE "röluva" 
.32


 1
skägg XE "skägg" 
 cap, 2 hats
2.32


3
pair of high boots, 2 of them old
4.16


2 
ull XE "ull"  strop, 2 shirts
3.

 
2 
pair of woolen stocking and 1 pair of cotton
2.


1 
old skin pels XE "pels"  
1.



Subtotal of Bedding and Men’s Clothes
74.00.10 ok



Cooking containers

2 
pots, 2 of stone 
3.


1 
frying-pan
8.



Running Total

104.8.10 ok


1 
potato mill
8.

1 
wall clock
2.32


1 
röd XE "röd"  väska XE "väska" , 1 torkesak XE "torkesak" 
?
1.16


2 
dressed pig skins
4.



Subtotal of 4 Previous Items
8.8 ok



Choir & Farming tools

1
Cart, lassflaka XE "lassflaka" 
10.16


1
board load, 1 moving sled
6.32


1
for loads, 1stakedrög

2.16


1
stytting XE "stytting"  with iron-rope
 & 2 pairs of shafts
2.16

 
1
plows, 1 left, 1 upper
3.16


1
harness material, 1 halter
1.32


2
iron harnesses, l bridle
1.32


 1
ridsal XE "ridsal" , 1 Klöfsal XE "Klöfsal" 

4.16


4
shovels, 1 qvissel XE "qvissel" 
.40



Farm livestock

1
Gray vallack XE "vallack"  4 years old
66.32


3
Cows
40.


4
Goats, 2 Kids
8.32


5
Sheep, 7 Lambs
14.32


2
Hens, 1 Rooster
.16



Smedjeredskap

1
anvil, 1 puff

5.


3
tongs, 1 sledge hammer, 1 hammer
2.



Wood furniture and miscellaneous

1
folding table, 1 smaller
3.


2
sofas
4.


3
chairs
1.24


1
painted cupboard
4.


1 
barnvagga XE "barnvagga" 
1.


1
barkkar XE "barkkar" 
 against J. Olausson
1.


1
drinking stunna XE "stunna" 
1.16


1
tappså XE "tappså" , 1 ditto
2.


3
mash buckets
.24


4
string handled pails
.32


 4
låck XE "låck" 
 tubs
.24


10
troughs, 1 large
2.16


 4
pails, some spilträn XE "spilträn" 
.16


1
anchor, 2 smaller kegs
.16


2
milk bottles
.12


 2
small hides ready for preparation
3.16


1 
goat skin with Dedring XE "Dedring" 
.32


2 
barkade XE "barkade" 
 Calfskin
1.


 5
oredda XE "oredda" 
 testludna XE "testludna"  hide
5.


1 
new water mill
10.


1 
grindstone with jernås XE "jernås" 

2.

 ½
second wood saw
2.16


1 
new handsaw
1.


1 
carpenter bench, 2 planes
.24


1 
auger ref and auger
.08


2 
cutting axes, 2 axes
1.16


1 
iron shovel
.08


1 
leather bag, 3 strop sacks
1.


3 
leather posar XE "posar" 
.12


5 
liar with orf XE "orf" , 2 riftor XE "riftor" 
1.16


1 
hållhake XE "hållhake" , 3 dumbjällor XE "dumbjällor" 
.32


1 
horse bjälla XE "bjälla" 
, an iron klafva XE "klafva" 
.08


3 
stone bowls, 4 rights
.12


1 
brömatta XE "brömatta" 
, 1 tray
.20


1 
coffee mill, 1 burner
1.


1 
glass lykta XE "lykta"  etc.
.16


2 
rak XE "rak"  knives
.08


4 
lisspunds {80 pounds} of wool, 2 



lisspunds {40 pounds} of veft XE "veft" 
2 


1 pr chair fabric with bolts 
1.


1 
fabric handle, 6 fabric spoons, 2 spools
1.8


3 
trä XE "trä"  copper

4.


2 
drels XE "drels"  towels, 1 cloth
1.16



Running Total of all above Items 

344.28.10 ok



sheep shears, 1 finger shears
.32



stone krukor XE "krukor" 
1.



glass bottles
.32



glass
.08


 3
pr kalar XE "kalar" 
, 3 leather bags
.32



Trunk, box, chest
1.



Miscellaneous books
.16



kamfor XE "kamfor" 

.16


14
alnars foot stamped vandå XE "vandå" ?
4.32



gloves
4.



Running Total of all above Items 

358.4.10 ok



Cash money
10.




22.36



Estate Debts


To Åhre church
80.



Shopkeeper Stendal
24.16



Ingeborg Matsdotter
22.33.8



Siblings Göran, Anna and Ingeborg
90.32



The mother Anna Persdotter
33.16



Elias Grufberg
13.16



Ingeborg for work
4.


Shopkeeper Bolin
4.



Jonas Andersson
1.16



Mårten Staffansson
1.16




275.1.8



7 months interest to the Church
2.16



Hunters payment

3.16



Burial expense
36.32



Poor Share
.22



Estate Assessment paid
6.32



Lik XE "Lik"  chair to Pastor
1.16



50.38


The heirs, auction after father
2.


Göran Matsson
14.32



Jöns Göransson of Ullsjövall
20.



36.32


Total Estate Debts
362.23.8



Estate Debt Balance
4.18.10



{362.18.8 minus the 358.4.10}

That this live with access and debts such as that at time of death is rightfully declared and nothing with wit and want hidden away, it can with liflig XE "liflig" 
 oath is confirmed of which it is demanded.


Date as above 



Widow Kerstin Eliasdotter of Kläppen 

That this live after statement is precisely notarized and appraised, certified.  


Time and place from above.  


Assessors and 

Erik Ersson of Mörviken 


Estate Inventory 


Appraisers:

Jonas Andersson of Bräcke Parish 

The poor share is paid with 22 species to get rid of the debt.



J.  Nilsson

My present wife Kerstin Eliasdotter before we entered into our marriage ownership rights I took daughter Anna Brita as my own direct heir for which my father-in-law, Company Worker Elias Grufberg, made an exact payment to me of one hundred (100) Riksdaler.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Per Mattsson} myself assume that this present two year old baby girl’s Christian upbringing, and assure her that the children that are able to be conceived during this marriage shall receive the benefit of all legal supervision and rights.  

Acknowledged by both sides on this date with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Kleppen on March 30, 1853



Per Mattsson of Kleppen



Elias Grufberg of the Fröå mine 

(426)
Witness: 
Eric Pehrsson of Mörviken 



Anders Larsson of Lund 

As an addendum to this contract, one hundred (100) Riksdaler is received from my father-in-law Elias Grufberg and is hereby paid on this occasion to Pehr Mattsson of Kleppen to get rid of the debt. 


Certified:
Isak Ersson of Berge 



Göran Mattsson of Kleppen.

Photograph (426)

The Kläppen Farm in the Village of Berge in Åre Parish.  

Anna-Lisa Kålen loaned me this photograph.

The assessment of Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of England, Åre Parish, Undersåker Municipality, consisting of 1 1/6 taxable acres, for the heirs of deceased Jöns Göranssons   

placed the undersigned good husband upon notice of information estate portion-owner, who are all present.

This farm should now be given over to the deceased samtelige XE "samtelige"  children; the sons Göran, Erik, and Olof, the latter through farmer Eric Ericsson of Mörviken as his custodian and the daughters Christina and Loan, their rights guarded by farmer Olof Larsson of Björnänge as their custodian.

The Estate Inventory was as follows:

· Farm does not have building skog XE "skog"  and fish, but has good pasture, 

· a building in farm framework is except Mangärds XE "Mangärds"  building that some years ago was newly built, next over all in bad condition and needs both major and minor repairs.  

· Chosen IS annually 2½ grain except peas and Rotfrukter XE "Rotfrukter" 
 

· and can is supposed give a salmon by 3rd or 4th grain.  

· on the farm were born 10 shackled black cows and 30 sheep or goats with tidingar XE "tidingar" 
, and a raucous, for their nursing care is demanded 

at least 5 work före XE "före" 
 persons.

The prospective homestead tenant shall provide lifetime Reserved Rights to the surviving wife of the deceased, widow {Anna Brita Ersdotter}, according to the Reserved Rights contract established on this date.

When subsequent farm cultivation and benefits are calculated for the outgoing taxes and burdens, the good men find a just priced value of one thousand (1,000) Riksdaler.  

In this farm value i XE "i" ncludes water mill, an old black Wallach and 3 barrels of grain for farm seed next year.  

The forenamed five siblings partly receive this valuation amount in equal allowance, 

at every haying time two hundred (200) Riksdaler each year, 

which the prospective tenant pays or is charged 5 percent interest from November 1, 1856 at the next Court Session

Farm buyer next year.

Afterwards, the two older the sons and the guardian for the underage son Olof 

take portion by terms with farm decision they, 

that through Lättning XE "Lättning"  determine ownership and legal possession thereof 

that in good men attend turned out for the oldest son Göran.

Also the mentioned Göran Jönsson, the farm buyer in the above written agreement, has ownership rights to all of the buildings and land, when and father-away village, and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, and he has the rights for himself and his heirs with wäderbörlig XE "wäderbörlig"  Court ask it to be made legally purchased.  discern
which becomes completed at 


England on October 18, 1855



Erik Persson of Mörviken 



Anders Larsson of Lund 



Per Jacobsson of Björnänge summon godemän XE "godemän" 
.  

We attest our complete satisfaction with this assessment and all in this received approved and agreed upon with our signatures on this date and place in the undersigned godemäns XE "godemäns"  presence acknowledged.  


Buyer:
Göran Jönsson of Högan 



Olof Jönsson through 



guardian Erik Eriksson of Mörviken.  



Olof Larsson of Björnänge custodian 



for Daughters Stina and Läna Erik Jönsson of Högan. 

Reserved Rights Contract

(428)

According to the Estate Inventory Report conducted on this date for Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of England consisting of 1/6 of an acre for the inheritance left to the children after the death of Mans.

I {Göran Jönsson} shall provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for the remainder of my lifetime:

· Feed and fodder both in winter and summer for a cow and 6 sheep or goats with 4 tidingar XE "tidingar" 
 of the latter

· 3 barrels of well cleaned grain as good as any that is grown on the farm each year

· 4 kappers of rye

· 4 kappers of peas

· Plant 1 barrel of potatoes annually on the farm’s plowed and fertilized land 

· Two malings of cultivated meadow which is fertilized by the homestead tenant where third year and is located north of Torkhuset
 harvest widow self

· A pair half stöfvell XE "stöfvell"  shoes finished made by the tenant annually for the widow’s needs

· the tenant shall by eastern manbyggnader XE "manbyggnader"  repair and in satisfactory condition immediately completed two rooms for lodging consisting of cottage porch and a small house with a fireplace, operable louver and all other home furnishings

· The shelter and hay shed near the attic building east of the farm, provided with necessary property line markers for their rebuilding, which afterwards is built and repaired for the widow’s use

· Access and usage of all the other buildings as necessary

· Firewood and heat 

· A ride to and from church

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

· and ärhindras XE "ärhindras"  that then water mill become in Farm evaluation inhabited, shall the homestead tenant hold widow free milling.  

This agreement is consequently completed in kindness.

Acknowledged in England's Court on October 18, 1855.


Reserved Rights


Recipient:
Anna Brita Ersdotter 


Buyer and Reserved


Rights provider:
Göran Jönsson 


Correctness of this 



affirmed by:
Erik Persson of Mörviken

(428)

Pehr Jacobsson of Björnänge

On October 18, 1855 the undersigned were called good but, 

with a request from the executor of the estate to examine and determine ownership rights of the farm portion which now has clean ownership rights

Jöns Larsson and his wife {Anna Jacobsdotter} legally purchased Company Farm No. 1 (called the England Farm) consisting of 1 1/6 acres.

Afterwards basics by older deeds, 

which determines farm division one’s egorymd XE "egorymd" , 

and therewith the above written future conditions to Bålstaden are collected.  

Because the reduction as well Bålstaden beside farm, 

by that now over time, 

and under next of kin years promise to allow inheritance distribution in inrösnings XE "inrösnings"  land undergo, 

the inspector undertook the parts after his wrongly by both cottages, 

of which the following association treffades XE "treffades" .

1. The farm buyer each year keeps the egorymd XE "egorymd"  in inrösnings XE "inrösnings"  land which can now be found retained in this area.  According to the map commissioned egoskilnads XE "egoskilnads"  property line against up to bumping the executor in contained within: To the south against the farm user constitute Farms property in width west, two hundred seventy two (272) Alnars {544 feet}, and against the east from close by bumping egoskilnads property line two over farms present open land, two hundred thirty (230) alnars {460 feet} in west against the Bålstadens property.  
against the north and west after adjacent property line one hundred (100) alnars {200 feet}, account from eastern boundary revised property line.  Consequently in west against the Bålstadens property constitute these 3 points a property line from south to northward.

2. The farm buyer each year by forest haymaking in outlying land on southern contained within at this time Bålstaden, called Hestskomyran {Hestsko Swamp}.  On northward distributed in outlying land the portion there that goes up to Hellbecken and Storfletet, and as far as southwards from nysnemnde XE "nysnemnde" 
 watercourses after Husåbecken called to distributed property line.

3. The farm buyer makes an agreed upon annual payment of six (6) Riksdaler 32 Species paid to farm owner every year in the month of September Ström included and remains up to this to through make action, change there in occurs.

It is also arrived at agreement that the farm buyer shall pay the Legal Inheritance Distribution expenses of sixty six (66) Riksdaler 32 Species which now also becomes honestly acknowledged, which that to his rights and congenially completed acknowledged with our names this date as above.

(429)

Erik Pehrsson of Mörviken 



Anders Larsson of Lund 



Pehr Jacobsson of Björnänge

That this association to all divides approved that each in being in favor with Company Administrator’s presence with our signatures on the same day entrusted.  



Erik Eriksson of Mörviken, custodian for son Olof



Olof Larsson of Björnänge, custodian 



for daughters Stina and Läna 




Göran Jönsson

(430)

Erik Jönsson of Högan  (Executor of the estate)

Reserved Rights Contract

We promise our mother {widow Kerstin Eliasdotter} that from and including the 1st of next May of this year and for her remaining lifetime we shall provide the following annual Reserved Rights benefits to her which shall be derived from receiving our ownership rights to the Company Farm called Kläppen in the Village of Berge in Ähre Parish consisting of ½ taxable acres:

1. Feed and fodder all year round for a cow and 4 sheep or goats and 2 of the offspring of the sheep or goats.  6 foot good and well cleaned from strange topics, not less than 90 lisspunds {0.9 tons} weight, Right to sowing seed 6 feet of potatoes in farm plowed land, a pair of leather shoes, women’s half height boots after ortens XE "ortens"  use.  These items are to be received each year.

2. The following Reserved Rights:  

· Use of the entrance hall there with against on outer floor in mangärds XE "mangärds"  building for lodging until her house is comfortably repaired 

· Access and usage of the other farm buildings as necessary  

· Ample firewood for warmth in rooms and for baking and drying and all other necessities  

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses 

· A Christian burial after death

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights benefits, the Reserved Rights recipient (Kerstin Eliasdotter} is given the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm without any additional hearings.  


Acknowledged in Åre and Berge on February 9, 1876



Anna Persdotter of Berge



Hans Nilsson husband of Anna Persdotter



Anna Brita Persdotter 

(430)
Witness: 
Per Jacobsson and Petter Persson of Björnänge



Nicolaus Nilsson of Wik

Agnes Grönlund
Table 134 (431)

Agnes Grönlund5, Anders Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 12, 1828 
	
	Agnes lived in Huså, and emigrated to America on March 23, 1883.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Oct 25, 1846 
	
	

	S
	Olof Hyttsten 
	B
	June 9, 1819
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Anders Hyttsten 
	B
	Jan 21, 1848
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Stillborn boy child 
	B
	Aug 14, 1850
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Olof Hyttsten 
	B
	Mar 30, 1856
	
	Olof emigrated to America on April 2, 1870.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Märta Helena Hyttsten 
	B
	June 23, 1864
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Company Farm No. 28

The undersigned hereby allow the Copper Mining Company, by means of this agreement, to have free disposition of our Husä Bridge and on small islands ownership rights to the farm owner 

against which we in compensation for cultivated land and livestock equal to the amount of our cultivated land again, 

or also by the cultivated land one-third forer XE "forer" , 

to cultivated land belonging to this farm give us on the other hand an equal amount as found appropriate.

We also attest our satisfaction with the other place on the farm that the buildings are moved to, provided however that either they are moved at the expense of the Copper Mining Company or that we receive full compensation for moving them.  

This agreement is made with the Copper Mining Company through the Managing Director and we have each taken our copies.


Huså on October 30, 1834



Fredrik Adler 



Olof A.  Hyttsten

(431)
Witness:
J. H. Charling 




Carl Ax.  Sparrman

Olof A. Hyttsten took over Company Farm No. 7 from Fredrik Prestberg for the sales amount of three hundred (300) Riksdalers, which homestead he has received the use of in the month of May with all of the buildings, land, forest hay and all cottages that the farm contains for the same rights and responsibilities to the Copper Mining Company that I previously had, 

I also reserve for myself one-fourth (¼) portion of a summer mountain cabin pasture in corner such as can now be found, as well as houses such as manor house vid comes.

It is hereby completed in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.


Huså on March 24, 1849


Seller:
Fredrik Prestberg

Buyer:
Olof A.  Hyttsten  (Younger)

(431)
Witness:
L.  Murén




Olof Grönblad

On Rostvändare Olof A. Hyttstens Company Farm No. 7

· A cottage, 13 alnars {26 feet} long of which the porch with a barn used up 4½ alnars {9 feet}, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 12 layers high with a roof of double boards, tongue and grooved boards on the inner ceiling for an attic floor built of planks, a fireplace and a baking oven with boards and iron spikes, stone dampers, built with exterior boards on 3 walls, 2 windows in the cottage of 6/4, one window of 6/4, and a fireplace in the house and 4 doors, of which 2 have a lock.  Cottage plastered inside, the existing bed with a cupboard and the soapstone tiled stove does not belong to this farm.
-Jon The roof is in bad condition and needs half a dozen boards for repair work.  This building can still be used for a few years, but should of some is supplies with upkeep?

· A barn, 10 alnars {20 feet} square.  The roof is built of boards, inner ceiling of unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks.  A fireplace with boards and wooden spikes, can hold 4 or 5 cow and 15 to 20 sheep or goats.  It is about 21 years old.  The walls are rotten and seen to be of unpainted and unfinished provided with wood from floor.  Should be built of if some year.

· A feed shed, also used as a granary, 10 alnars {20 feet} long.  It has 3 alnars {6 feet} wide threshing barn, of which the floor is built of planks.  It is 6 alnars {12 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  

· The roof is built of boards and it has a baking oven.  The entire building is damaged by rot.

· An old barn as above used as a barn, 10 alnars {20 feet} long, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide cover against this barn, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide and 11 rows high.  The roof is built of boards and it has a baking oven and a half floor rotten, also building.

· An old cottage, 13 alnars {26 feet} long of which the porch makes up 4 alnars {8 feet} wide cover, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide and 12 layers high.  The roof is built of boards, the floor in the house is built of planks, may be used to woodshed.  It does not have windows or a fireplace, and it is also very rotten.  

· A shelter on 4 logs, 6 alnars {12 feet} long, 4½ alnars {9 feet} wide and 13 layers high.  The roof and gällbotten XE "gällbotten" 
 of board, the floor is built of planks, it has a door with a lock, and it is 21 years old.  The roof and posts, and the floor of a rotten lean must be repaired.

· A barn, 6 alnars {12 feet} square, 6 layers high.  The roof is built of boards and a baking oven, very rotten.  In, afvarugnen XE "afvarugnen"  any bad condition.  A door on hinges.

· A summer barn, 7½ alnars {15 feet} square, 5 layers high and in bad condition.  The roof is built of boards and it has a baking oven and a door on hinges.  It is old and in bad condition.

· Cropland southwest from house a fence.  

· Digenlagd XE "Digenlagd" 
 land containing ¾ maling within fenced enclosure

· open land of 1¼ malings within häng XE "häng"  newly broken up of 1 maling 

· Cultivated land of 2/3 of a maling

· A kålland XE "kålland" 
 east of the cottage, 18 alnars {36 feet} long, 10½ alnars {21 feet} wide, provided with decent fence runtom XE "runtom"  against cottage.

· Fence, 63 fathoms ½ gild fenced pasture, 700 due, about 92 2/3 fathoms ½ gild.  

· Half of the ownership rights to a summer mountain cabin with Fredrik Prestberg

· A summer livestock building in average condition about 10 alnars {20 feet} long and 9 alnars {18 feet} wide with birch bark and board roof with a floor built of split wood

· One-half (½) of the cottage does not have a floor.  It has a fireplace in usable condition.  The roof is built of bark and tree branches, but it is in bad condition and the walls are damaged by rot.

· The milk shed divided into two parts, one-half (½) of which belongs to this farm and is in decent condition.  The roof is built of birch bark and tree branches, and it is overall in usable condition.  

· A hay barn in usable condition

· Forest hay in cane field west of Windsänget against the Grönblad’s manor house, can provide annually.  The hay barn is in usable condition.  

· Westatfallet southeast from unaccustomed.  Rismyran {Ris Swamp} can provide each tannat XE "tannat"  year.

· This farm can provide homeowner and field 10 loads, herewith can support 2 cows and 10 to 20 sheep or goats.

Farm Contract

The lease of Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Huså in Kall Parish is taken over of Farmer Olof Andersson Hyttsten for the following conditions: 

1. The lease payment for the farm tenant shall annually hospitalize hultet XE "hultet" 
 (?) to all kallrostar XE "kallrostar" 
 in Huså remove and the tenant is also responsible for supervision and nursing in rostarne XE "rostarne"  during the time dr XE "dr"  ryka XE "ryka" 
.  Otherwise the tenant payment shall consist of work in Wändrosthusen
 in Huså and he shall be compensated in accordance with that for vändrostningen XE "vändrostningen" 
 fixed contract.  

2. The tenant shall pay all taxes and burdens for this farm and the personal taxes that are calculated on him and his household.  

3. It is on obligation of the tenant that farm take good care of and cultivate, as well to land as house and fence, where at however towngas XE "towngas"  that new homestead buildings does not receive by the tenant fulfill without also by Company administration obtained condition, and that the fence receive enclosed only against the outlying land and property, which does not belong to the Copper Mining Company.  Plank and board to necessary repairs give the tenant by the Copper Mining Company without payment.  

4. Necessary firewood the tenant has that on the Copper Mining Company forest without compensation collecting, but shall necessarily the dry forest, stumps and placed near also in first room is used.  All burning is prohibited, and also Löftägt and timber cutting is allowed by no one.  Otherwise towngas XE "towngas"  that growing tree does not receive by the tenant or cut down without preceding marked.  

5. Pasture for their cattle, which on the farm born, give on the Copper Mining Company land except farms fence on the tract, which by the Copper Mining Company administration determines.

6. Sale of feed, fertilizer or forest output by whatever name it may be called from this farm is prohibited.

7. The tenant is prohibited, that future not Special Stipulation also received, that in his home or on the property’s hold other persons than them that with Company administration approval with him Registered for the Popular Records are, that also that consist of work and driving by whatever name it may be called by anyone other than the Copper Mining Company.

8. With Church and Municipality expression, also by the clergy election and otherwise on all occasions, then claim for the Copper Mining Company possessions land shall transport, reserve the Copper Mining Company him suffrage for the same.

9. As future the tenant with fidelity and diligence executes this contract, and in remaining erects him honest, sober and proper, he may be banished that until his death, the farm such as that this is found with all of the buildings and land without compensation to the tenants ownership rights relapses to the Copper Mining Company, on the same use and use, but in contrary event or in case the tenant is guilty of a violation of this contract, put under an obligation he him that on orders moved, without receiving some compensation for possible farm enhancements.

This contract is approved to commence on the 1st of January of this year.

Year and are as above

Two exact copies are instituted, of which the Copper Mining Company and the tenant each ta XE "ta" kes one.


Huså on December 1, 1868



Vollrath Tham

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



Olof Andersson of Hyttsten

(434)
Witness:  
D. Blomcreutz 



Gust.  Nilsson

Anders Grönlund
Table 135 (435)

Anders Grönlund5, Anders Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Anders Grönlund 
	B
	Aug 29, 1830 
	
	Anders lived in Grötom, Kall, before they emigrated to America on April 30, 1894.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 23, 1854 
	
	

	S
	Anna Märta Johansdotter 
	B
	Feb 9, 1833
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Per Olof Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 4, 1860 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 20, 1869
	
	

	E2
	Jöns Grönlund 
	B
	July 22, 1863 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 20, 1928 
	Mörsil
	

	E3
	Anna Lena Grönlund 
	B
	Sep 22, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Agnes Grönlund 
	B
	Apr 27, 1869
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Johan Olof Grönlund 
	B
	Nov 4, 1871
	
	Johan emigrated to America on April 30, 1894.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Maria Grönlund 
	B
	Dec 8, 1879
	
	Maria emigrated to America on April 30, 1894.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


I {Bengt Andersson of Berge} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Kärstin Olofsdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to worker (Anders Andersson Grönlund of Grötommen}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to this undivided Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Grötommen, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality,

The agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand (1,000) Riks Currency shall be paid on the 1st of next May of this year.

The farm buyer shall then take possession and our children and heirs shall surrender this homestead including house, land, property and cottages as are found in the contract of February 8, 1839 

becomes by me and according to the contract of February 20, 1837 becomes my fore traded guarantees.  

Anders Andersson Grönlund and  his wife, children, and heirs have legally purchased their rights to this property one and all, for all eternity and they shall have undisputed ownership and cultivation rights to the crops and the profits from them 

I myself promise to faithfully obey the District Court.  

Agreement is hereby arrived at and certified with our signatures in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Kall and Ranommen on February 21, 1862


Seller:
Bengt Andersson and Kerstin Olsdotter of Sellsved



Buyer:
Anders Andersson of Grönlund 

(435)
Witness:
Eric Pehrsson



Salmon Sallmonsson of Grötommen

Lisbet Grönlund
Table 136 (436)

Lisbet Grönlund5, Anders Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Lisbet Grönlund 
	B
	July 14, 1833 
	
	Lisbet lived in Huså and Berge, Kall.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 10, 1855 
	
	

	S
	Erik Lalander 
	B
	Aug 28, 1829 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 23, 1901 
	Översmältare
	

	E1
	Johan Olof Lalander 
	B
	July 31, 1859 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 15, 1864 
	
	Johan died of measles.

	E2
	Anders Lalander 
	B
	May 10, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 7, 1864 
	
	Anders died of measles.

	E3
	Jakob Lalander 
	B
	Apr 25, 1864
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Anders Gustaf Lalander 
	B
	Aug 17, 1868 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 12, 1952
	
	

	E5
	Anna Kristina Lalander 
	B
	Aug 17, 1868 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 14, 1912
	
	


Purchase Agreement

I {Christian Larsson of Berge} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge, Kall Parish, and Undersåker Municipality to Company Worker Erik Lalander of Huså.

for eternal possession the divided Thorpställe 

for an agreed upon purchase amount of seven hundred (700) Riksdaler 

which total through serkild XE "serkild"  settlement is hereby paid and eliminated.

My farm is floodlit east farm property within the following limits: 

The southwest corner is by the lakeshore where a stone marker is fixed.  

From that marker, the western property line goes in a straight line to the northeast 1,040 feet to a sunken marker by the current fence.

From that sunken marker, the northern property line goes in a straight line 800 feet southeast to another sunken marker.

From that sunken marker, the eastern property line goes 700 feet south to the lakeshore by the cropland that was previously bought by Jonas Jonsson.

From there, the property line goes 1,000 feet west back to the lakeshore starting point, making up the southern property line.

there also will be tillhear XE "tillhear"  farm the following land and cottages: 

southern portion of Storhessjemyren {Storhessje Swamp}, Trånefloslotten, 

that northeast Stocksanget in Goffaranglet 

½ Gammelvallen to contained within for Johan Nilssons Torpsandel XE "Torpsandel" , 

one-eighths in byns XE "byns"  box plant, 

one-half (½) in an old millhouse together with Matts Jonsson, beside or mill place, 

free forest usage for the farm’s needs 

but does not have the right to sell free pasture for their cattle 

which on the farm born everything on the farm forest region and the property.

The farmer shall also pay a property payment of ten (10) Riksdaler each year for the first 50 years for farm ownership rights.

After which time this property payment determines 

after then the prospective the time for these conditions.  

The farmer also has the right to expand this farm in such a manner that 

western end by northern fence kriflyttas XE "kriflyttas"  

on northward to northeast corner by the now purchased and conveyed fine cottages 

so that the northern property line goes in property line from northwest corner by the 

and to northeast corner by purchased before ownership rights to the cottages.

For fulfillment of the above written conditions the seller {Christian Larsson} transfers this farm with all of the rights and responsibilities to Erik Lwlander so that he and his heirs is owned for eternity and occupy it as their legally purchased property after May 1, 1873.

This transaction is hereby made and agreed upon as acknowledged.  


Kall and Berge on October 28, 1872


Seller:
Christian Larsson


Buyer:
Erik Lalander of Huså

(437)
Witness: 
Erik Larsson of Back 



Jacob Persson of Back

Photograph (437)

Anders Gustav Lalander was born on August 17, 1868 and died on November 12, 1952.  His wife Agnes Hyttsten was born on October 6, 1879 and died in September of 1956.

Path Dahleman loaned me this photograph.

On September 26

Same Day:  

After Erik Lalander of Berge died on September 25, 1901, § 23, 

requested a mortgage on Anders Gustaf Lalander’s property consisting of 226/5031st of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land 

and Jacob Lalander’s property consisting of 616/15093rd of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land on Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge in Kall Parish

for Reserved Rights to the applicants and his wife {Elisabeth Grönlund} according to the contract dated September 22, 1901, 

but the District Court dated the 23rd of the following December attested application dormant in await on, 

that entry into the Deed Book on this farm position becomes Anders Gustaf and Jacob Lalander document, 

who now allowed Erik Lalander through Erik Larsson of Vestgärd 

completed application with produced 

by does not smaller excerpt in District Court Recorded Minutes in errand year also ifde XE "ifde"  contract.  

Special Stipulation Contract

For our ownership rights to a share of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Berge in Kall Parish, we guarantee our parents (Erik Lalander and his wife Elisabeth Grönlund} the following Reserved Rights and Special Stipulation Benefits so that they may have joint enjoyment on the partitioned farm for both of their remaining lifetimes: 

· the northwest corner room in manfarms XE "manfarms"  building for lodging other floor and in outer floor skrubben XE "skrubben"  on the west side 

· Access and usage of the cellar and all of the other buildings on the eastern portion of the farm as necessary

· Feed and fodder all year round for 2 cows, 3 sheep and 3 goats and 2 of their offspring

· 300 kilograms of flour from grain such as that which is grown on the farm each year

· 18 foot of potatoes

· A ride to and from Church and other necessary errands

· Firewood and heat

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

With the death of either Reserved Rights recipient, one-half of the above written Reserved Rights benefits shall disappear except for:

· Lodging and firewood

· A ride 

· Attention and nursing care 

The surviving relative shall retain the above three items until the day of his death.


Kall and Berge on September 22, 1901



Jacob Lalander 



A. G. Lalander

We attest our satisfaction with this contract dated above.



Erik Lalander 



Elisabeth Grönlund

(438)
Witness:
Erik Larsson of Vestgård 



Olof Borin

Anna Brita Grönlund
Table 137 (439)

Anna Brita Grönlund5, Anders Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Anna Brita Grönlund 
	B
	Jan 13, 1841
	
	Anna lived in Huså, and later in Back.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 19, 1864
	
	

	S
	Tysk Daniel Ersson 
	B
	1842
	Falun
	artist

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Anna Danielsson 
	B
	June 21, 1864 
	
	Anna (El) was called “Vackra
 XE "Vackra"  Anna”, for her great beauty.  She died of cancer.

	
	
	D
	Oct 2, 1900
	
	

	E2
	Agnes Danielsson 
	B
	Aug 28, 1868 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 29, 1934
	
	

	E3
	Anders Edvard Danielsson 
	B
	Apr 18, 1871
	
	Anders emigrated to the USA in 1891 with his father.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Matilda Karolina Danielsson 
	B
	Aug 19, 1873
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Gustaf Danielsson 
	B
	Aug 18, 1883 
	Back
	Gustaf emigrated to the USA in 1897.

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Farm Contract

German Daniel Ersson is taken as the tenant on Huså Company Farm No. 2 in Kall Parish in exchange for annually provide food and care until their death and to annually provide work valued at pay 75 Riksdaler to the in-law parents for their remaining lifetimes

Obligation that Daniel Ersson that helped by appear buildings and repairs, and that then which is demanded, impend vaskningen XE "vaskningen" 
 in Huså washing work, all for compensation of 16 Species per hour.

Daniel Ersson also receives annual payment as long as he by work still remains 50 Riksdaler.

This contract ta XE "ta" kes effect on January 1, 1870.


Huså on December 31, 1869



Wollrath Tham

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



German Daniel Ersson

(439)
Witness: 
L.  Hallgren 



A.  Eklund

This contract is been given notice for moved from farm cottage this day.  


Huså on May 7, 1875 



Daniel Ersson

Assessment of Company Farm No. 22 in the Village of Husä in 1859:

· Cottage, 13 alnars {26 feet} long, of which 4 alnars {8 feet} makes up the porch and a barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, 18 layers high.  Double board roof, attic floor everywhere by tongue and groove board, also in an attic room, all the rooms in both floors with a floor built of planks, whole building built of boards both out and inside, A fireplace and a baking oven with well braced, post and damper of iron, and a cinder gelugn XE "gelugn" 
 by the side of the fireplace, 4 window in downstairs floor of 7/4, 5 window in outer floor of 5/4.  It is timbered and provided with a new roof for 12 year afterwards, now in perfect condition.

· A barn, 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide, 11 layers high, simple board roof, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks and a baking oven, floor built of planks, A fireplace with boards and wood posts, 2 5/4 window.  It has room enough for 4 or 5 cows and sheep or goats.  It is 10 years old and in perfect condition.

· A feed shed, 9 alnars {18 feet} with 4 corners except 4 alnars {8 feet} wide cover against a barn, 11 layers high, The roof is built of board, floor of miscellaneous, roof is 1 year old but the walls are 64 years old.

· A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide, 9 layers high, The roof is built of boards unpainted and unfinished split wood, floor built of planks, A fireplace with boards and wooden spikes, A woodshed with sloped roof of board of one wall.  It is 26 years old but provided with a new roof on later years.

· Cellar with building, building that also may be used as a shelter, 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 5 alnars {10 feet} wide, 15 layers high.  The roof is built of board, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, a door with a lock, is timbered 5 rows for 5 is afterwards and new roof for 4 years afterwards, self. Cellar is 5 alnars {10 feet} with 4 corners and 3 alnars {6 feet} high walls and 2 alnars {4 feet} a cool room, in entry walls as roof by walls stone, roof over a cool room of board birch bark and land.  

· One half of the ownership rights to a Granary, with in-law Is.  01:n Grönlund.  

· Summer livestock house, 6 alnars {12 feet} square with 4 corners, 6 layers high with roof of board, is old and damaged by rot.

· A Klensmedja XE "Klensmedja" 
, 5½ alnars {11 feet} with 4 corners, 7 layers high, hearth of stone and a door,

· 10 years old (affluent house for a farmer)

· A hay barn, from Homeowner 6 alnars {12 feet} with 4 corners 8 layers high, roof of board, floor of miscellaneous wood, 6 years old.

· one-fourth (¼) in an old worn-out barn, and share in a skvalt XE "skvalt"  mill.

· Houses in Knogevallen, consisting of Cottage barn and hay barn.

· ½ tithe in a hay barn in cane field with Is.  01:n Grönlund

· Croplands consist of 2 ¼ malings of land, 7 malings of new land

· Fence 312 fathoms of fence, 11 2/3 fathoms Stone walls

· Mountains 20 Loads of hay within the fence, 3 loads from the cane field, 2 loads from Knogewallen, one-fourth (¼) load from Swampland above the cane field, ½ load from Smedfallandet, aggregate 25 ¾ loads hay and slough grass.

· During the last 5 years the tenant has cultivated 2½ malings of new land. There is still a lot of good land to be cultivated within this farm enclosure.

· They can live in this home for their lifetime, but at their death it reverts to the Copper Mining Company.

Contract

(441)

Between the undersigned is the following work contract uppgjort XE "uppgjort" .

Daniel Ersson promises to repair with trädklans XE "trädklans" 
 = clothe and entertain the ore channel between Bielkes Copper Mining Company and the Huså Veskverk during the year 1873 so that all the ore from the Copper Mining Company to Huså during said time will be transported, may without hindrance be able to be transported in the channel.

That for ore running build and upkeep necessary wood becomes in stammers acquired to Huså by Copper Mining,

For that reason Daniel Ersson provides his workmanship to pieces fitting for application by channel.  They also for ore running  upkeep necessary planks, boards and nails provided by the Copper Mining Company.

Transport all logging from Huså to the proximity of that place where they shall be used for channel provided for by the Copper Mining Company, provided the same can happen after a with horse navigable way.  

For the fulfillment of this contract, the Copper Mining Company shall pay Daniel Ersson 500 Rgd XE "Rgd"  in Riks Currency.  One hundred (100) Riksdaler in Riks Currency is to be paid immediately as advance money.  Two hundred (200) Riksdaler is to be paid after the channel is put in condition and for ore transportation beginning is shown to be in perfect condition and completely usable.  The remaining 200 Riksdaler shall be paid after the ore transportation is finished before the beginning of winter.

Daniel Ersson also gives complete disposal rights over that by timber workmanship and for ore running upkeep useless affall XE "affall" 
.


Huså on April 9, 1873

(441)

For Jemtland Copper & Logging Company

Purchase Agreement

(442)

I {Jakob Persson} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to worker (Daniel Ersson from Huså} and his wife {Anna Brita Grönlund}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Back, Kall Parish, Undersåker Municipality, and Jemtlands County consisting of 7/8 of a taxable acre.

The agreed upon purchase amount is six thousand (6,000) Riksdaler, of which total at least half shall be paid after farm approval and the remainder by paying annual interest and the mortgage on the remaining farm. 

It is also the responsibility of this buyer to provide Reserved Rights and the Special Stipulations that we reserve according to the Special Stipulations contract established on this date, until the death of my wife and I

from this farm is already before frånsålld XE "frånsålld"  

this undivided farm called Höknäset 

according to the contract of December 5, 1870 

and released to day work farmer on certain conditions according to the deed of October 27, 1873 

and a portion of the forest near Djufveln which on certain year and conditions is sold according to the contract of November 15, 1872.

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Jakob Pehrsson} surrender this farm and its acquisitions to Daniel Ersson and his wife and heirs, including the land, house, forest, saw and mill portion, ownership and occupancy rights, along with all other lawfully acquired property and with everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future.

The farm buyer shall take possession on May 1, 1875 at the next Court Session.

This transaction is hereby made and agreement is arrived at as acknowledged in 


Kall and Back on October 31, 1874 


Seller:
Jakob Pehrsson of Back


Buyer:
Daniel Ersson and Anna Brita Grönlund


Witness: 
Erik Larsson of Back 



Nils Simonsson of Back

The undersigned {Daniel Ersson} is to pay, after being given two months notice, a total of two thousands (2,000) Riksdaler and 6 percent annual interest from the date the currency is receive 

through kemman XE "kemman"  sköp XE "sköp"  

as hereby acknowledged and Backras.  

to former farmer Jacob Persson of Back or Order,


Kall and Back on May 1, 1875


Buyer:
Daniel Ersson


Witness: 
Nils Simonsson of Back 



Jonas Halfvarsson of Back

As security for the above principle and annual interest, I {Daniel Ersson} give Jakob Pehrsson the right to request and receive a mortgage on this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Back Kall Parish and Undersåker Municipality consisting of 7/8 of an acre, without any additional hearings.

Acknowledged on date above


Buyer:
Daniel Ersson of Back 

(443)
Witness: 
Nils Simonsson of Back 



Jonas Halfvarsson of Back

Purchase Agreement

I {Daniel Ersson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to Kall Savings Company or its legal owner.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Back in Kall Parish consisting of 7/8 acre, a 2 story cottage north of this farm in the Village of Back and everything else such as home furnishings and accessories that now belong to this farm or can be obtained in the future.

The agreed upon and conditional purchase amount is Two hundred (200) Riksdaler.

This total, through this Special Stipulations agreement, is hereby paid and eliminated, and by this purchase said company or their legal owner has legal rights to the following for a time of fifty year calculate from this date:

½ of this building remaining on the same site or empty that now stands, 

also that in proximity of the same, or as the company deems appropriate, on my own allow erection of a depository or storage shed.  

This purchase also i XE "i" ncludes the rights to necessary accommodations such as roads and site for miscellaneous varors XE "varors" 
 plow or that is required, for the Company or its legal owner for a period of fifty (50) years 

and on my own, with obligation for the company, that as long as the above written rights come that may be used, 

pay to me as a property payment one-half (½) of my Royal Government annually.

As security for receiving these rights, the Company has the right to request and receive a mortgage on this Company Farm No. 1 in the Village of Slope, Kall Parish without any additional hearings.  


Kall and Back January 2, 1876 




Daniel Ersson of Back

(444)
Witness: 
Johan Johansson of Krok 



Olof Persson of Rör

We attest our complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone.  

Time and place as above on behalf of the Kall Savings Company.



Gustaf Nilsson of Huså 



Erik Larsson of Back

(444)
Witness: 
Johan Johansson of Back 



Olof Grelsson of Rör

I have gotten copies of a couple of letters that Agnes Larsson of Wästfarm in Kall received from her brother, most likely Anders Edvard, a resident of Alaska.

Seldovia, Alaska 

November 8, 1932

Beloved Sister

Courage and Peace

I take this pen to let you know that I am alive and give you a warm greeting and hope that these lines find you the same.  How is everything in old Sweden?  There have been hard times on some occasions but they have not come here.  I also must say that we cannot starve because we have fish in the sea and meat in the forest and when you aren’t starving, you shouldn’t complain.

 I had otur XE "otur"  older times our it was a family that lived in one of my houses and it burned down and I had no fire-insurance.  I had a two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler loss that I must rebuild so instead I send 30 Riksdaler as a Christmas gift well I receive finish for this time with a hearty greeting and best wishes and a Merry Christmas and warm greetings to all that are still alive and know me.

Vänligen Oath that the other letter is likely from Matilda Karolina who was married to Johan Carlbom, who was probably called Carlsson in America.

Cass Lake 

May 15, 1921

Dear Sister

I will send you a few lines that we are living as usual.  However, I have such bad rheumatism that has now gone to my hips and legs.  I have 80 little chickens now that are a lot of work.  With däm XE "däm" 
 now as I send the cards that we took from church at the funeral.  Erick got a letter in her vicka XE "vicka"  from Mrs. Johanson from Tafnes.  

She writes a nice letter you can write to her that Erick is dead, since he has not gotten her letter.  I see in her letter that Ingeborg has given birth to a girl.  Ingeborg had rung up her as she talked with her Erick sends her a photograph.  She thinks which of that has not you given birth to your he sends to oaths all at the same gong.  Ingeborg also wrote to Alsen to Hilda Svensson that Törnberg has died.  

I wrote a letter to him last winter but have not heard noget XE "noget" .  I took häm XE "häm" 
 some flowers from the grave and was going to press them, but they became bad.  They got petrified and became moldy.  I thought of sending däm XE "däm" 
 I took a little ribbon that was on the flowers and I send däm
.  We had some hot weather at was beginning of the week but for 3 days now it has been so cold that it has frozen and this morning it was white with snow.  But it has become hot enough now it uses be such call boundary mark.  I wrote a letter to you in last vickan XE "vickan" .  I hope that you receive it before you receive her letter soon and give all old acquaintances a warm greeting to oaths from all of us and Mr. Törnberg of he liver I hope to that Vändligen 

Sister

Anna Brita Sjöberg
Table 138 (445)

Anna Brita Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Anna Brita Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 27, 1828
	
	Anna lived in Fröån, and then moved to Offerdal.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 24, 1848
	
	

	S1
	Lars Ersson Hellberg 
	B
	November 26, 1825 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 29, 1872
	
	

	El
	Kristina Hellberg 
	B
	Aug 14, 1849 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 15, 1922 
	Kall
	

	E2
	Bengt Hellberg 
	B
	May 16, 1851 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 13, 1918 
	Ösd
	

	E3
	Eric Hellberg 
	B
	Jan 4, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 22, 1868
	
	

	E4
	Olof Hellberg 
	B
	July 17, 1856 
	
	

	
	
	D
	November 10, 1940
	Sth XE "Sth"  Sundgren
	

	E5
	Brita Héllberg 
	B
	Mar 2, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 25, 1951 
	Offerdal
	

	E6
	Lars Hellberg 
	B
	June 8, 1867 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 21, 1939 
	Offerdal
	


Company Farm No. 158 in the Village of Hårbörsta is located between the Fröå Sawmill and the Copper Mining Company.  This farm first became inhabited and occupied by Johan Lindbom.  He was succeeded by dismissed Drafton XE "Drafton"  Olof Hellberg, at first alone and then later he owned it with his son Lars Hellberg (S1 above?).  

After latter the buyer farm by Erik Hellberg
, for that reason his son Lars Hellberg (S1) received and occupied it until 1856, then he was from the Copper Mining Company job been given notice, and then he got to buyer on the farm his brother-in-law Nils Olsson Lind, who now owns it.  

By Lars Hellbergs (the younger) (S1) moved from 1856, was his debt to work (?) Riksdaler for which no access was found and why his croplands also became taken care of by work.

For the first offense of larceny in conjunction with a break-in, the judge sentenced him to a year of servitude and loss of civil rights for 6 years.  

That punishment was received by Olof Hellberg (E4) who was born July 17, 1856.  He is described as 5 foot 3 inch tall with brown eyes and brown hair.  He had a round face.  He was 16 years old and born in Åre Parish and paid taxes in Offerdal.

He was sentenced in Offerdal District Court on September 12, 1872 at a hearing.

He was taken there on September 11 at 7 AM without payment and returned the 13th of the same month at 3 PM with payment.  On July 7, 1873 at 8 o’clock he was liberated without upkeep for 1 day.

Olof later moved to Stockholm and lived out his life there.  He took the name Sundgren.

On September 11, 1857 an assessment and evaluation of the croplands and buildings on Company Farm No. 105 at the Gustaf Copper Mining Company was made.  

This homestead had first been built and cultivated by Lars Hellberg’s ancestors and for 10 to 11 years used by this Hellberg, 

but was released from the Copper Mining Company on October 1, 1856 and again left the cottages to his father Lars Hellberg, who on the 1st of next May of  this year relinquished them to Miner Nils Olsson Lind.  

A cottage building 12 alnars {24 feet} long of which the porch was 4 alnars {8 feet}, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 14 layers high.  It has a roof of double boards, tongue and grooved boards on the inner ceiling for an attic, a fireplace with iron spikes, putty iron 2 windows of 7, of 6/4, an unfurnished attic, an entrance hall with a fireplace and a window of 5/4, home furnishings, with a floor and inner ceiling.  It is 17 to 18 years old, herewith taken wood, 

8 wood chairs 
36 Riksdaler 

2 plank chairs 
4 Riksdaler 
40 ok

16 chair boards 
24 Riksdaler 

A fireplace with iron post 
26 Riksdaler
56



Upptimring XE "Upptimring" 
 
30 Riksdalers 

Nail 
5 Riksdaler 

Snickning and roof framing 
14 Riksdaler
49 ok

Slättäljning 
6 Riksdaler, 

Window with Chests 
8 Riksdaler
14 ok

3 doors with a lock 
4 Riksdaler 

Intermediate beam with ports 
6.24
2.24



Staircase to the attic 
24 Riksdaler
24


Total Riksdaler

160

Deduct floor and inner ceiling wood valued at
15 Riksdaler




145 Riksdaler


Bagar cottage 7 alnars {14 feet} long, 6¼ alnars {12½ feet} wide, 10 layers high.  

It has a roof built of boards, a fireplace with wood boards, a baking oven with boards of iron, a fireplace and
 a baking oven in bad condition and the building is otherwise unfurnished.  It was built 2 years ago and 

medla XE "medla"  4 s, Tim 13 R, 12 R, 6 Th.  Roof boards 
18  1 Riksdaler, 

6 Post timring XE "timring" 
 and flattälgning XE "flattälgning" 
16 

Roof läggning XE "läggning" 
2 Riksdaler

18.


100, 4 inch nail at 
.36  

I walls advising is appraised at 
8. 
8.36


Bördåsen in a baking oven

.36

A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} square 

and a feed shed and störste XE "störste"  is 20 years old.  

The entire building in Estate Inventory marked.



A barn is decayed and rotten and must both



be rebuilt.  It is considered now to be worth

36.


Summer livestock barn equally rotten and decayed

5



A shelter in usable condition 5 alnars {10 feet} long, 

4½ alnars {9 feet} wide and 16 layers high,



The roof is built of boards, floor, a door with a lock worth

25.


A barn new, except roof, newly built in worth

5.


A hay barn on the isthmus by the river, new but small, 

can only hold 11 cargoes of firewood

5.


4 hay barns on miscellaneous places 

in bad condition with a bad roof and floor.  

1 hay barn with 4 logs
18.


Cropland 3/8 maling 

kålning XE "kålning"  and potatoes at 12 Riksdaler/maling
4.24


3½ malings of new land appraised 

at 10 Riksdaler/maling
35
39.24
Fence 166 fathoms of bad condition fenced pasture
10.18


73, 1/3 of good condition fenced pasture
6.  5.4
16.23.4
Photograph (447)

Anna Brita and Lars Hellberg lived in this house.  The cottage was located in the general area of Hällberget and Hällsjön, not far from the church, between Hällberget and the Church in Ede.  The cottage had only the left half then.  It was added on to and later it was moved to Viken.  In 1864, it came to be called the "Jonas Jons farm.”  Harry Hellberg took this photograph in February of 1994.  

Farmer Lars Hellbergs of Prestbordet’s wife {Brita Hellberg} has, according to the evidence submitted by Pastor N. O.  Nordenmark, 

with him on peoples statement addition him by my son Per Gustaf, found a bronze urn at Edesåns beach and the same 

him to usefulness used, 

which compels me to understand of make notice and summons against her in a statement that she must standnda XE "standnda" 
 be made responsible for her actions and must repay me 15 Riksdaler for the value of this urn, 

that wida XE "wida" 
 she not helldre XE "helldre" 
 lectured that restore the open claim provide and also demanded compensation for court costs. 

Offerdal on November 19, 1871

Per Olof Hallin 

with roll-call by legal proceedings placed him Plaintiff personally 

but nevertheless the defendant did not let him listen to her according to District Judge Nils Gabrielsson of Bångåsen tillkännagaf XE "tillkännagaf" 
 

become by him with soldier of Farmhand Nils Ol XE "Ol" ofsson from on mountain conditions summons in legal proceedings, 

For that reason Courtroom present F T.. citizen K. J. Falk and Vicar Staaf tillkännagåfvo XE "tillkännagåfvo" 
, that Svarande wife one f. n. was bedridden sick, which none of by wife Hellberg know Court in legal proceedings on this thing.  

The plaintiffs inspires that in summons application mentioned proof, that now contained, that the of Farmer in Offerdals prestbord XE "prestbord"  P. O. Hallin for some years afterwards to me give them on this prestbord found bronze urn shortly afterward was collected by farmer L.  Hellberg’s wife {Brita Hellberg}.

Certified in Offerdal on September 25, 1871.  

N. O.  Nordenmark, hereinafter called the plaintiff, that he in property by maylsman XE "maylsman"  

for his underage son Per Gustaf, filed a claim against Brita Hellberg, in which it is claimed that her son Erik and also his son Per Gustaf in the mid-summertime of 1867 had found 2 metal urns on the ground of  immemorial model of which the each of the boys retained one.  

Then 14 days after finding them, the plaintiff turned the urn over to her son, and then a few days later, at Brita Hellberg’s request, they were turned over to her.

Brita Hellberg sold both urns to Royal Court Judgment, through each command in County.

Brita Hellberg received 30 Riksdalers for the urns and the plaintiff now demanded one-half (½) of this amount for the urn that his son found.

The verdict was that Brita Hellberg was issued a warrant to immediately pay one-half or 15 Riksdaler to the plaintiff and also to immediately pay the court costs of the plaintiff in addition to this 15 Riksdalers.

Photograph (449)

Written in 1960 from what was told me:

Cottage in Viken:

Grandfather's father built a log cabin (1 room) possibly first intended for use other than as a home, there presently Sigfrid of Jonas-Jons, Sönna å XE "å" -a (Sunnanå) lives.  This was a Parish Farm.  The Dean Wimmercrants purchased (?) cottage.  Grandfather's father likely moved it to Viken.  According to grandmother, grandfather's mother was there and timbered the cottage.  1906 (?) Wimmercrantz paid for renovation costs

I have not called for sample deeds in the Church archives to certify correctness.

Photograph goes here (449)

original timbered portion

It was built by papa in the 1920’s.

Later it was added onto.  Was found when daddy was a child (in 1906?)

Grandmother and grandfather called this portion the "house", it had an opening to the timbered portion, which was a single combined kitchen and dining room.  

The entire house had laid panels, red paint, white corners and a shingle roof.  The attic was unfurnished, but in the summer nights it was nice to sleep there.  The house was warmed with only a wood fireplace.  Water was carried into the house in a bucket.  Slask was poured into a bucket and was emptied out on a suitable site.  Dishwater was poured into another bucket and became drinking water for the livestock.

It had no telephone and no electricity.  The lighting was by kerosene lamps.

It was divided up in the 1930's

Photograph goes here (449).

3. Room 
2. Kitchen
Kitchen

Bedroom 
Stor room
We lived here until 1939 and then we moved to Änge .  This part of the house was badly isolated.  No lower floor.


Nästan direct on marken XE "marken" .


It was built in the 1920's.

My sister Gunvor and I {Harry} were born in this room.

Grandfather and grandmother lived in this portion along with aunt Julia and her children John and Agnes.

1 Fireplace

2 Here grandmother and grandfather had their double bed

3 Here Julia and her child slept.

Hellbergstorpet in Viken, Offerdal.  make sure that this is only a planritning XE "planritning" . 

The proportions are not drawn the way it was really built.

[image: image2.wmf]Brita Halvarsdotter


This building belonged to grandfather, Lars Hellberg

Kashus 
Dass

 
   manure yard



    jämtska XE "jämtska" : värsgål XE "värsgål"  = “wood farm”

Grandfather's woodshed:  

Father’s woodshed


barn


Brunno

hay barn (of board)

Brunno


Lekstuga



Summer house “Kaken”

originally vid aspen
father’s father



Boningshus

garden
Törnroshäck 

Syrén


father’s and mother’s garden

(called "Kryddgård XE "Kryddgård" ")

Road

Large birch tree

Dirt Cellar
Granary with small building

In the fields, potatoes, hay, grain and "grönfoder XE "grönfoder" 
" were cultivated

Timbered hay barn

Lövskog
Path through the forest to the laundry house by the lake

Märta Sjöberg
Table 139 (451)

Märta Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	
	Märta Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 6, 1830
	
	Märta lived in Brattland, then they emigrated to America on April 19, 1890.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Apr 19, 1854
	
	

	S
	Erik Nilsson Lilja 
	B
	Mar 30, 1832
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	El
	Nils Lilja 
	B
	July 6, 1854
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Bengt Lilja 
	B
	Sep 24, 1858
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Nils Magnus Lilja 
	B
	Oct 30, 1862
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Anna Brita Lilja 
	B
	July 23, 1865
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Anna Märta Lilja 
	B
	May 12, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Agnes Lilja 
	B
	Aug 5, 1871 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 17, 1887
	
	

	E7
	Emma Carolina Lilja 
	B
	July 6, 1874
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Contract

The following agreement is made between Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company and Erik Nilsson of Brattland: 

This year Erik Lilja shall gather all the hay growing at the bailiff’s house in Fröå with the Special Stipulation of ½ Pervallen and Rismyrorna 

and the forest hay belonging to the official residence, against which the Company will receive a share each year of two-thirds (2/3) of all the harvested hay properly upphärsat XE "upphärsat" .  Consequently, Lilja will receive one-third (1/3) for his harvest work.

When the hay is dry and ready for hauling-in, Lilja is responsible for informing the Company of this has that efterlotsning XE "efterlotsning" 
 and of the direction to take their hay racks for hauling it in.  Lilja is granted the right to remove his portion from the homestead, but this must not happen before the Company removes theirs, but rather simultaneously with the Company’s removal.

Should Lilja desire, if some hay barns are not found to be amenable for him to stack his portion of the hay, he is granted the right to store the hay on this site as determined by the Company Administration.

It is hereby arrived at agreement and certified.  


Huså on July 8, 1876



Jämtland Copper & Logging Company



Gottfrid Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with the above to everyone and promise to fulfill it.


Huså on above date



Erik Nilsson Lilja of Brattland

(451)
Witness: 
L. Th.  Staaf 



J. P. Dahleman

Olof Sjöberg
Table 140 (452)

Olof Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Olof Sjöberg 
	B
	1832
	
	Olof lived en Fröän.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1859
	
	

	S
	Ingeborg Jonsdotter 
	B
	1838
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Bengt Sjöberg 
	B
	Nov 25, 1859 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 22, 1906
	
	

	E2
	Anna Margareta Sjöberg 
	B
	Aug 16, 1861
	
	Anna emigrated in 1889 with her family.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Olof Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 11, 1869
	
	Olof ran away to America.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Johan Aug Sjöberg 
	B
	Nov 16, 1876
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Nils Magnus Sjöberg 
	B
	Nov 16, 1878
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Ida Sjöberg 
	B
	Apr 18, 1881
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Olof emigrated to America with his wife Ingeborg and children Johan Aug, Nils Magnus and Ida on June 18, 1902.

The family lived for a time in Offerdal after 1857, but returned to Fröå.

Company Farm No. 151 contained in the Såå farm.  By conducted assessment in July 1873 the following buildings were found on the farm:

· A cottage, 13 alnars {26 feet} long, 7½ alnars {15 feet} wide, 6 alnars {12 feet} high with the roof of boards.  In the cottage is a fireplace with iron spikes and a baking oven, 2 windows and 3 doors.  This building is in good condition.  

· A barn and feed shed under one roof.  This building is 7½ alnars {15 feet} long, 5½ alnars {11 feet} wide, and 5½ alnars {11 feet} high.  The barn makes up 8 alnars {16 feet} in length, the feed shed likewise 8 alnars {16 feet} and between these is a shed 3 alnars {6 feet} long.  This building is new and in extremely good condition.  It was finished on May 1, 1876.

Olof Sjöberg leased this farm for a while.  

The tenant Contract
The leasehold of Jemtland Copper & Logging Company Farm No. 151 in Åre Parish is taken over by Olof Sjöberg for the following conditions:

For the lease of this farm, the tenant shall pay 35 Riksdaler annually, which afterwards shall be paid on July 1, also all taxes and burdens that occur on this portion of the farm.  Olof Sjöberg undertake him likewise that under years run on old debts payment at least 25 Riksdaler, for which reason hay work shall be received from the same.

This contract is approved to commence on April 15th of this year and two exact copies are instituted by both of us, of which the Copper Mining Company and the tenant each take theirs, and this contract applies and is calculated for one year from this date to the current date in 1877.

Notice shall be given before March 15 in the event either party does not want to continue in the same manner.  


Huså on April 15, 1876



Jemtland Copper & Logging Company 



Gottfrid Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



Olof Sjöberg

(453)
Witness:
Erik Nyberg




Svante Fagerskog
Please Note!  Olof Teodor Hyttsten exchanged this contract with Olof Sjöberg and received Hyttsten Helbergs-Torpet for 25 Riksdaler and taxes and burdens for conditions that abduct Käringen.

This farm is located directly below Gråbergsvarpen by the Gustaf Copper Mining Company.  It was first cleared of branches and roots and occupied by Olof Sjöberg, who was succeeded by his son Nils Sjöberg after which he was succeeded by his son Jonas Sjöberg.  After this came the current owner, Miner Olof Sjöberg.  He leased this farm in 1893 for a cost of 50 Riksdaler.

Agnes Sjöberg
Table 141 (453)

Agnes Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	
	Agnes Sjöberg 
	B
	Oct 7, 1834
	Agnes lived in Fröån.

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 7, 1858
	

	S
	Olof Sellstedt 
	B
	Mar 1, 1831 
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	El
	Anna Märta Sellstedt 
	B
	Mar 1, 1859 
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 3, 1864 
	Anna Märta died of croup.

	E2
	Anna Christina Sellstedt 
	B
	Apr 14, 1861 
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 22, 1864 
	Anna Christina died of croup.

	E3
	Agnes Sellstedt 
	B
	Feb 7, 1864
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	E4
	Olof Sellstedt 
	B
	Dec 15, 1866 
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 7, 1902
	

	E5
	Bengt Sellstedt 
	B
	Sep 17, 1869 
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 27, 1957
	

	E6
	Anna Märta Sellstedt 
	B
	Mar 8, 1872 
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 29, 1895 
	


Anna Märta Sellstedt died from suicide by phosphorus poisoning.
Farm Contract

The undersigned Olof Walter, owner of Company Farm No. 2 of 1 47/64 acre in Eggen in Mörsills Parish, hereby accepts Olof Sällstedt and his wife {Agnes Bengtsdotter} as farmers on the land and cottages for the following rights and responsibilities.  

1. My farm is one of the so-called Semlatorpen 

It is called Kullerbacken and has the following boundaries:

to the north to Olof Bernt’s property, 

to the west from corner of the same property and 

from there after old portion between Ridderberg’s farm and Herr farm to farmer Sefenias Mickelssons farm property and 

to the south to the last mentioned property and 

to the east from the corner of this property and 

from there two over allotment on eastern side of little field 

by swampland back to Olof Bernt’s property.

2. The farmer has the rights for forest haymaking may be used ½ old Hovallen and the two southern cow pastures in Strömdrolen XE "Strömdrolen" .

3. Forest usage for the farm’s needs such as timber, fence and firewood then to fence and firewood fore trädesvis XE "trädesvis" 
 

may use trees blown down by the wind, treetops and naturally dead trees 

and the forest growth of which the farmer on assigned house and by means of gallring XE "gallring"  receives the right to cut fir free twigs to strew and fertilizer mixture.  

4. Pasture for their cattle that through farms fodder the winter born can access however so that farmer in 2 months time by summer shall be used farm pasture on the south side of Mörsills Ström and the which there cared for cattle year may be used for fattening.

5. The farm owner holds horse and driving provided for building materials for houses on the farm without payment.  

6. The farmer may remove and use the old cottage, shelter, and feed shed on Ridderbergs Farm.

7. For enjoyment of these rights, the farmer shall annually provide to the farm owner the following days of work: 

· 4 days in May

· 12 men’s and 12 women’s days of work for the months of June, July, August and September in the first and third haying week and 4 malings of harvest in skjördanden XE "skjördanden"  2 men’s or women’s days of work during potato upptagningen XE "upptagningen"  

· 4 days in October 

· 4 days in November 

· 3 days in December 

· (?) days in January

· 4 days in February

· 4 days in March

· 4 days in April 

All days of work on the farm owner cost policy.  

8. The farmer has the rights self fenced enclosure of their property and hay making and take care of their cattle for damage and damage on the farm or other property.

9. All the forage growing on the farm uppstillas XE "uppstillas" 
 on place so that fertilizer comes farms land received.

10. The farmer has the rights not give over this contract on other person or partake of the tenants without the farm owner’s permission.

11. For coming obligation’s proper constituting Olof Sällstedt and his wife have automatic possession of Farm for both their lifetimes and the rights to a farm mortgage, but after both their death the farm relapses to farm owner with land, house and fence such as that which is found without payment.  As farm already is the buyer are above written days of work provided on the 1st of next May of this year.

12. The farmer acknowledges responsibility to constitute all that well order as additional tax and encumbrances and such days of work farmer legally is able to debit.

We have received our copies of this contract.  

Mörsil on May 14, 1881.

In addition the farmer has for his needs and may use of Farm rights by Semelsägen
 

0. Walter in Eggen 


Grantor: 
Olof Sellstedt



Agnes Sellstedt.

(455)
Witness:
Erik Persson and Peter Eriksson of Eggen.

Here also came two of the descendants before this District Court on March 31, 1876 for Olof Walter was entered into the Deed Book as proof of altogether 1 47/64 acre of Company Farm No. 2 in the Village of Äggen in Mörsils Parish.

Reserved Rights Contract

Afterwards our son-in-law day work farmer (Jöns Grönlund} and his wife {Agnes Sellstedt} purchased on this date the farm called Kullerbacken located under Company Farm No. 2 in Eggen consisting of 1 47/64 taxable acres in Mörsils Parish that my wife and I own.

We the sellers turn over our lease rights to this farm for them providing us the following annual Reserved Rights benefits for both of our remaining lifetimes which is to be constituted from the farm proceeds by the farms owner: 

1. Room in barn, and feed and fodder a cow, a sheep, and its offspring.

2. The right to build a necessary house for my wife and I on an appropriate site on the farm. We are also to receive free and broken pieces chopped firewood for our needs and tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses.  

It is hereby arrived at agreement in Mörsil and Eggen on July 31, 1893

 


Reserved Rights


Recipient:
Jakob Pehrsson



Agnes Bengtsdotter

(455)
Witness: 
Lars Pettersson 



Olof Allgusén

We (Jöns Grönlund and Agnes Sellstedt} attest our complete satisfaction with this contract.

As security for receiving these Reserved Rights, we give the Reserved Rights recipients (Jakob Pehrsson and Agnes Bengtsdotter} the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm without any additional hearings. 

Acknowledged in Mörsil and Eggen on the above date


Reserved Rights


Provider:
J. A. Grönlund 



Agnes Sellstedt 

(455)
Witness: 
Lars Pettersson 



Olof Allgusén

Purchase Agreement

(456)

I {J. Ocklind} hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 2 in Eggen in Mörsils Parish consisting of 1 47/64 taxable acre to worker (Jöns Andersson Grönlund} and his wife {Agnes Sällstedt from Kall and Grötom} for an agreed upon purchase amount of one thousand five hundred (1,500) Riksdaler.

The farm is called Kullerbacken and was divided from the farm called Semlatorpen and it is hereby granted to day work farmer for his lifetime as the buyer from his parents-in-law Olof Sällstedt and his wife Agnes Bengtsdotter.

The boundaries for the farm are as follows:  

The northern property line is next to the farm property of Elias Ol XE "Ol" ofsson, the eastern property line is the fence against day work farmer Johan Andersson, the southern property line is contained within exposed property line against the so-called Hangården, the western property line is the now a right angle against El.  Olofsson.

approximately 6 fathoms from a property line existing Cairn, up  fenced fence.  

This portion of the farm has an area of about forty (40) square refvar.  

It follows a forest region on the south side of Semmelån with a width of (120) one hundred twenty fots and stretches from the Semmelån all along property line against the forest region of Elias Larssons of Eggen 

to that ½ outer stone bäcksdrolet XE "bäcksdrolet"  a property line of two thousand eight hundred (2,800) foot.  

This forest region year thereby contains 33.6 square.  refvar or 6 acres in area.  

The farmer has the right to trees blown down by the wind 

and treetops that to other does not are capable, take firewood for his household needs.  

A on Semmelså XE "Semmelså"  planen XE "planen"  existing old cottage along with and purchase.

The rights to the pasture, which Olof Sällstedt had according to his day work farmers contract, now pass with the same conditions to Grönlund.  

Free passage from the farm to the general main road all along property line against Elias Olofssons property, given to the buyer.

From his father-in-law, 

0. Sällstedt

the buyer has the rights to set agreement of compensation for their rights that they had according to this contract  

and whose rights and obligations to the farm, from and including this date, are terminated.

As a property payment for these ownership rights, the farmer shall pay five (5) Riksdaler every January 1 to the farm owner.  

The purchase amount is partially paid with a payment of three hundred (300) Riksdaler in cash and the remainder with a mortgage on this farm of twelve hundred (1,200) Riksdaler.


Mörsil and Ocke on July 31, 1893 


Seller:
J.  Ocklind 


Buyer:
Agreed by J. A. Grönlund

(456)
Witness:
Nils Nilsson of Höla 



Nils Benjaminsson of Sellsjö
Nils Sjöberg
Table 142 (457)

Nils Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	
	Nils Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 4, 1837 

	
	
	D
	

	
	
	M
	1866

	S
	Kerstin North
	B
	1840

	
	
	D
	June 6, 1919

	El
	Bengt Sjöberg 
	B
	Oct 10, 1866 

	
	
	D
	June 17, 1947

	E2
	Anders Sjöberg 
	B
	June 25, 1871 

	
	
	D
	June 1956

	E3
	Nils Johan Sjöberg 
	B
	Nov 25, 1876 

	
	
	D
	Feb 6, 1968


Nils was a Miner in Fröån, and moved later to Undersåker on September 21, 1891.
Photograph (457)

This photograph is of the Sjöberg Family.  The man in the middle is Nils Johan, born on November 25, 1876, and his wife Ingeborg born in Råbuck.  His son Nils Robert, born August 20, 1918, stands in front of his father, and daughter Anna Kristina, born on June 29, 1916, that holds in a however.  The woman furthest to the left is Ingeborg's mother and the man furthest to the top is Ingeborg’s father.  They emigrated to America.  Ingeborg died there in TBC, and their son died in a motorcycle accident.  The daughter stayed in America when Nils Johan returned to Sweden.  He died in Åre.  

This photograph was taken in Björnänge, Åre.

Miner Nils Sjöberg ta XE "ta" kes over as the tenant on Company Farm No. 165 under ärbörsta XE "ärbörsta"  Farm in Åhre Parish for the annual payment of 25 Riksdalers and for the promise to provide the following Reserved Rights to his mother-in-law for as long as she lives:

· Free feed and fodder for a cow and 2 sheep or goats

· The entire lease amount shall be earned through work at the Borrkast with Fröä Copper Mining Company or at other locations determined by the Company Administration.

It also requires Nils Sjöberg to receive a wage of 10 Species per hour for day work labor.

The new house that he promises to build for the Copper Mining Company contract shall later be moved in the same value and allowance.  

Under the Mine Ordinance for the Mine work place in this jurisdiction and for work price that for every time is approved.  

This contract is currently applicable from and including May 1, 1875.


Huså on June 11, 1875


Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company (G. Engberg)

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to one and all and promise to faithfully fulfill it.


Huså on above date



Nils Sjöberg

(458)
Witness: 
O. S. Möllenhoff 



Erik Nyberg

Contract

I {Esten Rödell} hereby promise to fulfill this contract from the Jemtland Copper & Logging Company in Fröän on which it is shown where to build a cottage building on the farm that Miner Nils Sjöberg now has ownership rights on, in accordance with the following specifications:

The building must be 13 alnars {26 feet} long, 10 alnars {20 feet} wide and 6 alnars {12 feet} high.  Timber here shall also be taken that is suitable and fitting from the cottage that is now lived in by Nils Sjöberg, which demolition and removal of the old cottage building is therefore to be completed by the undersigned.  

The wood that is lacking for månde XE "månde"  for the above named dimensions, will be made up by existing timber in the proximity of the new homestead building.

The house is to be divided into a porch, large living room, day room, and a barn, and I promise to apply moss well between the logs, conducted complete and complete home furnishings including window with arches, doors, floor and roof, all in accordance with the above written administrative Judgment.  Wall work shall also be provided for by the undersigned and after the device with a baking oven and chimney as trustee document.

The house will be covered with shingles or boards, which by parts trustee by frame work conduct is to be decided.  Necessary boards, planks, and also the large stones for the foundation walls shall be provided by the Copper Works to the site.  However all other building materials shall be furnished at my own expense.  

When the house is completed, which must happen by the 15th of August at the latest, the Estate Inventory will be conducted at the next Court Session.

For this reason the undersigned has for work uppbära XE "uppbära"  a compensation then building to all division is passed, of one hundred sixty (160) Riksdaler.


Huså on May 29, 1875 



Esten Rödell

(459)
Witness: 
Erik Nyberg 



Grels Nilsson

Contract

In accordance with the contract of May 29th of this year between Jemtland Copper & Logging Company and Laplander school teacher Esten Rödell 

including conditions for this later in Fröän to remove an old cottage building that was lived in by Miner Nils Sjöberg 

and the location to erect a new building was shown on his place

and this work was not contractually completed, which was accepted by the Company through its administrator.  

The undersigned Miners Nils Sjöberg and Olof Persson on Fröån are hired to complete these buildings conduct for risk and invoice for Esten Rödell 

and on this occasion the same conditions and responsibilities that this contract in its entirety i XE "i" ncludes, 

these vidd XE "vidd" 
however with the Special Stipulation that twenty five (25) Riksdaler is calculated
 from the total that in this contract is final, calculated for the work that was done on the removed old cottage.  

Receive tomtning XE "tomtning"  to new, which consequently Nils Sjöberg and Olof Persson has that compensate of one hundred forty (140) Riksdaler then the new homestead buildings are built on this occasion and to all divides passed in accordance with the above quoted contract with Esten Rödell.


Huså on June 11, 1875 



Nils Sjöberg 



Olof Persson

(459)
Witness: 
Erik Nyberg 



O. S. Möllenhoff

Tenant Contract

Miner Nils Sjöberg ta XE "ta" kes over Company Farm No. 161 in Åre Parish as the tenant of Jemtland Copper & Logging Company for the following conditions: 

The tenant shall pay 40 Riksdaler as a lease payment for the farm, which total must be paid in cash by July 1, and the tenant shall also be responsible for all taxes and burdens that occur on this portion of the farm.

During haying time, Nils Sjöberg is responsible on place by Company Administrator is assigned to provide 2 complete weeks of work.  

Should this final lease amount and taxes and burdens not be paid on the specified date and place, the Copper Mining Company has the complete right to take over and receive enjoyment of the crops being grown on the farm without any compensation to the farm owner and without any additional legal proceedings.

Complete supply for poor hjonet XE "hjonet" 
 Anders Nord’s widow shall give, that this is included in the cheaper lease amount.  For these stipulated conditions, Nils Sjöberg has the rights by year ask for his work earnings where he for good also find with observation that the Company administrator that öfnskar XE "öfnskar"  and can offer.  

Sjöberg is responsible to discontinue his Copper Mining Company job for the above work during haying time.   Work payment shall be calculated exactly the same as with the other Copper Mining Company work done, but shall be deducted on the debt from which Sjöberg owes this day to the Copper Mining Company.

This contract is approved to commence after April 15th of this year and two exact copies are established of the same, of which the Copper Mining Company and the tenant each take theirs.

This contract applies for 1 year and is calculated from this date to the same date in 1877.

Notice shall be given before March 15, in the event one party does not on the same the descendants want remains.


Husä on April 15, 1876 


Jemtland Copper & Logging Company Gottfrid Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Huså on above date



Nils Sjöberg 


Witness: 
Erik Nyberg 



O. S. Möllenhoff

This contract on this date has been given legal notice.  


Huså on November 30, 1891 



Nils Sjöberg 

(460)
Witness: 
Axis Hedberg 



Emil Wernström

Purchase Agreement

I {Olaus Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} with the agreement and consent of my wife hereby knowingly release and sell my ownership rights that my wife and I currently possess to Company Farm No. 3 in the Village of Stamgärde in Undersåker Municipality and Parish consisting of 1/24th of a Mantal of Tax Registered Land or one-fourth (¼) acre to Company Worker Nils Bengtsson Sjöberg and his wife {Kerstin Andersdotter of Fröån} for an agreed upon and conditional purchase amount of three thousand (3,000) Riksdaler.  

This purchase amount i XE "i" ncludes a promise from the buyer to be responsible for my farm mortgage to the Undersäker Parish Poor Fund in the amount of 1,400 Riksdaler and also a particular promise to me of 1,000 Riksdaler, and 600 Riksdaler cash hereby paid to me in full and hereby signed for by each of us.

All expenses, taxes and burdens that accrue on this farm before the 1st of next May at the next Court Session shall be paid by me, but all that accrue after this time shall be paid by the buyer.

Therefore, my wife and I {Olaus Ol XE "Ol" ofsson} and my heirs surrender our ownership rights to this farm with all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future and buyer lawfully acquires the same for eternal possession by himself on the 1st of October at the next Court Session.

I ownership signed this Purchase Agreement in my own handwriting in the presence of the undersigned witnesses to further confirm the validity of it.


Stamgärde on September 29, 1890



Olaus Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Stamgärde

(461)
Witness: 
Jonas Rödin 



Anders Nilsson of Nyland

I attest my complete satisfaction with this Purchase Agreement to everyone.  


Time and place from above.  



Nils Bengtsson Sjöberg

(461)
Witness: 
Jonas Rödin 



Anders Nilsson of Nyland

Photograph (461)

Anders Sjöberg born on June 25, 1871 and his wife Anna Kristina Westlund born on September 22, 1878  

Alma Sjöberg of Östersund loaned me this photograph.

Photograph (462)

Company Workers in Huså and Fröå mines, taken about 1897, before mine-vinden XE "vinden"  in Fröå.

From left is inspector Johan Erik Norberg of Huså (Fäviken) born in 1840, Johan Petter Larsson of Huså born in 1860, behind him is Johan Svensson Löding born in 1850, Bengt Olof Nilsson-Lindström born on August 17, 1882, Göran Nilsson of Berg Parish, Kall born in 1842, Erik Höglund (the elder) of Fröå born in 1836, Per Svensson Löding born in 1862, Aug Höglund of Fäviken born in 1874 (son of Erik H), Erik Höglund (the younger) born in 1867 (son of Erik H), Emil Thunander (from Närke) born in 1872, Andersson, Unknown, Sven Erik Lind born in 1879.

Sitting from left is Olof Bengtsson Sjöberg born in 1832, Jöns Höglund of Fröå born in 1870, Gustaf Eriksson of Björnänge born in 1869, Lars Sellstedt of Fröå born in 1891, the son of Olof L.  Sellstedt who stands as next one born 1853, Per Olsson, Oscar Örnberg, Lars Lund of Berge, Kall born in 1878, Anders Stefansson of Huså born in 1834, Christian Lund of Berge, Kall born in 1871, Göran Lund born in 1869, Nils Magnus Forss born in 1854, Lars Olsson Sellstedt of Fröå born in 1821.

Photograph (463)

Copper Mining Company in Huså-Fröå worry, taken about 1897.  This is the other half of the previous photograph.

Standing from left is Unknown, Sven Erik Lind born 1879, Unknown, J. H. (Janne) Ström of Huså born 1830, Unknown, Olof Persson of Storvallen, Fröå, Gustaf Prestberg of Huså born in 1875, Nils Sjöberg of Fröå born in 1878 (son of Olof Bengtsson Sjöberg), Wikberg of Fröå, Nils Grelsson Lindström of Fröå born in 1843, Anders Höglund of Fröå born in 1859, (son of Erik H), Lena Grelsson Lindström (born Sjöberg) in 1845, Wilhelmina Grelsson Lindström of Fröå born in 1890, Mina Sellstedt of Fröå born in 1887 (daughter of Olof Larsson Sellstedt, Ida Sjöberg born in 1881 (daughter of Olof Bengtsson Sjöberg), Amanda Grelsson Lindström of Fröå born in 1882.

Sitting from left is Göran Lund born in 1869, Nils Magnus Forss born in 1854, Lars Olsson Sellstedt born in 1821 (father of Olof Larsson Sellstedt born in 1853) Erik Carlsson Hedbom of Sellsved, Kall born in 1855, Gustav Löding born in 1883 (son of Per Svensson Löding), Nickolaus Höglund of Fröå born in 1871.  

Standing in the front row is Johanna Sellstedt of Fröå born in 1879 (daughter of Olof L.  Sellstedt) and her sister Anna Maria Sellstedt, who was born in 1894.

I asked the photography department in the museum to separate this photograph, so that I could get a more close up view of the workers, and I think it turned out good.  This photograph is in the museum, but Oscar Löding has the original.

Anders Sjöberg
Table 143 (464)

Anders Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Anders Sjöberg 
	B
	Feb 12, 1841
	
	Company Worker in Fröån

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	June 24, 1863 
	
	

	S
	Helena Rödin 
	B
	Oct 12, 1840
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Bernhard Nikolaus Sjöberg 
	B
	Oct 1, 1862
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anna Märta Sjöberg 
	B
	Oct 1, 1862
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Jonas Sjöberg 
	B
	Nov 16, 1865
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Agnes Sjöberg 
	B
	Dec 16, 1867
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Bengt Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 9, 1870
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Johan Petter Sjöberg 
	B
	Apr 8, 1874 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1875
	
	

	E7
	Johan Gustaf Sjöberg 
	B
	Jan 1, 1876
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E8
	Anders Gustaf Sjöberg 
	B
	Apr 19, 1879
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


The family emigrated to America on July 6, 1881

Tenant Contract

The lease of Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company Farm No. 152 in Åre Parish is taken over by Anders Sjöberg for the following conditions:

In leasehold for the farm tenant shall annually pay forty five (45) Riksdaler, which total necessarily cash must be paid at the latest July 1, also all taxes and burdens that falls on this farms portion.

For work under haying time shall the payment is calculated exact with the Copper Mining Company other worker, but shentire XE "shentire"  earnings depart from the debt Sjöberg to the Copper Mining Company on this date has.

The commencement of this contract is April 15th of this year and are by the same 2 exact copies instituted, of which the Copper Mining Company and ignore taken where his and applies this contract a year calculate from this date to this date in 1877 and shall give notice happen before March 15, in the event one party does not in the same manner want remain.  

Huså on April 15, 1876 Jemtland Copper & Logging Company Gottfr. Engberg bled this contract I attest my complete satisfaction to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.  


Huså on above date



Anders Sjöberg

Assessment of the Company Farm No. 152 which is now contained under Såå farm in 1859

· A cottage, 11 alnars {22 feet} long, of which 3 alnars {6 feet} makes up ½ tithe porch, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 16 layers high.  Double board roof, bottom roof of board, floor built of planks, A fireplace and a baking oven with wood boards, post and spiell XE "spiell"  of iron, 2 windows in the cottage, one small window in the unfurnished attic, 2 doors with a lock, built of boards external on 2 sides.  It is 24 years old and in perfect condition.  

· A cottage, 9 alnars {18 feet} long with a lean against porch, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 15 layers high, double board roof, tongue and grooved board inner ceiling for the unfurnished attic.  A fireplace with murstäng XE "murstäng" 
 and poles of wood, 2 windows in the cottage of 7 square and 1 smaller on attic, floor built of planks, 2 doors.  It is 8 years old and in perfect condition.  

· A small barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} long, 9½ alnars {19 feet} wide, 15 rows high and a added on to cover of board.  Roof and warm roof of board, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks.  No fireplace.  It has room enough for 5 cows and 20 to 25 sheep or goats.  It is 30 years old and in good condition.  2 smaller windows.  

· A feed shed by the old barn 8 alnars {16 feet} long, 7¼ alnars {14½ feet} wide, 14 layers high.  A new board roof and 1 rows new timber and new roof ridges, floor built of planks.  It is 29 years old, but was repaired this year.

· A barn against the above described by means of a haystack, 8½ alnars {17 feet} long, 7 alnars {14 feet} wide, 12 layers high, new The roof is built of board, floor of miscellaneous wood, is in him self very old but repaired this year.

· A boat house 6 alnars {12 feet} square with 4 corners, 9 layers high.  The roof is built of birch bark tree branches and land,

· 2 dry leaves and a baking oven.  It is 7 years old and in perfect condition.

· A cellar building with pit to cellar without stone walls, 5 alnars {10 feet} on all 4 sides, 8 layers high, The roof is built of board, floor by timber and plank.  a door with a lock, is repaired.  It is 20 years old.

· A summer barn 8 alnars {16 feet} with 4 corners, 7 layers high. The roof is built of birch bark tree branches and dirt.  It is old but provided with a new roof for 6 year afterwards.

· hay barns of which a new, all in good condition, and can together room enough for 12 loads of hay.

· A woodshed opposite wall by western cottage.  It has 3 walls and sloped roof of board.

· Croplands 1 ¼ malings of land, 11 3/4 malings of new land.  

· Fence 420 fathoms of fence.  

· During the last 5 years the tenant has cultivated nearly 8 malings of new land and there is still good access to cultivated land within the fence.  

· Mountains 24
load of hay annually within homeowner.

· Anm: This tenant has uppbrytit XE "uppbrytit"  any over one-half (½) maling land on the south side of than, which is located on Såå Byamens outlying land, and is not inhabited in this assessment records.  

Helena Sjöberg
Table 144 (466)

Helena Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D8
	Helena Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 16, 1845
	
	Helens lived in Fröån, until they emigrated to America on July 7, 1900.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1869
	
	

	S
	Nils Lindström 
	B
	Sep 3, 1843 
	Östbacken, Alsen
	mördad
 XE "mördad"  of son-in-law Nils was son of Field soldier Måns Lindström and his wife Brita Olsdotter.  They moved a few years after Nils was born in Åre.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Anna Brita Lindström 
	B
	Sep 6, 1869 
	
	Anna emigrated on June 19, 1887.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Magnus Gustaf Lindström 
	B
	Dec 1, 1871 
	
	Magnus emigrated on March 9, 1891.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Emma Carolina Lindström 
	B
	Dec 24, 1878 
	
	Emma emigrated on June 15, 1893.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Bengt Olof Lindström 
	B
	Aug 17, 1882
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Amanda Lindström 
	B
	Aug 17, 1882
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Vilhelmina Anna Kristina Lindström 
	B
	May 26, 1890
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Hereby is possible my son Nils Grellsson to uppgöra XE "uppgöra"  with Company Administrator Engberg of your building and House Reppratsjon that I have åkostad XE "åkostad"  during the time that I and my hired man had ownership rights to this farm building consisting of 2 hay barns, Hu XE "Hu"  reppratsjonen XE "reppratsjonen"  consisting of 1½ in than Torkbastuga
 and equipment in entrance hall Summer = barn and Wädbod XE "Wädbod" .  

The above buildings will go in calculation that goes to compensate for the debt 

wherein I maintain to the Huså Copper Mining Company according to Bank book 
and any amount over this shall be paid to my son Nils the right to utloga XE "utloga"  and signed for, 

that holds that I went what this with representative makes and sound.


The Gustaf Copper Mining Company on October 5, 1881



Brita Olsdotter

(466)
Witness: 
Erik Höglund

The undersigned on this date have received a payment of thirty-five (35) Riksdaler 5 Species for the above buildings etc. and for everything else and the debt is hereby eliminated.



Huså on October 10, 1881



Nils Grälsson

(466)
Witness: 
O.  Hedin




Olof Bloom

Nils eventually became the foster son of Grels Nilsson, and therefore was called Grellsson in surname, instead of Månsson Lindström.

Land Use Contract

The leasehold of Jemtlands Copper & Logging Company Farm No. 158 in Åre Parish is taken over by Nils Grelsson for the following condition:

The tenant shall annually pay fifty-seven (57) Riksdaler 5 Species in leasehold for the farm.  This total and all taxes and burdens that occur on this farm portion must be paid in cash by July 1 at the latest.

During haying time, Nils Grelsson is responsible that on place by Company Administrator is assigned to provide 2 weeks of work.

If this final lease amount and taxes and burdens not be paid on the specified date and occasion, the Copper Mining Company has the complete right to take over and receive enjoyment of the crops now being grown without the least bit of compensation to the farm cottage inside owner without any additional hearings.  

For these stipulated conditions, Nils Grelsson has the right to ask for his work earnings at another time of year that he finds good, however with the observation that the Company administration as wishes and can offer Grelsson is responsible for discontinuing his Copper Works job.

Grelsson is responsible during this coming summer upptaka XE "upptaka"  all in Fröån the prospective ore for a payment of 1.75 Riksdaler per day and this payment shall be deducted from the debt that he now has to the Copper Mining Company.  This also applies for haying work and the day money received for this is also calculated in exactly the same manner as received by the other Company Workers.

The commencement of this contract is April 15th of this year.  Two exact copies of this contract are made and the Copper Mining Company and the tenant each take their own.

The contract is applied and calculated from this date to this date in 1877 and notice shall be given before March 15th in the event one party does not want to continue in the same manner.


Huså on April 15, 1876



Jemtland Copper & Logging Company



Gottfr.  Engberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Husä on above date



Nils Grälsson

(467)
Witness:
Erik Nyberg 



0. S. Möllenhoff

Under approval of correctness by that in intermediate current invoice with the Copper Mining Company and me Nils Grelsson is debit and well written, 

the settlement has been made on this date that the annual lease from and including the 1st of January of this year shall be paid with forty Riksdaler then herein is 

included all taxes and burdens that on this farm him calculated except all personal to Royal Government comes as well as presterskap XE "presterskap" 
 etc.  

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I, Nils Grelsson, shall be put under an obligation to annually provide my father-in-law Bengt Sjöberg:

· Feed and fodder for a cow

· The right to plant 1 barrel of potatoes and sowing seed of ½ foot of grain within the farms fences

· The right to lodging 

· Tender and decent attention and care during impending old age and related illnesses

Free and voluntary arrival at agreement is hereby certified


Huså on May 14, 1881



Nils Gräls son of Fröån 

(468)
Witness:
Erik Höglund 



Olof Lif

Addition:  He has the right to freedom from work from now until the 31st of December of this year, after which time he is responsible discontinue him without some further reminder in work.  


September 8, 1877 of Engberg 

It is hereby arrived at agreement on January 4, 1884 that Nils Grelsson påbeynner XE "påbeynner"  timber cutting in Kolåsen now for 1 months time.  

Erik Sjöberg
Table 145 (468)

Erik Sjöberg5, Agnes Grönlund4, Agnes Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D9
	Erik Sjöberg 
	B
	June 12, 1848 
	
	Erik lived for a time in Vardö, Norway, and their first two children were born there.  Afterwards they came back and lived in Fröå until they moved to Trångsviken, Alsen, where their youngest child was born.  

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	1872
	
	

	S
	Marie Matilda Sellström 
	B
	Aug 17, 1851 
	Hammerfest, Norway
	

	
	
	D
	June 7, 1943
	Alsen
	

	El
	Auga Johanna Bertina Sjöberg 
	B
	Jan 23, 1871 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 25, 1956
	
	

	E2
	Anna Erika Sjöberg 
	B
	Jan 25, 1872
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Lisbet Sjöberg 
	B
	Mar 2, 1875 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1950
	
	

	E4
	Mathilda Sjöberg 
	B
	Sep 14, 1877 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 14, 1959
	
	

	E5
	Emma Kristina Sjöberg 
	B
	Jan 16, 1880 
	
	

	
	
	D
	July 5, 1911
	
	

	E6
	Ulrika Margareta Sjöberg 
	B
	Nov 19, 1882 
	
	Ulrika emigrated to the USA on August 14, 1905

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E7
	Bengt Otto Aug Sjöberg 
	B
	June 30, 1886 
	
	Bengt emigrated to the USA on February 21, 1906

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E8
	Hilma Elvira Sjöberg 
	B
	Oct 6, 1893 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 3, 1968
	
	


The tenant lease on Company Farm No. 156 in Åre Parish is taken over by Miner Erik Sjöberg for the following conditions:

1.  He shall annually pay 30 Riksdaler which cash shall be paid at the latest July 1, also all taxes and burdens that falls on this farms portion.  Under haying time is Erik Sjöberg responsible that on place by Company Administrator is assigned to provide 2 complete weeks of work.

Should this final lease amount and tax burden not be paid on the specified date and place, the Copper Mining Company has the complete right to take over and receive enjoyment of the crops being grown on the farm without the slightest compensation to the farm owner and without any additional hearings.

For these stipulated conditions, Sjöberg has the right to ask for him work duties for other time by year where he as for good find, however with observation, that then Company administration that wishes and can offer is Sjöberg responsible discontinue him in the Copper Mining Company job.


Huså on April 15, 1876



Jemtl Copper & Logging Company



Gottfrid Engberg




Erik Sjöberg

I attest my complete satisfaction with this contract to everyone and promise to faithfully fulfill the same.


Husä on above date



Erik Sjöberg

(469)
Witness: 
O. J. Hedin




Nils Grälsson

Under approval of the complete correctness of all that between me Erik Sjöberg and Huså Copper Mining is well written and debit in intermediate current invoice from and including the year 1875, has the contract made this day that from and including the beginning of last year, 

the lease amount for that farm I until now tillåtits XE "tillåtits"  inhabit, with calculated of the taxes and burdens which on the same him calculated, shall annually be paid with thirty six (36) Riksdaler, then I myself shall pay all expenditures for me and my people.

Should the above not pay the final lease amount every year with money or make an arrange to provide day work for the lease amount, I obligate and permit myself, that without any additional hearings or government engagement, that the Huså Company may take back the farm cottage for free disposal at any time they find appropriate.

It is acknowledged that we have arrived at agreement in a free and voluntary manner in the presence of the undersigned witnesses.  


Huså on January 4, 1884.



Erik Sjöberg

(469)
Witness: 
O. J. Hedin 



Nils Grälsson



Assessment of the Company Farm No. 156 now contained under Såå farm, year 1859.

· A cottage 10½ alnars {21 feet} long, of which the porch and a barn make up 3½ alnars {7 feet}, 8 alnars {16 feet} wide, 12 layers high.  Double board roof, tongue and groove intermediate grounds, carpenters roof in house, floors of planks, a fireplace with a baking oven, wood posts and damper of iron, 2 windows of 6/4, a smaller window in house and a the same on attic, 4 doors with 2 locks, stone foundation under and dirt foundation above cottage.  It is 54 years old, but repaired and provided with a new floor and ½ va XE "va"  roof 3 year ago.

· A barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} with 4 corners except a lean to cover against the feed shed, 15 layers high, double board roof with warm roof, unpainted and unfinished floor built of planks, floor of timber and planks.  A fireplace with well braced and wooden spikes, double door for a hay cart and double door for a barn, 2 smaller window.  It has room enough for 5 or 6 cows and 20 sheep or goats.  It is 7 years old and in perfect condition.

· A feed shed 12 alnars {24 feet} long with 4 alnars {8 feet} wide cover against a barn, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, 16 layers high, simple board roof, unpainted and unfinished by tälgd XE "tälgd" 
 wood with door and körbro XE "körbro" , and a door against a haystack, is old but repaired with 5½ new rows, new roof ridges and new roof for 3 year afterwards, is found now in good condition.  

· A granary 9¼ alnars {18½ feet} long, 9 alnars {18 feet} wide, 11 layers high, partitioned into a woodshed on the north end, 4 alnars {8 feet} wide threshing barn, The roof is built of unpainted and unfinished boards, a baking oven and split boards, 2 doors with 1 stockläs XE "stockläs" .  It is 2 years old.

· 1/3 portion of a barn with Isac Isacsson and Grels Berg.

· A summer barn 7 alnars {14 feet} on all 4 sides.  Roof of boards is old and in bad condition.

· Croplands 

· ½ maling land and 

· 5 ¾ malings of new land.  

· Fence 138 fathoms of fence.  

· Mountains 

· 12 loads of hay within the fence, 

· 1 load of hay in Rönningen, 

· ½ load from Pipmyran {Pip Swamp}, 

· for a total of 13½  loads of hay and slough grass.

· During the last 5 years the tenant has cultivated 4 malings of new land.  

· Within the farm boundaries there is still a lot of good land that can be cultivated.

Photograph (471)

Erik Sjöberg born on June 12, 1848.  He worked at the Trångsvikens steam sawmill for many years.  He was a day laborer.

This photograph is an enlargement of a portion of a photograph of the work team at the Trångsvikens steam sawmill.  The Jämtland County Museum’s photo department did this fökstoringen XE "fökstoringen" 
.

Brita Lena Noraeus
Table 146 (472)

Brita Lena Noraeus5, Lisa Jonsdotter4, Märeta Essing3, Anders Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Brita Lena Noraeus 
	B
	Dec 27, 1817
	
	Brita lived in Såå, Björnänge.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Mar 1854
	
	

	S
	Anders Svensson 
	B
	Aug 30, 1825 
	Undersåker
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 3, 1892
	
	

	E1
	Lars Abraham Andersson 
	B
	June 9, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 16, 1928
	
	


I {Daniel Jacobsson of Såå} with the agreement and consent of my dear wife {Brita Ersdotter} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to farmhand (Anders Svensson} and his wife {Brita Lena Noreus of Hårbörsta}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights, 

partly inherited and partly acquired, 

to one-half of Company Farms No. 1 and  No. 2 in the Village of Såå consisting of 15/32 portion of a taxable acre

for a mutually agreeable purchase amount of two thousand (2,000) Riksdaler.  

This total profits from this day and the farm buyer the 1st of next May, 

also which I reserve, 

that ½ Reserved Rights annually consist of by the buyer to my mother Märta Persdotter, 

according to their annual Reserved Rights contract of October 6, 1846 in resemblance for which I am bound to constitute, 

and provided my mother self permit under this transaction be satisfied of farm know come that sold to oskyld XE "oskyld" 
 one as va XE "va"  that with that, without some addition.  

For the fulfillment of these terms and condition, I surrender 

this ½ of this portion of a farm 

with all of the buildings and land and everything else that now belongs to the farm or can be legally obtained in the future, 

wet as well as dry, 

and legally purchased by Anders Svensson and his wife {Brita Lena Noreus} 

as their rightful and legally acquired property for himself, his children and his heirs, 

the right to use and occupy, 

and give them condition that request of this him make receive and security.  


Såå on June 23, 1859.


Seller:
Daniel Jakobsson 



Brita Ersdotter


Buyer:
Anders Svensson 



Brita Lena Noreus

(472)
Witness: 
Erik Ol XE "Ol" ofsson of Såå



Erik Malmsten of Såå

I attest my complete satisfaction with the above Reserved Rights benefits to everyone.  



Märta Persdotter of Såå 

I {Anders Svensson} hereby knowingly release and sell my farm to widow {Sara Nilsdotter}.

This i XE "i" ncludes my ownership rights to eighteen refvar of land 

by the summer mountain pasture 

my possession on the south side of Ähresjön under the name of Qvitslevaln 
from my ownership rights to taxable Company Farm No. 1 and 2 consisting of 15/32 portion of an acre, 

for a mutually agreeable purchase amount of one hundred (100) Riksdaler.  

hereby eliminated, 

and the buyer has the right during the summertime he has to his cattle in the summer mountain pasture take necessary fuel in proximity by valn XE "valn" , 

and as an annual property payment for this severance 

the buyer (Anders Svensson and Brita Lena Noreus} shall give 

the seller (Daniel Jakobsson and Brita Ersdotter} 

the right to request and receive a mortgage on this farm without any additional hearings.  

That which lunda XE "lunda"  this transaction is made and agreement is arrived at as acknowledged with our signatures.  


Brattland on February 10, 1870.  


Seller:
Anders Svensson of Såå


Buyer:
Sara Nilsdotter

(472)
Witness: 
Jonas Larsson and 



Johan Ersson of Brattland

Purchase Agreement

I {Anders Svensson} with the agreement and consent of my wife {Brita Lena Norues} hereby knowingly release and sell our farm to worker (Elias Grelsson} and his wife {Kerstin Ersdotter of Såå}.

my ownership rights to Company Farm No. 1 and 2 in Såå consisting of 15/32 taxable acre of, which i XE "i" ncludes the following privileges and benefits:

1. That from this farm under to make contained within in the Village of Såå in 1866 allocated cultivated land covered with gravel between Main road and Åresjön, and as a boundary in the east against Daniel Jakobsson and to the west against Anders Westerbergs distributed grants to builders for improvements to farms property.  

2. To cultivated land and summer mountain pasture barn on the south side Åresjön receive from the lakeshore against Daniel Jakobsson contained within the east and to the west against into to lake running down the slope and in south against a steep slope.  Altogether 5 malings in expanse and of Farm possessions old summer mountain pasture called Qvitslevallen, is the portion thereof which is located east of the now on pasture standing hay barn and against Daniel Jakobsson  revised property line and width from this revised property line on both the south and north side by pasture that width makes up from the referred for hay barn to the same revised property line in the east and of Farm forest haymaking receive Klingermyran {Klinger Swamp}
 of 2 loads and Tomasmyrrönningen 1 load meadow manor house, and share in Eggtorpet XE "Eggtorpet" 
 and necessary roads that are required.  

3. The farmer receives forest to farms all necessities and pasture for the cattle that are born in the winter on the grants cottages.

4. in common  with farm on hem region as well as the supplemental land.

These buildings and land with all of the ownership rights are received by the buyer on this date for an agreed upon purchase amount of nine hundred (900) Riksdaler, which is paid in cash on this date and which is this signed for by each of us.

As a property payment for this farm, the buyer and the seller have additionally arrived at agreement that a payment of six (6) Riksdaler each year shall be made on May 1. 

For the fulfillment of these conditions, I {Anders Svensson} surrender my ownership rights to the above homestead 

and be able to down and it is hereby legally purchased by the buyer that of this ask for himself make acquired, 

the reason why I the buyer hold my Purchase Agreement.



Åre and Såå on February 9, 1885


Seller:
Anders Svensson of Såå

I attest my complete satisfaction with this transaction to everyone and this deed is acknowledged after agreement.


Acknowledged on date from above


Buyer:
Elias Grelsson Såå 

The correctness was acknowledged in the presence of the undersigned witnesses:

(474)
Witness:
Benjamin Hansson 



Merit Persdotter of Såå

Photograph (474)

Lars Abraham’s son Anders Larsson lived on this farm, and the came in relatives have in possession through Anders Svensson purchase 1864-65.

From “Swedish Goods and Farmer” 1939

Anne Nilsdotter
Table 147 (475)

Anne Nilsdotter5, Nils Nilsen4, Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Anne Nilsdotter 
	B
	1808

	
	
	D
	

	
	
	M
	

	S
	Ole Nilsen Eklo "Ausen"
	B
	

	
	
	D
	

	E1
	Martinus Olsen Lyng/Prestmo 
	B
	Jan 12, 1838 

	
	
	D
	Apr 20, 1912


It has been said that the wrong father was named for Martinus, and that Anne received a sum of money to disappear from the house.

Photograph (475)

The Prestmo family

Top row from left  

· Karen Henrikke born on June 17, 1891, 

· Marianne Kristine born on August 1, 1880, 

· Peter Halvdan born on April 27, 1882, 

· Anton Julius born on October 1, 1884, 

· Marie Karoline born on August 11, 1888.

Bottom row from left.  

· Hermann Alfred born on March 25, 1894

· Ivar Aneus born on June 25, 1859

· Johan born November 14, 1900,

· Ingeborg-Anna born in Storstad on February 17, 1855 and

· Ingrid Sofie Prestmo born in 1898.

Ivar Aneus was the son of Martinus Olsen Lyng/Prestmo Table 147

Reidar Prestmo of Verdal, Norway loaned me this photograph, and the photograph on the next page of the Prestme Farm.

Agnes Olsdotter
Table 148 (476)

Agnes Olsdotter5, Berit Nilsdotter4, Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Agnes Olsdotter 
	B
	Aug 6, 1815 
	
	Agnes lived in Bredingsvald and Dillanv.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	May 17, 1835
	
	

	S
	Anders Mikkelsen Ekren 
	B
	July 21, 1810 
	Dillanvald
	Anders second marriage on November 19, 1857 was to Serianna Mortensdotter Vestgrunn born March 23, 1813 and died after 1865.

	
	
	D
	Nov 23, 1861
	Dillanvald
	

	El
	Marta Dillenget 
	B
	Sep 18, 1835 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 8, 1882
	
	

	E2
	Beret Dillenget 
	B
	Aug 10, 1838 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 24, 1843
	
	

	E3
	Olaus Dillenget 
	B
	July 26, 1841 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Oct 30, 1846
	
	

	E4
	Mikal Dillenget 
	B
	July 22, 1844 
	
	t.  Trondheim July 10, 1868

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E5
	Olaus Dillenget 
	B
	Oct 10, 1846 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 11, 1897 
	Kvernmo
	

	E6
	Hanna Birgitte Dillenget 
	B
	Oct 23, 1853 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Sep 28, 1863
	
	

	E7
	Anneus Dillenget 
	B
	Oct 12, 1855 
	
	

	
	
	D
	May 20, 1889 
	Strinden
	


Photograph (476)

A photograph of the Prestmo farm in Verdal, Norway in older times.

In 1862 Dillenget or blacksmith shop under Dillan rented out to the widow of Smith Worker Anders Mikkelsens for 1 year for 6 Species daler who then had obligations for her stepchildren.  

Dillenget is now better known as Lilleenget.  

In 1886 he traded the place for the Kvernmo Farm, 

and Per Spellman moved to Lilleenget.  

Anders Mikkelsen was a blacksmith by occupation, and soon taught Olaus who became a very good blacksmith.  

Olaus handcrafted different tools that were used in agriculture and other driving.  

He also produced tools that he later sold to earn a little extra money.  

From Verdals (Norway) Book.

Ola Larsen "Ola Jale"
Table 149 (477)

Ola Larsen "Ola Jale"5, Berit Nilsdotter4, Agnes Essing3, Nils Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Ola Larsen "Ola Jale" 
	B

D
	Nov 13, 1818 
	
	Ola lived in Bredingsvald and in Jale.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 6, 1840
	
	

	S1
	Kjersti Rasmusdotter Breding 
	B
	Sep 27, 1817 
	Ulvild
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 15, 1880
	
	

	El
	Marta Olsdotter 
	B
	Dec 29, 1840 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Feb 6, 1887 
	
	

	E2
	Lars Olsen 
	B
	Aug 25, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 25, 1848
	
	

	E3
	Lars Olsen 
	B
	May 18, 1850
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E4
	Bergitte Olsdotter 
	B
	Apr 23, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 20, 1938
	
	

	E5
	Johan Olsen 
	B
	Feb 27, 1857 
	Jale 
	That. t. Trondheim July 13, 1881

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S2
	Marta Pedersdotter Ulvild 
	B
	Sep 20, 1843 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1936
	
	

	E6
	Ole Marius Olsen 
	B
	Aug 22, 1883 
	Jale
	Ole died of diphtheria.  

	
	
	D
	Dec 10, 1890 
	
	

	E7
	Karoline Olsdotter 
	B
	Jan 10, 1866 
	Kall
	Karoline's father was Ole Danielsen from Norway.  

	
	
	D
	Aug 9, 1870 
	Kall
	

	E8
	Maren Anna Olsdotter 
	B
	May 8, 1871 
	
	Maren emigrated to the USA on August 17, 1899.  Her father was Olof Larsson Bergqvist.

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E9
	Dina Petrine Olausdotter/Westerberg 
	B

D
	1876
	
	Dina's father was Olaus Westerberg.


Lars Olsen {E3} was a farmhand in Breding in 1865, and a farmhand in Östgård in 1875.  The following year he probably moved from Verdal, Norway.  Or did he emigrate?
Marta was a spunky aunt even in her older days, and Jens told me that she used to climb up on the roof and fasten shingles because she thought that her daughter could slip up there.  

It was about 1930 and she was about 85 years old.  

Marta {E1} had three children before her marriage to Ola {D2}.  Their names were Karoline {E7}, Maren Anna {E8}, and Dina Petrine {E9}.
She was a woman who knew what she wanted.  “She ruled like a general”, says Jens Brönstad.  Jens remembers her well.

Photograph (478)

Bergitte Olsdotter was born on April 23, 1854 and married Jonas Landén from Näskott who was born on November 6, 1853.  They resided in Landverk, Alsen.  

I have borrowed this photograph from Britt-Inger Hamrin of Frösön.

From Verdal (Norway) Historielag Year 1978

Marta Berg and Ola, he was "askeladden XE "askeladden" 
" from Ulvilla.

The year is 1870.  Two youths are on a trip by foot, from a small industrial area to a larger - from Ulvilla to the Husä Works in Kall.  

They have heard that they should be able to earn good money there.  

Rightly enough it turns out that they can earn a little at Ulvilla also, and some day the time will come that there will be many people there.  

Millers are very busy in these times, especially when the farmhands from Röra XE "Röra"  and Inderöy XE "Inderöy"  come with loads of grain that they must grind during the nights to keep up.  

Then it is possible to make money to get along with.  

In order to use up the hay by spring, 

they release the goats so that they are able to eat from the hay stacks that the horses will receive while they are tied along the sides near the house.  

Other comes to Ulvilla to get coarse home-spun wool and foot stamped.  

It is not free of problems so that some are jealous of this activity in Ulvilla, 

among others there is found a song of Ulvill settlers which goes 

"Dei stamper XE "stamper"  and stel XE "stel" , perse XE "perse"  and mel XE "mel" , lyg XE "lyg"  and bedreg XE "bedreg" 
".

The two who will go a long ways on foot are Marta and Ola Ulvilden.

She was born on September 20, 1843 and he was born on August 21 1850.  

The parents were Peder Jakobsen born March 24, 1820, son of Jakob Olsen Vangstadvald and Marta Mikkelsdotter, and Anne born November 26, 1825 daughter of miller and bachelor Daniel Kristoffersen Ulvild born 1799 and Malens Olsd.  Ulvild.  

Marta and Ola are not the first ones to travel.  

There are many that try their luck in Jämtland, 

and they do well, 

for there is no other way to get ahead, 

especially for common ordinary people of both genders "on ste XE "ste"  himself" as hay workers or rakstra XE "rakstra"  or in the mines.  

When one is young, a lot can happen.  

Marta determines that she must turn her nose toward home first.  

On May 8, 1871 her next child, a daughter, was born to the world.  

The child is baptized on July 23, 1871 and given the name Maren Anna.  

The father is 20-year-old bachelor worker Ole Larsen Bergqvist.  

After four or five years go by, Marta goes across the {Norwegian?} border again. 

The results are a new daughter: Dina Petrine Olausdotter Westerberg.  

Now Marta must support her and she does so with spinning, weaving, and lefsa baking, all things that she has learned as a child at Daniel’s home.  

As a woman baker in Över-Bragn XE "Bragn" , she meets her husband, Ola Jali.  

He is 25 years old and the son of Lars Pedersen Storvukuvald and his wife Beret Nisdotter.  

Marta moves to Jalet with her two children and gets her own home.

Jalet lies in a clearing in the forest between Ekerknoppen and Bergvola with a view to the east to Hellbackarna. 

They had a son Marius in this marriage, but he died young of diphtheria.  

Maren Anna, or Anna as she was called, did not stay in Jalet for long.  

After she was 18 years old on August 17, 1899 she emigrated to California.  

She travels alone, a Negro meets her at the railroad station and drove her by car where she wished to go.  

It was said that she was both beautiful and well dressed.

She had inherited it.

After a while she married Admiral 0' Brien.  

A well-known emigrant visited her and wrote home later saying that Anna lived like a Queen.  

But she "had not forgotten her mother and half-sister at home”, who lived alone in Jalet after Ola died.

Each month, for as long as she lived, she sent some money to them, and quite often she also sent an America package.

I remember her well.  

Marta left home once or twice a week, either to get a little milk or to get an errand done.  

She had a manner that one did not question.  

For example, "Could you come and chop firewood for me in the morning?" It was not a question of whether or not you had time.  

During the winter she traveled on snow shoes.  

She stood very erect with a straight back and she was very healthy.  

I think that she was well over eighty when I saw her dance the hambo
 on the kitchen floor in her home.  

She was a little breathless afterwards and then she said: "You should have seen me in my twenties".  

She always liked music and she said that her maternal uncle (I think it was that), Jo Spelman, was very good at playing, and they had weddings in Ulvilla that he played in.  

She had many stories to tell and an unusually good memory.  

If she said something funny, or if anyone else said something funny, 

there came a short laugh and then she would slap her knees and spit.  

In 1931 Marta moved from Jalet and immediately afterwards the house was torn down.  

She moved into a cottage with Oline and Ole Evjen in Berge.  

Later they moved to Holmlimoen with Ingeborg and Jens Holmlimo.  

Marta died there in 1936.

Beret Samuelsdotter
Table 150

Beret Samuelsdotter5, Samuel Mikelsen4, Brita Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Beret Samuelsdotter 
	B

D
	1819
	
	Beret lived in Brenna, Sul

	
	
	M
	Oct 4, 1839
	
	

	S
	Nils Rasmussen Brändmo 
	B
	1810
	Lillemoen
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Elen Rebekka Sandness 
	B
	Oct 19, 1839
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Martinus Nilsen 
	B
	Aug 18, 1842 
	Garnesvald
	

	
	
	D
	May 12, 184?
	
	

	E3
	Zephanias Nilsen 
	B
	Nov 17, 1846 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 21, 1846
	
	

	E4
	Karen Sandness 
	B
	Mar 27, 1847 
	Sul
	

	
	
	D
	May 16, 1921 
	Åre
	

	E5
	Martha Sandness 
	B
	Oct 1, 1850 
	Sandnesset
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E6
	Nils Martin Sandness 
	B
	Oct 29, 1854 
	Bränden
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E7
	Bernt Anton Sandness 
	B
	May 17, 1858 
	Lillemovald
	

	
	
	D
	May 6, 1878
	
	

	E8
	Maria Cecilie Sandness 
	B
	June 11, 1864 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 4, 1865
	
	


Photograph (481)

Nils Martin Sandnes born on October 29, 1854 standing before the cottage in Klivlebakken in former Frol Municipality, about ½ mile from the center of Levanger.  
Man Arne Sandnes of Levanger loaned me this photograph.

In Verdals Historielags Årsbok för 1950 {Verdal’s History Book before 1950}, there is a small story of Nils Sandnesset, born in 1810, who lived on the barren place in Sandnesset.  I have taken the liberty of copying it below:

He was witty and playful, “tralla og song” {hummed and sang}, but was often hungry.  He never complains, but he “let berre vel” {lives very happy} XE "berre" 

 XE "vel" .  He planted potatoes one spring, but in 2-3 weeks he began to take them up again.  He could not do without them any longer.  But that did not bother him.
One time he was doing road work.  When the rest of the working crew sat down and ate their food, Nils went away in forest reason to hide himself, and when he returned he said: “nu hi ä etti mä så diger, at ä e knaft god te å arbe” {now I have eaten so much that I am hardly XE "knaft"  going to be able to work} XE "arbe"  (Nils had no food and consequently had not eaten).

Nils had care of the family mountain hay one time.  He pulled a hay toboggan, and the snow conditions were difficult and he became completely exhausted on the way to Ådalsvollen.  People lived there and he stopped to rest.  He got a little food, and then he became active again so he told them of his qualifications in eksersis XE "eksersis"  time.  Then he left pulling the hay toboggan again and they heard him singing far into the distance.  - Nils told 3 sildhau XE "sildhau"  about his difficult mountain trip one time.  
One time he was on business in Hegge in Verdalsören to buy pepper.  But Nils could not remember the name. - He explained to them that it was “no rundt og svart som hagel og skull brukas te å ta bort görsmaken ti pölsen” {round and black like small buckshot and is used to remove the sour taste in sausage}.
As an old man he was involved with the covering of the completed "Skjippbrua" or "St. Olavs bru XE "bru"  " {St. Olav’s Bridge}.  Some officials were examining the bridge.  Nils, who had an empty stomach as usual, quickly went to the eastern end, set himself down on the bridge and wrapped his legs around his neck and he rolled himself like a ball over and over across the bridge.  On the west side Nils jumped up and said “Gjörrå mä denne ätte, di karra” {Go ahead with your eating, you guys!}  The astonished gentlemen gave him a reward for "oppvisninga” XE "oppvisninga"  {his exhibition}, and that was just what he needed because he was then able to buy some food.

Anne Amundsdotter
Table 151 (483)

Anne Amundsdotter5, Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D1
	Anne Amundsdotter 
	B

D
	1828
	
	Anne lived in Stiklestadmoen

	
	
	M
	Jan 31, 1851
	
	

	S
	Olaus Larsen Bjartnesvald 
	B
	1824
	
	

	
	
	D
	Nov 9, 1879 
	
	Parish Constable

	El
	Lars Stiklestad 
	B
	Mar 2, 1851
	
	0 Bygdevekter

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anneus Olaussen 
	B
	Jan 13, 1854 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Dec 4, 1857
	
	

	E3
	Elling Olaussen 
	B
	Oct 9, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 10, 1865
	
	

	E4
	Bernt Olaussen 
	B
	Oct 9, 1858 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 14, 1865
	
	

	E5
	Anneus Olaussen 
	B
	Feb 28, 1861 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 9, 1865
	
	

	E6
	Anton Olaussen 
	B

D
	Jan 12, 1867 
	Lund
	t.  Sweden June 24, 1886

	E7
	Bernt Olaussen 
	B
	Nov 24, 1869
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E8
	Ole Olaussen 
	B

D
	June 11, 1864
	
	t.  Sweden January 6, 1883


Anton and Ole came to Ås XE "Ås"  {Ridge} Parish and lived there until they both emigrated to America.  Anton emigrated on May 13, 1893 and Ole on March 20, 1886.
Peder Amundsen
Table 152 (483)

Peder Amundsen5, Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D2
	Peder Amundsen 
	B

D
	Oct 2, 1830
	
	Peder lived in Tronesvald

	
	
	M
	Oct 28, 1853
	
	

	S
	Berit Olsdotter 
	B
	Sep 1, 1831
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	El
	Kristina Pedersdotter 
	B
	Nov 29, 1858 
	Ören
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E2
	Anne Pedersdotter 
	B
	Jan 25, 1862 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Jan 1, 1866
	
	

	E3
	Anna Oline Pedersdotter 
	B
	Oct 5, 1867 
	Tronesvald
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


I have found a little information on Peder Amundsen and wife.

Johannes Dahl letters were among other things that Peder had a very good place and that he worked as a merchant in eggs and herring etc., which he sent to Sweden.

He purchased eggs and stored them using his own methods so that they stayed fresh during the winter and then he sold them for a good profit in Östersund.  He had a very economical disposition.  He saved money and became a prosperous man.  The place is now located down by Trones.

There was a legal estate distribution after their deaths dated November 20, 1917.

Oline Pedersdotter Endresen was married to business traveler Kristian Endresen of Trondheim.


Kristine Pedersdotter, Austad, deceased
Her child Peder Rasmussen Austad.  He lives in Australia.
Ragnhild Austad address:  gross.  H.  Hanssen, Nordregaten Trondheim
Otelie Austad address:  3 J. K.  Lykke, Trondheim
Helge Austad Trones Verdal, Norway (1895) married to Sofie Minsås born in 1893
Valborg Austad Drammens Road 93 Oslo
Gudrun Austad 17 years old. 
Mellemvegen 30 Trondheim

Aslaug Austad 15 years old. 
Mellemvegen 30 Trondheim

Sivert Amundsen
Table 153 (484)

Sivert Amundsen5, Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Sivert Amundsen 
	B
	Nov 19, 1833
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	
	
	M
	1862
	

	S
	Berit Sivertsdotter
	B
	Oct 28, 1830
	

	
	
	D
	Aug 21, 1914
	Hallemseng

	E1
	Live Severine Sivertsdotter
	B
	Sep 15, 1862
	

	
	
	D
	1932
	


Sivert (D3) lived in Hallemsenget and purchased land in lower Hallemsenget for 1,092 Riksdaler and was confirmed.
Photograph (484)

Liva Severine Sivertsdotter and her husband Johannes Johnsen Kolshaug.
This photograph is from Knut Enes of Vuku.


Kolshaug  dated  October 13, 1886

Invitation

Then we the undersigned legally enter into marriage, so it is the request of the following named persons that if you will be so kind as to meet for our wedding on Friday on October 29th at 9 AM in the at the wedding house "Moenget", and then to go with us to Church to attend our wedding ceremony and then to go with us back to the wedding house for a fresh cup of coffee and a little lunch.  
Moenget 
Sivert with wife and son
Kolshaug
John, son Jens and daughter Grethe
Leklemsvald
Man with wife and children
Moe
Nikkolai with wife and children
Stiklestad 
Peder with wife and son
Ögstad
Ole with wife and child
   “
Nils with daughter Lovise
Moenget
Johannes with wife
Skaget
Peder with wife and daughter Oline
   “ 
Rasmus with wife and children
Jermstadvald 
Olaus with wife and children
Grundenvald 
Ole with wife and children
Haukaa
Andreas with wife and children
   “
Johannes with wife and children
Fiksevald
Anders with wife
  “
John Johannessen with children
Semsvald
Peder with wife and son Johan
Fleskhusvald
Nils with wife
Haug
Seffanias with wife and children
Stiklestadvald
Elling with wife and also Karen

Hägstad
Johannes Hanssen
Stiklestad
Widow Ragnhild
Fagerhöi
Bernt Olausen
Signed by:


Liva Severine Sivertsdatter 

and Johannes Johnsen



Moenget






Kolshaug
Photograph (486)

Purchase Contract

I {Berret Sivertsdatter Hallemseng}, hereby acknowledge to have sold to Johannes Johnsen Kolshaug the me and the deceased man Sivert Amundsens mountain dwelling the following deed of transfer on March 16, 1889 belong partitions
Hallemsenget g.  nr.  36, was b. nr.  
51 c of debt
48 Species
“
“





51 i XE "i" 
“

37 Species
in Värdalens jurisdiction for the following conditions:
1. The sold property is taken over on this date for usage and enjoyment for the payment of the money.  Thirteen hundred (1,300.00) Riksdaler, which total makes up the seller’s debt, as accordingly taken over by the buyer and is liquidated in named purchase amount.

2. I commerce medfölger XE "medfölger"  also without increased expenses for the buyer the referenced property standing house and all property and chattel that belong to the seller.

3. The buyer shall without expense for the seller provide this lodging, support and take care of until her death, and Kronors.  20.00 syve
 XE "syve"  Kronors in cash each year.  Should it happen that the property the buyer by another tenant due to the seller’s death, shall by selling property have the following Reserved Rights: 

· 20.00 - syve XE "syve"  Kronors each year in cash
· A room to live in 
· Three (3) faane XE "faane"  to k1 potatoes
· One hundred (100) kilograms of barley 
· One hundred (100) kilograms of oats
· 2 liters of freshly strained milk each day 
· Eighteen (18) kilograms of pork
4. Additional points to the day between klöber XE "klöber" 
 and the seller established this kaar XE "kaar" 
 contract.

Deed of transfer adstedes XE "adstedes"  by the seller when it is desired, and then the related expenses and all secondary reposing births on the property are equipped by the buyer.

Hallemseng on October 22, 1906


Seller:
Berret S.  Hallemseng




M.p. XE "M.p."   h.p XE "h.p" .


Buyer:
Johannes Johnsen of Kolshaug


Witness:
J.  Dahl



Th.  Elnes
(487)

Kaar Contract

In henhold XE "henhold"  between Berret S. Hallemseng and Johannes J. Kolshaug 
have established this purchase contract on this Hallemsenget property, 
shall be sold by Berret Hallemseng by named property obtained for the following Reserved Rights: 
· Rooms to live in
· 20.00 Kronors 

· to kl XE "kl"  potatoes
· One hundred (100) kilograms of oats

· One hundred (100) of new barley
· Eighteen (18) kilograms of pork 
All the above are annual amounts

· 2 liters of freshly strained milk per day until her death
This contract is contingent only on the conditions to property the buyer by another tenant end the current.  Additional provisions to the purchase contract.


Hallemsenget on October 22, 1906


Berret S. Hallemseng M.p. XE "M.p." h.p XE "M.p.h.p" .




Johannes J.  Kolshaug 


(488)
Witness:
J.  Dahl



Th.  Elnes

Jonetta Amundsdotter Gulstad
Table 154 (488)

Jonetta Amundsdotter Gulstad5, Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Jonetta Amundsdotter Gulstad 
	B

D
	Sep 29, 1836 
	Jonetta lived on the Rise farm in Ogndalen.

	
	
	M
	Oct 17, 1861 
	

	S
	Johannes Johannessen Gravås/Ris 
	B

D
	Apr 9, 1832

July 9, 1887 
	

	El
	Elen Birgitta Johannesdotter 
	B

D
	July 10, 1863 
	Elen emigrated in 1884

	E2
	Jon Aurelius Johannessen 
	B
	Feb 24, 1866
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	E3
	Julianne Johannesdotter 
	B
	Aug 14, 1869
	

	
	
	D
	
	

	E4
	Anneus Johannessen 
	B

D
	Dec 13, 1871 
	Anneus took the name Trana.

	E5
	Ingeborg Oline Johannesdotter 
	B

D
	Mar 13, 1875
	

	E6
	Johanna Johannesdotter 
	B

D
	Mar 13, 1875 
	Johanna was unmarried.

	E7
	Peter Anton Johannessen 
	B

D
	May 17, 1878

July 1, 1897
	Peter drowned while floating timber down the river.


Johannes Amundsen
Table 155 (488)

Johannes Amundsen5, Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Johannes Amundsen 
	B

D
	Nov 20, 1840
	
	Johannes lived in Levanger.

	
	
	M
	July 5, 1877 
	
	

	S
	Bine Jokumine Rasmusdotter 
	B

D
	Dec 23, 1842
	
	.


I have not found any children from this marriage, and perhaps they were childless.
Photograph (489)

From left: Ida, and Anneus Trana born in 1871, Anneus' grandchild Ingebjörg born in 1915 with son Asbjörn, son-in-law Ragnvald Christensen and daughter Tora and their daughter Ranveig and a girl from Follafoss.  Table 154.  I have borrowed this photograph from Odd Moe of Sparbu.

Photograph (489)

Anton Jermstad born on March 13, 1885 and Julie Edvardsdotter Langmark Table 156

Mette Pauline Kvelstad born on May 2, 1864 Table 157

Martha Amundsdotter
Table 156 (490)

Martha Amundsdotter5, Beret Pedersdotter4, Agnes Ridderberg3, Brita Essing2, Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D6
	Martha Amundsdotter 
	B

D
	1845
	
	Martha lived in Hammer Nedre. XE "Nedre" 

	
	
	M
	June 9, 1871 
	
	

	S
	Olaus Peder Jermstad 
	B
	Dec 2, 1841 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 1915
	
	

	E1
	Anneus Jermstad 
	B

D
	Feb 27, 1868
	
	

	E2
	Petter Jermstad 
	B
	June 10, 1870
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E3
	Anna Jermstad 
	B

D
	1876
	
	Maid on the Valstad farm.

	E4
	Marie Othelie Jermstad 
	B

D
	1882 
	
	

	E5
	Anton Jermstad 
	B
	Mar 13, 1885 
	
	

	
	
	D
	1918
	
	


Anneus Jermstad’s mother was Jonetta Eriksdotter Årstadvald, who was born on August 15, 1843.

Marie Othelie Jermstad lived in Frydheim and died in Henning in 1973.
Zephanias Bardosen
Table 157 (490)

Zephanias Bardosen5, Randi S.  Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D3
	Zephanias Bardosen 
	B

D
	June 9, 1839
	
	Zephanias lived in Lanesskogen.

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S1
	Marie Kristine Jakobsdotter 
	B
	Oct 8, 1842 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Mar 12, 1927
	
	

	E1
	Mette Pauline Zephaniasdotter Kvelstad 
	B

D
	May 2, 1864 

1941
	
	

	E2
	Amalie Olianne Sefaniassen 
	B
	1871
	
	

	
	
	D
	1907
	
	

	E3
	Ragnhilde Bardoline Sefaniassen 
	B

D
	1873

1956
	
	

	E4
	Johan Edvard Martin Lanesskog 
	B

D
	1874

1960
	
	

	E5
	Leonarda Josefine Sefaniassen 
	B
	1878
	
	

	
	
	D
	1961
	
	

	E6
	Simon Martin Lanesskog 
	B
	1879
	
	

	
	
	D
	1937
	
	

	E7
	Wilhelm Teodor Lanesskog 
	B
	1882
	
	

	
	
	D
	1958
	
	

	E8
	Regnor Man Edvin Lanesskog 
	B
	1885
	
	

	
	
	D
	1973
	
	


The mother of Mette was Marit Pedersdotter Kvelstad born on September 30, 1835.
Martinus Bardosen
Table 158 (490)

Martinus Bardosen5, Randi S.  Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D4
	Martinus Bardosen 
	B
	Mar 18, 1842
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	Nov 9, 1866 
	
	

	S
	Beret Martha Halstensdotter 
	B
	May 27, 1844 
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Bernt Martin Stene/Balgård 
	B

D
	1867
	
	Bernt emigrated in 1893.

	E2
	Hans Severin Balgård 
	B
	Oct 2, 1870 
	
	

	
	
	D
	Apr 27, 1946
	
	

	E3
	Ragnhild Birgitta Balgård 
	B

D
	Sep 1, 1873 

1958
	
	

	E4
	Marius Balgärd 
	B
	July 14, 1879 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 1951
	
	

	E5
	Beret Marta Balgård 
	B
	1886
	
	

	
	
	D
	1979
	
	

	E6
	John Christoffer Balgård 
	B
	June 12, 1876 
	
	

	
	
	D
	June 25, 1946 
	Fossheim
	

	E7
	Anne Marta Balgård 
	B
	
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Martinus lived in Haganesset in 1865, Balgårdsöra in 1891 and Skogtröa in 1900.
Ragnhild {E3} came to Sul and Brennmoen in 1907 and then she married Jon.  She probably lived there until about 1952.  During her last years she lived in Verdal, Norway Ålderdomshem, and she died there in 1958.

Photograph (491)

Zephanias Bardosen born on June 9, 1839 and his wife Marie Kristine Jakobsdotter born on October 8, 1842  

The owner of this photograph is Harald Trohaug

Photograph (491)

Ragnhilde (Hilda) Sefaniassen born in 1873 and her husband Richard Strand born in 1878.  
This photograph was taken in 1890.

Photograph (492)

Zephanias Bardosen’s children and their better halves

Top row from left: 

· Jörgen Pareli Strand husband of Leonarda Josefine

· Wilhelm Lanesskog

· Regnor Lanesskog

· Johan or Simon?

· Ragnhilde’s husband Richard

Bottom row from left: 

· Wilhelm’s wife Helga Jakobsen

· Leonarda and Ragnhilde

Photograph (492)

Jon Rasmussen Brendmo born in 1880, his wife Ragnhild Bergitte born in Balfarm on September 1, 1873, and their son Rasmus who was born on February 12, 1908

Eliseus Bardosen
Table 159 (493)

Eliseus Bardosen5, Randi S.  Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1 

	D5
	Eliseus Bardosen 
	B

D
	Nov 13, 1845
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Kaja Forsnes?
	B
	
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	E1
	Simon Forsnes?
	B

D
	
	
	Simon was from Kaja's first marriage.


Eliseus lived in Fossnes, Skjoodehamn, and emigrated in 1910 with his wife Kaja.  He was then over 60 years old.
Ragnhild Birgitta Bardosen
Table 160 (493)

Ragnhild Birgitta Bardosen5, Randi S.  Ridderberg4, Samuel Ridderberg3, Brita Essing, 2 Agnis Nilsdotter1 & Måns Essing1
	D6
	Ragnhild Birgitta Bardosen 
	B
	Sep 13, 1849
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	

	
	
	M
	
	
	

	S
	Andersson?
	B
	
	
	

	
	
	D
	
	
	


Ragnhild Birgitta moved to Sweden in 1876 and according to her relatives should have been a resident in Sundsvallstrakten.

I have done a lot of research but have found nothing.  I hope to find some information on her later.

Photograph (493)

Hans Sverin Balfarm born on October 2, 1870 and his wife Bereth Martha Johannesdotter born on October 10, 1873
Table 158

Old Measures

Loose measure (the same as level teaspoonful) was a measure without packing or shaking.  
A firm measured means heaped measure.  
In firm measure, 1 barrel of grain = 36 kappers = 164.9 liters.

However, great care must be taken when it comes to old measures.  New measurement regulations have changed meaning through the centuries.  Measurements have, even though they had the same name, had different meanings in different Nordic countries.  For example a Fjärding (quarter) is a Norwegian measure that held 34.74 liters.  However, a Swedish Fjärding was 18.3 liters or a quartz bucket.  

What then was a Kronor?

The origin is in the 1500's when the king had more power to control and create taxes.

After the 1760's Sweden was divided into different districts.

The government symbol, year, district head’s initials, date, and denomination number were burned into all governments.  It was also used on the Lars-John’s barrel.

Even the government has had different meanings through the years, but the government which was in use during Lars-Johns time probably meant "sanctioned by the state" or "approved to be correct".  In that case proof that the article must be of the proper value.  

Gradually the metric system and decimal system came into the picture in the latter half of the 1800's.

The measurements were rounded off upwards or downwards according to the approved local rounding system.  

It can be interesting to study some old measures.

Old Measurements of Length and Distance:

	Swedish
	Metric
	English
	approximate  U.S.  equivalent

	Svensk Mil
	10.7 Kilometers (3,600 Enclosed)
	Swedish Mile
	6.6 Miles

	Pilskott
	228 Meters
	Arrow Shot
	249 Yards

	Musköthåll
	225 Meters
	Musket Hole
	246 Yards

	Riphäll
	50 to 60 Meters
	
	55 to 65 Yards

	Stenkast
	40 to 50 Meters
	Stone’s Throw
	44 to 55 Yards

	Spjutkast
	35 to 50 Meters
	Spear Throw
	38 to 55 Yards

	Enclosed
	2.97 Meters (1.67 Famn)
	Rod
	9.7 Feet

	Fjärdingsväg
	2.672 Meters (4.500 Alnars {9 feet})
	
	8.8 Feet

	Famnar
	1.78 Meters (3 Alnars { feet})
	Fathom
	5.8 Feet

	Alnars { feet}
	0.59 Meters ( 2 Fot)
	
	23 Inches

	Fot
	0.296892 Meters
	
	11.7 Inches

	Kvarter
	0.15 Meters (¼ Alnars { feet})
	
	5.9 Inches

	Verktum
	0.025 Meters
	
	1 Inch

	Fingerbredd
	2.47 Centimeters
	Finger Width
	1.0 Inch

	Verklinje
	0.00206175 Meters
	
	0.1 Inches

	Knogmätt, Krympaln
	62.64 Centimeters
	Knuckle Length
	24 Inches


After 1699 the distance between inns was supposed to be one Swedish mile.

Yxkast, dagsled, kyndelsmil, näverskomil, are other unidentified measures.

Old Measurement of Area:

	Swedish
	Metric
	English
	approximate  U.S.  equivalent

	Tunna
	4,963.568 square Meters
	Acre
	1.2 Acre or 53,400 SF

	Spannland
	2,468.284 square Meters 
(½ Acre)
	
	0.6 Acre or 26,700 SF

	Halvspannland
	1,234.142 square Meters 
(½ Spannland)
	
	0.3 Acre 13,350 SF

	Maling
	1/6 Acre
	
	0.2 Acre or 8,900 SF

	Trög
	1/6 Acre or 1 Maling
	
	0.2 Acre or 8,900 SF

	Fjärdingsland
	617.071 square Meters 
(¼ Spannland)
	
	0.15 Acre or 6,640 SF

	Kappland
	154.3 square Meters
	
	0.0375 Acre or 1,660 SF

	Kannland
	88.15 square Meters
	
	948 SF


Old Dry Measures: (1 Liter = 0.908 Quarts in Dry Measure)

	Swedish
	Metric
	English
	approximate  U.S.  equivalent

	Läst
	24 barrel
	Ton
	100 Bushels

	Barrel
	146.55 Liters
	Barrel
	4 Bushels

	Spann
	73.3 Liters (½ barrel)
	?
	2 Bushels (½ barrel)

	Fjärding
	18.32 Liters 
(¼ Spann or 4 Kappe)
	Quarter
	0.5 Bushels (1/8 barrel)

	Ask
	6.8 Liters
	Box
	1.5 Gallons

	Kappe
	4.58 Liters
	Peck
	1.0 Gallons

	Kanna
	2.617 Liters (or 1/10 of a Swedish kubikfot)
	Tankard
	0.6 Gallons (or 0.09 American cubic foot)


Another ordinary measure was the bushel, but here we are not able to determine a definite amount.  It is well-known that it had different meaning in different parts of Sweden from the 1200's until it was standardized in 1735.  In Jämtland a bushel appears to have been about 30 liters.

Old Measurements of Volume (Dry - 1 Liter = 0.908 Quarts in Dry Measure):

	Swedish
	Metric
	English
	approximate  U.S.  equivalent

	Fodder
	942.12 Liters
	
	26.75 Bushels

	Bryggspann
	735 Liters
	
	20.8 Bushels

	Pipa
	471 Liters
	
	13.5 Bushels

	Oxhuvud
	236 Liters
	OxHead
	6.75 Bushels

	Drittel, Basins
	157.02 Liters
	Basin
	4.48 Bushels

	Kista, Putty
	125.5 Liters 
	Chest, Kettle
	3.5 Bushels

	Hummerträ
	62 Liters
	
	1.75 Bushels

	Så
	41.87 Liters
	Tub
	1.2 Bushels

	Fingerborg, Ankare
	39.25 Liters
	Thimble, Anchor
	1.1 Bushels

	Balja
	50 to 150 
	Pod
	?

	Grepp, Handelsläst, Handfull, Hink
	10 to 12 Liters
	Grip, Handelsläst, Handful, Bucket
	2.3 to 2.7 Gallons

	Kopp, Krucka, Kutting
	15 to 39 Liters
	Cup, Jar, Pot
	3.4 to 8.9 Gallons

	Kar, Kagge
	12 to 15 Liters
	Keg
	2.7 to 3.4 Gallons

	Skå
	3 Liters
	Bowl
	0.7 Gallons

	Stop
	1.3 Liters
	
	1.2 Quarts

	Price
	0.5 Liters
	Pinch
	0.5 Quarts

	Bunke
	several Liters
	
	several Quarts

	Bägare
	seldom over two deciliters
	Goblet
	seldom over 0.2 Quarts

	Sillkärra, Rack load
	18 barrels
	Herring Cart
	

	Kolstig, Kolryss
	12 barrels or 19 hg Liters
	Coal Cart
	

	Gilling (Norwegian measure of hay)
	255 Kilograms
	
	562 Pounds

	Smörtunna
	132 to 136 Kilograms
	Butter barrel
	291 to 300 Pounds

	Vedfamn
	1 cubic Meter
	Cord of Wood
	35 cubic Feet


Liquids had a different measurement system from dry materials: (1 Liter = 1.057 Quarts in Liquid Measure)

Old Measurements of Liquids

	Swedish
	Metric
	English
	approximate  U.S.  equivalent

	Kanna
	2,617 Liters
	
	690 Gallons

	Tunna
	125.6 Liters
	Barrel
	33.2 Gallons

	Fjärding
	62.8 Liters
	
	16.6 Gallons

	Åtting
	31.4 Liters 
	
	8.3 Gallons

	Sextondel
	15.7 Liters
	
	4.15 Gallons

	Stop
	1.3 Liters
	
	1.37 Quarts

	Kvarter
	0.327 Liters (¼ Stop)
	Quart
	0.35 Quarts

	Jungfru
	0.08 Liters
	
	0.1 Quarts


Valid measures in the days copper had to be weighed: 
	Swedish
	Metric
	English
	approximate  U.S.  equivalent

	Skeppspund viktualievikt
	20 lisspund
	Shipping Pound, Provisional Weight
	 376 Pounds

	Lispund
	8.5 Kilograms
	
	18.8 Pounds

	Stapelvikt
	6.8 Kilograms or 0.8 Lispund
	
	15 Pounds 

	Lispund
	20 Skålpund
	
	18.8 Pounds

	Skålpund
	0.425 Kilograms
	Swedish Pound
	0.94 Pounds


This was a letter sent to the press, and was in Östersund’s Posten dated January 1, 1990.  It was written by Kalle Berglund of Svenstavik.  

The American decimal measures have been rounded off to give only rough approximations of the metric equivalent.

Questions:

Old Measurements of Length and Distance

Balja is 50 to 150 of what units?

Seems like Musköthåll of 246 meters should somehow be a musket shot distance, but I do not see how distance could ever mean shot.

For a kolstig, what is 19 hg liter?.

A knogmätt of 24 inches doesn’t seem right.  It seems like it should be maybe 2.4 Inches.

Seems like Fjärdingsväg should be ¼ of something.

Old Dry Measures

What is 19 hg liters for a kilstig?

Old Liquid Measures

It seems like there should be something equal to 2 barrel or 251.2 liters.  Then a barrel could be ½ of that unit, fjärding ¼ of that unit, åtting 1/8 of that unit and a sextondel 1/16 of that unit.

Check Ersdotter vs. Eriksdotter for scanning.

¼ 
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� A hantlangare typically loads cannons, cooks, etc.  He was paid by the military, but was not officially considered an enlisted soldier or officer.  We translated it to Assistant.  


� A Karoliner was a soldier in the time of  King Karl XII.


� districts?


� Ingland, Sweden


� the Village of …?


� was his mother also deceased?


� still does not make sense (to me).


� “The garrison at the fort consists of a Captain, a Warrant Officer, a Constable and three Assistants” has 6 people in the garrison, then it says “all 18 members of the fort”


� Cavalry?


� periods of time?


� Work needed here.


� Was Gertru and Pehr Pehrsson the man and wife and Pehr Jonsson and Anna?


� this must be wrong.  Could 1800 refer to year.  It does say earlier that there were 18 people in the fort.


� fence ropes?


� Why were children’s last name Edberg instead of Olofson?


� Reserved Rights are…R  .  


� Village Name? or cargo boat?


� He would have been 20 years old in 1752?  I wanted to make sure 30 was right and not 20.


� smith was a skilled tradesman


� Do you know what year?


� I still can’t draw on paper what this looks like.  I usually consider a door and passageway synonymous. but I think in this case passageway must mean something else.  


� shingled?


� Load is a hay wagon load.


� One fathom is about two yards. 


� ?


� I think “tenth portion” has a lot more meaning in Swedish.  I remember seeing a reference to “tithe” somewhere and I’ll try to look it up.  I almost had the impression the land was “tithed” to the government.


� 2 days work?  I thought he got ownership of the farm, so he has to work a lot more than 2 days on it, I would think.  Or is two days work a condition of tenancy?


� ratification.  Would registration be a better word?


� the farm and its croplands and Sölfsweds landed gentry property.  I still don’t understand.  How can Nils and Brita sell landed gentry property whey they weren’t landed gentry?


� Is this a contract with Per Andersson and Nils Essing?


� Again, is Per giving some of his rights to Nils?


� I’m honestly completely lost on the entire meaning of this contract.  Who were the parties of this contract?  Who was Per Anderson?  Per Anderson was never mentioned before this point in the story.


� absolute?  irrefutable? nonpartisan?


� homesteaders?  homesteaders from outside the county?


� One barrel (tunnor in Swedish) is about four bushels.


� Was Carl from Hook and Olof from Kall?


� berd� XE "berd" �?


� On-board star makes no sense to us.  Can you help us?


� Probably one skeppspund or 376 American pounds.


� Dried freshwater cod


� ninta� XE "ninta" �?


� Why the question mark?


� Er� XE "Er" � is Mr.?  Ax. is ? 


� This entire paragraph still doesn’t make sense to me.


� This sentence still makes no sense to me?


� Rotehjon are very poor people who must live for a few weeks at a time with many different families in the district through out the year. These families give them some food, shelter, and clothing.


� This phrase makes no sense in English.


� 130 + 36 = 166.  Should be 180 + 36 = 216? or 130 + 86 = 216?


� in lieu of?  as?


� proper name of river?


� raft?  They have the benefit of a small field with a raft?  Maybe “with the raft” should be “and the raft” meaning they can uses both the field and possibly need to use the raft to get to the field?


� repeated instead of relinquished?  In either case, I don’t understand it?  1800 was about 9 years before these contracts were made.  should it be changed to “the common laws of January 23, 1800”?  Does 4 Chapter 1 in the next paragraph refer to these laws?


� we need a lot of help with these last three paragraphs.


� What is a cavalry distance?  Who is this First Lieutenant?  Was there a military company permanently located there?  Did the First Lieutenant own the farm?


� still doesn’t make good grammatical sense.


� follows?


�“from the year 1808 but  men became taxed” still makes no sense.


� winning party shall receive?  losing party shall pay?


� the dean?


� 10 years of tax freedom?  or 10 years of receiving monetary payments?


� charter?


� “was improperly sold” is a contradiction of “had not neglected his duty”


� This is the first reference to a juror.  I’ll try to elaborate here.


� what is R B?


� A B?


� You’ll have to tell us whether it is cabbage or coal through out the book.


� 26 rows of logs with iron pins?


� We can’t understand this sentence.


� Is this right?


� fjerd� XE "fjerd" �?  fjerde� XE "fjerde" � is fourth, but 5/4 planting seed makes no sense.


� 14 sp fern, snarning� XE "snarning" �?  Could 14 sp be 14 species or units of money?  fern?  snarning?


� This must be the left most building in the photograph?  It looks like a cool place to store food in the summer?


� Please review this entire paragraph carefully.


� some slang for “cash”?


� One maling equals 1/6 of an acre or about 9,000 SF or a plot about 100’ x 90’


� I took a stab at dividing this sentence into about 5 smaller sentences.  You’ll have to tell me if I’m on the right track with it, and I’ll keep going with the grammar changes.


� A färdstall was a stable where people could leave their horses when they stayed overnight and traveled the next day. 


� Layers of logs?


� Does kofva� XE "kofva" � mean cover?


� I picture moss-bark as being very weak.  Does the moss-bark somehow protect the roof by shedding water?


� A windlass is a winch or crank.  For drawing water?


� A reed bed is a ?


� Proper name or “reed covered neck of land”?


� Proper name or “carefully supplied”?


� Who lived in the manor house?  Was it Nils Essing or his landlord?


� förning� XE "förning" �?


� care-taker?  immigrant from another province of Sweden or Norway?


� he should be released for the requirement to work for the next four years, because he is building the house?  or is it “released after working for the next four years”


� swale is?  pastureland doesn’t seem to fit.  It seems like the house possesses a swale as if it is an architectural part of the house?  maybe a type of swale roof on the house?


� Torf� XE "Torf" � is sod or peat?


� building built at the side of a barn


� Röståkern is marked field?  enclosed field?  fenced field?  “Fenced field No. 1 of ¼ acres” or “Fenced Field of 1¼  acres”?


� år (year) or är (is)?


� quarters of what?


� What is 4 grain?  4 specific grains such as barley, oats, etc?  or 4 crops of alfalfa or hay each year. (seems unlikely).


� who is Hindrick Nilsson and how is he a part of this contract?


� nullified?


� unreasonable?


� district vicar?  assistant vicar?


� If no assessment, how could it be described?


� Was this a small bridge over a stream?


� ?


� Bridge over nearby stream?


� ?


� swaddling clothes?


� Store house?


� Would “gathered” work?


� What is a guard post?


� Iis this a proper name?


� Skutan is proper name?  Flon is ?


� Village name?


� Shut down or partially shut down?


� salvaged lenses?  safety goggles?  lights on mine hat?  Lanterns?


� appraiser?


� words?


� Warp cleaning?


� Proper name or warp?


� time day?


� quarterly Court Session?


� easy or uneasy?


� what is a forest hut?


� latter is right?


� what year?


� 311 Rd, 5 Sp, 4 Rd Banko  I don’t understand how to write this where Rd appears twice.


� cousin of whom? proper name?


� German for jury?


� lack of wisdom or falsehood?  lack of wisdom or negligence?


� pasture?


� not in fairness?


� Mårten Andersson born in 1770 so Anders Jacobsson born in 1782 would be 12 years younger, rather than older?


� maybe should be Anders Mårtensson here?


� Very Wise?


� Christen had not been furnished the grain?  or Christen had not paid for the grain?


� is finalized? 


� unaffected? unowned? unheard of?


� afrämjas� XE "afrämjas" �?


� attack?


� received?


� 100 years ago?


� 1 kanna equals about ½ gallon.


� Homestead fireplace or homestead account (räkna)?


� tax payments?


� target? goal?  production goals? production statistics?


� Tag is days or take or maybe partake?


� multkirrisa� XE "multkirrisa" �?


� bridge above the river prepared with smaller logs or round logs close to each other, directly crossing the river


� Are Fredriks and Sjölanders well known farms or landmarks.


� Is “Ol� XE "Ol" �’ Ols” a book?


� she being the wife of Daniel?


� spelman?


� scrap and grain?


� needs work.


� errand applied?


� Stupade means were killed?


� is there a better word or phrase?


� Was Jonas Spelman possibly a brother or nephew of Olof Spelman?


� my assumption needs checking.


� kretanter� XE "kretanter" �?


� 10 months of 20/month or 10/month for 20 months?


� pandning� XE "pandning" �?


� make-up? paint?


� pandning� XE "pandning" �?


� treatment?


� Sigurd is the young boy on Signe’s lap?


� Verdal’s Book.  Would this be a government or church record book?


� Årvillbäcken on Swedish maps


� 1 kilogram is about 2 pounds.


� Helgådalsnytt is the proper Swedish name of newspaper.


� What is a wooden strong room?


� A room with straw and ice to keep food cool as long as possible into the summer, right?


� 16 horses seems like a lot.  Would this be an inn where people stay while on journeys?


� I think stone foundation walls would be right, but dry benches is dry milking benches?  dry stalls? dry walls?


� who is the tenant on the old plot?  the size of the old plot is 2/3 of an acre?


� Who are Olof Ersson and Anders Andersson?


� Could röker could be misspelling of  räkna?


� I assumed slott was misspelling of slått, ?


� Holmt Iron Castle or Holmtjern Castle? Or even Holmtjern hay field? or proper name to remain as is?


� Anders Swamp or Village Name?


� Mill Swamp or Village Name?


� Wakers slåtten?  Wakers hay field?  Wakers Castle?  Village Name?


� Äbomyran as a Village Name?  or the tenants slough


� Röbergmyran as a Village Name?  or the reed mountain slough?


� New Fäbowallmyran as a Village Name?  or the mountain pasture slough


� New Fäbowallen as a Village Name?  or the mountain pasture.


� looks live verb needed heree


� Jämtland County Governor?


� lowered?


� him is Bergstrom or Persson?


� 7 layers high?


� Any of the plants of the sedge family often found on wet ground or in water, having usually triangular, solid stems, three rows of narrow, pointed leaves, and minute flowers borne in spikelets


� Village Name? 


� Village Name? 


� Village Name? 


� Village Name? 


� Village Name? 


� Village Name?


� Village Name? 


� be the boss? 


� did not receive or forfeited makes more sense.


� disrespect?


� I changed could to couldn’t because it seemed to read better


� log cabin walls that need chinking?  was mud used for fill, or cement?


� misspelling of gälfven or floor?


� place name or frozen beds?


� I made fensterlufter windows instead of bay windows.  Bay windows sound way too expensive for the cottages?


� Village Name?  


� Village Name? 


� help needed.


� Magnus?


� probably wrong here.


� 1 kapper is about 1 gallon.


� Sark is a shirt?


� my dictionary had malning as “grinding” which I changed to milling.


� I left ettåriga as one-year instead of eight years?   It seems eight-year old would be to old to carry.  This makes it take place about 1832, which I think fits while he was in Hammerdal and before he went to Raukasjö?


� strait or channel?


� road ?


� the birth of the homestead?


� this part makes no sense to me, and doesn’t seem to fit yet?


� tunneland or acre?


� badstuga is boat house or bath stove?


� tenancy rights sure seems to fit the meaning better?


� quite a stretch for Bad and Bakstuga, but it kind of fits?


� I have mantalskrifne as “registered for censu”?


� fulfång?  full armfuls? Christmas trees?


� was this after Brita died?


� meadow?


� grain?


� cultivation?


� shoe shine?


� flat?


� lantern?


� double axe?


� straight spike?


� leather?


� Lapp shoes? patched shoes?


� ware?


� handles?


� planes?


� crown spool?


� made equal?


� Should the estate balance be 1293.10 to make the total debts equal the total assets of 1303.26?


� I come up with 24 ½ by adding.  However, those dimensions might work out to 35½ square malings. 


� some time of year?


� I only come up with 19?


� manure?


� What is Fälttågen?


� cottage site?


� beaten?


� place name? horse care?


� attic house? 


� testimony or witness for the buyer?


� last name or place name?


� delinquent taxes?


� I don’t understand Farm No. 2 and Farm No. 30?


� absence?


� at any rate?


� Olof or Eric died?


� coal miner?


� There is no 1st ?


� deprivation? dispossession?


� wooden stable?  birthing stable?


� bold? brave?


� concern? notice? 


� half?


� proper name or road?


� arm is military? bösse is rifle? medlen is members? military support payment?


� near for?


� flag ….?  flagstone?


� poured? rushed?


� fine something?


� octagon?


� run? drive?


� located?


� respectable?


� brewed? distilled?


� military reserves?


� maimed? misformed?


� understatement?


� did the arsenic kill her?


� administration?


� bölen� XE "bölen" �?


� bad road?  


� be chastened? be made pure?


� I imagine bondesonen was probably the son that was going to take over the farm, right?  That would probably make a bondesonen a higher status than a regular dräng?


� The sentence to this point doesn’t make sense to me.


� anslagen should be notice, placard, or bill, but I can’t seem to get it to fit.


� became a regiment musician?


� How did he become Per Söder from Per Henriksson?


� I took väl to be welfare which I changed to pension?


� sound or strait?


� snare trap?


� but weak?  slow?


� islet?  island?


� purchased?


� scrubbed?


� indentation?  depression?  hollow?  gouge? notch?


� standing hook?  does it mean they were float fishing?


� måttan� XE "måttan" � is limit or moderation?


� freshly?


� the removal notice? the land was ceded to Lappland?


� 1 meter is about 1 yard


� spruce? grand? majestic? other?


� just now completed or equitably (just) completed 


� hide?  skin?


� sieve for thrashing wheat or barley?  sieve for milking?


� bell?


� book?


� unit of measurement?  I sure can’t find it.


� spring?


� salvaged? imported? reclaimed?


� drolet� XE "drolet" �?


� aflopp� XE "aflopp" �?


� produce?


� drol� XE "drol" �?


� lejer� XE "lejer" � is hire?


� poured off? pay off? harvested? 


� next year?  last year?


� eng?


� sowable?  seed-able?  plant-able?


� kl� XE "kl" �öfjor is pack horses?


� tilltagande is ?


� pears?


� Village Name?


� Village Name?


� sönnast� XE "sönnast" �?


� listened to?


� day-light savings time?  Is this slang for something?


� marked?


� cart bed loads?


� undersörjes� XE "undersörjes" � is provide for?


� med?


� garmakeri� XE "garmakeri" �?


� undforsla� XE "undforsla" �?


� 1 skålpund is about 0.94 pounds.


� arranged?


� eastern?


� east?


� proper name or sand marsh pasture?


� öfstan� XE "öfstan" �?


� property line marking?


� harvest?


� see word about 5 footnotes up?


� stenbärtföra is stone ?


� of which? nearby?


� Tjern is prop name?


� side long?  long side? sideways?


� boat house?


� begångna is committed?


� Village Name?


� next lawful?


� Nöyou� XE "Nöyou" �?  necessary or nödige?


� Löftägt is leaf gathering?


� walls built of processed lumber?


� beslagna� XE "beslagna" � is confiscated or seized?


� linseed is flax?


� Fäviksvallen is Village Name?


� one story house?


� legality?


� Storåsarna is Village Name?  large ridge?


� Hermyrs is Village Name?


� I thought his wife was Brita?  Was this a former wife?


� lester is 18 skippunds or 360 lisspunds or 6,700 American pounds?


� hvarsit?


� after 1851 by Pehr or Jonas?


� enkom� XE "enkom" � is composes?


� körbro� XE "körbro" � is some kind of bridge?


� something corners?


� helleseng� XE "helleseng" �?


� water?  water rope?  net? irrigated? moistened?


� myrtag� XE "myrtag" �?


� named both Brita Essing and Brita Gunnarsdotter, the mother of Gunnal Halfvarsson.


� rope? net?


� authoritization?


� field harkvan� XE "harkvan" �?


� rope?


� net? waterproof rope?


� Village Name?


� life harvest?  fruit of their labor?  reap their rewards?  Reserved Rights benefits?


� fishing?


� 1886?


� tax increase? wasteland tax?


� red?


� feed or eat?


� proper name?


� Village Name?


� Village Name?


� upprister� XE "upprister" �?


� appraiser?


� words?


� obeying? following? taking? answering?


� utgodset is Village Name?


� custody?


� valued?


� removed? affär is business?


� put up?


� end?


� end?


� acknowledge?


� ¾ of something?


� long?


� reduced by ½ to 1 barrel or reduced to ½ barrel from 1 ½ barrels


� other?


� summons?


� over?


� interest?


� City Letter?


� seller’s own or buyer’s own>


� food days?


� safe conduct?


� important men?


� wilderness tax?


� barrels?


� proper name?  Two Pastures?


� commanded?


� disagrees with seller name below.


� working?


� Municipal Officer?


� tolerate?


� motif?


� changing?


� examination?


� traveled to Municipal Court?


� deferral?


� payments of 150, 2500 and 2000 add up to 4650 instead of 8650.


� 1 bag is equal to ?


� full?


� Mountain?


� Is Norwegian right?


� Heap of stones used as a landmark.


� path or trail?


� Village Name?


� indicates?


� mountain something?


� Lapp Sheriff?


� after his death, compensate his heirs?


� cellar?


� cash?


� annual lease?


� wasted wood?  brush?


� floating something?


� reindeer?


� shifted? toggled? modified?


� It was in the Village of Backsjönäset a few pages earlier.


� revenge?


� now as in 1999?


� receive?


� long?


� ledning? 


� hvaremont or by which? havemot or opposite?


� squares?


� branches?


� quick? flint?


� baking oven?


� disregarded?


� Laplanders?


� owned?


� correction? justification?


� invänder is object (to) something?


� accounting for?


� one tenth of the seed?


� 5+10+30+45+45?


� the summer?


� barracks?


� barracks?


� previously aged?


� the skin’s?


� händelse is occurrence?


� mother?


� work?


� morning gift? dowry?


� flax? linen? linseed?


� I get 97 here.


� 879.25 plus (2+16+38+45+5+5) plus 102 equals 1092.25 okay.  I add to 879.25 instead of 877.25  and 97 instead of 102 


� suffer?


� delineated or signed?


� tithe of some sort?


� check English quartum.


� indigent rights? poor rights?


� win? gain?


� fertile?


� skin cutting tools?


� mercy?


� How could Jonas be the witness and buyer?


� swamp draining?


� who are Persson and Ersson?  buyer?  seller?


� risen?


� arise?


� 1 hectoliter is about (Ron to find out) 


� 1 liter is about 1 quart


� 1 deciliter is about (Ron to find out)


� rear building?


� unsecured?


� Jonsdotter or E2 above?


� fastened?


� wall kettle?


� load?


� same livelihood?


� flax? linseed?


� arise?


� log cabin?


� meat?


� resigning?


� fodder?


� bark?


� Christian Teacher?


� not lessened?


� walker?


� worth? where?


� the hired hand?


� straw?


� Who was the seller?  Did Jacob buy another farm after he sold out to Per and Nils Nilsson? 


� detention?


� Was Jacob really trying to buy back his farm, or was he just trying to raise the bid?


� behavior?


� happened	


� jersey?


� I get 69.10


� linseed? flax?


� I get 3.02


� hämtar is fetched or collected?


� I get 354.27


� iron ridge?


� extractor tool of some sort?


� I get 69.25


� I get 108.25


� happened?


� I get 2.00


� collector of some sort?


� I get 8.65


� skate?


� cleaning broom?


� coat?


� I get 118.45


� I get 335.9?


� Total works with 286.95, that I can’t get to.


� I get 387.85


� to work?


� gate?


� three crops of sedge hay each year?


� received home?


� second hand?


� legally evicted? clever? skillful? capable?


� Table 114 shows a death date of 1871-72 for Petrus Pettersson, the year he emigrated?


� 1 kilopund is about 1,000 pounds.


� coarse?


� informer?


� slang for “at a loss for words?


� Community?


� changed its name


� uninterrupted?


� legitimate? authority? power? competence?


� Village’s?


� There appears to be only 3 people in photo, but there might be the top of the head of a small child at the bottom of picture.


� T. F. ?


� accused?


�outrage? taking? 


� T.F. ?


� 116 Riksdalers 21 Species minus 24 Riksdalers 30 Species is 91 Riksdalers 39 Species?


� relieved of his ownership rights?


� values? inspection? care?


� put up?


� was the only one who had?


� timbered?


� floating?


� hay something?


� put up?


� put up?


� is this a mistype of 94?


� milk pails?


� half sinker? 


� plow shares?


� measured?


� generations?


� lifetime?


� generations?  man-years?


� myself?


� wood?  


� runs?


� cherry tree root?


� joined?


� Season?


� Nyström is new ….?


� eng is walking or on foot?


� sameness? treatment?


� Help Priest?  some kind of title?


� responsibilities?


� hayland?


� coal miner?


� happened	


� various?


� meeting?


� ownership?


� Lapp tax?


� wilderness tax?


� Anders Bergström above and Anders Pehrsson must be the same person?  


� Nils Persson and Nils Bergström must be the same person? 


� proper name? west of?


� counted?


� painted wood?  varnished wood?


� both for?


� or noted?


� dissension?


� again lost? liberated again?


� should this be 1,500?


� cart bed loads?


� served?


� wasted wood? brush?


� growth?


� unground? unmilled?


� thrown?


� quiver?


� blue something?


� railing?


� post?


� bed?


� shaggy?


� dry ______?


� drög is draw or pull?


� cable?


� pack saddle?


� air bellows?


� piece?


� curling? hair?


� pieces?


� unprepared?


� iron ridge?


� bell?


� bread something?


� horse collars?


� camphor?


� Why wasn’t the 10 in the total?  What is the 22.36 on page 425?


� What is a hunters payment for?


� lifetime?


� root fruit?  root crops?  potatoes? carrots?, beets?


� tithe? newspapers?


� ahead? before?


� good man?


� tithe? newspapers?


� Village Name?


� newly named?


� floor bottom?


� dug?


� cellar?


� hull is flesh or fat?


� call roster?


� smoke?


� proper name?


� proper name?


� Beautiful


� vask is sink?


� slaggtegelugn is cinder brick? cinder box?


� weak something? locksmith?


� trädklans� XE "trädklans" �? träd is wood?  wood clothes?  or thread clothes?


� growth?


� wares?


� them?


� home?


� them?


� them?


� brother of Olof and uncle of Lars?


� 24+26=50?


� timbered?


� I don’t understand the currency addition here.


� I get 185.24 total?


� timber?


� stayed?


� vida is far or renowned?


� have? hellre is rather or sooner?


� acknowledge?


� acknowledged?


� playhouse? game room?


� Silage?


� yielding?


� företrädesvis? träd is wood? trädes is fallow field?


� put up?


� proper name or Semel saw?


� added or deleted?


� hired hand?


� brick?  masonry? wall bolt? 


� mother’s father? murdered?


� Village Name? dry cottage?


� clergyman’s cape?


� suet?


� focused something?


� tax free? unrelated?


� Village Name?


� Village Name?


� slang for transported in boxes?


� deceive?


� A dance similar to Polka


� children in her care?


� seven units of monetary unit besides kronors?


� purchase?


� Care? Reserved Rights Care? conditions of the?
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